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PROCLAMATIONS
CANADA

BESSBOROUGII

[L.S.]

GEORGE THE FIFTH, by the Grace of God, of Great Britain, Ireland and
the British Dominions beyond the Seas KING, Defender of the Faith,
Emperor of India.

To Our Belýoved and Faithful the Senators of the Dominion of Canada, and
the Members elected to serve in the House of Commons of Our said
Dominion, and to, each and every Of YOU,-GCREETING:

A PROCLAMATION

WHERBAS Our Parliament of Canada stands prorogued to the twelfth day
of the month of September, 1931, at which time, at Our City of Ott.awa,

you were held and constrained to appear. iNow KNow YE, that for divers
eauses and considerations, and taking into consideration the ease and convenience
af Our Loving Subjects, We have thought fit by and with the advice of Oui'
Privy Council for Canada, to relieve you, and each of you, of your attendance
at the time aforesaid, hereby convoking and by these presents enjoining, vou
and each of you, that on Thursday, the twenty-second day of the mon{h of
October, 1931, you meet Us, in our Our Parliament of Canada, at Our City of
Ottawa, there to take into consideration the state and welf are of, Our said
Dominion of Canada and therein to do as may seem necessary. HEREIN F.xîr
NOT.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, XVe have caused these Our Letters to be macle
Patent and the Great Seal of Canada to be hereunto affixed. WITNESS:

Our Right Trusty and WelI-beloved Cousin and Counsellor, Vere
Brabazon, Banl of Bessborough, a Member of Our Most Honourable
Pnivy Council, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order
of Saint Michael and Saint George, formerly Captain in Our Territorial
Army, Governor-General and Commander-in-Chief of Our Dominion
of Canada.

At Our Government House, in Our City of OTTAWA, this eighth day of
September, in the year of Our Lord one thousand nine hundred and
thirty-one and in the twenty-second year of Our Reign.

By Command,

G. R. SHIBLEY,

Acting Under-Secretary of State.
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Proclamation s 1932

BESSBOROUGH

CANADA

GEORGE THE FJFTII, by the Grace of God, of Great Britain, Irelanci andI
the British Dominions beyond the Seas KING, Defc'nder of the Faith,
Emperor of India.

To Our Beloved and Faithful the Senators of the Dominion of Canada, and
the Members elected to serve in the Hbuse of Commons of Our saîd
Dominion, and to each and every of you,--GREET1NG:

A PRO>CLAMATION

WHEREAS Our Parliament of Canada stands prorogued to the twenty-
second day of the month of October, 1931, at which time, at Our Cit.y

of Ottawa, you were held and constrained to appear. Now KNOW YE, that for
divers causes and considerations, and taking into consideration the ease and
convenience of Our Loving Subjects, We have thought fit, by and with the advie
of Our Privy Council for Canada, to relieve you, and each of you, of your
attendance at the time aforesaid, hereby eonvoking and hy these presents enjoin-
ing you and each of you, that on Tueýsday, the first day of the month of D-ecember,
1931, you meet Us, in our Parliament of Canada, at Our City of Ottawa, there
to take into consideration the state and welfare of Our said Dominion of Canada,
and therein to do as may seem necessary. HEISEIN FAIL NOT.

IN TESTIMONY WH-EREOF, We have caused these Our Letters to bc made'
Patent and the Great Seal of Canada to be hereunto, affixed. WITNESS'
Our Right Trusty and Well-beloved Cousin and Counsellor, Vere
Brabazon, Earl of Bessborough, a Member of Our Mos-t Honourable
Privy Couneil, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order
of Saint Michael and Saint George, formerly Captain in Our Territorial
Army, Governor-General and Commander-in-Chief of Our Dominion
of Canada.

At Our Government bouse, in Our City of OTTAWA, in Our said Dominion,
this fourteenth day of Octoher, in the year of Our Lord, one thousand
nine hundred and thirty-one, and in the twenty-second year of Our
Reign.

By Comnmand,

THIOMAS MULVEY,
Under-Secretary of State.
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1932 Proclamations

BESSBOROUGH

[L.S.]

CANADA

GEORGE THE FIFTH, by the Grace of God, of Great Britain, Ireland and
the British Dominions beyond the Seas KING, De! ender of the Fctith,
Emperor of India.

To Our Beloved and Faithful the Senators of the Dominion of Canada, and
the Members elected to serve in the Huse of Commons of Our said
Dominion, and to each and every of you,-GREETING:

A PROCLAMATION

WVHEREAS Our Parliament of Canada stands prorogued to the first day of
the month of December, 1931, at which time, at Our City of Ottawa, you

were held and constrained to appear. Now KNOW YE, that for divers causes~
and considerations, and taking into consideration the ease and convenience of
Our Loving Subjects, We have thought fit by and with the advice of Our Privy
Council for Canada, to relieve you, and each of you, of your attendance at the
time aforesaid, hereby -convoking and by these presents enjoining you and each
of y0u, that on Monday, the eleventh day of the month of January, 1932, you
meet Us, in our Parliament of -Canada, at Our City of Ottawa, there to take
into consideration the state and welfare of Our said Dominion of Caniada and
therein to do as may seein necessary. HEREIN FAIL NOT.

IN TESTIMONY WTHEREOF, We have caused these Our Letterýs to be macle
Patent and the Great Seal of Canada ta he hereunto affixed. WITNESS:
Our Right Trusty and Well-beloved Cousin and Counsellor, Vere
Brabazon, Earl of Bessborough, a Member of Our Most Honourable
Privy Council, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order
of Saint Michael and Saint Geýorge, formerly Captain in Our Territorial
Army, Governor-General and Commander-mn-Chief of Our Dominion
of Canada.

At Our Government ILouse, ini Our City of OTTAWA, in Our said Dominion,
this twenty-fifth day of November, in the year of Our Lord one thousand
nine hundred -and thirty-one and in the twenty-second year of Our
Reign.

By Command,

THOMAS MULVEY,
-Under-Secretary of State.

Proclamations1932



Proclamations 1932

BESSBOROUGH

[L.S.]

CANADA

GEORGE THE FIFTH, by the Grace of Goil, of Great Britain, Ireland and
the British Dominions beyond the Seas KING, Defender of the Fait b,
Emperor of India.

To Our Beloved and Faithful the Senators of the Dominion of Canada, and
the Members elected te serve in the lieuse of Commons of O}ur said
Dominion, and to each and every of YOU,--GREETING:

A PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS Our Parliamenýt of Canada was sum-moned ta meet on the
eleventh day of the month of January, 1932, at whieh time at OIur City

of Ottawa, you were held and constrained ta appear. Nevcrtheless, for certain
causes and considerations, W7e du XVilI, by and with the adviee of Our Privy
Council for Canada, that you and each ef you, be as ta Us in this matter
entirely exonerated, Commanding, and by the tenor of these Presents enjoining
you, and each of you, and ail others in this behaif interested, that on THURS-
DAY, the FOURTH day of the month of FEBRUARY next, a-t Our City of
Ottawa, aferesaid, personally you be and appear, for the DESPAT1'rH 0F
BUSINESS, ta treat, do, aet and conclude upon these things which in Our said
Parliament of Canada, by the Gommon Ceuncil of Our said Dominion, may
by the favour of God be ordained.

IN TESTIMONY WHEnEoF, We have caused these Our Letters to be madle
Patent and the Great Seal of Canada to be -hereunto affixed. WITN;ES:
Our Right Trusty and Well-heloved Cousin and Counsellor, Vere
Brabazon, Earl of Bessberough, a Member of Our Most Honourable
Privy Council, Knight Grand Cross of Dur Most Distinguished Order
of Saint Michael.and Saint Geoorge, forrnerly Gaptain in O}ur Territorial
Army, Governor-General and Commander-in-Chief of Our Dominion
of Canada.

At Our Gorvernxnent House, in -Our ýCity of OTTAWA, in Oui said Dominion,
this sei'eiteenth day oif Thecember, in the year of Our Lord -one thousand
nine hundred and thirty-one, and in the twenty-second y'ea-r of Our
Reign.

By Command,

THOMAS MULVEY,
Under-Secretary of ,State.

Proclamations 1932



A.D. 1932 4Tu FEBRL'ARY

No. 1

JOURNALS
OF

THE SENATE OF CANADA

Thursday, 4th February, 1932

The Senate met this day at half-past two of the clock in the afternoon,
being the third session of the Seventeenth Parliament of Canada, as summoned
by Proclamation.

The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

41765--
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PRAYERS.

The ilonourable the Speaker informed the Senate that he had received a
communication from the Governor General's Secretary, as follows:-

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR GENERAI'S SECRETARY, CANADA

OTTAWA, January 7th, 1932.
SiR,-I have the honour ta inform you that is Excellency the Governor

General will proceed ta the Senate Chamiber ta open the Session of the Dominion
Parliament on Thursday, the 4th February, at three p.m.

I have the honour ta be,
Sir,

Your obedient servant,
A. 'F. LASCELLES,

Secretary ta the Governor General.
The ilonourable

The Speaker of the Senate,
Ottawa.

Ordcrcd, That the same do lie on the Table.

The Jlonourable the Speaker informed the Senate that the Clerk had
received certificates from the Honourable the Secretary of State of Canada
showing that-

Alexander Duncan McRae, Esquire,
The Right Honourable Arthur Meiglien,
The Honourable Charles Colquhoun Ballantyne,
William Henry Dennis, Esquire, and
John Alexander Macdonald, Esquire,

respectively, have been summoned ta the Senate.

The ilonourable the Speaker informed the Senate that there were Senators
without, waiting to he introduced.

The Hanourable Alexander Duncan McRae was int roduced between the
Honourable Senator Willoughby and the Honourable Senatar Barnard, and hav-
ing presented is Majesty's W/rit of Summons, it was read by the Clerk, as
follows:

CANADA
BESSBOROUGH

(L.S.)

GEORGE THE FIFTH, by the G race of God of Great Britaîn, Irelanil, and the British
Dominions beyond the Seas KiNG, Defender of the Faith, Emperor of
India.

To aur Trusty and Well-beloved Alexander Duncan McRae, C.B., of the
City of Vancouver, in the Province of British Columbia, in Our Dominion of
Canada,

GREETING:

Know you, that as well for the especial trust and confidence We have
manifested in you, as for the purpose of obtaining your advice and assistance
in all weighty and arduous affairs which may the State and Defence of Our
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Dominion of Canada concern, We have thought fit to summon you to the Senate
of Our said Dominion; and We do command you, that ail difficulties and excuses
whatsoever laying aside, you be and appear, for the purposes aforesaid, in the
Senate of Our said Dominion, at ail times whensoever and wheresoever Our
Parliament may be in Our said Dominion convoked and bolden; and this you
are in no wise to omit.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, We have caused these Our Letters to be made
Patent and the Great Seal of Canada to be hercunto affixed.

Witness: Our Right Trusty and Right Well-beloved Cousin and Counsellor,
Vere Brabazon, Earl of Bessborough, a Member of Our Most Honourable Privy
Council, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael
and Saint George, formerly Captain in Our Territorial Army, Governor Genera]
and Commander-in-ýChief of Our Dominion of Canada.

At Our Government Huse, in Our City of Ottawa, in Our Dominion of
Canada, this fourth day of September, in the year of Our Lord one
thousand nine hundred and thirty-one and in the twenty-second year
of Our Reign.

By Command,

C. FI. CAbAN,
Secretary of Ste te of Canada.

Ordcrcd, That the same bc placed upon the Journals.

The bonourable Senator Mcflae came to the Table and took and sub-
scribed the Oath prescribed by law, which was administercd by the Clerk of the
Senate, the Commissioner appointed for that purpose, and took his seat as a
Member of thc Senate.

The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that the bonourable
Scnator McRae, had made and subscribed the Declaration of Qualification
required of him by The British North Arnerica Act, 1867, in the presence of the
Clerk of the Senate, the Cotumissioner appointcd to receive and witness the same.

The Riglit Honourable Arthur Meighen wvas introduced between the bon-
ourable Senator Willoughby and the Hlonourable Senator Poirier, and having
prcscntcd bis Majesty's Writ of Summnons, it was read by the Clerk, as follows:-.

CANADA
BESSBOROUGH

(L.S.)

GEORGE THE FIFTH, by the Grace of God of Great Britain, Ireland, and the British
Dominions beyond the Seas KiŽNc, Defender of the Faith, Emperor of
India.

To aur Trusty and WeIl-beloved the Right bonourable Arthur Meighen, tif
the City of Toronto, in the Province of Ontario, a M''ember of bis Majesty's Most
bonourable Privy Council, a Member of the King's Privy Council for Canada,
one of bis Majesty's Counsel learned in the Law,

GREETING:
Know you, that as well for the especial trust and confidence We have

manifested in you, as for the purpose of obtaining your advice and assistance
in ahl weighty and arduous affairs which may the State and Defence of Our

A.D. 1932 4Tn FEBRUARY



Dominion of Canada concern, We have thought fit to summon you to the Senate
of Our said Dominion; and We do command you, that ail difficulties and excuses
whatsoever laying aside, you be and appear, for the purposes aforesaid, in the
Senate of Our said Dominion, at ail times whensoever and wheresoever Our
Parliament may be in Our said Dominion convoked and holden; and this you
are in no wise to omit.

IN TESTIMONY WTEEREOF, We have caused these Our Letters to be made
Patent and the Great Seal of Canada to be hereunto affixed.

Witness: Our Right Trusty and Right WeIl-beloved Cousin and Counsellor,
Vere Brabazon, Earl of Bessborough. a Member of Our Most Honourable Privy

CJouncil, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguisbed Order of Saint Michael
and Saint George, f ormerly Captain in Our Territorial Army, Governor General
and Commander-in-Chief of Our Dominion of Canada.

At Our Government House, in Our City of Ottawa, in Our Dominion of
Canada, this third day of February, in the year of Our Lord one
thousand nine hundred and tliirty-twu and in the twenty-second year
of Our Reign.

By Command,

C. H. CAHAN,
Secretary of State of Canada.

Ordered, That the same be placcd upon the Journals.

The Righit Honourable Senator Meighen came to the Table and took and

subscribed the Oath prescribed by law, which was administered by the Clerk of

the Senate, the Commissioner apopinted for tlîat purpose, and took hîs seat as a
Member of the Senate.

The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that the Right Honourable
Senator Meighcn had made and subscribed the Declaration of Qualification
required of him by The British North Arnerica Act, 1867, in the presence of the
Clerk of the Senate, the Commissioner appointed to receiv'e and witness the same.

The Honourable Charles Colquhoun Ballantyne was introýduced between the

Right Honourable Senator Meighen and the Honourable Senator Webster, and

having presented lis Majesty's Writ of Summons, it was read by the Clerk, as
follows:

CANADA
BESSBOROUGH

(L.S.)

GEORGE THE Fi:FTH, by the Grace of God of Great Britain, Ireland, and the British
Dominions beyond the Seas KiNO, Defender of the Faith, Emperor of
India.

To our Tru,,ty and Well-beloved the Honourable Charles Golquhoun
Ballantyne, of the City of Montreal, in the Province of Quebec.

GREETING:

Know you, that as well for the especial trust and confidence We have

manîfested in you, as for the purpose of obtaining your advice and assistance
in ail weighty and arduous affairs which may the State and Defence of Our

22 GEO. VTHE SENATE



Dominion of Canada concern, We have thouglit fit to summon you to the Senate
of Our said Dominion; and We do appoint you for the Aima Electoral Division
of Our Province of Quebec, and We do command you that ail difficulties and
excuses whatsoever laying aside, you be and appear, for the purposes aforesaid,
in the Senate of Our said Dominion, at ail times whensoever and wh'eresoever
Our Parliament may be in Our said Dominion convoked and hoiden; and this yeu
are in no wise to omit.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, WVe have caused these Our Letters to be made
Patent and the Great Seai cf Canada to be hereunto affixed.

Witness: Our Right Trusty and Right Well-beioved Cousin and Counseilor,
Vere Brabazon, Eari of Bessborough, a MembeT of Our Most Honourable Prîvy
Cýouncil, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order cf Saint Michael
and Saint George, formerly Captain in Our Territorial Army, Governor General
and Commander-in-Chief cf Our Dominion cf Canada.

At Our Government House, in Our City cf Ottawa, in Our Dominion cf
Canada, this third day cf February, in the year cf Our Lord one
thousand nine hundred and thirty-two and in the twenty-second year
cf Our Reign.

By Command,

C. H. CAHAN,
Secretary cf State cf Canada.

Ordered, That the saine be placed upon the Journals.

The Honourable Senator Ballantyne came to the Table and teck and sub-
scribed the Oath prescribed by iaw, which was administered by the Clerk of the
Senate, the Commissioner appointed for that, purpose, and tcok his seat as a
Member cf the Senate.

The Honourabie the Speaker informed the Senate that the Honourable
Senator Baliantyne had made and subscribed the Declaration cf Qualification
required cf him by The British North America A4ct, 1867, in the presence cf the
Cierk of the Senate, the Commissioner appcinted te receive and witness the saine.

The Honcurable William Henry Dennis was introduced between the Right
Honourahie Senator Meighen and the Honourable Senator Mebennan, and hav-
ing presented His Majesty's Writ cf Summons, it was read by the Clerk, as
foliows:

CANADA
BESSBOROUGH

(L.S.)

GEORGE THE FirrE, by the Grace of God o 'f Great Britain, Ireland, and the British
Dominions beyond the Seas KING. Defender of the Faith, Emperor of
India.

To our Trusty and Weil-beioved William Henry Dennis, cf the City cf
Halifax, in the Province cf Nova Scotia, Publisher.

GBEETiNG:

Kncw ycu, that as we]l for the especial trust and confidence We have
manifested in you, as for the purpose cf cbtaining vour advice and assistance
in ail weighty and arducus affairs which may the State and Defence cf Our

4TH FEBRUARYA.D. 1932



Dominion of Canada concern, We have thought fit to summon you to the Senate
of Our said Dominion; and We do command you, that ail difilculties and excuses
whatsoever laying aside. you be and appear, for the purposes aforesaid, in the
Senate of Our said Dominion, at ail times whensoever and wheresoever Our
Parliament may be in Our said Dominion convoked and holden; and this you
are in no0 wise to omit.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, We have caused these Our Letters to be made
Patent and the Great Seal of Canada to be hereunto affixed.

Witness: Our Right Trusty and Right Well-beloved Cousin and Counsellor,
Vere Brabazon, Earl of Bessborough, a Member of Our Most Honourable Privy
Council, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael
and Saint George, formerly Captain in Our Territorial Army, Governor General
and Commander-in-Chief of Our Dominion of Canada.

At Our Government buse, in Our City of Ottawa, in Our Dominion, of
Canada, this third day of February, in the year of Our Lord one
thousand nine hundred and thirty-two and in the twenty-second year
of Our Reign.

By Command,

C. b. CAbAN,
Secrctary of State of Canada.

Ordered, That the same be placed upon the Journals.

The bonourable Senator Dennis came to the Table and took and sub-
scribed the Oath prescribed by law, which was administered by the Clerk of the
Senate, the Commissioner appointed for that purpose, and took his seat as a
Member of the Senate.

The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that the Honourable
Senator Dennis had made and subscribed the Declaration of Qualification
required of him by The British North America Act, 1867, in the presence of the
Clerk of the Senate, the ýCommissioner appointed to receive and witness the same.

The Senate was adjourned during pleasure.

After a while, bis Excellency the Governor General having come, and being
seated on the Throne,--

The bonourable the Speaker commanded the Gentleman Usher of the Black
Rod to proceed to the bouse of Commons and acquaint that bouse that,-

It is His Excellency the Governor General's pleasure that they attcnd him
immediately in the Senate Chamber.

Who being come, with their Speaker,

bis Excellency thie Governor General was pleased to open the Session by a
Gracious Speech to both bouses, as follows:

THE SENATE 22 GEO. V



Honourable Members of the Senate:

Members of the House of Commons:

In addressing you for the first time, I desire to express my gratification at
having been selected by His Majesty as his representative in the Dominion of
Canada, and to acknowledge with profound thanks the reception which has
been accorded to me by the people of this country. I accept it as a proof of
their loyalty and devotion to the Crown. I shall count it a happiness as well
as a duty to associate myself with you in your labours for the welfare oi
Canada.

You enter upon your duties at a time of continuing and universal economic
disturbance and distress. World conditions are beyond the control of the Cana-
dian people. But I rejoice that their resolute adherence to policies designed
for the welfare of the nation has minimized the adverse influence of external
economic forces. This period of trial has shown the Canadian situation to
be fundamentally sound. The over-subscription of the National Service Loan
manifests both the unity and patriotism of the people, and their supreine con-
fidence in the financial strength of the Dominion. Canada still maintains its
high place in world commerce. Within the last few months, a favourable
balance of trade has been established. The provisions made at the last session
of Parliament for unemployment and farm relief are proving effective.

You are successfully meeting difficult domestic problems. Conditions are
gradually improving. But prosperity in full measure must await the satis-
factory adjustment of accounts between debtor and creditor nations of the
world and the restoration of international monetary standards, from which the
acute financial difficulties have compelled a temporary departure.

Since the last Session of Parliament my Ministers have commenced nego-
tiations with the Government of the United States of America for the com-
pletion of the St. Lawrence Waterway.

A Commission has been appointed to inquire into the whole problem of
transportation in Canada. My Ministers expect that the report of the Com-
mission will be ready for submission to Parliament during the present Session.

My Ministers have under consideration a Commercial Treaty with the
Dominion of New Zealand,

A Canadian Delegation is participating in the Disarmament Conference,
which was opened at Geneva on the 2nd of February. I join with you in the
prayer that the representatives of the Nations there assembled may reach an
understanding which will put beyond peril the cause of enduring world peace.

On the invitation of my Government, an Economic Conference of mem-
bers of the British Commonwealth of Nations will meet in Ottawa on July 18th
next.

The Geneva Narcotics Convention of 1931, The Red Cross, Prisoners of
War and other Conventions, will be submitted for your approval.

Among the other measures to which your attention will be invited will
he a Bill relating to insurance and Bills relating to patents and trade marks.

You will also be asked to consider Bills to amend the Canada Shipping
Act and the Fisheries Act.

Members of the House of Commons:

The Public Accounts for the last fiscal year and the Estimates for the
coming year will be submitted at an early date. The Estimates will conform

A.D. 1932 4TH- FEBRUTARY



to my Ministers' determination to maintain a policy of rigid economy, con-
sistent with the discharge of those statutory and contractual obligations., which
is essential to the preservation of the integrity and credit of the Dominion.

Honourable Mem bers of the Sena te:

Mem bers of the House of Comm ons:

1 sincerely congratulate you on the fortitude and patience with which the
people of Canada have borne the hardships of this period of depression and
maintained their usual higli regard for law and order. A sense of unity more
abundantly prevails. The spirit of sympathetic co-operation lias been strength-
ened. The Canadian people have united in the figlit against adversity.
Prosperity is theîr just reward. I know it will be your privilege, by the unselflsh
and zealous discharge of your duties to hasten its return. May Divine Provi-
dence bless and guide you in your deliberations.

The Commons withdrew.

His Excellency the Governor General was pleased to retire.

After some time the Senate was resumed.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighien presented to the Senate a Bill
intituled: "An Act relating to Railways."

The said Bill was read the first time.

The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that'a copy of the Speech
of His Excellency the Governor General had been left in lis hands.

The saine was read by The Honourable the Speaker.
Ordered, That the Speech of is Excellency the Governor General be taken

into consideration on Monday, next.

On motion, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Monday, next, at eight o'clock in the evening.

The Honourable the Speaker presented to the Senate the Report of the
Joint Librarians of Parliament, for the year 1931.

The saine w-as then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

LIBRARY 0F PARLIAMENT

Report of the Librarians for 1931

To the Honourable the Speaker of the Senate.
The Joint Librarians of Parliament have the honour to subinit their Report

for the year 1931.
The Supplementary Catalogue of books donated to, and purchased by the

Librarv is in the hands of the printers and will be shortly issued.
Reference was made in last year's Report to the monumental work on the

North American Indian by Edward S. Curtis, The undertaking was launched
in 1907, the Library of Parliament being an early subscriber. Work was mucli
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delayed during the Great War, but the Librarians have the satisfaction of
reporting that the last numbers of the complete set of twenty quarto volumes
of text and twenty large volumes of photographic illustrations, have now been
received.

Amongst donations which have been made to the Library during the past
year may be mentioned one of special interest, viz., a set of the original manu-
scripts in the handwriting of the late Archibald Lampman. • These manuscript
poems were placed in the Library of Parliament by Mr. Lampman's Literary
Executor, Dr. Duncan Campbell Scott, with the concurrence of Mrs. N. C.
MacInnes, daughter of the late Mr. Lampman.

As in former years, so in 1931, the Carnegie Endowment for International
Peace has donated many valuable works to the Library. New editions of
various important books concerned with Parliamentary Procedure, Economies,
and Law, have been received, and those sections kept up to date.

Acting on the suggestion of the Joint Committee of the Library of Par-
liament, the Librarians discussed with the National Research Couricil the
question of placing in the new library of the Council a large number of certain
highly technical works which were practically never consulted in the Library
of Parliament. As a result some eleven hundred volumes were transferred to
the National Research Council last year.

The congested state of the Library bas been referred to many times during
the past few years. The Librarians, at the suggestion of the Joint Committee,
have been taking the matter up with the Public Works Department. Tem-
porary relief of a substantial character bas been afforded by the allocation to
the Library by the Minister of Public Works, of a large room in the West
Block formerly occupied by the Department of Agriculture. By the courtesy
of the Department of Publie Works this room has been fitted with shelving,
and already some 22,000 volumes have been transferred there and shelved.
They consist chiefly of reserve sets of Sessional Papers and Hansards, and it is
expected that during the present year some 16,000 additional volumes can be
placed there. While this does not settle the question of adequate provision for
the expansion of the Library in the future, it does afford some relief and will
make for more convenient arrangement and disposal of the books now in the
Library.

Respectfully submitted,

MARTIN BURRELL,

J. DE L. TACHÉ,
Joint Librarions.

Lîbrary of Parliament,
Ottawa, February 3rd, 1932.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

The Senate adjourned until Monday, next, at eight o'clock in the evening.
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A.D. 1932 8T~ FEBRUARY

No. 2

JOURNALS
0F

THE SENATE 0F CANADA

Monday, 8th February, 1932

8 p.m.

The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Members convened were:-

The Honourable Senators

Aylesworth
(Sir Alleni)

Ballantyne,
Barnard,
Beaubien,
Béique,
Béland,
Belcourt,
Blondin,
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Todd,
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Wilson (Sorel),
Wilson

(Rockcliffc'>.

A.D. 1932 8TH FEBRUARY



PRAYERS.

The following petition was presented:-

By the Honourable Senator Béique:-
Of The Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway Company.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That all the Senators present during this Session be appointed a

Committee to consider the Orders and Customs of the Senate and Privileges of
Parliament, and that the said Committee have leave to meet in the Senate
Chamber when and as often as they please.

With leave of the Senate, and-
On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That pursuant to Rule 77 the following Senators, to wit: The

Honourable Senators Belcourt, Buchanan, Dandurand, Daniel, Graham, Robert-
son, Sharpe, White (Pembroke), and the mover be appointed a Committee of
Selection to nominate Senators to serve on the several Standing Committees
during the present Session; and to report with all convenient speed the names
of the Senators so nominated.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-

Annual Report of the Department of Marine for the fiscal year 1930-1931.
(English and French Editions.)

Report of the Minister of Agriculture for the year ended 31st March, 1931.
Annual Report of the Department of Fisheries for the fiscal year 1930-

1931.
Annual Report of the Department of Railways and Canals for the fiscal

year 1930-1931.
Joint Report, with triangulation sketches and maps, of the International

Boundary Commission, on the Survey and Demarcation of the International
Boundary between the United States and Canada, from the Northwesternmost
Point of Lake of the Woods to Lake Superior.

Return containing list of cancelled sales or leases, Department of Indian
Affairs, during the year ended 31st January, 1932.

Return containing list of Indians enfranchised during the fiscal year ended
31st March, 1931.

Copies of Orders in Council passed since the last return under the pro-
visions of the-

Dominion Lands Act,
Dominion Lands Survey Act,
Forest Reserves and Parks Act,
Migratory Birds Convention Act,
Regulations for the survey, administration, disposal and management of

Dominion Lands within the 40 Mile Railway Belt, in the province of British
Columbia.

Ordinances made by the Commissioner in Council of the Northwest Terri-
tories during the year 1931.

List of Permits to take intoxicating liquors into the Northwest Territories
up to the 31st December, 1931.

Annual Report of the Department of the Interior for the fiscal year ended
31st March, 1931.

List of all leases, licences, permits or other authorities cancelled since the
12th March, 1931-Department of the Interior.
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List of apportionments and adiustments of Seed Grain and Relief In-
debtedness for the year 1931, giving particulars of discharges and releases, etc.,
in accordance with the provisions of section two, chapter fifty-one, 17 George V.

Statement showing that no drainage works were constructed under the
provisions of the Reclamation Act; also that no rental was collected for the
sale or lease of Dominion Lands reclaimed under the provisions of this Act.

Annual Report of the Department of Trade and Commerce for the fiscal
year ended 31st March, 1931.

Annual Report of the Electricity and Gas Inspection Services for the year
ended 31st March, 1931.

Annual Report of the Weights and Measures Inspection Service for the
year ended 31st March, 1931.

Report of Errol M. McDougall, K.C., Reparations Commissioner, respect-
ing Maltreatment of Prisoners of War.

Copy of International Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property,
signed at the Hague, the 6th November, 1925, Canadian Ratification deposited
the lst May, 1928.

Copy of decision of Judge Maclean in the claim of the National Steel Car
Corporation Limiled, of the city of Hamilton, Ontario, under the Reparation
Payment Act.

Report of positions excluded from the operation of the Civil Service Act,
during the calendar year 1931.

Report of the Department of Public Printing and Stationery, for the fiscal
year ended the 31st March, 1931. (English and French Editions.')

Report of the Commissioner of Patents for the fiscal year ended the 31st
March, 1931. (English and French Editions.)

Copy of General Rules and Orders of the Exchequer Court of Canada.
Ordinances of the Yukon Territory, passed by the Yukon Council in the

year 1931.
Report on Civil Aviation and Civil Government Air Operations for the

year 1930. (English and French Editions.)
Statement of Bonds and Securities registered in the Department of the

Secretary of State of Canada since last return submitted to Parliament.
Statement of Remissions and Refunds in Tolls and Duties for the fiscal

year 1930-1931.
Report of the Department of National Revenue, containing accounts of

revenue, with statements relative to the Imports, Exports, Excise and Income
of the Dominion of Canada for the fiscal year ended 31st March, 1931. (En-
glish and French Editions.)

Shipping Report of the Department of National Revenue (Customs Divi-
sion) for the fiscal year ended 31st March, 1931.

Statement showing appointments under the National Revenue Act, as
amended in 1928, for the fiscal year ended 31st March, 1931.

Report of the Department of National Defence (Naval Service) for the
fiscal year ended 31st March, 1931. (English and French Editions.)

Report of the Department of National Defence (Militia and Air Services)
for the fiscal year ended 31st March, 1931.

Naval Gencral Orders issued during the period lst April to 14th Decemîber,
1931. (Department of National Defence.)

General Orders issued during the period lst February to 15th December,
1931. (Department of National Defence.)

Militia Orders issued during the period 6th February, 1931, to 8th January,
1932.

Appointments, Promotions and Retirements-Canadian Militia-from 7th
March, 1931, to 30th January, 1932.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-
tion of His Excellency the Governor General's Speech froma the Throne at the
opening of the present Session of Parliament:

The Honourable Senator Ballant-yne moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Marcotte:-

That the following Address be presented to. is Excellency the Governor
General to offer the humble thanks of this Huse to bis Excellency for the
gracious Speech which he has been pleased to make to both buses of Parlin-
ment, namely:

To HIS EXCELLENCY CAPTAIN THE RIGHT HONOURABLE THE EARL 0F BESSBOROUGH,
a Member of His Majesty's Privy Council, Knighit Grand Cross of the
Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael and Saint George, Governor
General and Commander in Chief of the Dominion of Canada.

MAY IT PLEASE YOU'R EXCELLENCY:

MWe, His Majesty's most dutiful and loyal subjects, the Senate of Canada,.
in Parliament assembled, beg leave to offer our humble thanks to Your Excel-
lency for the gracious Speech which Your Excellency has addressed to both
Houses of Parliament.

After debate, and-
On motion of the Honourable Senator Tanner, it was-
Ordered, That further debate on the said motion be adjourned until to-

morrow.

The Honourable Senator White (Pembroke), for the Honourable Senator
Barnard, presented to the Senate a Bill (Ai), intituled: "An Act w ith respect
te Hospital Sweepstakes."

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

The Senate adjourned.
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THE SENATE 0F CANADA
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The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Members convened were:-

The Honourable Senat ors

A ylesworth
(Sir Allen),

Bal]antyne,
Barnard,
Beaubien,
Béique,
Béland,
Belcourt,
Black,
Blondin,
Bourque,
Bureau,
Calider,
Casgrain,
Chapais,
Copp,
Dandurand,
Daniel,
Dennis,
Donnelly,

Forke,
Foster,
Gillis,
Graham,
Griesbach,
Hardy,
Harmer,
Hayd on,
Horsey,
Hughes,
King,
Lacasse,
Laird,
Legris,
Lemieux,
L'Espérance,
Lewis,
Little,
Logan,
Lynch-Staunton,

Marcotte,
Martin,
MeCormick,
M cDo naid,
McDougald,
McGuire,
M cLe an,
MeLennan,
MeMeans,
MeR ae,
Meiglhen,
Mîchener,
Molloy,
Murdock,
Paradis,
Parent,
Planta,
Poirier,
Pope,
Prevost,

Rankin,
Raymnond,
Robertson,
Robinson,
Schaffner,
Sharpe,
Smith,
Spence,
Stanfield,
TIanner,
Tessier,
Tobin,
Todd,
Turgeon,
Webster,
White (Pembroke),
Willoughby,
Wilson (Sorel),
Wilson

(Rockcliffe).
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PRAYERS.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That Rule 78 of the Rules of the Senate be amended by striking

out paragraph 4 and substituting the following therefor:
4. The Committee on Banking and Commerce, composed of forty-two

senators.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen, fromn the Committee of Selection
appointed to nomiriate the Senators to serve on the several Standing Committees
for the present Session, presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows-
S< TUESDAY, 9th February, 1932.

The ýCommittee of Selection appointed to norninate Senators to serve on
the several Standing~ Comrnittees for the present Session, have the honour to
report herewith the followingr list of Senators selected by them to serve on each
of the f ollowing Standing Committees, namely:

Join~t Committee on the Library

The Honourable the Speaker, the Honourable Senators Aylesworth, Sir
Allen, Beaubien, Chapais, Gillis, Gordon, Griesbach, Hatfield, Laird, Lemieux,
Lewis, Logan, McDougald, McLennan, Poirier, Taylor and Wilson (Rock-
cliffe'>-17.

Joint Committee on Printing

The Honourable Senators Aylesworth, Sir Allen, Buchanan, Chapais, Den-
nis, Donnelly, Green, Hatfield, Horsey, Legris, Lewis, McDonald, McLean,
MeLennan, Pope, Prevost, Raymond, Robertson; Taylor, Todd, White (Inker-
man) and White (Pembroke) -21.

Standing Orders

The Honourable Senators Buchanan, Bureau, Hardy, Macdonald, Mac-

doneil, Martin, Prevost, Schaffner and Tessier-9.

Banking and Commerce

The Honourable Senators Aylesworth, .Sir Allen, Ballantyne, Beaubien,
Béique, Belcourt, Black, Casgrain, Dandurand, Daniel, Fisher, Foster, Gordon,
Graham, Griesbach, Haydon, Horsey, Hughes, King, Laird, Lemieux, L'Espér-
ance, MeGuire, McLennan, MeMeans, McRae. Meighen, Murphy, Planta, Ross,
Schaffner, Sharpe, Sinclair, Smith, Stanfield, Tanner, Taylor, Tessier, Todd,
Webster, White (Inkerman), Willoughby and Wilson (Sorel)--42.

Railu'ays, Telegraphs and Harbours

The Honourable Senators Ballantyne, Barnard, Beaubien, Béique, Béland,
Belcourt, Bourque, Buchanan, Bureau, Calder, Casgrain, Copp, Dandurand,
Daniel, Dennis, Donnelly, Forke, Gillis, Gordon, Graham, Green, Griesbach,
Hardy, Hatfield, Laird, Legris, L'Espérance, Lewis, Lynch-Staunton, Mac-
Arthur, Marcotte, McDonald, McDougald, McLennan, Meighen, Michener,
Molloy, Murdock, Murphy, Pope, Rankin, Robertson, Robinson, Ross, Sharpe,
Spence, Stanfield, Turgeon, Webster and Willoughby-50.
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lliscellan cous Private Bis

The Honourable Senators Barnard, Béique, Belcourt, Bénard, Black,
Bureau, Calder, Griesbach, Harruer, Legris. Little, Logan, Lyneh-Staunton,
McCormick, McGuiire, McLean, McMeans, Parent, Planta, Raymond, Spence,
Tanner, Tobin, Todd and Wilson (Sorel)-25.

Internal Economy and Contingent Accounts

The Honourable the Speaker, the Honourable Senators Chapais, Daniel,
Fisher, Foster, Gordon, Horsey, King, Lacasse, Lemieux, L'Espérance, Little,
Logan, Marcotte, MeRae, Miehener, Murdock, Paradis, Parent, Pope, Robert-
son, Sharpe, Stanfield, Tessier and Willoughby-25.

Finance

The Honourable Senators Béique, Foster, Hardy, Lacasse, L'Espérance,
MacArthur, Martin, McLean, Meiglien, Michener, Parent, Pope, Ross, Smith,
Turgeon, White (Inkerman) and Wilson (Sorel)-17.

Debates and Reporting

The Honourable Senators Béland, Chapais, Gillis, Hardy, Lacasse,
L'Espérance, MeLean, Poirier and White (Inkerman)-9.

Divorce

The Honourable Senators Copp, Fisher, Horsey, Logan, McLean, McMeans,
Rankin, Robinson and Schaffner-9.

Agriculture and Forestry

The ilonourable Senators Black, Burns, Donnelly, Forke, Little, Raymond,
Riley, Sinclair and Smith-9.

Immigration and Labour

The Honourable Senators Calder, Donnelly, Forke, Hughes, Macdonell,
McDonald, McMeans, Murdock and Robertson-9.

Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada

The Honourable Senators Lewis, McCormick, McLean, McLennan, Paradis,
Riley, Schaffner, Stanfield and Wilson (Sorel)-9.

Public Health and Inspection of Foods

The Honourable Senators Béland, Bourque, Daniel, King, Lacasse, Molloy,
Riley, Schaffner and Wilson (Rockcliffe)-9.

Civil Service Administration

The Honourable Senators Belcourt, Bénard, Donnelly, Griesbach, L'Espé-
rance, McRae, Prevost, Rankin and Robinson-9.

Public Buildings and G rounds

The Honourable Senators Black, Harmer, Haydon, MeLennan, Robertson,
Sinclair, Smith, White (Pembroke) and Wilson (Rockcliffe)-9.

41765--2

A.D. 1932 9Tii FEBRUARY



Joint Cornmittee on the Restautrant
The Honourable the Speaker, the Honourable Senators Hardy, Logan,

McMeans, Michener, Tanner and Taylor-7.
Ail which is respectfully submitted.

ARTHUR MEIGIIEN,
C hairman.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen presented to the Senate a Bill
(B 1), intituled: "An Act respecting the Status and Powers of British and
Foreign Insurance Companies in Canada."

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Seiiate resumed the adjourned debate
on the consideration cf is Excellency the Governor General's Speech from the
Throne, at the opening of the present Session cf Parliament, and the motion cf
the Honourable Senator Ballantyne, seconded by the Honourable Senator
Marcotte:-

That the following Address be presented te is Excellency the Governor
General to offer the humble thanks cf this Huse te bis Excellency for the
gracîcus Speech which he has been pleased te make to both Huses cf Parlia-
ment, namely:-
To His EXCELLENCY CAPTAIN THE RIGHT HONOJPABLE THE EAIRL 0F BEssBOROUùGH,

a Member cf lis Majesty's Most Honourable Privy Council, Knight Grand
Cross cf the Most Distinguished Order cf Saint Michael and Saint George,
Governor General and Commander in Chief cf the Dominion cf Canada.

MAY IT PLEASE YouR EXCFLLENCY:

We, lis Majesty's most dutiful and loyal subjeets, the Senate cf Canada,
in Parliament assembled, beg leave to offer our humble thanks te Your Excel-
lency for the gracicus Speech which Your Excellency bas addressed te bcth
bouses cf Parliament.

After debate,

It being six o'clock, the bonourable the Speaker left the Chair, te resume
the same at half-past seven o'clock.

7.30 p.m.
The Senate resumed.

After further debate, and-
The question of concurrence being put on the said motion, it was resolved

in the affirmative, and-
Ordered, That the said Address be presented te is Excellency the Gev-

ernor General by such Members cf this.bouse as are Members cf the Honourable
the Prîvy Council.

With leave cf the Senate, it was-
Ordcred, That when the Senate adjourns to-day it do stand adjourned. until

Thursday, next, at eight o'clock in the evening.

The Senate adjourned.
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The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Members convened were:

The Honourable Senators

Aylesworth
(Sir Allen)

Ballantyne,
Barnard,
Beaubien,
Béland,
Boleourt,
Black,
Blondin,
Bourque,
Bureau,
Calder,
Casgrain,
Chapais,
Copp,
Dandurand,
Daniel,
Donnelly,

Forke,
Foster,
Gillis,
Cordon,
Graham,
Griesbach,
ilariner,
Horsey,
Hughes,
King,
Lacasse,
Laird,
Lemieux,
L'Espérance,
Lewis,
Little,
Logan,
Lvncli-Staunton,

Macdonald,
Marcotte,
Martin,
McCormick,
McDonald,
McG uîre,
McLean,
McLennan,
M eMeans,
McRae,
Meighen,
Michener,
Molloy,
Paradis,
Parent,'
Planta,
Poirier,
Pope,
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Prevost,
Rankin,
Raymond,
Robertson,
Robinson,
Schaffner,
Sharp@,
Smith,
Stanfield,
Tanner,
Tessier,
Tobin,
Todd,
Webster,
White (Inkerman),
White (Pembroke),
Willoughby,
Wilson

(Rockcliffe).
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PRAYEnS.

The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that there was a Senator

without, waiting to be introduced.

The Honourable John Alexander Macdonald was introduced between the
Ri ght Honourable Senator Meighen, and the Honourable SenatorMoLean, and
having presented His Majesty's Writ of Summnons. it asread by the Clerk,
as follows:-

CANADA
BESSBOROUQH

(L.S.)

GEORGE THIE FivrH, by the Grace of God of Great Britain, Iretand, and the
British Dominions beyond the Seas KING, Defender of the Faith, Em-
peror of India.

To our Trusty and Well-beloved John Alexander Macdonald, of St. iPeters,
Cape Breton, in the Province of Nova Scotia, M.D., CM.

GREETING:

Know you,-that as well for the especial trust and confidence We have
manifested in you, as for the purpose of obtaining your'adviee and assistance
in ail weighty and arduous affairs which may the State and Defence of Our
Dominion of Canada concern, We have thouglit fit to summon you to the Senate
of Our said Dominion; and We'do command ydu,'that ail difficulties and excuses
whatsoever laying aside, you be and appear, for the purposes aforesaid, in the
Senate of Our said Dominion, at ail times whensoever and wheresocvcr Our
Parliament may be in Our said Dominion convoked and hoiden; and this you
are in no wise to omit.

IN TEsTIMONY WHIREuOF, We have caused these Our Letters to be made
Patent and the Great Seal of Canada to ho hereunto affixed.

Witness: Our Right Trusty and Right Weil-beioved Cousin and Counsellor,
Vere Brabazon, Earl of Bessborough, a Member of Our Most Honourable Privy
Council, Knight Grand Cross of Our Most Distinguished Order of Saint Michael
and Saint George, formerly Captain in Our Territorial Army, Governor General
and Commander-in-Chief of Our Dominion of Canada.

At Our Government flouse, in Our City of Ottawa, in Our Dominion of
Canada, this third day of February, in the year of Our Lord one
thousand nine hundred and thirty-twýo and in the twenty-second year
of Our Reign.

By Command,

C. H. CAHAN,
Secretar-y of State of Canada.

Ordered, That the same be placedupon the Journals.

The Honourable Senator Macdonald came to the Table and took and
subscribed the Oath prescribed by law, which w'as administered by the Clerk
of the Senate, the Commissioner appointed for that purpose, and took his seat
as a Member of the Senate.
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The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that the Honourable
Senator Macdonald had made and subscribed the Declaration of Qualification
required of himi by The British Nor'th America Act, 1867, in the presence of the
Clerk of the Senate, the Commissioner appointed to receive and witness the
sanie.

The following petition was read and received:-

0f The Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway Company;' praying for
the passage of an Act extending 'the time within which it mayý complete its
railway and put same into operation.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-

Annual Report of the Department of Labour for the fiscal year ended 3lst
March, 1931, including reportsof proceedings undcr the following statutes-

Combines Investigation~ Act;,
Conciliation and Labour Act;
Employmnent Offices Co-ordina Lion Act;
Government Annuities Act;,
Industrial Disputes Investigation Act;
Old Age, Pensions Act.;
Technical Education Act-.,and

<Unemployment Relief Act, 1930.

Copy of Order in Council, P.C., 20, dated l6th January, 1 932'l transferring
ail branches of the Public Service which are now concerned with the administra-
tion of the Patent Act, Copyright Act, Trade Mark. and, Design Act, and Timbee
Marking .Act, to the Department of the Secretary of State.

On motion of .the, Right flonourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That the Senators mentioned in the Report of the Committee of

Selection as having becn chosen to serve on the several Standing Committees
during the present Session, be and they are hereby appointed. to form part of
and constitute the several Committees with which their respective names appear
in said Report, to inquire into and report upon such matters as may be referred
to them from time to t ime; and that the Committee' on Standing Orders is
authorized to send for persons, papers and records whenever required; and also
that the Committce on InternaI Economy and Contingent Accounts, have, power,
without special reference by the Ilouse, to consicler any matter affecting the
Internai Economy of the Senate, as to whiceh the Honourable the 'Speaker is
not called upon to act by the Civil Service Act, and such Comiiee, shall report
the result of such consideration.to the flouse for action.

On motion of the Right iHonourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That a Message be sent to the flouse of Commons by one of the

Clerks et the Table, to inform that flouse that the Honourable the Speaker, the
flonourable Senators Aylesrwcrth (Sir Allen), Beaubien, Chapais, Gillis, Gordon,
Griesbach, Hatfield, Laird, Lemieux, Lewis, Logan, McDougald, McLennan,
Poirier, Taylor and Wilson (Rockcli ffe), .have been appointed a. Committee to
assist the, Honourable, the Speaker, in thie direction of, the, Library of IParliament,
so f ar as the interets, - f the Senate are coneerned, aend te act on behalf of the
Senate as'Membersý of 'a Joint Committee of both flouses on the said Library.
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On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was--
Ordered, That a Message be sent to, the House of Commons by one of the

Clerks at the Table, to inform that House that the Honourable Senators Ayles-
worth (Sir Allen), Buchanan, Chapais, Dennis, Donnelly, Green, Hatfield,
Horsey, Legris, Lewis, McDonald (Shediac), McLean, MeLennan, Pope, Prevost,
Raymond, Robertson, Taylor, Todd, White (Inkerman) and White (Pembroke),
have been appointed a Committee to superintend the printing of the Senate dur-
ing the present Session, and to net on behaîf of the Senate as Members of a
Joint Committee of both buses on the subjeet of the Printing of Parliament.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator lVeighen, it was-
Ordered, That a Message be sent to, the House of Commons by one of the

Clerks at the Table, to inform that House that the Honourable the Speaker,
the Honourable Senators Hardy, Logan, McMeans, Michener, Tanner and
Taylor, have been appointed a Committee to, assist the Honourable the Speaker
in the direction of the Restaurant of Parliament, so far as the interests of the
Senate are concerned, and to act on behaîf of the Senate as Members of a Joint
Committee of both Houses on the said Restaurant.

The Right Honourable Senator Mveighen presentcd to the Senate a Bill
(Cl), intituled: "An Act respecting the Status and Powers of Dominion Insur-
ance Companies?'

The said Bill was rend the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

On motion of the Honourable Senator MeMeans, it was-
Ordered, That a Special Committee composed of the Honourable Senators

Barnard, Bureau, Casgrain, Gillis, Griesbach, Hardy, Laird, Logan, MeGuire,
McMeans. Planta, Robinson and Tanner be appointed to examine inte the system
,of appointing Judges as at present existing, and report upon the necessity of
taking some steps by which the number of Judges may be reduced and the
systemn of appointments equalized, and that the said Cormmittee be authiorized
to send for persons, papers and records.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That a Special Committee of nine Senators to be hereafter named,

be appointed for the purpose of taking into consideration the report of a
Special Committee of the House of Gommons of the last Ses-sion thereof appointed
to investigate the Beauharnoîs Power Projeet. insofar as said report relates te
any Honourable Members of the Senate, said Special Committee to hear sucli
further evidence on oath bearing on the subjeet matter of such report in
relation to any such Honourable Members of the Senate as it may deem
desirable and in accordance with constitutional practice, and that the said
Committee be nuthorized to send for persons, papers and records.

With lenve of the Senate, and-
On motion of the Right Honourable Senator M-ýeighen, it was-
Ordered, That the fourth Report of the Special Committee of the bouse of

Gommons appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power project, laid on the
Table of the Senate on the lst August, 1931, be referred to, the Special Committee
of the Senate appointed for the purpose of taking into consideration the said
report insofar as it relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate.
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Pursuant to, the Order of the Day, the Honourable Senator Barnard moved
that the Bill (Al), intituled: "An Act with respect to Hospital Sweepstakes,"
be now read a second time.

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate on the said motion be adjourned until

to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (B 1), intituled: "An Act respect-
mng the Status and Powers of British and Foreign Insurance Companies in Can-
ada," was read the second time, and-

Referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The Senate adjourned.
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THE SENATE OF CANADA

Friday, l2th February, 1932

3 p.m.

The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Members con-vened were:

The Honourable Senators

Aylesworth
(Sir Allen),

Ballantyne,
Barnard,
Beaubien,
Béique,
Béland,
Belcourt,
Bénard,
Blaek,
Blondin,
Bourque,
Bureau,
Casgrain,
Chapais,
Copp,
Dandurand,
Daniel,
Donnelly,

Forke,
Foster,
Gillis,
Gordon,
Graham,
Griesbach,
Hardy,
Harmer,
Horsey,
Hughes,
King,
Lacasse,
Laird,
Lemieux,
L'Espérance,
Lewis,
Little,
Logan,
Lynch-Staunton,

Macdonald,
Marcotte,
Martin,
McCormick,
McDonald,
MeGuire,
McLean,
MeLennan,
McMeans,
McRae,
Meighen,
Michener,
Molloy,
Murdock,
Paradis,
Parent,
Planta,
Poirier,
Pope,

Prevost,
Rankin,
Robertson,
Robinson,
Schaffner,
Sharpe,
Smith,
Spence,
Stanfield,
Tanner,
Tessier,
Tobin,
Todd,
Webster,
White (Inkerman),
White (Pembroke),
Willoughby,
Wilson

(Rockcliffe).
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PRAYERS.

The following petitions were severally presented:-

By the Honourable the Chairman of the Cominittee on Divorce:-

Of Eva Corker Trill, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the passage of an
Act to dissolve her marriage with Matthew Henry Trill.

Of Dorothy Gertrude Silcock Wilson, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the
passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Leslie David Wilson.

Of Roméo Xavier Vandette, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the passage
of an Act to dissolve his marriage with Rose Anna Larocque Vandette.

Of Robert Russell Symington, of Montreal, Quebec, manufacturer; praying
for the passage of an Act to dissolve his marriage with Freda Iris Smith
Symington.

Of George Senkler Morgan, of Westmount, Quebec, physician; praying for
the passage of an Act to dissolve his marriage with Doris Louise White Morgan.

Of Agnes May Jack Evans, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the passage of
an Act to dissolve her marriage with Arnold George Evans.

Of Harry Prupas, of Montreal, Quebec. hairdresser; praying for the passage
of an Act to dissolve his marriage with Esther Brownstein Prupas.

Of Olive Pearl Beattie Watkins, of Sherbrooke, Quebec, housekeeper;
praying for the passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Hartwell Arthur
Watkins.

Of Gordon Alexander Cowan, of Westmount, Quebec, traffic production
manager; praying for the passage of an Act to dissolve his marriage with
Marion Turnbull Binns Cowan.

Of Mabel Constance Small Cossar, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the
passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Robert George Cossar.

Of Georgina Linda McIndoe Howard, of Westmount, Quebec; praying for
the passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Henry Chase Howard.

Of Ellery Sanford Johnston, of Montreai, Quebec, secretary; praying for
the passage of an Act to dissolve his marriage with Olive Faith Goodill
Johnston.

Of Ethel Seigler Nissenson, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the passage
of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Abraham Nissenson.

Of Audrey Meredith Mann Redpath, of Westmount, Quebec; praying for
the passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with John Watson Redpath.

Of George Seymour Dixon, of Montreal, Quebec, civil servant; praying for
the passage of an Act to dissolve his marriage with Isobel Gardiner Plant
Dixon.

Of Antonio Poliseno, of Montreal, Quebec, real estate agent; praying for
the passage of an Act to dissolve his marriage with Marie Florida Hélène
Soubre dit St. Jean Poliseno.

Of Farla Goldman Rother, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the passage
of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Abraham Rother.
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The Honourable Senator Black, from the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:

FRIDAY, l2th February, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce beg leave to make

their first Report, as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced to nine (9)
Members.

Ail which is respectfuily submitted

F. B. BLACK,
Chairman.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator MeLennan, from the Standing Cornmittee on
Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada, presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

FRIDAY, 12t1i February, 1932.
The Standing Comi-nittee on Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada

beg leave to make their first Report, as follows:-
Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced to three (3)

Members.

Ail which is respectfullv submitted

J. S. McLENNAN,
Chairman.With leave of the Senate,

The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Tessier, from the Standing Committee on Standing
Orders, presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:

FRIoAY, l2th February, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Standing Orders beg leave to make their first

Report, as follows:-

Your Committf e recommend that their quorum be reduced to three (3)
Members.

AIl which is res.pectfully submitted.

JULES TESSIER,
ChairmanWith leave of the Senate,

The said Report was adopted.
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The Honourable Senator Daniel, from the Standing Committee on InternaI
Economy and Contingent Accounts, presented their lirst Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as f ollows-

FRIDAiY, l2th February, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Internai Econiomy. and Contingent Accounts
beg leave to make their first Report, as foliows:-.

.Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced to seven (7)
Members.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
J. W. DANIEL,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator MeMeans, from the Standing Committee on~
Immigration and Labour, presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

FRIDAY, l2th February, 1932.

The Standîng Comiuittee on Immigration and Labour beg leave to make
their first Report, as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced to three (3)
Members.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
TL. MOMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator McMeans, from the Standing Committee on
Divorce, presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

FRIDAY, l2th February, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to inake their first Report,
as follows:->

1. Your Committee recommend that their quorum he reduced to three (3),
Members for ail purposes, including the taking of evidencé upon oath as to the
matters set forth in petitionr, for Bilis of Divorce.

'2.. Your Committee also recommend that, leave be given them to sit during
ail adjoiirnments of the Senate, and'aiso during sittings ofthe Sonate.

3. Your Committee further recoxwmend that in addition to the election of
a Chairman they be empowered to elect at any timie a Deputy Chairman, and
that the Deputy Chairman so electC(1 have powers equai to those of the Chair-
man.

Ail which is respectfuliy submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.
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The Honourable Senator Donnelly, from the Standing Comamittee on. Agri-
culture and Forestry, jpresented their first Report.

The same was then rtad by the Clerk, as follows:-

FRiDAY, l2th iFebruary, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Agriculture and Forestry beg leave to make
their first Report, as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced té three (3)
Members.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.

J. J. DONNELLY,
Chairman.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Gordon, for the ilonourable Senator Graham, from,
the Standing Comrnittee on Railways, Teiegraphs -and Harbours, presýented their
first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:--

FiunmAy, 12th February, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Railways, Teiegraphs and Harbours beg leave
to make their first Report, as f ollows:--

Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced to, fine (9)
Meinhers.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.

GEO. P. GRAHAM,
Chairman.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was aclopted.

The Honourable Senator Chapais, from the Standing Committee on Debates
and Reporting, presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the'Clerk, as follows:-

FRIDAY, l2th February, 1932.

The Standing Committ-ee on Debates and Reporting beg leave to make their
first Report, as follows:-

Your Comitiittee recommend that their quorum be reduced to, three (3)
Members.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.

THOS. CHAPAIS,
Chairman.

Wîth leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.
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A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (2), intituled: "An Act respecting the Boundary between the Provinces of
Alberta and British Columbia," to which they desire the concurrence of the
Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

at the next sitting of the Senate.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-
Report of the Public Archives for the year 1931 (English and French

Editions).

With leave of the Senate, and-
On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That the following Senators, namely: the Honourable Senators

Béique, Chapais, Copp, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, MeMeans, Robinson and
Tanner constitute the Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking
into consideration the Report of the Special Committee of the House of Commons
of the last Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project in so far
as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate, and that
the said Committee be authorized to sit during sittings and adjournments of the
Senate.

With leave the Senate, and-
On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That a Message be sent to the House of Commons requesting that

House to grant leave to their Clerk to appear and produce before a Special
Committee of the Senate a copy of the evidence adduced during the last Session
before the Special Committee of the House of Commons appointed to investi-
gate the Beauharnois Power Project.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Griesbach, it was-
Ordered, That an Order of the Senate to issue for a return showing:-
1. (a) Names of the nations who are members of the League of Nations,

and
(b) The contributions assessed against each nation, members of the League

for maintenance of the activities of the League for last year or failing that any
recent year for which the Government has the information.

(c) The receipts and expenditures of the League (totals only) for last
year or any recent year for which the Government has the information.

2. The contributions made by Canada to the League of Nations since its
inception year by year on account of (a) Assessments or payments for the
support of the League; (b) Cost of delegations; (c) Incidental or other expendi-
turc occasioned by Canada's membership in the League.

3. Showing what (if any) nations, members of the League are in arrears
with their assessments or contributions for the maintenance of the League
year by year extended to show the total arrears in the case of each nation in
arrears.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Cl), intituled: "An Act
respecting the Status and Powers of Dominion Insurance Companies," was
read the second time, and-

Referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.
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Pursuant ta the Order of the day, the Senate resumed the adjourned
debate on the motion for the second reading of the Bill (Ai), intituled: "An
Act with respect ta Hospital Sweepstakes."

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate be adjourned until to-morrow.

The Honourable Senator Copp, for the Honourable Senator Wilson (Rock-
cliffe), from the Standing Committee on Public Buildings and Grounds, pre-
sented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as f ollows:-

FRTDAY, l2th February, 1932.

The Standing Comrnittee on Public"Buildings and Grounds beg leave ta
make their first Report, as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced ta three (3)>
Memhers.

Ail whîch is respectively submitted.
CAIRINE R. WILSON,

Chairman.
Wîth leave of the Senate,
The said Report xvas adopted.

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Tuesday, the first day of March, next. at eighit o'clock in the evening.

The Senate adjourned
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The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Members convened were -

The Honourable Senators

Aylesworth
(Sir Allen),

Ballantyne,
Barnard,
Beaubien,
Béique,
Bénard,
Black,
Blondin,
Bourque,
Buchanan,
Bureau,
Calder,
Casgrain,
Copp,
Dandurand,
Daniel,
Dennis,
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Donnelly,
Fisher,
Forke,
Foster,
Gillis,
Graham,
Griesbach,
Hardy,
Harmer,
Hatfield,
Horsey,
Hughes,
King,
Lacasse,
Lemieux,
Lewis,
Little,
MacArthur,

Macdonald,
Marcotte,
Martin,
McCormick,
McDougald,
McGuire,
MeLean,
MeLennan,
MeMeans,
Meighen,
Molloy,
Murdock,
Paradis,
Parent,
Poirier,
Pope,
Rankin,
Riley,

Robertson,
Schaffner,
Sharpe,
Sinclair,
Smith,
Spence,
Stanfield,
Tanner,
Tobin,
Todd,
Webster,
WThite (Inkerm an),
White (Pembroke),
Willoughby,
Wilson (Sorel),
Wilson

(Rockcliffe).
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PRAYERS.

The following petitions were severally presented:-

By the Honourable Senator Schaffner, for the Honourable the Chair-
man of the Committee on Divorce:-

Of Assad Kalil Eddy, otherwise known as Joseph Canille, of Montreal,
Quebec, manufacturer; praying for the passage of an Act to dissolve his
marriage with Mary Sayre Eddy.

Of Frances Helen Dawes Porteous, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the
passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Bartholomew Hazen Porteous.

Of Elizabeth Irene Woolnough, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the
passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Edward Harvey Woolnough.

Of Beulah Isobel Phillips Eakin, of Westmount, Quebec; praying for the
passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Irwin Hamilton Eakin.

Of Louis Sorbonne, of Montreal, Quebec, sculptor; praying for the passage
of an Act to annul his marriage with Clémence Dachet Sorbonne,

Of Ida Judith Clark Freudberg, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for the
passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Leo Freudberg.

The Honourable Senator Béique, from the Standing Committee on Miscel-
laneous Prîvate Bills, presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

FRIDAY, 12th February, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Miscellaneous.Private Bills beg leave to make
their first Report, as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced to seven (7)
Members.

All which is respectfully submitted.
F. L. BÉIQUE,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator King, for the Honourable Senator Béland, from
the Standing Committee on Public Health and Inspection of Foods, presented
their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

FRIDAY, 12th February, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Public Health and Inspection of Foods beg
leave to make their first Report, as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced to three (3)
Members.

All which is respectfully submitted.
HENRI S. BÉLAND,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.
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The Honourable Senator Tanner, from týhe Special Committee appointed
for the purpose of taking into consideration the report of a Special Committee
of the House of Commons of the last Session thereof to investigate the Beau-
harnois Power Proj ect, insofar as the said report relates to any Honourable
Member of the Senate, presented their first Report.

The saine was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

TUESDAY, lst March, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into considera-
tion the report of a Special Committee of the Huse of Commons of the last
Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, insofar as said
report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate, beg leave to make
their first Report as f ollows:

The Committee recommend that authority be granted for the printing,
fromn day to day, of 600 copies of the proceedings of the Committee for generaià
distribution.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
CHAS. E. TANNER,

Chairman.
Withi leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator White (Inkerman), fromn the Standing Committee
on Finance, presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

FRIDAY, 12th February, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Finance beg leave to make their first Report,
as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced to seven (7)
Members.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
SMEATON WHITE,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-
Report of the Secretary of State of Canada for the fiscal year ended 31st

March, 1931.
Annual Report of the Department of Pensions and National Health, the

Board of Pension Commissioners for Canada, the Pension Tribunal, the Pension
Appeal Court anid the War Veterans AII'owance Committee, for the fiscal year
ended 3lst March, 1931.

Annual Report of the Department of Indian Affairs for the fiscal year ended
31st March, 1931.

Report by Custodian of receipts and expenditures in respect to Reparations
Payments for the period from lst January, 1931, to 31st January, 1932.

Report on Examination of Accounts, Canadiýan Farmn Loan Board, for the
fiscal year ended 31st March, 1931.

Report of the Secretary of State for External Affairs for tic year ended
31st December, 1931.
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The Honourable the Speaker informed the Sonate that, in conformity with
Rule 103, the Clerk had laid on the Table the Accounts -and Vouchers of the
Senate for the fiscal year ending the 31st March, 1931.

Ordered, That the said Aceounts and Vouchers ho referred ta the Standing
Committee on Internai Economy and Contingent Accounts of the Senate.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Gommons, by their Clerk, in the
following words-

MONDAY, 1l5th February, 1932.

Reeýolved,-That a Message ho sent ta the Sonate to acquaint Their flonours
that this flouse has appointed the honourable the Speaker and Messieurs:
Ahearn, Barrette, Black (Hlalifax), Bourassa, Carmiehael, Cayley, Garland
(Carleton), flanbury, Hloward, Howden, Lafièche, MacPhail (Miss), Ryerson,
Senn, Spankie, Spence, Sproule, Thauvette and Wilson, a Committee to assist
His flonour the Speaker in the direction of the Restaurant, so far as the interests
of the Gommons are concerned, and ta act as Members of a Joint Committee of
both flouses on the Restaurant.

Ordered,--That the Clerk of the flouse do carry the said Message to the
Sonate.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
ClerIc of the House of Commons.

Ordered, That the sanie do lie on the Table.

A Message was brouglit from the flouse of Commons, by their Clerk, in the
following words-

MONDAY, l5th February, 1932.

Resolved,--That a Message ho sent to the Senate to acquaint Their Honours
that this bouse lias appointed the honourable the Speaker and Messieurs:-
Barber, Bertrand, Bourassa, Boyes, Butcher, Carmichael, Charters, Chevrier,
Cotnam, Dubois, Factor, Ferland, Fontaine, Fort-in, Fraser (Oarîboo), Gagnon,
Girouard, Guthrie, Hepburn, Irvine, Jones, Laflèche, Larue, LaVergne, McGillis,
McGregor, Mclntosh, MacMillan (Saskatoon), Mardil, Peck, Ponley (Sir George),
Pouliot, Quinn, Rhéaume, Rinfret, Short, Smoke, Sterling, Thauvette, Tliompson
(Simcoe East), Thompson (Lanark), White (London) and Wright, a Committee
ta assist His flonour the Speaker in the direction of the Library of Parliament,
so far as the interests of the flouse of Commons are concernied, and ta act on
behaîf of the flouse of Commons as Members of a Joint Committee of bath
flouses on the Library.

Ordered,--That the Clerk of the bouse do carry the said Message ta the
Sonate.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the House of Commons.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.
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A Message was brought from the flouse of Gommons, by their Clerk, in the
following words:-

MONDAY, 15th February, 1932.

iResolved,---That a Message be sent to the Senate to acquaint Their flonours
that this flouse will unite with them in the formation of a Joint Committee of
both flouses on the subjecet of the Printing of Parliament, and that the Members of
the Select Standing Committee on Printing, viz,-Me*sieurs: Anderson (flalton),
Baribeau, Belec, Boulanger, Bourgeois, Brasset, Charters, Desrochers, Dubois,
Embury, Esling, Factor, Fortin, Girouard, Gott, Gray, flay, fleaps, flowden,
Lucas, MacLean, McKenzie (Assiniboia), McLure, Maloney, Marcil, Mattbews,
Moore (Chateauguay-Huntingdon), Munn, Murphy, Parent, Peck, Perras, Piekel,
Porteous, Price, Quinn, Rheaume, Rinfret, Roberge, Robinson, Rowe, Ryerson,
St. Père, Short, Simpson (Simcoe North), Spankie, Spencer, Spotton, Taylor,
Tetrault, Verville, Wilson, Woodsworth and Wright, will act as Members on the
part of this flouse, on the ffaid Joint Committee on the Printing of Parliament.

Ordered,-That -the Clerk of the flouse do carry the said Message to the
Senate.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,

Clerk of the House of Commons.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Gommons, by their Clerk, in the
fallowing words:

MONDAY, l5th February, 1932.

Resclved,--That a Mebsage be sent to the Senate to acquaint Their flonours
that this flouse agrees to ýtheir request to, grant leave to the Clerk of theHfouse
of Gommons to appear and produce before a Special Committee of the Senate
a copy of the evidence adduced before a Special Committee of the Gommons
appointed during the Second Session :of the present Parliament, to investigate
the Beauharnois Power project.

Ordered,-That the Clerk of the flouse do carry the said Message te the
Senate.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,

Clerk of the House of Commons.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

A Mestyage wvas brought from the flouse of Commons by their (C1erk with
a Bill (3), intituled: "An Act to amend the Boards of Trade Act," to which
they desire the concurrence of the Seniate.

The sa.id Bill was read the first time. and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

A Message was brought from the House of Gemmonsl by their Cderk with
a Bill (7), intituled: "An Act te amend the Criminal Code (Summary trials) ,"
to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.
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A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (8), intituled: "An Act to amend The Juvenile Delinquents Act," to
which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk withi
a Bill (11), intituled: "An Act to amend the Criminal Code (Conveyance oi
prohibited articles) ," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be p]aced on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (12), intituled: "An Act to authorize an agreement between lis Majesty
the King and the Corporation of the City of Ottawa," to which they desire the
concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
.a Bill (13), intituled: "An Act relating to the submission to Parliament of
certain Regulations and Orders in Council," to-which they desire the concur-
rence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (15), intituled: "An Act to amend the Admiralty Act," to which thcv
desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

A Message was brought from. the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (17), intituled: "An Act to amend the Marriage and Divorce Act," to
which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was reüd the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (2'), intituled: "An Act respect-
ing the Boundary between the Provinces of Alberta and British Columbia," was
read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the bouse of Commons, and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.
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Pursuant to the Order of the day, the Senate resumed the adjourned
debate on the motion for the second reading of the Bill (Ai), intituled: "An
Act with respect to Hospital Sweepstakes."

After debate, it was--
Ordered, That further debate be adj ourned until to-morrow.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The following petitions were presented:-

By the Honourable the Chairman of the Committee on Divorce:-
Of Elizabeth Ann Routledge Gunther, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for

the passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Roy Alfred Gunther.

By The Honourable Senator Chapais:-
Of The Montreal Central Terminal Company.

The Honourable Senator L'Espérance, from the Standing Committee on
Civil Service Administration, presented their first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

FRIDAY, 12th February, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Civil Service Administration beg leave to
make their first Report, as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that their quorum be reduced to three (3)
Members.

All which is respectfully submitted.

D. 0. L'ESPÉRANCE,
Chairman.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Tessier, from the Standing Committec on Standing
Orders, presented their second Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

WEDNESDAY, 2nd March, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Standing Orders beg leave to make their
second Report, as follows:-

The Committee recommend:-
(1) That the time limited for receiving petitions for Private Bills be

extended to Friday, the 29th April, 1932.
(2) That the time limited for presenting Private Bills be extended to

Friday, the 13th May, 1932.
(3) That the time limited for receiving Reports of any Standing or Select

Committee on Private Bills be extended to Friday, the 27th May, 1932.

All which is respectfully submitted.

JULES TESSIER,
Chairman.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.
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The Honourable Senator Tessier, from the Standing Committee on Standing,
Orders, presented their third Report.

The same wvas then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

WEDNESDAY, 2nd March, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Standing Orders beg leave to make their
third Report, as follows:-

The Committee have examined the following petition and find that the
requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material
respects, namely:

Of The Quebec, Montreal and Southern iUailway Company; praying for
the passage of an Act extending the time within which it may complete its
railway and put same into operation.

Ail which is respectfully submîtted.
JULES TESSIER,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Tanner, from the Special Committee appointed
for the purpose of taking into consideration the report of a Special Committee
of the buse of Coinrnons of the last Session thereof to investigate the Beau-
harnois Power Project, insofar as the said report relates to any Honourable
Members of the Senate, presented their second Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

WEDNEýSDAYI 2nd March, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into considera-
tion the report of a Special Committee of the buse of Commons of the last
Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, insofar as said
report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate, beg leave to make
their second Report, as follows-

The Committee recommend that their action in passing the following
Resolution dated l2th February, 1932, viz:-

"That the Government be requested to provide Counsel to assist the
Committee,"

be confirmed and ratified by the Senate.

Ail whieh is respectfully submitted.
CHAS. E. TANNER,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Béique presented to the Senate a Bill (Dl), in-
tituled: "An Act respecting The Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway Com-
pany."

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading-

on Friday, next.
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The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-

Copy of an Extra of the Canada Gazette containing a proclamation dated
29th February, 1932, bringing into force an Act respecting the Beauharnois
Light, Heat and Power Company Limited; also a copy of Order in Council,
P.C. 504, of the lst March, 1932, concerning the operation of the said Company.

Twenty-seventh Report of the Board of Railway Commissioners for Canada,
for the year ended 3lst December, 1931; also Certified copy of an Order in
Council, P.dý. 476, of the 29th February, 1932, covering the said Report.

The Honourable the Speaker presented to the Senate the following Message
from is Excellency the Governor General, under lus Sign Manual, reading as
follows:

BESSBOROUGH

Honourable Members of the Sena te:

1 have received with great pleasure the Address that you have voted in
reply to my Speech at the Opening of Parliament and thank you, for it
sincerely.

GOVERNMENT HoUSE,
OTTAWA,

2nd March, 19.32.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned
debate on the motion for the second readîng of the Bill (Al), intituled: "An
Act with respect to Hospital Sweepstakes."

After further debate, and the question being put on the said motion-
The Senate divided, and the names being called for they wer.e taken down,

as follows:-
CONTENTS

The Honourable Senators

Aylesworth (Sir Allen), Black,
Barnard, Bourque,
Béland, Bureau,
Beleourt, Dennis,
Bénard, LacasS,

Ballantyne,
Beaubien,
Buchanan,
Calder,
Dandurand,
Daniel,
Forke,
Foster,
Glls,
Gordon,

Lewis,
Lyneli-Staunton,
Macdonald,
Marcotte,
Martin,

NON-CONTENTS

The Honourable Senators
Hardy, McLean,
Hatfield, Meighen,
Horsey, Murdock,
Hughes, Parent,
Lemnieux, Poirier,
Little, Rankin,
MacArthur, Riley,
McCormick, Robertson,
McGuire, Schaffner,

MolloY,
Pope,
Sharpe,
Todd,
White

(Pernbroke)-20.

Sinclair,
Smith,
Spence,
Tessier,
Turgeon,
Willoughby,
Wilson (Sorel),
Wilson

(Rockeliffe)--36.

It was passed in the negative.

The Senate adjourned.

THE SENATE 22 GEO. Y



AD. 1932 3~ MARCU

No. 8

JOURNALS
OF

THE SENATE 0F CANADA

Thursday, 3rd March, 1932

3 p.m.

The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Meinhers convened were:

The Honourable Senators

Aylesworth
(Sir Allen),

Ballantyne,
Barnard,
Beaubien,
Béique,
Béiand,
Beleourt,
Bénard,
Black,
Blondin,
Bourque,
Buchanan,
Bureau,
Casgrain,
Chapais,
Copp,
Dandurand,
Daniel,
Dennis,

Donnelly,
Fisher,
Forke,
Foster,
Gillis,
Gordon,
Graham,
Green,
Griesbach,
Hardy,
Harmer,
Hatfield,
Horsey,
Hughes,
King,
Lacasse,
Lernieux,
L'Espérance,
Lewis,
Little,

Logan,
Lynch-Staunton,
MacArthur,
Macdonald,
Marcotte,
Martin,
McCormick,
McDougald,
MoGuire,
McLean,
MeLennan,
MeMeans,
Molloy,
Murdock,
Paradis,
Parent,
Poirier,
Pope,
Prevost,
Rankin,

Raymond,
Riley,
Robertson,
Robinson,
Schaffner,
Sharpe,
Sinclair,
Smith,
Spence,
Stanfield,
Tanner,
Tessier,
Todd,
Turgeon,
Webster,
White (Inkerman),.
White (Pembroke),
Willoughby,
Wilson (Sorel).
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PRAYERS.

The following petitions were severally presented:

By the Honourable Senator Ballantyne:
0f the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company.

By the Honourable Senator Horsey:
0)f Autographic Register Systems, Limited (Patents)>.

By the Honourable Senator McMeans:

0f L. T. Burwash, and others, of Ottawa. Ontario (Fort Smith-Fitzgerakt
Railway Company).

By the Honourable Senator White (Pembroke):

0f The Ottawa and New York Railway Company and The New York
Central Railroad Company.

The Honourable Senator Hughes called the attention of the Senate and
the Government to the existing world-wide depression and to the serious conomie
conditions in Canada, and enquired what presentations the Government intend
to make at the Imperial Economie Conference in July next, calculated toý
ameliorate or remedy said conditions.

Debatcd.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Robertson, it was-

Ordered, That the following Orders in Council, laid on the Table on the
8th day of February, 1932, be approved:-

Orders in Council which have been published in the Canada Gazette between
the 2lst day of January, 1931, and the 17th day of December, 1931, in accord-
ance with the provisions of Section 75 of the Dominion Lands Act, Chapter 113,
R.S. 1927.

Orders in Council which have been published in the Canada Gazette between
the 2lst day of January, 1931, and the l7th day of December, 1931, in accord-
ance with the provisions of Subsection "c" of Section 21, of the Dominion Forest,
Reserves and Parks Act, Chapter 78, R.S. 1927.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Daniel, it was-
Resolved, That the recommendation of the Civil Service Commission, dated

l8th January, 1926, exempting, from the operation of the Civil Service Act in
sfar as appointments are concerned, the Senate positions of First'Clerk Assist-

ant, and Second Clerk Assistant, be approved.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (3), intituled: "An Act te
amend the Boards of Trade Act," was read the second time, and-

Ordered, That the said Bill be committed to a Committee of the Whole-
to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (17) ,
intituled: "An Act to amend the Marriage and Divorce Act," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Senate adjourned.
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0F

THE SENATE OF CANADA

Friday, 4th March, 1932

3 p.m.

The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Mexnbers convened were-

The Honourable Senators

Aylesworth
(Sir Allen),

Barnard,
Beaubien,
Belcourt,
Bénard,
Black,
Blondin,
Bourque,
Buchanan,
Bureau,
Calder,
Casgrain,
Chapais,
Copp,
Dandurand,
Daniel,
Dennis,
Donnelly,
Fisher,

Forke,
Foster,
Gillis,
Gordon,
Graham,
Green,
Griesbach,
Hardy,
Harmer,
Hatfield,
Horsey,
Hughes,
King,
Lacasse,
Lemieux,
L'Espérance,
Lewis,
Littie,
Logan,

Lynch-Staunton,
MacArthur,
Macdonald,
Marcotte,
Martin,
McCormick,
McDougald,
McGuire,
McLean,
MeLennan,
MeMeans,
Meighen,
Molloy,
Murdock,
Paradis,
Parent,
Poirier,
Pope,
Prevost,

Rankin,
Rayýmond,
Riley,
Robertson,
Robinson,
Schaffner,
Sharpe,
Sinclair,
Smith,
Stanfield,
Tanner,
Tessier,
Tobin,
Todd,
Turgeon,
White (Inkerman),
White (Pembroke),
Willoughby,
Wilson

(Rockcliffe).
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PRAYERS.

The following petition was read and received.
0f The Montreal Central Terminal Company; praying for the passage of

an Act reviving the powers granted to it by sections two and three of Chapter
109 of the Statutes of Canada, 1909, and for other purposes.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons, by their Clerk, in
the following words:

WEDNESDA-Y, 2nd March, 1932.

Resolved,-That a Message be sent to the Senate informing Their Honours
that this flouse has adopted a resolution approving of the International Con-
vention for the Amelioration of the condition of the Wounded. and Sick in
Armies in the Field, Geneva, July 27, 1929, signed on behaif of Canada by the
plenipotentiary named therein, on January 29, 1930, subject to the following
reservation:

" That the Government of the Dominion of Canada will interpret
Article 28 of the Convention in the sense that the legisiative measures
contemplated by that Article may provide that private individuals, asso-
ciations, firms or companies who have used the Arms of the Swiss
Confederation, or marks constituting an imitation thereof, for any law-
ful purpose before the coming into force of Clhe present convention shall
not be prevented from continuing to use such Armis or marks for the
saine purpose,"

the approval of the convention by this bouse being made subj ect to the said
reservation; 'and requesting that Their Honours will unite with this Huse in
the approval of the above mentioned convention, subjeet to the said reservation.

Ordered,-That the Clerk of the flouse do carry the said Message to the
Senate.

A ttest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,

Clerk of the Commons.

Ordered, That the said 'Message be taken into consideration on Tuesday,
next.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons, by their Clerk, in
the following words:-

WEDNESD.ÂY, 2nd March, 1932.

Resolved,--That a Message be sent to the Senate informing Their Honours
that this House has adopted a resolution approving of the International Con-
vention relative to the Treatment of Prisoners of War, Geneva, July 27, 1929,
signed on behalf of Canada by the plenipotentiary named therein, on Januarv
29, 1930, and requesting that Their Honours will unite with this buse in the
approval of the above mentioned convention.

Ordered,--That the Clerk of the flouse do carry the said Message to thc
Senate.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,

Clerk of the Commons.

Ordered, That the said Message be taken into corisideration on Tuesday,
next.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate was adjourned during
pleasure and put into a Committee of the Whole on the Bill (3), intituled:
"An Act to amend the Boards of Trade Act."

(In the Cornmittee)
Titie read and postponed.
Preamble read and postponed.
Clause 1 was read and amended, as follows:-
Page 1, line 7. For the word " person " substitute the word " persons "

The said clause, as amended, was agreed to.
Clause 2 was read and agreed to.
Clause 3 was read and amended, as follows:-
Page 2, lines 1 and 2. Strike out the words " ail its ordinary or special

meetings, held from time to time." and insert the words " its annual meeting."
Page ý2, line 3. After the word "to " insert the words " the annual meet-

ing of ".
Page 2, line 5. After the word "convened " insert the words " or by the

Council ".
Page 2, line 5. For the word "affiliation " substitute the word " repre-

sentation ".
The said clause, as amended, was agreed to.
Preamble again read and agreed to.
Title again read and agreed to.

After some time, the Senate was resumed. and-
The Honourable Senator Gordon, from the said Committee, reported that

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the same
to the Senate with several amendments, which he was ready to submit when-
ever the Senate would be pleased to receive the same.

The said amendments were then read by the Clerk.
The said amendments were concurred in, and-
Ordered, That the said Bill, as amended, be placed on the Orders of the

Day for a third reading at the next sitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (17),
intituled: "An Act to amend the Marriage and Divorce Act," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the next
sitting of the Senate.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (7)>, intituled: "An Act to amend
the Criminal Code (Summary trials) ," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate. it was-
Ordered, That the said Bill be committed to a Committee of the Whole

presently.

The Senate was, accordingly, adjourned during pleasure and put into a
Committee of the Whole on the said Bill.

(In the Committec)
After some time, the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator Daniel, from the said Committee, reported that

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the same
to the Senate, without any amendment.

Ordered, That the said Bill be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third
reading at the next sitting of the Senate.

414>65-4
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Pursuant to, the Order of the Day, the Bill (8), intituled: "An Act ta amend
The Juvenile Delinquents Act," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That the said Bill be committed ta a Committee of the Whole

presently.

The Senate was, accordingly, adjourned during pleasure and put into a
Committee of the Whole on the said Bill.

(In the Committee)

After some time, the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator Gordon, from, the said Committee, reported that

they had taken the said Bill into cansideration, made some progress thereon, and
asked leave ta sit again.

Ordered, That the said Bill be placed an the Orders of the Day for furthei
consideration in a Committee of the Whole at the next sitting of the Senate.

Pursuant ta the Order of the Day, the Bill (11), intituled: "An Act ta
amend the Criminal Code (Conveyance of prohibited articles) ," was read the
second time, and-

With leave of the Senate, it was--
Ordered, That the said Bill be committed ta a Committee of the Whole

presently.

The Senate was, accordingly, adjourned during pleasure and put into a
Committee of the Whole on the said Bill.

(In the Committee)

After some time, the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator Gardon, from the said Committee, reported that

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him ta, repart the same
ta, the Senate, without any amendment.

Ordered, That the said Bill be placcd an the Orders of the Day for a Lhiril
reading at the next sitting of the Senate.

Pursuant ta the Order of the Day, the Bill (12), intituled: "An Act ta
authorize an agreement between lis Majesty the King and the Corporation
of the City of Ottawa," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down ta the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant ta the Order of the Day, the Bill (13), intituled: "An Act relating
ta the submission ta Parliament of certain Regulations and Orders in Council."
was read the second time, and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading at
the next sitting of the Senate,

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (15),
intituled: "An Act ta amend the Admiralty Act," it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed umtil the next sit-
ting of the Senate.
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The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bihl (Dl),
intituled: "An Act respecting The Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway
Company," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the next sit-
ting of the Senate.

On motion, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adj ourned until

Tuesday next, at eight o'cloek in the evening.

The Senate adj ourned.

4176&--4àj
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JOURNALS
OF

THE SENATE OF CANADA

Tuesday, 8th March, 1932

8 p.m.

The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Members convened were:

The Honourable Senators

Aylesworth
(Sir Allen),

Ballantyne,
Barnard,
Beaubien,
Béique,
Belcourt,
Bénard,
Black,
Blondin,
Bourque,
Buchanan,
Bureau,
Casgrain,
Chapais,
Copp,
Dandurand,
Daniel,
Dennis,
Donnelly,

Fisher,
Forke,
Foster,
Gillis,
Graham,
Green,
Griesbach,
Hardy,
Harmer,
Hatfield,
Horsey,
Hughes,
King,
Lacasse,
Lemieux,
L'Espérance,
Lewis,
Little,
Logan,
Lynch-Staunton,

MacArthur,
Macdonald,
Macdonell,
Marcotte,
Martin,
McDonald,
McGuire,
McLean,
McLennan,
McMeans,
McRae,
Meighen,
Molloy,
Murdock,
Paradis,
Parent,
Pope,
Prevost,
Rankin,
Riley,

Robertson,
Robinson,
Schaffner,
Sharpe,
Sinclair,
Smith,
Spence,
Stanfield,
Tanner,
Tessier,
Tobin,
Todd,
Webster,
White (Inkerman),
White (Pembroke),
Willoughby,
Wilson (Sorel),
Wilson

(Rockeliffe).
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PRAYERS.

The following petition was presented:-

By the Honourable the Chairman of the Committee'on Divorce:-
Of Adlena Emma Sills Burrow, otherwise known as Adlena Emma Sills

Burrows, at present residing at the city of Toronto, Ontario; praying for the
passage of an Act to dissolve ber marriage with Harry Burrow, otherwise known
as Harris Charles Burrows, of the city of Montreal, Quebec.

The following petitions were severally read and received:
Of The Ottawa and New York Railway Company and The New York

Central Railroad Company; praying for the passage of an Act authorizing the
said companies to enter into an agreement with a toll bridge company for the
construction of a traffic passageway in connection with the company's inter-
national bridge at or near the town of Cornwall, Ontario, and for other purposes.

Of the Canadian Pacific Railway Company; praying for the passage of
an Act authorizing the issue of additional consolidated debenture stock.

Of L. T. Burwash and others, of Ottawa, Ontario; praying to be incor-
porated under the nane of " Fort Snith-Fitzgerald Railway Company."

Of Autographic Register Systems Limited; praying for the passage of an
Act repealing Chapter 78 of the Statutes of Canada, 1921, intituled: "An Act
respecting certain Patents of Autographic Register Systems, Limited."

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-
Copy of International Convention for the Amelioration of the Condition

of the Wounded and Sick in Armies in the Field, Geneva, July 27, 1929.

Copy of International Convention relative to the Treatment of Prisoners
of War, Geneva, July 27, 1929.

Fourteenth annual Report of the National Research Council, for the fiscal
year 1930-1931.

Copy of Radio Regulations amendment dated 8th March, 1932-Depart-
ment of Marine.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (3), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Boards of Trade Act," as amended, was read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill, as amended, shall pass.
It was resolved in the aflirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and

acquaint that House that the Senate have passed this Bill with several amend-
ments, to which they desire their concurrence.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (7), intituled: "An Act to amend
the Criminal Code (Summary trials)," was read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and

acquaint that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amend-
ment.

THE SENATE 22 GEO. V



Pursuant to the Order of the- Day, the Bill (.11.), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Criminal Code (Conveyanee of prohibited articles) ," was read the
third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Comnions, and

acquaint that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amend-
ment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (13), intituled: "An Act relating
to the submoission to Parliament of certain Ilegulations and Orders in Council ,"
was read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the Huse of Commons, and

acquaint that House that the Senate have passcd this Bill, without any amend-
ment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, thc Senate was adjourned during pleasure
and again put into a Committtee of the Whole on the Bill (8), intituled: "An
Act to amend The Juvenile Delinquents Act."

(lai the Cominittee)

Titie read and postponed.

Preamble read and postponcd.

Clause 1 was read and agreed to.

The following was added as a new section:-
" 2. The said Act is further amended by adding to section thirty-seven

thercof the following subsection-
"<(3) Application for leave to appeal under this section shahl be made within

ten days of the making of the conviction or order complained of, or within such
further time, not excecding an additional twenty days, as a Supreme Court
Judge may sec fit to fix, either hefore or after the expiration of the said ten
davs. "

Preamble again read and agreed to.

Titie again read and agreed to.

Aftei' some time, the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator MeLennan, from the said Committee, reported

that they had gone through the said Bill, and hiad directcd him to report the
same to the Senate with one amendment. which he was ready to submit when-
ever the Senate would be plcased to receive the same.

The said amendment was then read hy the Clerk.
The said amendment was concurred in, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill, as amended, was read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill, as amended, shahl pass.
It was resohved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the bouse of Commons, and

acquaint that House that the Senate have passed this Bill with one amend-
ment, to whieh they desire their concurrence.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (17), intituled: "An Act to amend
the Marriage and Divorce Act," was read the second time, and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third readîng
to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (15), intituled: "An Act to amend
the Admiralty Act," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that t.he Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Dl), intituled: "An Act respect-
ing The Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway Company," was read the
second time, and-

Referred to the Standing Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours.

The Order of the Day being called for the consideration of a Message from
the House of Commons informing the Senate that that house had adopted a
resolution approving of the International Convention for the Amehioration of te
condition of the Wounded and Sick in Armies in the Field, Geneva, July 27, 1929,
signed on ýbehaif of Canada by the phenipotentiary named therein, on January
29, 1930, subject to the following reservation:-

" That the Government of the Dominion of Canada will interpret
Article 28 of the Convention in the sensge that the legisiatîve measures.
contemnplated by that Article may provide that private individuals, asso-
ciations, firms or companies who have used the Arms of the Swiss Con-
federation, or marks const.ituting an imitation thereof, for any lawful
purpose before the coming into force of the present convention shall not
be prcvented from continuing to use such Arms or marks for the samne
purpose,"

the approval of the convention by the Huse of Commons being made subject to,
the said reservation, and requesting that the Senate unîte with the House of
Commons in the approval of the above mentioncd convention, subject te the-
said reservation, it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the consideration of a Message from
the flouse of Commons informing the Senate that that flouse had adopted a,
resolution approving of the International Convention relative to the Treatment
of Prisoners of War, Geneva, July 27, 1929, signed on behaif of Canada by the
phenipotentiary named therein, on January 29, 1930, and requesting that the.
Senate unite with the flouse of Commons in the approval of the said convention,
it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Senate adjourned.
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THE SENATE 0F CANADA

Wednesday, 9th March, 1932

3 p.m.

The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Members convened were-

The Honourable Senators

Aylesworth
(Sir Allen),

Ballantyne,
Barnard,
Beaubien,
Béique,
Bénard,
Black,
Blondin,
Bourque,
Buchanan,
Bureau,
Casgrain,
Chapais,
Copp,
Dandurand,
Daniel,
Dennis,
Donnelly,
Fisher,
Forke,

Foster,
Gillis,
Gordon,
Graham,
Green,
Griesbach,
Hardy,
Harmer,
Hatficld,
Horsey,
Hughes,
King,
Lacasse,
Laird,
L'Espérance,
Lewis,
Little,
Logan,
Lynch-Stauriton,
MacArthur,
Macdonald,

Macdonell,
Marcotte,
Martin,
McDonald,
McDougald,
McGuire,
MeLean,
MeLennan,
MoMeans,
McRae,
Meighen,
Molloy,
Paradis,
Parent,
Poirier,
Pope,
Prevost,
Rankin,
Raymond,
Riley,
Robertson,

Robinson,
Schaffner,
Sharpe,
Sinclair,
Smith,
Spence,
Stanfield,
Tanner,
Taylor,
Tessier,
Tobin,
Todd,
Turgeon,
Webster,
White (Inkerman),
White (Pembroke),
Willoughby,
Wilson (Sorel),
Wilson

(Rockcliffe).
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PRAYERS.

The Order of the Day being called for the third reading of the Bill (17),
intituled: "An Act to amend the Marriage and Divorce Act," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the next sitting
of the Senate.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the Message from the House of Commons informing the Senate that that
House had adopted a resolution approving of the International Convention
for the Amelioration of the condition of the Wounded and Sick in Armies in
the Field, Geneva, July 27, 1929, signed on behalf of Canada by the plenipo-
tentiary named therein, on January 29, 1930, subject to the following reserva-
tion:-

" That the Government of the Dominion of Canada will interpret
Article 28 of the Convention in the sense that the legislative measures
contemplated by that Article may provide that private individuals, asso-
ciations, firms or companies who have used the Arms of the Swiss
Confederation, or marks constituting an imitation thereof, for any law-
ful purpose before the coming into force of the present convention shall
not be prevented from continuing to use such Arms or marks for the
same purpose,"

the approval of the convention by the House of Commons being made subject
to the said reservation and requesting that the Senate unite with the House
of Commons in the approval of the above mentioned convention, subject to the
said reservation.

After debate, and-
On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Resolved, That it is expedient that Parliament do approve of the Inter-

national Convention for the Amelioration of the condition of the Wounded and
Sick in Armies in the Field, Geneva, July 27, 1929, signed on behalf of Canada
by the plenipotentiary named therein, on January 29, 1930, subject to the
following reservation:-

" That the Government of the Dominion of Canada will interpret
Article 28 of the Convention in the sense that the legislative measures
contemplated by that Article may provide that private individuals, asso-
ciations, firms or companies who have used the Arms of the Swiss
Confederation, or marks constituting an imitation thereof, for any law-
ful purpose before the coming into force of the present convention shall
not be prevented from continuing to use such Arms or marks for the
same purpose,"

and that this House do approve of the same, subject to the said reservation.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That a Message be sent to the House of Commons, to acquaint

that House that the Senate doth unite with the House of Commons in the
approval of the International Convention for the Amelioration of the condition
of the Wounded and Sick in Armies in the Field, Geneva, July 27, 1929, signed
on behalf of Canada by the plenipotentiary named therein, on January 29, 1930.
subject to the following reservation:-

" That the Government of the Dominion of Canada will interpret
Article 28 of the Convention in the sense that the legislative measures
contemplated by that Article may provide that private individuals, asso-
ciations, firms or companies who have used the Arms of the Swiss
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Confederation, or marks constituting an imitation thereof, for any law-
fui purpose before the corning into force of the present convention shall
not be prevented from continuing to use sucli Arms or marks for the
same purpose?"

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-
tion of the Message from the flouse of Commons informing the Senate that
that House had adopted a resolution approving of the International Conven-
tion relative to the Treatment of Prisoners of War , Geneva, July 27, 1929;
signed on behaif of Canada by the plenipotentiary named therein, on January
29. 19,30, and requesting that the Senate unite with the flouse of Commons in
the approval of the said convention.

After debate, and-
On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Resolved, That it is expedient tbiat Parliament do approve of the Inter-

national Convention relative to the Treatment of Prisoners of War, Geneva,
July 27, 1929, signed on behaif of Canada by the plenipotentiary named there-
in, on January 29, 1930, and that this flouse do approve of the same.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That a Message be sent to the flouse of Commons, to acquaint

that flouse that the Senate doth unite with the flouse of Commons in the
approval of the International Convention relative to the Treatment of Prisoners
of War, Geneva, July 27, 1929, signed on behiaif of Canada by the plenipo-
tentiary narned therein, on January 29, 1930.

A -Message w-as brought from the flouse of Comimons by their Clerk with
a Bill (21 }, intituled: "An Act respecting the Canadian NationÎl Raîlways and
to authorize additional provision of mioncys to meet expenditures made and
indcbtcdness incurred during the calendar vear 1931," to whc they desire
the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill w-as read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message w-as brought from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (22), intittuled: "An Act to amend the Criminal Code (Cheques without
Funds and Grand Juries) ," to w hich they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and--
With leave of the Scnate, it was-
Ordered, That it he placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

The Senate adjourned.
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Dennis,
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Foster,
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Hardy,
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King,
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Laird,
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Lewis,
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Logan,
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MacArthur,
Macdonald,
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Martin,
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator Black, from tbe Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce, presented the following Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

THU*SDAY, 1Otb Marcb, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to whom was referred
the following Bis, viz:-

Bill Bi, An Act respecting the Status and Powers of British and
Foreign Insurance Companies in Canada.

Bill Cl, An Act respecting the Status and Powers of Dominion
Insurance Companies,

beg leave to report, as follows-
As the Government bas expressed a wish to withdraw the said Bis and to

introduce new Bis in lieu thereof, your Committee beg leave to return the
Bis to the Senate and to recommend tbat leave to withdraw be granted.

F. B. BLACK,
Chairman.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Mcigben, it was-
Ordered, That the Bill (Bi), intituled: "An Act respecting the status and

powers of British and Foreign Insurance Companies in Canada," be wîtbdrawn.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That the Bill (Cl), intituled: "An Act respecting the status and

powers of Dominion Insurance Companies," be witbdrawn.

The Right Honourabie Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-
Twenty-tbird Annual Report of the Civil Service Commission of Canada

for tbe year ended 3lst December, 1931.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (17), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Marriage and Divorce Act," was read tbe tbird time.

Tbe question was put wbether tbis Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Cierk do go down to the buse of Commons, and

acquaint that House tbat the Senate bave passed this Bill, without any amend-
ment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (21), intituied: "An Act respect-
mng the Canadian iNational Railways and to authorize additional provision
of moneys to meet expenditures made and indebtedness incurred during tbe
calendar year 1931," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read tbe tbird time.
The question was put whetber tbis Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, Tbat tbe Cierk do go down to the bouse of Commons, and

acquaint tbat flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill.
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The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (22).
intituled: "An Act to amend the Cririnal Code (Chieques without Funds and
Grand Juries) ," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the day be postponed until Tuesday, next.

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Tuesday, next, at eight o'clock in the evening.

The Senate adj ourned.
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Foster,
Gillis,
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Green,
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Hardy,
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Hughes,
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Laird,
Lemieux,
L'Espérance,
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Lynch-Staunton,
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Macdonald,
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Martin,
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Paradis,
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Rankin,
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Schaffner,
Sharpe,
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Tobin,
Todd,
Webster,
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iPRAYERS.

The following petitions were severally presented:

By the Honourable the Chairman of the Committee on Divorce:-
0f Chia Hannah Shiff, of Montreal,' Quebec; praying for the passage of

an Act to dissolve her marriage with Samuel Shiff, othorwiso known as Samuel
Shiffman.

0f Chesloy Hastings Potter, of Montreal, Quebec, and presently residing
at the town of Methuen, in the state of Massachusetts, one of the United States
of America; praying for the passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with
Gerald Edward Potter, of the said city of Montroal.

0f Ida Tarantour Waxman, of Outromont, Quebec; prayîng for the passage
of an Act to dissolve her marriage with Phillip Waxman.

0f Freda Iris Symington, of Montreal, Quebec, and atpresent residing
at the town of Clacton-on-Sea, in the county of Essex, England; praying for
the passage of an Act to, dissolve her marriage with Robert Russell Symnington,
of the said city of Montroal.

The Honourablo Senator MeMeans, for the Honourable the Chairman,
from the Spocial Committoe appointod for the purposo of taking into considera-
tion the report of a Special Committee of the buse of Commons of the last
Session thereof to investigate the Bcauharnois Power Proj oct, insofar as the
said report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate, presented thoir
third Report.

The same was thon read by the Clork, as follows:

TuESDAY, l5th March, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into considera-
tion the report of a Special Committee of the Huse of Commons of the last
Session theroof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Projeet, insofar as said
report relates to any Honourable Members of the Sonate, beg leave to make
their third Report as follows:

The Committee recommend that authority ho granted for the translation
and printing in French of 200 copies of the proceedings of the Committee for
general distribution.

All which is respectfully submitted.
CHAS. E. TANNER,

Chairman.
With leave of the Sonate,
The said Report was adopted.

Tho Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-

Copy of British Commonwealth Morchant Shipping Agreement, signed at
London on lOth December, 1931 (English and French).

Report of the Canadian Delegates to the Twelfth Assembly of the League
of Nations, Geneva, 7th to 29th Septembor, 1931.

Return to an Order of the Sonate, dated l2th February, 1932, for a return
showing:

1. (a) Naines of the nations who are members of the League of Nations,
and

(b) The contributions assessed against each nation, members of the League
for maintenance of the activities of the League for last year or failing that any
recent year for which the Government has tho information.
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<c) The receipts and expenditures of the League (totals only) for last
year or any recent year for which the Government lias the information.

2. The contributions made by Canada to the League of Nations since its
inception year by year on account of (a) Assessments or payments for the
support of the League; (b) Cost of delegations; (c) Incidentai or other expendi-
ture occasioned by Canada's membership in the League.

3. Showing what (if any) nations, members of the League are in arrears
with their assessments or contributions for the maintenance of the League
year by year extended to show the total arrears in the case of each nation in
arrears.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day-
The liight Honourable Senator Meiglien moved that the Bill (22), intituled:

"An Act to amend the Criminal Code (Cheques without Funds and Grand
Juries) ," be now read the second time.

The question being put on the said motion,
The Senate divided, and the naines being called for they were taken down

as follows:-
CONTENTS

The Honourable Senators

Barnard, Dandua'and, Logan, po>pe,
Beaubien, Forke, M&coriick, Sharpe,
BNique, Gillis, McLean, Smith,
Bénard, Green, MeLennan, Todd,
Bourque, Hardy, Meîghen, White (Pembroke),
Buchianan, Hughes, Murdock, Wiiloughby,
Bureau, Laird, Paradis, Wilson (Sorel)-31.
Chapais, Lewis, Poirier,

NON-CONTENlTS

The Ilonourable Senators

Ayleffworth (Sir Allen), Laase, MeMeans, Robinson,
Copp, Lemieux, McRae, Sinclair,
Donnelly, Lynch-Staunton, MÔlloy, Spence,
Graham, Marcotte, Rankin, Taylor,
Horsey, McGuire, Riley, Tobîn-20. -

It was resolved in the affirmative.
The said Bill was then read the second time, and-
Ordered, That it be committed to a Committee of the Whole to-morrow.

The Senate adjourned.

41765-5j
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator King, from the Standing Committee on Internai
Economy and Contingent Accounts, presented their second Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows-

WEDNESDAY, l6th March, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Internai Ecoriomy and Contingent Accounts

beg leave to make their second Report, as follows:-
The Committee have had under consideration the f ollowing recommenda-

tion from the Civil Service Commission:-
" December 7, 1931.

"In accordance with sections 12 and 61 of the Civil Service Act, the Civil
Service Commission, at the request of the Clerk of the Senate, submits the
following report for approval:

Assistant Clerk of the ,Senate
It is recommended that the compensation of this class, which Is at present:

Annual: $4,200, $4,880, $4,560, $4,740
be revised to read as follows, effective from April lst, 1931:

Annual: $4,560, $4,740, $4,920, $5,100.
It is considered that the present compensation provided for this class is

inadequate for the duties performed.
Respectfully submitted.

(Signed) W. J. ROCHE, Chairman,
(Signed) J. ExiLE TBEFmBLAY, Commissioner."

The Committee recomrnend that the recommendation of the Commission
be approved.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
J. II. KING,

With leave of the Senate, Atn himn

The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Black called the attention of the Government
to some phases of the economie situation and made suggestions for further
economies.

Debated.

The Honourable Senator Casgrain called the attention of the Senate to
the diversion of water from Lake Michigan by the City of Chicago and moved-

That in the opinion of the Senate no further negotiations on the St.
Lawrence Waterways be made until the Senate of Canada has examined the
treaty now in force and ascertained that this treaty is being carried out.

Further that a copy of the said treaty be placed upon the Table of the
Senate.

After debate, it was-
Qrdered, That further debate be adjourned until to-inorrow.
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The Order of the Day being called for the consideration, in a Committee
of the Whole, of the Bill (22), intituled: "An Act to amend the Criminal Code
(Cheques without Funds and Grand Juries) ," it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Senate adj ourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator MeLennan, from the Standing Committee on
Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada, presented their second Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:

THJRSDAY, 17th March, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada beg
leave to make their second Report, as follows:

The Committee recommend that they be authorized to send for persons,
papers and records.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
J. S. McLENNAN,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Chapais, from. the Standing Committee on Debates
and Reporting, presented their second Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:

THURsDAY, l7th March, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Debates and Reporting beg leave to make
their second Report, as follows:

The Committee recommend that the appointment of Messrs. Thomas
Blacklock and J. A. Fortier to the reporting staff of the Senate, be continued
for the present Session of Parliament upon the terms and conditions set f orth
in the Report of the Committee on Debates and Reporting of June 3rd, 1913,
with the further recommendation that the rate of pay to Mr. Fortier be $20
per week.

Ahl which is respectfully submitted.
THOS. CHAPAIS,

C hairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for
zonsideration on Wednesday, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate was adjourned during
pleasure, and put into a Committee of the Whole on the Bill (22), intituled:
"An Act to amend the Criminal Code (Cheques without Funds and Grand
Juries) ."

(In the Committee)

After some time the Senate was resumed, and-
The Ilonourable Senator Gordon, from the said Committee, reported that

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the same
to the Senate, without any amendment.

Ordered, That the said Bill be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third
reading on Tuesday, next.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned
debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator Casgrain calling the attention
of the Senate to the diversion of water from Lake Michigan by the City of
Chicago, and the motion-

That in the opinion of the Senate no further negotiations on the St.
Lawrence Waterways be made until the Senate of Canada has examined the
treaty now in force and ascertained that this treaty is being carried out.

Further that a copy of the said treaty be placed upon the Table of the
Senate.

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate be adj ourned until Tuesday, next.

On motion, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjouras to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Tuesday, next, at eight o'clock in the evening.

The Riglit Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-
Amendment to the Radio Regulations-Private Radio Receiving Licence.

The Senate adj ourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator Griesbach drew the attention of the Senate to
the matter of the officiai publication of a history dealing with Canada's par-
ticipation in the Great War 1914-18 and inquired of the Government:-

1. What steps had the Government taken to publish such history?
2. When would the Government publish a history?

Debated.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (22), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Criminal Code (Cheques without Fonds and Grand Juries) ," was
read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the. Clerk* do go down to the House of :Commons and

acquaint that Huse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amend-
ment.

The Order of the Day being called for resuming the adjourned debate on
the motion of the Honourable Sexiator Casgrain,-calling the attention of the
Senate to the divcrsion of water fromn Lake Michigan by the City of Chicago,
and the motion-

That in the opinion of the Senate no further negotiations on the St.
Lawrence Waterways be mnade until the Senate of Canada has examined the
treaty now in force and ascertained that this treaty is being carried out.

Further that a copy of the said treaty be phaced upon the Table of the
Senate.

It was-
Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until Wednesday,

the thirtieth day of March, next.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-
ion of the second Report of the Standing Committee on Debates and Reporting.

The said Report was adopted.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen presented to the Senate a Bill
(El), intituled: "An Act respecting the Departmnent of Insurance."

The said Bill was rend the firgt time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

at the next sitting of the Senate.

The Right Honourable SerpatorMeighen presented to the Senate a Bill
(Fl), intituled: "eAný Act respecing ýFojreign Insurance Companies i Canada."

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on -the Orders of the Day for a second reading

at the next sitting of the Senate.

With leave of the Senate, it wasý_
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Wednesday, the thirtieth day of March, next, at three o'clock in the
afternoon.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The following petitions were severally presented:
By the Honourable Senator Schaffner, for -the Honourable the Chair-

man of the Committee on Divorce:-
0f Lucy Doris Cannon, of the city of Sherbrooke, Quebee, and at present

residing at the *city of St. Catharines, Ontario; praying for tbe passage of an
Act to dissolve ber marriage with Edward Frederick Cannon, of tbe city of
Montreal, Quebec.

0f Margaret Spencer lleald, of Montreal, Quebcc; praying for the passage
of an Act to dissolve ber marriage with Leonard Hcald.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate rcsumed the adjourned
debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator Casgrain, calling the attention
of the Senate to the diversion of water from Lake Michigan by the City of
Chicago, and the motion-

That in the opinion of the Senate no furtber negotiations on the St.
Lawrence 'Waterways be made until tbe Senate of Canada bas examined tbe
treaty now in force and ascertained that tbis treaty is being carried out.

Furtber that a vopy of tbe said treaty be placed upon the Table of tbe
Senate.

Af ter further debate, and-
With leave of tbe Senate,
Tbe said motion was witbdrawn.

Pursuant to the Order of tbe Day,
The Rigbt Honourable Senator Meighen moved that the Bill (El), intituled:

"An Act respecting tbe Department of Insurance," be now read tbe second
time.

After debate, it was-
Ord.ered, That furtber debate on the said motion be postponed until

to-morrow.

Tbe Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (Fl),
intituled: "An Act respecting Foreign Insurance Companies in Canada," it was-

Ordered, Tbat tbe said Order of the Day be postponed until tbe next
sitting of tbe Senate.

With leave of tbe Senate,' it was-
Ordered, Tbat wben tbe Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until to-morrow, at eight o'clock in the evening.

Tbe Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The following petition was presented:-

By the Honourable Senator Copp, for the Honourable the Chairman
of the Committee on Divorce:-
Of Theo Alice MacFarlane Lamb, of Valois, Quebec; praying for the

passage of an Act to dissolve her marriage with George Percival Lamb.

The Honourable Senator Tessier, from the Standing Committee on Standing
Orders, presented their fourth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

THURsDAY, 31st March, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Standing Orders beg leave to make their
fourth Report, as follows:-

The Committee have examined the following petitions and find that the
requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in all material
respects, namely:-

Of the Canadian Pacific Railway Company; praying for the passage of
an Act authorizing the issue of additional consolidated debenture stock.

Of Autographie Register Systemsý Limited; praying for the passage of an
Act repealing Chapter 78 of the Statutes of Canada, 1921, intituled: "An Act
respecting certain Patents of Autographic Register Systems, Limited."

Of The Ottawa and New York Railway Company and The New York
Central Railroad Company; praying for the passage of an Act authorizing the
said companies to enter into an agreement with a toll bridge company for the
construction of a traffic passageway in connection with the company's inter-
national bridge at or near the town of Cornwall, Ontario, and for other purposes.

Of The Montreal Central Terminal Company; praying for the passage of
an Act reviving the powers granted to it by sections two and three of Chapter
109 of the Statutes of Canada, 1909, and for other purposes.

All which is respectfully submitted.
JULES TESSIER,

Chairman.
Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned
debate on the motion for the second reading of the Bill (El), intituled: "An Act
respecting the Department of Insurance."

The said motion was agreed to.
The said Bill was then read the second time, and-
Referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Fl), intituled: "An Act
respecting Foreign Insurance Companies in Canada," was read the second
time, and-

Referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The f ollowing petition was presented:
By the Honourable Senator Schaffner, for the Honourable the Chair-

mnan of the Committee on Divorce:-
0f Minnie Jones Chandler, of Stanbridge East, Quebee; praying for the

passage of an Act to dissolve ber marriage with William Chandler.

It being six o'clock, the HonourabIe the Speaker left the Chair, to resume
the same at half-past seven o'clock.

7.30 p.m.

The Senate resumed.

A Message was brought from, the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (24), intituled: "An Act respecting Unemployment and Farm Relief."

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the second and third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the Huse of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, withont any amendment.

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Monday, next, at half-past three o'clock in theafternoon.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator Beaubien laid on the Table-
Copy of Annual Report of the Canadian National Railway System, for the

year ended 31st December, 1931 (English and French editions).
Copy of Annual Report of the Canadian Government Merchant Marine,

Limited, and Canadian National (West Indies) Steamships, Limited, for the
year ended 31st December, 1931 (English and French editions).

A Message was brought from the House of Gommons by their Clerk with
a Bill (39), intituled: "An Act for granting to is Majesty certain sums of
money for the public service of the financial year, ending the 3lst Mardi,
1932,"l to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the second and third times.
The question was put whether this Bill shail pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill.

The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that he had received a
communication from the Assistant Secretary to the Governor General.

The same was read by the Honourable the Speaker, as follows:

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR GENERAL'S'SECRETARY, CANADA

OTTAWA, 4th April, 1932.

Sin -Il have the honour to inform you that the Right Honourable F. A.
Anglin, 'Chief Justice of Canada, acting as Deputy of His Excellency the Gov-
ernor General, will proceed to the Senate Chamber to-day at 4 p.m., for the
purpose of giving the Royal Assent to certain Buis.

I have the honour to be,

Sir,

Your obedient servant,

JAMES F. CROWDY,
Asîstnt Secretary to the Governor GeneraL.

The Honourable
The Speaker of the Senate,

Ottawa.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

The Senate adjourned during pleasure
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After a while, the Right Honourable Francis Alexander Anglin, Deputy
Governor General, having corne and being seated at the foot of the Throne,

The Honourable the Speaker cornmanded the Gentleman Usher of the Black
Rod to proceed to the Huse of Commons and acquaint that bouse that,-

"It is the Right bonourable the Deputy Governor General's desire that
they attend hirn irnrediately in the Senate Chamber."

The buse of Commons being corne,

The Clerk read the tities of the Buis to be assented to, as follows:-
An Act respecting the Boundary between the Provinces of Alberta and

British Columbia.
An Act to authorize an agreement between His Majesty the King and the

Corporation of the City of Ottawa.
An Act to arniend the Criminal Code (Surnmary trials).
An Act to amend the Crirninal Code (Conveyance of prohibited articles).
An Act relating to the subrnission to Parliament of certain Regulations and

Orders in Council.
An Act to amend the Admiralty Act.
An Act to amend the Marriage and Divorce Act.
An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways and to authorize addi-

tional provision of moneys to meet expenditures made and indebtedness incurred
duCing the calendar year 1931.

An Act to amend the Crirninal Code (Cheques without Funds and Grand
Juries).

An Act respecting Unernployment and Farmn Relief.

To these Bills the Royal Assent was pronounced by the Clerk of the Senate
in the following words:

" In is Majesty's name, the Right bonourable the Deputy Governor
General doth assent to these Bills."

The bonourable the Speaker of the Commons then addressed the Right
Honourable the Deputy Governor General, as follows:

MYIT PLEASE Yo-JR HONourt:

" Thé Gommons of Canada have voted supplies required to enable the
Government to defray certain expenses of the Public Service.

" In the narne of the Commons, I present to Your Honour the following
Bill:

"An Act for granting to bis Maj esty certain surns of money for the publie
service of the financial year ending the 3lst March, 1932."

" To which Bill 1 hurnbly request Your Honour's assent."

After the Clerk had read the title of this Bill,

To this Bill the Royal Assent was pronounced by the Clerk of the Senate
in the following words:-

"In bis Majesty's name, the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor
General thanks bis Loyal Subjects, aceepts their benevolenice, and assents to
this Bill."
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After which the liight Honourahie the Deputy Governor General was
pleased to retire.

The Commons withdrew.

The Senate resumed.

On motion, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Tuesday, the twelfth day of April, next, at eight o'clock in the evening.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their second Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows-

TUEsDAY, 5th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their second
Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Eva Corker Trill, of the city of Montreal,
in the province of Quebec, advertising copy writer, for an Act to dissolve her
marriage with Matthew Henry Trill, the Committee find that the requirements
of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in all material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

All which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Thursday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their third Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows-

TUESDAY, 5th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their third Report,
as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of George Senkler Morgan, of the city of
Westmount, in the province of Quebec, physician, for an Act to dissolve his
marriage with Doris Louise White Morgan, the Committee find that the require-
ments of the Rules of the Senate bave been complied with in all material respects

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

All which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Thursday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their fourth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows-

TUEsDAY, 5th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their fourth
Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Agnes May Jack Evans, of the city of
Montreal, in the province of Quebec, housekeeper, for an Act to dissolve her
marriage with Arnold George Evans, the Committee find that the requirements
of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in all material respects.
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2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Ch airman.
Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for

consideration on Thursday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their fifth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

TUESDAY, Sth April, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their fifth

Report, as follows:-
1. With respect to the petition of Mabel Constance Small Cossar, of the

citv of Montreal, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to dissolve lier marriage
with Robert George Cossar, the Committee find that the requirements of the
iRules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

3. The Committee reeommend that the Parliamentary fees paid under Rule
140, be refunded to the petitioner, less the sum of $50.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. MeMEANS,

Chairman.
Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for

consideration on Thursday, next.

The ilonourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their sixth Report.

The same was then read by lie Clerk, as follows:

TuEsDAY, 5th April, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their sixth

Report, as follows:
1. With respect to the petition of Olive Pearl Beattie Watkins, of the city

of Sherbrooke, in the province of Quebec, housekeeper, for an Act to dissolve
ber marriage with Hartwell Arthur Watkins, the Committee find that the
requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material
respects, except Rule 140 respecting payment of the Parliamentary fees

2. The Committee recommend the passage of'an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

3. The Committee recommend that the Parlîanientary fees payable under
Rule 140 be remitted, less the sum of $50.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. MeMEANS,

Chairma-m.
Ordered, That the said Report be plaeed on the Orders of the Day for

consideration on Thursday, next.
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The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce.
presented their seventh Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows-

TTJESDAY, 5th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their seventh
Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Assad Kalil'Eddy, otherwise known as
Joseph Canule, of the city of Montreai, in the province of Quebec, manufacturer,
for an Act to dissolve hîs marriage with Mary Sayre Eddy, the Committee find
that the requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in
ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail which is respectfuily submitted.
L. MeMEANS,

Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be piaced on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Thursday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their eighth Report.

The same was then read by the Cierk, as foiiows-

TUESDAY, 5th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their eighth
Report, as foiiows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Louis Sorbonne, of the city of Montreal,
in the province of Qucbec, scuiptor, for an Act to annul his marriage with
Clémence Dachet Sorbonne.

2. Counsel for the petitioner having made application for leave to with-
draw the petition, the Committee recommend that leave be granted accordingly

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for

consideration on Thursday, next.

A Message was brought fram the buse of Commons by their Clerk to return
the Bill (3), intituled: "An Act to amend the Boards of Trade Act."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have agreed to the amendments made
by the Senate, without any amendment.

A Message was brought from the Huse of Commons by their Clerk to, return
the Bill (8), intituled: "An Act to amend The Juvenile Delinquents Act."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have agreed to the amendment made
by the Senate, without, any amendment.

22 GEO. VTHE SENATE



A Message was brought from the Iflouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (4), intituled: "An Act to amend the Patent Act," ta which they desire
the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (9), intituled: "An Act to amend the Judges Act," to which they desire
the roncurruIice of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was--
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow..

A Message was brought from the Huse of Gommons by their Clerk with
a Bill (18), intituled: "An Act to amend. the Destructive Insect and Pest Act,"
to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill wau read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brought from. the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (20), intituled: "An Act to amend the Petraleum and Naphtha Inspection
Act," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (25), intituled: "An Act respecting debts due to the Crown," to which they
desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill waE read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (26), intituled: "An Act to amend The Opium and Narcotie Drug Act,
1929," to which the-y desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill waýs read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

A Message was brought. from the bouse of Gommons by their Clerk with
a Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to amend the Excise Act," to which they desire
the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.
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A Message was brought from the Huse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (30), intituled: "An Act to amend the Yukon Quartz Mining Act," to
which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

A Message was hrought from the bouse of Commons by their Glerk with
a Bill (31), intitu-led: "An Act respecting certain patents of Autographie Register
Systems, Limited," to, which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Order-ed, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (32), intituled: "An Act respecting the Ottawa and New York Railway
Company," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first ime, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (35), intituled: "An Act respecting the Canadian Pacific Railway Cm-
pany," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on flhc Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

A Message was brought from the buse of Gommons by their Clerk with
a Bill (40), intituled: "An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways and
to ýauthorize the guarantee by lis Majesty of seeurities to be issued under the
Canadian National Railways Financing Act, 1931, No. 2," Vo which they desire
the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Thursday, next.

A Message was brought f rom the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (43), intituled: "An Act for granting to Ris Majesty certain sums of
money for the public service of the financial year ending the 3lst Mardi, 1933,"
to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill wus read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it wus-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator Lynch-Staunton called the attention of the Senate
to, and inquired of the Government whether or not it was its intention to have-
a revision made of, the Companies Act.

Debated.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (9), intituled: "An Act to amendl
the Judges Act," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be committed to a Committee of the Whole presently.

The Senate was, accordingly, adjourned during pleasure and put into a.
Commîttee of the Whole on the said Bill.

(In the Committee)

After some time the Senate was resumed, and
The Honourable Senator Beaubien, from t.he said Committee, reported that,

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the saine-
to the Senate, without any amendment.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the Huse of Commons and-

acquaint that bouse that the Senate have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (18), intituled: "An Act te,
amend the Destructive Insect and Pest Act," was read the second time, and-

Ordered, That the said Bil] be committed to a Committee of the Whohe-
to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (4), intituled: "An Act to.
amend the Patent Act," was read the second time, and-

Ordered, Thiat the said Bill be committed to a Committee of the Whohe-
to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (43), intituled: "An Act for-
granting to lis Mai esty certain sums of money for the public service of the-
financial year ending the 3lst March, 1933," was read the second time, and--

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third tirne.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordercd, That the Clerk do go down to the buse of Commons anct'

acquaint that House that the Senate have passed the said Bill.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen presented to the Senate a Bill
(Gi), intituled: "An Act respecting Canadian and British Insurance Comn--
panies."

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be phaced on the Orders of the Day for a second readinK

to-morrow.

The Senate adj ourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that he had received a
communication from the Assistant Secretary to the Governor General.

The same was read by the Honourable the Speaker, as follows:-

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR GENERAL'S SECRETARY, CANADA

OTTAwA, 14th April, 1932.

Sm,-I have the honour to inform you that the Right Honourable F. A.
Anglin, Chief Justice of Canada, acting as Deputy of His Excellency the Gov-
ernor General, will proceed to the Senate Chamber to-day at 4 p.m., for the
purpose of giving the Royal Assent to certain Bills.

I have the honour to be,
Sir,

Your obedient servant,
F. L. C. PEREIRA,

For Assistant Secretary to the Governor General.
The Honourable

The Speaker of the Senate,
Ottawa.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their ninth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-
MONDAY, llth April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their ninth
Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Georgina Linda McIndoe Howard, of the
city of Westmount, in the province of Quebec, nurse attendant, for an Act to
dissolve her marriage with Henry Chase Howard, the Committee find that the
requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in all material
respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

All which is respectfully submitted.
C. W. ROBINSON,

Deputy Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their tenth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-
MONDAY, 11th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their tenth
Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Antonio Poliseno, of the city of Montreal,
in the province of Quebec, real estate agent, for an Act to dissolve his marriage
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with Marie Florida Hélène Soubre dit St. Jean iPoliseno, the Committee find
that the requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in
ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
C. W. ROBINSON,

Deputy Chaiman.

Ordered, That the said Report be plaeed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman îrom the Standing Committce on Divorce,
presented their eleventh Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as f ollows:

MONDAY, llth April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their elcventh
Report, as follows-

1. With respect to the petition of Dorothy Gertrude Silcock Wilson, of the
city of Montreal, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to dissolve lier marriage
with Leslie David Wilson, the Committee find that the requirements of the-
Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects.

2. The ýCommittee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
C. W. ROBINSON,

Deputy Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twelfth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MoNDAY, llth April, 1932.

Thc Standing Commitee on Divorce beg leave to make their twelfth
Report, as follows-

1. With respect to the petition of Bculýah Isobel Phillips Eakin, of the city
of Westmount, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to dissolve her marriage
with Irwin Hamilton Eakin, the Committee find that the requirements of the
Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
Inarriage.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
C. W. ROBINSON,

Deputy Chairrnzan.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Tuesday, next.
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The Honourable the Chairman from, the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their thirteenth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MoNDAY, llth April, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their thirteenth

Report, as follows:
1. With respect to the petition of George Seymour Dixon, of the city of

Montreal, in the province of Quebec, civil servant, for an Act to dissolve his
marriage with Isobel Gardiner Plant Dixon, the Committee find that the require-
ments of the Rýules of the Senate have been complied with in all material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

All which is respectfully submitted.
L. MoMEANS,

Chairman.

Ordered, Tlhat the said Report be placcd on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their fourteenth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, i lth April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their fourteenth
Report, as follows:

1. With respect to the petition of Audrey Meredith Mann Redpath, of the
city of Westmount, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to dissolve lier marriage
with John Watson Redpath, the Committee find that the requirements of the
Rules of the Senate have been complied with in all material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

All which is respectfully subxnitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairm an.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their fifteenth Report.

The same was thcn read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, 1lth April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their fifteenth
Report, as follows:--

1. With respect to, the petition of Ethel Seigler Nýissenson, of the city of
Toronto, in the province of Ontario, for an Act to dissolve her marriage with
Abraham INissenson, of the city of Montreal, in the province of Quebee, man-
ager, the Committee find that the requirements of the Rules of the Senate have
been complied with in ahi material respects.
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2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act ta dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEAN,ýS,

Chairman

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Tuesday, next.

Wîth leave of the Senate, and-
On motion, it was-
Ordered, That the Senate do now proceed to the Orders of the Day, and

that Order No. il be called.

Pursuant ta the Order of the Senate,
The Right Honourable Senator Meighen moved that the Bill (40), intituled:

"'An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways and to authorize the guar-
antee by His Majesty of securities ta be issuod under the Canadian National
Railways Financing Act, 1931, No. 2," be 110W read the second time.

The said Bill was read the second time, and--
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down ta the Huse of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed the said Bill, without any amendment.

With leave of the Senate, and-
On motion, it wa-
Ordered, That the Senate do now revert to Routine Proceedings.

The Honourable Senator McRae moved, that it be-
Resolved, That in the opinion of this House the Government should declare

its intention to control the production and distribution of ail radium procured
from Ganadian ores; and to, that end should immediately appoint a Canadian
Radium Commission to investigate and recommend to, the next Session of Parlia-
ment the best methods to adopt to give effect to sucli contrai.

And the debate continuing,

The Senatc adjourned during, pleasure.

After a while, the Right Honourable Francis Alexander Anglin, Deputy
Governor General, having corne and being seated at the foot of the Throne,

The Honourable the Speaker commanded the Gentleman Usher of the Black
Rod to proceed ta the House of Commons and acquaint that Huse that--

" It is the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor General's desire that
they attend him immediatehy in the Senate Chamber."
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The flouse of Commons being corne,

The Clerk read the tities of the Bis ta be assented to, as follows-
An Act to amend the Boards of Trade Act.
An Act to amend The Juvenile Delinquents Act.
An Act to amend the Judges Act.
An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways and to authorize the

guarantee by His Majesty of securities to be issued under the Canadian
National Financing Act, 1931, No. 2.

To these Bis the Royal Assent was pronounced by the Clerk of the Senate
in the following words:

" In is Majesty's name, the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor
General doth assent to these Bis."

The Honourable the Speaker of the Commons then addressed the Riglit
Honourable the Deputy Governor General, as foliowýs:
CcMAY IT PLEASE Youn HoNoun:

",The Commons of Canada have voted supplies required ta enable the
Goverament to defray certain expenses of the Public Service.

" In the name of the Commons, 1 present ta Your Honour the following
Bil:-

"An Act for granting ta is Majesty certain sums of money for the public
service of the financial year ending the 31st March, 1933."

" To which Bill I humbly request Your Honour's assent."

After the Clerk had read the title of this Bill,

To this Bill the Royal Assent -was pronounced by the Clerk of the Senate
in the following words:

" In lus Majesty's name, the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor
General thanks is Loyal Subjects, accepts their benevolence, and assents ta
this Bill."

After which the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor General wvas
pleased ta retire.

The Commons withdrew.

The Senate resumed.

And the debate continuing on the motion of the Honourable Senator
McRae, that it be-

Resolved, That in the opinion of this flouse the Government should declare
its intention ta contrai the production and distribution of ahl radium procured
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from Canadian ores; and to that end should immediately appoint a Canadian
Radium Commission to investigate and recommend, to the next Session of
Parliament the best methods to adopt to give effect to such control.

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate be adjourned until Tuesday, next.

The Order of the Day being called for the consideration in a Committee
of the Whole, of the Bill (18), intituled: "An Act to amend the Destructive
Insect and Pest Act,"

The Order was discharged, and-
The said Bill was referred to the Standing Committee on Agriculture and

Forestry.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate was adjourned during
pleasure, and put into a Committee of the Whole on the Bill (4), intituled:
"An Act to amend the Patent Act."

(In the Cornmittee)

After some time tho Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator Daniel, from the said Committee, rcported that

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the same
to the Senate, without any amendment.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that Huse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (20), intituhed: "An Act to
amend the Petroleum and Naphtha Inspection Act," was read the second tîme,
and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading
to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (25), intituhed: "An Act respect-
ing debts due to the Crown," was read the second time, and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading,
to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day,
The Right Honourable Senator Meighen moved that the Bill (26), intituhed:

"An Act to amend The Opium and Narcotie Drug Act, 1929," be now read the
second time.

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate on the said motion he adjourned until Tues-

day, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Excise Act," was read the second time, and-

Ordered, That the said Bill be committed to a Committee of the Whohe
to-morrow.

iPursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (30), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Yukon Quartz Mining Act," was read the second time, and-

Ordered, That the said Bill be committed to a Committee of the Whole
on Tuesday, next.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (31), intituled: "An Act
respecting certain patents of Autographic Register Systems, Limited," was read
the second time, and-

Referred to the Standing Committee on Miscellaneous Private Bills.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (32),
intituled: "An Act respecting the Ottawa and New York Railway Company,"
it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until Thursday, the
twenty-first day of April, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (35), intituled: "An Act respect-
ing the Canadian Pacific Railway Company," was read the second time, and-

Referred to the Standing Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the second Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Eva Corker Trill, together with the evidence taken
before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the third Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was referred
the petition of George Senkler Morgan, together with the evidence taken before
the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the fourth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Agnes May Jack Evans, together with the evidence
taken before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the fifth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was referred
the petition of Mabel Constance Small Cossar, together with the evidence taken
before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the sixth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was referred
the petition of Olive Pearl Beattie Watkins, together with the evidence taken
before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the seventh Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Assad Kalil Eddy, otherwise known as Joseph Canille,
together with the evidence taken before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proeeeded to the consideration
of the eighth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, with respect to
the petition of Louis Sorbonne.

The said Report was adopted.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (Gi),
intituled: "An Act respecting Ganadian and British Insurance Companies," it
was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The following petition was presented:-
By the Honourable Senator McMeans:-

Of Walter Selkirk Newton, and others (The W. S. Newton Company).

The Honourable the -Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (HI), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Eva
Corker Trill."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce.
presented to the Senate a Bill (11), intituled: "An Act for the relief of George
Senkler Morgan."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (Jl), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Agnes
May Jack Evans."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (K1), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Mabel
Constance Small Cossar."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (L1), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Olive
Pearl Beattie Watkins."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (Ml), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Assad
Kalil Eddy, otherwise known as Joseph Canille."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (20), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Petroleum and Naphtha Inspection Act," was read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and

acquaint that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amend-
ment.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (25), intituled: "An Actrespecting debts due to the Crown," was read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, anctacquaint that Huse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without anv amend-

ment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate was adjourned duringpleasure, and put into a Committee of the Whole on the Bill (27), intituled:.
"An Act to amend the Excise Act."

(In the Committee)
After some time the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator McLennan, from the said Committee, reportedithat they had taken the said Bill into consideration, made some progress there-on, and asked leave to sit again.
Ordered, That the said Bill be placed on the Orders of the Day for further-consideration in a Committee of the Whole at the next sitting of the Senate.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (G1), intituled: "An Act.respecting Canadian and British Insurance Companies," was read the second
time, and-

Referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.
<With leave of the Senate, and-

On motion, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjournedtuntil Tuesday, next, at eight o'elock in the evening.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The following petition was presented:-

By the Honourable Senator White (Pembroke):-
Of Arthur Cyril Boyce, and others (Lake of the Woods International

Bridge Company).

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-
Copy of International Convention for limiting the Manufacture and regu-

lating the Distribution of Narcotic Drugs, with Protocol of Signature, Geneva,
July 13th, 1931.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons, by their Clerk, in
the following words:

FRInAY, 15th April, 1932.

Resolved,-That a Message be sent to the Senate informing Their Honours
that this House has adopted a resolution approving of the International Con-
vention for limiting the Manufacture and regulating the Distribution of Nar-
cotic Drugs, Geneva, July 13th, 1931, signed on behalf of Canada by the pleni-
potentiaries named therein, and requesting that Their Honours will unite with
this House in the approval of the abovementioned convention.

Ordered,-That the Clerk of the House do carry the said Message to the
Senate.

Attest.
ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,

Clerk of the Commons.
With leave of the Senate, and-
On motion, it was-
Ordered, That the Message be taken into consideration presently.

Accordingly, the Senate proceeded to the consideration of the said Message.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Resolved,-That it is expedient that Parliament do approve of the Inter-

national Convention for limiting the Manufacture and regulating the Distri-
bution of Narcotic Drugs, Geneva, July 13th, 1931, signed on behalf of Canada
by the plenipotentiaries named therein, and that this House do approve of
the same.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That a Message be sent to the House of Commons to acquaint

that House that the Senate doth unite with the House of Commons in the
approval of the International Convention for limiting the Manufacture and
regulating the Distribution of Narcotic Drugs, Geneva, July 13th, 1931, signed
on behalf of Canada by the plenipotentiaries named therein.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-
Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 2910, dated the 20th November, 1931,

appointing Commissioners to inquire into the problem of transportation in
Canada.

THE SENATE 22 GEO. V



The Honourable Senator McLennan called the attention of the Govern-
ment to the advisability of placing before the people of Canada information
in regard to the Trade and Commerce of the country at the present time; the
organization which the Government has for promoting this trade with foreign
countries, and the steps being taken in preparation for the Imperial Economic
Conference, and moved-

That these matters be referred to the Standing Committee on Commerce
and Trade Relations of Canada.

Debated, and-
Ordered accordingly.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned
debate on the motion for the second reading of the Bill (26), intituled: "An
Act to amend The Opium and Narcotic Drug Act, 1929."

After further debate,
The said Bill was read the second time, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed the said Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate was adjourned during
pleasure, and put into a Committee of the Whole on the Bill (30), intituled:
"An Act to amend the Yukon Quartz Mining Act."

(In the Committee)
After some time the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator Webster, from the said Committee, reported that

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the same
to the Senate, without any amendment.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the ninth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Georgina Linda McIndoe Howard, together with the
evidence taken before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the tenth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Antonio Poliseno, together with the evidence taken
before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the eleventh Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Dorothy Gertrude Silcock Wilson, together with the
evidence taken before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.
41765-8

A.D. 1932 19TH APRIL



THE SENATE

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration

of the twelfth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was

referred the petition of Beulah Isobel Phillips Eakin, together with the evidence

taken before the said Committee.
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration

of the thirteenth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was

referred the petition of George Seymour Dixon, together with the evidence

taken before the said Committee.
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration

of the fourteenth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to -vhom was

referred the petition of Audrey Meredith Mann Redpath, together with the

evidence taken before the said Committee.
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration

of the fifteenth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was

referred the petition of Ethel Seigler Nissenson, together with the evidence

taken before the said Committee.
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned debate

on the motion of the Honourable Senator McRae, that it be-
Resolved, That in the opinion of this House the Government should

declare its intention to control the production and distribution of all radium

procured from Canadian ores; and to that end should immediately appoint a

Canadian Radium Commission to investigate and recommend to the next Session

of Parliament the best methods to adopt to give effect to such control.
After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate be adjourned until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the consideration in a Committee of

the Whole, of the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to amend the Excise Act," it
was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (1), intituled: "An Act for

the relief of Eva Corker Trill," was, on division, read the second time, and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading
to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Il), intituled: "An Act for

the relief of George Senkler Morgan," was, on division, read the second time,
and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading

to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (J1), intituled: "An Act for

the relief of Agnes May Jack Evans," was, on division, read the second time,
and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading
to-morrow.

22 GEO. V



Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Ki), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Mabel Constance Small Cossar," was, on division, read the second
time, and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading
to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Dav, the Bill (Li), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Olive Pearl Beattie Watkins,' was, on division, read the second
time, and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a thîrd reading
to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Ml', intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Assad Kalil Eddy, otherwise known as Joseph Canille," was, on
division, read the second tirne, and-

Ordered, That it be placed on thc Orders of thc Day for a third reading
to-morrow.

The Honourable Senator Black, for thc Right Honourable Senator Meighen,
laid on the Table:-

Copy of Order in Couincil P.C. 718 of 3lst March, 1932, and one copy of
the Special Report of Mr. Errol M. MeDougall, Illegal Warfare Claims Coin-
missioner, regarding the loss of the Schooner " Otokio ".

Copy of Special Report upon Armenian Claims for Reparations by Errol
M. McDougall, Commissioner; togethcr with the following documents in con-
nection therewith:

Copy of Mr. Carlisle's Petition "A".
Copy of Mr. Carlisle's Petition " B ".
Copy of Secretary of State's Report to Councîl dated 20th January, 1932
Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 57l1. of l2th March, 1932.
Copy of Paris Expert's Report.
Cop)y of the List of Payments, including an explanation of how the assess-

ments were made, and a List of Rejections with the reasons therefor.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The following petition was read and received:-
Of Walter Selkirk Newton and others, of Winnipeg, Manitoba; praying to

be incorporated under the name of " The W. S. Newton Company."

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (Ni), intituled: "An Act for the relief of
Georgina Linda McIndoe Howard."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (01), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Antonio
Poliseno."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (Pi), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Dorothy
Gertrude Silcock Wilson."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (Qi), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Beulah
Isobel Phillips Eakin."

The said Bill was, on difision, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (R1), intituled: "An Act for the relief of George-
Seymour Dixon."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (81), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Audrey
Meredith Mann Redpath."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (T1), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Ethel
Seigler Nissenson."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned debate
on the motion of the Honourable Senator McRae, that it be--

Resolved, That in the opinion of this House the Government should
declare its intention to control the production and distribution of all radium
procured from Canadian ores; and to that end should immediately appoint a
Canadian Radium Commission to investigate and recommend to the next Session
of Parliament the best methods to adopt to give effect to such control.

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate be adjourned until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the further consideration in a Com-
mittee of the Whole, of the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to amend the Excise
Act," it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (H1), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Eva Corker Trill," was, on division, read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire theirconcurrence; also to commuicate to that House the evidence taken in the casebefore the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers produced
in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to this
House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (I1), intituled: "An Act for therelief of George Senkler Morgan," was, on division, read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire theirconcurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the casebefore the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers producedm evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to thisHouse.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Ji), intituled: "An Act for therelief of Agnes May Jack Evans," was, on division, read the third time.The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down t o the flouse of Commons and acquaintthat House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire theirconcurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the casebefore the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers producedin evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to thisHouse.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (K1), intituled: "An Act for therelief of Mabel Constance Small Cossar," was, on division, read the third time.The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaintthat House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire theirconcurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
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before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers produced
in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to this
House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (L1), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Olive Pearl Beattie Watkins," was, on division, read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers produced
in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to this
House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Ml), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Assad Kalil Eddy, otherwise known as Joseph Canille," was, on
division, read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers produced
in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to this
House.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The following petition was read and received:

0f Arthur Cyril Boyce, and others, of Ottawa, Ontario; praying to be incor-
porated under the name of " Lake of the Woods International Bridge Company."

The Honourable Senator Schaffner, frorn the Standing Committce on Stand-
ing Orders, presented their fifth Report:-

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follos:-

THURSDAY, 2lst April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Standing Orders beg leave to make their fifth
Report, as follows:-

The Committee have examined the following petition and find that the
requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material
respects, namely:_

0f Walter Selkirk iNewton and others, of Winnipeg, Manitoba; praying to,
be incorporated under the name of " The W. S. Newton Company."

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
F. L. SCHAFFINER,

Acting Chairman.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their sixteenth R 'eport.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows-

WEDNESDAY, l3th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their sixteenth
Report, as f ollows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Gordon Alexander Cowan, of the city of
Westmount, in the province of Quebec, traffic production manager, for an Act
to dissolve bis marriage with Marion Turnbull Binns Cowan, the Committee
find that the requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with
in ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of -an Act to dissolve the saidi
marriage.

All which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the, Day fori

consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,,
presented their seventeenth Report.

The same was then read by the Ulerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, 18th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their seventeenth1
Report, as follows:

1. With respect to the petition of Robert Russell Symington, of the city of
Muntreal, in the province of Quebec, manufacturer, for an Act to dissolve his
marriage with Freda Iris Smith Symington.
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2. Counsel for the petitioner having made application for leave to with-
draw the petition, the Committee recommend that leave be granted accordingly.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. MeMEANS,

Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placcd on the Orders of the Day for

consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committcc on Divorce,
presented their eighteenth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, l8th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their eighteenth
Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Ida Tarantour Waxman, of the city of
Outremont, in the province of Quebec, sales cierk, for an Act to dissolve ber
marriage with Phiilip Waxman, the Cornmittee flnd that the requirements of
the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects, except
Rule 140 respecting payment of the Parliamentary fees.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

3. The Committee recommend that the Parliamentary fees payable under
under Rule 140 be remitted, iess the sum of $50.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. MeMEANS,

Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placcd on the Orders of the Day for
consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourabie the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their ninteenth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as foliows:

MONDAY, l8th April, 1932.

Thc Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to inake their nineteenth
Report, as follows:

1. With respect to the petition of Frances Helen Dawes Porteous, of the
city of Montreal, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to dissolve ber marriage
with Bartholomew Hazen Porteous, the Committee find that the requirements
of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in all material respects.

2. The Committee rccommcnd. the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. MeMEANS,

Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on te Orders of the Day for
consîderation on Tuesday, next.
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The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twentieth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:

MONDAY, 1&th April, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their twentieth

Report, as follows:-
1. With respect to the petition of Minnie Jones Chandler, of the village of

Stanbridge East, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to dissolve her marriage
with William Chandler, the Committee find that the requirements of the Rules
of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects, except Rule 140
respecting payment of the Parliamentary fees.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

3. The Committee recommend that the Parliamentary fees payable under
Rule 140 be remitted, less the sum of $50.

All which is respectfulIy submitted.
L. MoMEANS,

Chairman.
Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for.

consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twenty-first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, 18th April, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to, make their twenty-first

Report, as follows:-
1. With respect to the petition of Elizabeth Irene Woolnough, of the city of

Toronto, in the province of Ontario, book-keeper, for an Act to dissolve her
marriage with Edward Harvey Woolnough, of the -city of Montreal, in the
province of Quebec, importer of jewellery, the Committee find that the require-
ments of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects,
except Rule 140 respecting payment of the iPariiamentary fees.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

3. The Committee recommend that the Parliamentary fees payable under
Rule 140 be remitted, less the sum of $75.

All which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for

consideration on Tuesday, next.

The ilonourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twenty-second Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-
MONDAT, 1Sth April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their twenty-second
Report, as follows-

1. With respect to the petition of Ellery Sanford Johnston, of the city of
Montreal, in the province of Quebec, secretary, for an Act to dissolve his marriage
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with Olive Faith Goodili Johnston, the Committee find that the requirements of
the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for

consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twenty-third Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as f ollows:-

MONDAY, lSth April, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their twenty-third

Report, as follows:-
1. With respect to the petition of Farla Goidman Rothýer, of the ýcity of

Montreal, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to, dissolve her marriage with
Abraham Rother, the Committee find that the requirements of the Rules of the
Senate have been complied with in ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. MoMEANS,

Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orde-rs of the Day for
consideration on Tuesday, next.

The Honourable ýSenator McMeans presented to the Senate a Bill (Ul),
intituled: "An Act to incorporate The W. S. Newton Company."

The said Bill was read the first time, an'd-
Wîth leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

With leave of the Senate, and-
On motion, it was-
Ordered, That Rules 24(a) and 119 be suspended in so f ar as they relate

to the Bill (Ul), intituled: "An Act to incorporate The W. S. Newton Company."

The Right Honourable Senator Graham, from the Standing Committee on
Railways, TelegraphÉ and Harbours, to whom was referred the Bill (35),
intituled: "An Act respecting the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company," reported
that 'they had gone through the said Bill, and had direoted him to report the
same to the Senate, wîthout any amendment.

1Ordered, That the said Bill be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third
reading on Tuesday, next.
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The Honourable Senator Lewis, from the Joint Committee of both Houses
on the printing of Parliament, presented the following as their first Report:-

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

WEDNEsDAY, 20th April, 1932.
The Joint Committee of both Houses on the Printing of Parliament beg leave

to submit the following as a first Report:-

Your Committee recommend that 500 copies in English, and 150 copies in
French, of Sessional Paper No. 125:-

Copy of report of the Committee of Engineers appointed to consider the
Peace River Outlet from a question of railway economics, dated Vancouver,
B.C., 11th December, 1931,
be printed for the use of Members and Senators.

Your Committee further recommend that the following list of documents
be not printed:-

48. Statement of expenditure from the appropriation for unforeseen
expenses, Vote 261, Appropriation Act, 1931.

49. Statement of Auditor General as to Governor General's Warrant's
issued since last session of Parliament, and expenditures thereunder, and state-
ment of the Auditor General respecting overrulings by the Treasury Board on
decisions of the Auditor General.

50. Statement of Receipts and Expenditures of the National Battlefields
Commission for the year ended 31st March, 1931.

51. Report of the Federal District Commission and Statement of Receipts
and Expenditures of the same for the year ended March 31, 1931, under the
provisions of the Statutes of Canada, 1926-27, chapter 55, sections 15 and 16.

52. Statement of superannuation and retiring allowances to Civil Ser-
vants during the year ended December 31st, 1931, under the Civil Service
Superannuation and Retirement Act, R.S.C. 1906, chapter 17, section 25.

53. (A) Statement of allowances granted to Civil Servants under the
Civil Service Superannuation Act, 1924, during the fiscal year ended March 31,
1931,-R.S.C., chapter 24, section 14.

(B) Statement of allowances granted to dependents of Civil Servants under
the Civil Service Superannuation Act, 1924, during the fiscal year ended March
31, 1931,-R.S.C., chapter 24, section 14.

(C) Statement showing amount of contributions and payments under the
Civil Service Superannuation Act, 1924, during the fiscal year ended March 31,
1931,-R.S.C., chapter 24, section 14.

54. Copy of Report for the calendar year 1931 of positions excluded under
the provisions of section 59 from the operation of the Civil Service Act, chap-
ter 22, R.S.C., 1927.

60. Statement of accounts in connection with the Civil Service Insurance
Fund for the fiscal year ended 31st March, 1931, in pursuance of section 21,
chapter 23, R.S.C., 1927.

62. Statements of Remissions and Refunds in Tolls and Duties recorded
in the Department of Secretary of State of Canada, for the year ending March
31, 1931, submitted to the Parliament of Canada under subsection 5, section 91,
chapter 178 of the Revised Statutes of Canada.

63. A detailed statement of all bonds and securities registered in the
Department of the Secretary of State of Canada, since last return, submitted
to the Parliament of Canada under section 32 of chapter 164 of the Revised
Statutes of Canada, 1927.
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68. Copy of Auditor's Report on the Financial Statement of the Cana-
dian Farm Loan Board for the year ended 31st March, 1931-R.S.C., Chapter
66, S. 14.

70. Return showing the number of permits granted to take intoxicants
into the Northwest Territories up to the 31st December, 1931, in accordance
with the provisions of the Revised Statutes 1927, chapter 142, section 93.

71. Return showing all lands sold by the Canadian Pacific Railway Com-
pany during the year ended 30th September, 1931, together with the names of
the purchasers, in accordance with 49 Victoria, chapter 9, section 8.

72. Statement of Receipts and Expenditures for Sick and Distressed
Mariners for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1931.

74. Orders in Council which were published in the Canada Gazette be-
tween the 21st January, 1931, and the 17th December, 1931, in accordance with
the provisions of section 4, subsection 3, chapter 130, R.S.C., " Migratory Birds
Convention Act."

76. Report of Work donc and Expenditures made during the calendar
year 1931, in connection with Acts (chapter 18 to 22 inclusive, chapters 24 to
30 inclusive and chapters 32 to 36 inclusive of 19-20 George V); respecting
construction of Canadian National Railway Lines.

77. Return of leases of wharves, piers and breakwaters of the year 1931.
78. Summary of harbour dues for year 1930.
79. Summary Statement of wharfage revenue for year 1930-31.
80a. Amendment to the Radio Regulations-Private Radio Receiving

Licence, under the provisions of Section 5, Chapter 195, R.S.C. 1927.
82a. Copies of Orders in Council passed under the provisions of the Unem-

ployment and Farm Relief Act, 1931.
82b. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, of the

2nd March, 1932, for a copy of all orders and regulations of the Governor in
Council made under the Act, Chapter 58 of the Statutes of Canada, 1931, for
the maintenance of peace, order and good government throughout Canada.

8 2c. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General of the
2nd March, 1932, for a copy of all orders and regulations of the Governor in
Council made under the Act, Chapter 58 of the Statutes of Canada, 1931, for
relevng distress and providing employment.

82d. Orders in Council passed under the provisions of the Unemployment
and Farm Relief Continuance Act, 1932, as follows:-

Order in Council, P.C. 750, dated 6th April, 1932, authorizing payments to
the Province of Prince Edward Island.

Order in Council, P.C. 751, dated 6th April, 1932, authorizing payments
to the Province of Nova Scotia.

Order in Council, P.C. 752, dated 6th April, 1932, authorizing payments
to the Province of New Brunswick.

Order in Council, P.C. 753, dated 6th April, 1932, authorizing payments
to the Province of Ontario.

Order in Council, P.C. 754, dated 6th April, 1932, authorizing payments
to the Province of Manitoba.

Order in Couneil, P.C. 755, dated 6th April, 1932, authorizing payments
to the Province of Quebec.

Order in Council, 756, dated 6th April, 1932, authorizing the engage-
ment of certain temporary employees in connection with the administration
of the said Act.

Order in Council, P.C. 757, dated 6th April, 1932, appointing Mr. Frank
Lafortune as a Junior Inspector under the provisions of the said Act.
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82e. Copies of Orders in Council passed under the Unemployment and
Farm Relief Acts 1931 and 1932, as follows:-

Order in Council, P.C. 439, dated 7th April, 1932:,Pictou Island, N.S.-
Wharf extension.

Order in Council, P.C. 445, dated 7th April, 1932: Beaupre-Repairs to
wharf and improvements.

Order in Council, P.C. 449, dated 7th April, 1932: Esquimalt Dry Dock-
Improvements to grounds and roads.

Order in Council, P.C. 469, dated 7th April, 1932: St. Maxime de Scott-
Protection wall.

Order in Council, P.C. 509, dated 7th April, 1932: iNorthport, N.S.-Wharf
under construction.

Order in Council, P.C. 545, dated 7th April, 1932: New Glasgow, N.S.-
wharf extension.

Order in Council, P.C. 736, dated 7th April, 1932: Dune Du Sud, M.I.,
Quebec--Slipway, purchase of Delaney area.

Order in Council, P.C. 742, dated 7th April, 1932: Certain works in iNova
Scotia.

Order in Council, P.C. 766, dated 6th April, 1932: Loan of $500,000 to
Manitoba.

Order in Council, P.C. 767, dated 6th April, 1932: Loan of $2,000,000 to
Saskatchewan for seeding purposes.

Order in Council, P.C. 772, datcd 7th April, 1932: Authorizing payments
to-the Province of British Columbia.

82f. Copies of Orders in Council passed under the Unempicyment and
Farm Relief Acts 1931 and 1932, as f ol

Order in Council, P.C. 759, dated
to the Province of Nova Scotia.

Order in Council, P.C. 760, dated
to the Province of Quebec.

Order in Council. P.C. 761, dated
to the Province of Ontario.

Order in Council, P.C. 762, dated
to the Province of Manitoba.

Order in Council, P.C. 763, dated
to the Province of Saskatchewan.

Order in Council, P.C. 764, dated
to the Province of Alberta.

Order in Council, P.C. 765, datcd
to the Province of British Columbia.

Order in Council, P.C. 771, dated
to the Province of Saskatchewan.

Order in Council, P.C. 773, dated
to the Province of Quebec.

..Order in' Council, P.C. 774, dated
to the Province of Saskatchewan.

7th April, 1932: authorizing payments.

April,

April,

April,

April,

April,

April,

April,

April,

April,

1932:

1932:

1932:

1932:

1932:

1932:

1932:

1932:

1932:

authorizing

authorizing

authorizing

authorizing

authorizing

authorizing

authorizing

authorizing

authorizing

payments

payments

paym1ents>

payrnents

payments

payments

payments

payments

payments.

Order in* Council, P.C. 785, dated 7th April, 1932: loan of $262,828.30 for
one year to the Province of Manitoba.

84. Return to an Order of the House of the llth May, 1931, for a Return
showing :-

1. Number of -permanent and temporary employees in the Insurance De-
partment.

2. Their names and salary.
85, Statement showing appointments under the National Revenue Act,

as amended -in 1928, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 1931.
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86. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd April, 1931, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports, documents and memoranda exchanged between
the Board of Harbour Commissioners of the Port of Quebec, and the Prime
Minister or Acting Prime Minister, Solicitor General, and Minister of Marine,
relating to the dismissal, during the months of September and October, for
reasons of alleged partisanship, by the said Board of Harbour Commissioners,
of employees.

87. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd April, 1931, for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams and communications exchanged between any
person or persons and the Prime Minister or his representative, the Solicitor
General, and the Minister of Railways and Canals, in connection with the
appointment of Lucien Moraud to the position of director of the Canadian
National Railways, also a copy of all letters, telegrams and other communica-
tions protesting against this appointment.

88. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd April, 1931, for a copy
of all correspondence, including letters, telegrams, memoranda, exchange be-
tween the Minister of Marine, the Solicitor General, or any other member of
the Government, relating to an alteration in the specifications providing for
the use in the construction of a new shed, by the Quebec Harbour Commis-
sioners at Quebec, of asbestos corrugated sheathing, together with copies of any
resolutions, minutes, memoranda, of the said Quebec Harbour Commissioners,
ordering, approving or confirming the said alteration or modification of the
original specifications.

89. Return to an Order of the House of the 1lth May, 1931, for a copy
of all documents, correspondence, memoranda, exchanged since August 7, 1930,between any person or persons, firm or corporation, and the Solicitor General,
Prime Minister, Acting Prime Minister, Minister of National Defence, Deputy
Minister of National Defence, or the director of contracts of the Department of
National Defence, relating to offers or tenders or submission of prices or recom-
mendations in favour of any proposed contractor or opposition to any such con-
tractor, in connection with the demolition of the Ross Rifle Factory, Quebec, or
any part thereof, together with all tenders, offers or prices submitted by any
party or parties in connection with the said demolition.

89a. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th May, 1931, for a copy
of all documents, correspondence, memoranda, exchanged since August 7, 1930,between the chairman of the National Battlefields Commission or any member
thereof, and the Solicitor General, the Prime Minister, the Acting Prime Minister,
the Minister of National Defence, the Deputy Minister of National Defence,
relating to the removal of stores from the Ross Rifle Building at Quebec, and
the demolition, either in whole or in part, of the said building, and the transfer
of the site of the said property to he city of Quebec.

89b. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th May, 1931, for a copy
of all documents, correspondence, memoranda, exchanged since August 7, 1930,
between the Mayor of the City of Quebec, or any member of the city council
or any members of parliament and the Solicitor General, the Prime MVinister,
the Acting Prime Minister, the Minister of National Defence, the Deputy
Minister of National Defence, relating to the removal of stores from the Ross
Rifle Building at Quebec, and the demolition, either in whole or in part, of the
said building, and the transfer of the site of the said property to the City of
Quebec.

90. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th May, 1931, for a copy
of all documents, correspondence, memoranda, exchanged since August 7, 1930,between any person or persons, firm or corporation, and the Solicitor General,
Prime Minister, Acting Prime Minister, Minister of National Defence, DeputyMinister of National Defence, or the director of contracts of the Department of
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National Defence, reiating to offers or tenders or submission of prices or recomn-

mendations in f avour of any proposed contractor or opposition to any such con-

tractor, in connection with the removal of military stores and machinery from

the Ross Rifle Factery, Quebec, togethier with ail tenders, offers or prices sub-

mitted by any party or parties in connection with the said removal of military

stores.

91. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd June, 1931, for a Return

sbomring how many men receiving a miiitary pension of 70 per cent, or over,

are empioyed in the Federal Government service in British Columbia.

92. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd June, 1931, for a cop

of ail correspondence, applications, reports, memoranda, recommendations, and

other documents sent or received by the Minister of Labour or any other

Minister or Ministers of the Governiflent, or any officiai of the Department

of Labour, or any other person or persons, refer ring to the dismissal of Mr.

Thomas Hale from the position cf correspondent to the Labour Gazette for

Westviile, Nova Scotia, in April cf this year.

93. Return te Order of the buse of the l6th Juiy, 1931, for a Return

showing.

1. Number cf men employed by the Montreai Harbour Commissioners

previcus to July 28, 1930.

2. Number cf men now employed, and where they live.

3. Number of men dismissed fromn the Montreai Harbour Commission since

July 28, 1930, (a) and their names and addresses, (b) why they were dismissed.

4. Whether any permanent empicyces were appointed by the Department

cf Public Works in the district cf Montreai from. 1926 to 1931, if se, how many

were at the time cf appointment over 35 ycars cf age and net returned soldiers.

5. Whether any emplcyees, not residents of the district cf Montreal, have

been appointed te permanent positions at Montreai under the contrai cf the

Federal Government in the foiiowing departments: (a) National Revenue, (b)

Public Works, (c) Post Office, since Juiy 28, 1930.

6. Whether there are any positions in the Federai Government service in

the different federai departments at Montreai net under the jurîsdicticn cf the

Civil Service Commission.

94. Return to an Order cf the House cf the 8th July, 1931, for a ocopy cf

ail correspondence exchanged between (a) the Right Honourabie Prime Minister,

(b) the Honourable Minister cf Marine, (c) the Ilonourable Postmaster Gen-

erai, (d the Honourable Solicitor Generai, (e) the Honourable Secretary cf

Stt,(f) the private secretary or assistant-secretary cf ecd one of themn and

Mr. C. E. IDubé, regarding the construction cf a new raiiway station at Rivière

du Loup, from June lst te June 30, 1931.

95. Return te -an Address te, is Excellency the Governor General of the

2Oth Juiy, 1931, for a cepy of ail letters, telegrams and representations made by

any person, party or organizaticu in Canada te any minister of the Crown in

c.onnection with the dut-y on potatoes coming into Canada and their valuation

for duty purposes; aise a cepy cf ail orders in council passed in conneetion with

same, since August, 1930, up te the present date.

97. Decision of A. K. Maclean, Judge cf the Exchequer Court of Canada,

in the dlaimi of the National Steel Car Corporation Ltd., under the Reparation

Payment Act.
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98b. Return to an Order of the buse of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
Return sbowing:-

1. Total amount of reparations reeeived from Germany by Canada under
Part 8 of the Treaty of Peace signed at Versailles, June 28, 1919 (Articles 231
and 232).

2. Interest accumulated on said amount up to the present time.

3. Commissioners appointed by the Canadian Government to effeet dis-
position of said moneys.

4. Whether said moneys were paid into, consolidated revenue and, if so,
when.

5. Moneys paid out to claimants under the following headings,-
(1) Damage to injured persons and bo surviving dependents *by persona]

injury to or death of ýcivilians caused by acts of war, including bombardments
or other -attacks on land, on sca, or fromn the air, and ail the direct consequenccs
thereof, and of ah operations of war by the two grou-ps of belligerents wherever
arising.

(2) Damage caused by Germany or ber allies to civilian victims of acts
of cruelty, violence or maltreatment (including injuries to life or bea]th as a
consequence of imprisonment, deportation, înternment or evacuation, or exposurec
at ýsca or of being forced to labour), wberever arising, and to -the surviving
dependents of such victims.

(3) Damage causcd by Germany or ber allies in their own territory or in
occupied or invaded territory to civîlian victims of aIl acts injurieus to health
or capacity to work, or to bonour,,as well as to the surviving dependents of such
victims.

(4) Damage caused by any kind of maltrcatment of prisoners of war.
(5) As damage caused to the peopies of the Allied and Associated Powers,

ail pensions and compensation in the nature of pensions to naval and military
victims of war (including members of the air force), whether mutilated, wounded,
sick or invalided, and to the dependents of such victims, the amount due te the
Allied and Associated Governments being calculated for each of them as being
the capitalizcd cost of sucli pensions and compensation at the date of the com-
ing into force of the present Treaty on the basis of the scales in force in France
at such date.

(6) The cost of assistance by the GovernmentLs of tbe Allied and Associat-ed
Powers to prisoners of war and to their families and dependen-ts.

(7) Allowanccs by the Governments of the Allied and Associatcd Powers
to the families and dependents of mobilized persons or persons serving with the
forces, the amount duc te thcmn for each calendar year in which hostilities
occurred bcing calculated for each Government on the basis of the average scale
for st]ch paymcnts in force in France during that year.

(8) Damage caused to civilians by being forced by Germany or ber allies
te labour wîthout just remuncration.

(9) Damage in respect of ahl property wberever situated belonging to any
of the Allied or Associatcd States or their nationals, with the exception of naval
and military works or materials, which bas been carried off, seized, injured or
destroyed by the acts of Germany or ber allies on land, on sea or from, tbe air,
or damage directly in consequence of hostilities or of any operations of war.
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(10) Damage in the form of levies, fines and other similar exactions imposed
by Germany or her allies upon the civilian population.

6. How much has been paid out by the various commissioners under the
various headings listed in (5).

7. How much money of the amount received, including interest, is still in
consolidated revenue.

99. Report of work performed and expenditures made as of December 31,
1931, showing estimated expenditures in 1932 under authority Act 1929, Chapter
12, Statutes of Canada 1929, construction by Canadian National Railway Com-
pany of certain terminal facilities with grade separation and other works at,
and in the vicinity of the City of Montreal.

100. Return to an Order of the House of 22nd April, 1931, for a copy of
all correspondence, telegrams and other documents, in the possession of the
Government, relative to the case of Nordin vs. Rex, being an action for repara-
tion arising out of the loss of ss. Alette.

101. List of Leases, Licences, Permits or other authorities cancelled since
the 12th March, 1931, under the provisions of R.S.C. 1927, chapter 113, section.96.

102. Statement respecting seed grain and relief indebtedness under the
provisions of section 2, chapter 51, 17 George V, intituled: "An Act respecting
certain debts due the Crown, for the year 1931."

103. Statement under section 7, of the Reclamation Act, R.S.C. 1927,
chapter 175, in respect to the construction of drainage works.

Statement in respect to Reclamation Act Regulations, under the provisions
of R.S.C. 1927, chapter 175, section 5.

107. Supplementary Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor
General of 1lth May, 1931, for a copy of all petitions, resolutions, letters, tele-
grams and other communications and documents, received by the Prime Minister,
Secretary of State and any other member of the Government, from the Sas-
katchewan Government or any member thereof, since January 1, 1931.

109. Return to an Address to His Excellency the Governor General, of
the lst June, 1931, for a copy of all correspondence, letters, telegrams,
memoranda and other documents passing between the Dominion Government
and the province of Alberta since January, 1929, in which reference is made to
the Forestry Nurseries Stations at Indian Head and Sutherland.

110. Return to an Order of the House of the llth February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Whether any directors of the Canadian National Railway resigned or
signified their intention of resigning.

2. How many applications have been made to the Board of Railway Com-
missioners by the Canadian National Railway for interchange connection with
the Canadian Pacific Railway or any other railway during the years 1922
to 1932 inclusive.

3. How many applications made to the Board of Railway Commissioners
by the Canadian National Railway for interchange connection with the Cana-
dian Pacifie Railway or any other railway company have been granted during
the years 1922 to 1932 inclusive.

4. What railway company carries the mail from Vancouver, British Colum-
bia, to eastern points in Canada and to points destined for United States, Great
Britain and European mails.
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5. At what rate the mail from Vancouver to these points is carried.
6. Amount of money paid for the transportation of all-suchmail service

for the year-1931.

110a. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th February, 1932, for
a Return showing-

1. Number of applications made to the Board of Railway Commissioners
by the Canadian Pacific Railvay Company, for interchange connection with
the Canadian -National, or any other railway company, during the years 1922
to 1932, inclusive.

. .2. Number of applications made to the Board of Railway Comissioners
by the Canadian National Railway Company, for interchange connection with
the Canadian Pacific or any other railway company, during the years 1922 to
1932, inclusive.

111. Return to an Order of the House of the 27th July, 1931, for a copy
of all telegrams, letters, and representations made by any person or persons,
including full report of the inquiry held in connection with the dismissal of
Mr. Jean-Baptiste Grenier, postmaster of St. Emile, the appointment of Mr.
Azarias Rivest, his successor, and the subsequent appointment of Mr. Emile
Provost.

112. Return to an Order of the House of the 20th July, 1931,' for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams, reports,,enquiries and other documents, regard-
ing the dismissal of Lorenzo Morin, postmaster of Val des Bois county, and
the appointment of his successor.

114. Statement showing the number of Enfranchisements under section
114 of the Indian Act during the fiscal year ended 31st March, 1931, in accord-
ance with the provisions of chapter 98, section 113, of the Revised Statutes,
1927.

115. Copy of the List of Land Sales cancelled by the Department of Indian
Affairs during the year ended January 31, 1932, in accordance with the pro-
visions of chapter 98, section 64, of the Revised Statutes, 1927.

117. Copy of the report of the engineers of the Canadian National Rail-
ways respecting the cost of the proposed Mafeking cut-off between mile 45-55,
Erwood Subdivision, and mile 65-65, Turnberry Subdivision.

118. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd April, 1931, for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams, communications and recommendations exchanged
between any person or persons and the Prime Minister or Acting Prime Minister,
Solicitor General, or the Minister of Marine, relating to the appointment of
Lt.-Col. J. S. O'Meara, Pierre Bertrand and Dr. J. Leblond, to the respective
positions of chairman and members of the Board of Harbour Commissioners
of the Port of Quebec, and also all or any communications, letters, telegrams,
etc., protesting against any of such appointments, or supporting persons other
than those above named for such positions.

119. Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 20, dated 16th day of January, 1932,
transferring all branches of the Public Service which are now concerned with
the administration of the:Patent Act, Copyright Act, Trade Mark and Design
Act, Timber Marking Act to the Department of the Secretary of State.

122. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th February, 1932, for a
copy of the report of J. B. Carter, representing the Federal Department of
Labour, on the investigation: made by him into complaints relating to the
expenditure of unemployment relief work on roads and bridges in the county
of Gloucester, as well as a copy of any evidence on which such report was made.
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123. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. For what specific purpose the National Service Loan was floated.
2. How much of the National Service Loan bas been earmarked or set

aside for unemployment and farm relief and direct relief.
3. The total amount allocated or set aside by the Dominion for unemploy-

ment and farm relief throughout Canada.
4. The amount allocated, set aside or guaranteed to the Province of British

Columbia for unemployed relief work.
5. The amount allocated, set aside or guaranteed to the Province of British

Columbia for direct relief.
6. The total amounts of provincial projects submitted by the Province of

British Columbia for the relief of the unemployed and for direct relief.
7. The total amount sanctioned or agreed upon by the D.ominion for the

relief of the unemployed, 50 per cent of which was payable by the Dominion
and 50 per cent by the Province of British Columbia.

7a. The total amount of money for municipal projects or undertakings
submitted by the Province of British Columbia for the relief of the unemployed.

8. The total amount sanctioned or agreed upon by the Dominion for
municipal projects or undertakings for the relief of the unemployed, as sub-
mitted by the Province of British Columbia, 50 per cent of which was payable
by the Dominion, 25 per cent by the Province of British Columbia and 25 per
cent by the various municipalities.

9. When the projects were submitted te Ottawa for approval.
10. When these projects were finally sanctioned and agreed to by the

Dominion.
11. What person on behalf of the Province of British Columbia submitted

the schedule or program of works, both provincial and municipal, in connection
with the relief of the unemployed.

12. The total amount of money that has been given or sent to the Province
of British Columbia in connection with unemployed relief work and for direct
relief.

13. When these amounts were sent by the Dominion Government to the
Province of British Columbia.

14. Whether the Dominion Government earmarked any of the moneys sent
to the Province of British Columbia for the various municipalities.

15. The total amount of money given or allocated to the Province of British
Columbia by way of loan.

16. Whether any money bas been granted or allocated by the Dominion
Government to the Province of British Columbia by way of a loan to the various
municipalities to help finance them in carrying out works for the relief of the
unemployed.

17. If so, the total amount so granted or allocated by the Dominion Govern-
ment for this specific purpose.

18. The total amount of the vouchers for moneys spent by the various
municipalities for unemployed relief work that bas been submitted by the
Province of British Columbia up to the present time, giving the names of the
municipalities whose vouchers have been submitted with the various amounts.
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19. The total amount proposed to be spent for the relief of the unemployed
by the city of New Westminster, as at first submitted by the Province of British
Columbia, under the Unemployed and iFarm Relief Act of 1931.

20. The total amount finally sanctioned by the Dominion Government to
be spent for the relief of the unemployed by the city of New Westminster.

123. Copies of Orders in Council passed between the 3Oth October, 1931,
and the lOth February, 1932, authorizing the payment of moneys to the
Governiment of the Province of British Columbia under the provisions of " The
Unemployment and Farm Relief Act, 1931.>

126. Copy of correspondence betw een the Government of Canada and the
Governiment of Newfoundland respccting the acquisition of the Labrador Penin-
sula by the Dominion of Canada.

127. Return to an Order of the flouse of the llth February, 1932, for a
return showing:-

1. Revenue of the Post Office at Bella Coola, British Columbia, for the years
1929-30-31.

2. Rental paid per month for this office.
3. RentaI paid per month for the telcgraph booth at Bella Coola.
4. To whom the rent is paid in each instance.
129. Return to, an Order of the House of the lSth February, 1932, for a

Return showing:-
1. Number of persons eniployed in the Income Tax Branch at Montreal.
2. Number of persons appointed since August 1, 1931.
3. How many marrîed men.
4. How many married women.
5. How many unmarried persons.
6. How many of each nationality.
130. Return to an Order of the bouse of the l5th February, 1932, for a

Return showing:-
1. Number of private secretaries and assistant private secretaries te each

mninister, including the Solicitor General.
2. Name and salary cf each one and for what minister each one works.
131. Return to an Order of the House of the l5th February, 1932, for a

copy of all telegrans, letters, correspondence, petitions (not including signatures),
aiemoranda and other documents paý:sing between the Secretary of the Saskat-
chewan Association of Rural Municipalities and the Dominion Government or
any Department or Cabinet Minister thereof since A ugust 1, 1931.

132. Return to, an Order of the buse of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
returil showing tlie names, positions, and salaries of the staff of Camp Hill
Hospital, Halifax, as of .June 30, 1930, and as of January 31, 1932.

133. Return to an Order of the lieuse of the llth February, 1932, for a
Return showing the number of persons in the eniploy of the Dominion Govern-
ment in receipt of the following salaries, or remunerations: $4,000 or more, up to
$4,900; $5,000 or more, up to $5,900; $6,000 or more, up to $6,900; $7,000 or
more, up to $7,900; $8,000 or more up te $8,900; $9,000 or more, up te $9,900;$10,000 or more, up to $10,900; $11,000 or more, up to 811,900; $12,000 or over.

134. Return to an Order of the bouse of the l7th February, 1932, for a
copy of ahl correspondence, reports and other documents relating teo the awarding
of a contraet for mail Route R. R. No. 1, C]ifton, Gloucester County, New
Brunswick.
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135. Return to an Order of the Hoüse of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Whether the area known as Garbaldi Park, in British Columbia, was
offered to the Dominion Governient:by the Government of the Province of
British Columbia, if so, on what terms.

2. Whether any action was-taken in regard to this area.
3. If so, what action has been taken.
4. Whether there was any iepresentations made by private or business

concerns individually or through the British Columbia Provincial Government
to the Dominion Government in regard'to additional areas that might be re-
quired in the shape of timber lands or logged off lands for Garbaldi Park.

5. Whether any examination of logged off lands or timber lands was made
by the Dominion Government in the vicinity of Garbaldi Park, British Colum-
bia, if so, what action, if any, has been taken and if report was made by
Government official or examiner, would same be available.

135a. Report of the Secretary of State for External Affairs for the year
ended December 31, 1931.

136. Return to an Order of the House of the 18th February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. To what provinces the Dominion Government has made loans during
the fiscal year ending March 31, next.

2. What is (a) the aggregate amount of such loan or loans to each province,
(b) -the respective dates upon which they were made, (c) the dates upon which
they become due, (d) the interest charged thereon, (c) the security taken there-
for, (f) the purpose or purposes for which they were made, and (g) the source
from which the Dominion Minister of Finance secured the necessary money to
make such loans to the provinces.

136a. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th February, 1932, (a)
For a statement detailing the different amounts of money given or loaned by
the Dominion Government to each of the several provinces during the present
fiscal year 1931-32, specifying dates in each case; (b) the specific purpose of
which each amount of money so given or loaned was intended; (c) any record
or information possessed by the Government in regard to the disposition of
each of the said sums, explaining in detail the purpose or purposes for which
each amount was expended.

137. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Number of tenders called for, for mail contracts in the counties of
Charlevoix-Saguenay since January 1, 1931, to February 1, 1932.

2. Names of said mail routes.
3. Names and addresses of tenderers in each case and their sureties.
4. Who the successful tenderer was in each case.
5. Whether the contract was always awarded to the lowest tenderer.
6. Names and addresses of people who supported the tenderers in each

case, if any.

138. Return to an Order of the House of the 10th February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, documents, letters, telegrams, papers, reports, exhibits,
route maps, plan showing industrial spurs and memoranda in connection with
File No. 30356.13, Board of Railway Commissioners for Canada, in which the
Canadian Pacifie Railway is shown to be the applicant. Also judgment of
Board growing out of application to Board of Railway Commissioners, dated
June 23, 1931, and hearing thereof at North Battleford, October 8, 1931.

22 GEO. VTHE SENATE



139. Return to an Order of the House of the 10th February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, reports on qualification of applicants, and all other
documents relating to the post office vacancy at Lakeville, Carleton County,
New Brunswick, received or forwarded by the Post Office Department since
June 1, 1931.

140. Return to an Order of the House of the 10th February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, reports or other documents relating to the dismissal
of the postmaster at Ste. Cecile, Gloucester County, New Brunswick, and the
appointment of Lazare Lanteigne, as postmaster.

141. Return showing:-
1. Number of pounds of (a) butter, (b) cheese imported into Canada for

each month of 1931.
2. Origin of such imports and how many pounds of each import into

Canada.
3. Value of such imports.
4. The different rates of duties imposed.
141a. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of the 29th

February, 1932, for a Return showing:-
1. Number of pounds of (a) butter; (b) cheese imported into Canada for

each month of 1931.
2. Origin of such imports and how many pounds of each import into

Canada.
3. Value of such imports.
4. The different rates of duties imposed.
142. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a

copy of all correspondence exchanged between Mr. Isidore Jean, of Sully, Quebec,
and the Department of Pensions and National Health in connection with the
position of postmaster at Sully, Quebec.

142a. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for
a copy of all correspondence, telegrams, inquiry and reports in connection with
the dismissal of the postmaster at Sully, Quebec, and the appointment of the
present postmaster.

142b. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence exchanged between Mr. Isidore Jean, of Sully, Quebec,
and all other ministers, except those of the Post Office and Pensions and National
Health, relating to the position of postmaster at Sully, Quebec.

143. Return to an Order of the House of the 15th February, 1932, for a
copy of the report made by Alfred Powell, commissioner, appointed to investi-
gate charges of political partisanship, and on which the Government acted to
dismiss Albert Bergeron preventive officer of Arthabaska, Quebec.

145. Return to an Order of the House of the 10th February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, reports or oher documents relating to the dismissal
of John Louis Arseneau, postmaster at Six Roads, Gloucester County, New
Brunswick, and the appointment of his successor.

146. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th February, 1932, for a
copy of all documents in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Maxime L'Abbé,
postmaster at St. Nérée Station, County of Bellechasse, and the appointment
of his successor.

147. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th February, 1932, for
a copy of all documents in connection with the dismissal of M. Noel Ciilet.
postmaster at Beaumont, County of Bellechasse, and the appointment of his
successor.
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14&. Return to an Address to is Excellency the Governor Generai of the
22nd February, 1932, for a copy of ail letters, telegrams, communications and
other documents exchanged between, the Provincial Government of British
Columbia or any officiai. of that Government, and the Dominion Government
or any officiai of the Dominion -Government, regarding the matter of freight
rates since July 31, 1930.

150. Return to an Order of the House of the llth February, 1932, for a
eopy of ail documents in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Louis Guay, as
postmaster at Ste. Sabine, County of Bellechasse, and the appoîntment of his
successor.

151. Return to an Order of the House of the 1 ilth February, 1932, for
a copy of ail documents in connection with the dismissai of Mr. J. N. Bélanger,
as postmaster at St. Damien, County of Beliechasse, and the appointment of
his successor.

152. Return to an Order cf the House of the 1 lth February, 1932, for
a copy of ail documents in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Louis N.
Latulippe, postmaster at St. Valier, County of Bellechasse, and the appoint-
ment of his successor.

153. Return to an Order of the bouse of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
copy of ail correspondence, teiegrams, letters, recommendations and other docu-
ments, inciuding evidence taken at the inquiry in connection with the appoint-
ment of a new postmaster at St. Jacques, to replace Mr. Joscph Levesque, who
was dismissed.

154. Return to an Order of the bouse of the 2nd March, 1932, for a
Return showing:

1. Total amount of tobacco produced in Canada in the year, (a) 1930;
(b) 1931.

2. Total amount of tobacco, (a) stemmed; (b) unstemmed, imported into
Canada in (1) 1930, (2) 1931. and the origin of sudh importations.

3. Total amount of revenue collected from imported tobacco.
4. Whether any refund is aiiowed on tobacco importcd into Canada and

manufactured there.
5. If sa, the total refund ailowed.
6. Total amount coilected by way of excise tax or duty on tobacco manu-

factured in Canada in 1930 and 1931.'
7. Average prices received by the tobacco growers in, (a) Canada;

(b) United States, in 1930 and 1931.
8. Whether any of the imported raw leaf tobacco was afterwards exported,

if sa, how much.
154a. Return to an Order of the bouse of the 9th March, 1932, for a

Return showing:-
1. How muel excise tax per pound is coliected an doinestic raw leaf tobacco

when used in licensed factories in Canada, and how and whcn the ta'z is
collected.

2. Amount coilected for the fiscal vears endingy March 31, 1930 and 1931.
3. Total amount of tobacco consumýed in Canada each year from 1908 ta

1931, inclusive.
4. Tobacco grown in Canada during the vears 1908 to 1931, inclusive.
5. Tobacco imported into Canada in the above years, and from what

source were said imports.
6. Tobacco exported fram Canada during the above years, and ta what

countries.
7. What rebate of import duty is allowed on imported raw leaf when

manufactured for export purposes.
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8. What bonding privileges are extended to licensed manufacturers when
raw leaf tobacco is imported by them.

9. How mucb imported raw leaf tobacco was used for cxport purposes dur-
ing the years 1908 te 1931, inclusive.

10. Average prices received by the tobacco growers of ýCanada: (a) for
their 1929 crop; (b) 1930 crop, and (c) 1931 crop.

11. How the departmental officials arrive at the average price paid for
tobacco in the United States.

12. Whetbcr the Canadian Government classifies the different types of
tobacco raised in Canada, imported into Canada and exported from Canada.

13. If not, for what reason.

155. Return to an Order of the House of the 3rd March, 1932, for a Return
sflowing: -

1. iNumber of emplovees of tbe Departinent o f Marine and Fîýsheries dis-
inissed or who resigncd in the cotinty of Gaspé, since August, 1930 up to the
present date.

2. In each case. the date of bis dismisýsal or resignation, the name and
address of the empicyce, the reason for bis dismissal and the naine of bis
successor.

156. Retura to an Order of the bouse cf the 29th February, 1932, for a
Return sbowing:

1. Number cf viaduets or terminais built or under construction in Canada,
sînce January 1. 1931, w îtli resp)ect to (a> level crossings cf the Canadian
Pacifie Railway Company; (b) level crossings cf the Canadian National Rail-
ways.

2. In wbat localities said work bias been done or is being done, and at
wbiat cost in ench case.

3. In regard te the co'zt cf tbe abovementioned works, wvbat bias been or wbat
tbe contribution is in each case (a) cf tbe Dominion Government; .(b) the
Provincial Government; (c) the Canadian National Railway and tbe Canadian
Pacifie Railway; (d) tbe municipalities intercsted.

158. Return te an Order cf tbe bouse cf the 3rd 'Marcb, 1932, for a Return
showing:-

1. Number cf applications for pension. and for tbe revision cf pension
received by the Board cf Pension Commissioners sînce tbe coming into force
of tbe latest amendments te tbe Pension Act, on October 1, 1931.

2. Number cf applications granted by tbe Board cf Pension Commissioners,
and bow many bave been turned over te the pension tribunal.

3. Number cf applications beard before tbe pension tribunal.
4. Hiow many cf tbose heard by tbe pensions tribunal bave been: (aý

granted; (b) refused; (c) are awaiting dc<riFion under deferred judgmcnt.
5. How many are still w aiting te be bieard before tbe pensions tribunal.
6. How many cf the decisions given by the pensions tribunal bave heen

appealed te the Federal Appeal Court by: (a) the applicants; (b) the Board
cf Pension Commissioners.

7. How many cf tbese appeals bave been beard by the Federal Appeal
Court, and bow many are stili- waiting te be beard by tbat body.

8. In bow many cases beard by the Federal Appeal Court the decisions
cf the pensions tribunal bave been reversed: (a) as te appeals lodged by the
applicants; (b> by the Board cf Pension Commissioners.

9'. Average number cf applicants now being received each week by: (a)
the Board cf Pension Commiesioners; (b) the pensions tribunal; (c) the Pen-
sions Appeal Court.
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10. Average number of final decisions given each week by: (a) the Board
of Pension Commissioners; (b) the pensions tribunal; (c) the Federal Appeal
Court.

159. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th February, 1932, for a
copy of all documents in connection with the dismissal of Mr. J. Bte. Boulanger,
postmaster at La Durantaye, County of Bellechasse, and the appointment of his
successor.

160. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a
copy of all reports, correspondence and other documents in connection with the
dismissal of J. A. Larrivée, as postmaster at White Deer, county of Hull, and the
appointment of his successor.

161. Return to an Order of the House for a Return showing:-
The exports from Canada, and value thereof, of agricultural products, each

year from 1920 to 1930, inclusive, of the following (a) Livestock and products
thereof; (b) milk, cream and dairy products; (c) wheat; (d) total agricultural
products except wheat.

162. Return to an Order of the House of the 10th February, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports, and other documents, relating to the appointment
of J. A. Boulay as temporary postmaster at Oliver Siding, Restigouche County,
New Brunswick, as well as all correspondence and reports relating to the dis-
missal of Germain Dionne, as postmaster at Oliver Siding. Also all correspond-
ence and reports relating to the appointment of a permanent postmaster at Oliver
Siding.

163. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th February, 1932, for
a copy of all documents in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Adélard Dallaire
as postmaster at St. Raphael, County of Bellechasse, and the appointment of
his successor.

164. Return to an Order of the House of the 15th February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Number of married women employed in the various Government depart-
ments in Ottawa.

2. How many said women live with their husbands.
3. How many said husbands are employed by the Government.
4. How many of said women are the sole support of their family.

165. Return to an Order of the House of the 25th February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Amounts paid to the Gazette Printing Company of Montreal during the
years 1925, 1926, 1927, 1928, 1929. 1930 and 1931.

2. For what these payments have been made.
3. The name or names of the owner or owners of the Gazette Printing

Company.
166. Return to an Order of the House of the 3rd March, 1932, for a Return

showing:-
1. Number of veterinary surgeons temporarily employed by the Department

of Agriculture in 1930 and 1931, respectively.
2. Their names and in what localities they were employed.

167. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
copy of pay-lists and accounts for materials supplied for repairing the wharf at
Bonaventure, Quebec; and also a copy of pay-lists and accounts for materials
for repairs of protection works in that municipality.
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168. A Return to an Order of the Senate, dated 12th February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. (a) Names of the nations who are members of the League of Nations,
and

(b) The contributions assessed against each nation, members of the League
for maintenance of the activities of the League for last year or failing that any
recent year for which the Government has the information.

(c) The receipts and expenditures of the League (totals only) for last yeai
or any recent year for which the Government has the information.

2. The contributions made by Canada to the League of Nations since its
inception year by year on account of (a) Assessments or payments for the
support of the League; (b) Cost of delegations; (c) Incidental or other expendi-
ture occasioned by Canada's membership in the League.

3. Showing what (if any) nations, members of the League are in arrears
with their assessments or contributions for the maintenance of the League year
by year extended to show the total arrears in the case of each nation in arrears.

171. Return to an Order of the House of the 25th February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. What contracts were let to the Canadian Import Company of Montreal,
for the coal requirements of any and all departments of the Government during
the years 1925, 1926, 1927. 1928, 1929, 1930 and 1931.

2. Whether the Canadian Import Company or the St. Lawrence Stevedor-
ing Company have a lease of the Bickerdike pier from the Montreal Harbour
Commission.

(a) If so, the terms of said lease.
3. Whether the Canadian Import Company and the St. Lawrence Stevedor.

ing Company have a lease from the Quebec Harbour Company.
(a) If so, the terms of said lease.
4. Who are the owners of the Canadian Import Company.
5. Who are the owners of the St. Lawrence Stevedoring Company.

172. Return to an Order of the House of the 15th February, 1932, for a
copy of the report made by Alfred Powell, commissioner, appointed to investigate
charges of political partisanship, and on which the Government acted to dismiss
Albert Beauchesne, postmaster at Arthabaska, Quebec.

173. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, telegrams, letters, sworn statements and other docu-
ments, including all evidence taken, and the report of the commissioner whc, held
the înquiry in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Alfred Vigneault, as mail
conductor at St. Raphael d'Aston, count of Nicolet.

174. Return to an Order of the House of the 15th February, 1932. for
a copy of all letters, telegrams, correspondence and other documents passing
between the Postmaster General, and/or any of his officials, and any person or
persons in the province of Nova Scotia, with reference to an inquiry into the
conduct of the postmaster at Lochaber, in the County of Antigonish, Nova
Scotia, as well as a copy of the report and evidence, if any, submitted by the
Commissioner, Mr. N. D. Murray, of Halifax, Nova Scotia, appointed by the
Federal Government to inquire into the conduct of federal officials.

175. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a
copy of all documents, reports, correspondence in connection with the dismissai
of Mr. Francois Harbour, superintendent of Indians at Oka, in the County of
Two-Mountains. Also a copy of all reports, correspondence and other docu-
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ments in connection with an inquiry held in 1931 with reference to charges
brought against said Francois Harbour, and the temporary appointment in his
place of Mr. Francois Brisebois, including proof and evidence given by all the
witnesses heard in said inquiry before the Commissioner, Mr. J. A. Beauleu,
Montreal, and the decision arrived at by the said Commissioner.

176. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for
a copy of all reports, correspondence and other documents in connection with
the dismissal of Mr. Derilas Landry, lighthouse keeper at Natashquan, on the
north shore, in the County of Charlevoix-Saguenay; also a copy of all :eports,
correspondence and other documents in connection with an inquiry held in 1931
by L. P. Cote, with reference to charges brought against said Derilas Landry,
including the proof and evidence given by all the witnesses heard at said inquiry,
and the decision arrived at by the said Commisisoner.

177. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a return
showing: Total aggregate amount of money voted for agriculture in each fiscal

year during the years ending 31st March, 1923, to the 31st of March, 1933,
inclusive (exclusive of any sums voted under the provisions of the Agricultural
Instruction Act).

178. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all orders and decisions of the Board of Customs issued or given during the
past eight months.

179. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all papers, documents and correspondence respecting the recent discontinuance
of the telegraphie service at Arichat, and the dispensing with the services of the

operator at that place, also respecting the substitution of a telephone service
and the employment of another person to operate the same.

180. Return to an Order of the House of the 17th February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. What Federal Public Works in Shelburne-Yarmouth were constructed
or undertaken by the G-overnment to be paid for out of the money voted last
Session under the moneys authorized to be expended under the Unemployment
Relief Act of the last Session.

2. Amounts authorized in respect of each work.
3. Names of the foremen employed in respect of each work.
4. On whose recommendation the selection was made of men to be given

employment in connection with each of these respective works.
5. Approximate expenditure actually incurred in respect of each of such

works.
6. Whether any such works are as yet unfinished, if so, which of such works.
7. On whose recommendation the Government decided on the authoriza-

tion of each of the works referred to.
181. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for

a copy of all correspondence, papers and documents in the possession of the
Government relating to the fatal shooting of Mrs. Sophie Light of Des Moines,
Iowa, U.S.A., by Constable Pirt, R.C.M.P., of Yorkton, Saskatchewan, at a
picnic held a few miles from Roblin, Manitoba, on Labour Day, Monday,
September 1, 1930; and also of correspondence between the Attorney General
of the Province of Saskatchewan and the Minister of Justice of Canada
relative to the payment of $500 to the husband of the said Sophie Light.

182. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence including telegrams, and other documents in connection
with the appointment of a caretaker for the post office building at St-Pascal,
Kamouraska county, Quebec.
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183. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a Return
showing:-

1. XVhether the Government is aware that Mr. Jean Boudreault, liglithouse
keeper, at Havre St. Pierre, on the north shore of the St. Lawrence river, bas
been disïnissed.

2. If so, whether complaints were lodged against him, and by whom.
3. The nature of these complaints.
4. Whether an inquiry was held previous to the dismissal of Mr. Boudreault.
5. If so, the commissioner who held the inquiry.
6. The name of the persýon who replaced Mr. Boudreault.
7. Who recommended said person.
8. Whether said person passed the civil service examinations.
183a. Return to an Order of the buse of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy

of ail correspondence, reports and other documents in connection with the
dismissal of Mr. Jean Boudreauît, lighthýouse keeper, at Havre St. Pierre, on
the north shore of the St. Lawrence river; aiso for a copy of ail correspondence,
reports and other documents relating to an inquiry held in 1931 in connection
with charges made against the said Jean Boudreauît, includîng the proof and
the evidence of ail the witnesses heard in said inquiry, and the decision arrived
at by the commîssioner who hield the lnquiry.

184. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a
copy of ail reports, correspondence and other documents in connection with the
dismissal of Mr. John Maloney, superintendent of Indians at Mingan, on the
north shore, in the County of Charlevoix-Saguenay; also a copy of ail reports,
correspondence and other documents in connection with an inquiry held in 1931,
by L. P. Cote, with reference to charges brought against said John Maloney,
including the proof and evidence given by ail the witnesses heard at said inquiry,
and the decision arrived at by the said Commissioner.

185. Return to an Order of the bouse of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
Return showing:

1. Amount of money expended under the supervision of the Public Works
Department and its officiais, ont of the money voted by Parliament for unem-
pioymcnt purposes, and the Act passed in 1931, dealing with Unemployment
Relief.

2. Whether tenders were 'called for the expenditure of said moneys when
estimates for the work exceeded $5,000.

3. If tenders were not called in ail cases, the names of the works and the
amounts expended.

186. Return to an Order of the bouse of the 22nd February, 1932, for
a Return showing:-

1. Money expended on the repairs to the breakwater at Lower Sandy
Point, Nova Scotia, from April 1, 1931, to December 31, 1931.

2. What if any of said amount was from Unemployment Relief Funds.
3. Foreman of said work.
4. How many hours he was employed and at what rate per bour.
5. How much was paid said foreman for hire of bis automobile, in connec-

tion with said work.
6. How much was paid to each of the mren employed on such work, and at

what rate per hour.
7. Who supplied the materials, viz., timber, logs, and iron for the said work,

and what prices delivered on the work.
8. Whether tenders were asked for deiivery of said materiais, and if Bo

who were the unsuccessfui tenderers and what prices they offered.
41765--10
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9. Whether the department has any information to the effect that said
foreman was a merchant carrying on his business during the period in which
he held the position of foreman.

187. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
copy of pay-lists and accounts for materials used in the repairs to the wharf
at Maria, Quebec; and also same information for protection works in that
municipality.

188. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams and other documents respecting the admission
into Canada of the following immigrants in 1927: Angelo Gambino, Guiseppe
Bruno, Christoforo Siracusa, Carmelo Zaccaria, Giovanni Gentile, Luigi Saputi,
Celestino Bonomo, Arcuigelo Tedeschi, Olindo Cianciullo, Domenico Ziccordi,
Nicola M. Mastondrea, Leonardo Franza, Giuseppe Cinotti, Alfreda Sole, Cris-
tina A. Fotia, Paolina Sole, Nocolina Sole, Giuseppe Paduli, Antonio Paduli.

189. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence and the evidence of the investigation and report of the
investigation in the case of Jos. Berube, Indian agent, Cacouna, Quebec, and the
appointment of his successor.

190. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a return
showing the paysheets in connection with the repairs of the breakwater at West
Baccaro carried on during the year 1931.

191. Return to an Order of the louse of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of of the evidence and report of the commissioner of the investigation held by
order. of the Post Office Department in September, 1931, at Port Daniel East
post office, county of Bonaventure, Quebec.

192. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a Return
showing:-

1. Postmasters dismissed or resigned in the county of Gaspe, since August,
1930, up to the present date.

2. In each case, the date of dismissal or resignation, the name of the post
office, the name of the postmaster, the reason for dismissal and the name of
successor.

193. Return on an Order of the House for a Return showing:-
1. Who was in charge of the census enumerators in Brome-Missisquoi in

1931, and how much he received for his services.
2. The enumerator in each municipality, and how much each was paid.
194. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a

Return showing:-
1. For how long the Dominion Government bas been participating in any

manner, in international, European, American or world-wide exhibitions.
2. The yearly amounts spent for this purpose, either under the immediate

supervision of the departments of Agriculture, Immigration, Commerce, or any
other department.

3. Whether it is the intention of the Government to take part in 1932 or
1933, in any exhibition of equal or superior or inferior importance.

195. Return to an Order of the House of the 17th March, 1932, for a Return
showing:-

1. How many civil servants (inside service) who have reached the age of
70, are still employed in the various departments at Ottawa.

2. What positions they occupy; salaries paid annually; retirement allow-
ance they would receive, annually, in each case, if retired.

3. How many come under the Civil Service Superannuation Act.
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4. How many come under the Civil Service Retirement Act.
5. Amount of retirement allowance (lump sum) each one would receive

upon retirement.

196. Return to an Order of the House of the 25th February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. The rates of pensioners' relief when unemployed, and under what con-
ditions pensioners can receive relief for both married or unmarried men.

2. Whether there is any special rate governing those pensioners who are
living apart from their families, and whether these men and their families should
benefit by the pensioner's unemployment relief.

3. Whether the pensioner living apart from his family for whatever cause
is rated as a single man when seeking unemployment relief.

4. Whether the Department of Pensions and National Health through the
Board of Pension Commissioners has the right to deprive any pensioner of any
part, or all of his pension and relief when unemployed, because he may be living
apart from his family.

197. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, reports and other documents in connection with
the creation of a vacancy in the postmastership at Cap St. Ignace, County of
Montmagny, Quebec, and the appointment, temporary or otherwise, of a new
postmaster, together with a copy of correspondence, applications, recommenda-
tions and other communications received from persons desirous of obtaining
the new appointment, or others on their behalf.

197a. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd
February, 1932, for a copy of all correspondence, reports and other documents
in connection with the creation of a vacancy in the postmastership at Cap St.
Ignace, County of Montmagny, Quebec, and the appointmênt, temporary or
otherwise, of a new postmaster, together with a copy of correspondence, appli-
cations, recommendations and other communications received from persons
desirous of obtaining the new appointment, or others on their behalf.

198. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports, or other documents relating to the dismissal of
Noel Fontaine, postmaster at Laprairie, county of Laprairie, Quebec, including
full report of an inquiry into charges brought against him, with proof and
evidence submitted thereto; also a copy of all correspondence, reports and other
documents relating to the appointment of his successor.

198a. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of the 7th Marcb,
1932, for a copy of all correspondence, reports, or other documents relating to
the dismissal of Noel Fontaine, postmaster at Laprairie, county of Laprairie,
Quebec, including full report of an inquiry into charges brought against him,
with proof and evidence submitted thereto; also a copy of all correspondence,
reports and other documents relating to the appointment of his successor.

199. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a
copy of the complete file in connection with the dismissal of J. H. Couture as
postmaster at Frampton, county of Dorchester, and the appointment of bis
successor.

199a. Supplementary Return to an Order of the House of the 29th
February, 1932, for a copy of the complete file in connection with the dismissai
of J. H. Couture as postmaster at Frampton, county of Dorchester, and the
appointment of his successor.
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200. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence and reports or petitions in connection with the dismissal
of the postmaster at Dequen, Quebec, and the appointment of his successor.

201. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams, letters, sworn statements and other documents,
including all evidence, and the report of the commissioner who held inquiry
in connection with the dismissal of Louis Mongeon, lighthouse keeper at Angers,
county of Hull, and a copy of all reports, correspondence and other documents
in connection with the appointment of lis successor.

202. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports and other documents relating to the dismissal
of Philippe Morin, lightkeeper at Long Pilgrim Station (Iles Pellerins),
Kamouraska county, Quebec; also a copy of all correspondence, reports or
other documents in connection with an inquiry with reference to the charges
brought against the said Phillippe Morin, including the proof and evidence

given by all the witnesses heard at said inquiry and the decision arrived at, and
the qualifications of his successor.

203. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a

Return showing the names of the employees on the dining cars of the Canadian

National Railways travelling between Montreal and Halifax.

204. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a Return

showing a copy of paysheets connected with repairs to the wharf Bay du Vin,
county of Northumberland, as well as accounts for material.

205. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a Return

showing a copy of the payrolls and time sheets in connection with work on the

Arichat groin in 1931, and in connection with work on the Cape Auget break-

water in 1930 and 1931.
206. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for a

copy of all correspondence, also the report of the Commissioner, made after the

inquiry was held, in connection with the dismissal of Miss Gagne, postmistress

at St. Pierre de la Riviere du Sud, county of Montmagny.
207. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a

copy of all documents and correspondence exchanged between the citizens of

row (rang) St. Nicholas, in the parish of St. Ferreol, county of Montmorency,
and the Postmaster General, or any other official of this department, at Ottawa

or Quebec, in connecLion with the opening of a post office in said parish.

208. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a

copy of all reports, correspondence and documents, relating to the dismissal of

the postmaster at St. Roch-des-Aulnaies, County of L'Islet, Quebec.

209. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports or other documents relating to the dismissal of

Edouard Guy, postmaster at Kamouraska, Kamouraska county, Quebec; also

a copy of all correspondence, reports or other documents in connection with an

inquiry with reference to the charges brought against the said Edouard Guy,
including the proof and evidence given by all the witnesses heard at said
inquiry and the decision arrived at.

210. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of all letters, telegrams, and correspondence exclanged between the member
for Levis and the Solicitor General or the said member and the Postmaster
General having reference to the cancellation of a mail contract on Rural Route
No. 1, St. David, county of Levis, and the ealling for new tenders in connection
with the said rural route; together with copies of all tenders, prices, recom-
mendations, submitted by any contractor who proposed undertaking the work
of carrying the mail on the said Rural Route No. 1, St. David.
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211. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, reports and other documents in connection with the
dismissal of postmaster, C. E. Sproule, at Rockglen, Saskatchewan; also a copy
of all correspondence, reports and other documents relating to an investigation
into charges made against postmaster, C. E. Sproule, at Rockglen, Saskatch-
ewan, his dîsmissal and the temporary appointment of Mr. Lawrence in his
stead.

212. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
or list of all rural mail contracts put up for public tender since March 1, 1931,up to March 1, 1932, in the provinces of Nova Scotia, New Brunswick, and
Prince Edward Island, showing amount paid under old tender and also amount
paid under new tender in each case.

213. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for
a copy of all letters, telegrams, correspondence and other documents passing
between the Postmaster General or any of his officials and any person or
persons in the Province of Saskatchewan, since September, 1931, with reference
to the appointment of a postmaster for the Post Office at Mitchellton, Sas-
katchewan.

214. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence exchanged in 1931-32 between the Quebec Power Com-
pany or any citizen and the Government of Canada, concerning the application
of the said company for certain money to help in the extension of the Quebec
Power Company in the county of L'Islet, under the Unemployment Relief Act
of last session.

215. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. According to the records of the Civil Service Commission, the number
of employees who were appointed to the Inside Service of the Post Office
department at Ottawa during the past three calendar years, (a) temporary;
(b) permanent.

2. According to the records of the Civil Service Commission, the number
of requests which were received from the Post Office Department for the above-
mentioned appointments specifying bilingual employees (a) temporary; (b)
permanent.

3. Positions to which employees were appointed shown on the Civil Service
Commission records as requiring bilingual qualifications (a) temporary; (b)
permanent.

4. Positions as shown by the Civil Service Commission records formerly
occupied by bilingual employees (a) temporary; (b) permanent.

216. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, telegrams, letters and all other documents, exchanged
between the Minister of Labour, all members of the cabinet or officials of any
federal department and the City of St. Hyacinthe or other persons, in connection
with the work to relieve unemployment and the help granted to inemployed,and especially as regards the construction of a tunnel under the Canadian
National Railways, at St. Hyacinthe, since January 1, 1931.

217. Return to an Order of the House of the 24th February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, letters, sworn statements, and other documents,
including all evidence taken at the inquiry; also the report of the commissioner
who held the inquiry in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Joseph Ferguson,as lighthouse keeper at Cape des Rosiers, County of Gaspé.

218. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, telegrams, letters, sworn statements and other docu-
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ments, inciuding ail evidence taken, and the report of the commissioner who
held the inquiry in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Oswald Pinard, as
lighthouse keeper at Nicolet, county of Nicolet.

219. Return to an Order of the flouse of the 29th February, 1932, for a
copy of ail correspondence, teiegrams, letters, sworn statements and other docu-
ments, including ail evidence, and the report of the commîssioner who held the
inquiry in connection with the dismissal of Mr. J. B. R. Manseau, keeper at
Nicolet, county of Nicolet.

220. Return te an Order of the flouse of the 2nd Mardi, 1932, for a copy
of ail correspondence, reports and sworn statements, including ail documents,in connection with the dismissai of Maurice Laliberté, as signai officer at St.
Nieholas, County of Levis.

221. Return te an Address to Hi-, Exeiiency thc Governor General, of the
I4th March, 1932, for a ccpy cf ail orders in council, crrespondence, complaints,
letters and ail other documents cxchanged between the departmnent and tic
Minister cf Marine, rciating te metcorolegist, J. E. Morin, at Doibcau, Lake St.
John, from September 1, 1930, te March 1, 1932.

222. Return te an Order cf the flouse of tic 2nd March, 1932, for a
eopy cf new regulations relative te Oyster fisii ng and a eopy cf ail correspon-
dence received by the Govcrnment rcgarding such regulations.

223. Rcturn te an Order cf thc flouse cf the 2nd March, 1932, for a ccpy
cf ail cerrespendence, reports and swern statements, ineluding ail documents,
in conneetion with the dismissal cf Joseph Labie, iighthouse keeper on thc
wvharf cf Ile aux Grues, Qucice.

224. Order cf thc flouse for a Return Showing:-
1. Who was in charge cf tic organizatien and the management cf thc 1931

eensus, in thc cuntv cf St. ilvacinthe-Reuville. and what amounts werc paid
te this person fer bis services.

2. Who acted as census enunierator in each munieipality cf tic county cf
St. Hvacinthe-Rouviile, and what amounts caci person received for bis services.

225. Return te an Order cf tic flouse cf the lGth March, 1932, for a Return
showing:-

1. Hew muci ceai was purehascd by tic Mentreal ilarbour Commission
frcm the Canadian Industrial Ceai Co., Ltd., and thc International Fuel Co.,
Ltd., from January, 1922, te June, 1926, and from October, 1926, te August,
1930.

2. Price paid for this ceai and whether the pnice was as lew as the iowcst
tender.

3. Wiat documents the Montreal ilarbour Commission have on filc siowing
tic accuracy cf weights.

4. Who tic ciairman cf the Montreal Ilarbour Commission was during those
peniods.

226. Return te an Order cf the flouse cf the 3rd March, 1932, for a Return
showing:-

1. Whether the Vancouver Harbour Commissioners pureiased a second-
hand car ferry in tic United States during 1930 or 1931..

2. If so, what the cost was laid down in the port cf Vancouver including
original cost, towage and insuranee.

3. Wiethcr this car ferry required rcpaining before being put into operation.
4. If so, the cost reconditioning and repairs to date.
5. Whether a serviceable barge ccuid have been secured from the Canadian

Pacifie or the Canadian National Railways at a much lesser cost.
6. Whether the barge bas been giving steady and satisfactory service con-

stantly since its flrst day cf service.
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7. Number of cars transported on this barge since going into commission.
8. Cost of constructing a ferry slip for its accommodation.
9. Cost per car, including cost of operation, interest and sinking fund on

the barge and slip, repairs, etc.
10. Cost per car for transportation over the Second Narrows bridge when

it was in operation.

227. Return to an Order of the House of the 3rd March, 1932, for a Return
showing:-

1. Whether the Vancouver Ilarbour Commissioners purchased a second-
hand locomotive in the United States during, the latter part of 1930 or during
1931.

2. If so, the cost of said locomotive laid down in Vancouver.
3. What plan was adopted in calling for tenders for reconditioning this

locomotive, public notice or private request.
4. Wbat firms or companies tendered for the job and the prices quoted by

ea ch.
5. Whether the job was let to the lowecst bidder.
6. If not, why.
7. What firm secured the work and what the total cost of the job was

includîng work done on the premises of the commissioners.
8. What period of time was specified for the comipletion of the work by the

(ompeting firms who failed to secure the job.
9. Length of time occupied by the firmn who secured the job before the

locomotive was put into commission.
10. Cost to the commission for substitute locomotive service during the

excess period used in reconditioning.
11. Whether this locomotive was originally purchased in Davenport, Iowa,

in 1913 by a firm of railroad construction engineers for the sum of $12,000 and
laid down in Vancouver, freight and duty paid, at $15,000.

12. Total eost of the locomotive to the comnmissioners including cost price,
reconditioning and substitute service.

228. Retura to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for
a Return showing:-

1. Amount of money expended by each of the followîng Ilarbour Commis-
sions during the vear 1931: (a) Quebec; (b) St. .John; (c) Montreal; (d) Sorel;
(e) Halifax.

2. Amount expended, if any, by each of the following Harbour Commis-
sions without direct authority by Order in Council during the year 1931:
(a) Quebec; (b) St. John; (c) Montreal; (d) Sorel; (e) Halifax.

3. Amount expended by each of the following Harbour Commissions prior
to authority being issued by Order in Council during the year 1931: (a) Que-
bec; (b) St. John; (c) Montreai; (d) Sorel; (e) iHalifax.

4. Number of employees on the payroll of each of the foiiowing Harbour
Commissions for each of the weeks ending August 8, .August 15, August 22,
August 29, September 5, 1931: (a) Quebec; (b) St. John; (c) Montreal; (d)
Sorel; (e) Halifax.

229. Return to an Order of the bouse of the 7th Mareh, 1932, for a copy
of ail correspondence, reports, telegrams, ratings and other communications
to or from the Minister of Public Works and any other minister, officials of the
Government or any member or officiai of the Civil Service Commission," or other
person or persons, in any way relating to the appointment of a caretaker for
St. Thomas public building, since November 25, 1930.
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230. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. The names of all vessels of the Canadian Merchant Marine.
2. The names of the men manning each of said vessels.

231. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th March, 1932, for a return
showing the number of persons in the employ of the Government in connection
with the Commons Chamber, the Senate Chamber and Parliament building
generally, with the various salaries paid, from March 1, 1931, to March 1,
1932.

232. Return ta an Order of the House of the 17th February, 1932, for a
copy of all documents in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Joseph Mailhot
as postmaster of Lourdes, County of Megantic, and the appointment of his
successor; also a copy of the evidence in connection with the inquiry which
was held.

234. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a return
showing the paysheets and vouchers of men employed by the Department Of
Public Works in connection with repairs on the wharf of Ste-Anne-de-la-Poca-
tiere, during the calendar year 1931.

235. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a return
showing the paysheets and vouchers in connection with moneys spent in, the
last six months on the wharf on the west side of Port Dufferin, Halifax County.

236. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of the paysheets in connection with the construction of a wharf at Barachois,
Aboujagan River, county of Westmorland, New Brunswick, and a return show-
ing, (a) the names of the men employed, and their respective wages since the
work was undertaken to date; (b) the quantity of stone and lumber purchased,
from whom purchased and the price paid for such material; (c) the amount
expended to date; (d) to whom cheques were sent in payment of wages and
material; (e) whether or not the expenditure was made under Unemployment
Relief Act; (f) whether or not the work was done under contract or by days'
work.

237. Return ta an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, letters, telegrams or other documents, exchanged between
the Government of Canada, any minister or department thereof, and the Civil
Service Commission, or between either of the foregoing and any other person
or persons since July, 1930, relating to the position of Senior Fruit and Vegetable
Inspector in Prince Edward Island, the dismissal of the Senior Fruit and Vege-
table Inspector from this position and the appointment of a successor.

238. Return to an Order of the House of the 16th March, 1932, for a
Return showing:

1. The total monetary loss due ta the burning, in 1930, of Canadian
National Pier, Vancouver Harbour.

2. How much this pier cost.
3. Whether curtain walls, bulkheads or other eut-off for fire protection had

been provided and built in the substructure of the burnt pier.
4. Who designed this pier and who supervised construction.
5. Total amount paid and to whom on account of engineering services re

burnt pier.
6. Total cost of replacement (present pier), also cost of removing wreckage.
7. Whether contracts, on both cases were awarded on competitive public

tenders and on what basis, nnit prices, etc.
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8. Who were the contractors.
9. Total amount paid and to whom on account of engineering services re

replacement work (present pier).

239. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Of what commodities our exports and imports with Argentine consisted
in each of the years 1930 and 1931.

2. The amounts and values of same, by months, in each of the said years.
3. Whether the general or the intermediate tariff rate applies on goods

between Canada and Argentine.

240. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, evidence, inquiries, reports, petitions and other documents,
in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Narcisse Ouellet, postmaster of Lamy
Sud, county of Temiscouata, Quebec, and the appointment of his successor.

241. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a
return showing the paysheets and vouchers in connection with moneys spent
during and since the year 1931 for the building of a breakwater at West
Jeddore, Halifax County, Nova Scotia, showing the total cost the amount spent
for logs, timber and planking, the names of all men employed and in what
capacity, the rate of pay of each man, and payments additional to wages, if any.

242. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a return
showing a copy of the paysheets in connection with the repairs to the wharf at
Oak Point, County of Northumberland, New Brunswick, as well as copy of the
accounts for material.

243. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. The names, length of service, nature of work and number of dependents
of each permanent employee of the Maintenance Staff of the Department of
Public Works, Ottawa, who have been notified that their services will not be
required after the 31st of March.

2. The names of returned soldiers, who are permanent employees of the
Maintenance Staff of the Department of Public Works, Ottawa, who have been
notified that their services will not be required after the 31st of March, 1932,
are any of the men so notified in receipt of a war disability pension, and in what
amount in every case.

3. The names, nature of work and the number of dependents in each case
of men permanently appointed to the Maintenance Staff, Department of Public
Works, Ottawa, since July 28, 1930.

244. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a return
showing the amount spent in each military district for the annual training in the
fiscal year ending March 31, 1932.

245. Return an Order of the House of the 30th March, 1932, for a Return
showing:-

1. Who the architects are for the Canadian National Hotel now under con-
struction at Vancouver, British Columbia.

2. On what basis the architects are paid.
3. How much they have been paid to March 1, 1932.
4. The contractors for the said hotel.
5. Total contract price.
6. Whether the work is donc as a straight contract or on a cost plus basis
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7. If on a cost plus basis what per cent is allowed.
8. How much the contractors have been paid to March 1, 1932.
9. Whether the cost of furnishings and equipment is included in the con-

tract price.
10. If the answer to No. 9 is no, what the estimated cost is of furnishings

and equipment.
11. Total amount paid on the construction of the said hotel to March 1,

1932.
12. Estimated amount required to complete the building.
13. The date on which the building of the hotel was, (a) approved, (b) con-

tract signed.
246. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th March, 1932, for a

Return showing:-
1. Whether any pension bas been paid to M. P. Fennell, late General

Manager of Montreal Harbour Commission, and, if so, why.
2. What Mr. Fennell's age was at time pension was granted.

247. Return to an Order of the House of the 1lth February, 1932, for a
copy of all documents in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Jos. Laprise, post-
master at St. Nérée, County of Bellechasse, and the appointment of his successor.

248. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for
a copy of all correspondence between Premier Bracken of Manitoba or any of
the officials of the Manitoba Government and the Prime Minister, the Minister
of Agriculture or any of the officials of the Dominion Government, with refer-
ence to the supplying of feed and seed to the farmers of Manitoba.

249. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for
a copy of all reports, letters, telegrams and other documents in connection with
the appointment by the Civil Service Commission of Elzear Gagnon, an ex-
soldier with a record of overseas active service, on September 1, 1931, to the
position of postmaster at Ste. Louise, County of L'Islet, Quebec, and the said
Gagnon's subsequent rejection by the Postmaster General.

250. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, telegrams, letters, recommendations, sworn state-
ments, and other documents, including the evidence taken at the inquiry in
connection with the dismissal of the postmaster at Charlemagne and the appoint-
ment of his successor.

251. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for
a copy of all correspondence, telegrams, letters, recommendations, sworn state-
ments and other documents, including evidence taken at the inquiry in con-
nection with the dismissal of the postmaster at St. Henri de Mascouche, and
the appointment of his successor.

252. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for
a copy of all correspondence, telegrams, letters, recommendations, sworn state-
ments, and other documents, including the evidence taken at the inquiry in
connection with the dismissal of the postmaster at Lachenaie, and the appoint-
ment of his successor.

253. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams, letters and all other documents exchanged
between the Minister of Labour, all memLbers of the Cabinet or officials of any
federal department and the city of Hull or other persons in connection with the
work to relieve unemployment and the help granted to unemployed, from
September, 1930, to February 1, 1932.
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254. Return to an Order of the House of the l4th March, 1932, for a
copy of ail letters, telegrams, memorandums, reports and other documents
exchanged between the Department of Public Works and any person or persons
in Nova Scotia, regarding the expenditure of public money under the Unemploy-
ment and Farm Relief Act of 1931, on repairs to wharf at Mulgrave, Nova
Scotia; also a copy of payroll showing the amount expended in labour; also copy
of accounts showing prices paid for iron, logs, ballast, poles, timber and plank,
and from whom purchased.

255. Return to an Order of the House of the l4th March, 1932, for a
copy of ail letters, tclegrams, memorandums, reports and other documents
exchanged between the Department of Public Works and any person or persons
in Nova Scotia, regarding the expenditure of public money under the Unemploy-
ment and Farm Relief Act of 1931, on wharf at Sonýora, Nova Scotia; also, a
copy of the payroll showing the jamount expended in labour; also copy of
accounts showing prices pai(l for iron, legs, ballast and ballast poles, tim'iber and
piank, and from whom purchased.

256. Return to an Order of the Housc of the l4th Marcb, 1932, for a
cepy cf ail letters, telegrams, memorandums,-, reports and other documents
exchanged between the Department cf Puiblic Works and any person or persons
in Nova Scotia, regarding the expenditure cf public money under the Unemploy-
mcnt and Farm Relief Act of 1931, on repairs te wharf at Ballantyne's Cove,
Nova Scotia; aiseo a cepv of payroll showiiig Che, arnount expended in labeur;
aIse copy of accounts showing prices paid for iron, ballast and ballast pales,
timber and piank, and from whom purchased.

257. Return te an Order of the House cf the 23rd March, 1932, for a
Return showing-

1. Whether the Postmaster General, since August, 1930, communicated by
correspondenýce with certain pestmasters ini the county cf Temiscouata, Quebec,
in cennection with certain charges cf political partisanship loýdged against them.

2. If se: (a) on wbat date; (b) the names cf the postmasters; (c) form, cf
letter forwarded te each cf them; (d) at whose request.

258. Return te an Order cf the House cf the 22nd February, 1932, for a
copy cf aIl correspondence, telegrams. letters affidavits and other documents,
including ail evidience given at the inquiry in connectien with the dismîssai cf
Mr. Hygin Ayotte, as postmaster at Grande Riviere, Gaspe County.

259. Return te an Order cf' the bouse cf the 22nd February, 1932, for a
copy cf ail correspondence, aise report cf the Cemmissioner, made after the
inqiuiry was held, in connection with thc postmaster, J. C. Tanguay, St. Fabien
de Panet, County of Montmagny.

260. Return te an Order cf the House cf the 22nd February, 1932, for a
copy cf ail correspondence, also the report cf the Commissioner, made after
inquiry was heid, in connection with the pestmaster, Eugene Gregoîre, Lake
Frontiere, County of Montmagny.

261. Return te an Order cf the bouse cf the 29th February, 1932, for a
copy cf ail reports, correspondence and other documents, for the years 1930-
1931-1932, in connection with the post office at St. Damase, County cf L'Isiet,
Quebec,
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262. Return to an Order of the House of the 29th February, 1932, for a
copy of the report of the Commissioner who held the inquiry in connection with
the charges of political partisanship against J. R. Trudelle, postmaster at St.
Adolphe de Champlain, Quebec, and all other documents and correspondence
relating to said charges.

263. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence in connection with the dismissal of C. D. Smith, of
Caldwell Brook, New Brunswick, as Vegetable Inspector; also the evidence taken
at the investigation held into the charges made against him, with the report of
the investigating Commissioner.

264. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st March, 1932, for a
Return showing the names and addresses of all parties in the district of Comox-
Alberni employed in the organization, management and taking of the 1931 census
in that district, showing in the case of each individual: (a) whether a returned
man or not; (b) amount received for his personal remuneration; (c) amount
paid him for expenses; also showing the basis on which remuneration and
expenses were allowed in each case; and where the use of cars or boats were paid
for by the government, the names of the parties to whom payment was made
in each case, the amount paid, and the rate allowed.

265. Return to an Order of the House of the 16th March, 1932, for a
return of all evidence and reports relating to the dismissal of Mr. J. A. Spray,
in July, 1931, from the office of Customs Excise Enforcement Officer, stationed at
Gabarouse, Cape Breton.

266. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Whether the Vancouver Harbour Commissioners secured a complete
release from any further charges respecting the services of Messrs. Sydney E.
Junkins and W. G. Swan in connection with design, etc., of deep sea pier referred
to in minute of council, May 16, 1930.

2. Whether any independent check was made by the Department of Marine
or the commissioners as to practicability of the design and the reasonableness
of the details of the estimated cost before settlement.

3. Total amount paid in settlement with Messrs. Sydney E. Junkins and
W. G. Swan.

4. Whether it is the intention of the present Vancouver Harbour Com-
missioners to proceed with the construction of this deep sea pier within any
reasonable time.

5. The actual total profit or loss to January 1, 1932, in connection with
the Ballantyne and Lapointe piers respectively, taking into consideration all
capital charges, operation, maintenance and depreciation.

267. Return to an Order of the House of the 17th March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Estimated quantities and the prices for the different classifications on
which the Vancouver Harbour Commissioners entered into a contract with
S. S. Magoffin Company, Limited, for excavation and fill in respect to the
Moodyville property, and the reclamation area on the north shore of Burrard
Inlet.

2. Date of the contract and the date of completion of the work.
3. Names of the Committee of Engineers appointed to make classification

of material as the work proceeded, amount paid to each, and why the appoint-
ment of such a committee was resorted to.

4. The last estimate in quantities of different material submitted by this
Committee of Engineers.
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5. Whether the classification made by these engineers was enforced.
6. Under what authority a single arbitrator was appointed.
7. Quantity classification, and price award made by the arbitrator, with

his name, occupation, time employed and amount paid for his services.
8. Amount paid to Magoffin Company for extras, and the total amount

paid for all work done.
9. In what amounts the commissione;s have distributed the total cost of

this work between the Moodyville property and the reclaimed area.
10. Who the owner of the Moodyville property was at the time this work

was done.
11. Whether it is a fact that the original draft of the cross sections dis-

appeared permanently during the progress of the work.
12. Who were chief engineer or acting chief engineer and consulting engineer

to the commission during the job.

for. 13. Who comprised the commission when the job was completed and paid

268. Return to an Order of the House of the 17th March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Amount paid by Vancouver Harbour Commission for purchase of
Moodyville property, with name of vendor and date of purchase.

2. Who comprised the commission when the purchase was made.
3. Name, address, occupation and amount paid respecting each person who

made a valuation of this property for the commission.
4. Whether any part of the area purchased had been previously improved

under the Magoffin contract, and if so, at what cost.
5. Total area purchased and how much of it is above high water line, and

how much below high water line.
6. The distribution of the purchase price between the portions of the

property above and below high water respectively.
7. Whether the right-of-way for the Vancouver Harbour Commission Ter-

minal Railway through the Moodyville property was in the possession of the
commission before this purchase was put through, if so, the cost of this right-
of-way.

8. Whether the property has been put to any use since, if so, what use.
9. Annual carrying charges on account of this purchase.

10. Whether the Government is obtaining a return from this property.
269. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a Return

showing:-
1. The amount of the travelling and other expenses, year by year, from

1919-20 te 1924-25 of Mr. J. D. Parmelee, late inspector of Customs for the
Sherbrooke division.

2. The amount of travelling and other expenses year by year from 1926-27
to date, for the same services performed by Mr. J. C. A. Bordeleau, present
Customs inspector of the same division.

270. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports and all other documents in connection with the
dismissal of Captain Henry Gagnon, keeper of the wharf at Pointe-au-Pic, in
the county of Charlevoix; also copy of all correspondence, reports and other
documents, relating to an inquiry held in 1931, in connection with charges made
against said Henry Gagnon, including the proof and evidence of all witnesses
heard in said inquiry, and the conclusior arrived at by the commissioner who
held the inquiry.
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271. Return to an Order of the House of the 16th March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. What the necessity is for the extension of Lapointe pier by the Van-
couver Harbour Commissioners at this time.

2. Whether the demand for existing berthage under the administration of
the Vancouver Harbour Commissioners has been taken into consideration in
granting approval of this proposed expenditure.

3. Length, width, total estimated cost and estimated time of completion
of this extension.

4. Type of substructure design with total height of same and the maximum
height of the proposed gravel fill.

5. Total estimated yardage, contract price and name of contractor in respect
to the gravel fill.

6. How many men, approximately, are employed per day by the contractor
in making the gravel fill.

272. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a copy
of ail correspondence, telegrams and other documents, including copy of
evidence heard at the inquiry in connection with the charge of political partisan-
ship against Mr. Camille Dunn, of Cap des Rosiers, lighthouse keeper at Jersey
Cove, county of Gaspe.

274. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Amount of gold exported from Canada to New York since January 1,
1932, giving dates and amounts.

2. Whether such amounts were exported at the request of Canadian Char-
tered Banks.

3. If so, which bank made the request in each instance.
275. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932, for a

copy of ail correspondence, telegrams, letters, recommendations, sworn state-
ments, and other documents, including the evidence taken at the inquiry in
connection with the dismissal of the postmaster at St. Sulpice, and the appoint-
ment of his successor.

276. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of ail letters and documents relating to the change of site of the Waterford
Post Office in August last.

277. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of ail correspondence, petitions and reports; in connection with the dismissal
of Antoine Landry, postmaster of Notre Dame du Lac, Quebec, and the appoint-
ment of his successor.

278. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of ail correspondence, reports and other documents relating to the dismissal of
Mrs. P. E. Cote, postmaster at St-Pascal, Kamouraska county, Quebec, and ail
the correspondence, reports and other documents relating to the appointment of
her successor.

279. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th March, 1932, for a copy
of ail correspondence, telegrams, reports and other documents relating both to
the dismissal of Romeo Marquis, St. Germain, county of Kamouraska, Quebec,
as rural mail carrier and the appointment of his successor.

280. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports or other documents relating to the dismissal of
Clement Levesque, postmaster at St. Pacome Station, Kamouraska county.
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Quebec; also copy of all correspondence, reports or other documents in connec-
tion with an inquiry with reference to the charges brought against the said
Clement Levesque and the appointment of his successor.

281. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, applications, reports on applicants and all other docu-
ments relating to the appointment of a postmaster at Douglas, Ontario.

282. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, letters, telegrams, memorandums, investigations, reports
and other documents, regarding the change in the Briton Cove Post Office in
the Province of Nova Scotia, and the reasons for the transfer of same from
the previous location to the present location, between any member of the
Government and any official of the Post Office Department at Ottawa and any
person or persons in the Province of Nova Scotia.

283. Return ta an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a
Return showing the various projects and programs, including paysheets, if any,
carried on under the Federal unemployment relief work at Ste-Anne-de-la-
Pocatiere, Kamouraska county, Quebec, during the calendar year 1931.

284. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams, reports and all other documents in connection
with the dismissal of Mr. Arthur Perron, mail carrier at Grondines, in the
county of Portneuf, and the appointment of his successor.

285. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of all letters, telegrams, memorandums, reports and other documents exchanged
between the Department of Public Works and any person or persons in Nova
Scotia, regarding the expenditure of public money under the Unemployment and
Farm Relief Act of 1931, on extension to breakwater at Seal Harbour, Nova
Scotia; also a copy of the payroll showing the amount expended in labour;
also copy of accounts showing prices paid for iron, logs, ballast and ballast
poles, timber and plank, and from whom purchased.

286. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of all letters, telegrams, memorandums, reports and other documents exchanged
between the Department of Public Works and any person or persons in Nova
Scotia, regarding the expenditure of publie money under the Unemployment and
Farm Relief Act of 1931, on repairs to wharf at Malignant Cove, Nova
Scotia; also a copy of the payroll showing the ainount expended in labour;
also copy of accounts showing prices 'paid for iron, logs, ballast and ballast
poles, timber and plank, and from whom purchased.

287. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of all letters, telegrams, memorandums, reports and other documents exchanged
between the Department of Public Works and any person or persons in Nova
Scotia, regarding the expenditure of public money under the Unemploynient and
Farm Relief Act of 1931, on repairs to wharf, at Western Shore, Lunenburg
county, Nova Scotia; also a copy of payroll showing the amount expended in
labour; also copy of accounts showing prices paid for iron, logs, ballast and
ballast poles, timber and plank, and from whom purchased.



288. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd March, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. Number of (a) full time; (b) part time; (c) temporary, purchasing
agents in the employ of the Government in each department, on each of the
following dates, January 1, 1930; January 1, 1932.

2. Number of (a) full time; -(b) part time; (c) temporary, assistants to
purchasing agents in any and all classifications employed by the Government
in each department on each of the following dates, January 1, 1930; January 1,
1932.

3. Total cost of this service to the Government in each department, for
each of the fiscal years ending March 31, 1930, and March 31, 1932.

289. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th March, 1932. for a
copy of all correspondence, letters, telegrams, petitions, applications, exchanged
between all persons in the county of Temiscouata, and all ministers and officials
of the Dominion Government, in connection with the position of Indian Agent
at Cacouna, since August, 1930.

290. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports and other documents in connection with the dis-
missal of Mrs. Levesque, postmistress, at Bagotville, Quebec; also for a copy of
all correspondence, reports and other documents relating to an inquiry held in
1931 in connection with charges made against said Mrs. Levesque, including
the proof and the evidence of all witnesses heard at said inquiry, and the decision
arrived at by the commissioner who held the inquiry.

291. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence exchanged between the Post Office Department or any
Official thereof, and any person or persons between August, 1930, and September,
1931, relative to the mail contract for transfer of the mail between the Canadian
National Railway and Canadian Pacifie Railway depots at Carlyle, Saskatche-
wan.

292. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams, letters, Tecommendations, sworn statements,
and all other evidence taken at an inquiry in connection with the dismissal of
Albert Hamelin as postmaster at Jasmin, Saskatchewan.

293. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports or other documents relating to the dismissal of
Georges Paradis, postmaster at Mont Carmel, Kamouraska County, Quebec;
also a copy of all correspondence, reports or other documents in connection
with an inquiry with reference to the charges brought against the said Georges
Paradis, including the proof and evidence given by all the witnesses heard at
said inquiry and the decision arrived at.

294. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports and other documents in connection with the
dismissal of Mr. Elmerie Bouliane, postmaster, at Mille Vaches, in the county
of Saguenay; also for a copy of all correspondence, reports and other documents
relating to an inquiry held in 1931, in connection with charges made against
said Elmerie Bouliane, including the proof and evidence of all witnesses heard
in said inquiry, and the decision arrived at by the commissioner who held the
inquiry.

295. Return to an Order of the House of the 31st March, 1932, for a
Return showing what office furniture was ordered and paid for by the Montreal
Harbour Commission during the period from January, 1922, to June, 1926, and
from October, 1926, to August, 1930, and whether the said furniture is still
on hand in the commissioh's premises.
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296. Return to an Order of the bouse of the 30th March, 1932, for a Returu
showing what harbour plant was used and what labour was performed by theMontreal Harbour Commission in the handling of coal for the Ogdensburg
Coal and Towing Company, and the Century Coal Company, during the period
January, 1922, to June, 1926, and from October, 1926, to August, 1930, andwhether the ilarbour Commission received full tariff rates for such service.

Ail which is respectfuliy submitted.

JOHN LEWIS,
For the Chairman.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator Casgrain caiied the attention of the Senate torailwav conditions in Canada, and moved-
Thiat, in the judgment of the Senate, in order to give immediate relief byeliminating some duplication in thc service of the Canadian Railways, pendingaction by the Commission presentiv investigating Canadian Railways, a Cern-mittec composed of an equai number of present officiais from the Canadian

Pacifie Railway Company and the Canadian National Raîiways, be forrned,and elect an Umpire, and faiiing to agree in their choice, the Supreme Court
of Canada shail appoint this Umpire.

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate be adjoîîrned until Tiiesday, ncxt.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (32), intituied: "An Actrespccting the Ottawa and New York Railwav Company," was read the second
trne. and-

Referred to the Standing Committee on Raiiways, Teiegraph and ilarbours.

The Order of the Day being calied for the further consideration in a Com-rniftcc of the Whoie, of the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to amcnd the Excise
Act,'' it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned dehateon the motion of the Honourabie Senator McRae, that it be-
llesolved, That in the opinion of this House the Uiovernniient shouiddc-21are its intention to control the production and distribution of ail radiumprocÛred from Canadian ores; and to that end should immiediateiy appoint aCanadian Radium Commission to investigate and recommend to the next Sessionof Parliarnent the bcst rnethods to adupt to give effeet to such control.
After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate be adjourned until Tuesday, next.

The Senate adjourned.

41765-11
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White (Inkerman),
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PRAYERS.

The following petitions were severally presented:-
By the Honourable the Chairman of the Committee on Divorce:-

0f Eva Corker Trili, of Montreal, Quebec; praying for refund of the Par-
liamentary fees paid upon bier petition for a Bill of Divorce.

0f Agnes May Jack Evans, of Montreal, Quebee; praying for refund of the
Parliamentary fees paid upon ber petition for a Bill of Divorce.

The Honourable Senator Tanner, from the Special Committee appointed
for the purpose of taking into consideration the report of a Special Committee
of the House of Commons of the hast Session thereof to investigate the Beau-
harnois Power Projeet, insofar as the said report relates to any Honourable
Members of the Senate, presented their fourth Report.

The saine was then read by the Clerk, as follom-s:-

FRIDAY, 22nd April, 1932.

The Special Committee of the Senate, appointed for the purpose of taking
into consideration the Report of the Special Committee of the bouse of
Commons of the last Session thercof to investigate the Beauhiarnois Power
Projeet, in so far as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members of
the Senate, beg leave to present the f ollowing as a fourth Report:-

The following are extracts from the Minutes and Proceedings of the Senate
of Canada, ThursdLay, 1lth Februarv, 1932:-

ORDER 0F APPOINTMENT

Ordered, That a Special Coinmittee of nine Senators to be hiereafter
named, be appointed for the purpose of taking intýo consideration the
Report of a Special Commitýtee of the House of Commons of the last
Session thereof to investigate the Beauhiarnois Power Projeet, in so f ar
as said Report relates to any I-lonourable l\embers of the Senate, said
Special Committee to hear such further evidence on oathi beariing on
the subjeet matter of such Report in relation to any sueh bonourable
1\embers of the Senate as it rnay clecin desirable and in accordance with
constitutional practice, and that thie said Comrnittee be authorized to
scri for' persons, papers and records.

REPORT REFERRED

Ordered, That the Fourth Report of the Special Committee of the
bouse of Commons appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power
Projeet, laid on the Table of the Senate on the lst August, 1931, be
referred to the Special Committee of the Senate appointed for the purpose
of taking into consideration the said Report in so far as it relates to any
Honourable Members of the Senate.

Extracts from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate of Canada,
Friday, l2th February, 1932.
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PERSONNEL 0F COMMITTEE

Ordered, That the following Senators, namely: The Honourable
Senators Béique, Chapais, Copp, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, MeMeans,
Robinson and Tanner constitute the Special Cornmittee appointed for the
purpose of taking into consideration the Report of the Special Committee
of the House of Commons of the last Session thereof te investigate the
Beauharnois Power Projeet in so f ar as the said Report relates tO any
Honourable Members of the Senate, and thait the said Committee be
aufhorized te sit during sittings and adjournments of the Senate.

PRODUCTION 0F EVIDENCE

Ordered, That a Message be sent to the bouse of Commons requesting
that House to grant leave to their Clerk to, appear and produce before a
Special Committee of the Senate a copy of the evidence adduced during
the last Session before the Special Committee of the House of Commons
appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power Projeet.

Ext.ract fromn the Minutes of the Proceedngs of the Special Committee of
the Senate of Canada, Fridav, l2th February, 1932.

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

On motion of the Honourable Senator Donnelly, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Chapais, the Jionourable Senator Tanner was elected
Chairman, and took the Chair.

The first Session of the Committee was on Tuesday, 16th February, 1932.
The last sit.ting was on Wednesday, 6th April, 1932. The following witnesses
were examined by the Committee, the names being in aiphabetical order and the
pages where their evidence may be found heing set out after their respective
namnes:

Argue, Dr. J. F. ..........

Banks, H. M.............
Barnard, C. A., K.C. .........
Beauchesne, Arthur, K.C.........
Brennan, Miss Lyla..........
Christie, L. C.............
Collins, M. C..............
Ebbs, John P.............

Ferguson, Hon. G. H..........
Geoffrion, A., K.C..........
Griffith, H. B.............

.147-148
237-238

.226-228

.206-216
6- 7

.266-268
.. .. .. 37

.265-266
68- 72

114-115
117-118
268-271

... .255-264
24- 29
58- 59
73- 83

120
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Haydon, Hon. A..............

Henry, R.A. C...............
Moyer, L. Clare...............

McDougald, Hon. W. L............

Raymond, Hon. D...............

Sifton, Clifford...............
Sweezey, R. O................

Thompson, Col. A. T.............

The Committee heard ail the statements that said Senators Haydon,
McDougald and Raymond desired to inake in relation to the matters of this
inquiry, and as well had before it the statements and arguments of Counsel on
behaîf of said Senators respectively.

An effort was also made by the Chairman of the Committee to caîl before
it Mr. Frank P. Jones. who was then in Europe. Mr. Jones did not attend.
The cables exchanged between him and Senator Tanner f ollow:-

March 4, 1932.
FRANK P. JONES,

Canadian Bank of Commerce,
London.

Senate Committee holding inquiry Stop Very anxious you be here

before twentieth Mareh Stop Please wire earliest possible date.

CHARLES E. TANNER,
Chcirman Committee.

CHARLES TANNER,
Chairman Committee Senate,

Ottawa.

Planned arrive home about mniddle April
here before early April.

F. P. JoNES,
Canadian Bank of Commerce,

London.

LoNDON, March 7, 1932.

impossible complete business

JONES.

OTTAWA, MarchI 18, 1932.

Referring Senate inquiry Beauharnois and your wire seventh instant
considered very important you give evidence Stop CoYmmittee resuming
hearings about twenty-ninth March Stop High Commissioner Ferguson
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241-249

85-108
59- 68

264-265
140-145
150-187

33- 35
131-140

149
228-235

37- 58
83

119-120
221-225
108-114



has asked for hearing by Committee and will be heard Stop He leaves
London at early date Stop Important you also come Stop Please wire
possibility of date.

CHARLES E. TANNER,

LONDON, March 26, 1932.
CHARLEs E. TANNER,

Ottawa, Ont.

Your cable eighteenth received to-day on my return from Belgium
regret have arranged start glass plant here which makes it impossible
leave here before middle April.

JONES.

In addition to Exhibits which were presented the Commons Committee, 25
Exhibits were presented and marked before this Committee, bearing numbers
from 130 to 154, inclusive.

At a meeting of the Committee held on Wednesday, the second of March,
1932, the following Resolution was passed:-

That the evidence taken and the exhibits produced before the Special
Committee of the House of Commons appointed to investigate the Beau-
harnois Power Project and now before this Committee, be received and

accepted by this Committee to avail as evidence before it, to the same
extent and with the same effect as if the witnesses had been examined and
the Exhibits produced upon the present inquiry, subject, however, to
cross-examination which may be made by the parties interested; that the
Blue Book entitled "Special Committee on Beauharnois Power Project,"
Session 1931, printed by the King's Printer, being Appendix No. 5 to the
Journals of the House of Commons, 1931, be used, referred to and dealt
with by this Committee and by counsel as containing a true transcript of
all things therein reported and printed; and further that the Exhibits be
given the same numbers as those given to them before the said House of
Commons Committee.

That in addition to the evidence taken and Exhibits marked before
the Committee, all the evidence taken and Exhibits marked before the
Commons Committee constitute part of the evidence under consideration
at this.inquiry. The Exhibits number from 1 to 154.

Special attention is directed to the Order of Appointment of this Committee,
which order directed the Committee to take into consideration the Report of the

Special Committee of the House of Commons, in so far as the same relates to
Honourable Members of the Senate, and to hear further evidence. It, therefore,
is decmed desirable that this report shall, as far as the evidence may justify,
be based upon and follow in structure and in outline the report unanimously

agrecd to by the Committee of the House of Commons, and to that end this Com-
mittee, as part of its report, begs leave to extract from and, in its finding of
evidence and conclusions thereof, to adopt certain portions of the said Fourth

Report of the Commons Committee dated the 28th July, 1931, as follows, except
in so far as definite modifications thereof may be hereinafter set out. The
extracts will be printed in italics.
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HLOUSE OF COMMONS REPORT

TUESDAY, July 28, 1931.
The Special Committee appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Project

beg leave to present the following as a Fourth Report.
1. On the 10th day of June, 1931, the House of Commons adopted the

following Resolution; That Messrs. Dorion, Fiset (Sir Eugfne), Gardiner,
Gordon, Jacobs, Jones, Lennox, Mackenzie (Vancouver Centre), Stewart (Leth-
bridge), be a committee to investigate from its inception the Beauharnois project
for the development of hydro-electric energy by the use of the waters of the
St. Lawrence River so far as the matters referred to are within the jurisdiction
of the Parliament of Canada, and without restricting the generality of the fore-
going words in particular to investigate the matters referred to in the speech
made in the House of Commons by Mr. Robert Gardiner, the honourable mem-
ber for Acadia, on the 10th day of May last, as reported on pages 1875-1887
of Hansard, and to report from time to time their observations and opinion
thereon; with power to send for papers, persons and records. Honourable W.
A. Gordon was on the 15th of June, 1931, appointed Chairman of the Special
Select Committee.

2. (1) The Committee sat from the 15th day of June, 1931, to the 22nd
day of July, 1931, held on most of these days more than one session and
examined 35 witnesses.

(2) On the 1st of July, the members of the Committee visited and inspected
the site of the works.

There were filed with the Committee 129 exhibits.

3. SOULANGES SECTION-ST. LAWRENCE RivER

(1) The Soulanges section of the St. Lawrence River is that portion thereof
lying between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis which are some 141 miles
apart, and between which there is a fall of 83 feet. The average normal avail-
able flow of the river through this section is in the vicinity of 230,000 cubic
feet per second for 50 per cent of the time, making possible a development of
2,000,000 horse-power of commercial electric energy at 85 per cent load factor.
The site is in close proximity to the City and Port of Montreal, and is con-
veniently located on what must soon be a waterway capable of accommodating
ocean-going vessels. It has therefore great possibility for industrial develop-
ment if cheap power is available.

(2) It is apparent that the Soulanges section thus presents an opportunity
for hydro-electric development almost if not quite unique on the face of the
globe. It is one of the greatest national resources in Canada, and in its natural
state of great potential value.

4. HISTORY

(1) About the year 1800, Edward Ellice, the Seigneur of Beauharnois,
erected a small "moulin Banal" at the mouth of the St. Louis River and in order
to increase the flow of the river, in 1807 built a small feeder, four miles in length
from Lake St.'Francis to the head waters of the River. This constituted the
first diversion in the Soulanges section of the St. Lawrence River for power
purposes. What ever water rights were incidental to this feeder later passed into
the hands of a family named Robert and apparently formed the basis of the
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applications for power rights hereinafter mentioned. Details concerning the
Robert "rigbts" may be found in a judgment delivered in the Excbequer Court
of Canada in the case of Robert v;s. the King (9 Excbequer Court Reports i.
Reference may be biad also to Exhibit iNo. 29, a miemorandum prepared by Mr.
R. C. Alexander.

(2) Ia 1855 tbe Governmciit of the Prov ince of Canada buit a dyke, known
as tbe Hungry Bay Dyke, as a protection against floods. It rebuilt the control
glates of the feeder and in 1883 tbe Government of Canada deepened and
widened the feeder and installed new gates in the dyke at the feeder entrance,
considerable sums of monev biaving been appropriated for thîs purpose.

(3) In 1902, J. B. Robert, as the grantee of the representatives of Edward
Ellice, brouglit action against tbe Crow n for a declaration of bis rights and
judgment was pronounced on tbe l7th Ocetober, 1904, deciding that Robert beld
substantial rights in the fecder. A compromise was arrived at by whichi the
feeder was leased to the heirs of J. B. Robert by the Department of Public
Works under date of the 28th Deccmber, 1909, for a period of 21 years. Tbis
was authorized by Order in Council, P.C. 2168. of the 9tb December, 1909.

(4) In 1902 by Quebcc Stýatute 2 Edward VII, Chapter 72 of tbe 26th
àlarchi, 1902, the Beauharnois LightL, Heat and Poweýr Company was incor-
porated with power to enlarge and extcnd tbe feeder. As a consequence of
tbe finding of tbe Excbequer Court that J. B. Robert was nýot tbe owner of tbe
feeder, in 1910 anotber Provincial Act was l)ass-ed giving the Company tbe
right to build a new canal or feeder f rom any point on the original feeder to
any point on tbe St. Louis River at or iiear the town of Beauharnois. Tbis
Company tbus became possessed of certain rights in respect of tbe diversion of
water for power purposes f rom Lake St. Francis. The shares of tbe Beaubarnois
Light, Heat and Power Company were ail owned by W. H. Robert and otber
inembers of tbe Robert fainily. On tbe 3rd February, 1927, Mr. R. O. Sweezev
obtained^ from tbe Roberts an option of ail the issued capital stock of the
Company and tbe Company's rigbts.

THiE ROBERT INTERESTS

(5) W. H. Robert and tbe other Robert beirs received for tbe 2,000 sbares
of tbe Beaubarnýois Ligbt, lient and Power Company and sucb otber rigbts,
if any, as were tben outstanding in tbem

(1) Cash $1,520,000.
(2) 200 fuiR' paid part interests in tbe Beaulharnois Power Syndicate.
(3) 21,000 Class A shares of tbe Beaubarnois Power Corporation.
(4) 100 fuiiy paid part interests in tbe Beauharnois Syndicate

transferýred from R. O. Sweezey aecount, wbicb became 200 part
interests in the Beaubarnois Power Syndicate.

(6) In addition to the above-mentioned 400 part interests in the Power
Syndicate owned by tbe Roberts, W. H. Robert beld a f urther tbree bundred
units in bis own name on wbicb bie owed $10,000 as at December 17, 1929.
For the 700 part interests, referred te above, the Robert beirs reeeived, on the
dissolution of tbe Syndicate, cheques aggregating $95,000, togetber witb 28,000
shares of the Ciass A Cormmon stock of tbe B[eaubarnois Power Corporation
Limited.

(7) In the same year, Mr. Sweezey appiied to the -Quebec Legisiature for an
amendment to, tbe Act incorporating tbe Company permitting the construction
of a cianal between Lake St. l'rancis and Lake St. Louis. This application vas
refused.
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(8) On the l7th Mardi, 1927, the Beauhar-nois Liglit, Heat and Power

Company applicd to His Excellency the Governor General in Council for

approval of a proposai to, build a power canal "which can be readily adapted

for thirty foot navigation requirements also" froma a point on Lake St. Francis

near the mouth of the St. Louis feeder te Lake St. Louis and to use so much

of the water of the St. Lawrence River as can be taken through, the proposed

(anal without interfering with navigation and without interfering with existing
prior rights in the River St. Lawrence. This application was not presscd.

(9) On the l7th January, 1928, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power

Company applied Vo His Excellency the Governor General in Council " for

approval under Vie Navigable Waters Protection Act of its plans and site of

proposed works herein described and for the right to divert, forty thousand
cubic f cet per second (40,000 c.f.6.) frcmn Lakc St. Franciîs."

(10) In Mardi, 1928, by Statute of the Province of Quebec (18 Gcorge V,

Chapter 113), a new section 11A, was added to the original Act of incorpora-

tion giving the Company thc right to build a new canal from any point within
twe miles in a soutiwe;terly direction from thc mouti of the St. Louis feeder

to any point on Lake St. Louis within one and a haif miles in a westeriy

direction along tie shore of Lake St. Louis f rom the mouti of the St. Louis

River and giving the Company thc rigit to expropriate lands not exoecding six
arpents in width.

(11) On the 27th April, 1928, Mr. Sweezey and his associates obotained

the passing of an Order in Council by thc Executive Council of Quebec )autier-
îzing Vhe granting to the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company of

an emphyteutic lease, wiici lease was subsequently exccuted on 'the 23rd June,
1928, and which grants Vo thc Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company tic

rigits of thc Province of Qucbec to such part of thc hydrauhec power of tic
St. Lawrence River as can Vie devclopcd bctwecn Lake St. Francis and Lake
St. Louis througi a derivation (six diversion) Canal on Vhe rigit (southern)
shore of a maximum flowing capacity of forty thousand cubic feet per second

(40,000 c.f.s.), (the Province rcscrving.Vie ownership and the free dispositien
of thc surplus) for a period of 75 ycars frema the 23rd June, 1928, at, an annual

rental of $20,000 for the first five ycars and $50,000 for each of the subosequent

years and an additional payment of $1 for cach horse power year revisable
af Ver each period of ten years from the date the plant will have been put in

operation. The Company agrees that at the expiration of the first five years
it will have installed 100,000 h.p.; at the expiration of the sixth ycar, 200,000
h.p.; at thc expiration of thc seventh year, 300,000 h.p.; and at thc expiration

of the tenth year, 500,000 h.p. The lease is granted without prejudice Vo

Federal. and Provincial laws concerning navigaýtion, mines, fisheries and the
driving of logs and also upon the understanding that the lessee "wie is presently
negotiatîng with the Federal Governmcnt shall obtain from the latter in 80 far

os its rights are concerned, the authorization to dïvcrt a flow of fort y thousaod
ciibic feet per second (40,000 c.f.s.)" and in tic event of the approval of the

Federal Government not being obtained within twelve montis, tie lease may
be cancelled by tic Lieutenant-Governor in Council.

(12) Having ohtained the aînendment to its Charter and the lease from

Vie Province of Quebec, tie Company pressed its application Vo tie Governor
General in Council and on the lSth January, 1929, a hearing was held by
ffie tien Minister of Public Werks anid two otier members of the Dominion
C(4overnimcnt, at which were considered protests from sipping companies and
power interests.
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(13) The application originally contemplated the diversion of the whole
flow of the St. Lawrence River. To meet the opposition to the application at
this hearing, Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., who appeared for the applicant, amended
the application to read as follows:

The application of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company
now pending before the Governor in Council is purely and simply for the

approval of plans for hydraulic development which will be subject to a
condition that not more than 40,000 cubic feet per second shall be diverted
from the river-from Lake St. Francis, to be returned to Lake St. Louis,
and used for power purposes by the Company between these two points;
and any condition that the Government may exact, in any wording
satisfactory to the Government involving that limitation, is accepted in
advance by the applicant. If the engineers think that the plans should
be altered to meet this declaration the Company will submit to any such
alteration.

(14) It should be noted that notwithstanding the limitation to the 40,000
c.f.s. the plans of the Company and the works so far as constructed clearly show
and the officers of the Company and of the Department of Public Works admit
that at all times there has been in contemplation the diversion of the whole
flow of the River by this Company.

(15) A Committee of Departmental Engineers was constituted, composed
of Mr. K. M. Cameron, Chief Engineer of the Department of Public Works,
Mr. D. W. McLachlan, Engineer in charge of the St. Lawrence Waterway
Project, Mr. J. T. Johnstone, Director Dominion Water Power and Reclama-
tion Service and Mr. Louis E. Côté, Chief Engineer of the Department of Marine,
and on the 30th January, 1929, made a report which is part of Exhibit No. 17,
in the file of the Public Works Department 804-1-D.

(16) Certain paragraphs of this report are as follows:

83. The 40,000 c.f.s. diversion project can be authorized without
injury to existing navigation, if the plans submitted are subject to modi-

fication and to regulations embodyinq the restrictions referred to in this
report.

89. Having regard to the application under the Navigable Waters
Protection Act, now under consideration, your Committee are of the
opinion that the site and works proposed in the plans and application
filed by the said Company will not impede or interfere with navigation
on the St. Lawrence River if the conditions attached hereto are met by
the Company and, having consideration to the interests of the country
as a whole, we are of the opinion that if the works are constructed in
accordance with such application and plans subject to the said con-
ditions the same can be efficiently utilized in connection with and as
part of any feasible and economical scheme which the Government of
Canada may eventually decide upon for the deep waterway development
of the St. Lawrence River.

14. The works proposed by the Beauharnois Company consist of
the following:

1. A canal extending from Hungry Bay, at the foot of Lake St.
Francis to Melocheville, at the head of Lake St. Louis, said
canal being contained between banks which are 1,100 feet apart
where hard materials are encountered, and 4,100 feet apart,
where soft materials are encountered.

2. A power house at Melocheville equipped with ten 50,000 F.P.
units.
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3. Regulating works at Thorn Island and at Leonard Island. These
are designed to hold up the level of Lake St. Francis, when a
diversion of 40,000 c.f.s. from that Lake is made.

4. A series of works in the four rapid stretches of the river between
Thorn Island and the head of Lake St. Louis. These are
designed to maintain existing depths in channels, and also to
maintain existing levels at the head and foot of the Cedar Rapids
works.

15. The works proposed by the Beauharnois Company affect in vary-
ing degrees canal navigation, river navigation, power developments, and
future plans for a deep waterway.

(17) The Committee expressed disapproval of the remedial works and
channel improvements and in Paragraph 28 stated that the Committee while
offering the suggestions aforementioned can only recommend approval of these
works subject to modifications to meet conditions as experience shows them to
be necessary. In Paragraph 31, the Committee says, " the design of renedial
works for use in the Rapids below Grande Island is not yet worked out in a
satisfactory manner." It will thus be seen that the approval of this Committee
was qualified and that certain of the plans were not in their view sufficient.

(18) On the 8th March, 1929, Order in Council P.C. 422 was approved by
His Excellency the Governor General on the report from the Minister of Public
Works. This Order in Council recites the application of the 17th January,
1928, the deposit of plans, the grant of the emphyteutic lease and the report of
the aforementioned engineers.

(19) It sets out twenty-eight conditions, subject to which the recommenda-
tion for approval is made.

(20) The Committee, on the recommendation of the Minister of Public
Works, submitted for His Excellency's approval, under Section 7, Chapter 140,
Revised Statutes of Canada, 1927-the Navigable Waters Protection Act-
(Subject to the foregoing conditions and to such additions, improvements, altera-
tions, changes, substitutions, modifications or removals as mav be ordered or
required thereunder), the annexed plans of works and the site thereof according
to the descriptions and plans attached in booklet form, which works were pro-
posed to be constructed by the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company
with respect to the diversion of 4j0,000 c.f.s. from Lake St. Francis to Lake St.
Louis in connection with a power canal to be built by the said Company along
the St. Lawrence River between the two lakes mentioned.

(21) By reference to the large plan submitted with the application, and
referred to in the Order in Council P.C. 422, and which is Exhibit No. 2A, it
will be observed that there are two cross sections shown, one at Mileage 144.3
which shows a width between the embankments of about 1,100 feet, this being
typical of the rock section of the work. This cross section also shows a width
at the bottom of the deep section of the canal of something over 1,000 feet. In
the cross section which is given as typical for each section, at Mileage 152-0
the width between the embankments is shown as about 4,100 feet, and the
bottom of the deep section, approximately 27 feet, is shown as having a width
of about 500 feet.

(22) Subsequently on the 29th July, 1929, modified plans were submitted
to the Department of Public Works by the Company, and for these there were
on the 22nd August, 1930, certain other plans -substituted. None of these bas
as yet received'the approval of the Minister of Public Works, although the
Chief Engineer of the Department has recommended them for approval. Plans
submitted on the 22nd August, 1930, did include plans for the remedial works,
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but such plans were subsequently withdrawn and as the matter now stands there
is flot before the Department for approval any plan or plans of these remedial
works.

(23) On the lOth February, 1931, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power
Company applied to the Quebec authorities for a lease of a further 30,000 cubie
feet per second, and has now obtained this right.

(24) On the 25th June, 1929, an agreement was entered into between the
Beauhiarnois Light, Heat and Power Company and is Majesty represented
therein by the Minister of Public Works of Canada, Exhibit No. 43, which
agreement incorporates the terms and conditions of P.C. 422.

(25) On the 6th 'November, 1929, the Governor General in Councîl passed
three Orders in Council, numbers P.C. 2201, 2202 and 2203, authorizing the
transfer of three water powver leases from the Montreal Cotton Company to the
Beauharnois Lighit, Heat and Power Company, and on the 3rd December, 1929,
three agreements were entered into between the Montreal Cotton Company, the
Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, and is Majesty represented
thberein by the 'Minister of Railwnys and Canais of Canada (Exhibits 7A, 8A
and 9A) by virtue of which the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company
aequired with the consent of is Nlajesty thc right to use and divert into the
canal to be built 13,072 cubic second feet presently used by the Cotton Company
at or near Vallevfield under an effective head of about 10 feet.

.(26) A difficulty may arise in connectiýon with these three leases by reason
of the fact that the Departmrent of Public Works takes the position that under
the Order in Council P.C. 422 there is only authority to grant an opening in
the Hungry Bay dyke sufficient to take 40,000 cubic feet a second (Sc Evidence
Page 363).

(27) On the 5th Deceinher. 1929,. the Lieutenant Governor in Council of
Quebec passed an Order in Council authorizing the diversion of this 13,072
fecet.

(28) On the 20t1i M-'archi, 1930, the Charter of the Beauharnois Light, Heat
and Power Company w-as further amended by cnactment 20 George V, Chapter
136 (Quebec), which extended the expropriation powers of the Company 50 that
for the purpose of building its new canal it rnight " expropriate such lands as
mav be necessary, not exceeding in ahl 21 arpents in width."

(29) In the final result, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Pow-er Company
appear to have obtained from the Dominion of Canada, Orders in Council pur-
porting to authorize the diversion of 53,072 cubic second feet, subject to their
obtaining permission to breachr the llungry Bay dyke sufficiently for that
purpose, and subject also to compliance with the conditions of the Orders in
Council and the approvals of plans.

(30) They have also obtained from the Province of Quebec a 75 year lease
for 40,000 cuhie second feet, authority from the Lieutenant Governor in Council
of Quebec to acquire the use of 13,072 c.s.f., and in 1931 the right to use an
additional 30,000 c.s.f.

5. CORPORATE ORGANIZATION

(1) There were two syndicates prior to the incorporation of the Beauhiarnois
Power Corporation Limited, the presenit holding company, the first being the
Beauharnois Syndicate and the second the Beauharnois Power Syndicate. These
w ill be referred to, sometimes, for convenience as the Fîrst Syndicate and the
Second Syndicate, respectively.

A.D. 1932 22ND APRIT,



1THE FIRsT SYNDICATE

(2) About the l2thl May, 1927, Mr. -Sweezey organized the s yndicate known
as the Beauharnois Syndicate, having 5,000 units; or part interests. This Syndi-
cate existed until the 4th April, 1928, atý which date the holdings were as
f ollows:

Members

Blaiklock, S. Turnstall. .......... ........ ....... ...........
Crédit Générale du Canada ..... .......................
Dobeli, Wm. M... ý.... . ..... .... ... ....................
Geoffrion, Aimé P. .. .. . . . . .... .. - -. . . . . .
Griffith, Hugh B ......... ...... ..............
Ibbotson, Ivan L ... >.................... .................
Molson, F. S........ ....... ...... ................ .........
Moyer, L. Clare ................. ..................
McGinnis, Thos. A.......- ... -..................
Newman, Henry ...... ............................
Newman, Sweezey & Co., Ltd., In Trust. .....................
Robert, Wm. H............ ......... ...................

omuLi.a1

Number
of part

interests
- - i

25
800
50

200
150
25

350
800
100
50

1,050
100

Issue
price

100 00
37 .50

100 00
100 00
10000
100 00
45 71
37 50

100 00
100 00
42 86

1(00(A
100 00

Amnount

2,500
30,000
5,000

20,000
15, 000O
2,500

16,(00
30, 000,
10,000
5,000

45,000
10,000
1,000

Stadier, John 10. 10 ....... .. 10.......00.....0
Sthdera, oh . .................. ............................... 5 100 100 2,500

Steele, R. W............... ................................ 250 100 ()0 25,000
Sweezy, R. O. ....... ........... ............ ................. 900 . ..... 30,000
Kenny, T. Fred ..................................... 5 100 00 1.50w

5,000......... ...... 261,000

(3) The units asubscribed for in the name of the Credit, Generale du Canada.
were subscribed and held for Senator Donat Raymond.

(3A) 1,000 of the units in the name of Newman, Sweezey & Company,
Limited, were held for Frank P. Jones and 50 for Fred M. Conneil. The Honour-
able Walter G. Mitchell had a haif interest in Mr. Jones' holdings.

(4) The units in the name cf L. Clare Moyer are said to have been
subscribed on behaif cf the late Winfield Sîfton. Senator Wilfrid L. McDougald
states that on the 18th May, 1928, he agreed te acquire them, the transaction
being completed about the end of that month.

(5) The units in the name cf R. W. Steele-were held for the Dominion
Securities Corporation.

(6) The price te subscribers Raymond and Moyer was $37.50 per unit and
Frank P. Jones acquired 800 of his and Mr. Mitchell's 'units from Newman,
Sweezey & Company, Limited, at the same price.

(7) 0f the 900 units in the name of R. O. Sweezey. 600 were issued pursuant
te the syndicate agreement for consideration other than cash and the balance
of 300 subscribed for at $100 per unit.

(8) The 350 units subscribed for by F. S. Molson were at an average price
of $45.71 per unit.

(9) The Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited, units were at an average
price of 842.86 and ail other subscribeis paid at the rate cf $100 per unit.

(10) The average price cf the 4,400 units sold for cash was $59.32.

THE SECOND SYNDICATE

(11) On the 4th April, 1928, the Beauhiarnois Power Syndicate xvas organ-
ized and acquired the assets cf the Beauharnois Syndicate, the consideration
being two units cf the new Syndicate for each one unit cf the old Syndicate
with the right te unit bolders te subscribe for as many units in the new syndicate
as each already held therein at $100 per unit, being the par value thereof.
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(12) The members of the Beauharnois Power Syndicate holding 100 or
more units or part interests, as on the l7th December, 1,929, were as f ollows-

Number

Members of Part
Interests

Gerald E. F. Aylmer & E. J. Mackell. ............................... ...... 100
S. Turnstali Blaikloek ..... .................................... ......... 100
A. L. Caron........................ ..................................... 221
Fred M. Conneli........................ ............. .................. 200
H. V. Gullinan & D. M. Garmichaci .... ................... «.................250
William M. Dobeil. .............. .................................... 200
Dominion Securities Corporation, Ltd ...-.... ......... 1,492
John P. Ebbs......................... ...... ........... ........... ... 5,200
Aimé Geoffrion........ ............................. .................... 800
Hugh B. Griffith ......... .......-........................ .......... 600
Hanson Brothers ne ......... ..... -................... .................... 110
G. J. Hlodgson & Go................... ............ ..... ........... ....... 175
Angxs W. Hodgson ...... .......... ... .......... ....... ............ 740
J. Charles Hope ....... ....... ......... ...........-..............--........ 130
Jones Heward & Co:... -....... ....... ...... -.............. >...............210
Thomas A. MeGinnis ....................... ........... ...... ............ 450
F. Stuart Molson. ..... ......-...................... -...... ... -............. 465
F. W. Molson........................... ......... ........ .......... ... 100
Montreul Trust Go... ý........... -........ >............................8,000
Hlenry Newman ........ ......................... ................... 395
Newman, Sweezy & Go., Ltd ............................ 410
O'Brien & Williams ............... ....... >... .......... .................. 101
Joseph H. Pauli.............................. -........ ........... 100
W. C. Pitfield & Go., Ltd ....................... .......-.................. 152
Hon. Donat Raymond ...... ...... ............ .... .......... ....... ....... 351
Ritchie (R. L.) and GimDre (K. F.) in trust .... -............ ....... ...... 350
Wm. H. Robert, Joseph H. Robert, Miss Sarah M. Robert, personally, and as

execu Lors of the late Sarah Robert ..... .............. 200
W illiam H. Robert.... . .. . . .. . . . .. . . . . .. . . . 366
William Sutherland ...........-..................... ... ........ ............ 1.00
Robert O. Sweezey .... ........-............ -..... ......................... 1,000
Part interest holders of less than 100 part interests ........................ 1,932

25,000

Ail of these with the exception of part interests exchanged for holdings
of part interests in the first syndicate, aiîd the 2,000 part interests that were
used to, purchase the shares of the Sterling Corporation, and also except 200
units issued to the Robert heirs, were paid for at the rate of $100 per part
interest. These 2,000 units are ineluded above in the holdings of John P. Ebbs.

The 5,200 units in his name were held for Hon, W. L. McDougald, and will
be referred to hereafter.

(12A) The capital of the Beauharnois Syndicate consisted of 30,000 units
at the par value of $100 each, of which 25,000 were issued.

(13) The tangible assets of the first or Beauharnois Syndicate totalled not
over $261,000 as on the 4th April, 1928.

BEAUHiAJis LiGUT, HEAlT AND POWER COMPANY

(14) This Company has beexi in existence sipce 1902, as previously
înentioned. The control passeed to Mr. Sw eezey and his associates on or about
the 3rd February, 1927. Under the agreement of that date (Exhibit No. 60)
and according to the Minutes of the meeting of the Directors held on that
day, Mr. H. B. Griffith was elec'ted a Director and Secretary of the Company.
It was not, however, until the l3th June, 1927, that a Board of Directors
consisting of Mr. Sweezey and his associates including Mr. R. W. Steele, repre-
senting the Dominion Securities Corporation, took charge of the Company's
affairs.



BEA.ulHARNOIS POWE~R CORPORATION LiMITED

(15) This Company was incorporated on the 1lth September, 1929, by
the Ottawa legal firmi of McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs by letters patent under
,the Dominion Companies Act. It was granted wide powers of acquisition and
development of natural resouýrces and in connection with the production, use,
distribution or disposai of energy, poe, vater, liglht or heat.

(16) The aut}iorizcd capital stock is fixe Management Preferred shares
without nominal or par value; 1,799,995 Class A Common shares without nominal
or par value and 3,200.000 Class B non-voting Common shares without nominal
or par value.

(17) The holders of the five Management Preferred shares durîng the ten
years next succeeding the date of the letters patent have the exclusive right to
vote for the election of Directors of the Company. At the expiry of this period
these automatically become Class A Common shares.

(1ý8) At a meeting of the Company on the 3lst October, 1929, held at
ilie office of Messrs. McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs in the City of Ottawa, a
proposed memorandumn of agreement, dated thec 31 st October, 1929, between the
i3eauliarnois Power Syndicate, the Marquette Investment Corporation and the
Beauhiarnois Powcr Corporation Limited, was submitted providing for the
acquisition by the Company or its nominees of' ahl the undertakings and assets
of the syndicate except unpaid or uncal!ed balances in respect of purchases of
untits or part, interests of the syndîite. The consideration was:

(a> $4,750,000 cash;
(b) the assumption by the Company of the liabilities and obligations of the

syndicate, and
(c) the undertaking by the Corporation to defray expenses xîot exeeeding

$10,000 of the winding up of the affairs of the syndicate and the
distribution of its asSts anmongst, the inembers.

The s-Yndic ate, on the othier bond, agrced to subseribe at $1 per share for
1,000,000 Class A Commun shares of the Company.

(19) It was resolvcd that this memorandum of agreement be approved and
executcd on bebaîf of the Company.

(20) The Directors pr&ert at this nmeeting were 0. F. Howe, and D. K.
McTavish, Barristers of Ottaw'a, and the Misseýs Belle Fraser, Lyla Brennan,
Fdythe H. O'M,ýalley, Bessie Conniffe, Lillian Dell, Elsie M. Burritt, Gwcn
G,,underson, Kathîcea Havey and 'Mary H. Kelly, stenographers, ahl of the City
of Ottawa.

(21) At this same meeting, according to the minutes, there xvas authorized
ii proposed agreement, dated the 31st October, 1929, bet.ween Beauharnois Power
Corporation Limited of the first part and Newman, Sweezey & Company,
Limited and the Dominion Securities Corporation of the second part, providing
for the creation and issue of thirty year 6 per cent collateral trust sinking fund
bonds of the Company to the authorized principal amount of $30,000,000 ani
for the sale to Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited and the Dominion
Securities Corporation of the said bonds, tegetlier xvith 7470,000 Class A- Common
shares of the Company for the price of $27,000,000 and accrued interest of said
bonds. This agreement was subscquenily ratified by the shareholders at a
meeting held on the same day and at the same place, the above named Dîrectors
being a11 of the shareholders and all being present.

(22) The agreements were subsequentlv executed and carried out. The
Beauharnois Power Syndicate was dissolved as of the l7th December, 1929, iLs
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tangible assets -at the time consisting of the amount paid ýin-aggregating for the
two syndicates $1,561,000. This includes unpaid balances of subiscriptions which
on the final settlement were deducted from the amounts payable to the individual
members, and $20,000 par of units issued to Robert in part payment for Robert's
rights.

(23) The tangible consideration received in respect of the 25,000 part
interests issued by the Beauharnois Power Syndicate may be shown thus:

Particulars IntPart Amount

Issued to member.; of Beauharnois Syndicate for the acquisition of the under-
taking of that Syndicate................................. ........ 10,000 261,000

Issued for cash consideration ..... .......................... .............. 13,000 1,300,000
Issued for the capital stock of Sterling Industrial Corporation Limited ............ 2,000 ............

25,000 1,561,(00

For purpose.i of exactness, it should perhaps be noted that the above amount of $1,300,000 includes,
$20,000 in respect of 200 part. interests of Beauharnois Power Syndicate issued as fully paico to the Robert
Heirs in part consideration of the purchase of the shares of Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company.

etc.

(24) As a result of the agreement above mentioned, the Syndicate members
receive for each part interest $150, and 40 Class A shares of the Beauharnois
Power Corporation Limited, which Glass A shares are set up in the books of the
Company at $1 per share and have had a market value as high as $17 per share,
the low price being $4 per share.

(25) On the above basis the cash profit paid to the members of the Syn-
dicate would amount to $2,189,000, to which should be added 1,000,000 Class A
shares, whicb were purchased by an additional $1,000,000 part of the con-
sideration for the transfer of the Syndicate assets. The above mentioned
$2,189,000 was paid out of $27,000,000 received from the sale of the bonds and
shares under the agreement with Newman, Sweezey and Company, Limited, and
the Dominion Securities Corporation.

(26) The Marquette Investment Company is a company controlled by
Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited, and organized for the purpose of acting
as trustee and depository and dispersement agent of the Beauharnois Syndicate.
(Exhibit No. 59).

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

(27) There are also the following wholly owned subsidiaries of the Beau-
harnois Power Corporation Limited, in addition to the Beauharnois Light, Heat
and Power Company, namely-

Thc Beauharnois Construction Company, having charge of the actual work
of construction under contract; and the

Beauharnois Transmission Company, having to do with the actual trans~-
mission lines and the transmission of the electric energy to be produced; the

Beauharnois Land Company, in which is vested the lands of the Company,
including land acquired in addition to all that required for actual canal con-
struction and which it is hoped to dispose of for industrial site, residence and
other purposes in connection therewith; the

Beauharnois Railway Company, organized to build and operate the 'con-
struction railway; the

41765--12
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Marquette Construction Company, a Delaware corporation, organized to
purchase in the United States and lease to the Canadian Construction Company
certain machinery which it is hoped to return duty free to the United States
after use on the canal, where it is said to be more readily saleable.

6. AUTHORITY FOR CONSTRUCTION WORK

(1) According to Mr. Henry, actual construction on the north embankment
was commenced on the 7th August, 1929, in the vicinity of Lake St. Francis,
and on the south embankment on the 23rd April 1930.

(2) Condition 11 of Order in Council P.C. 422 provides that the Company
shall not commence the construction of the works until detailed plans of con-
struction ". . . have been submitted and approved of by the Minister. . . ,"

(3) The work as it is being carried out is not in accordance with the plans
referred to in this Order in Council in certain important respects, viz.:-

(1) The banks are about 3,300 feet apart, whereas the original plans
show a width of about 1,100 feet in the rock section and 4,100 feet in
the earth section.

(2) The width at the bottom of the navigation part of the canal
is shown in the original plan, Exhibit No. 2A, in one place as considerably
less than 600 feet, and in another at considerably more, whereas the
actual 27-foot channel is being dug at a bottom width of 600 feet.

(3) The entrance to the canal from Lake St. Francis according to
the last plan filed on the 22nd August, 1930, and as actually being
excavated, is some 3,000 feet northerly and nearer the head of the Cedar
Rapids than shown on the Plan, Exhibit No. 2A.

(4) The remedial works shown on the original plan have not been approved
either by Order in Council or by the Minister.

(5) The Hungry Bay dyke has been breached and a substitute feeder for
the old St. Louis feeder dug on the south side of the proposed canal wholly
without governmental authority.

(6) Certain questions have been raised as to the rights to pass Order in
Council P.C. 422:-

(1) Does the Navigable Waters Protection Act give the Governor
General in Council the right to authorize the diversion of the water
from a navigable river?

(2) Can any of the powers given under that Act to the Governor
General in Council be delegated to a Minister, or to anyone?

(3) Is the right of the Governor General in Council limited to the
approval of plans already submitted, i.e., can the Governor General in
Council approve of plans to be submitted in the future.

(4) Can the Governor General in Council approve of the plans after
the work has been done or partly done, or in the alternative is his power
limited to approval of work the plans of which have been submitted
before the commencement of the work.

(7) Your Committee finds as a fact that the work of construction is
proceeding according to plans which have not received the approval of the
Governor in Council or of the Minister of Public Works.

7. HUNGRY BAY DYKE

(1) The Province of Canada in 1856 and subsequent year, constructed a
dyke along the shore of that part of Lake St. Francis known as Hungry Bay.
This dyke at Confederation passed to the control of the Dominion of Canada,
and it has since been maintained through the agency of the Federal Department
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of Railways and Canals. It will be necessary before water can be diverted to
the canal from Lake St. Francis that permission be obtained from the Crown
in the right of the Dominion of Canada to breach this dyke.

(2) An application was made on the 29th day of July, 1929, for a con-
veyance to the Company of that part of the dyke opposite the lands owned by
the Beauharnois Company, to the extent of 9,064 feet measured along the dyke.
This application is now pending.

8. AMBIGUITY IN ORDER IN COUNCIL

(1) Condition Number 3 of Order in Council P.C. 422 provides that " the
diversion of water shall not at any time exceed the maximum quantity of 40,000
cubic feet per second." If this means that at no time can the quantity of water
diverted exceed 40,000 cubic feet per second, it is doubtful whether 500,000 h.p.
can be developed by the use of that quantity of water, even adding thereto the
13,072 cubic second feet obtained by assignment of the Montreal Cotton Com-
pany's lease.

(2) Your Committee is of the opinion that any ambiguity in this respect
should be removed.

9. CONTROL OF WATER

(1) The present plans do not provide for the control of the water at the
entrance to the proposed canal. It lias been stated in evidence that for this
purpose and for reasons of safety, some method of control should be adopted,whether by way of a dam and gates, or a control lock at this point.

(2) Considerable time was spent by Mr. Henry in an endeavour to establish
that proper control could be maintained by the Dominion authorities at the
gates leading to the water wheels.

(3) Your Committee was impressed with the idea that there should be
some means of control at the entrance to the canal.

10. SITE OF WORKS

(1) The topography of the locality and the ground at the site of the works
are of such a character as to render possible and of comparatively easy attain-
ment the large power development contemplated at a quite reasonable cost.

(2) Your Committee is of the opinion that from the physical standpoint a
power development on the south shore of the Soulanges section of the St.
Lawrence River is fundamentally sound and that with proper safeguards and
regulation a navigable canal can be developed synchronously with the power
development and utilized as a link in the St. Lawrence Great Waterway, at a
reasonable cost to the Dominion of Canada for locks and bridges.

(3) While the present plans are not in accordance with the proposals of
the International joint Board for this section of the river mentioned in their
Report of 1926, nevertheless, in view of the amount of money already expended,
and of the possibility, as we believe, of the utilization of this canal for naviga-
tion purposes, we think that from the navigation standpoint the scheme should
not be abandoned.

Reference will now be made to those portions of the Report of the Commons
Committee which affect specifically any Honourable Member of the Senate, the
Senators so specifically named are Senator Wilfrid Laurier McDougald, Senator
Andrew Haydon and Senator Donat Raymond.
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SENATOR WILFRID L. MçDOUGALD

The following extracts constitute a summary appearing in the Gommons
Report of the evidence and findings as affecting Senator McDougald. Beneath
ecd extract will be found any comments or modifications of the findings of the
Gommons Commitee which after having heard further evidence we feel it our
duty to make.

PARAGRAPHS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6

(1) Senator McDougald u'as first summoned to the Senate on the
25th June, 1926, but owing to the dissolution of Parliament was not then
sworn in. and his appointment lapsed. Hle was again summoned in. October
of that same year and was sworn in. the following year. Since 1922, except
for a short interval in. 1926, until 1930, Senator McDougald occupied the
position of Chairman of the Mon treal Harbour Board and, as he stated irn
evidence, assumed a position of high responsibiity in. connection with the
development of the St. Lawrence Deep WFaterway.

This Commnittee finds that this is correct, except that Senator McDougald
was summoned to the Senate June 25, 1M~, and took his seat 9th December,
1926, and not as stated in the said paragraph.

(2) In. May, 1924, the thon Dr. McDougald was appointed a membe?'
of the National Advisory Committee, whose membership included the
Honourable G. P. Graham, as Chairman, and Honourable Clifford Sif ton,
and several gentlemen interested in existing hydro-electrie power develop-
ments.

(3) On the 20th April, 1928, Senator McDougald was appointed a
member of the Special Committee of the Senate to inquire into and report
from time to time on the matter of the development and improvement of
the St. Lawrence River for the pur poses of navigation and production of
electric current and power and matters incidental to such a pro ject. That
Committee held severol meetings in the month of May, 1928, and to which
reference will be made more specifically hereafter.

(4) In. 1923, Mr. McDougald becaine associated with Mr. R. A. C.
Henry, as has been previously pointed out in. this report, and as a result
the Sterling Industrial Corporation Limited was incorporated and applica-
tions made to the Departments of Public Works and Railways and Canals
on the 5th and 7th July, 1924, as already indicated.

(5) From, this small beginning, the interests of Senator McDougald
have expanded until at the time of his giving his evidence ho was Chair-
man of the Board of the Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited, elected
on the 2Oth of December, 1929, the holder of Management Preferred
Shares; a director of the Beau harnois Light, Heat and Power Comnpany,.
the Beauharnois Construction Company, the Beauharnois Land Company,
and the Beauharnois Transmission Company.

(6) This expansion is almost comparable to the present Beauharnois
Pro jeet as compared wcith the original St. Louis feeder.

This Committee finds that tic report of the Commons set out in tic above
paragrapis is complctely establisicd.
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PARAGRAPHS 7, 8 and 9
(7) The application of the Sterling Industrial Corporation was

allowed to lie dormant until some time in 1928. On the l8th of May,
1928, Senator McDougald agreed to take over 800 units of the flrst syndi-
cate which had been subscribed for by Mr. Clare Moyer on the 4th of
April, 1928, the day upon which, that syndicate was dissolved, and upon
which day a payment of $15,000 was made by Mr. Moyer, of moneys
whidh he says he received in cash from Mr. Winfield Su ton. A further
payment was made on the lSth of May, in an amount of $15,000 out of
moneys which Air. Moyer says ware raceived by him frorn Mr. Si! ton by
ivay of a bank draft containing no information as to the pcrson who wus
providing the funds.

(8) The 800 units thus acquirad by Senator McDougald bacame
1,6'00 units on the formation of the second syndicate, and ha, in the nama
of Mr. Moyer, subscribed as he had the right to do for 1,600 more units
at a price of $100 per unit, and for which ha agreed to pay $160,000 and
on which at the dissolution of the syndicate on the l7th December, 1929,
ho had paid $80,000.

(9) In the meantiîne, however, namely on the 2nd October, 1928,
thase had been transfarred from Mir. Moyer to Mir. John P. Ebbs, a mem-
ber of the Haydon flrin, by reason of some instructions from Senator
McDougald, about which thera seams to be some insolvable mystery, and
about which thora need not have been any mystery at ail if the transac-
tions were an ordinary business one.

This Committee finds that the facts set out in the said Paragraphs 7, 8 and
9 are established, and makes the following comments and findings with respect
to the said purchase by Sonator McDougald.

It has been disclosed at this inquiry that the first two payments made by
Mr. Moyer to the Beauharnois Syndîcate were made with funds supplied him
by Mr. Sifton and deposited by him in the Wall Street Brandi of tie Bank of
Nova Scotia in New York, the first deposit being made on the 3lst March, 1928,
for $15,000, against whîch ho issued a cheque for $15,000 on the 4th April in
f avour of the Marquette Invostmont Corporation, which was tic corporation
used by the Beauharnois Syndicate for receiving and disbursing of its moncys.
This cheque was cashed by the said Corporation on the 6Lh April. On the l7th
day of May, Moyer made a further deposit by way of bank draft in the Bank
of Nova Scotia in New York, and on the iSth of May issued his cheque to the
Marquette Investment Corporation for $15,000, that cheque being cashed by Lhe
Investment Corporation on the 19th day of May. On the 23rd of May, Moyer
deposited in the Standard Bank of Ottawa a bank draft for $16,O00 and issued
his choque against it for $16,000 in favour of the Marquette Investment Corpora-
tion on the 26th day of May, which cheque was cashed by tiat Corporation on
the 1sf day of June, 1928.

Senator McDougald says tint hoc purcliased the part interests subscribed
for by Moyer on the l8th day of May, 1928, by having delivered to the late
Winfield Sifton tie real owner of the part interests carried in Lie name of Moyer,
Dominion of Canada Bonds to the face value of $46,000, delivery being made
tirougli his solicitor, Mr. Barnard, and bis financial man, Mr. Banks; tie
delivery of the Bonds in the sum of $46,000 iaving been made ail at Lhe one Lime.

is evidence before the Commons Committee contradiets this statement.
He there said that the Bonds dolivered to Sifton on this occasion were in Lie
sum of $30,000 only, giving his roason tierofor that he did not wisi to take on a
commitment for Lhe 1,600 part intere-sts in the Second Syndicate, on wiich tiere
was payable 10 per cent or tie sumn of $16,000.
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It should be borne in mind, as disclosed by the evidence of Mr. Clifford
Sifton, that there were no entries in the books of his brother, the late Winfield
B. Sifton, nor were there any documents indicating the purchase of these part
interests by Mr. Sifton, nor their sale to Senator McDougald. There were no
Bonds of any description forming part of the assets of his estate, nor moneys
representing the amount of the said bonds to the credit of his bank account,
nor any charges to the said bank account in any way indicating the purchase
of the said part interest by him.

In fact, the acquisition of the part interests carried in the name of Moyer
by Senator McDougald is completely shrouded in mystery, when there was no
occasion for mystery whatever, and leaves -the whole transaction open to the
very gravest suspicion that Sifton, in his purchase through Moyer, was at all
times acting in whole or in part for Senator McDougald and using Senator
McDougald's money from the 31st March, 1928, when Moyer made the deposit
in New York up to the end of the whole transaction.

Senator McDougald gives as his reason for not having his name appear
as the owner of these part interests, that he did not wish other persons to
follow him in his investment. It must be borne in mind that these were not
part interests open to the general public, the investment being offered only to
persons of whom Mr. Sweezey or the management committee approved, and
that the public, therefore, could not have been influenced or injured by the
fact that Senator McDougald was interested in the Beauharnois Project.

If, as is usual in busines matters, Senator McDougald had simply issued
bis cheque to the late Winfield B. Sifton, there would in that act be no such
revelation to the public of bis interest in Beauharnois as would have con-
stituted an invitation or signal for other members of the public to follow.

PARAGRAPHS 10 and 11

(10) As previously pointed out, Senator McDougald through his
representative, Mr. Ebbs, acquired for the five issued shares of the capital
stock of the Sterling Industrial Corporation, Limited, 2,000 part interests
in the second syndicate. These units were given for a corporation the
rights of which, as has been pointed out by Mr. Cameron, Chief En-
gineer of the Public Works Department, on page 1019 of the evidence
"would be of no value". The agreement was made in the Fall of 1928,
and the Beauharnois Company considered these shares to be of such
value that they still remain endorsed in blank, and have never been
transferred on the books of the Company. It can hardly be pretended
that this Company had any value, even as suggested, any "nuisance
value" or was or could be thought to be any serious obstacle in itself
to the application of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company
to the Governor General in Council then pending. If so, there were two
former applications in the Department, one of which at least was
based on an alleged acquisition of the Robert rights, which rights were
the foundation of the Beauharnois application. Still, the carrying ont
of the agreement was made conditional upon favourable action by the
Governor General in Council, and it is beyond belief that had that
Company not been owned by Senator McDougald, who represented him-
self to be a close friend of the administration, and R. A. C. Henry, soon
destined to become Deputy Minister of Railways and Canals, or others
equally influential, the Beauharnois Power Syndicate would have hardly
considered paying for it even the nominal amount that had been sub-
scribed as its capital stock, much less 2,000 units, which ultimately
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became $300,000 in money and 80,000 shares of the Beauharnois Power
Corporation Limited but would doubtless have received the samne
consideration as was accorded the other prior applicants-namely the
privilege of being completely ignored.

(11) It is sugge.sted that the handing over of this large number of
uiswas in order to induce Mr. Hlenry to go over to the Beauharnois

CJompany. IVhy any inducement, other than a doubling of his salary
which actuaily occurred, should have been necessary in order to induce
the man who had for at least six or seven years been most anxious to
be connected with a Beauharnois Pro ject is difficuit to understand, and
your C.ominittee cannot accept that as the explanation. On the contrary
we are convinced that the "nuisance ?)a#1.e" consisted in the necessity of
a. large inducement to Senator McDo agald in order that he, a possible
obstacle in the attainrncnt of the objecis o 'f the syndicate, might becorne
s0 vitally intercîtcd therein that any possible opposition on his part
might be obvia ted.

This Commnittee finds that the statenients contained in the said Paragraphs
7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 are proven.

PARAGRAPHS 12, 13, 14 and 15

Paragraphs 12, 13, 14 and 15 deal with the evidence given by Mr. Henry
before the Special Senate Cornmittee and are relevant as relating to Senator
McDougald's participation in these transactions.

(12) That Senator £VcDougald vas a factor in the success of this
ventuire is a.pparent frorn the Proceedings of the Special Committee o *f
the Senate above referresd to, of which he v)as a member. It appears
that on the 3lst of May, 1928, he was instrunental in ha.ving Mr. Henry,
then his partner in the Sterling Comnpany, corne before that Committee
arnd answer certain questions, These questions had (Sec page 215 of
the Proceedings) been prepared beforehand by Senator McDougald and
submitted to Mr. Henry.

(13) Mr. Swveezey in his evidence makes it ver'y clear that the
reason for, his having done sorne cf the extraordinary things which he
did do was that time wa.s of great importance from the staendpoint of
flnancing the enterpnise, owing to the threatened financial crisis.

(14) On the 25th May, 1928, Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, Chief Counsel
for the Beauharnots Syndicate, and who according to his bill for
prof essional services had a num ber of interviews, starting on the l7th
December, 1927, with Senetor McDougald, wrote to Sena.tor McDougald
urging that there iwas "no reason for delaying the application to the
Dominion Execulive for approval of the Beauharnois pluns under the
Navigable Waters Act."

(15) The last question which Senator MVcDougald aslced Mr. Henry
on this occasion, on the 3lst of May, 1928, was as follows: (Page 232 of
the Commîttee's Proceedings.)

Hon. Mr. McDougald: The last question u'hich I have, Mr. Henry,
is, in your opinion should the improvemnent of the St. Lawrence Waterway
be gone on with as soon as possible, and if so, why?

It is to be recalled that thirteen days previously on his own
testimony, Senator McDougald had agreed to become interested in this
enterprise to the extent of 800 Part Interests in the Beauharnois Syndicate.

The above Paragraphs 12, 13, 14 and 15 are in every way justified in the
evidence.
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STATEMENTS IN SENATE

PARAGRAPEIS 16, 17 and 18

Paragraphs 16, 17 and 18 of the summary have to do with the correctness
and bona fides of certain statements made to the Senate by Senator McDougald
and are am follows:-

(1e) On the l9th of April, 1928, Senator McDougald in a speech
delivered by 1dm frorn his place ini the Sena.te stated: "I want to say
here, and to say it with emphasis, that J do not own a dollar's worth of
stock in this enterprise, and have no interest in or association with that
Company in any way, shape or form" . .. "So far as I m'yself amn

concerned I cannot add too much emphasis to my denial of the sus picions
and aspersions which these despatches' (referring to despatches of the
Toronto Mail and Empire and the Globe of April 18, 1928) "have cast
upon me as a mem ber of the Advi8ory Commnittee, as a member of this
honourable body, and as a private citizen."

(17) On the 2Oth of May. 1931, Senator McDougald, in referring te>
his former stateni~ent on this subject, and the date thereof, the l9th of
A prit, 1928, made the followving stategncnt from his place in the Senate.:
"Honourable 1Members of the Sena te, bef are the orders of the day I rise
on a question of privilege. According to the newspapers of this mnorning
my honour and întegrity as a meci of this House have been attacked
in another place, and I desire to draw attention at once to a statement
which I made in the Senate in. Aprl, 1928, regarding my position in the
much-discussed Beauharnois Power Comnpany. Newspaper articles had
reflected on myself aînd other memnbers of the National Advisory
Commuittee reporting an the St. Lawrene Waterways. It was însinuated
that our decisions and recommerdations were influenced by persona[
interest i n powcr developnient on, the St. Lawrence. In this Hos 1
stated at the time that I had no interest in the Beau harnoîs Power

Company or in the syndicate. That wa8 absolutely true aend correct. 1
may say at once that up ta that time . . ." (that is April, 1928). "1
had been invited on many occasions ta become a member of that syndicate
but had always declined. Af ter that date I was asked again, and had
the whale pro ject investigated fram every angle. When I was satis lied
that it was a pro pcr pro ject for mie as a member of this Sena te, as a
business mon, and a citizen, of Cana dua., to take a financial interest in, 1
agreed ta do so. Santie six ',nnths later, in Octaber, 1928, I took an
interest in the Beauharnois Syndica te."

(18) On Page 930 af thec Evidence appear these Questions and

Answers.-

By the Chairman:
Q. That is not a correct statenment, Senator, I suggest ta yau?-A. I

suggest, Sir, that it is a correct state ment.
Q. Then your evidence yesterday wvas 'wrang, because you baught

from Sif tan in May?-A. I did not appear in it until October. Mr. Ebbg
was my representative in October, and I became active in it in October.

Q. Is that your explanatian for that stotement?-A. That is myî
explana-tian for that statement. I was in the syndicate-

Q. Why, of course, you were in the syndicate; here is your evidencel
-A. The end of May, 1930, and not when I made the speech in the
Senate.
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Q. You say in your speech, distin-ctly that in October, 1928, you first
took an interest in the Beauharnois Syndicate. Yesterday in your sworn
testirnony you admîtted that you had purchased from Sif ton in May,
1928?-A. That is correct.

Q. I suggest to you that your statement in the Senate was entirely
wrong?-A. It may have been ambiguous, but it was not wrong. What
I meant was I came into it in& October through Mr. Ebbs. That is the
first time I came into it.

Q. Just before you go on with that, Mr. White, I want to complete
the question I was putting to the Senator a moment ago (To the witness).
While iou were making this ambiguous speech, as you cail it now, in the
Senate on the 2Oth May, 1931, of course, you were interested with Mr.
Henry in the Sterling Industrial Corporationi'-A. That is right.

In expressing concurrence with the above this Committee calis attention as
well to the following considerations making some comment or expression of opin-
ion thereon. The entire speech made by Senator McDougald in the Senate on
19th April, 1928, as taken from the Senate Debates is as f ollows:-

Hon. W. L. McDougald: Honourable gentlemen, I desire to make a
statement on a question of privilege, and to give an absolute denial ta
certain newspaper implications reflecting on my honour and integqrity,
both as a member of this honourable body ami as a private citizen.

The Toronto Globe of April 18, prints a despatch Jrom its Ottawa
correspondent, dealing with the bringing down of correspond ence between
the Canadian and United States Governmnents on the subjeet of the St.
Lawrence waterways, in which it says, amongst other things:-

Hon. Senator McDougald is reputed to be connected with the
Beauharnois Power Company, which recently obtained a charter from
the Quebec Legislature for a gigantie development in the Quebec
section of the St. Lawrence.

The report also contains a number of statements relative to the merits
of private and public construction. I am concerned, however, only in giv-
ing an immediate, une quivocal and absolute denial ta the implication of
the Globe despatch that I arn connected with the Beauharnois Power Com-
pany. I want to say here, and to say it with emphasis, that I do not own
a dollar's worth of stock in this enterprise, ami have no interest in or
association with that company in any way, shape or form.

Now let me deal with a despatch which appcared in the Toronto Mail
ami Empire, also on April 18, and similar to that of the Globe, with the
exception, perhaps, that where the Globe "re putes " the Mail ami Empire
"c suspects".

That the report was mritten by Senator McDougald, Sir Clifford
Si! ton and Thomas Ahearn is believed, and the other members of the
committec pktyed unimportant parts and did not influence the decis-
ion. These three capitalists are either known or suspected of being
interested in power sehemes, ami the proposal ta, develop the national
section first at the expense of private interests who would have the
power, is credited to them ... The criticisms so far advances are
many and pertinent ... that the proposai emiorsed by the Govern-
ment was prepared by power interests represented by Sir Clîfford
Si! ton, Thomas Ahearn ami Senator McDougald.
Speaking for myself, I want to make a further positive and absolute

denial of the implications and suspicions of the Mail ami Empire. The
report was prepared by the Advisory Committee, and by the Advisory
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Committee alone. That the Government put upon that committee men
who presumably knew something about power and power schemes was
probably for the same reason that it puts upon the Railway Commission
men who presumably know something about railways; but for two of the
prominent newspapers of this country to put out an impression to the
public of this and other countries that the members of the committee were
actuated by motives of private gain, or collusion with power interests, is,
I think, an action which is undue, unfair and unwarranted. So far as I
myself am concerned, I cannot add too much emphasis to my denial of
the suspicions and aspersions which these despatches have cast upon me
as a member of the Advisory Committee, as a member of this honourable
body, and as a private citizen. Perhaps I may take some slight comfort
from the fact that this sort of things seems to be one of the ordinary
penalties of public life.

We have already dealt with the question as to whether or not at the time
this speech was made Senator McDougald was the owner in whole or in part
of the Winfield Sifton shares or part interests. Even if, however, we are to
assume that he became the owner only on 18th May, 1928, he was at the time
the above speech was made, and had been for several years before, the owner of
the Sterling Industrial Corporation (subject to an indefinite and un-enforceable
understanding for division of its stock with Mr. Henry) and the Sterling Indus-
trial Corporation was interested directly and very practically as it turned out,
in the St. Lawrence Power and Canalization development at the very point in
question. In the body of the Mail and Empire article it is said that three
capitalists including himself "are either known or suspected of being interested in
power schemes and the proposal to develop the national section first at the
expense of private interests who would have the power, is credited to them."
When, therefore, Senator McDougald made on 19th April, 1928, "positive and
absolute denial of the implications and suspicions of the Mail and Empire," he
was not speaking the language of candor and truth.

Turning now to the speech of Senator McDougald in the Senate on 20th
May, 1931, and assuming again that his purchase of the Sifton interests in
Beauharnois Company was made on the 18th May, 1928, or twenty-nine days
after the speech of 19th April, 1928, we cannot acquit the Senator of lack of
candor again in saying in the latter speech that he became interested "some six
months later, in October, 1928," when the Sifton part interests previously held
in the name of Moyer became held in the name of Ebbs. Senator McDougald
knew quite well that from 18th May, 1928, to October 2nd, 1928, Moyer held
for him just as Ebbs held for him from 2nd October onward. It is more than a
violation of language to describe such an error as merely an "ambiguity."

At this point it must be remembered that from the 20th day of Aprîl, 1928,
Senator McDougald was an active member of a Committee of the Senate
appointed by virtue of the following resolution:

Ordered, that a Special Committee of the Senate be appointed to
enquire into and report from time to time on the matter of the develop-
ment and improvement of the St. Lawrence River for the purposes of
navigation and production of electric current and power and matters,
incidental to such objects; and that the Committee be empowered to send
for persons, papers and records, to examine witnesses under oath if deemed
necessary, and to employ stenographers and other clerical help subject to
approval of the Senate in regard to expenditures, etc."

This Committee held meetings and conducted hearings until the 7th day of
June, 1928. At its meeting of 31st May, 1928, he put certain questions (quoted
in part from the Commons Report above) previously prepared and submitted to
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the witness, for Mr. Henry'sq answer. On the Senator's own admission, hie badheld, as well as his interest in the Sterling Industrial, a large interest in the
Beauharnois Company itself since l8tb May, 1928. It is a singular thing tbat
tbe sense of honour wbich on April 19, 1928, compelled bim to deny before the
Senate of Canada any connection with Beaubarnois and ail the " implications,
suspicions and aspersions " whîcb be said werc cast on him by the Globe and Mail
and Empire, did not impel him to disclose to the Senate or its committee the
personal interest which lie beld in the very subject matter which the Senate
Committee was reviewing. In our opinion it was bis duty so to have done. On
the contrary hie contented bimself by giving answers as follows:-

By Mr. White:
Q. 1 suggest to you that on tbat date when you called Mr. Henry as

a witness you bad an interest in tbe Beaubarnois project?ý-A. That is
right.

Q. That is rigbt. Did you disclose tbat to tbe Committee?-A. It
was none of their business whetber I bad or bad not any interest in it.

Tbe paniagrapbs of the summary dealing witb tbe price at wbicb Senator
McDougald purcbiased bis sbrares and to certain travelling expenses received by
bîmi are as follows:

(19) Further in. his speech on the 2Oth May, 1913, Senator Mc-
Dougald said: I might add that I paid into the syndicate dollar for dollar
with every other member of it.

(20) As previously pointed out in1 this Report, Senator McDougald,
Senator Raymond, and Mr. Frank Jones, bought their units i, the firsi
syndicate for rnany fewer dollars per share than any other of the members,
except possibly Mlr. Sweezey who got some of his for a consideration other
than cash.

(21) It is also significant that Senator McDougald received consider-
able surns of money from the Company for travelling expenses.

In confirming the facts set out above, we add tbat tbe Beaubarnois Com-
pany paid the botel expenses of Senator McDougald in Ottawa during tlue time
the Commons Committee sat, tbough at that time Senator McDougald was in
Ottawa attending tbe Session of the Senate.

.Included in the above expenses was tbe sum of $7,500 the fees of Mr. Starr,
wbo appeared before the Commons Committee as Counsel for Senator Me-
Dougald and wbo, distinctly represented himself as acting, and in fact did act
only for Senator McDougald before such Committee.

Tbe concluding paragrapbs of tbe summary are as follows:
(22) IIow one holding thte high offices to which ho had been called,

as Chairman of the Montreal Harbour Board, member of the National
Advisory Committee on St. Lawrence Waterways, a Senator of Canada,
and a member of the Special Committee of the Senate, a bave referred to,and as ho himself has stated, having a high regard for his public duties,should allow his private interest ta sa interfere with his public duty that
he found it necessary, speaking from his place in the Senate to be" ambiguous " and incorrect, it is difficult for your Committee to under-
stand.

(23) Senator McDougald's actions, in respect to the Beauharnois pro-
ject cannot be too strongly condemned.

In the judgment of the Committee the conclusions berein set up are amply
justified by the evidence that Senator McDougald's actions were not fitting or
consistent with his duties and standing as a Senator.
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SENATOR ANDREW HAYDON

A sumnmary dealing with the oonnection of Senator Andrew llaydon with
the Beauharnois Power Project appears in the report of the House of Commons.
Committee submiîtted to us. We quote from it as follows:

(1) The first connection of Senator Haydon with the Beauharnois pro-
ject appears to be in 1924, when his flrrn incorporated for Senator Mc-
Daugald and Mr. Henry the Sterling Industrial Corporation on the 5th
July of that igear and made the application of that Company to the twa
Departments of the Govervment for the right to divert 30,000 c.f.s.

(2) His firm was retained by Mr. Sweeze'y for the Beau-harnois Power
Syndicate in the fali of 1928 under somewhat peculiar circumstances.

(3) Senator Haydon has been a member of the Senate since March
11, 1924, and was known to Mr. Sweezey to be a member of the Liberal
Part y who collected campaign funds. The retainer was of an unusual
character. The flrm demanded in excess of $30 ,000 per year but Mr.
Sweezey demurred and finaily arranged tha 't the jlrm of McGiverin, Hay-
don ami Ebbs would be paid the sun of $50,000, conditionaliy upon
approvai of its application by the Governor in Council. On October 3,
1928, this firm received a che que frorn the Marquette Investment Com-
pany for $7,500 for le gai services. On page 728, Mr. Sweezey says in an
interview with Mr. McGiverin, " However, by a compromise I agreed tMat
if the thing got through, I would prefer to pay on that basis; if it went
th.raugh I woufl pay him $50,000, and a retainer for three years at
$15,000. . i t is human nature to work harder at a price." Asked, in
tihe event of failure what would happen, Mr. Sweezey's answer was "Weii,
he would have his expenses. At least I presumed that he wo'uld have ta
have his expenses. . .I was sure he wouid charge me something for it."
This arrangement was apparently made, according to Mr. Sweezey, some
time prior to the 2nd Octaber, 1928, (Evidence Page 729).

(4) On the 2nd October. 1928, a trans fer was made to Mr. Ebbs of the
Haydon firm, from, Mr. Ciare Moyer of the interest Mr. Mo'yer then held
in the Beauharnois Power Syndicate for Senator McDougald.

(5) Mr. Ebbs, Senator Haydon's partner, acted as Syndicate Manager
for scnne time representing Senator McDougald. The Order in Council
woes approved, Senator Haydon's firm was paid $50,000 and thereafter
received several cheques in pursuance of the arrangement made with Mr.
Sweezey by which that firm was to be paid a retaîner of $15,000 per year.

(6) Senator Haydon was a man of note and standing in his party
and was recognized as one of the officiai organizers of the Liberai part y
in Canada. Senator Haydon became the recipient from Mr. Sweezey
and the Beauharnois Company of sums of money for campaign purposes,
m~id to be in excess of half a million dollars, and it is also ta :be nated
that throughout this firm did not render any detaiied bill for prafessionat
services, as shown by the vouchers (Exhibit Nos. 85 ta 87 inclusive).

(7) In these circumstances, your Committee is of opinion that the
acceptance of the above mentioned contingent retainer and of the $50,00û
involved, and of the campaign funds by Senator Haydon cannot be
defended and is strongly condemned.

Senator iHaydon did not give evidence before the Huse of Conimons Com-
mittee but gave evidence before this Committee. In view of the further evidence.
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given before this Committee with regard to Senator Haydon's relations to this
entire matter, we make the following comment, expression of opinion and
report:-

Senator Haydon denied before this Committee that the $50,000 fee was
made contingent on the passing of the Order in Council (P.C. 422). He also
stated that the entire fee received by his firm aggregating $80,000 was for work
which had been done for some time previous to the making of the fee arrange-
ment and also for work still to be done.

In coming to a conclusion as to what the facts really were, it is necessary
to take into account the entire circumstances surrounding this subject as revealed
in the evidence. It is noteworthy that, as found in paragraph No. 6 above,
Senator Haydon's firm did not render any detailed bill, as shown by the Exhibits,
and while it was decidedly in his interests to show that the legal services rendered
were at last remotely commensurate with the money received, Senator Haydon
fell very far short of establishing such services by his or any other evidence.
It is impossible for us to find anything of a legal character that was done by
this firm, which would have been remunerated by any company on a business
basis at a figure equal or nearly equal even to the total retainers paid period-
ically by the Beauharnois Company to Senator Haydon's firm aside entirely
from the special $50,000 fee.

In the face of this fact and having in mind as well the high position enjoyed
by Senator Haydon in the public mind in relation to the party in which he
held high trusts, and having regard as well to the very positive, unequivocal
and comprehensible account of the arrangement given by Mr. Sweezey, it is
impossible for us to find otherwise than that the $50,000 fee was contingent
on the passing of the Order in Council.

In this same connection it should be added that the account for services
kept in the office of Senator Haydon's firm with regard to the Sterling Industrial
Company was continued into the account for service kept by the same firm in
regard to the Beauharnois Project and all became one account and was finally
closed by cheques from the Beauharnois Company.

Special reference must be made to the following evidence given by Senator
Haydon before this Committee:-

Q. Then--A. Mr. Mann, you have asked me about my conversa-
tions with Mr. Sweezey.

Q. Yes, Sir?-A. As far as I remember-as far as I remember my
first conversation in respect of Beauharnois of any consequence at all,
was with Mr. Sweezey. There were some others present; I don't remem-
ber all who they were. I saw in the papers that he had been sued or
was going to be sued by people from London which run publicly under
the name of the Great Lakes Transportation and Power Company. He
always seemed to me one who was ready to go into ventures quite
freely, from the time I first saw him. I first saw him at Queen's College
on these boards, and in respect of the discussion of investments and
things I first became acquainted with him. I asked him on this occasion
-it was sometime before 1929, or the beginning of 1929, perhaps-I
asked him what good was Beauharnois. It didn't seem to me it was
of any value, because he had no takers of power. I asked him if he
had any contracts for power. He said no, he had not particularly. He
talked about Americans who would come and settle along the river, and
enterprise would begin. I said to him: " What is the good of them if
you don't have something nailed down?"-I think I used the word that
you have been asking me to repeat, "moonshine"-This will never get
anywhere. It is not any good." "Oh," he said, " but when we have a
contract in sight." I said, " where or how?" I had never heard of this
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before. Hie said with the Ontario Hydro Commission. 1 said, "Why
don't you get it signed and get something solid?" And his answer was
"Howard Ferguson won't let it be signed until he gets $200,OOO." 1
said nothing more and heard nothing more about Beauharnois for a good
time.

This statement was at ,the first opportunity and most categorically, denied
by Mr. Sweezey. This Committee while -of the opinion that the evidence given
by Senator Haydon and quoted immediately above was irrelevant to the sub-
ject matter entrusted to us as being beyond the scope of the înquiry, neyer-
theless agreed to take the evidence of Honourable Howard Ferguson, who was
living in England-upon his requesting, by cablegram, permission to be heard.

The Honourable Mr. Ferguson came to Canada and statcd in evidence
that he came at his own expense and emphatically denied that any such con-
versation had ever taken place with Mr. Sweezey or anyone else. Both Mr.
Sweezey and Mr. Ferguson gave evidence of the only two occasions upon which
they had met and that on both occasions men of prominence and high stand-
ing were present, and in this respect their evidence agreed.

It is also to, be noted that, although Senator Haydon in his first refer-
ence to this subjcct testified that the statement of Mr. Sweezey was made in
the presence of others, he did not produce or offer to produce before this Com-
mittee any such other persons to confirm his account of the incident. Under
these circumstances it is impossible to find otherwise than that Senator Hay-
don's evidence in this regard was not correct.

We ratify the conclusion of the Commons Committee as expressed in para-
grapli No. 7 of the above report. Senator Haydon's conduct was unfitting.
and inconsistent with bis position and standing as a Senator of Canada.

SENATOR DONAT RAYMOND

A summary dealirpg 'with the connection of Senator Donat Raymond with
the Beauharnois Power Projeet appears in the report of the Commons Com-
mnittee submitted to us. We quote from such as follows:-

(1) Senator Raymond was appointed to the Senate on the 20th
December, 1926. lHe, voluntarily, af ter the permission of the Senate had
be.en granted, appeared bef ore the Commit tee on the afternoon of the l6th
July, 1931, and stated that he had subscribed on the lst April, 1927, at
Mhe suggestion of Honourable Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Frank P. Jones, for
800 units of Mhe Beauharnois Syndicate at a price. of $30 ,000, uwhich he
paid. These became 1,600 unîts in Mhe second syndicate and aswas. his
right, he subscribed for 1,600 further units, in the name of J. R. Lefebvr.
and made his holdings 3,200 units. On the whol-e transaction he realîzed
as of the l7th Decern ber, 1929, $529,600 profit and 14,040 shares of Class
A stock of the Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited. Senator Ray-
mond sold, ail his originally acquired units at the same time that Mr.
Frank P. Jones sold his at $550 per unit, and later Senator Raymond
bought 'from W. G. Mitchell 350 units and from R. T. Fuller one unit in
the Beauharnois Power Syndicalte and he held these at *the dissolution of
the.Syndicate on the l7th December, 1929. His total profit was as above
mentioned. He states that neither at Quebcc nor at Ottawa did he exert
or attempt any political influence on behaîf of the Beauharnois applica-
tions. lis evidence is that he " did nothing to push the deal."? On page
7.94 of the evidence, Senator Raymond was asked--

Q. Then are we to understand you to say, that having this -inter-
est in this pro ject and knowing that there was a very strcmg opposition
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and a big flght being put up, you neyer turned *a hand to help at ail?
-A. I do net lcnow if there u'as anything in my powver to do towards
helping it.

Q. Well, you could help?-A. I thought the only help that I
could give was to put my money in.

Q. I may take it then from what you say, that we have your
une quivocal .statement that at no time did you attempt to exert your
personal influence on behoif o! this project?-A. At no time.
(2) At the conclusion of his evidence one of the neinbers of the Com-

mittee expressed the view that he ought te be commended for his f rank-
ness in giving his evidence. It was, however, later disclosed in evidence
that according to the bill of Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud-homme, Counsel
for the Beau harnois Syndica *te (Exhibit No. 114) from September 10,
1927, to May 23, 1928, there appear soe sixteen entries charging for
interviews with and telephone to and from Senator Raymond. An inter-
view appears te have taken place on one occasion with Honourable Mr.
Mitchell and on another occasion in OJttawa with Senator McDougald.

(3) On page 391, Mr. Frank P. Jones states, '.I certainly asked
Senator Raymond over and over again if he could not do sornething to
get some action."

(4) It transpired when Mr. Sweezey returned to give further evidence
that Senator Raymnond had received from Mr. Sweezey soe $2009000 of
campaign funds for the Liberal part y. The cemmendable frankness
would seem to require that Senator Raymond should have disclosed this
to the Committe if he wished the Committee to understand that he was
stating fairly his cennection between the Government and the Beau-
harnois promoters.

(5) In view of Mr. Sweezey's attitude throughout and his vieu's as
to the necessity for political influence, it is hardly canceiva bic that Mr.
$uweezey would pay this large sion of money over to Senator Raymnond
u.nless he et least was satisfied that the Senator's influence had been or
would be worth the money ami it is remarkable that Senator Raymond
did not insist on making some explanation of hîs position in this regard,
in view of his evidence.

Senator Raymond appeared before this Committee and gave evidence, as
he had done before the Gommons Committee. In explanation of the charge of
lack of frankness stated or implied in the report of the Gommons Committee
with respect to himself, lie submitted that at tlie Gommons Jnquiry lie liad not
been asked at ail with respect to campaign funds, and would have admitted the
receipt of $200,000 for that purpose had lie so been asked. He stated that lie
remained in the city and signified that lie would give furtlier evidence sliould it
be called for. and left cnly on the assurance given him by, a member of the (iom-
mittee that lie would not be furtlier required. No evidence was adduced to con-
tradiet Seiiator- Raymnond in tllis regard aiid we accept his evideiice. It sliould
be added, liowever, that accerding to the evidence of Senator Haydon, given
before this Committee, Senator Raymond received furtlier large sums'in the way
of campaign contributions sucli sums having first been given ta Senator Hýaydon
by Mr. Sweezey and by him handed to Senator Raymond. Ifý the evidence of
Senator Haydon in this connection is correct, and it is not disputed, it follows
that Senator Raymond was not entirely frank in the sulimission of lis evidence
to this Committee.

Althougli furtlier testimony was given by tlie production of a statement
of account for legal services filed by Mr. Geoffrion, K.C., that there liad been
more conversations between Senator Raymond and Mr. Geoffrion after the
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application had been made to the Governor in Council for the passing of what
became P.C. 422, and although the evidence given before the Commons Com-
mittee clearly shows a very deep and continuous interest on the part of Senator
Raymond in procuring such Order in Council, nevertheless nothing was adduced
to contradict Senator Raymond's repeated declarations that he had at no time
exerted his influence with the Government to the above end.

While this Committee agrees that the facts found in the summary of the
Commons report referring to Senator Raymond, are established, and with the
opinions expressed in such summary, especially that contained in paragraph No. 5
thereof, it is impossible for us to do otherwise than accept Senator Raymond's
denial that influence directed toward affecting government policy was actively
exerted by him.

The evidence, however, is conclusive of the following facts: That Senator
Raymond accepted from a company--directly or indirectly-very large sums
of money by way of campaign contributions; that the company from which
such funds were accepted was dependent vitally on government franchises or
concessions; and that one of the governments from which such franchises or
concessions were necessary was the government of Canada, of which Senator
Raymond was a very prominent supporter.

This Committee feels it to be their duty to express the opinion that Senators
of Canada should not place themselves in the position of receiving contributions
from or being interested in an enterprise dependent on specific favour, franchise
or concession to be made by a government whose conduct is, under the constitu-
tion of Canada, subjet to review by both branches of Parliament.

All which is respectfully submitted.

CHARLES E. TANNER,
Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for con-
sideration on Wednesday, next.

The Order of the Day being called for the further consideration in a Com-
mittee of the Whole, of the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to amend the Excise
Act," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until Tuesday, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (N1), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Georgina Linda McIndoe Howard," was, on division, read the
second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (01), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Antonio Poliseno," was, on division, read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to >hat House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Pi), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Dorothy Gertrude Silcock Wilson," was, on division, read the second
time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill. to which they desire theirconcurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the casebefore the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned tothis House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Qi), intituled: "An Act forthe relief of Beulah Isobel Phillips Eakin," was,. on division, read the secondtime, and- .
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire theirconcurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the casebefore the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-auced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned tothis House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (R1), intituled: "An Act forthe relief of George Seymour Dixon," was, on division, read the second time,and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the casebefore the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

41765-13
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (SI), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Audrey Meredith Mann Redpath," was, on division, read the second
time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether thîs Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Gommons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senaite have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with al] the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this flouse.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Tl), intituled: "An Act for
the rclief of Ethel Seigler Nissenson," was, on division, read the second time,
and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Gommons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that flouse the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, togeother with ail the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, wîth the request that the same be returned to
this flouse.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Ul), intituled: "'An Act to
incorporate The W. S. Newton Company," was read the second time, and-

Referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.

With beave of the Senate, and-
On motion, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Tuesday, next.

The Senate adjourned.
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The Honourable P. E. BLONDIN, Speaker.

The Members convened were:-

The Honourable Senators

Gillis,
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Green,
Griesbach,
Hardy,
Harmer,
Hatfield,
Horsey,
Hughes,
King,
Lacasse,
Laird,
L'Espérance,
Lewis,
Little,
Logan,
Lynch-Staunton,
MacArthur,

Macdonald,
Macdonell,
Martin,
McCormick,
McDonald,
MeGuire,
McLean,
MeLennan,
McMeans,
McRae,
Meighen,
Michener,
Molloy,
Murdock,
Paradis,
Planta,
Poirier,
Pope,

Rankin,
Riley,
Robinson,
Schaffner,
Sharpe,
Sinclair,
Spence,
Stanfield,
Tanner,
Taylor,
Todd,
Turgeon,
Webster,
White (Inkerman),
White (Pembroke),
Wilson

(Rockcliffe).

Ballantyne,
Barnard,
Bénard,
Black,
Blondin,
Bourque,
Buchanan,
Bureau,
Burns,
Calder,
Copp,
Dandurand,
Daniel,'
Dennis,
Donnelly,
Fisher,
Forke,
Foster,
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PRAYERS.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-

Copy of Part I and Part II of Sir Alexander Gibb's report on National
Ports Survey, 1931-1932.

The Honourable Senator Lacasse drew the attention of the Government to
the importance of a return-to-the-land movement as a measure to alleviate
such conditions as are prevailing in Canada to-day.

Debated.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (35), intituled: "An Act

respecting the Canadian Pacifie Railway Company," was read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

The Order of the Day being called for the further consideration in a Com-
mittee of the Whole, of the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to amend the Excise
Act," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the sixteenth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Gordon Alexander Cowan, together with the evidence
taken before the said Committec.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the seventeenth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, with respect
to the petition of Robert Russell Symington.

The said Report was adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate .proceeded to the consideration
of the eighteenth Report of the Standing Committee on. Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Ida Tarantour Waxman, together with the evidence
taken before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
:f the nineteenth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Frances Helen Dawes Porteous, together with the
evidence taken before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the twentieth Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referrçd the petition of Minnie Jones Chandler, together with the evidence taken
before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the twenty-first Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom was
referred the petition of Elizabeth Irene Woolnough, together with the evidence
taken before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the twenty-second Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom
was referred the petition of Ellery Sanford Johnston, together with the evidence
taken before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the twenty-third Report of the Standing Committee on Divorce, to whom
was referred the petition of Farla Goldman Rother, together with the evidence
taken before the said Committee.

The said Report was, on division, adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned debate
on the motion of the Honourable Senator Casgrain-

That in the judgment of the Senate, in order to give immediate relief by
eliminating some duplication in the service of the Canadian Railways, pending
action by the Commission presently investigating Canadian Railways, a Com-
mittee composed of an equal number of present officials from the Canadian
Pacific Railway Company and the Canadian National Railways, be formed,
and elect an Umpire, and failing to agree in their choice, the Supreme Court
of Canada shall appoint this Umpire.

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate be adjourned until Friday, next.

The Order of the Day being called for resuming the adjourned debate on
the motion of the Honourable Senator McRae, that it be-

Resolved, That in the opinion of this House the Government should declare
its intention to control the production and distribution of all radium procured
from Canadian ores; and to that end should immediately appoint a Canadian
Radium Commission to investigate and recommend to the next Session of
Parliament the best methods to adopt to give effect to such control.

It was Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until Thurs-
day, next.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator Tessier, from the Standing Committee on Stand-
ing Orders, presented their sixth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

WEDNESDAY, 27th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Standing Orders beg leave to make their sixth
Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Arthur Cyril Boyce, and others, of Ottawa,
Ontario; praying to be incorporated under the name of " Lake of the Woods
International Bridge Company."

2. The Committee find that the Notices required under Rule 107 have been
published for two weeks in the Canada Gazette, the Rainy River Record, and
the Fort Francis Times, and that arrangements have been made for complete
publication.

3. The Committee find that two weeks only have elapsed from the date of
mailing a copy of the Notice to the Provincial Secretary for Ontario and the
municipal authorities, whereas Rule 107 requires a delay of five weeks between
the mailing of the Notice and consideration of the petition. The Committee
is satisfied from evidence adduced that there is no objection by these authorities
to the proposed undertaking.

4. The Committee, therefore, recommend that what has been done be
deemed and taken as a sufficient compliance with the requirements of Rule 107,
and that the Bill be allowed to proceed.

All which is respectfully submitted.
JULES TESSIER,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said report was adopted.

The Honourable Senator White (Inkerman), from the Joint Committee of
both Houses on the printing of Parliament, presented the following as their
second Report:-

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

WEDNESDAY, 27th April, 1932.

The Joint Committee of both Houses on the Printing of Parliament, beg
leave to present the following as a second Report:-

Your Committee recommend that 500 copies in English, and 150 copies in
French, of Sessional Paper No. 273, viz:-

Copy of Report of Sir Alexander Gibb, C.B.E., C.B., M. Inst. C.E.,
F.R.S.C., dated 15th January, 1932, on the Survey of the National
Ports of Canada-Part I-Administration and General Policy; Part II-
Montreal, Quebec, Halifax, St. John, Vancouver. (Text only.)

be printed for the use of Members and Senators.

Your Committee further recommend that the following list of documents
be not printed:-

82j. Copy of Orders in Council passed under the provision of the Unem-
ployment and Farm Relief Acts, as follows:-

Order in Council, P.C. 790, dated 15th April, 1932: Atikokan wharf, amount
increased by $250.
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Order in Council, P.C. 791, dated lSth April, 1932: additional amounts for
certain public works in the Province of Quebec, $1,200.

Order in Couneil, P.C. 802, dated l5th Aprîl, 1932: Ste. Anne (de la Poca-
tiere), additional sum of $2,000.

82k. Copies or Orders in Couneil passed under the provisions of the Unem-
ployment and Farm Relief Acts, 1931 and 1932, as follows:-

Order in Council, P.C. 447, dated 19th April, 1932: Gilbei't's Cove, N.S.,
new wharf, purchase of land from Bernard N. Melanson for $800.

Order in Council, P.C. 817, dated 19th April, 1932: authorizing reductions
of amounts in certain schedules and increasing the amounts in certain other
schedules in the Province of New Brunswick, $8,670.

Order in Council, P.C. 863, dated 19th April, 1932: authorizing payment to
the Province of British Columbia of $51,153,88 for direct relief.

Order in Couneil, P.C. 864, dated l9th April, 1932: authorizing payment
to the Province of Saskatchewan of $1,755.62 for direct relief.

Order in Council, P.C. 865, dated l9th April, 1932; authorizing payment
to the Province of Alberta of $350.57 for direct relief and $11,890.57 on public
works and undertakings.

Order in Council, P.C. 866, dated 19th April, 1932: authorizing payment
to the Province of Alberta of $32,368.99 for public works and undertakings.

Order in Council, P.C. 867, dated l9th April, 1932: authorizing payment
to the Province of New Brunswick of $57,556.52 for public works and under-
takings.

Order in Council, P.C. 868, dated l9th April, 1932: authorizing payment
to the Province of British Columbia of $124,108.48 for direct relief.

Order in Council, P.C. 869, dated l9th April, 1932: authorizing payment
to the Province of Queýbec of $57,572.31 for direct relief and $127,400.01 for
public works and un'dertakîngs.

Order in Councîl, P.C. 876, dated l9th April, 1932: authorizing payment
to the Province of Nova Scotia of $4,178.54 for direct relief and $1,478.08 for
public works and undertakings.

Order in Council, P.C. 877, dated 19th April, 1932: authorizing payment
to the Province of Ontario of $88,397.47 for direct relief and $41,294.17 for
public works and undertakings.

Order in Council, P.C. 878, dated l9th April 1932: crediting to Loans and
Advances made to the Province of British Columbia the sumn of $58,801.59 spent
on public works and undertakings.

821. Copies of Orders in Council passed under the provisions of the Unem-
ployment and Farm Relief Acts, 1931 and 1932, as follows:-

Order in Council, P.C. 862, dated l9th April, 1932: authorîzing payment
to the Province of Saskatchewan of $71,238.39 for public works and under-
takings.

Order in Council, P.C. 892, dated 2Oth April, 1932: authorizing payment
to the Province of Saskatchewan of $34,307.90 for public works and under-
takings.

Order in Concil, P.C. 893, dated 2Oth April, 1932: crediting to Loans and
Advances made to the Province of British Columbia the surn of $136,066.74
spent on public works and undertakings.

Order in Council, P.C. 894, dated 20th April, 1932: authorizing payment
to the Province of Prince Edward Island of $736.45 for direct relief.

Order in Council, P.C. 895, dated 20th April, 1932: Return of French
Canadian families fromn Alberta to Quebec, $1,532.98.

Order in Council, P.C. 896, dated 2Oth April,.1932: payrnents to the Cana-
dian Pacifie Railway Company of $209,196.98 in connection with their rail
laying programn duriniz the autuma of 1931..
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S98r- Copy of Order in Council P.C. 718 of 3lst Mare-h, 1932, and one copy
of the Special Report of Mr. Errol M. McDougali, Illegal Warfare Claims Coin-
missioner, regarding the loss of the Schooner Otokîo.

98d. Copy of Special Report upon Armenian Claims for Reparations by
Errol M. McDougail, Commissioner; together with the following documents
in connection therewith:-

Copy of Mr. Carlisle's Petition "A".
Copy of Mr. Carlisle's Petition "B".
Copy of Secretary of State's Report to Council dated 20th January, 1932.
Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 571, of l2th March, 1932.
Copy of Paris Expert's Report.
Copy of the List of Paymen'ts, including an explanation of how the assess-

ments were made, and a List of Rejections with the reasons theref or.

297. Return to, an Order of the flouse of the 25th February, 1932, for a
Return showing:-

1. The total number of civil service employees over 65 years of age in the
civil service.

2. The total amount of salaries paid to civil servants who have attained
the age of 65 or over.

3. The total number of temporary employees at present employed as civil
servants.

4. The total amount of salaries paid to civil servants temporarily employed.

297a. Supplementary Return to an Order of the flouse of the 25th Febru-
ary, 1932, for a Return showing:-

1. The total number of civil service employees over 65 years of age in the
civil service.

2. The total amount of salaries paid to civil servants who have attained
the age of 65 or over.

3. The total number of temporary employees at present employed as civil
3ervants.

4. The total amount of salaries paid to civil servants temporarily employed.

299. Return to an Order of the flouse of the l4th Mareh, 1932, for a
copy of alI letters, telegrams, memorandums, reports and other documents
exchanged between the Department of Public Works and any person or persons
in Nova Scotia, regarding the expenditure of public money under the Unem-
ployment and Farmi Relief Act of 1931, on a new breakwater at Battery Point,
Lunenburg, Nova Scotia; also a copy oi the payroll showing the amount ex-
pended in labour; also copy of accounts showing the prîces paid for iron, logs,
ballast and ballast poles, timber and plank, and from whom purchased.

300. Return to an Order of the flouse of the lGth March, 1932, for a copy
of all engineer's reports, petîtions, correspondence, and paysbeets, giving in
detail the name of eaeh person employed, and the amounts paid in eacb case
for labour, also the amounts paid for lumber and ail other materials, and from
wboni bought, including truckage, in connection with the building of a break-
water at Little Sands, King's County, Prince Edward Island.

301.. Return to an Order of the flouse showing-
1. The area in square miles of tbe merchantable tîmber in Alberta.
2. The area in square miles of the merehantable timber in Manitoba.
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3. Cost of maintaining that part of the Royal Canadian Air Force engaged
in forest-fire protection and patrol work in Alberta during the period, January
1, 1929, to January 1, 1931.

4. Cost of maintaining that part of the Royal Canadian Air Force engaged
in forest-fire protection and patrol work in Manitoba during the period, Janu-
ary 1, 1929, to January 1, 1931.

302. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a return
showing the paysheets, vouchers and particulars of the moneys expended in
connection with the repairs on Long Wharf, Wedgeport, Nova Scotia, under
the Unemployment and Farm Relief Act of 1931.

303. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, evidence, inquiries, reports, petitions and other
documents, in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Thomas Dubé, as post-
master of Denonville, county of Temiscouata, Quebec, and the appointment
of his successor.

304. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a
copy of all letters, telegrams, memorandums, reports and other documents ex-
changed between the Department of Public Works and any person or persons
in Nova Scotia, regarding the expenditure of public money under the Unemploy-
ment and Farm Relief Act of 1931, on repairs to breakwater at Larry's River,
Nova Scotia; also a copy of payroll showing the amount expended in labour;
also copy of accounts showing prices paid for iron, logs, ballast and ballast
poles, timber and plank, and from whom purchased.

305. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams, inquiries in connection with the dismissal of
J. Edmond Boivin, postmaster at Cap Chat, county of Gaspe, and the appoint-
ment of his successor.

306. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd March, 1932, for a copy
of all letters, telegrams, memorandums, reports, etc., between the Department
of Public Works and any person or persons in Nova Scotia regarding the expendi-
ture of public money under the Unemployment and Farm Relief Act 1931, on
work on a wharf at Great Village, in the Province of Nova Scotia, as well as
copy of payrolls and invoices or memoranda re materials and prices thereof.

307. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th March, 1932, for a copy
of all letters, telegrams, memoranda, reports and other documents exchanged
between the Department of Public Works and any person or persons regarding
the expenditure of public money under the Unemployment and Farm Relief Act
of 1931 on the wharf at Lower Burlington, Hants county, Nova Scotia; also
a copy of the payroll showing the amounts expended for labour; also a copy
of accounts showing the prices paid for iron, logs, ballast, ballast poles, timber
and planks, and from whom purchased.

308. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports and other documents in connection with the dis-
missal of Mr. Alfred Leclerc, postmaster at St. Tite-des-Caps, in the county of
Montmorency; also for a copy of all correspondence, reports and other docu-
ments relating to an inquiry held in 1931 in connection with charges made
against said Alfred Leclerc, including the proof and evidence of all the witnesses
heard in said inquiry and the decision arrived at by the commissioner who held
the inquiry.
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309. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports and other documents in connection with the dis-
missal of Mr. Joseph Leo Tremblay, postmaster, at Riviere Eperlan, parish of
Mille Vaches, in the county of Saguenay; also for a copy of all correspondence,
reports and other documents relating to an inquiry held in 1931 in connection
with charges made against said Joseph Leo Tremblay, including the proof and
evidence of all the witnesses heard in said inquiry, and the decision arrived at
by the commissioner who held the inquiry.

310. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports and other documents in connection with the dis-
missal of Mr. Honore Chouinard, postmaster, at Pointe Lebel, in the county
of Saguenay; also for a copy of all correspondence, reports and other documents
relating to the inquiry held in 1931 in connection with charges made against
said Honore Chouinard, including the proof and evidence of all the witnesses
heard at said inquiry, and the decision arrived at by the commissioner who held
the inquiry.

311. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy
of the correspondence exchanged between the patrons of the Robitaille post
office, county of Bonaventure, and the department, regarding the post office.
during the year 1931.

312. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports, telegrams, petitions and other documents, in con-
nection with the post office at L'Islet, Quebec, in 1931 and 1932.

313. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, telegrams, reports and other documents relating to the
dismissal of Amédée Richard, postmaster at Riviere-Ouelle, Kamouraska county,
Quebec; also a copy of all correspondence, reports or other documents in con-
nection with an inquiry with reference to the charges brought against the said
Amédée Richard, including the proof and evidence given by all the witnesses
heard at said inquiry and the decision arrived at.

314. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a Return
showing:-

1. Number of post[masters dismissed between the dates of August 7, 1930,
and February 1, 1932.

2. Names of those dismissed, the reasons assigned for such dismissal, and
the names of the post offices.

315. Return to an Order of the House of the 30th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports, evidence, inquiries, petitions and other documents,
in connection with the cancelling of the contract of Mr. Donat Vincelette, mail
carrier on rural route No. 1, Ste. Angele de Monnoir, county of Rouville.

316. Return to an Order of the House of the 11th April, 1932, for a return
showing amounts expended in the provinces of Quebec and Ontario to assist the
farmers, pursuant to the Act embodied in chapter 58 of the Statutes of Canada,
1931, unemployment and farm relief.

317. Return to an Order of the House of the 6th April, 1932, for a copy of
all"correspondence and reports in connection with the dismissal of Charles W.
Laganiere, of Grondines, as lighthouse keeper, on September 11, 1931. Also a
statement as to whether or not witnesses heard before Mr. Leon Methot in con-
nection with this case were under oath.
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318. Return to an Order of the House of the 22nd February, 1932ý for a
copy of all correspondence, telegrams, letters; recommendations, sworn state-
ments, and other dôcuments, including the evidence taken at the inquiry in con-
nection with the dismissal of the postmaster at St. Calixte-North, and the
appointment of his successor.

319. Return to an Order of the House of the 2nd March, 1932, fora copy
of all correspondence, petitions, telegrams and reports in connection with the
dismissal of Edmond Rioux, postmaster at St. Arsene, County of Temiscouata,
and the appointment of his successor.

320. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of the evidence and the report of the commissioner in connection with the
investigation of the charges made against Postmaster Francois Levesque at St.
Quentin, Restigouche county, New Brunswick. Also a copy of all correspon-
dence, reports of the Civil Service Commission, applications and other docu-
ments relating to the appointment of A. H. Landry as postmaster at St.
Quentin.

321. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, evidence, inquiries, reports, petitions and other
documents, in connection with the dismissal of Joseph Morneau, postmaster at
Ivry, county of Temiscouata, Quebec, and the appointment of his successor.

322. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, evidence, inquiries, reports, petitions and other
documents, in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Andre Beaulieu, postmaster
at Raudot, county of Temiscouata, Quebc, and the appointment of his
successor.

323. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, evidence, inquiries, reports,, petitions and other
documents, in connection with the dismissal of the postinaster at Normandin,
Lake St. John, and the appointment of his successor.

324. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, evidence, reports, inquiries and other documents
in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Johnny April, as postmaster of Gironde,county of Temiscouata, and the appointment of his successor.

325. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, evidence, inquiries, reports and other documents in
connection with the dismissal of Mr. David Lebel, as postmaster at Montagne
Ronde, Quebec, and the appointment of his successor.

326. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence. evidence, inquiries, reports, petitions and other
documents in connection with the dismissal of Joseph Michaud, as postmaster
of La Richardiere, Quebec, and the appointment of his successor.

327. Return to an Order of the House of the 21st March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, reports and other documents in connection with the
dismissal of Mr. Auguste Tétreault, postmaster at Henryville, cointy of Iber-
ville. Also for a copy of all correspondence, reports and other documents in
connection with an inquiry held in 1931 relating to charges lodged against said
Auguste Tétreault, including the evidence of all witnesses heard in said inquiry
and the report made by the commissioner.

328. Return to an Order of the House of the 23rd March, 1932, for a
copy of all correspondence, contracts, reports, and other documents, relating
to the contract for carrying mail from Cloridorme to Petite Madeleine, held
by M. C. Berubé, of Petite Madeleine, and also a copy of all documents and
letters, relating to his dismissal, and the appointment of his successor.
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329. Return, to an Order of the lieuse of the' 3Oth March, 1932, for a
copy of ail correspondence, letters, telegrams, affidavits, petitiens, evidence
at the inquiry, and reports, in connection with the dismissal of the postmaster
at Boulanger, in the parish of Sainte Jeanne d'Arc, Lake St. John, Quebec,
and the appointment of his successor.

330. Return to an Order of the House of the 3Oth March, 1932, for a
copy of ail correspondence, reports, evidence, petîtions and other documents,
in connection with the dismissal of Mr. Philibert Auclair, postmaster at St.
Hilaire, county of Rouville, and the appointment cf his successor.

331. Return te an Order of the House of the 3Oth March, 1932, for a
copy of ail correspondence, reports, evidence, inquiries, petitions and other
documents, in connection with the dismissal of Mr. J. Remus Boulais, post-
master at St. Angele de Monnoir, county of Rouville, and the appointment cf
his successor.

332. Return to an Order of the bouse cf the 6th April, 1932, for a copy
cf the Report cf the Commissioner, and the evidence given at the iuquiry held
at Deschambault, on January 30, 1931, in conneetioii witli the dismissal cf Mr.
Ferdinand Dussault, as postmaster cf that place.

333. Return to an Order cf the House of the 6th April, 1932, for a
a copy cf the Commissioner's report and evidence in connection with the investi-
gation held in regard to the post office cf Hopetown and St. Francois d'Assizes,
ccunty cf Bonaventure, Quebec, on the instructions cf the Postmaster General.

334. Return to, an Order cf the bouse cf the" l3th April, 1932, for a
Return showing-

1. How many postmasters had te undergo inquiries for political partisan-
ship since August, 1930, (a) each month, and (b) in each province.

2. In how many cases, (a) each menth since August 1, 1930, and (b) in
cach province, the Postmaster General required a written complaint accum-
panied by an affidavit before granting an inquiry for political partisanship.

335. Return to an Order cf the bouse cf the l3th April, 1932, for a
Return showing:

1. Whether William Noblett, L.L.B., of Sydney, Nova Scotia, was appointed
a commissioner te investigate cases cf political partisanship.

2. bow many cf such cases hp, investigated.
3. How many dismissals were made on his recemmendation.
4. Amount received for (a) remuneration; (b) expenses, for any work done

in connection with said investigations.

336. Return te an Order cf the bouse cf the 9th March, 1932, for a Return
showiîîg:

1. How many officers retained in the Royal Canadian Air Force are
married men.

2. How many cf these married officers have net seen war service.
3. How many wives and dependent children are affected by the release cf

married officers cf the Royal Canadian Air Force.
4. Whether the Government is considering absorbing married officers cf

the Royal Canadian Air Force into other branches cf the Governmnent service.
5. Hew many non-permanent officers cf the Royal Canadian Air Force,

who were first advised that their services were no longer required, have since
been re-engaged.

6. How many, of such officers have war service.
7. How many cf sucli officers are married.
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337. Return te an Order of the flouse of the 22nd February, 1932, for a
Return showing:

1. Money expended on each of the following public works in Sheiburne
County, from April 1, 1931, to December 31, 1931, namely: Repairs at Shel-
humne Public Wharf, Lockeport Public Wharf, Lockeport Harbour Protection,
Breakwater at East Jordan, Gunning Cove Public Wharf, Black Point Public
Wharf, West Baccaro Breakwater, Falls Point Breakwater, C. Negro Island
Breakwater.

2. The persans empleyed on each of such works and how many heurs each
was employed and at what rate per hour.

3. From whom the timber, legs and iren were obtained for each cf said
works, and what prices were paid for such materials delivered on the work:
(a) for sawn timber and plank M ft. B.M., (b) for logs by lineal foot or by
sae for B.M., (c) for iron, in bars or ready for use on the work.

4. What material was principally used for and in such repair work, in eacli
case, whether hemlock, spruce, fir, pine or hardwood.

5. Whether the department was charged sales tax in addition te or included
in the price landed for such materials.

6. Whether tenders were asked for supplying said materials, if se, from
whom, and if public.

7. If se, how and where the advertisements were published asking for s'îch
tenders.

S. The unsuccessfiul tenderers, and the prices offered by them.
9. In cases where legs were. supplied and paid for eîther by lineal feet,

measurement, or by scale for B.M. contents, who did the measuring or scaling.
10. In case of works uncompleted, when the Department of Public Works

expeots work te be cempleted.

338. Return te an Order of the flouse of the 1ltb April, 1932, for a Return
showing what firms sold supplies te Department of Indian Affairs for the Indian
Reservations in New Brunswick in 1930 and in 1931.

339. Return te an Order of the flouse of the l4th Mardi, 1932, for a copy
of ail letters, telegrams, memorandums, reports and other documents exchanged
between the Department of Public Works and any person or persens in Nova
Scotia, regarding the expenditure of publie money under the Unemployment and
Farm Relief Act of 1931, on repairs te breakwater at Northwest Cave (Tancoek),
Lunenburg county, Nova Scotia; also a copy of the payroll showing the amount
expended in labour; aIse copy of accounts shewing prices paid for iran, legs,
balla.st and ballast poles, timber and plank, and from whýom purchased.

340. Return te an Order of the flouse of the l3th April, 1932, for a Return.
showing.

1. Total crop of apples grown in the Province of iNova Scotia, in 1931, as
estimated by the Department of Agriculture.

2. flow many were exported overseas.
3. To what countries.
4. flow many were sold in Great Britain.
5. Number of cargoes shipped to Great Britain, and the names of the

steamers carrying each cargo and the dates, and number of barrels and other
containers- in each said cargo.

A.D. 1932 27,rn APRIL



6. The ocean freight per barrel from Halifax to Great Britain.
7. The ocean freight Port Williams to Great Britain.
8. The inland freight per barrel from Middleton, Berwick, Waterville, Kent-

ville, Windsor, New Germany and Bridgewater, to Halifax.
9. Whether said freight rate was paid on eterling exchange.
10. If not, whether it was paid in New York or Canadian funds.
11. The average sale price per barrel for each cargo taken to Great Britain

and arriving between September, 1931, and April, 1932.
12. The average net price return from shipments to Great Britain to

growers or shippers per barrel for each such cargo.
13. The sterling rate of exchange in effect at the time of arrival and sale

of each cargo from September, 1931, to April, 1932.
14. The total discount loss absorbed by growers or shippers as a result of

the sterling discount between the above dates.
15. Whether the Government has ever been asked by the Banks or others

to assist the fruit industry by guarantee or otherwise to relieve said industry to
the extent of any discount loss.

16. Whether the Government has under consideration a policy for such
assistance by way of guarantee to the Banks or otherwise in order that the
fruit growers may receive full net value for sales in Great Britain until sterling
returns to par.

341. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a copy of
all correspondence, letters, telegrams and other documents, in connection with
certain works, construction and repairs to the wharf and breakwater at Roberval,
Quebec, carried on during the months of July, August and September, 1931,
together with a copy of paylists and statements of moneys expended for the
purchase of material and otherwise, and also showing the name of the superin-
tendent of works.

342. Return to an Order of the House of the 9th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, letters, telegrams, memorandums, reports and other docu-
ments, exchanged between any member of the Government and any official of
the Department of Public Works or the Labour Department or any person in
the Province of Nova Scotia, with a copy of payrolls and amounts spent, on the
repair of breakwater and in harbour improvements, during the years 1930 and
1931, at Margaree, in the Province of Nova Scotia.

343. Return to an Order of the Senate, memorandum of the Deputy Post-
master General, and copy of circular letter P.S.B. No. 196, dated April 11, 1932,
issued by the Post Office Department in respect to hours of labour and elimina-
tion of overtime pay.

344. Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 2910, dated the 20th November, 1931,
appointing Commissioners to inquire into the problem of transportation in
Canada.

345. Return to an Order of the House of the 7th March, 1932, for a return
showing the paysheets of men employed on the breakwater on the south side of
Cape Sable Island, in connection with the expenditure of moneys during the last
six months under the Unemployment Relief Act of last session.

346. Return to an Order of the House of the 14th March, 1932, for a copy
of all correspondence, reports or other documents relating to the establishment of
Rural Route Mail service at Riviere-Ouelle between St. Just and Pointe-aux-
Originaux.
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347. Return to an Order of the House of the 2lst March, 1932, for a copy
of ail papers, correspondence, reports and paysheets, giving in detail the name
of each person employed, the amounts paid for labour, and the amounts paid
for material in connection with work performed at Levis, Quebec, under Order
in Council, P.C. 2650.

348. Return to an Order of the Huse of the 2lst March, 1932, for a
copy of ail papers, correspondence, reports and paysheets, giving in detail the
na1Êe of each person employed, the amounts paid for labour, and the amounts
paid for material in connection with repairs and improvements at Valcartier
Camp, Quebec, under Order in Council, P.C. 2650.

349. Return te an Order of the Hbuse of the 2lst March, 1932, for a
copy of ail correspondence, evidence, inquiries, reports, petitions and other
documents, in connection with the dismissal of Mr. A. Belanger, postmaster at
Chemin du Lac, county of Temiscouata, Quebcc, and the appointment of bis
successor.

350. Return to an Order of the bouse of the 2lst March, 1932, for
a copy of all torrespuiidence, evidence, inquiries, reports, petitions and other
documents, in connection wîth thedismissal of Mr. Omer Sirois, postmaster of
Riou, Quebec, and the appointment of bis successor.

351. iReturn to an Order of the buse of the l4th March, 1932, for a
copy of ail paysheets, stock bis and correspondence in connection with the
commission of $3,000 to Howard W. Rose, on the wharf at Sandford, in the
faîl of 1931.

Ail of which. is respectfully submitted.
SMEATON WHITE,

Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Order of the Day for con-
sideration to-morrow.

The Honourable Senator Donnelly, from the Standing Committee on Agri-
culture and Forestiy, te whom was referred the Bill (18), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Destructive Insect and Pest Act," reported that they had gone through
the said Bill and had directed, him to report, the ýsame to the Senate, without any
amendment.

Ordered, That the said Bill be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third
reading to-morrow.

The 1Hrnourahle Senator Black, from the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce, to, whom was referred the Bill (El), intituled: "An Act respect-
ing thc Dcpartmcnt of Insurance," reported as follow:-

FR.iDAY, 22nd April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to whom was referred
the Bill (El), intituied: "An Act respecting the Department of Insurance," have
in obedience te the order of reference of 3lst March, 1932, examined the saîd
Bill and now beg leave to, report the same with the following ameadments, viz:

Page 2, line 12. Leave out "insurance".
Page 2, line 13. For "or licensed" substitute "and registered or licensed".

41765--14
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Page 2, Une 13. Leave out "insurance".
Page 2, line 34. For "licensed" substitute "registered".
Page 2, line 36. For "licensed" substitute "registered".

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
F. B. BLACK,

Chairman.

Ordered, That thje said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for con-
sideration to-morrow.

The Honourable Senator Black, from the Standing Convnittep on Banking
and Comerce, t whoi~iwas referreod the Bill (JFl), intituled: "An Act reset

ing Foreigni Insurance Companies in Canada," reported. as folows:-

FRmDAY, 22nd April, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce to whom was referred

the Bill (FI), intituled: "An Act respecting Foreign Insurance Companies in
Canada," have in obedience to the order of reference of 31àt March, 1932,
examined the said Bill and now beg leave to report the same with several amend-
ments as embodied in a reprint of the Bill submîtted herewith.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
F. B. BLACK,

Chqirman.
Ordered, That the said Report be p14ced en the Orders of the D)ay for cn

sideration tg-MQrrow.co

The Honourable Senator Black, f rom the Standing Committee on Banking
and Connneree, Wo whom was refeirred the Bill (01>, itituled: "'An Act trespect-
ing Canadian and British Insurance Companies," reported aî follow:-

FRIDAY, 22nd Aýpril, 1932.
The Standing Cçmniitteo oni Bai]king and Comrc~re to wbcm wus referred

the 13-l (Qf), intitUled: "An Act respecting Canadiau and Biish Ineuranco
CoippApes," bave, in obedicep to the order -of reference of 1bth April, 19U,
examîned. the said Bill and now beg leave to report the same with several amei4d-
monts as embodied in a reprnt of the Bill enubwitted erewith,

Ail which is respectfuily submitted.
F. B. BLACK,

Chairman.
Ordered, That the said Report be plaoed on the (}rders of theDyfrc-

sideration to-morrow. eDyfrcn

SThe Ilonourable, the Chairman of the Standing Gommittee on Divorce,
presen'ted Wo the Sonate a Bill (Vi), intituled, "An Act for the relief of Gordon
Alexander Gowan."

The said Bill was, en division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, nc2xt,
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The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presentcd to the Senate a Bill (Wl), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Ida
Tarantour Waxrnan."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it bc placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Frid-ay, next.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (XI), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Frances
Helon Dawes Porteous."

The said Bill wae, on division, read the first time, and-
Qrdered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The Honourable the Chairman from, the Standing Committee on Divorce.
presented to the Senate a Bill (Yl>, intituled: "An Act for the relief of Minnie
Joues Chandler."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it ho placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The iHonourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (Zi,, intituled: "An Act for the relief of Eliza-
beth Irene Woolnough."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it ho placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The Ilonourable the Chairnian from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (A2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of ElIery
Sanford Johnston."

The said B1ill was, on division, read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

The Ilonourable the Chairman froin the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (B2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of F aria
Goidman Bother."

The said Bill was, on division, read the flrst ti'ne, and--
ýOrdered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Friday, next.

A Message was brought froni the Housc of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (46), intituled: "An Act ta incorporate Lake of the Woods International
Bridge Company," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first tîme, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was read the second time, and-
Referred to the Standing Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours.

4176-14j

A.D. 1932 27TH APRIL



The Honourable Senator Black, from the Standing Committee on Public
Buildings and Grounds, presented their second Report.

The same was then reaa by the Clerk, as follows:-

TUESDAY, 26th April, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Public Buildings and Grounds beg leave to
make their second Report, as follows:-

1. The Committee observe that changes recommended by them during the
last Session with respect to the planting and preservation of trees and shrubs
have been acted upon by the Department of Public Works, and now beg to
recommend that the work of tree surgery be continued on trees which show
signs of decay, and that the foliage along the revetment wall in front of the
Centre Block be supplemented by planting of delphinium or other like flowers.

2. The Committee beg to repeat their recommendation of last Session with
respect to the parking of motor cars, namely: that steps be taken to prevent
the parking of automobiles on any of the lawns and more particularly at the
rear of the Parliament Buildings where automobiles are presently parking and
destroying the grass, and further recommend that steps be taken to secure a
parking area outside the immediate precincts of Parliament, and suggest that
such space might be obtained at the rear of the Confederation Building.

All which is respectfully submitted.

F. B. BLACK,
-Acting Chairman

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the 'Day for con-
sideration on Friday, next.

The Order of the Day being, called for the further consideration in a Com-
mittee of the Whole, of the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to amend the Excise
Act," it was-

Ordered, That the saîd Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considçra-
tion of the fourth Report of the Special Committee appointed for the purpose
of taking into consideration the report of a Special Committee of the House
of Commons of the last Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Pqwer
Project, insofar as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members of the
Senate.

And the debate continuing,

It being six o'clock, the Honourable the Speaker left the Chair to resume
the same at half-past seven o'clock.
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7.30 P.M.

The Senate resumed.

After further debate, the Honourable Senator Tanner moved-
That the fourth Report of the Special Comrnittee appointed for the pur-

pose of taking into consideration the report of a Special Committee of the
Huse of Commons of the last Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnoîs
Power Project, insofar as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members
of the Senate, be concurred in.

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate on the said motion be adjourned until to-

morrow.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator Béique, from the Standing Committee on Miscel-
laneous Private Bills, to whom was referred the Bill (31), intituled: "An Act
respecting certain patents of Autographic Register Systems, Limited," reported
that they had gone through the sa'id Bill, and had directed him to report the
same to the Senate without any amendment.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

The Right Honourable Senator Graham, from the Standing Committee on
Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, to whom was referred the Bill (32), in-
tituled: "An Act respecting the Ottawa and New York Railway Company,"
reported that they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to
report the same to the Senate with one anendment, which he was ready to
submit whenever the Senate would be pleased to receive the same.

The said amendment was then read by the-Clerk as follows:-
Page 1, line 31. Add the following as clause 2 of the Bill:-
"2. Notwithstanding anything in this Act or any other Act, should His

Majesty take, for any public purpose, the land or any portion thereof forming
the site of the said bridge, or the land or any portion thereof forming the site
of any of the approaches to the said bridge, then in any such case His Majesty
shall not be liable to pay by reason or on account of any such taking of such
lands any compensation or damages for, or on account of, any works con-
structed or rights exercised under, or pursuant to, any of the provisions of this
Act."

The said amendment was concurred in, and-
Ordered, That the said Bill, as amended, be placed on the Orders of the

Day for a third reading to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (6), intituled: "An Act to amend the Fish Inspection Act," to which they
desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (42), intituled: " An Act to amend the Criminal Code (Trustees defined),'
to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (53), intituled: "An Act to amend the Act of Incorporation of The Fron-
tier College," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.
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The Order of the Day being called for the third reading of the Bill (18),intituled: "An Act to amend the Destructive Insect and Pest Act," it was-
Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the further consideration in a Com-
mittee of the Whole, of the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to amend the Excise
Act," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for resuming the adjourned debate on
the motion of the Honourable Senator McRae, that it be-

Resolved, That in the opinion of this House the Government should declare
its intention to control the production and distribution of all radium procured
from Canadian ores; and to that end should immediately appoint a Canadian
Radium Commission to investigate and recommend to the next Session of
Parhiatnent the best methods to adopt to give effect to such control.

It was Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-
morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-
tion of the second Report of the Joint Committee of both Houses.on the
Printing of Parliament.

The said Report was adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-
tion of the Report of the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce, to
whom was referred the Bill (El). intituled: "An Act respecting the Department
of Insurance."

The said Report was concurred in, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill, as amended, was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill, as amended, shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-
tion of the Report of the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce, to
whom was referred the Bill (Fl), intituled: "An Act respecting Foreign In-
surance Companies in Canada."

The said Report was concurred in, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill, as amended, was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill, as amended, shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-
tion of the Report of the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce. to
whom was referred the Bill (G1), intituled: "An Act respecting Canadian and
British Insurance Companies."
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The said Report was eoncurred in, and-
With leave of the Aenate,
The said B'ill, as amended, was then read the thirld time.
The question was put whether this Bill, as amended, shall pass.
It was resolved ini the affirrnftve.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go clown tu the I{oüse of Commons and eqtiai nt

that HFouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence.

Pursualit to the Order of~ the Day the Senate resumed the adjournied debate
on the motion of the Hfonourable Senator Tanner-

That the f ourth Report of the Special Com-mittee appointed for the pur-
pose of taking into consideration the report of' a Special Committee of the
Flouse of Coinirins of the hast Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois
Power Project, insofar as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members
of the Senate, be concurred in.

And the debate continuing,

It being six o'ehock, the Hlonourable the Speaker left the Chair to resume

the same at half-past seven o'clock.

7.30 P.M.

The Senate resuimed.

After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate on the said motion be adjourned until to-

morrow, and that it be the first Order after third readings of Bis.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The TRight ilonourable Senator Graham, from the Standing Committee on
Railways, Telegraplis and Harbours, to whom was referred the Bill (46),
intituled: "An Act to incorporate Lak 'e of the Woods International Bridge
Company," reported that they had gone through the said Bill and had directed
him to report the same to the Senate, without any amendment.

Ordered, That the said Bill be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third
reading on Tuesday, next.

The Right Honourable Senator Meighen presented to the Senate a Bill
(C2), intituled: "An Act to amend the Winding-Up Act."

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was read the second time, -and-
Referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The Right Ilonourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-
Copy of Order in Council, P.C. 857, dated l6th April, 1932, transferring

the Preventive Service of the Department of National Revenue to the Royal
Canadian Mounted Police.

The Order of the Day being called for the third reading of the Bill (18),
intituled: "An Act to amend the Destructive Insect and Pest Act," it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the next
sitting of the Senate.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (32), intituled: "An Act
respecting the Ottawa and New York Raîlway Company," as amended, xvas
read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill, as amended, shail pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and

acquaint that bouse that the Senate *have passed this Bill with one amendment,
to whîch they desire their concurrence.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day the Senate resumed the adj ourned debate
on the motion of the Honourable Senator Tanner:-

That the fourth Report'of the Special Committee appointed for the pur-
pose of taking into consideration the report of a Special Committee of the
Huse of Commons of the hast Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois
Power Project, insofar as the saîd Report relates to any Jionourable Members
of the Senate, be concurred in.

And the debate continuing,

It being six o'clock, the Honourable the Speaker left the Chair to resume

the same at half-past seven o'clock.

7.30 P.M.
The Senate resumed.

After debate, it was--
Ordered, That further debate-on the said motion be adjourned until Tues-

day, next, and that it be the first Order after third readings of Buis.
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The Order of the Day being called for the further consideration in a Com-mittee of the Whole, of the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to amend the ExciseAct," it was-
Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the nextsitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for resuming the adjourned debate onthe motion of the Honourable Senator McRae, that it be-
Resolved, That in the opinion of this House the Government should declareits intention to control the production and distribution of all radium procuredfrom Canadian ores; and to that end should immediately appoint a CanadianRadium Commission to investigate and recommend to the next Session ofPariament the best methods to adopt to give effect to such control.st t was Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the nextsitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for resuming the adjourned debate onthe motion of the Honourable Senator Casgrain-That in the judgment of the Senate, in order to give immediate relief byeliminating some duplication in the service of the Canadian Railways, pendingaction by the Commission presently investigating Canadian Railways, a Com-mittee composed of an equal number of present officials from the CanadianPacific Railway Company and the Canadian National Railways, be formed,and elect an Umpire, and failing to agrce in their choice, the Supreme Courtof Canada shall appoint this Umpire.
It was Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the nextsitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (VI),intituled: "An Act for the relief of Gordon Alexander Cowan " it was-Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the nextsitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill(Wl), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Ida Tarantour Waxman," it was--Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the nextsitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill(XI); intituled: "An Act for the relief of Frances Helen Dawes Porteous," itwas-
Ordered, That the said Order of the Day he postponed until the nextsitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill(Y1), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Minnie Jones Chandler," it was-Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the nextsitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill(Zi), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Elizabeth Irene Woolnough," it was-Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the nextsitting of the Senate.
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The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill
(A2), intituled-, "An Act for 'the relief of Ellery Sauf ord Johnston," it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the neKt
sitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill
(B2), intjtuled: "An Act for the relief of Fanla Goidman Rçother," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed uiitil the next
sitting of the Senate.

The Order of the Day being called for the consideration of the second
Report of the Standing Commzittee on Public Buildings and Grounds, it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until the next
sitting of the Senate.

With leave of the Senate, and-
On motion, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Tuesday, next, at three o'clock in the afternoon (Daylight saving time).

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable lie Speaker informed the Senate that he had received a

communication from the Assistant Secretary to the Governor General.
The same was read by the Honourable the Speaker, as follows:-

OFFICE 0F THE GOVERNOII GENERAL'S SECRETARY, CANADA

OTTAWA, 3rd May, 1932.

SiR,-J have the honour to inform you that the Right Honourable F. A.

Anglin, Chief Justice of Canada, acting as Deputy of His Excellency the Gov-

ernor General, w'ill proceed to the Senate Chamber to-day at 5 p.m., for the

purpose of giving the Royal Assent to certain Bis.

I have the honour to be,
Sir,

Your obedient servant,
JAMES F. CROWDY,

Assistant Secretary to the Governor Generat.

The Honourable>
The Speaker of the Senate,

Ottawa.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Comm'ons by their Clerk to

return the Bill (Hi), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Eva Corker Trili."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without, any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk to

return the Bill (I1), intituled: "An Act for the relief of George Senkler Morgan."
And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any

amendment.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk to

return the Bill (Ji), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Agnes May Jack
Evans."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message, was hroiught from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk .to

return the Bill (Ki), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Mabel Constance
Small Cossar."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passcd the said Bill, without any'

amendment.

A Message wa5 brought from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk to

return the Bill (Li), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Olive Pearl Beattie
Watkins."

SAnd to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the saîd Bill, without any

amendment.

A' Message was brought from the flouse of Comnmons by their Clerk to

return the Bill (Ml), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Assad Kalil Eddy,
otlierwise known as Joseph ýCanille.".

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passecl the said Bill, without any

amendment.
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A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk ta
return the Bill (Ni), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Georgina Linda
MeIndoe Howard."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was hrought fram the House of Gommons by their Clerk to
return the Bill (01), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Antonio Poliseno,"

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by th*eir Clerk to
return the Bill (Pi), intituled: "An Adt for the relief of Dorothy Gertrude
Silcock Wilson."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
arnendment.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk to
return the Bill (Qi), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Beulah Isohel Phillips
Eakin."

And to acquaint the Senate that thev have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was hrought from the House of Gommons by their Clerk tu
return the Bill (Ri), intituled: "An Act for the relief of George Seymour
Dixon."

And ta acquaint the Senate tliat they have passed the said Bill, without any
arnendment.

A M\essage was brought from the bouse of Commans hy their Clerk ta
return the Bill (Si), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Audrey Meredith Mann
Redpath."

And ta acquaint the Senate ithat thev have passcd the sf-*d Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was hroughit from the House of Commons hy their Clerk ta
return the Bill (Tl), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Ethel Seigler Nis-
sen son.">

And ta acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons hy their Clerk in the
following words-

FRIDAY, 29th April, 1932.
Resolved. --That a Message ho sent ta the Senate ta retura ta that bouse

the evidence, etc., taken hefore the Standing Committee of the Senate on
Divorce, ta whomn were referred the petitions of Eva Corker Trîll, George
Senkler Morgan, Agnes May Jaek Evans, Mahel Constance Small Coss'ar, Olive
Pearl Beattie Watkins, Assad Kalil Eddy, otherwise kuwlu as Jôseph Canille,
Georgina Linda Melndoe Howard, Antonio Poliseno, Dorothy Gertrude Sileoek
Wilson, Beulah Isobel Phillips Eakin, George Seymour Dixon, Audrey Meredith
Mann Redpath and Ethel Seigler Nissenson, respectively praying for Bills of
Divorce: and the papers produeed in evidence before them.

Ordered,-That the Clerk of the bouse do carry the said Message ta the
Senate.

Attest.
ARTHIUR BEATUIIESNE,

Clerk of the Commons.
Ordered, That the same do lie on the Tahie.
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A Message was brought froin the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (5), intituled: "An Act respecting Unf air Competition in Trade and
Commerce," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the (irders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brouglit from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (34),' intituled: "An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways
and to authorize the provision of moneys to meet expenditures made and
indebtedness incurred during the calendar year 1932," to which they desire
the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placcd on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was broughit from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (45), intituled: "An Act rcspecting the Export of Gold," to which they
desîre the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brought froin the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (62), intituled: "An Act respecting a certain Trade Agreement between
Canada and New Zealand," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first tiine, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Frîday, next.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk wîth
a Bibi (64), intituled: "An Act to authorize the Refund of Moneys received in
connection with the administration of the INatural Resources," to which they
desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bibi was read the first timo, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second readinz_

to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bibl (65), intituled: "An Act respectîng the Eastern Bank of Canada," to,
which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bibi was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be pbaced on the Orders of the Day for a second readîng

to-morrow.
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A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (70), intituled: "An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways
and to provide for an extension of time for the construction or completion of
certain lines of railway," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (18), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Destructive Insect and Pest Act," was read the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (46), intituled: "An Act to
incorporate Lake of the Woods International Bridge Company," was read the
third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day the Senate resumed the adjourned debate
on the motion of the Honourable Senator Tanner:-

That the fourth Report of the Special Committee appointed for the pur-
pose of taking into consideration the report of a Special Committee of the
House of Commons of the last Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois
Power Project, insofar as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members
of the Senate, be concurred in.

And the debate continuing,

The Senate adjourned during pleasure.

After a while, the Right Honourable Francis Alexander Anglin, Deputy
Governor General, baving come and being seated at the foot of the Throne,

The Honourable the Speaker commanded the Gentleman Usher of the Black
Rod to proceed to the House of Commons and acquaint that House that,-

" It is the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor General's desire that
they attend him immediately in the Senate Chamber."

The House of Commons being come,

The Clerk read the titles of the Bills to be assented to, as follows:-
An Act to amend the Patent Act.
An Act to amend the Petroleum and Naphtha Inspection Act.
An Act respecting debts due to the Crown.
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An Act to amend The Opium and Narcotic Drug Act, 1929.

An Act to amend the Yukon Quartz Mining Act.

An Act respecting the Canadian Pacific Railway Company.

An Act respecting certain patents of Autographic Register Systems, Limited.

An Act for the relief of Eva Corker Trill.

An Act for the relief of George Senkler Morgan.
An Act for the relief of Agnes May Jack Evans.

An Act for the relief of Mabel Constance Small Cossar.

An Act for the relief of Olive Pearl Beattie Watkins.

An Act for the relief of Assad Kalil Eddy, otherwise known as Joseph
Canille.

An Act for the relief of Georgina Linda McIndoe Howard.

An Act for the relief of Antonio Poliseno.

An Act for the relief of Dorothy Gertrude Silcock Wilson.

An Act for the relief of Beulah Isobel Phillips Eakin.

An Act for the relief of George Seymour Dixon.

An Act for the relief of Audrey Meredith Mann Redpath.

An Act for the relief of Ethel Seigler Nissenson.
An Act to amend the Destructive Insect and Pest Act.

An Act to incorporate Lake of the Woods International Bridge Company.

To these Bills the Royal Assent was pronounced by the Clerk of the Senate
in the following words:-

" In His Majesty's name, the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor
General doth assent to these Bills."

After which the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor General was
pleased to retire.

The Commons withdrew.

The Senate resumed.

And the debate continuing on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Tanner-

That the fourth Report of the Special Committee appointed for the pur-

pose of taking into consideration the report of a Special Committee of the
House of Commons of the last Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois
Power Project, in so far as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members
of the Senate, be concurred in.

It being six o'clock, the Honourable the Speaker left the Chair to resume
the same at half-past seven o'clock.
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7.30 P.M.
The Senate resumed.

After further debate, and the question being put on the motion,
The Senate divided, and the names being called for they were taken down,

as follows:-
CONTEN"TS

The Honourable Senators
Ballantyne, Gordon, MeLean, Pape,
Barnard, Green, McLennan, Schuffner,
Black, Laird, McMeans, Sharpe,
Bourque, Macdonald, McRae, Smith,
Chapais, Macodonell, Meighen, Tanner,
Daniel, Marcotte, Michener, Taylor,
Donnelly, Martin, Planta, Todd,
Fisher, Mecormick, Poirier, White (Inkerman),
Ujîlis, White (Pembroke)-34.

NON-CONTENTS

The Honourable Senators
Aylesworth (Sir Allen), Hardy, Little, Riley,
Bureau, Harmer, MacArthur, Sinclair,
Coqp, Hughes, McGuire, Spence,
Dandurand, King, Paradis, Tessier,
Forke, Lacasse, Parent, Tobin,Foster, Lemieux, Prevost, Wilson (Sorel)-27.
Graham, Lewis, Rankin,

It was declared in the affirmative.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (6),
intituled: "An Act to amend the Fish Inspection Act," it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (42),
intituled: "An Act to amend the Criminal Code (Trustees defined) ," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (53),
intituled: "An Act Vo, amend the Act of Incorporation of The Frontier Cullege,"
it was-

Ordered, That the sai:d Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the further consideration in a Com-
mittee of the Whole, of the Bill (27), intituled: "An Act to, amend the Excise
Act," it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for resuming the adjourned debate on
the motion of the Honourable Senator MeRae, that it be-

Resolved, That in the opinion of this House the Government should declare
its intention to, control the production and distribution of ail radium procured
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from Canadian ores; and to that end should immediately appoint a Canadian

Radium Commission to investigate and recommend to the next Session of

Parliament the best methods to, adopt to give effect to such control.
It was Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed. until to-

morrow.

The Order of the Day being called. for resuming the adjourned debate on

the motion -of the Ilonourable Senator Casgrain-
That in the judgment of the Senate, in order to give immediate relief by

eliminating some duplication in the service of the Canadian Railways, pending

action by the Commission presently investigating Canadian Railways, a Com-

mittee composed of an equal number of present officiais from the Canadian

Pacific Railway Company and the Canadian National Railways, bc formed,
and elect an Umpire, and failing to agree in their choice, the Supreme Court
of Canada shall appoint this Umpire.

It was Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-
morrow.

The Order of the Day bcing called for the second reading of the Bill (Vi),
intituled: "An Act for the relief of Gordon Alexander Cowan," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (Wl),
intituled: "An Aet for the relief of Ida Tarantour Waxman," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (X.1),
intituled: "An Act for the relief of Frances Helen Dawes Porteous," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (Yl),
intituled: "An Act for the relief of Minnie Joncs Chandler," it was--

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (Zi),
intituled: "An Act for the relief of Elizabeth Irene Woolnough," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed. until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the second readinýg of the Bill (A2),
intituled: "An Act, for the relief of Ellery Sanford Johnston," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being calhed for the second reading of the Bill (B2)ý
intituled: "An Act for the relief of Fanla Goîdman Rother," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

The Order of the Day being called for the consideration of the second Report

Df the Standing Committee on Public Buildings and Grounds, it was-
Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morro\v.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twenty-fourth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their twenty-
fourth Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Roméo Xavier Vandette, of the city of
Montreal, in the province of Quebec, motion picture operator, for an Act to
dissolve his marriage with Rose Anna Larocque Vandette, the Committee find
that the requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in
all material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

All which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twenty-fifth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their twenty-
fifth Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Adlena Emma Sills Burrow, otherwise
known as Adlena Emma Sills Burrows, of the city of Toronto, in the province
of Ontario, for an Act to dissolve her marriage with Harry Burrow, otherwise
known as Harris Charles Burrows, of the city of Montreal, in the province of
Quebec, salesman, the Committee find that the requirements of the Rules of
the Senate have been complied with in all materials respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

All which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twenty-sixth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows-

MONDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their twenty-
sixth Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Ida Judith Clark Freudberg, of the city
of Montreal, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to dissolve her marriage
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with Leo Freudberg, the Committee find that the requirements of the Rules
of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

3. The Committee recommcnd that the Parliamentary fees paid under
Rule 140 be refunded to the petitioner, less the sum of $100.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twenty-seventh Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Commîttee on Divorce beg leave to make their twenty-
seventh Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petîtion of Elizabeth Ann Routledge Gunther, of
the city of Montreal, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to dissolve her
inarriage with Roy Alfred Gunther, the Commîttee find that the requirements
of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail whîch is respectfully submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twenty-eighth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:--

MONDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their twenty-
eighth Report, às follows:

1. With respect to the petition of Chesley Hastings Potter, of the town of
Methuen, in the state of Massachusetts, one of the United States of America,
for an Act to dissolve her marriage with Gerald Edward Potter, of the City
of Valleyfield, in the province of Quehec, salesman, the Committee find that
the requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied with in al
material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

Ail whieh is respectfully submitted.
L. MeMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was, on division, adopted.
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The Honourabie the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their twenty-ninth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows--

MONDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their twenty-ninth
Report, as f ollows:-

1. With respect to, the petition of Thea Alice MacFarlane Lamb, of the
town of Valois, in the province of Quebec, for an Act to dissolve her marriage
with George Percival Lamb, the Committee find that the requirements of the
Rules of the Senate have been compiied with in ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommenýd the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

3. The Committee recommend that the Parliamentary fees paid under Rule
140 be refunded to the petitioner, iess the sum of $50.

Ail which is respeetfuily submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their thirtieth. Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their thirtieth
Report, as follows-

1. With respect to, the petition of Margaret Spencer Heald, of the city of
Montreal, in the province of Quebec, secretary, for an Act to dissolve ber
marriage with Leonard Heald, the Committee find that the requirements of the
Rules of the Senate have been complied with in ail material respects.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

3. The Committee recommend that the Parliamentary fees paid under Rule
140 be refunded to the petitioner, lesj the sum of $100.

Ail which is respectfully submi ed
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

The Honourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their thurty-first Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Oommittee on Divorce beg leave to make their thirty-first
Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Chia Hannah Shiff, of the city of Mont-
real, in the province of Quebec, factory employee, for an Act to, dissolve her
marriage with Samuel Shiff, otherwise known as Samuel Shiffman, the Com-
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mittee find that the requirements of the Rules of the Senate have been complied
with in ail materiai respects, except Rule 140 respecting payment of the Parlia-
mentary fees.

2. The Committee recommend the passage of an Act to dissolve the said
marriage.

3. The Committee recommend that the Parliamentary fees payable under
Rule 140 be remitted to the petitioner, less the sum of $50.

Ail which is respectfuily submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was, on division, adopted.

The Honourabie the Chairman froin the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their thirty-seeond Report.

The saine was then read by the Cierk, as follows:-

MoNDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their thirty-second
Report, as foilows-

1. XVith respect to the petition cf Freda Iris Symingtoný, of the city of
Montreal, Quebec, and at present residing at the town of Clacton-on-Sea, Essex,
England, for an Act to dissolve ber marriage with Robert Russell Symington of
the said city of Montreal.

2. Counsel for the petitioner having made application for leave to withdraw
the petition, the Committee recommend that leave be granted accordingly, and
that the Parliamentary fees paid under Rule 140 be refunded, iess printing costs,
to Mr. S. Rupert Broadfoot, K.C., counsel for the petitioner.

All which is respectfully submnitted.
L. MoMEANS,

Chairm an.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The ilonourable the Chairman from the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their thirty-third Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MONDAY, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to makc their thirty-Lhird
Report, as f ollows-

1. With respect to te petition of Agnes May Jack Evans, cf the city of
Montreal, Quebec; praying for refund of the Pariiamentary fees paid upon ber
petition for a Bill of Divorce.

2. The Committee reconimend that the Parliamentary fees paid under Rule
140 be refunded to the petitioner, less the sum o! $50.

AlI which is respeetfully submitted.
L. MoMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave o! the Sonate,
The said Report was adopted.
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The ilonourable the Chairman fromn the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented their thirty-fourth Report.

The same wus then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

MoNDAT, 2nd May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Divorce beg leave to make their thirty-fourth
Report, as follows:-

1. With respect to the petition of Eva Corker Trili, of the city of Montreal,
Quebec; praying for refund of the Parliamentary fees paid upon her petition for
a Bill of Divorce.

2. The Committee recommend that the Parliamentary fees paid under Rule
140 be refunded to the petitioner, less the sumn of $100.

Ail which is respectfuhly submitted.
L. McMEANS,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was adopted.

The ilonourable Senator Black, from the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce, to whom was referred the Bill (C2), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Winding-up Act," reported that they had gone through the said
Bill and had directed him to report the same to the Senate, without any
amendment.

Ordered, That the said Bill be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third
reading on Tuesday, next.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (63), intituled: "An Act to amend the Royal Canadian Mounted Police
Act," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

A Message was brought froin the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (71), intituled: "An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways and
to authorize the Guarantee by His Mai esty of securities to be issued under the
Canadian National Railways Financing Act, 1932," to whbich they desire the
concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was rend the first time, and-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

on Tuesday, next.

Pursuant to the'Order of the Day, the Bill (6'> intituled: "An Act to
amend the Fish Inspection Act," was rend the second time, and-

Ordered, That the said Bill be committed to a Committee of the Whole
on Tuesday, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (42)>, intituled: "An Act to
amend the Criminal Code (Trustees defined) ,"' was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then rend the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the Huse of Commons, and acquaint

that bouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (53), intituled: "An Act to
amend the Act of Incorporation of The Frontier College," was read the second
time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
If was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate was acljourned during pleasure
and again put into a Committee of the Whole on the Bill (27), intituled: "An
Act to amend the Excise Act."

(In the Commit tee)

Affer soine time the Senate was resumed, and-
The bonourable ýSenator McLennan, from the said ýCommittee, reporfed that

they had gonc through the said Bill, and had dirccted him to report the same
to the Senate, without any amendment.

With leave of the Senate,
The snid Bill wns then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.

Itwas resolved in thc affirmative.
Ordcred, That the Clerk do go down t0 the bouse of Commons, and acquaint

fIat bouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, wîthout any amendment.

W\ith leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That Orders number 5 and 6 lie postponcd until a later stage of

the proccedings.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, thec Bill (Vi), întituled: "An Act for
tlic relief of Gordon Alexander Comvan," w-as, on division, read the second
time, and-

Ordcrcd, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading
on Tuesday, next.

Puirsuant to the Order of the Day, thc Bill (l), intitulcd: "An Act for
flic relief of Ida Tarantour Waxman," w-as, on division, read tIe second time,
and-

Xitli leav'e of the Senate,
The said Bill w-as, on division, tIen read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
If was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordercd, That the Clerk do go dow-n to fhe bouse of Commons and acqunint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before fIe Standing Committee on Divorce, together with ail the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this bouse.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Xl), intituled: "An Act for

the relief of Frances Helen Dawes Porteous," was, on division, read the second
time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Yl), intituled: "An Act for

the relief of Minnie Jones Chandler," was, on division, read the second time,
and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (Z1), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Elizabeth Irene Woolnough," was, on division, read the second
time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (A2), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Ellery Sanford Johnston," was, on division, read the second time,
and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the cas&
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro -
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to:
this House.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (B2), intituled: "An Act for the
relief of Farla GoIdman Rother," was, on division, read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the casebefore the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned tothis House.

The Order of the Day being called for the consideration of the second Reportof the Standing Committee on Public Buildings and Grounds, it was-
Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until Tuesday, next.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (5),intituled: "An Act respecting Unfair Competition in Trade and Commerce," itwas-
Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until Tuesday, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (34), intituled: "An Act respect-ing the Canadian National Railways and to authorize the provision of moneysto meet expenditures made and indebtedness incurred during the calendar year1932," was read the second time, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall'pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaintthat House that the Senate have passed the said Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (45), intituled: "An Act respect-ing the Export of Gold," was read the second time, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaintthat House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (64), intituled: "An Act toauthorize the Refund of Moneys received in connection with the administration
of the Natural Resources," was read the second time, and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading onTuesday, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (65), intituled: "An Act respect-
ing the Eastern Bank of Canada," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and acquaintthat House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (70), intituied: "An Act respect-

ing the Canadian National Railways and to provide for an extension of the time

for the construction or completion of certain lines of railway," was read the

second time, and-
Referred to the Standing Committee on Railways, Teiegraphs and Harbours.

According to, Order, the Senate reverted to Orders numbers 5 and 6.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day the Senate resumed the adjourned debate

on the motion of the Honourable Senator McRae, that it be--
Resoived, That in the opinion of this bouse the Government should deciare

its intention to control the production and distribution of ail radium procured

from Canadian ores; and to that end shouid immediately appoint a Canadian

Radium Commission to investigate and recommend to the next Session of iParlia-

ment the best methods to adopt to give effeet to sucli control.
After further debate, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said motion was withdrawn.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned ýdebate

on the motion of the Honourabie Senator Casgrain-
That in the judgment of the Senate, in order to -ive immediate relief by

eiiminating some duplication in the service of the Canadian Raiiways, pending

action by the Commission presentiy investigating Canadian Raiiways, a Com-

mittee eomposed of an equal number of present officiais from, the Canadian

Pacifie Raiiway Company and the Canadian National Raiiways, be f ormed,

and eleet an Umpire, and faiiing to agree in their choice, the Supreme Court

of Canada shall appoint this Uinpire.
After debate, it was-
Ordered, That further debate be adjourned untii Wednesday, the first day

of June, next.

With icave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned until

Tuesday, next, at three o'clock in the afternoon.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (D2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Ronéo
Xavier Vandette."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (E2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Adlena
Emma Sills Burrow, otherwise known as AdIena Emma Sills Burrows."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (F2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Ida
Judith Clark Freudberg."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (G2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Eliza-
beth Ann Routledge Gunther."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (H2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Cheley
Hastings Potter."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (12), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Theo
Alice MacFarlane Lamb,"

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,
presented to the Senate a Bill (J2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Chia
Hannah Shiff."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.
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The Honourable the Chairman of the Standing Committee on Divorce,presented to the Senate a Bill (K2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Margaret
Spencer Heald."

The said Bill was, on division, read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second readingto-morrow.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons, by their Clerk, in thefollowing words:-

MONDAY, 9th May, 1932.
Resolved,--That a Message be sent to the Senate informing their Honoursthat this House has adopted a resolution approving the International Conventionfor the Supervision of the International Trade in Arms and Ammunition, Geneva,17th June, 1925, signed on behalf of Canada by the Honourable RaoulDandurand on the 22nd September, 1925, and requesting that Their Honourswill unite with this House in the approval of the abovementioned Convention.Ordered,-That the Clerk of the House do carry the said Message to theSenate.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerk of the Commons.

With leave of the Senate, and-
On motion, it was-
Ordered, That the Message be taken into consideration presently.

Accordingly, the Senate proceeded to the consideration of the said Message.After debate, and-
On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Resolved,-That it is expedient that Parliament do approve of the Inter-national Convention for the Supervision of the International Trade in Arms andAmmunition, Geneva, 17th June, 1925, signed on behalf of Canada by theHonourable Raoul Dandurand on the 22nd September, 1925, and that this Housedo approve of the same.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Meighen, it was-
Ordered, That a Message be sent to the House of Commons to acquaintthat House that the Senate doth unite with the House of Commons in theapproval of the International Convention for the Supervision of the InternationalTrade in Arms and Ammunition, Geneva, 17th June, 1925, signed on behalf ofCanada by the Honourable Raoul Dandurand on the 22nd September, 1925.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk witha Bill (61), intituled: "An Act to amend the Companies Act," to which theydesire the concurrence of the Senate.
The sai-d Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was read the second time, and-
Referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day the Bill (C2), intituied: "An Act to

amend the Windîng-up Act," was read the thýird time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the iClerk do go down to the flouse of Commons, and acquaint

tihat flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their

concurrence.

The Order of the Day being called for the third reading of the Bill (Vi),

intituled: "An Act for the relief of Gordon Alexander Cowan," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (64), intituled: "An Act to

authorize the Refund of Moneys received in connection with the administration

of the Natural Resources," was read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill'shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That. the C'lerk do go d'own to the flouse of -Commons, and acqualint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That Orders number 4, 5 and 6 be postponed until a later stage

of the proceedings.

Accordingly, the Riglit Honourable Senat-or Meighen moved that the Bill

(5),' intituled: "An Act respecting Unfair Competition in Trade and Commerce,"

be n'ow read the second time.
The said Bill was read the second time, and-
Referred to the Standing Committee on Banking and Commerce.

The Right flonourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-

Copy of International Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property,

signed at the Hlague, the 6th November, 1925.

According to Order, thc Scnate reverted to Orders -number 4, 5 and 6.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bihh (62),

intituied: "An Act respecting a certain Trade Agreement between Canada and

New Zealand," it was-
Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until to-morrow.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate was adjourned during pleasure

and put into a Commit-tee of the Whole on the Bill (6), intituled: "An Act to

amend the Fish Inspection Act."
(In the Committee)

After some time the Senate was resumed, and-
The flonourable Senat-or Gordon, from the said Committee, reported that

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the same

to the Senate, without any amendment.
With heave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shaîl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Commons, and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bihh, without any amendment.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Sen.ate proceeded to the consideration
of the second Report of the Standing Committee on Public Buildings and
Grounds.

The said Report was adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (63), intituled: "An Act to,
amend the Royal Canadian Mounted Police Act," was read the second time,
and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then reaýd the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and acquaint

that Hbuse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (71), intituled: "An Act respect-
ing the Canadian National Railways and te authorize the guarantee by lus
Majesty of securities to be issued under the Canadian National Railways
Financing Act, 1932," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, 'rhat the Cherk do go down te the bouse of Commons, and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

The Senate adj ourned.
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The Right Honourable Senator Meighen laid on the Table:-
Copy of Annual Report of the Civil Service Commission of Canada, 1931

(French edition).

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable the Chairman of the
Committee on Divorce moved that the Bill (V1),.intituled: "An Act for the
relief of Gordon Alexander Cowan," be now read the third time, and-

The question being put on the said motion, it was-
Declared passed in the negative.

The Order of the Day being called for the second reading of the Bill (62),
intituled: "An Act respecting a certain Trade Agreement between Canada and
New Zealand," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed until Friday, next.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (D2»), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Roméo Xavier Vandette," was, on division, read the second time,
and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (E2), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Adlena Emma Sills Burrow, otherwise known as Adlena Emma
Sills Burrows," was, on division, read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (F2), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Ida Judith Clark Freudberg," was, on division, read the second
time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
If was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, tb which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
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before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (G2), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Elizabeth Ann Routledge Gunther," was, on division, read the
second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (H2), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Chesley Hastings Potter," was, on division, read the second time,
and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (12), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Theo Alice MacFarlane Lamb," was, on division, read the second
time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with all the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (J2), intituled: "An Act for
the relief of Chia Hannah Shiff, was, on division, read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evidence taken in the case
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before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with ail the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
this House.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bull (K2), intituled: "An Act for

the relief of Margaret Spencer Heald," was, on division, read the second time,
and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read a third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was, on division, resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence; also to communicate to that House the evîdence taken in the case
before the Standing Committee on Divorce, together with ail the papers pro-
duced in evidence before them, with the request that the same be returned to
his bouse.

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Friday, next, at three o'clock in the afternoon.

The Senate adjourned.
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I RAYERS.

The Honourable Senator Black, from. the Standing Committee on Banking

and Commerce, .to whom was referred the Bill (Ul), intituled: "An Act to incor-

porate The W. S. Newton Company," reported that they had gone through the

said Bill, and had directed him to report the same to the Senate with several

amendments, which he was ready to submit whenever the Senate would be pleased
to receive the samie.

The said amendments were then read by the Clerk as folws:

Page 2, lines 14 to 23 inclusive. Leave out ail the words after "arbitrators"
to the end of paragraph (f).

Page 2, line 25. Leave out the word ",estates".

Page 2, lîne 33. Add the following as paragraph (j):
" (j) act as trustees under the Bankruptcy Act in the winding-up of estates

of deceased insolvent persons;".
Reletter paragraph (j) as (k).

Page 2, lines 35 to 38 inclusive. Leave out all the words after "objects" te,

the end of the paragraph.

The said amendments were concurred in, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill, as amended, was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill, as amended, shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk dIo go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, to which they desire their
concurrence.

The Right Honourable Senater Graham, from the Standing Cemmittee on

Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, te whom was referred the Bill (70),

intituled: "An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways and to provide

for an cxtension of the time for the construction or completion cf certain lines cf

railway," reported that they had gene through the said Bill, and had dîrected

him te report the same to the Senate, without any amendment.
With leave cf the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shail pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse cf Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, witheut any amendment.

The Honourable Senator Black, from the Standing Committee on Banking

and Commerce, te whom was referred the Bill (61), intituled: "An Act to amend

the Companies Act," reported that they had gone through the said Bill, and had

directed him te report the same te the Senate, without any amendment.
With leave cf the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shail pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Gommons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.
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The Right Honourable Senator Graham, froni the Standing Committee on
Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, presented the following Report.

The sanie was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-
The Standing Committee on Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours, to whom

was referred the Bill (Dl), intituled: "An Act respecting The Quebec, Montreal
and Southern Railway Company," have in obedience to the order of reference
of 8th March, 1932, examined the said Bill, and now beg leave to report thereon
as follows:-

1. Your Committee find that the preamible of the said Bill has not been
proven to their satisfaction.

2. Your Committee have arrived at this decision on the ground that the
passage of the said Bill would not be in the public interest.

Ail which is respectfully submitted.
GEO. P. GRAHAM,

Chairman,With leave of the Senate,
The said Report was concurred in.

The Honourable Senator Black, from the Standing Committee on Banking
and Commerce, to whom was referred the Bill (5), intituled: "An Act respecting
Unf air Competition in Trade and Commerce," reported that they had gone
through the said Bill, and had directed him to, report the same to the Senate,
without any amendment.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the bouse of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bilh (72), intituled: "An Act respecting Relief Measures," to which they desire
the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bilh was read the first tume, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was, on division, then read the second, and the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pas-s.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that buse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any arnendment.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (82), intituled: "An Act for granting to lis Majesty certain sums of
money for the public service of the finaxicial year, ending the 31st March, 1933,"
to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read, the second and third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resohved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the bouse of Gommons and acquaint

that bouse that the Senate have passed this Bil].
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A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk to

return the Bill (El), intituled: "An Act respecting the Department of Insurance."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, with several

amendments, to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said amendments were then read by the Clerk, as follows:--

1. Page 2, line 10. Strike out section seven and substitute therefor the

following:-
"7. The Superintendent or any officer or clerk under him shall not, directly

or indirectly, be interested as a shareholder in any insurance company, trust

company or loan company doing business in Canada or in any province of

Canada, or registered or licensed under any of the Acts respecting companies

specified in the Schedule to this Act."

2. Page 3, Immediately after line 4. Insert the following subsection as
subsection (3) of section eight:-

"(3) Thereupon the Superintendent shall ascertain the ratio or percentage
which the total expenditure incurred in the administration of the said Acts

respecting insurance companies, of the Loan Companies Act, and of the Trust

Companies Act, respectively, so found and certified is of the total net receipts
of the said insurance companies, the total income of the said loan companies,
and the total income of the said trust companies, respectively, and he shall
cause an assessment to be prepared against each of the aforesaid companies as

follows, that is to say:-

(a) Against each of the said insurance companies of an amount equivalent
to such percentage of the said net receipts of each company as the total
expenditure incurred in the administration of the said Acts respecting
insurance companies is of the total net receipts of all such companies;
and

(b) Against each of the said loan companies of an amount equivalent to

such percentage of the said income of each company as the total
expenditure incurred in the administration of the Loan Companies Act
is of the total income of all such companies; and

(c) Against each of the said trust companies of an amount equivalent to
such percentage of the said income of each company as the total
expenditure incurred in the administration of the Trust Companies Act
is of the total income of all such companies;

and such assessment, when certified by the Superintendent, shall be binding
upon the said companies, and each of them, and shall be final and conclusive.

Ordered, That the said amendments be placed on the Orders of the Day
for consideration at the next sitting of-the Senate.

The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that he had received a

communication from the Assistant Secretary to the Governor General.
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The same was read hy the Honourable the Speaker, as follows:-
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR GENERAL'S SECRETARY, CANADA

OTTAWA, 13th May, 1932.
SIR-I- have the honour to inform you that the Right Honourable F. A.Anglin, Chief Justice of Canada, acting as Deputy of lis Excellency the Gov-

ernor General, will proceed to the Senate Chamber to-day at 5.30 p.rn., for the
purpose of giving the Royal Assent to certain Bis.

1 have the honour to be,
Sir,

Your obedient servant,
JAMES F. CROWDY,

Assistant Secretary to the Governor General.
The Honourable

The Speaker of the Senate,
Ottawa.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (62), intituled: "An Act respect-ing a certain Trade Agreement between Canada and New Zealand," was read the
second tirne, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resohved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go dow n to the House of Commons and acquaintthat House that thc Senate have passed the said Bill, wîthout any amendment.

The Senate adjourned during pleasure.

After a while, the Right Honourable Francis Alexander Anglin, Deputy
Governor General, having corne and being seated at the foot of the Throne,

The Honourable the Speaker cornmanded the Gentleman Usher of the Black
Rod to proceed to the House of Commons and acquaint that Huse that,-

" It is the Riglit Honourable the Deputy Governor Genera's desire that
they attend him îmmediatehy in the Senate Chamber."

The House of Commons being corne,

The Clerk- read the tities of the Bis to be assented to, as follows--
An Act to arnend the Criminal Code (Trustees defined).
An Act to amend the Act of Incorporation of The Frontier Coîhege.
An Act to arnend the Excise Act.
An Act respecting the Canadian National Railw-ays and to authorize the

provision of rnoneys to meet expenditures made and indebtedncss incurred dur-
ing the cahendar year 1932.

An Act respecting the Export of Gold.
An Act respecting the Eastern Bank of Canada.
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An Act to authorize the Refund of Moneys received in connection with
the administration of the INatural Resources.

An Act ta amend the Fish Inspection Act.
An Act ta amend the Royal Canadian Mounted Police Act.
An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways and ta authorize the

guarantee by Ris Mai esty of securities ta be issued under the Canadian National
Railways Financing Act, 1932.

An Act respecting Unfair Campetition in Trade and Commerce.
An Act ta amend the Companies Act.
An Act respecting the Canadian National Railways and ta provide for

an extension of the time for the construction or completian of certain lines of
railway.

An Act respecting Relief Measures.
An Act respecting a certain Trade Agreement between Canada and New

Zealand.

Ta these Bills the Royal Assent was pronounced by the Clerk of the Senate
in the following words:-

" In His Majesty's name, the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor
General doth assent ta these Bills."

The Honourable the Speaker of the Commons then addressed the Right
Honourable the Deputy Gavernor General, as follows:-

"MAY IT PLEASE YoUR HONOUR:

" The Commons of Canada have votcd supplies required ta enable the
Government ta defray certain expenses of the Public Service.

" In the name of the Commons, I present ta Your Honour the following
Bill:-

",An Act for granting ta Ris Majesty certain sums of money for the public
service of the financial year ending the 3lst March, 1933."

" To which Bill I humbly request Your Honour 's assent."

After the Clerk had read the title of this Bill,

To this Bill the Royal As'sent was pronounced by the Clerk of the Senate
in the following words:-

" In Ris Majesty's name, the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor
General thanks Ris Loyal Subjects, accepts their benevolence, and assents ta
this Bill."

After which the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor General was
pleased ta retire.

The Cammons withdrew.

The Senate resumed.

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until Monday, the twenty-third day of May, next, at eight o'clock in the
evening.

The Senate adj ourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Ilonourable Senator McLennan, from the Standing Committee on

Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada, presented their third Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as f ollows-

The Standing Committee on Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada

beg leave to present their third Report, as follows:

Your Committee has selected from the wide terms of its reference certain

matters which could be taken up with some degree of thoroughness in the time

atit dspsa.IMPERIAL ECONOMIC CONFERIENCE

Your Committee would like to say that it finds a widespread interest in

this matter, and particularly as to the preparation of Canada in the way of

acquiring and classifying the information necessary to enable its representa-

tives to discuss the many and complicated questions which will corne before

the Conference.
It will be seen by the evidence of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce and

the ýCanadian Manufacturers' Association, that mucli is being done in this

way of preparation; and while the Government of Canada has, as yet, made no

statement of its programme, and the personnel which will carry it out, your Com-

mittee lias reason to believe that Committees covering the whole field are now

at work in an effort ta make the preparation of Canada fully equal to the

requirements of the negotiations which will take place at the Conference.

Evidence taken by your Committee shows that Canadian Corporations

have been active in preparing information for the representatives of Canada

in the Conference, and that this information is being prepared with a recognition

of the fact that ail excbhinges must be in the fuliest sense reciprocal.

Your Committee was also impressed with the evidence given by Mr. Birks

as to the desirability of stabilizing exohange throughout the Empire by some

means other than a uniform Empire currency.

OTERi AGPNciES

In a time of great and world-wide depression, people are apt to f orget what

Canada lias achieved. Being in population only the twenty-fifth country in the

world, in international trade it bas risen to he the fifth or sixth. Its volume of

trade, with a population of but ten millions, equals that which the United

States had when its population had reached seventy-five millions. The sub-

joined table wîll illustrate the expansion of this trade during the present century.

EXPORTS
Fully

Partly or chiefly

Year Raw niaterials manufactured rnanufactured Total Exports
material-q materials

1900........ 70,066,372 $ 29,946,564 $ 68,959,365 $ 168,972,301

1931»........305,180,917 142,452,920 352,108,830 799,742,6lâ7

IMPORTS
Fully

Partly or chiefly

Year Raw inaterials manufactured manufaetured Total Imports
materials materials

1900...... . $ 42,958,473 $ 18,315,158 $ 111,378,045 $ 172,651,676

1931.. .... ...... 216,507,083 68,658,172 621,447,440 906,612,695
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It, therefore, seemed desirable to examine the machinery by which the
Government has assisted this development, and the work of other agencies
directed to the same end. Your Committee has taken evidence from the repre-
sentatives of:-

The Department of Trade and Commerce,
The Canadian Chamber of Commerce,
The Canadian Manufacturers' Association, and
The Department of Agriculture.

Your Committee places on record their recognition of the fullness of the
information on which the witnesses drew, the readiness with which that
knowledge was made available, and the evidence of the harmonious co-operation
of these agencies.

The evidence of all our witnesses was so informative that a synopsis can
give little more than headings of the subjects dealt with. It is, therefore, recom-
mended that those interested 4upplement our brief statement with the evidence
of the witnesses.

THE DEPARTMENT oF TRADE AND COMMERCE

The Department of Trade and Commerce (represented by Mr. J. G.
Parmelee, Deputy Minister; Mr. L. D. Wilgress, Acting Director of Commercial
Intelligence Service; and Mr. R. H. Coats, Dominion Statistician) has a well
organized system of (1) securing information as to possible markets; (2) con-
veying that information to possible shippers in Canada, and (3) bringing Cana-
dian products before possible buyers in foreign countries. These services are
provided through three main branches of the Department, viz., (a), the Publicity
Department, (b) the Dominion Bureau of Statistics, and (c) personal contact
through the Trade Commissioners abroad.

(a) In the main the work of the Publicity Department consists of advertising
and arranging for displays at exhibitions and in shop windows, especially in the
United Kingdom and on the Continent of Europe. All these activities are admin-
istered from Ottawa, but the immediate control is under the High Commissioner
in London, or the Minister in countries where there is a Canadian Legation. The
Department also publishes the Commercial Intelligence Journal, and compiles
directories of Canadian exporters and British and foreign importers, as well as
maintaining a Foreign Tariffs Division which is kept well up to date. It also
operates a Motion Picture Bureau, the work of which has greatly increased in
importance, as witnessed by the fact that at the close of 1931 it had 4,318 films
in circulation as against 550 in 1920. This Bureau works in co-operation with
the provincial governments of Canada when requested.

(b) The system of collecting and interpreting the trade statistics of the
Dominion was ably presented to your Committee by Mr. R. H. Coats. Your
Committee, however, while impressed with the efficiency of this service, concur
in the suggestion strongly recommended by Mr. Coats as to the obvious desir-
ability of publishing statistical data with regard to the trade of other countries,
which is not done at present, owing to the expense involved, although this data
is collected by the Bureau. As an example of what such statistics would reveal,
the apple imports of Germany are cited, showing that of some $12,000,000 worth
of apples imported annually into Germany, only about $4,000 worth came from
Canada. A study of German trade returns would show the countries with which
we might compete. Evidence given before your Committee also shows that
some slowness has been shown by the public in taking advantage of the informa-
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tion secured by the Bureau of Statistics; however, an increase of 40 per cent in
inquiries addressed to the Bureau during the past year would indicate that the
public is gradually becoming cognizant of the services at their disposal

(c) Trade Commissîoners.-Young men enter the service as Junior Trade
Commissioners, after graduation from a University of recognized standing, and
written and oral examination by the Civil Service Commission. They are held
in Ottawa for some months' training before being promoted to Assistant Trade
Commissioner, and later to full Trade Commissioner, as vacancies occur; from
time to time Trade Commissioners are brought back to Canada in order that
they may keep in touch with industrial conditions and developments.

It has been made clear ta your Committee that in the Department of Trade
and Commerce, Canada possesses a world-wide organization by which every
prospective buyer of Canadian goods can be put in touch with Canadian pro-
ducers, that the Canadian exporter can get full information about foreign
markets, and that the results obtained by our relatively small staff compare
favourably with those obtained by countries making greater expenditures ta the
same ends. They believe, however, that it is very desirable that the efforts of
Trade Commissioners to make personal contacts in the countries where they are
placed should not be hampered by inadequate grants for travelling and enter-
taining. When circumstances permit such allowances to be inczeased, your
Committee would recommend that this be done, but that such expenditures be
very thoroughly and promptly audited at Ottawa, and their value measured by
the results obtained. The system, as far as it goes, seems excellent, but it is
thought that the vacant position of Inspector of Trade Commissioner Services,
for which provision is made in the Estimates, should be filled. As difficulty bas
been experienced in obtaining Trade Commissioners who, in addition to their
requisite qualifications, were able ta speak the language of the countries in which
they were placed, your Committee further recommend that an endeavour be
made to encourage the study of foreign languages by men desiring to enter the
service as trade representatives abroad.

In the opinion of your Committee it is desirable that where possible the
office of the Trade Commissioner should be located in the same building as the
Legation, in countries where there is a Minister. It is pointed out that such an
.arrangement, with no probable loss, and with some economy, could take place
in Paris.

It may also be noted that the officials of thc Department recognize that
direct lines of steamships, and frequent sailings, are of prime importance ta
Canada's export trade.

THE CANADIAN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

This organization was represented before your Committee by Messrs. W. L.
McGregor, President; W. M. Birks, Past President, and Vice-President of the
Federated Chambers of Commerce of the British Empire, and W. McLeod Clarke,
Secretary. It is composed of 212 affiliated Chambers of Commerce and Boards
of Trade, extending from coast to coast, which are being visited by representa-
tives of the head organization, and are submitting to it replies to the question-
naire recently sent out (a copy of which was handed to your Committee) dealing
with general principles and the trend of business opinion. These replies will be
analysed and submitted to the Government in full time for the Conference.
Manufacturers throughout the country are said to have already made consider-
able research in their own departments ta see what goods now being imported
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could be bought in this country, as well as to ascertain what foreign imports
could be diverted to Empire channels. In this connection Colonel W. L.
McGregor stated " We have tried to stress this point: that when we go to the
Conference we must be buyers as well as sellers ".

The activities of the Chamber of Commerce in the organization of foreign
trade missions to the West Indies, London, Japan and China, and South America,
was outlined to your Committee by Mr. McLeod Clarke. These missions are
composed of prominent Canadian business men who paid all their own expenses
in connection with them, and established many valuable business contacts.

CANADIAN MANUFACTURERS' ASSOCIATION

This organization is active and energetic in its efforts to expand Canadian
trade at home and abroad. It was represented before your Committee by its
General Manager, Mr. J. E. Walsh, who was very appreciative of the close
harmony and co-operation existing between the Trade Commissioners and the
representatives of the Association abroad. Its researches cover transportation,
tariff, insurance, trade, industrial relations, commercial interviews, legal ques-
tions, etc., and it pays particular attention to arranging exhibits of Canadian
produce at Fairs and Exhibitions in which work it also receives close co-opera-
tion from the Department of Trade and Commerce.

Among its publications are a magazine called "Industrial Canada" and an
annual called "The Canadian Trade Index", which is printed in English, French
and Spanish, and is distri'buted in large numbers free and also sold at actual
cost to the Department of Trade and Commerce for distribution through the
Trade Commissioners.

Appreciation bas also been shown by this Association of the value of educa-
tional work among young people, particularly in connection with the University
of Toronto. Last year, in co-operation with the Commercial Intelligence Branch
of the Department of Trade and Commerce, a series of free lectures on such
subjects as invoicing, pricing, exchange, tariffs, packing, etc., was given at the
Toronto Technical School. A striking feature was the -uniform attendance
throughout the course.

BEEF, BACON AND BARLEY

The evidence given by the officials of the Department of Agriculture (namely,
the Honourable Robert Weir, P.C., Minister, and Messrs. G. B. Rothwell, Live
Stock Commissioner, and L. H. Newman, Dominion Cerealist), and our colleagues,
Senators Burns and Riley, indicate the difficulties of establishing what is in
reality a new trade. An established trade requires an adequate and regular
supply, a market which will absorb that supply, and proper facilities in the way
of transportation. In the cattle export trade, while the quality of our beef
cattle is excellent, that trade has suffered from two causes, (1) uncertainty of
supply at the times it is necessary to arrange for ocean tonnage, and (2) certain
regulations which our shippers claim are onerous, expensive, and unnecessary,
and give an undue advantage to our chief competitor, the Irish Free State. For
example, British regulations require cattle from Canada to remain on the feed
lots for twenty-eight days; those from the Irish Free State only six days. This
gives the buyer of Irish Free State stock the advantage of turning over his
capital four times in the period of one transaction had he selected Canadian
cattle. With the present low prices there is no inducement to increase herds, with
no reasonable prospect of selling them at a profit, but if the connection with the
British market is to be retained, the expense and risk of keeping that connection
alive should not fall on the individual shipper. Your Committee trust that some
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arrangement, through a Pool, or a Marketing Board, may be devised which would
equalize the risk and keep alive a connection whîch, in the corning time of revived
business activity, would provide a valuable outiet.

The same may be said of Bacon.
The Committee are pleased to note a grewing demand for Canadian Barley

by British brewers, who have f ound our product suitable for blending with the
English barley in the malting of light beer whîeh is rapidly gaining faveur in
Britain. It would appear from evidence given by Mr. Newman that the place
of growth is of more importance than the variety for this purpose, and experi-
ments carried eut by the Department of Agriculture have shown that the soil
of Prince Edward Island, and the Swan River district of Manitoba, is particu-
larly suited te the qualîty of barley required. Efforts are being made te 'Capture
some of this trade, now going te California, but as British brewers will net trade
unless a sufficient and continueus supply of uniferm quality is forthcoming, your
Committee recommend that every encouragement be given te the grewing of
barley in Canada and the fostering of this trade.

The Committee recommend that 600 copies in English, and 200 in French,
of this Report be printed for general distribution.

AIl of which is respectfully submitted.

J. S. McLENNAN,
Chairman.

Ordered, That the said Report be taken. into consideratien te-morrow.

The Order -of the Day being called for thc consideration of the amend-
ments, made .by the House of Commons, te the Bill (El), intituled: " An Act
respecting the Department of Insurance," it was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be pestponed until to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the Huse of Commons by their Clerk te
return the Bill (Wl.), intituled: "An A'ct for the relief of Ida Tarantour
Waxman."

And te acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk te
return the Bill (Xl), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Frances Helen Dawes
Porteous."

And te acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was breught from the bouse of Commens by their Clerk te
return the Bill (Yl), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Minnie Jones Chandler."

And te acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk te
return the Bi11 (Zi), intituled: "An Act fer the relief of Elizabeth Irene Weol-
nough."

And te acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.
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A Message was brought from the Blouse of Commons by their Clerk Vo
return the Bill (A2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Ellery Sanford
Johnston."

And to acquaint the &enate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the Blouse of Commons b y their Clerk Vo
return the Bill (B2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Farla Goidman Rother."

And to acquaint the &enate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk Vo
return the Bill (D2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Romnéo-Xavier
Vandette."

And Vo acquaint the &enate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from'the House of Commons by their Clerk to
return the Bill (E2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Adiena Emma Sis
Burrow, otherwise known as Adiena Emma Suis Burrows."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the Blouse of Commons ýby their Clerk to
return the Bill (F2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Ida Judith Clark
Freudberg."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk Vo
return the Bill (G2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Elizabeth Ann Routledge
Gunther."

And Vo acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the Blouse of Commons by their Clerk to
return the Bill (H2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Chesley Hastings Potter."

And Vo acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk Vo
return the Bill (12), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Theo Alice MacFarlane
Lamb."

And Vo acquaint the Senate Vhat they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the Blouse of Gommons by their Clark Vo
return the Bill (J2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Chia Hannah Shiff."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons ;by their Cherk Vo
return the Bill (K2), intituled: "An Act for the relief of Margaret Spencer
lleald."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.
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A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk in the
following words:-

FRiDAY, 20th May, 1932.

Resolved,-That a Message be sent to the Senate to return to that flouse
the evidence, etc., taken before the Standing Committee of the Senate on Divorce,
to whomn were referred the petitions of Ida Tarantour Waxman, Frances Helen
Dawes Porteous, Minnie Jones Chandler, Elizabeth Irene Woolnough, Ellery
Sanford Johnston, Fanla Goîdman Rother, Roméo-Xavier Vandette, Adiena
Emma Suils Burrow, otherwise known as Adiena Emma Sis Burrows, Ida Judith
Clark Freudberg, Elizabeth Ann Routledge Gunther, Chesley Hastings Potter,
Theo Alice MacFarlane Lamb, Chia Hannali Shiff, and Margaret Spencer Heald,
respectively, praying for Bis of Divorce; and tlue papers produced in evidence
before them.

Ordered,-That the Clerk of the flouse do carry the said Message to the
Senate.

Attest.

ARTHUR BEAUCHESNE,
Clerc of the Commons.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.

A Message was brought from the buse of Commons by their Cierk to
return the Bill (Ul), intituled: "An Act to incorporate The W. S. Newton
Company."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, without any
amendment.

A Message was brought fromn the flouse of Commons by their Clerk to
return the Bill (32), intituled: "An Act respecting the Ottawa and New York
Railway Company,"

And to acquaint the Senate that they have agreed te the amendment made
by the Senate, with several conscqucntial amendments, te whîch they desire
the concurrence of the Senate.

The said amendments were then read by the Clerk, as f oliows:-
Page 1, fine 2 of proposed section 2. After the word " take " insert the

words " within the period of eight years after the passing of this Act ".

Page 1, at the end of proposed section 2. Insert after the word "Act " the
words " in excess of the reasonable cost of construction of the authorized works,
less depreciation ".

Page 1, after proposed section 2. Add the foilowing as subsection (2) of
proposed section 2:-

"<(2) After the expiration of eight years fromn the passing of this Act, Ris
Majesty shahl be fiable to pay by reason or on account of the taking of such
lands, compensation or damages only for the reasonable cost of construc-
tion, less depreciation, of the works constructed on the said bridges, exchud-
ing the approaches thereto."

Ordered, That the said consequential amendments be p]aced on the Orders
Df the Day for consideration to-morrow.
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A Message was brouglit from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk fo
refurn the Bill (C2), intifuled: "An Act to amend the Winding-up Act."

And to acquaint flie Senate that they have passed the said Bill, with one
amendment, fo which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said amendment was then read by tlic Clerk, as follows:-
Page 7, line 15. Add the following section:-
" 3. Section fwenfy-fhree of flic said Act is amended by adding thereto

the following subsection:-
'(2) In the case of any company excepf building societies incorporatcd,

banks, saving banks, insurance companies, trust companies, loan companies
and railway companies, the court shahl not appoint as liquidafor any person
who is not licensed as a trusfee under flic Bankruptcy Acft'."

Ordered, That the said amendment be placed on the Orders of flic Day
for considerafion to-morrow.

A Message was broughf froin the House of Commons by their Clerk wifh
a Bill (10), intituled: "An Acf fo amend and consolidatc the Fisheries Acf,"~
to which tliey desire flic concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read flic first time, and-
Wifh leave of flic Senate, if was-
Ordcred, That if be placed on flic Orders of flic Day for a second reading

fo-morrow.

A Message was brouglif from flic fouse of Commons by flicir Clerk witli
a Bill (19), înfitulcd: "An Acf fo provide for flic deduction from compensation
in flic Public Service," fo whicli fhey desire flic concurrence of flic Senaf e.

The said Bill was read flie firsf fime, and-
Witli leave of flic Senafe, if was-
Ordered, Tliat if bie phaced on flic Orders of flic Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message xvas brouglif from flic flouse of Commons by flieir Clerk witli
a Bill (41), infifuled: "An Acf to amend flic Bankrupfcy Acf," fo whîcli fliev
desire flic concurrence of fthc Senaf e.

The said Bill was read fthe firsf f ime, and-
Wifli leave of the Senate, if was--
Ordered, Thaf if be placed on flic Orders of the Day for a second reading

fo-morrow.

A Message w-as brouglif from flic flouse of Commons by f heir Clcrk wifh
a Bill (73), intifuled: "An Acf respecfing flic Incorporation of Live Stock
Record Associations," to which fhey dcsirc the concurrence of flic Senate.

The said Bill was rcad flic firsf tfime, and-
Wifli leave of flic Senafe, if was--
Ordered, Thaf if be placed on flic Orders of flic Day for a second reading

fo-morrow.

A Message was brouglif from flic flouse of Commons by flicir Clerk wifh
a Bill (91), intifuled: "An Acf fo amcnd flic Judges Acf," fo which fhey desire
flic concurrence of fhe Senate.

The said Bill was read flic firsf time, and-
Wifli leave of flic Senafe, if was--
Ordered, Thaf if be placed on flic Orders of flic Day for a second reading

to-morrow.
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A Message was brought from the flouse of Cominons by their Clerk with
a Bill (92), intituled: "An Act to amend the Incarne War Tax Act," ta which
they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-rnorrow.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator Daniel, from the Standing Committee on Internal
Economy and Contingent Accounts, presented their third Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

TUESDAY, 24th May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Internal Economy and Co.ntingent Accounts
beg leave to make their third Report, as follows:-

The Committee recommend that the remuneration of $3,000 per annum
paid to Mr. Thomas Bengough be discontinued as and from the first of October,
1932; and that thereafter his remuneration as a 'Reserve Reporter be at the
rate of $100 per month.

All which is respectfully submitted.
J. W. DANIEL,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for

consideration to-morrow.

The Honourable Senator Daniel, from the Standing Committee on Internal
Economy and Contingent Accounts presented their fourth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

TUESDAY, 24th May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Internal Economy and Contingent Accounts
beg leave to make their fourth Report, as follows:-

Your Committee recommend that the usual supply of stationery, etc.,
which has been selected by your Committee with due regard to usefulness and
economy for the use of Senators in their rooms and desks in the Senate Cham-
ber, be supplied according to the lists approved by your Committee, and
deposited with the Clerk of Stationery, and that the distribution be made in
a way similar to that of the present session.

All which is respectfully submitted.
J. W. DANIEL,

Chairman.
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for

consideration to-morrow.

The Honourable Senator Daniel, from the Standing Committee on Internal
Economy and Contingent Accounts, presented their fifth Report.

The same was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

TUESDAY, 24th May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Internal Economy and Contingent Accounts
beg leave to make their fifth Report, as follows:-

Your Committee have audited the accounts and vouchers of the Clerk of
the Senate for the fiscal year 1930-31 and found them correct.

Your Committee have also examined the accounts of the Senate for the
period lst April to 31st December, 1931, and have found them correct.

A statement in detail of the accounts for the fiscal year 1930-31 is sub-
mitted herewith.
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Statement of Expenditures. 1930-31
Speaker's salary.. .. .. . .... ... .. .. .. . ....... ......
Allowance to Speaker in lieu of Residence.. ........
Indemnity and Transportation expenses... ........
Indemnitv--Special Vote. ..... ...........
Salaries of Officiais............... 77,344 98
Allowance in lieu of Quarters:..............900 00
Doormen and Sessional Messengers..........29,684 00
Char Services...................24,325 00
Sessional Stenographers and extra Clerks........10,930 00
Pages.......................1,816 00
Newspapers and Publications for Reading Room 2,092 67
Stationery Office Supplies. ............. 7,609 79
Debates-King's Printer's Accounts. ......... 12,754 30
Postage and Carniage of Mails.............606 14
Private Secretary to Speaker of the Senate........600 00
Private Secretary to Leader of the Government in the

Senate.....................600 00
Private Secretary to the Leader of the Opposition in

the Senate...................600 00
General expenses..................473 54

Statement of Receipts. 1930-

-- $174,736 42

31 $567,859 84
Fees on Private Bills... .... .... .... ... ..... ......... $ 16,912 85Fees on Certified Copies....................1,062 15

Deposited to the credit of the Receiver General.. ...... 17,975 00Fees returned and sundry charges on Revenue...........8,519 38

Net Revenue....................... 9,455 62
All which is respectfully submitted.

J. W. DANIEL,
Chairman.With leave of the Senate, it was--

Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration to-morrow.

The Honourable Senator Chapais, fromn the Standing Committee on Debates
and Reporting, presented their third Report.

The samne was then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

TTJESDAY, 24th May, 1932.
The Standing Committee on Debates and Reporting beg leave to make their

third Report, as follows:
The Committee recommend that the Civil Service Commission be requested

ta take the necessary action to fill the Position of Parliamentary Reporter,
Senate.

AIl which is respectfully submitted.
THOS. CHAPAIS,

Chairman.With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for

consideration to-morrow.

5,806
2,903

369,613
14,800
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A Message was brought from the buse of Commonis by their Clerk with
a Bill (95), intituled: "An Act to amend the Customs Tariff," to, which they
desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the bouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (96), intituled: <'An Act to amend the Income War Tax Act," to which
they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clcrk with
a Bill (99), intituled: "An Act to amend the Civil Service Act," to which they
desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was--
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

The Honourable Senator Wilson (Rockcliffe), fromn the Standing Committee
on Public Buildings and Grounds, presented their third Report.

The same was then rcad by the Clerk, as follows:-

TuLSDAY, 24th May, 1932.

The Standing Committee on Public Buildings and Grounds beg leave to
make their third Report as f ollows:-

1. In view of the approaching Imperial Economic Conference your Com-
mittee recommend that everything possible be donc to irnmediately improve the
general appearance of the grounds on Parliament 1Hil1.

2. Your (2ommîttee recommend that the attention of the Departmcnt of
Public Works be drawn to the condition of the roadways surýounding the Parhia-
ment Buildings and that the Department be requested to repair or replace the
surface as inay be necessary.

3. Your Committee recommend that the services of a skihled landscape
architect be obtained for the purpose of making plans for the further beautifying
of the grounds on Parliament 1Hill. That such plan, if approved, be carried out
as funds are available therefor.

All which is respectfully submitted.

CAIRINE R. WILSON,

Chairman.

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered. That the said Report be placed on the Orders of the Day for con-

sideration at the next sitting of the Senate.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the amendments made by the House of Commons to the Bill (El), intituled:
"An Act respecting the Department of Insurance."

The said amendments were agreed to.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the bouse of Commons and acýquaint

that bouse that the Senate doth agree to the amendments mnade by the bouse of
Commons to the said Bill, without any amendment.

The Order of the Day 'being called for the consideration of the third Report
of the Standing Committee on Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada, it
was-

Ordered, That the said Order of the Day be postponed for the time being.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the consideration
of the consequential amendments made by the bouse of Commons to the Bill

* (32), intituled: "An Act respecting the Ottawa and New York Railway Com-
pany."

The said amendments were concurred in.
Ordered, That the Clcrk do go down to the bouse of Commons and acquaint

that bouse that the Senate doth agree to the consequential amendments made
by the bouse of Commons te, the said Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant, (x) Che Order of the Day, the Senate procccdcd to the 'consideration
of the amendment made by the House of Commons to the Bill (C2), intituled:
"An Act to amend the Winding-up Act."

The said amendment was agreed to.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the Ilouse of Commons and acquaintthat bouse that the Senate doth agree to the amendment made by the bouse

of Commons to, the said Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (10), intituled: "An Act toamend and consolidate the Fisheries Act, was read the second time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That the said Bull be committed to a Committee of the Whole

presently.

The Senate was, accordingly, adjourned during pleasure and put into a
Committee of the Wholc on the said Bill.

(In the Cornmittee)
After some time the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator L'Espérance,' from the said Committee, reported

that they had taken thc said Bill into consideration, made some progress thereon,and asked leave to sit again.
Ordered, That the said Bill be placied on the Orders of the Day for further

consideration in a Committee of the Whole, at the next sitting of the Senate.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (19), intituled: "An Act toprovide for the deduction from compensation in the Public Service," was read
the second time, and-

Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a third reading
to-morrow.
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Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (41), intituled: "An Act to amend
the Bankruptcy Act," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be committed to a Committee of the Whole presently.

The Senate was, accordingly, adjourned during pleasure and put into a
Committee of the Whole on the said Bill.

(In the Committee)
After some time the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator Gillis, from the said Committee, reported that

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the same
to the Senate, without any amendment.

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons, and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (73), intituled: "An Act respect-
ing the Incorporation of Live Stock Record Associations," was read the second
Lime, and-

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be committed to a Committee of the Whole presently.

The Senate was, accordingly, adjourned during pheasure and put into a
Committee of the Whole on the said Bill.

(In the Committec)

After some time the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honoura-ble Senator Beaubien, from the said Committee, reported that

they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the same
to the Senate, without any amendment.

Wîth heave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read- the third time.
The question wa8 put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Commons, and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (91), intituled: "An Act to amend
the Judges Act,"' was read the second time, and-

With heave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Cherk do go down to the flouse of Commons, and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (92), intituled: "An Act to amend
the Income War Tax Act," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate, it was--
Ordered, That it be committed to, a Committee of the Whole presently.
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The Senate was, accordingly, adjourned during pleasure and put into a
Committee of the Whole on the said Bill.

(In the Committee)
Titie rend and postponed.
Preamble read and postponed.
Clause 1 was read and amended as follows:-
Page 1, line 10. For the words "the members" substitute "commissioned

officers".
Page 1, line 12. Leave out the words "other than enlisted men"
Page 1, line 13. After the word "salaries" insert "or pay".
Page 1, line 16. After the word "salaries" insert "'or pay"y.
Page 1, line 20. Add the following as a proviso to subsection (2) ofsection 9A:-
"Provided that in the case of persons appointed during the fiscal year, thetax shall be payable in equal monthhy instalments on the hast day of each month."
The said clause, as amended, was rend and agreed to.
Preamble again read and agreed Vo.
Title again read and agreed to.

It being six o'clock, the Honourable the Speaker left the Chair, to resumne
the same at half-past seven o'clock.

7.30 p.m.

The Senate resumed.

After some time, the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator L'Espérance, from the said Committee, reportedthat they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him Vo report thesame Vo the Sonate with several amendments, which he was ready Vo submitwhenever Vhe Senate would be pheased Vo receive the same.
The said amendments were then read by the Clerk.
The said amendments were concurred in, and-
With heave of Vhe Scnate,
The said Bill, as amended, was then read Vhe third time.Thc qucstion was put whether this Bill, as amended, shaîl pass.It was resohved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down, to the House of Commons and acquaintthat House that Vhe Senate have passed this Bill with several amendments, Vowhich they desire their concurrence.

The Senate reverted to Order No. 2.

Accordinghy, the Senate proceeded Vo the consideration of Vhe Vhird Reportof Vhe Standing Committee on Commerce and Trade relaVions of Canada.
After debate, it was-
Ordered, ThaV further debate ho adjourned until to-morrow.

41765-i8
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A Message was brouglit f rom the flouse of Commons by their Clerk with

a Bill (94), intituled: "An At respecting Radio Broadcasting," to which they

desire the concurrence of the Senate.
The said Bill was read the first time, an-
Wîth leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was 'brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with

a Bill (97), intituled: "An Act respecting the MWaterton Glacier International

Peace Park," to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.
The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, 'Jihst it ýbe placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk with

a Bill (98), intituled: "An Act to amend the Montreal Harbour Commissioners

Act, 1894,'" to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.
The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk with

a Bill (100), intituled: "An Act to am-end the Soldiers Settleinent Act," to which

they desire the concurrence of the Senate.
The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a second reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk with

a Bill (102), intituled: "An Act to amend the Special War Revenue Act," to

which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.
The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be placed on the Orders of the Day for a sccond reading

to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons by their Cherk to

return the Bill (Fl), intituled: "An Act respecting Foreign Insurance Companies

in Canada."
And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, with several

amendments, to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said amendments were then read by the Clerk, as follows:-

Page 3, line 51. After the word "contract" strike out the words "issued

under the provisions of this Act".

Page 14, line 8. After the word "assets" strike out the words "in Canada'.'

Page 14, line 11. Af ter the words "by it" insert the words "in Canada".

Page 14, lime 21. After the word "estate" insert the words "in Canada".

Page 16, line 2. After the word "Minister" strike out the words "with

the concurrence of the Treasury Board".
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Page 16, line 5. After the word "he" strike out the word "shall" and
substitute therefor the words "may, with the concurrence of the Treasury
Board,".

Page 16, line 26. After the words "liquidation the" strike out the word
"securities" and substitute therefor the words "assets in Canada".

Page 17, line 6. After the word "company" strike out the words "regis-
tered under the provisions of this Act to transact the business of life insurance".

Page 22, line 42. Before the words "Any company" insert the words
"Subject to the provisions of subsection two of section eight of this Act".

Ordered, That the said amendments be placed on the Orders of the Day
for consideration to-morrow.

A Message was brought from the House of Commons by their Clerk to
return the Bill (G1), intituled: "An Act respecting Canadian and British Insur-
ance Companies."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have passed the said Bill, with several
amendments, to which they desire the concurrence of the Senate.

The said amendments were then read by the Clerk, as follows:-
Page 2, line 17. After the word "formed" strike out the words "outside

of Canada" and substitute therefor the words "in the United Kingdom of Great
Britain and Northern Ireland or in any British Dominion or possession other
than Canada or a province of Canada."

Page 3, line 16. After the word "contract" strike out the words "issued
under the provisions of this Act."

Page 19, line 9. After the word "up" strike out the words "under the
provisions of this Act or of the Winding-up Act".

Page 19, line 11. After the word "provisions" strike out the words "of this
Act and".

Page 34, line 12. After the word "company" strike out the words "regis-
tered under the provisions of this Act to transact the business of life insurance".

Page 43, line 16. After the words "twenty-six" strike out the words "and
forty-one to forty-four thereof both inclusive" and substitute therefor the words
"forty-one and forty-four thereof".

Page 50, line 48. After the word "Minister" strike out the words "with
the concurrence of the Treasury Board".

Page 51, line 2. After the words "he may" insert the words "with the
concurrence of the Treasury Board".

Page 51, line 26. After the word "policies" insert the words "together
with its other liabilities in Canada".

Page 54, line 44. Before the word "company" insert the word "British".
Page 55, line 2. Before the word "company" insert the word "British".
Page 55, line 6. Before the word "company" insert the word "British".
Page 55, line 7. Before the word "company" insert the word "British".
Page 55, line 12. Before the word "company" insert the word "British".
Page 56, line 2. After the words "of any" strike out the words "company

or British company registered under this Act" and substitute therefor the follow-
41765-181
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ing words: "corporation registered under the laws of the Dominion of Canada
to transact the business of insurance".

Page 56, line 10. Af Ver the word "any" strike out the words "company
or British company registered under this Act" and substitute therefor the follow-
ing words: "corporation registered under the laws of the Dominion of Canada
to transact the business of insurance".

Page 56, line 35. After the word "policies" add the words "together with
its other liabilities in Canada".

Page 61, line 20. After the word "Minister" strike out the words "with
the concurrence of the Treasury Board".

Page 61, line 23. After the word " he " strike eut the word " shall" and sub-
stitute therefor the words "may, with the concurrence of the Treasury Board "

Page 63, line 13. Strike eut the words " Provided that ", and insert as
subsection (3') of section 139 ail the remaining words of the proviso beginning
with the words " Every British company " and ending with the words " under
such policies ".

Page 67, line 35. After the words " of any " strike eut the words " cern-
pany or British company or provincial company registercd under this Act ",

and substitute therefor the words " corporation regîstered under the laws of
the Dominion of Canada te transact the business of insurance".

Page 68, line 3. After the words " of any " strike out the words "company
or British company or provincial cornpany registered under this Act ",and sub-
stitute the words " corporation registered under the laws of the Dominion of
Canada te transact the business of insurance.

Ordercd, That the said amendments be placed on the Orders of the Day for
consideration tu-morrow.

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day it do stand adjourned until

Lo-morrow, at eleven o'clock in the forenoon.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYERS.

The Honourable Senator Tanner moved:-
1. That the proceedings of the Special Committee of the Senate appointed

to take into consideration the report of a Special Committee of the House of
Commons respecting the Beauharnois Power Projct in so far as said report
relates to members of the Senate, be printed as an Appendix to the Journals of
the Senate.

2. That 400 copies in English and 200 copies in French of the said proceed-
ings be printed in blue book form.

3. That the Exhibits produced from the records of the House of Com-
mons be returned to that House.

4. That all original documents produced as Exhibits before said Committee
be returned to the witnesses producing same.

In amendment, it was moved by the Honourable Senator McRae that para-
graph 2 be struck out.

The question being put on the motion in amendment, it was-
Passed in the negative.

The question being put on the main motion, it was-
Resolved in the affirmative, and ordered accordingly.

On motion of the Right Honourable Senator Graham, for the Honourable
Senator Beique, it was-

Ordered, That the fees paid on Bill (D1), intituled: "An Act respecting
The Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway Company," be refunded to the
solicitors for the petitioner.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (19), intituled: "An Act to
provide for the deduction from compensation in the Public Service," was read
the third time.

The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate was adjourned during pleasure
and again put into a Committec of the Whole on the Bill (10), intituled: "An
Act to amend and consolidate the Fisheries Act."

(In the Committee)

Title read and postponed.

Preamble read and postponed.

Clauses 1 to 75, inclusive, were read and agreed to.

Clause 76 was read and amended, as follows:-
Page 24, line 12. For the word "with" substitute the word "and".

Page 24, line 13. For the word "is" substitute the word "are".
The said clause, as amended, was read and agreed to.

Preamble again read and agreed to.

Title again read and agreed to.
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After some time, the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator L'Espérance, from the said Committee, reported

that they had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the
saine to the Senate with two amendments, which hie was ready to submit when-
ever the Senate would be pleased to receive the saine.

The saîd amendments were then read by the CIerk.
The said amendments were concurred in, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill, as amended, was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill, as amended, shail pass.
Lt was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Coinmons and acquaint

that bouse that the Senate have passed this Bill with two amendments, to which
they desîre their concurrence.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-
tion of the amendments made by the House of Commons to the Bill (Fl),
intituled: "An Act respecting Foreign Insurance Companies in Canada."

The said amendinents were agreed to.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate doth agree to the amendments made by the House of
Commons to the said Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-
tion of the amendments made by the flouse of Commons to the Bill (Gi),
intituled: "An Act respecting Canadian and British Insurance Companies."

The said amendments were agreed to.
Ordered, That the Clerk do, go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate doth agree to the amendments made by the flouse of
Commons to the said Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (94), intituhed: "An Act respect-
ing Radio Broadcasting," was, on division, read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
Lt was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (95), intituled: "An Act to amend
the Customs Tariff," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
Lt was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Cherk do go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Lt being one o'chock, the Honourable the Speaker left the Chair, to resume
the saine at half-past two o'clock this afternoon.
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2.30 p.m.

The Senate resumed.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (96), intituled: "An Act to amend
the Ineome War Tax Act," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursiiant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (97), intituled: "An Act respect-
ing the Waterton Glacier International Peace Park," was read the second time,
and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (98), intituled: "An Act to amend
The Montreal Har-bour Commissioners' Act, 1894," was read the second time,
and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shahl pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (99), intituled: "An Act to amend
the Civil Service Act," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shail pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Cherk do go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

that flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (100), întituhed: "An Act to
amend the Soldier Settlement Act," wa-s read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shaîl pass.
Jt was resolved in the affirmative.
(>rdered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

miat flouse that the Senate have passed this Bill, without any amendment.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Bill (102), intituhed: "An Act to
amend the Special War Revenue Act," was read the second time, and-

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That it be committed to a Committee of the Whole presenthy.
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The Senate was, accordingly, adjourned during pleasure and put into aCommittee of the Whole on the said Bill.

(In the Committee)

Title read and postponed.
Preamble read and postponed.
Clause 1 was read and amended, as follows:-
Page 4, line 2. Strike out the word " fifteen " and substitute therefor theword " ten ".

The said clause, as amended, was agreed to.
Clauses 2 to 19, inclusive, were read and agreed to.
Preamble again read and agreed to.
Title again read and agreed to.

After some time, the Senate was resumed, and-
The Honourable Senator Gordon, from the said Committee, reported thatthey had gone through the said Bill, and had directed him to report the sameto the Senate with one amendment, whieh he was ready to submit wheneverthe Senate would be pleased to receive the saine.
The said amendment was then read by the Clerk.The said amendment was concurred in, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill, as amended, was then read the third time.The question was put whether this Bill, as amended, shall pass.It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the House of Commons andacquaint that House that the Senate have passed this Bill with one amendment,to which they desire their concurrence.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-tion of the third Report of the Standing Cqmmittee on Internal Economy andContingent Aceounts.
The said Report was adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-tion of the fourth Report of the, Standing Committee on Internal Economy andContingent Accounts.
The said Report was adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-tion of the fifth Report of the Standing Committee on Internal Economy andContingent Accounts.
The said Report was adopted,

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-tion of the third Report of the Standing Committee on Debates and Reporting.The said Report was adopted.

Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate proceeded to the considera-tion of the third Report of the Standing Committee on Publie Buildings andGrounds.
The said Report was adopted.



Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed the adjourned
debate on the motion for the adoption of the third Report of the Standing
Committee on Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada.

The said Report was adopted.

A Message was brought from the House of Gommons by their Clerk to

return the Bill (92), intituled: "An Act to amend the Income War Tax Act,"
And to acquaint the Senate that they have agreed to the amendments made

by the Senate to the said Bill, without any amendment.

It being six o'clock, the Honourable the Speaker left the Chair, to resume
the same at half-past seven o'clock.

7.30 p.m.

The Senate resumed.

With leave of the Senate, it was-
Ordered, That when the Senate adjourns to-day, it do stand adjourned

until to-morrow, at ten o'clock in the forenoon.

The Senate adjourned.
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PRAYEUS.

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McLennan moved-
That 600 copies in English and 200 copies in French, of the evidence adduced

before the Standing Committee on Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada,
be printed for general distribution.

The question being put on the said motion, it was--
Declared passed in the negative.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk to return
the Bill (10), intituled: "An Act to amend and consolidate the Fisheries Act."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have agreed to the amendments made
by the Senate to the said Bill, without any amendment.

A Message was brought from the buse of Commons by their Clerk to return
the Bill (102), intituled: "An Act to amend the Special War Revenue Act."

And to acquaint the Senate that they have agreed to the amendments made
by the Senate to the said Bill, without any amendment.

A Message was brought from the flouse of Commons by their Clerk with
a Bill (101), intituled: "An Act for granting to His Majesty certain sums of
money for the public service of the financial years ending respectively the 3lst
March, 1932, and the 3lst March, 1933, to which they desire the concurrence of
the Senate.

The said Bill was read the first time, and-
With leave of the Senate,
The said Bill was then read the second and third time.
The question was put whether this Bill shall pass.
It was resolved in the affirmative.
Ordered, That the Clerk do go down to the flouse of Commons and acquaint

that House that the Senate have passed the said Bill.

The Honourable the Speaker informed the Senate that he had received a
communication from the Assistant Secretary to His Excellency the Governor
General.

The same was read by the Honourable the Speaker, as follows-

OFFICE OF TI-I GOVERNOR GENEUAL'S SECRETARY, CANADA

OTrAwA, 23rd May, 1932.
Smi-I have the honour to inform you that the Right Honourable F. A.

Anglin, Deputy Governor General, will proceed to the Senate Chamber on
Thursday, May 26th, at 11.30 a.m., for the purpose of proroguing the present
Session of Parliament.

I have the honour to, be,
Sir 

'
Your obedient servant,

JAMES F. CROWDY,
Assistant Secretary to the Governor General

The Honourable
The Speaker of the Senate,

Ottawa.

Ordered, That the same do lie on the Table.
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The Senate adjourned during pleasure.

After a while, the Right Honourable Francis Alexander Anglin, Deputy
Governor General, having come and being seated at the foot of the Throne,

The Honourable the Speaker commanded the Gentleman Usher of the Black
Rod to proceed to the House of Commons and acquaint that House that,-

"It is the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor General's desire that
they attend him immediately in the Senate Chamber."

The House of Commons being come,

The Clerk then read the titles of the Bills to be assented to, as follows:-

An Act for the relief of Ida Tarantour Waxman.
An Act for the relief of Frances Helen Dawes Porteous.
An Act for the relief of Minnie Jones Chandler.
An Act for the relief of Elizabeth Irene Woolnough.
An Act for the relief of Ellery Sanford Johnston.
An Act for the relief of Farla Goldman Rother.
An Act for the relief of Roméo Xavier Vandette.
An Act for the relief of Adlena Emma Sills Burrow, otherwise known as

Adlena Emma Sills Burrows.
An Act for the relief of Ida Judith Clark Freudberg.
An Act for the relief of Elizabeth Ann Routledge Gunther.
An Act for the relief of Chesley Hastings Potter.
An Act for the relief of Theo Alice MacFarlane Lamb.
An Act for the relief of Chia Hannah Shiff.
An Act for the relief of Margaret Spencer Heald.
An Act to incorporate The W. S. Newton Company.
An Act to amend the Winding-up Act.
An Act respecting the Department of Insurance.
An Act respecting the Ottawa and New York Railway Company.
An Act to amend the Bankruptcy Act.
An Act respecting the Incorporation of Live Stock Record Associations.
An Act to amend the Judges Act.
An Act to provide for the deduction from compensation in the Public

Service.
An Act respecting Foreign Insurance Companies in Canada.
An Act respecting Canadian and British Insurance Companies.
An Act respecting Radio Broadcasting.
An Act to amend the Customs Tariff.
An Act to amend the Income War Tax Act.
An Act respecting the Waterton Glacier International Peace Park.
An Act to amend The Montreal Harbour Commissioners' Act, 1894.
An Act to amend the Civil Service Act.
An Act to amend the Soldier Settlement Act.
An Act to amend the Income War Tax Act.
An Act to amend and consolidate the Fisheries Act.
An Act to amend the Special War Revenue Act.
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To these Bills the Royal Assent was pronounced by the Clerk of the Senate
in the following words:-

"In His Majesty's name, the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor
General doth assent to these Bills."

The Honourable the Speaker of the Commons then addressed the Right
Honourable the Deputy Governor General, as follows:-

"MAY IT PLEASE YoUR HoNouR:

"The Commons of Canada have voted supplies required to enable the
Government to defray certain expenses of the Public Service;

"In the name of the Commons, I present to Your Honour the following
Bill: 'An Act for granting to His Majesty certain sums of money for the public
service of the financial years ending respectively the 31st March, 1932, and the
31st March, 1933.'

"To which Bill I humbly request Your Honour's assent."

After the Clerk had read the title of this Bill,

To this Bill the Royal Assent was pronounced by the Clerk of the Senate
in the following words:-

"In His Majesty's name, the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor
General thanks His Loyal Subjects, accepts their benevolence, and assents to
this Bill."

After which the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor General was
pleased to close the third Session of the Seventeenth Parliament of the Dominion
of Canada, with the following Speech:-

Honourable Members of the Senate:

Members of the House of Commons:

I desire to thank you for the careful attention you have given to the various
measures submitted for your consideration during the present Session of Parlia-
ment. The zealous discharge of your duties manifests alike, a deep concern for
the welfare of Canada and an unshaken confidence in its future.

It is gratifying to observe that the program of economy for the current
fiscal year will ensure relative equalization of revenues and expenditures, and
that the additional moneys necessary to provide for the public service will be
obtained without adverse effect upon the cost of living or impairment of the
national credit.

My Government's policy of unemployment and farm relief, consistently
and vigourously pursued, has already achieved an amelioration of conditions
and forecasts steady and continued improvement in both agrarian and industrial
communities.

The means by which a larger area of distribution has been secured for the
coal production of the Maritime Provinces will do much to relieve conditions
heretofore prevailing in that part of the Dominion.

The measure for national ownership and control of radio broadcasting
provides the necessary assurance against foreign interference with broadcasting
from Canadian sources, and ensures to our people, without regard to class or
place, equality of service from the new broadcasting system to be inaugurated
as soon as practicable.
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The commercial agreement negotiated with the Dominion of New Zealand
and ratified by Parliament is a further step towards closer empire economic
association based upon the principle of reciprocal benefits.

The enquiry by a committee of the House of Commons into the operation
of the Civil Service Act prepares the way for a reorganization of the Civil Service
Commission and the better administration of matters pertaining to the civil
service.

Among other important measures enacted were Bills respecting The Patent
Act, Unfair Competition in Trade and Commerce, the Export of Gold, Insurance,
The Fisheries Act, The Judges Act, The Excise Act, The Companies' Act, The
Soldiers Settlement Act and The Railway Act.

Approval has been given the British Commonwealth Shipping Agreement,
The International Convention for the Amelioration of Conditions of the
Wounded and Sick in Armies in the Field, The International Convention relative
to the Treatment of Prisoners of War, The International Convention for Limiting
the Manufacture and Regulating the Distribution of Narcotie Drugs.

Members of the House of Commons:

I thank you for the provision you have made for the public service.

Honourable Members of the Senate:

Members of the House of Commons:

I do sincerely commend the fortitude and patience with which the Canadian
people have endured the trials and hardships of these troubled times. Those
attributes have equipped them to surmount whatever difficulties may yet be
encountered before prosperity returns. Recurring disturbances in world con-
ditions have hindered our progress. The prosperity we rightly expected before
this time bas been by them delayed. For no nation can alone resist the influence
of the universal disruption of financial and industrial conditions.

Near at hand are the means by which this country, organized and prepared,
may hasten its economic recovery. Within two months' time an Economic
Conference of the countries which compose the British Empire will meet at
Ottawa. From that Conference may arise a power which will bring enduring
harmony out of economic chaos, and provide the wise and courageous leadership
which in other times of universal stress, the world looked for and obtained from
the British peoples. Canada believes that the closer economic association of the
British Empire will herald the dawn of a new and greater era of prosperity both
for ourselves and for all the nations of the earth.

In relieving you from attendance upon your Parliamentary duties, I pray
that Divine Providence may guide and bless you.

His Honour the SPEAKER OF THE SENATE then said:-

Honourable Members of the Senate:

Members of the House of Commons:

It is the Right Honourable the Deputy Governor General's will and pleasure
that this Parliament be prorogued until Tuesday, the 5th day of July, next, to
be here holden, and this Parliament is accordingly prorogued until Tuesday, the
5th day of July, next.
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Anglin, Right Honourable Francis Alexander, Chief Justice of Canada:
Royal Assent to Bis, 89, 103-104, 227-228, 255-256, 285.
Prorogation of Parliament, 285-287.

Appropriation Acts:
No. 1. Bill 39-lst, 2nd and 3rd, 88. R.A., 89. Ch. 1.
No. 2. Bill 43-lst, 96; 2nd and 3rd, 9à8. R.A., 104. Ch. 2.
No. 3. Bill 82-lst, 2nd and 3rd, 253. R.A., 256. Ch. 3.
No. 4. Bill 101-lst, 2nd and 3rd, 284. R.A., 286. Ch. 57.

Arms and Ammunition, International Convention for the Supervision of
the International Trade in:

Message from Coms. informing the Senate that they had adopted a Resolu-
tion approving of Convention, and requesting that the Senate unite
with them ini approval thereof, 243.

Consideration of Message, motion and resolution approving of Convention
and Message to, Coms., 243.

Assent to Bis: 89, 103-104, 227-228, 255-256, 285.

Attention Called to:
Companies Act, 98.
Conditions prevailing in Canada, 196.
Diversion of Water from Lake Michigan by the City of Chicago, 70, 78, 82.
Economîc conditions in Canada, 46.
Economic situation-some phases of, and suggestions for further econ-

omies, 76.
Historv of the Great War-Official publication of, 78.
Imperial Economic Conference, 115.
Railway conditions in Canada, 161, 197, 221, 230, 240.
Trade and Commerce of Canada, 115.

Autographie Register Systems, Limited (Patents):
Petition, 46; read, 54; reported, 84..
Bill 31-lst, 96; 2nd and Ref. M.P.B., 106; reported and 3rd, 216. R.A.,

22K Ch. 61.
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B
Ballantyne, The Honourable Charles Colquhoun:

Certificatç of appointment, 2.
Introduction, Commission, Oath and Declaration of Property Qualifica-

tion, 4-5.

Banking and Commerce-Comm ittee on:
List of Senators selected, 16.
First Report (Quorum), 27.

Bankruptcy Act (Amendment):
Bill 41-ist, 265; 2nd, C. of W., and 3rd, 272. R.A., 285. Ch. 39.

Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company Limited:
Copy of Extra of Canada Gazette containing proclamation bringing into,

force an Act respecting, 44.
Copy of Order in Councîl concerning operation of, 44.

Beauharnois Power Project:
Motion and Order that a Special Committee be appointed for the purposeof takig into consideration the report of the Special Committee of theHuse of Commons appointed to investigate the Beauharnois PowerProject, in so f ar as the said Report relates te any Honourable

Members of the Senate, 22.
Motion and Order that fourth Report of the Special Committee of the Houseof Commons appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project

be referred to the Special Committee of the Senate, 22.
Motion naming Senaters te serve on Special Committee, and authorizing

Committee te sit during sittings and adjournments of the Senate, 30.Motion that Message be sent te the House of Commons requesting thatHouse to grant leave to their Clerk te appear and produce before theSpecial Committee of the Senate copy of evidence adduced before the
Special Committee of the House of Commons, 30.

First Report-Printing of proceedings, 35.
Second Report-Provision of Counsel to assist Committee, 43.
Third Report-Translation and printing in French of proceedings, 66.Fourth and final Report, 164-192; consideration and motion for adoption olReport, debated and postponed, 212-213, 218, 220; further debated

and on division, adopted, 227-228-229.
Motion for prÎnting of Report as Appendix to the Journals of the Senate

and in blue book form; also for return of exhibits, 278.

Bill presented and read pro forma: 8.

Bis:
Rej ected:

(VI) Gordon Alexander Cowan (Divorce), 248.
(Ai) Hospital Sweepstakes, 44.
(Dl) Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway Company, 253.

Withdrawn:
(BI) British and Foreign Insurance Companies Status and Powers

Act, 1932, 62.
(Ci) Dominion Inmurance Comipanies Status and Powers Act, 1932, 62.
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Board of Railway Commissioners for Canada:
Report a.nd Order in Couneîl, 44.

Board@ of Tr'ade Act (Amendment):
Bill 3-lst, 37; 2nd and Ref. C. of W., 46; C. of W., amended and amend-

ments concurred in, 49. 3rd, 54. Concurrence by Coms., 94. R.A.,
104. Ch. 14.

Bonds and Securities:
Registered in the Department of the Secretary of State of Canada, 13.

British and Foreign Insuranee Companies Status and Powers Act, 1932:
Bill (B)-lst, 18; 2nd and Ref. B. and C., 23; reported with recom-

mendation that leave to withdraw Bill be granted, motion withdrawing
Bill, 62.

British Commonwealth Merchant Shipping Agreement:
Copy tabled, 66.

Burrow, Adiena Emma Sis (otherwise known as Adelena Emma Sille
Burrows>- (Divorce):

Petition, 54; reported and adopted, 232.
Bill E2-lst, 242; 2nd and 3rd, 248. Passed by Coms., 263. Message,

264. R.A., 285. Ch. 63.

C

Canadian and British Insurance Companies, Act, 1932:
Bill Gil1st, 98;; postponed, 107; 2nd and Ref. B. and C., 111; reported

with amendments (Bill reprintcd), 210; report concurred in and 3rd,
217-218. Amended by Coms., 275-276. Amendments agreed to, 279.
R.A., 285. Ch. 68.

Canadian Farm Loan Board:
Report on Examination of Accounts, 35.

Canadian Government Merchant Marine, Limited, and Canadian National
(West Indies) Steamships, IÀmited:

Annual Report, 1931, 88.

Canadian National Railways (Extension of time for construction of Brcvnch
Unes):

Bill 70-lst, 227; 2nd and Ref. R. T. and H., 240; reportcd and 3rd, 252.
R.A., 256. Ch. 24.

Canadian National Railways Financing Act, 1931, No. 2:
Bill 21-lst, 59; 2nd and 3rd, 62. R.A., 89. Ch. 6.

Canadian National Railways Financing Act, 1932:
Bill 34-lst, 226; 2nd and 3rd, 239. R.A.,»255. Ch. 25.

Canadian National Railways Guarantee Act, 1931, No. 2:
Bill 40-lst, 96; nd and 3rd, 103. R.A., 104. Ch. 15.
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Canadian National Railways Guarantee Act, 1932.
Bill 71-lst, 236; 2nd and 3rd, 245. R.A., 255. Ch. 26.

Canadian National Railway System:
Annual Report, 1931, 88.

Canadian Pacifie Railway Company (Additional consolidated debenture stock):
Petition, 46; read, 54; reported, 84.
Bill 35-lst, 96; 2nd and Ref. R.T. and H., 106; reported, 127; 3rd, 196.

R.A., 228. Ch. 58.

Canadian Radio Broadcasting Act, 1932.
Bill 94-lst, 274; 2nd and 3rd, 2ý79. R.A., 285. Ch. 51.

Cancelled Sales or Leases--Department of Indian Affaira:
Return, 12.

Cannon, Lucy Doris - (Divorce):
Petition, 82.

'Chandler, Minnie Jones-(Divorce):
Petition, 86; reported, 126; adopted, 196.
Bill Y1-lst, 211; postponed, 221, 230; 2nd and 3rd, 238. Passage by Coms.,

262. Message, 264. R.A., 285. Ch. 64.

Chicago Water Diversion:
Attention of Senate called to, motion and debate, 70; further debated, 75,

postponed, 78. further debated and motion withdrawn, 82.

City of Ottawa (Extension of agreement):
Bill 12-lst, 38; 2nd and 3rd, 50. R.A., 89. Ch. Il.

Civil Aviation and Civil Government Air Operations:
Report, 13.

Civil Service Act:
Report of positions excluded from the operation of, 1931, 13.

Civil Service Act (Amendment):
Bill 99-lst, 270; 2nd and 3rd, 280. R.A., 285. Ch. 40.

Civil Service Administrationu-Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 42.

Civil Service Commission:
Report, 1931, English edition, 62; French edition, 248.

Clerk of the Senate:
Accounts and Vouchers, 36, 268-269, 281.
Assent to Bis, 89, 104, 227-228, 255-256, 285.
Library of Parliament:

Reads Report of Joint Librarians, 1931, 8-9.
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Clerk of the Senate-Concluded
Senators. New:

Reads Commissions and administers Oath of Allegiance to the Honour-
able Senators:

Ballantyne, 4-5.
Dennis, 5-6.
Macdonald, 20.
McRae, 2-3.
Meighen, 3-4.

Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada-Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 27.
Second Report (Authority to send for persons, papers and records), 74.
Third Report (Imperial Economic Conference, etc.), 258-262. Considera-

tion of Report, debated and adjourned, 273. Report adopted, 282.
Motion for printing of evidence-negatived on division, 284.

Committees- (Standing):

Agriculture and Forestry-
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 29.

Banking and Commerce-
List of Senators selected, 16.
First Report (Quorum), 27.

Civil Service Administration-
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 42.

Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada-
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 27.
Second Report (Authority to send for persons, papers and records), 74.
Third Report (Imperial Economic Conference, etc.), 258-262. Con-

sideration of Report, debated and adjourned, 273. Report adopted,
282. Motion for printing of evidence-negatived on division, 284.

Debates and Reporting-
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 29.
Second Report (Services of Messrs Blacklock and Fortier), 74.

Adopted, 80.
Third Report (Appointment of Parliamentary Reporter), 269; Adopted,

281.
Divorce-

List of Senators selected, 17.
Reports:

Quorum, leave to sit during adjournments and during sittings of
Senate, and power to elect Deputy Chairman, 28.

Finance-
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 35.
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Committees- (Standing) -Concluded
Immigration and Labour-

List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 28.

Internal Economy and Co<ntin gent Account-
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 28.
Second Report-Revision of compensation rates for class "Assistant

Clerk of the Senate", adopted, 70.
Third Report-Change in status of Mr. Thomas Bengough from Re-

porter to Reserve Reporter, 268. Adopted, 281.
Fourth Report--Supply of stationery, 268. Adopted, 281.
Fifth Report-Accounts and vouchers of the Clerk of the Senate, 268-

269. Adopted, 281.

Miscellaneous Priva te Bis-
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 34.

O'rders and Cu.stoms of the Senate and Privileges of Poerliament, 12.
Public Buildings a'nd Grounds-

List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Querum), 31.
Second Report (Respecting grounds in precincts of Parliament), 212;

consideration postponed, 222, 230, 239; report adopted, 245.
Third Report (Respecting grounds in precincts of Parliament), 270.

Adopted, 281.

Public Heaith and Inspection of Foods-
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 34.

Raiiways, Tele graphe a'nd Harb ours-
List of Senators selected, 16.
First Report (Quorum), 29.

Selection-(To nominate Senators)-
Committee appointed, 12.
First Report (Senators Sclected), 16-18.
Constitution of Committees, 21.

Standing Orders-
List of Senators selected, 16.
Constitution and authority to send for persons, paper3 and records

whenever required, 21.
First Report (Quorum), 27.
Second Report (Time extended), 42.
Reports on petitions, 43, 84, 124, 200.

Committees- (Joint) :
Library of Parliament-

List of Senators selected, 16.
Message to Coms. (List of names), 21.
Message from Coms. (List of names), 36.
Report of Joint Librarians, 1931, 8-9.
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Printing of Parliament-
List of Senators selectied, 16.
Message to Coms. (List of names), 22.
Message from Coms. (List of names), 37.
First Report (Sessional Papers), 128-161.
Second Report (Sessional Papers), 200-209. Adopted, 217.

Restaurant-
List of Senators selected, 18.
Message to Coms. (List of names), 22.
Message from. Coms. (List of names), 36.

Committee&-- (Special) :

Beauharnois Power Pro ject:
Motion and Order that a Special Committee be appointed for the pur-

pose of taking into consideration the report of a Special Commit-
tee of the House of Commons appointed to investigate the Beau-

harnois Power Project, insofar as the said Report relates to any
Honourable Members of the Senate, 22.

Motion and Order that f ourth Report of the Special Committee of the

bouse of Commons appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power
Project be referred to the Special Committee of the Senate, 22.

Motion naming Senators to serve on Special Committee and authorizing
Committee to sit during sittings and adjournments of the Senate, 30.

Motion that Message be sent to the House of Commons requesting that
bouse to grant leave to their Clerk to appear and produce before

the Special Committee of the Senate copy of evidence adduced
before the Special Committee of the House of Commons, 30.

First Report-Printing of proceedings, 35.
Second Report-Provision of Counsel to assist Committee, 43.
Third Report-Translation and printing in French of proceedings, 66.

Fourth and final Report, 164-192; consideration and motion for adoption
of Report, debated and postponed, 212-213, 218, 220; further
debated and, on division, adopted, 227-228-229.

Motion for printing of Report as Appendix to the Journals of the Senate
and in blue book form; also for return of exhibits, 278.

Judqes, Syjstem of appoint ing:
Motion and Order naming Special Committee to examine into the sys-

tem of appointing Judges as at present existing, 22.

Commons:
Attendance in Senate Chamber-

Openîng of Session, 6.
Prorogation of Parliament, 285.
Royal Assent to Bis, 89, 104, 227-228, 255-256.

Companies Act:
Attention of Senate called to, and inquiry respecting revision of, 98.

Companies Act (Amendment):
Bill 61-lst, 2nd and Ref. B. and C., 243; reported and 3rd, 252. R.A., 256.

Ch. 27.
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Conditions Prevailing in Canada:
Attention of Government called to importance of a return-to-the-land move-

ment as a measure to alleviate conditions prevailing in Canada, 196.

Copyright Act:
Copy of Order in Council transferring to the Department of the Secretary

of State administration of, 21.

Cossar, Mahel Constance SmalI- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 93; adopted, 106.
Bill Kl1st, 110; 2nd, 117; 3rd, 121-122. Passage by Coms., 224. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 65.

Cowan, Gordon Alexander- (Divorce).
Petition, 26; reported, 124; adopted, 196.
Bill Vl1st, 210; postponed, 221, 230; 2nd, 237; postponed, 244; motion

for 3rd passed in the negative, 248.

Criminal Code (Cheques without Funds and Grand Juries):
Bill 22-lst, 59; postponed, 63; motion for 2nd carried on division, 2nd,

67; postponed, 71; C. of W., 74; 3rd, 78. R.A., 89. Ch. 7.

Criminal Code (Conveyance of prohibited articles):
Bill 11-lst, 38; 2nd and C. of W., 50; 3rd, 55. R.A., 89. Ch. 8.

Criminal Code (Summary trials):
Bill 7-lst, 37; 2nd and C. of W., 49; 3rd, 54. R.A., 89. Ch. 9.

Criminal Code (Trustees defined):
Bill 42-lst, 216; postponed, 229; 2nd and 3rd, 236. .A., 255. Ch. 28.

Customs Tariff:
Bill 95--lst, 270; 2nd and 3rd, 279. R.A., 285. Ch. 41.

D

Debates and Reporting-Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 29.
Second Report (Services of Messrs. Blacklock and Fortier), 74. Adopted, 80.
Third Report (Appointment of Parliamentary Reporter), 269. Adopted,

281.

Debta Due to the Crown:
Bill 25-lst, 9ý5; 2nd, 105; 3rd, 111. R.A., 227. Ch. 18.

Dennis, The Honourable William Henry.
Certificate of appointment, 2.
Introduction, Commission, Oath and Declaration of Property Qualification,

5-6.

Department of Insurance Act:
Bill E1-lst, 80; motion for 2nd, debated and postponed, 82; 2nd and Ref.

B. and C., 84; reported with amendments, 209-210; report concurred
in and 3rd, 217. Amended by Coms., 254. Consideration of amend-
ments postponed, 262. Amendments agreed to, 271. R.A., 285. Ch. 45.
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Deputy Governor General:
Prorogation of Parliament, 285-287.
Royal Assent to Bis, 89, 103-104, 227-228, 255-256, 285.

Destructive Insect and Pest Act (Amendment):
Bill 18--lst, 95; 2nd, 98; Orcler for C. of W. discharged and Bill referred

to Standing Committee on Agriculture and Forestry, 105; reported,
209; postponed, 217, 220; 3rd, 227. R.A., 228. Ch. 19.

Divisions:
Beauharnois Power Project-Adoption of fourth and final Report, 229.
Criminal Code (Cheques without Funds and Grand Juries)-Bill 22, 67.
Hospital Sweeptakes--Bill Ai, 44.

Divorce:
Applications not granted:

Cowan, Gordon Alexander, 248.
Petitions withdrawn:

Sorbonne, Louis, 94.
Symington, Freda Iris, 235.
Symington, Robert Russell, 124-125, 196.

Divorce-Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
Reports--

Quorum, leave to sit during adjournments, and during sittings of the
Senate, and power to, elect Deputy Chairman, 28.

Dixon, George Seymour- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 102; adopted, 116.
Bill R1-lst, 120; 2nd and 3rd, 193. Passage by Coms., 225. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 66.

Dominion Forest Reserves and Parka Act:
Orders in Council, 12. Motion and Resolution for the approval of, 46.

Dominion Insurance Companies Status and Powers Act, 1932:
Bill Cl lst, 22; 2nd and Ref. B. and C., 30; reported with recommenda-

tion that leave to withdraw Bill be granted; motion withdrawing
Bill, 62.

Dominion Lands Act:
Orders in Council, 12. Motion and Resohution for the approval of, 46.

Dominion Lands in the Railway Belt-British Columbia:
Orders in Council respecting regulations for the survey, administration,

disposai and management of, and summary of Orders, 12.

Dominion Lands Survey Act:
Orders in Council, 12.

E

Eakin, Beulah Isobel Phillips-- (Divorce):
Petition, 34; reported, 101; adopted, 116.
Bill Ql-lst, 120; 2nd and 3rd, 193. Passage by Coms., 225. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 67.
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Eastern Bank of Canada:
Bill 65--lst 226; 2nd and 3rd, 239. R.A., 255. Ch. 29.

Economic Conditions in Canada:
Attention of Senate called to, 46.

Economie Situation:
Attention of Senate cafled to some phases of, and suggestions made for

further economies, 70.

Eddy, Assad Kalil (otherwise known as Joseph Canulle) -(Divorce):

Petition, 34; reported, 94; adopted, 106.
Bill Ml1st, 110; 2nd 117; 3rd, 122. Passage by Coms., 224. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 68.

Electricity and Gas Inspection Services:
Report, 1931, 13.

Evans, Agnes May Jack-(Divorce):
Petition. 26; reported, 92-93; adopted, 106.
Bill Jl1st, 110; 2nd, 116; 3rd, 121. Pas-sage by Coms., 224. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 69.
IRefund of fees:-

Petition, 164; reported and adopted, 235.

Exchequer Court of Canada:
General Rules and Orders, 13.

Excise Act (Amendment):-
Bill 27 lst, 95; 2nd and Ref. C. of W., 105; C. of W. and postponed, 111;

postponed. 116, 121, 161. 192, 196, 212, 217, 221, 229ý; again in C. of W.
and 3rd, 237. R.A., 255. Ch. 30.

External Affairs, Secretary of State for:
Report, 1931, 35.

F

Finance-Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 35.

Fisheries Act (Amendment andi Consolidlation):
Bill 10-lst, 265; 2nd and C. of W., 271; again in C. of W., amended and

3rd, 278-279. Concurrence by Coms., 284. R.A., 285. Ch. 42.

Fisheries, Department of:
Report, 1931, 12.

Fish Inspection Act (Amen4ment):
Bill 6-lst, 216; postponed, 229; 2nd and Ref. C. of W., 236; C. of W.

and 3rd, 244. R.A., 256. Ch. 31.

Foreign Insurance Companies Act, 1932:
Bill Fl1st, 80; postponed, 82; 2nd and Ref. B. and C., 84; reported with

amendments (Bill reprinted), 210; report concurred in and 3rd, 217.
Amended by Cowis., 274-275. Amendments agreed to, 279. R.A., 285.
Ch. 47.

A.D. 1932 INDEX



Forest Reserves and Parks Act:
Orders in Council, 12.

Fort Smith-Fitzgerald Railway Company (Incorporation):
Petition, 46; read, 54.

Freudberg, Ida Judith Clark- (Divorce):
Petition, 34; reported and adopted, 232-233.
Bill F2-lst, 242; 2nd and 3rd, 248-249. Passage by Coms., 263. Mes-

sage, 264. R.A., 285. Ch. 70.

Frontier Coliege Incorporation Act (Arnendment):
Bill 53-lst, 216; postponed, 229; 2nd and 3rd, 237. R.A., 255. Ch. 32.

G

Gold Export Act:
Bill 45-lst, 226; 2nd and 3rd, 239. R.A., 255. Ch. 33.

Governor General:
Acknowiedgment of Address in reply to Speech, 44.
Opening of Session, 6-8.

Governor General's Secretary:
Communications from respecting:

Assent to Bis, 88, 100, 224, 255.
Opening of Session, 2.
Prorogation of Parliament, 284.

Gunther, Elizabeth Ann Routledge-(Divorce):
Petition, 42; reported and adopted, 233.
Bill G2-lst, 242; 2nd and 3rd, 249. Passage by Coms., 263. Message,

264. R.A., 285. Ch. 71.

H

Heald, Margaret Spencer (Divorce):
Petition, 82; reported and adopted, 234.
Bill K2-lst, 243; 2nd and 3rd, 250. Passage by Coms., 263. Message,

264. R.A., 285. Ch. 72.

History of the Great War:
Attention of Senate drawn to matter of the official publication of a history

dealing with Canada's participation in the Great War, 78.

Hospital Sweepstakes:
Bill A1-lst, 14; motion for 2nd debated and adjourned, 23; further debated

and adjourned, 31, 39; motion for 2nd further debated and negatived on
division, 44.

House of Commons:
Attendance in Senate Chamber:

Opening of Session, 6.
Prorogation of Parliament, 285.
Royal Assent to Bis, 89, 104, 227-228, 255-256.
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Hloward, Georgina Linda Mclndoe- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 100; adopted, 115.
Bill N1-lst, 120; 2nd and 3rd, 192. Passage by Coms., 225. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 73.

Immigration and Labour-Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report, (Quorum), 28.

Imperial Economic Conference:
Attention of Government called ta matters affecting, and motion ta refer

subject to Standing Committee on Commerce and Trade Relations of
Canada-motion carried, 115.

Report of Committee, 258-262; consideration of Report-deba Led and post-
poned, 273. Report adopted, 282.

Income War Tax Act (Amendment):
Bill 92-lst, 266; 2nd, C. of W., amended and 3rd, 272-273. Concurrence

by Coms., 282. R.A., 285. Ch. 44.
Bill 96-lst, 270; 2nd and 3rd, 280. R.A., 285. Ch. 43.

Indian Affairs, Department of:
Report, 1931, 35.

Indians:
Enfranchisements, 1931, 12.
Return showing cancelled sales or leases, Department of Indian Affairs, 12.

Industrial Property, International Convention for the Protection of:
Copy tabled, 13, 244.

Inquiries:
Companies Act-Revision of, 98.
Economic conditions in Canada, 46.
Officiai History of the Great War, 78.

Insurance Act, Department of:
Bill E1-lst, 80; motion for 2nd, debated and postponed, 82; 2nd and Ref.

B. and C., 84; reported with amendments. 209-210; report concurred in
and 3rd, 217. Amended by Coms., 254. Consideration of amendments
postponed, 262. Amendments agreed ta, 271. R.A., 285. Ch. 45.

Interior, Department of the:
Report, 1931, 12.
List of leases, licences, permits or other authorities cancelled, 12.

Internai Economy and Contingent Accounts--Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 28.
Second Report-Revision of compensation rates for cls Assistant Clerk

of the Senate," adopted, 70.
Third Report-Change in status of Mr. Thomas Bengough from, Reporter

to, Reserve Reporter, 268. Adopted, 281.
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Internai Economy and Contingent Account&-wCommittee on :-Concluded
Fourth Report-Supply of stationery, 268. Adopted, 281.
Fifth Report-Accounts and vouchers of the Clerk of the Senate, 268-269.

Adopted, 281.

International Roundary Commission on the Survey and Demareation of the
International Boundary between the United States and Canada, from
the Northwesternmost Point of Lake of the Woods 10, Lake
Superior:

Joint Report, with triangulation sketches and maps, 12.

International Convention for Limiting the Manufacture and Regulating. the
Distribution of Narcotic Drugs:

Copy tabled, 114.
Message fromn Coins. informing the Senate that they had adopted a Reso-

lution approving of Convention, and requesting that the Senate Unite
with themn in approval thereof, 114.

Con8ideration of Message; motion and resolution approving of Convention
and Message to Comns., 114.

International Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property:
Copy tabled, 13, 244.

International Convention for the Supervision of the International Trade
in Arms and Atumunition:

Message from Comns. informing the Senate that they had adopted a Reso-
lution approving of Convention, and requesting that the Senate unite
with themn in approval thereof, 243.

Consideration of Message; motion and resolutîon approving of Conven-
tion, and Message to Coins., 243.

International Convention for the Amelioration of the Condition of the
Wounded and Sick in Armies in the Field:

Mes-sage from Coms. informing the Senate that they hail adopted a Reso-
lution approving of Convention, and requesting that the Senate unite
with themn in approval thereof, 48.

Copy of convention tabled, 54.
Consideration of Message postponed, 56.
Censideration of Message, motion and resolution approving of convention,

and Message to Coins., 58.

International Convention Relative 10, the Treatment of Prisoners of War:
Message from Coins. informing the Senate that they had adopted a Reso-

lution approving of Convention, and requesting that the Senate unite
with themn in approval thereof, 48.

Copy of convention tahled, 54.
Consideration of Message postponed, 56.
Consideration of Message; motion and resolution approving of convention,

and iMessage to Comns., 59.

Johston, Ellery Sanford- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 126-127; adopted, 197.
Bill A2-lst, 211; postponed, 222, 230; 2nd and 3rd, 238. Passage by Coms.,

263. Message, 264. R.A., 285. Ch. 74.
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Judges Act (Amendment):
Bill 9-lst, 95; 2nd, C. of W. and-3rd, 98. R.A., 104. Ch. 16.
Bill 91-lst, 265; 2nd and 3rd, 272. R.A., 285. Ch. 48.

Judges, System of Appointing:
Motion and Order appointing Special Committee to examine into the system,

of appointing Judges as at present existing, 22.

Juvenile Delinquents Act (Amendment):
Bill 8--lst, 38; 2nd, C. of W. and progress reported, 50; again in C. of W.,

amended and 3rd, 55. Concurrence by Coins., 94. R.A., 104. Ch. 17.

L
Labour, Department of:

Report, 1931, including proceedings under the Combines Investigation Act;
Conciliation and Labour Act; Employment Offices Co-ordination Act;
Government Annuities Act; Industrial Disputes Investigation Act;
Technical Education Act; and Unemployment Relief Act, 1930, 21.

Lake of the Woods International Bridge Company (Incorporation):
Petition, 114; read, 124; reported, 200.
Bill 46-lst, 2nd and Ref. R.T. and H., 211; reported, 220; 3rd, 227. R.A.,

228. Ch. 59.

Lamb, Theo Alice MaeFarlane-(Divorce):
Petition, 84; reported and adopted, 234.
Bill 12-lst, 242; 2nd and 3rd, 249. Passage by Coms., 263. Message, 264.

R.A., 285. Ch. 75.

League of Nations:
Motion and Order for Return showing certain information with respect to

assessments or contributions for the maintenance of, etc., 30. Return
tabled, 66-67.

Report of Canadian Delegates to Twelfth Assembly, 66.

Leases, Licences, Permit@ or other Authorities Cancelled-Department of
the Interior: 12.

Library of Parliament-Joint Committee on the:
List of Senators selected, 16.
Message to Comns. (List of naines), 21.
Message from Comns. (List of naines), 36.
Report of Joint Librarians, 1931, 8-9.

Live Stock Pedigree Act, 1932:
Bill 73-lst, 2nd, C. of W., and 3rd, 272. R.A., 285. Ch. 49.

M

Macdonald, The Honourable John Alexander:
Certificate of appointmnent, 2.
Introduction, Commission, Oatb and Declaration of Property Qualifica,-

tion, 20-21.
41765-20
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Maltreatment of Prisoners of War:
Report, of Reparations Commissioner, 13.

Marine, Depariment of:
Report, 1931, 12.

Marriage and Divorce Act (Amendment):
Bill 17-lst, 38; postponed, 46, 49; 2nd, 56; postponed, 58; 3rd, 62. R.A.,,

89. Ch. 10.

McRae, The Honourable Alexander Duncan:
Certificate of appointment, 2.
Introduction, Commission, Oath and Declaration of Property Qualifica-

tion, 2-3.

Meighen, The Right Honourable Arthur:
Certificate of appoi.ntment, 2.
Introduction, Commission, Oath and Declaration of IProperty Qualifica-

tion, 3-4.

Messages:

1. From the Commons:
Arms and Ammunition, International Convention for the Supervision

of the International Trade in:
Requesting that Senate unite with Coms. in approval of, 243.

Beauharnoîs Power Projeet:
Agreeing to request to grant leave to the Clerk of the Commons to

appear and produce before a Special Committee of the Senate
copy of evidence adduced before a Special Committee of the
Commons appointed to investigate the Beauharnoîs Power
Project, 37.

Evidence-Bilîs of Divorce-
Returning to Senate evidence taken before the Committee on

Divorce, submitted with Bis of Divorce, 225, 264.

Joint Committees:
Naming Members to serve on Joint Committees on Library, Print-

ing and Restaurant, 36-37.

Xarcotic Drugs, International Convention for imiting the Manufacture
and regulating the Distribution of-
Requesting that Senate unite with, Coms. in approval of, 114.

Prisoners of War, International Convention relative to the Treatment
of-
Requesting that Senate unite wit-h the Coms. in approval of, 48.

Wounded and Sick in Armies in the Field, International Convention
for the Amelioratýion of the condition of the-
Requesting that Senate unite with the Coms. in approval of, 48.

2. To the Commons:
Arms and Ammunition, International Convention for the Supervision

of the International Trade in-
Uniting with Coins. in approval of, 243.
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Messages--Concluded
2. To the Commons-Concluded

Beauharnois Power Projet:-
Requesting that House of Commons grant leave to their Clerk to

appear and produce before Speciai Committee of the Senate
copy of evidence adduced before the Special Committee of the
bouse of Commons appoint-ed to investigate the Beauharnois
Power Project, 30.

Joint Committees:
Naming Senators to serve on Joint Committees on Library, Print-

ing and Restaurant, 21-22.
Narcotic Drugs, International Convention for limiting the Manufacture

and regulating the Distribution of-
Uniting with Coms. in approval of, 114.

Prisoners of War, International Convention relative to the Treatment
of-
Uniting with Coms. in approval of, 59.

Wounded and Sick in Armies in the Field, International Conventionfor the Amelioration of the condition of the-
Uniting with Coms. in approval of, 58.

Migratory Birds Convention Act:
Orders in Council, 12.

Miscellaneous Private Bills-Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 34.

Montreal Central Terminal Company, The:
Petition, 42; read, 48; reported, 84,

Montreal Harbour Commissioners Act, 1894 (Amendment):
Bill 98--st, 274; 2nd and 3rd, 280. R.A., 285. Ch. 50.

Morgan, George Senkier- (Divorce):-
Petition, 26; reported, 92; adopted, 106.
Bill I1-lst, 110; 2nd, 116; 3rd, 121. Passage by Coms., 224. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 76.

Motions:
Beauharnois Power Proj ect:

Appointing Special Committee for the purpoise of taking into consid-
eration the report of a Special Committee of the bouse of Com-mons appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, inso f ar as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members of
the Senate, 22.

That Fourth Report of the Special Committee of the bouse of Com-mons appointed te investigate the Beauharnois Power Project be
referred to the Special Committee of the Senate, 22.

Namîng Senators to serve on Special Committee, and authorizing Com-
mittee to sit during sittings and adjournments of the Senate, 30.

That a Message be sent to the bouse of Commons requesting thatbouse to grant leave to their Clerk te appear and produce before
41766--201
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Motions--Concluded
Beauharnois Power Proj ect-Concluded

the Special Committee of the Senate copy of evidence adduced
before the Special Committee of the House of Commons, 30.

'Phat fourth and final Report be adopted 213, debated, 218, 220;
further debated and Report, on division, adopted, 227-228-229.

That Report of Committee be printed as an appendix to the Journals
of the Senate and in blue book form; also for return of exhibits,
278.

Chicago Water Diversion:
That no further negotiations on the St. Lawrence Waterways be made

until Senate has examined treaty now in force; also that copy of
treaty be tabled, 70, 75; postponed, 78; further debated and motion
withdrawn, 82.

Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada, Standing Committee on:
Printing of evidence-negatived on division, 284.

Judges, System of appointing:
Naming Special Committee to examine into the ýsystem of appointing

Judges as at present existing, 22.
Orders in Council:

That certain Orders in Council laid on the Table be approved, 46.
Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway Company:

Refund of fees, 278.
-Radium from Canadian Ores, Control of production and distribution of:

Appointment of Commission, 103, 104, 116, 121, 161, 197, 217, 221,
229, 240.

Jtailway conditions in Canada, 161, 197, 221, 230, 240.
Rules of the Senate:

Amending Rule 78, 16.
Trade and Commerce of Canada and Imperial Economic Conference:

To refer matters to Standing Committee on Commerce and Trade
Relations of Canada, 115.

N

Narcotic Drugs, International Convention for Limiting the Manufacture
and Regulating the Distribution of:

Copy laid on Table, 114.
Message f rom Coms. informing the Senate that they had adopted a, Resolu-

tion approving of Convention, and requesting that the Senate -unite
with them in approval thereof, 114.

Consideration of Message, motion and resolution approving of Convention
and Message to Coms., 114.

National Defence, Department of:
Appointments, Promotions and Retirements (Canadian Militia), 13.
General Orders issued, 13.
Militia Orders issued, 13.
Naval General Orders, 13.
Report 1931 (Naval Service), 13.
Report, 1931 (Militia and Air Services), 13.
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National Ports Survey:
Report of Sir Alexander Gibb, Part I and Part 11, 196.

National Research Council:
Report, 1930-31, 54.

National Revenue Act:
Statement of appointments under, 1931, 13.

National Revenue, Depariment of:
Report, containiný Accounts of Revenue, etc., 1931, 13.
Shipping Report (Customs Division), 1931, 13.

Newton Company, The W.S. (Incorporation):
Petition, 110; read, 120; reported, 124.
Bill U1-lst, 127; rules, suspended, 127; 2nd and Ref. B. and C., 194;

reported with amendments, amendments concurred in and 3rd. Pas-
sage by Coms., 264. R.A., 285. Ch. 62.

New Zealand Trade Agreement Act:
Bill 62-lst, 226; postponed, 244, 248; 3rd, 255. R.A., 256. Ch. 34.

Nissenson, Ethel Seigler- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 102-103; adopted, 116.
Bill T1-lst, 120; 2nd and 3rd, 194. Passage by Coms., 225. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 77.

Northwest Territories:
Ordinances in the, 12.
Permits isýsued to take intoxicants into, 12.

0

Opening of Session of Parliament:
Communication from Governor General's Secretary, 2.
His Excellency the Governor General opens Session, 6-8.

Opium and Narcotic Drug Act, 1929 (Arnendment):
Bill 26-lst, 95; motion for 2nd debated and postponed, 105; 2nd and 3rd,115. R.A., 228. Ch. 20.

Orders and Custorn s of the Senate and Privileges of Parliament:
Committee appointed (with leave to meet in Senate Chamber when and

as often as they please), 12.

Orders in Couneil:
Laid on the Table-See: Reports, Orders in Council and other documents

laid on the Table.
Motion and Resolution approving certain Orders in Council laid on the

Table on the 8th February, 1932, 46.
Ottawa and New York Railway Company and the New York Central Rail-

road Company:
Petition, 46; read, 54; reported, 84.
Bill 32-lst, 96; postponed, 106; 2nd and Ref. R.T. and H., 161; reported

with amendments, amendment concurred in, 216; 3rd, 220. Concur-
rence in amendments by Coms., with further amendments for concur-
rence of Senate, 264. Further amendments concurred in by Senate.
271. R.A., 285. Ch. 60.
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Ottawa, City of (Extension of agreement):
Bill 12-lst, 38; 2nd and 3rd, 50. R.A., 89. Ch. Il.

P

Patent Act:
Copy of Order in Council transferring to the Departinent of the Secretary

of State administration of, 21.

Patent Act (Amendment):
Bill 4-lst, 95; 2nd, 98; C. of W. and 3rd, 105. R.A., 227. Ch. 21.

Patents:
Report of Commissioner, 1931, 13.

Pensions and National Health, Department of:
Report, 1931, 35.

Petroleum and Naphtha Inspection Act (Amendment):
Bill 20-Ist, 95; 2nd, 105; 3rd, 110. R.A., 227. Ch. 22.

Poliseno, Antonio- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 100-101; adopted, 115.
B3ill O1-lst, 120; 2nd and 3rd, 193. Passage by Coins., 225. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 78.

Porteous, Frances Helen Dawes--(Dîvorce):
Petition, 34; reported, 125; adopted, 196.
Bill X1-lst, 211; postponed, 221, 230; 2nd and 3rd, 238. Passage by Coms.,

262. Message, 264. R.A., 285. Ch. 79.

Potter, Chesley Hastings- (Divorce) :
Petition, 66; reported and adopted, 233.
Bill H2-lst, 242; 2nd and 3rd, 249. Passage by Coins., 283. Message, 264.

R.A.e 285. Ch. 80.

Preventive Service, Department of National Revenue:
Copy of Order in Council transferring to the Royal Canadian Mounted

Police the, 220.

Prisoners of War, Maltreatment of:
Report of Reparations Commissioner, 13.

Prisoners of War, International Convention Relative to the Treatment of:-
Message froin Coins. informing the Senate that they had adopted a Reso-

lution approving of convention, and requesting that the Senate unite
with thein in approval thereof, 48.

Copy of convention tabled, 54.
Consideration of Message postponed, 56.
Consideration of Message; motion and resolution approving of convention,

and Message to Coins., 59.

Protection of Industrial Property, International Convention for the:
Copy tabled, 13.
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Printing of Parliament-Joint Committee on Printing:
List of Senators selected, 16.
Message to Cýoms. (List of Naines), 22.
Messages from Coms. (List of Names), 37.
First Report (Sessional Papers), 128-161.
Second Report (Sessional Papers), 200-209. Adopted, 217.

Prorogation of Parliament, 284-287.

Prupas, Harry- (Divorce):
Petition, 26.

Public Archives:
Report, 1931, 30.

Public Buildings and Grounds-Comnxittee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 31.
Second Report (Respecting grounds in preeinets of Parliament), 212; con-

sideration postponed, 222, 230, 239; Report adopted, 245.
Third Report (Respecting grounds in precincts of Parliament), 270.

Adopted, 281.

Public Health and Inspection of Foods--Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 17.
First Report (Quorum), 34.

Public Printing and Stationery, Depariment of:
Report, 1931, 13.

Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway Company, The:
Petition, 12; read, 21; reported, 43.
Bill Dl1st, 43; postponed, 51; 2nd and Ref. R.T. and H., 56; reported-

preamble not proven, passage of Bill not in public interest, 253.
Motion for refuçnd of fees, 278.

R

Radio Broadcasting Act, 1932, Canadian:
Bill 94-Ist, 274; 2nd and 3rd, 279. R.A., 285. Ch. 51.

Radio Regulations:
Copy of amendment, 54, 75.

Radium from Canadian Ores, Control of Production and Distribution of:
Motion and Resolution for appointment of Commission, debated, 103, 104,

116, 121, 161, 197; postponed, 217, 221, 229; further debated and motion
withdrawn, 240.

Railway Commissioners for Canada, Board of:
Report and Order in Council, 44.

Railway Conditions. in Canada:
Attention of Senate called to, 161, 197, 221, 230, 240.-
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Railways, An Act Relating to:
Bill pro formâ presented and read a first time, 8.

Raîlways and Canais, Department of:
Report, 1931, 12.

Railways, Telegraphs and Harbours--Committee on:
List of Senators selected, 16.
First Report (Quorum), 29.

Reclamation Act:
Statement showing no drainage works constructed; also no rentai collected

for the sale or lease of Dominion Lands, 13.

Redpath, Audrey Meredith Mann-(Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 102; adopted, 116.
Bill Sl1st, 120; 2nd and 3rd, 194. Passage by Coms., 225. Message, 225.

R.A., 228. Ch. 81.

iRefund of Fees:
Evans, Agnes May Jack (Divorce), 235.
Quebec, Montreal and Southern Railway Company, 278.
Trili, Eva Corker (Divorce), 236.

Refunds (Natural Resources) Act:
Bill 64-lst, 226; 2nd, 239; 3rd, 244. R.A., 256. Ch. 35.

Regulations and Orders in Council, Submission 10 Parliament of Certain:-
Bill 13-lst, 38; 2nd, 50; 3rd, 55. R.A., 89. Ch. 12.

Relief Act, 1932:
Bill 72-lst, 2nd and 3rd, 253. R.A., 256. Ch. 36.

Remissions and Refunds in Tolls and Duties:
Statement of, 13.

Reparations:
Copy of decision in the dlaim of the National Steel Car Corporation, Lim-

ited, 13.
Order in Council and copy of special report of Commissioner regarding loss

of the Schooner " Otokio", 117.
Report of Commissioner respecting maltreatment of Prisoners of War, 13.
Report by Custodian of receipts and expenditures in respect to Reparations

Payments, 35.
Report of Commissioner, together with certain documents, respecting Arme-

nian Claims for Reparations, 117.

Reports, Orders in Council and other Documents laid on the Table:
Agriculture, Department of-Report, 1931, 12.
Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company Limited:

Copy of Extra of Canada Gazette containing proclamation bringing
into force an Act respecting, 44.

Copy of Order in Council concerning operation of, 44.
Board of Railway Commissioners-Report and Order in Council, 44.
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Reports, Orders in Council and other Documents laid on the Table-Con.Bonds and Securities registered in the Department of the Secretary of State
of Canada, 13.

British Commonwealth Merchant Shipping Agreement--Copy, 66.
Canadian Farm Loan Board-Report on examination of accounts, 35.
Canadian Government Merchant Marine, Limited, and Canadian National

(West Indies) Steamships, Limited-Report, 1931, 88.
Canadian National Railway System-Report, 1931, 88.
Cancelled Sales or Leases, Department of Indian Affairs-Return, 12.Civil Aviation and Civil Government Air Operations-Report, 13.
Civil Service Act-Report of positions excluded from the operation of,1931, 13.
Civil Service Commission-Report, 1931, English edition, 62; French edition,

248.
Copyright Act-Copy of Order in Council transferring to the Department

of the Secretary of State administration of, 21.
Dominion Forest Reserves and Parks Act--Orders in Council, 12.
Dominion Lands Act--Orders in Council, 12.
Dominion Lands in Railway Belt-British Columbia:

Orders in Council respecting regulations for the survey, administration,
disposal and management of, and summary of Orders, 12.

Dominion Lands Survey Act--Orders in Council.
Electricity and Gas Inspection Services-Report, 1931, 13.
Exchequer Court of Canada-General Rules and Orders, 13.
External Affairs, Secretary of State for-Report, 1931, 35.
Fisheries, Department of-Report, 1931, 12.
Forest Reserves and Parks Act-Orders in Council, 12.
Indian Affairs, Department of-Report, 1931, 35.
Indians:

Enfranchisements, 1931, 12.
Return showing cancelled sales or leases, Department of Indian

Affairs, 12.
Industrial Property, International Convention for the Protection of-Copy,13, 244.
Interior, Department of the-Report, 1931, 12.
International Boundary Commission on the Survey and Demarcation ofthe International Boundary between the United States and Canadafrom the Northwestermost Point of Lake of the Woods to Lake Superior

-Joint Report, with triangulation sketches and maps, 12.
International Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property-Copy,13, 244.
International Convention for the Amelioration of the condition of theWounded and Sick in Armies in the Field-Copy, 54.
International Convention Relative to the Treatment of Prisoners of War-

Copy, 54.
International Convention for limiting the Manufacture and Regulating the

Distribution of Narcotic Drugs--Copy, 114.
Labour, Department of:

Report, 1931, including proceedings under the Combines Investigation
Act; Conciliation and Labour Act; Employment Offices Co-
ordination Act; Government Annuities Act; Industrial Disputes
Investigation Act; Technical Education Act, and Unemployment
Relief Act, 1930, 21.

League of Nations-Report of Canadian Delegates to Twelfth Assembly,
66.
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Reports, Orders in Council and other Documents laid on the Table-Con.

Leases, Licences, Permits and other Authorities Cancelled-Department
of the Interior, 12.

Maltreatment of Prisoners of War-Report of Reparations Commis-

sioner, 13.
Marine Department of-Report, 1931, 12.

Migratory Birds Convention Act-Orders in Council, 12.

Narcotic Drugs, International Convention for limiting the Manufacture

and Regulating the Distribution of-Copy, 114.

National Defence, Department of:

Appointments, Promotions and Retirements (Canadian Militia), 13.
General Orders issued, 13.
Militia Orders issued, 13.
Naval General Orders, 13.
Report 1931 (Naval Service), 13.
Report 1931 (Militia and Air Services), 13.

National Ports Survey-Report of Sir Alexander Gibb, Part I and Part

11, 196.
National Research Council:

Report, 1930-1931, 54.
National Revenue Act:

Statement of appointments under, 1931, 13.
National Revenue, Department of:

Report containing Accounts of Revenue, etc., 1931, 13.
Shipping Report (Customs Division), 1931, 13.

Northwest Territories:
Ordinances in the, 12.
Permits issued to take intoxicants into, 12.

Patents-Report of Commissioner, 1931, 13.
Patent Act-Copy of Order in Council transferring to the Department of

the Secretary of State administration of, 21.
Pensions and National Health, Department of-Report, 1931, 35.

Preventive Service, Department of National Revenue-Copy of Order in

Council transferring to the Royal Canadian Mounted Police the, 220.

Prisoners of War, Maltreatment of-Report of Reparations Commis-

sioner, 13.
Prisoners of War, International Convention relative to the Treatment of-

Copy, 54.
Protection of Industrial Property, International Convention for the-

Copy, 13.
Public Archives-Report, 1931, 30.
Public Printing and Stationery, Department of-Report, 1931, 13.

Radio Regulations-Copy of amendment, 54, 75.
Railway Commissioners for Canada, Board of-Report and order in

Council, 44.
Railways and Canals, Department of-Report, 1931, 12.

Reclamation Act-Report showing no drainage works constructed; also no

rental collected for the sale or lease of Dominion Lands, 13.

Remissions and Refunds in Tolls and Duties-Statement of, 13.

Reparations:
Copy of decision in the claim of the National Steel Car Corporation,

Limited, 13.
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Reports, Orders in Council and other Documents laid on the Table-Conc.
Reparations-Concluded

Order in Council and copy of special report of Commissioner regarding
loss of the Schooner Otokio, 117.

Report of Commissioner respecting maltreatment of Prisoners of
War, 13.

Report of Custodian of receipts and expenditures in respect to Repara-
tions Payments, 35.

Report of Commissioner, together with certain documents, respecting
Armenian Claims for Reparations, 117.

Secretary of State of Canada-Report, 1931, 35.
Secretary of State for External Affairs-Report, 1931, 35.
Seed Grain and Relief Indebtedness-List of apportionments and adjust-

ments, 1931, 13.
Timber Marking Act-Copy of Order in Council transferring to the

Department of the Secretary of State administration of, 21.
Trade and Commerce, Department of-Report, 1931, 13.
Trade Mark and Design Act--Copy of Order in Council transferring to

the Department of the Secretary of State administration of, 21.
Transportation in Canada-Copy of Order in Council appointing Commis-

sioners to inquire into the problem of, 114.
Weights and Measures Inspection Service-Report, 1931, 13.
Wounded and Sick in Armies in the Field, International Convention for

the amelioration of the condition of the, 54.
Yukon Territory-Ordinances of, 13.

Resolutions:
Arms and Ammunition, International Convention for the Supervision of the

International Trade in, 243.
Narcotic Drugs, International Convention for Limiting the Manufacture

and Regulating the Distribution of, 114.
Prisoners of War, International Convention Relative to the Treatment

of, 59.
Senate Staff-Approving recommendation of Civil Service Commission that

so far as appointments are concerned, the positions of First Clerk
Assistant and Second Clerk Assistant be exempted from the operation
of the Civil Service Act, 46.

Wounded and Sick in Armies in the Field, International Convention for the
Amelioration of the condition of the, 58.

Restaurant of Parliament-Joint Committee, on the:
List of Senators selected, 18.
Message to Coms. (List of names), 22.
Message from Coms. (List of naines), 36.

Returns to an Order of the Senate-Motions Therefor and Returns thereto:
League of Nations-Certain information with respect to assessments or

contributions for the maintenance of, etc., 30, 66-67.

Rother, Farla Goldman- (Divorce):

Petition, 26; reported, 127; adopted, 197.
Bill B2-lst, 211; postponed, 22, 230; 2nd and 3rd, 239. Passage by Coms.,

263. Message, 264. R.A., 285. Ch. 82.
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Royal Assent to Bils: 89, 103-104, 227-228, 256-257, 285.

Royal Canadian Mounted Police Act (Amendment):

Bill 63-lst, 236; 2nd and 3rd, 245. R.A. 256. Ch. 37.

Rules of the Senate:
Rule 78 amended, 16.

S

Salary Deduction Act, 1932:
Bill 19-lst, 265; 2nd, 271. 3rd, 278. R.A., 285. Ch. 52.

Secretary of State of Canada:
Report, 1'931, 35.

Secretary of State for External Affaire:
Report, 1931, 35.

Seed Grain and Relief Indebtedness:
List of apportionments and adjustments, 1931, 13.

Selection--Committee on-(To nominate Senators):
Committee appointed, 12.
First Report (Senators selected), 16-18.
Constitution of Committees, 21.

Senate Staff:
Assistant Clerk of the Senate-Revision of compensation rates, 70.
Change in status of Mr. Thomias Bengough from Reporter te, Reserve

Reporter, 268, 281.
Report of Standing Committee on Debutes and Reporting recommending

appointment of Parliamentary Reporter, 269; adopted, 281.
Resolut ion approving recommendation of Civil Service Commission that

positions of First Clerk Assistant and Second Clerk Assistant ho
exempted from the operation of the Civil Service Act, so f ar as
appointments are concerned, 46.

Senators Introduced during the Session:
The Honourable Senators:

Ballantyne, 4-5.
Dennis, 5-6.
MacDonald, 20-21.
McRae, 2-3.
Meighen, 3-4.

Soldier Seulement Act (Amendrnent):
Bill 100-lst, 274; 2nd and 3rd, 280. R.A., 285. Ch. 53.

Shiff, Chia Hannah- (Divorce):
Petition, 66; reported and adopted, 234-235.
Bill J2-lst, 242; 2nd and 3rd, 249. Passage by Coms, 263. Message,

264. R.A., 285. Ch. 83.

Sorbonne, Louis (Annulmen.t):
Petîtion, 34; reported, 94 <Petition withdrawn); adopted, 107.
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Speaker of the Senate-The Ilonourahie the-
Assent to Bis, 89, 103-104, 227-228, 2,54-255.
Certificates of appointment of new Senators-

Informs Senate of receipt by tbe Clerk of, 2.
Declaration of Property Qualification of Senators, 3-6, 21.
Governor General's Secretary-Reads communications from respecting:

Assent to Bills, 88, 103, 224.
Opening of Session, 2.
Prorogation of Parliament, 284.

Library of Parliament-
Presents Report of the Joint Librarians, 1931, 8-9.

Speech from Throne-
Jnforms Senate that a copy of the Speech of Ris Excellency the Gov-

ernor General bas been left, in bis bands, 8.
Presents Mesýsage from lis Excellency acknowledging receipt of

Address in reply, 44.

Special War Revenue Act (Arnendment):
Bill 102 îst, 274; 2nd, C. of W., amended and 3rd, 280-281. Concurrence

of Coms. in amendments, 284. R.A., 285. Ch. 54.

Speech From the Throne:
Opening of Session, 7-8.

Copy left in hands of the Speaker and ordered for consideration, 8.
Consideration; Address in reply moved, debated and adjourned, 14;
further debated, Address in reply adopted and ordered to, be pre-
sented to Ris Excellency tbe Governor General, 18.

Acknowledgment of Address hy Ris Excellency the Governor General, 44.
Prorogation of Parliament, 286-287.

Standing Orders--Conimitice on:
List of Senators selected, 16.
Constitution and authority to send for persons, papers and records when-

ever required, 21.
First Report (Quorum), 27.
Second Report (Time extended), 42.
Reports on petitions, 43, 84, 124, 200.

Supply for Publie Service:
No. 1. Bill 39-lst, 2nd and 3rd, 88. R.A., 89. Ch. 1.
No. 2. Bill 43-lst, 96; 2nd and 3rd, 98. R.A., 104. Cb. 2.
Nu. 3. Bill 82-lst, 2nd and 3rd, 253. R.A., 256. Ch. 3.
No. 4. Bill 101-lst, 2nd and 3rd, 284. R.A., 286. Ch. 57.

Symington, Freda Iri-(Divorce):
Petition, 66; reported and adopted, 235. (Petition wîtbdrawn).

Symington, Robert Russell- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 124-125; adopted, 196 (Petition withdrawn).

T
Tumber Marking Act:

Copy of Order in Council transferring to the Department of the Secretary
of State administration of, 21.
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Trade and Commerce, Department of:
Report, 1931, 13.

Trade and Commerce of Canada:
Attention of Government called to, and motion to refer matter to Standing

Commîttee on Commerce and Trade Relations of Canada-motion car-
ried, 115.

Trade Mark and Design Act:
Copy of Order in Council transferring to the Departmcnt of the Secretary

of State Administration of, 21.

Transportation in Canada:
Copy of Order in Council appointing Commissioners to inquire into the

problem of, 114.

Trili, Eva Corker- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 92; adopted, 106.
Bill Hl1st, 110; 2nd, 116; 3rd, 121. Passage by Coms., 224. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 84.
Refund of fees:

Petition, 164; reported and adopted, 236.

U

Unemployment and Farm Relief Continuance Act, 1932:
Bill 24-lst, 2nd and 3rd, 86. R.A., 89. Ch. 13.

Unfair Competition Act, 1932:
Bill 5--lst, 226; postponed, 239; 2nd and Ref. B. and C., 244; reported and

3rd, 253. R.A., 256. Ch. 38.

V
Vandette, Roméo Xavier- (Divorce):

Petition, 26; reported and adopted, 232.
Bill D2-lst, 242; 2nd and 3rd, 248. Passage by Coms., 263. Message,

264. R.A., 285. Ch. 85.

w
Waterton Glacier International Peace Park:

Bill 97-lst, 274; 2nd and 3rd, 280. R.A., 285. Ch. 55.

Watkins, Olive Pearl Beattie- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reported, 93; adopted. 106.
Bill L1-lst, 110; 2nd, 117; 3rd, 122. Passage by Coms., 224. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 86.

Waxman, Ida Tarantour- (Divorce):
Petition, 66; reported, 125; adopted, 196.
Bill W1-1st, 211; postponed, 221, 230; 2nd and 3rd, 237. Passage hy

Coms., 262. Message, 264. R.A., 285. Ch. 87.

INDEX 22-23 GEO. V



Weights and Measures Inspection Service:
Report, 1931, 13.

Windingàup Act (Amendmemt):
Bill (C2)-'lst, 2nd and Ref. B. and C., 220; reported, 236; 3rd, 244.

Amended by Coms., 265. Amendments agreed to, 271. R.A., 285.
Ch. 56.

Wilson, Dorothy Gertrude Silcock- (Divorce):
Petition, 26; reportcd, 101; adopted, 115.
Bill Pl1st, 120; 2nd and 3rd, 193. Passage by Coms., 225. Message,

225. R.A., 228. Ch. 88.

Woolnough, Elizabeth Irene- (Divorce):
Petition, 34; reported, 126; adopted, 197.
Bill Zl1st, 211; postponed, 221, 230; 2nd and 3rd, 238. Passage by Coms.,

262. Message, 264. R.A., 285. Ch. 89.

Woumnded and Sick in Armies in the Field, International Convention for the
Amelioration of the condition of the:

Message from Coms. informing the Senate that they had adopted a Reso-
lution approving of Convention, and requesting that the Senate unite
with them in approval thereof, 48.

Copy of convention tabled, 54.
Consideration of Message postponed, 56.
Consideration of Message, motion and resolution approving of convention

and Message to Coms., 58.

y

Yukon Quartz Mining Act (Amendment):
Bill 30-lst, 96; 2nd and Ref. C. of W., 105; C. of W. and 3rd, 115. R.A.,

228. Ch. 23.

Yukon Territory:
Ordinances of, 13.

A.D. 1932 INDEX



SENATORS 0F CANADA
ACCORDING TO SENIORITY

MAY, 1932

THE HONOURABLE PIERRE E. BLONDIN, P.C., SPEAKER

SENATORS DESIGNATION POSTOFCE ADDRESS

The Honourable

PASCAL POIRIER ...............................

RAouIL DANDuRAND, P.C .................

JOSEPIH P. B. CASGRAIN .......................

FRIÉDiEitc L. BLiquz, P.C ................

JosEPH H. LEGRIS ............................

JULES TESSIER ................................

JAMES H. Rosse...............................

NAPoLioN A. BELcounT, P.C ..............

J013EPH M. WILSON ............................

Ruirus HENRY POTE......................

JOHN W. DANIEL ..............................

GEORGE GORDON .............................

EnNEs? D. SmriH ............................

JAMES J. DoNNE.Y ...........................

CHiABLESi PmuLPPEc BEAUBIEN ........ .........

JOHN McLEAN ................................

JOHIN STEWART MCLENNAN ...................

WILLIAM HENRY SHARPE......................

GIDEcoN D. RoSERiTsoN, P.C ............
GEORGE LTNCRi-STAuNToN ....................

Acadie ...............

De Lorjinier.,.........

De Lanaudière ....... .

De Salaberry .........

Repentigny ...........

De la Durantaye ...

Moose Jaw............

Ottawa...............

Sorel, ...............

Bedford...............

Saint John............

Nipissing.............

Wentworth............

South Bruce ..........

Montarville ...........

Souris................

Sydney...............

Manitou..............

Welland ..............

Hamilton.............

Shediac, N.B.

Montreal, Que.

Montreal, Que.

Montreal, Que.

Louisville, Que.

Quebe'c, Que.

Moose Jaw, Sask.

Ottawa, Ont.

Montreal, Que.

Cookshire, Que.

Saint John, N.B.

North Bay, Ont.

Winona, Ont.

Pinkerton, Ont.

Montreal, Que.

Souris, F.E.I.

Sydney, N.S.

Manitou, Man.

Welland, Ont.

Hamilton, Ont.

CHRLES§ E. TANNER ................. .......... Pietou .................... 1Halifax, N.S.

THOMAS JEAN BOURQuE .......................

HENRY W. LAIRD .............................

ALBERT E. PLANTA ...................... ....

Richibucto ...........

Regin.................

Nanaimo.............

Riohibucto, N.B.

Regîna, Saak.

Nanaimo, B.C.

41765--21



2 SENATORS 0F CANADA

SENATORS DES ONATTON POST 077105 ADDRESS

The. Honourable

JOHN HzNRY FiosER .........................

LuNDRTM MCMEANS ..........................

DAVID OvIDE L'ESPRtiANCE ...................

RICHARD SHEATON WRITE.....................

Anai BiNARD................................

GEORGEc HENRY BARNARD ....................

WELLINGTON B. WILOUGRSY ..................

JAMES DAVIS TAYLOR .........................

FREICtc L. SCRAFPNER.....................

EDWARD MICMENER ...........................

WILLAM JAMES HARMEil......................

IRVING R. TODD .............................

PIERRE EDOUARD) BLONDIN, P.C. (Speaker) ...

GERALD VERNER WRITEC......................

THomAS CRAPAis .............................

LoRNE C. WEBSTER ...........................

JOHN STANYIELD ..............................

JOHN ANTHONY MCDOqALD ...................

WILLIAM A. GRIESBACH, C.B., C.M.G......

JOHN MCCORMICI<.............................

JAMES A. CALDER, P.C....................

RoBERtT F. GREEN ............................

ARCHIBALD B. GILLIS.........................

ARCH1RALD H. MACDONELL, C.M.G .........

FRAaNx B. BLACK .............................

PETER MARTIN ................................

ARTaUR C. HARDY, P.C ............. .....

ONisipiiORs TURQEON ........................

SIH ALLEN BRISTOL AYLESWORTH, P.C.,
K.C.M.G ...........................

ANDREW HAYDON ............................

CInPORD W. ROSINSON .......................

JAMES JOSEPH H UGHzE ........................

CREELMAN MACARTRUX .......................

JACQUES BUREU, P.C ....................

HENRII SiVÉRIN BkLAN<, P.C..............

JOHNr LEWIS .................. ................

Brant ................

Winnipeg .............

Gulf..................

Inkerman.............

St. Boniface...........

Victoria..............

Moose Jaw ...........

New Westminster...

Boissevain............

Red Deer .............

Edmonton............

Charlotte.............

The. Laurentides ...

Pembroke............

Grandvlle............

Stadacona ............

Colchester............

Shedias...............

Edmonton............

Sydney Mines .........

Saltcoats.............

Kootenay.............

Saskatchewan.........

South Toronto ........

Westmorland .........

Halifax...............

Leeds ................

Gloucester............

North York ...... ....

Lanark...............

Monceton..............

King'................

Prince ...............

La Salei..............

Lanson...............

Toronto...............

Paris, Ont.

Winnipeg, Man.

Quebec, Que.

Montreal, Que.

Winnipeg, Man.

Victoria, B.C.

Moose Jaw, Sask.

New Westminster, B.C.

Boissevaîn, Man.

Red Deer, Alta.

Edmnonton, Alta.

Milltown. N.B.

Montreal, Que.

Pembroke, Ont.

Quebec, Que.

Montreal. Que.

Truro. N.S.

Shediac, N.B.

Edmonton, Alta.

Sydney Mines, N.S.

Regina, Sask.

Victoria, B.C.

Whitewood, Sask.

Toronto, Ont.

Sackville, N.B.

Halifax, N.S.

Brookyjille, Ont.

Bathurst, N.B.

Toronto, Ont.

Ottawa, Ont.

Moncton, N.B.

Souris, P.E.I.

Summerside, P.E.I.

Three Rivers, Que.

St. Joseph de Beauce, Que.

Toronto. Ont.



SENATORS 0F CANADA 3

SENATORS

The Honourable

CHARLES MURPHY, P.C ...................

WILLIAm AsHiBuHy BlucRANANq.................

JAMES PALMER RANKIN .......................

AUTEtuR BLiSe Copp, P.C .................

JORNe PATRIuCK MOLLOy.. ý.....................

DANIEL E. Ruzr ........................

PAUL L. HATmILiD............................

RT. HON. GEOIRGES P. GRAHAM, P.C ........

WILLIAM H. MCGURE .........................

DONAT RAYmoN.D.............................

PHILIPPE J. PARADIS ...........................

JAMES H. SPENCE .............................

EDGAR S. LITTLE ..............................

GusTAvEc LACASSE .............................

HENRY HERSEET HORLSETY.....................

WALTER: E. FoSsER, P.C...................

HANCE J. LOGAN ..............................

ROBERT FoRKE, P.C ...................
C.AîaINE R. WILSON ...........................

JAMES MURDOCK, P.C ..................

RODoLPRE LEMIEux, P.C................

EDMOND WILLIAM TOBIN ..................

GEoRGE PAIREN4T............. .................

JULES-EDOUARD, PREVOST ......................

LAwRENCE ALEXANDER WILSON ................

JOHN EwEN SINCLAIR, P.C ................

J~AMES H. KING, P.C....................
A.RIHUR MARCOTT1E...........................

PATRICK BURNS .........................

ALEXANDERc D. MCRAE, C.B..............

RT. HON. ARTHUR MEIGEN, P.C0.........

CHABLES COLQuHOUN BALLANTYNE, P.C. .

WmiLLAM HENRY DENNIS ......................

JON ALEcxANDEiR MACDONALD ................

DESIGNATION

Russell ..............

Lethbridge ...........

Perth, N..............

Westxnorland..........

Provencher ...........

High River ...........

Yarmouth............

Eganville.............

East York............

De la Vallière .........

Shawinigan ...........

North Bruce ..........

London...............

Essex ................

Prince Edward ....

Saint John............

Cumberland ..........

Brandon..............

Rockeliffe.. ..........

Parkdale.............

Rougemont ...........

Victoria. ............

Kennebec.............

Mille Isies............

Rigaud...............

Queen'a ..............

Kootenay Est ....

Ponteix ... ..............

Calgary..............

Vancouver ...........

St. Mary'sa............

Alma................

Halifax...............
Richmond-

WetCape Breton ...

PMn oPPIcu AD»zesS

Ottawa, Ont.

Lethbridge, Alta.

Stratford, Ont.

Sackville, N.B.

Morris, Man.

High River, Alt.

Yarmouth, N.S.

Brookyjille, Ont.

Toronto, Ont.

Montreal, Que.

Quebec. Que.

Toronto, Ont.

London, Ont.

Tecumnseh, Ont.

Cressy, Ont.

Saint John, N B.

Parraboro, N.S.

Pipestone, Man.

Ottawa, Ont.

Ottawa, Ont.

Ottawa, Ont.

Bromptonville, Que.

Quebec, Que.

St. Jerome, Que.

Coteau du Lac, Que.

Emerald, P.E.I.

Victoria, B.C.

Ponteix, Saak.

Calgary, Alta.

Vancouver, B .0.

Toronto, Ont.

MontreaI, P.Q.

Halifax, N. S.

St. Petes, Cape Breton, N.B.

417U-21 j
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SENATORS 0F CANADA

ALPHABETICAL LIST

MAY, 1932

SENATOUS DESIGNATION POST OFFICE ADDRES8

The Honourable

AYLEswoRTU, Sin ALLEN, P.C., K.C.M.G.

BALLANTYNE, C.c.......................

BA.RNARD, G. H .........-..............

BzAuBIEN, C. P ............ ....... .....

BkiquE, F. L., P.C.......................

BÉLAND, H. S., P.C.............. ........

BELcoTRT, N. A., P.C....................

BiÉNARD, A .......-......................

BLACx, F. B.............................

BLONDIN, P. E., P.C- (Speaker)............

BouRQuE, T. J...........................

BUCHANAN, W. A ........................

BUREAU, J., P.C..................... -....

BURNS, PAT!RICK .............................

CALDER, J. A., P.C.......................

CASURAIN, J. P. B .......................

CHAPAis, T .................. -..........

Copp, A. B., P.C ............. -........ ...

DANDURAND, H., P.C.....................

DANIEL, J. W............................

DENNis, W.H ........-...................

DoNNELty, J. J...-.......................

FISHER, J. H............................

FOR"E, R., P.C..........................

FosaRn, W. E., P.C ......................

Gu.s. A. B.............................

North York ..........

Aima. ...............

Victoria ...... ...... ..

Montarville...........

De Salaberry .........

Lauzon...............

Ottaws,...............

St. Boniface...........

We3tm orland..........

The Laurentides ...

Richibucto ...........

Lethbridge............

La Salle..............»

Calgary..............

Saltcoats ..... ......

De Lanaudjêre ........

Grandvjille............

Westmorland..........

De Lorimier ..........

Saint John............

Halifax ...............

South Bruce...........

Brant ................

Brandon..............

Saint John............

Saskatchewan .........

Toronto, Ont.

Montreal, P. Q.

Victoria, B.C.

Montreal, Que.

Montreal, Que.

St. Joseph de Beauce, Que.

Ottawa, Ont.

Winnipeg, Man.

Sackville, N.B.

Montreant Que.

Richibucto, N.B.

Lethbridge, Alta.

Three Hivers, Que.

Calgary, Alta.

Regina, Sask.

Montreal, Que.

Quebec, Que.

Sackville, N.B.

Montreal, Que.

Saint John, N:B

Haliax, N.S.

Pinkerton. Ont.

Paris, Ont.

Pipestone, Man.

Saint John, N.B.

Whitewood, Sask.



ALPHABETICAL LIST ,5

SENATORS

The Honourable

CORtDON, G ...............................

GRAHAM, RT. HON. GEo. P., P.0C...........

GREEN, R. F..............................

GRiEsBAcH, W. A., C.B3., C.M.G............

HARDT, A. C., P.C ........................

HARMERt, W. J.............................

HATPXELD, P. L............................

HAYDoN, A ...............................

HoaSISy, H. H.............................

HUGHES, J. J..............................

KING, J. H., P.C..........................

LACAssE, G ...............................

LAIRD, H. W ..............................

LEGRIS, J. H..............................

LE3aEux, R., P.C.........................

L'EsptitAxCE, D. O .......................

LEwis, J......................................

LiTTrz, E. S.............................

LOGAN, H. .............................

LYNCE-STAuNToN, G.......................

M ACARTTu F, C............................

MACDONALD, J. A..........................

NIACDONELL, A. H., C.M.G .................

M&ARc«rrm, A..............................

MARTIN, P ................................

MCCORMIfCX, J.............................

McDONALD, J. A...........................

McGuiiRE, W. H...........................

McLEAN, J ....................................

MCLENNAN, J. S...........................

MCMEcAN8, L.............................

McRAz, A. D., C.B ......................

MEiEN. RT. HoN. APTHUR, P.C ........

MicHENEcR, E..............................

MouLor, J. P..............................

MURD)OCE, J., P.C ................ ........

DEBIGNATION

Nipissing ..............

Eganville..............

Kootenay..............

Edmonton .............

Leeds .................

Edmonton .............

Yarmouth .............

Lanark................

Prince Edward ....

King's ................

Kootenay East ....

Essexz................

Regina ................

Repentigny. ...........

Rougemont ............

Gui! ..................

Toronto ...............

London................

Cumberland...........

Hamilton..............

Prince ................
Richmond-

West Cape Breton ..

Toronto, South......

Ponteix................

Halifax ............ ».....

Sydney Mines..........

Shediac ...............

East York.............

Souris.................

Sydney ...............

Winnipeg .............

Vancouver ..............

St. Mary's.............

Red Deer .............

Provencher ............

Parkdale ..............

-- l
POST OFFXCI ADDHMS

North Bay, Ont.

Brookyjille, Ont.

Victoria, 13.0.

Edmonton, Alta.

Brockviile, Ont.

Edmonton, Alta.

Yarmouth, N.8.

Ottawa. Ont.

Cressy, Ont.

Souris, P.E.I.

Victoria, 13.0.

Tecumseh, ont.

Regina, Sask.

Louiseville, Que.

Ottawa, Ont.

Quebec, Que.

Toronto, Ont.

London, Ont.

Parrsboro, N.S.

Hamilton, Ont.

Suxnmerside, P.E.I.

St. Peters, Cape Breton, N.S.

Toronto, Ont.

Ponteix, Sask.

Halifax, N.S.

Sydney Mines, N.S.

Shediac. Ni.

Toronto, Ont.

Souris, P.E.I.

Sydney, N.S.

Winnipeg, Man.

Vancouver, B.C.

Toronto, Ont.

Red Deer, Alta.

Morris, Man.

Ottawa, Ont.



6 SENATORS 0F CANADA

SENATORIS DESIGNATION POST OFTCE ADDRSS

The Honourable

MURPHY, ç., p.*......................... Russelli.............

PARADIS, P. J ............................ Shawinigan ...........

PàaENT, G .............................. Rennebec.............

PjIrNT, A. E ............................ .Nanaimo.............

POIrIER, P .............................. Acadie ...............

PoPu, R. H............................. Bedford..............

PnEvoeT, J. E............................ Mille Isies ............

RàNxIN, J. P............................. Perth, N......... »....

RÂYmoND, D................ ............. De la Vallière .........

R=.s, D. E ............................. High River...........

RoBicRTsON, G. D., P.C................... Welland ..............

RosiNsoN, C. W.......................... Moncton.......... ... .

Ross, J. H............................... Moose Jaw............

ScHA.TNzn, F. L .......................... Boissevain............

BHA&RPE, W. H............................ Manitou ...............

SINCLAIR, J. E., P.C........... ........... Queen's...............

BRifa, E. D ......... ................... Wentworth............

SPENCE, J. Hl............. ................ North Bruce ..........

STA&NFILU, J.................... ......... Colchester............

TAmN, C. E............................ Pictou ...............

TAYLOR, J. D............................. New Westminster...

TEssuiE, JULES ........................... De la Durantaye ....

TOBIN, E. W ............................. Victoria .............

ToDD), I. R .............................. Charlotte ............

TURGEON, 0 ........................... Gloucester...........

WE&BmTR, L. C .......................... Stadacona ...........

WInTs. R. S ............................. Inkerman............

Wmrr , G. V ............................. Pembroke ...........

Wi=LuGnBy, W. B ....................... Moose Jaw ...........

WILSON, C. R ......... .................. Rockcliffei ..........

Ottawa, Ont.

Quebec, Que.

Quebec, P.Q.

Nanaimo, B.C.

Shediac, N.B.

Cookshire, Que.

St. Jerome, Que.

Stratford, Ont.

Montreal, Que.

High River, Alta.

Welland, Ont.

Moncton, N.B.

Moose Jaw, Sask.

Boissevain, Man.

Manitou, Man.

Emerald, P.E.I.

Winona, Ont.

Toronto, Ont.

Truro, N.S.

Pictou. N.S.

New Westminster, B.C.

Quebec, Que.

Bromptonville, Que.

Milltown, N.B.

Bathurst, N.B.

Montreal, Que.

Montreal, Que.

Penmbroke, Ont.

Moose Jaw, Sask.

Ottawa, Ont.

........................ Sorel ................. Montreal, Que.

WILSON. L. A........................ Rigaud.............J Coteau du Lac, P.Q.

WILSON, J. M...

Rigaud .................. 1 Coteau du Lac, P.Q.WILSON, L. A .................................



SENATORS 0F CANADA
BY PROVINCES

AMY 1932

ALBERTA-6

SENATORS PMe OFFCE ADDBESS

The Honourable

1 EDWARD Mîo ER............................................. Red Deer.
2 WILLIAm JAMES HARm»R ................................................. Edmonton.

3 WILLAM A. GRIESBACH, C.B., O.M.G.............................. Edmonton.

4 WILLAm AsHBuR-Y BUCRuANAN ........................................... Lethbridge.

5 DAmzxL E. RILET ....................... ................................. High River.

6 PATRicK BuRNs ........................................................ Caary.

BRITISH COLUMBIA-6

The Honourable

1 ALBEcRT E. PLANTA ....................................................... Nanamo.

2 GEORoE HENimRY BARNARD ............................................... Victoria.

3 JAMES DAvis TAYLOR............................................ New Westminster.

4 RoSxRT F. GRExN ..................................................... itra

5 JAMES H. KING, P.C............................................ Victoria.

ô ALExANiDxn D. MCRAE, C.B .................................... Vancouver.

MANITOBA-6

The Honourable

1 WILLIAM H. SHARPE ..................................................... Manitou.

2 LENDRium MCMEAxs ..................................................... Winnipeg.

3 Ai" BiNARtD ........................................................... Winnipeg.

i FREcDERicx L. ScRAYF7NER ............................................... Winnipeg.

ô JORIN PATRIOR MOLLOT ................................................... Morris.

6 ROBzERT FORxE, P.C ............................................ Pipestone.



8 SENATORS 0F CANADA

NEW BRUNSWICK-10

BIBNATORS

The Honourable

iPASCAL PoîRMII......................................................

2 JOHN W. DANIEL ........................................ ............

3 THOxAs JEA&N BOlURQUEC...............................................

4 IRVING R. ToDD).....................................................

5 JonNq Ax=oNy McDONAIM .........................................

ô FRANx B. BLACK .....................................................

7 ONtauuoiw TURGEON ................................................

8 CimTou W. RoBiNsoN ...............................................

9 ARTRiuR Bwas Copp, P-.. ....................................

10 WAiTER E. FoSTzR, P.C ........-.............. .... ...........

POST OFFIC ADDRES

Shediac.

Saint John.

'Rîchibucto.

Milltown.

Shediac.

Sackvlle.

Bathurst.

Moncton.

Sackvi!ie.

Saint John.

NOVA SCOTIA-10

The Honourable

1 JOHN S. MCLENNAN ..................................................

2 CaABLEs E. TANNERt.................................................

3 JOHN STANTIELD ......................................................

4 JOHN MCORMzCK....................................................

8 PETER MAIRTIN .......................................................-

6 PAUL L. HATFXELD ....................................................

7 HANcE J. LoGANq.....................................................

8 Wxax.IA H. DENMIS................................................

9 JoHN A. MA&CDoNALD ................................................

10

Sydney.

Pictou.

Truro.

Sydney Mines.

Haiflax.

Yarmouth.

Panrsboro.

Halifax.

St. Peters, Cape Breton.



SENATORS8 OF CANADA 9

ONTARIO-24

SENATORSPOST OFFCE ADDRESS

The Honourable

1 NAPOLiON A. BELCOURT, P.C .................................... Ottawa.
2 GEORiGE GoRaDoN.................................................. North Bay.
3 ERNEaT D. SumIT................................................. Wlnona.

4 JAMES J. DoNNELLTY....................................................Pinkertn.

5 GEORGE LYNCE-STAUNToN ........................................ Hamilton.

6 GIDEON D. RoBsRTsoN, P. .................................... Welland.
7 JouN~ HENRY FISHon.R............................................ Paris.

8 GERALD VERNER WHM .............................. ............. Pombroke.
9 ARCHISAI. H. MAcDoNEIa, C.M.G............................... Toronto.

10 ARTRUR C. HARDY, P.C........................................ Brockville.
il SîlR ALLEN BRtISTOL AYLcESwoRTH, P.C., K.C.M.G ................. Toronto.

12 ANDREw HAYDoN................................................. Ottawa.
13 CHARLES MUiRPHY, P.C......................................... Ottawa.
14 JoHN Lswis ...................................................... Toronto.

15 JAMES PALmER RAxiN ............................................ Stratford.

16 RT. HoN. GEcORGE; P. GRAMAm, P.C.............................. Brokville.

17 WiLLIAM H. MCGuinz.E............................................ Toronto.

18 JAMES H. SPENcE ............................................... . .Toronto.

19 EDaAR S. Lrriz ................................................ ... London.

20 GusTAvE LACAssE ................................................ Tecumiseh.

21 HENRmy H. HoRSET ............................................... Cressy.

22 CADUNz R. WILSON .............................................. Ottawa.

23 JAMES MuRDocK, P.CO.......................................... Ottawa.
24 RT. HOx. ARTEUR MEIGREN, P.C............................... Toronto.

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND-4

The Honourable

1 JOHN MCLEAN .................................................... Souris.

2 JAMES JOSEPH HUGHES............................................. Souris.

3 CREELmAN MACAaTRuRa........................................... Summerside.

4 JOHN EwEN SINCLAZIR, P.C...................................... Emerald.
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QUEBEC-24

The Honourable

i RAOUL DAxNDuRAND, P.C ..............

2 JoSEPH P. B. CASGRAIN ....................

3 FRÉDÉRIC L. B*IQuz, P.C ..............

4 Jousar H. LEGRIS, P.C.............. ...

5 Jums TEsinia.............................

6 JOSEPH M. WILSON .........................

7 RUFUS H. PoPz ......................

8 ÇunAnus PHILIPPE BEAuBiEN ..............

G DAvID OviDE L'EsfiRAxcEa................

10 RICHIARD SMEAION WRITE..................

1l PIR EDOUARD BLONDIN, P.C- (Speaker)

12 THOMAS CRAPAIS ..........................

13 LORNE C. WESSTER .................-......

14 HENRI SPviRIN BiLàND, P.C...........

15 JAcQUEs BUREAU, P.C .................

16 DON-AT RAYMOND ..........................

17 PRILIPPE J. PARADIS .......................

18 RODOLPHE Lszmsux, P.C...............

19 ED)muND W. TOBNîw........................

20 GEORGE PARENT ...........................

21 JuLcES-EDouARD PREVOaT ..................

22 LAwRENCE A. WILSON.....................

23 CHARLES C. BALLANTYNE, P.C .........

ELECTORAL DIVISION PosT OFFCE ADDRE8

De Lorimier........... MontreaL.

De Lanaudière .......... Montreal.

De Salaberry ....... ... Montreal.

.................... ...-........... Louiseville.

De la Durantaye ........ Quebec.

Sorel. ................ Montreal.

Bedford ............... Cookohire.

Montarville............ Montreal.

Gulf................. -Quebe-.

Inkerman.............. Montreal.

The Laurentidesa........ Montreadi.

Grandville............. Quebec.

Stadacona............. Montreal.

Lauzon................ St. Joseph de Beauce.

La Salle............... Three Rivera.

De la Vallière ....... Montreal.

Shawinigan............ Quebee.

Rougemont......... ... Ottawa, ont.

Victoria............... Bromptonville.

Kennebec.............. Quebec.

Mille Iles............. St. Jerome.

Rigaud........ -....... Coteau du Lac.

Alma................. Montreal, P. Q.

SASKATCHEWAN-6

The Honourable

1 JAMES H. ROSa ................................................. Moose Jaw.

2 HERY W. LAIRD ....................................................... Regia.

3 WELLINGTON B. WILýLOUGHBRY............................ ................ Moose JaW.

4 J»Ams A. CALDER, P.C .......................................... Reia.

5 ÂRcHIBALD B. Giu.............................................. Whitewood.

ô ARTHUR MARCOTTE ...................... ................................ Ponteix.

S



STANDING COMM ITTEES
0F

THE SENATE

3rd SESSION, l7th PARLIAMENT, 22 GEORGE V.

1932
JOINT COMMITTEE ON THE LIBRARY

The Honourable the Speaker, Chairman.

SENATE HOUSE 0F COMMONS

The Honourable the SPEAK:ER. The Honourable Mr. SPEAKER
The Hon. Senators AYLEswoRTH, SIR ALLEN Messieurs BARBER

BEAUBIEN %SRTRAND
CHAPAIS BOURASSA.
Gn.uIS BoyEs
GoRDON BUTCHER
GRIESBACH CARMICHAEL,
HATFIELD CHARTERS
LAIRD CHEVRIER
LEmiEux CO'rNAu
LEWIS DuBois
LOGAN FACTOR
McDoUOALD FERLAND
MCLENNAN FONTrAINEs
POIRIER FORTIN
TA-YLOR FRASER (Cariboo)
WILSON (Rockcliffe,'-17 GAGNON

GIRouARD

HEPBUIRN
IRVINE
JONES
LAPLici[
LAnUE
LAVERGNE
MARCIL
McGILLIs
MCGREGOR
MCINTOSH
MACMILLAN (,Saskatoon)
PECK
PERLEy (Sir GEORGE)

RHiAUME

SHORT
SHOxKE
STIRING
THAUVEI
THOHPws (Sîmcoe East)
THPSON (Lanark)
Wm'rz: (Lond on)
WRIGH-44
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,JOINT COMMITTEE ON PRINTING

The Honourable R. SMMT~vON WHITE, SENATOR
joint Chaîrman

SETNATE

The Hon. Senators AYLESWORTH, SmR ALLEN
BUCnANAN
CHAPAIS
DzNNis
DoNNELLY

HATFTELD,
HORBET
LzGRis
LEwis
MCDONALD (.Shediac)
MCLzý&N
McLExNAN
PPE
PREVOST
RAYMOND
ROBERTSON
TAYLOR
TOnD
WHITE (Inkerman)
WHITE (Pembroke)-21.

W. CHESTER S. McLURE, M.P.
Joint Chairman

HOUSE 0F COMMONS

Messieurs ANDE1RsoN (Halton)
BARIIIEAU
BELEC
BOULANGER
BOURGEOIS
BRASSET
CHARTERS
DE:sROCHER$

EMBSURY
ESLING
FACTOR
FORIN
GIROUARD
Golr

RAY

HEAFS
HowDEN

MAcLEAN
MCKENziE (A8siniboia)
MCLURE
MALONEY
MAItCIL
MAITEWS
MooRE (Chateauguai,-Huntingdon)
MUNN
MURPHY
PARENT
PECK
PERRAS
PICEIEL
PORTEOUS
PRICE
QUINN
RHEAUME
RiNirnET
ROBERGE
RoBiNSON
RowE,
RYKUSON
ST. PÈRE
SHORT
SimpsoN (Simcoe North)
SPANKIE
SPENCER
SPOPION
TAYLOR
TETRAULT
VERVILLEC
WILSON
WOODS-WORTH
WRiGHT-54

(Quorum 9)
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JOINT COMMITTEE ON THE RESTAURANT
The Honourable THE SPEAKER, Chairman.

SENATE 1 BOUSE 0F COMMONS
The Honourable the SPEAKER
The Hon. Senators HARDY.

LoGAN
MCMEANS
MICHENERt
TANNER
TAYLoR-7.

The Honourable Mr. SPEAKER.
Messieurs AHEAUN

BARRETTE
BLAcx (Halifax)
BOURASSA
CARMICHAEL
CAYLEY
GARLAND (Carlet0n)
HANBURY
HOWARD
HOWDEN
LAPLECHE
MACPHAIL (Miss)
RYERS0N
SENN;
SPANKIE
SPENCE
SPRtOULE
THrAIJvE=
WILSON-20

AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY

The Honourable J. J. DONNELLY, ChRirman

The Honourable Senators

RAYMOND
Rn=y
SINCLAIR
Sierrni-9.

BLACK
BuNs
DONNELLY
FortxE
LITTLE

(Quorum 3)

AYLESWOnTH, SiR ALLEN
BALLATMNE
BEAuBiEN

BELCOURT
BLACK
CASORAIN
DANi> uRAx»
DANIEL
FISHER
FOSTER
GORDON
GRAHAM
GRiEsAcH
HAYDON
HORBEY
HUGHIES

LAIRD

L'EsPRANcE

BANKING AND COMMERCE

The Honourable F. B. BLACK, Chairman.

The Honourabje Senators

MOGUIRE
MULEN;NAX
M CMEANS
MCRAE
MEIGHEN
MURPHY
PLANTA
Ross
SCHAFTNER
SRARPE
SINCLAIR
SMITH
STANELD
TANNER
TAYLOR
TESSIER
TODD
WEBSTER
WHITE (Inkerman)
W11LOUGHBY
WILSON (.Sorel)--42.

(Quorum 9)
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CIVIL SERVICE ADMINISTRATION

The Honourable D. 0. L'EBPÉBANcE, Chafrman.

The Honourable Senators

BELcouR, MCRAz
BÉNÀAD PREYOST

DoNNELLY RA14KI14

GRIESEACE onaor9
L'EstRAiicE

(Qoum 3)

COMMERCE AND TRADE RELATIONS 0F CANADA

The Honourable J. S. MCLENNAN, CIhairman

The Honourable Senators

Lewis RJLET
MccoRmicK SCRÂFFNER
McLx&N STANMILD
McLmNNAN WxLsos<(oe)9
PARADIS

(Qoum3)

DEBATES AND REPORTING

The Honourable TnomAs ÇEAP»Ais, Chairman.

The Honourable Senators

BÉLAND L'EspiRANcE

CRAPAIS McLzAii

GILuIS POIRIER

HARDY WmTz (Inkerman)-9.
LACASSE

(Qoum3

con
FisHERm
HORBEY
LoGAN
McLEAN

DIVORCE

The HONOURABLE L. McMEANs, K.C., Chairman.

The Honourabie Senators

MCMBANS
RANKIN
RoBiNsoN
SCHAFPER-9.

(QoUM3)
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FINANCE

The Honourable R. SmzAToN WHITE, Chairnian.

The Honourable Senators

MIÇMENER

Popic
Ross

TURGEON
WHITE (Inkerman)
WILSON (Sorei)-17.

(Quorum 7)

IMMIGRATION AND LABOUR
The Honourable L. McMEANs, K.C., Chairman.

The Honourable Senators

McDONALD
MCMEANS
MURDOCK
ROBERTSON-9.

(Qoum 3)

INTERNAL ECONOMY AND CONTINGENT ACCOUNTS
THE Honourable J. W. DANIEL, M.D., Chairman

The Honourable Senators

BLONDIN (Speaker) MARCOT
('HAFAIS MeR~ADJANIEL 

MICHENER
FISHERMURDOCK

FOSTER 
PARADISCORDON 
PARENTHORBEY PoPEKING 
ROBERTSON

LACAssE 
SHARtPELEmiEux 
STANPILD

L'EsPÉRA&NcE 
TESSIER

Lrra WILLUGHBuY-25.
LOGAN

(Quorum 7)

BhîQUE
FosTER
Hardy
LAcAssE
L',ESPÉRANÇE
MACARtTRuR
MARIN
McLEAx
MEIGHEN

CALDER
DONNELLY
FORRE
HUGHES
MACDONELL
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BARNARD
BLIQuE
13ELCOURT
BiNARD
BLACK
BUREAU
CALDER
GRIESDACH
HARMER
LEGRIS
LITTLE
LoGAN
LYNCH-STAUATON

BLACR:
HARMER
HAYDON
McLENxAN
ROBERTSON

BÉLAxiD
BouRQuE
DANIEL
KING
LAcAssE

MISCELLANEOUS PRIVATE BILLS

The Honourable F. L. BfîQur, P.C., K.C., Chairman.

The Honourabie Senators

MCCORMICK
McGUnRE
MCL'EAN
MCMEANS
PARENT
PLANTA
RAYMOND
SPENCE
TANNER
TOBIN
ToDD
WILSON (Sorei)-25.

(Quorum 7)

PUBLIC BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS

The Honourable CAmixUE R. WILSON, Chairman

The Honourable Senators

SINCLAIR
Sm=I,
WmTrE (Pembrokce)
WILSON (Rockclffe)--9.

(Quorum 3)

PUBLIC HEALTH AND INSPECTION 0F FOODS

The Honourable H. S. BÉLAND, M.D., Chairman

The Honourable Senators

MOLLOY
RILEY
SOHAPYFNER
WILSON (Rockcliffe)-9.

Qum 3)
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RAILWAYS, TELEGRAPHS AND HARBOURS

The Rt. Honourable Gzo. P. GRIAHAM, P.C., Chairman

The Honourable Senators

BALLANTYNE LEGRIS
B3ARNARD L'EspiRAscE
BEAUBIEN Lrwis
BtÉIQUEC Lyi;CR-STAuNTOs
BÉLAND MACARTRR
BELCOURT MARcorITz
BOURQUIE MeDONALD (Shediac)
B3UCHANAN McDOUGALD
BUREAU McLENNAN
CALDECR MEIGREN
CASGRAIN MICHEN"ER
Copp MOLLOY
DANDURAND MURDOCK
DANIEL MURPHY
DENNis POPE
DoNNELLY RANxiN
FonKE 'RBERSON
ChILLIS ROBNîxSON
GoRDoN Ros
GRAHAM SHARPE
GREEN SPENCEC
GRIESBACM STANFIELD
HARDY TuRGEoN
HATFIELD WEBSTER
LAIRD WILLOUGIIBY.50.

(Quorum 91

STANDING ORDERS

The Honourable JUtES TESNER, Chairman.

The Honourable Senators

BUCHANAN MARTIN
BUREAU PR.EvoeT
HARDY SCHAFFNER
MACDONALD (Si. PeterS) TEs=IR-9.
MACDONELL

Qurm 35)

41765--22



18 SENATORS ON STANDING COMMITTEES

3rd SESSION, 17TH PARLIAMENT, 22 GEORGE V, 1932

LIST SHOWING DISTRIBUTION 0F SENATORS

ON

TUE STANDING COMMITTEES

AYLESWORTH, flonourable Sir AlIen.-Banking, Printing, Library.
BALLANTYNE, Honourable C. C.-Banking, Railways.
BA~RNARD, Honourable G. H.-Railways, Private Bis.
BEAUBIEN, Honourable C. P.-Banking, Railways, Library.
BLIQuE, Honourable F. L.-Railways, Private Bis, Banking, Finance.
BiLAND, Honourable H. S.-Railways, Debates. Publie Health.
BELCOURT, Honourable N . A.-Private Bills, Civil Service, Banking, Railways.
BÉNARD, Honourable A.-Civil Service, Private Bis.
BLACK, Honourable F. B.-Private Bis, Agriculture, Banking, Public Buildings.
BLONDIN, Honourable P. E., Speaker.-Internal Economy, Library, Restaurant.
BouRqUE, Honourable T. J.-Railways, Publie Health.
BUCHANAN, Honourable W. A.-Standing Orders, Railways, Priuting.
BUREAU, Honourable J.-Private Bills, Railways, Standing Orders.
BuRNs, Honourable P.-Agriculture.
CALDER, Honourable J. A.-Railways, Private Bils, Immigration.
CASGRAIN, Honourable J. P. B.-Railways, Banking.
CHAPAIS, Honourable Thomas.-Library, Internai Economy, Printing, Debates.
Copp, Honourable A. B.-Divorce, Raîlways.
DANDURAND, Honourable R.-Bankng, Railways.
DÀANEL, Honourable J. W.-Banking, Internal Economy, Public Health, Railways.
DsrNIs, Honourable W. H.-Printing, Railways.
DONNELLY, Honourable J. J.-RaiIways, Civil Service, Printing, Agriculture, Immigration.
FIHER, Honourable J. H.-Bankng, Internal Economy, Divorce.
FoRKE, Honourable Robert.-Railways, Agriculture, Immigration.
FoSTER, Honourable W. E.-Internal Economy, Finance, Banking.
GiLLis, Honourable A. B.-Library. Debates, Railways.
ýiRrRî, Honourable E. L.
GORDON, Ronourable G.-Library, Railways, Internal Economny, Banking.
'GRAHAm, Rt. Honourable George P.-Railways, Banking.
GREEN, Honourable R. F.-Printing, Railways.
-GalEsBAcii, Honourable W. A.-Library, Private Bills, Civil Service, Railways, Banking.
'HARDY, Honourable A. C.-Finance, Debates, Restaurant, Railways, Standing Orders.
BARMER, Honourable W. J.-Private Bills, Public Buildings.
HATFIELD, Ronourable P. L.-Library, Printing, Railways.
HAvnON, Honourable A.-Publie Buildings, Banking.
ihoRsET, Honourable R. R.-Printing, InternaI Economy, Divorce, Banking.
HuGHEs, Honourable J. J..-Banking, Immigration.
KING, Honourable J. H.-IiLernal Economy, Publie Healtb, Banking.
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LACASSE, Honourable G.-Debates, Publie Hlealth, Internai Economy, Finance.
LAIRD, Honourable H. W.-Library, Railways, Banking.
LEGRIS, Honourable J. H.-Printing, Private Bis, Railways.
LEiEinux, Honourable R.-Library, Internai Econorny, Banking.
L'EPÉRANCE, Honourable D. O.-Banking. Debates, Finance, Internai Economy, Railways, Civil

Service.
LEwis, H-onourable J.-Library, Commerce, Railways, Printing.
LITTLE, Honourable E. S.-Private Bills, Agriculture, Internai Economy.
LOGAN, Honourable H. J.-Library, Private Bis, Divorce, Internai Economy, Restaurant.
LYNCH-STAUR'rON, Honourable G.-Railways, Private Buis.
MACA1ITIUR, Honourable 0.-Finance, Railways.
MAcDONALD, Honourable J. A.-Standing Orders.
MACDONELL, Honourable A. H.-Standing Orders, Immigration.
MARCOTTE, Ilonourable A.-Ralways, Internai Economy.
MARTIN, Honourable P.-Standing Orders, Finance.
MCoRmiC, Honourabie J.-Private Bills, Commere.
McDONALD, Honourable J. A.-Printing, Immigration, Railways.
MCDouOAI.D, Honourable W. L.-Library, Railways.
McGuiiiE, Honourable W. H.-Private Bills, Banking.
McLEAN, Hunourable J.-Printing, Finance, Commerce. Private Bills, Divorce, Debates.
McLENNAN, Honourable J. S.-Library, Banking, Public Buildings, Printing, Railways, Commerce.
MCMEANS, Honourable L.-Banking, Immigration, Divorce, Private Bis, Restaurant.
MCRAE, Honourable. A. D.-Banking, Internai Economy, Civil Service.
Mm.GHEN, Rt. Hlonourable A.- Banking, Railways, Finance.
MiciHENER, Honourable E.-Railways, Internai Economy, Finance, Restaurant.
MOLLOv, Hlonourable J. P.-Railways, Public Health.
M uRnocK, Ilonourable J.-Internal Economy, Immigration, Railways.
hIuRi'y, Honourable C.-Railways, ]3anking.
PARADIS, Honourable P. J.-InternaI Economy, Commerce.
PARENT, Honourable G.-Private Bills, Finance, Internai Economy.
PLANTA, Honourable A. E.-Banking, Private Bis.
POIRIER, Honourable P.-Library, Debates.
POPE, Honourable R. H.-Railways, Printing, Internai Economy, Finance.
PaRVOST, Honourable J. E.-Standing Orders, Civil Service, Printing.
RANKIN, Honourable J. P.-Civil Service. Divorce, Railways.
RAYMOND, Honourable, D.-Printing, Agriculture, Private Bills.
RiLET. Honourable D. E.-Public Health, Commerce, Agriculture.
ROBERTSON, Honourable G. D.-Printing, Railways, Immigration, Internai Economy, Public Buildings.
ROBINSON, Honourable C. W.-Civil Service, Railways, Divorce.
Ross, Honourable J. H.-Banking, Raiiways, Finance.
ScMiAFFNER, Honourable F. L.-Banking, Commerce, Divorce, Public Health, Standing Orders.
SHARPE, Honourable W. H.-Railways, Internai Economy, Banking.
SINCLAIR, Honourable J. E.-Agriculture, Public Buildings, Banking.
SMITH, Honourabie E. D.-Banking, Agriculture, Finance, Public Buildings.
SPENcE, Honourable J. H.-Private Buis, Railways.
STANFIELD, Honourabie J.-Commerce, Internai Economy, Railways, Banking.
TANN-ER. Honourable C. E.-Banking. Privatc Bills, Ietauant.
TAYLOR, Honourable J. D.-Library, Banking, Printing, Restaurant.
TESSIER, Honourable J.-Standing Orders, B3anking, Internai Economy.
ToBiN, Honourable E. W.-Private Bills.
TOnD, Honourable I. R.-Printing, Private Bills, Banking.
TURGEON, Honourable O.-Railways, Finance.
WEBSTER, Honourable L. C.-Railways, Bankîng.
WnITE, Honourable G. V.-Prining, Public Buildings.
WRiTE, Honourable R. S.-Printing, Finance, Banking, Debates.
WnILOUGHBY, Honourable W. ]3.-Banking, Railways, Internai Economy.
WILSON, Honourable C. R.-Library, Public Health, Public Buildings.
WILSON, Honourable J. M.-Private Bills, Commerce, Finance, Banking.
WILSON, Honourable L. A.-
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THE FOURTH AND FINAL REPORT 0F THE
COMMITTEE

FRIDAY, 22nd April, 1932.

The Special Commitice of the Senate appointed for the purpose of taking
into consideration the Report of the Special Committee of the House of Com-
mons of the last Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Projeet,
in so f ar as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate,
beg leave to present the following as a fourth Report:-

The followinq are ext racts from the Minutes of the Proceedings af the
Senate of Canada, Thursday, llth February, 1932:

ORDER 0F APPOINTMENT

Ordered, That a Special Committee of fine Senators to be hereafter
named, be appointed for the purpose of taking into consideration the
report of a Special Committee of the Huse of Commons of the last
Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Proj ect, in so far
as said report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate, said
Special, Committee to hear such further evidence on oath bearing on the
subjeet matter of such report in relation to any such Honourable Memibers
of the Senate as it may deem desirable and in accordance with constitu-
tional practice, and that the said Committee be authorized to send for
persons, papers and records.

HOUSE 0F COMMONS REPORT REFERRED

Ordered, That the Fourth Report of the Special Committee of the
bouse of Commons appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power Pro-
jeet, laid on the Table of the Senate on the lst August, 1931, be referred
to the Special Committee of the Senate appointed for the purpose of tak-
ing into consideration the said report in so far as it relates to any Honour-
able Members of the Senate.

Extracts from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the SenLte ai Canada,
Friday, l2th February, 1932.

PERSONNEL 0F COMMITTEE

Ordered, That the following Senators, namely: The Honourable
Senators Béique, Chapais, Copp, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, McMeans,
Robinson and Tanner constîtute the Special Committee appointed for the
purpose of taking into coniiàderationi the Report of the Special Committee
of the bouse of Commons of the last Session thereof to investigate the
Beauharnois Power Project ia so far as the said Report relates to any
Honourable Members of the Senate, and that the said Committee be
authorized to sit during- sittings and adjournments of the Senate.

111
4826-li



iv SPECJAL COMMITTEE

PRODUCTION 0F EVIDENCE

Ordered, That a Message be sent to the bouse of Commons requesting
that House to grant leave to their Clerk to appear and produce before a
Special Committee of the Senate a copy of the evidence adduced during
the last Session before the Special Committee of the House of Commons
appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedinqs of the Special Committee of
the Senate of Canada, Friday, lY2th February, 1932.

ELECTION 0F CHAIRMAN

On motion of the Honourable Senator Donnelly, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Chapais, the Honourable Senator Tanner was elected
Chairman, and took the Chair.

The first session of the Committee was on Tuesday, l6th February, 1932.
The last sitting was on Wednesday, 6th April, 1932. The following witnesses
were examined by the Committee, the names being in aiphabetical order and the
pages where their evidence may be, found being set out after their respective.
.names:

Argue, Dr. J. F ...................................... 145-146, 233-234

Baniks. H. M ............................................... 222-224

iBarnard, C. A.. K.C ...................... -.................. 202-212

Beauchestie, Arthur, K.C.................................. ..... 6-7

Brennan, Miss Lyla ........................................ 261-263

Christie, L. .................................... ........... 37

Collins, M. C ........................ ...................... 260-261

Ebbs, John P .......................... 68-72, 113-114, 115-116, 263-266

Ferguson, Hon. G. H........................................ 25&-259

Geoffrion, A., K.C ........................................... 23--29

Griffith, H. B ....................................... 58-59, 73--83, 118

Haydon, Hon. A......................................188-199, 237-245

Henry, R. A. C.............................................. 84-107

McDougald, Hon, W. L............................... 138-144, 148-185

Moyer, L. Clare ...................................... 59--68, 259-260

Raymond, Hon. D. ...-........................... 33--35, 128-138, 147

Sifton, Clifford............................................. 224-231

SWee7ey, R. 0O ............................. 37-58, 83, 117-118, 217-221

Thompson, Col. A. T ........................................ 107-113

The Committee heard ail the statements that said Senators Haydon,
McDougald and Raymond desired to make in relation to the matters of this
inquiry, and as well had before it the statements and arguments of counsel on
behaif of said Senators respectively.



BEAUHAJINOIS POWER PROJECT

An effort was also made by the Chairman of the Committee to caîl before
it Mr. Frank P. Jones, who was then in Europe. Mr. Jones did not attend. The
cables exchanged between him and Senator Tanner follow:-

March 4, 1932.
FRANK P. JONES,

Canadian Bank of Commerce,
London.

Senate Committee holding inquiry Stop Very anxious you be here
before twentieth March Stop Please wire earliest possible date

CHARLES E. TANNER,
Chairman Committee.

LONDON, March 7, 1932.
CHARLES TANNER,

Chairman Committee Senate,
Ottawa.

Planned arrive home about middle April impossible complete business.
here before early April.

JONES.

OTTA.WA, March 18, 1932.
F. P. JONES,

Canadian Bank of Commerce,
London.

Referring Senate inquiry Beauharnois and your wire seventh instant
considered very important you give evidence Stop Committee resuming
hearings about twenty ninth March Stop High Commissioner Ferguson
has asked for hearing by Committee and will be heard Stop H1e leaves
London at early date Stop Important you also corne Stop Please wire
possibîlity of date.

CHARLES E. TANNER,

LONDON, March 26, 1932.
CHARLES E. TANNER,

Ottawa, Ont.

Your cable eighteenth received to-day on my return from Belgium
regret have arranged start glass plant here which makes it impossible
leave here before middle April.

JONES.

In addition to Exhibits which were presented the Commons Committee, 25
Exhibits were presented and marked before this Committee, bearing numbers,
from 130 to 154, inclusive.
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At a meeting of the Committee held on Wednesday, the second of March,
1932, the following Resalution was passed:-

That the evidence taken and the exhibits produced before the Speciai
Committee of the House of Commons appointed ta investigate the Beau-
harnais Power Projeet and now before this Committee, be received and
accepted by this Cammittee ta avail as evidence before it, ta the same
extent and with the samne effeet as if the witnesses had been examined and
the Exhibits produced upan the present inquiry, subjeet, however, ta
cross-examînation which may be made by the parties interested; that the
Blue Book entitled "Special Committee on Beauharnois Power Project,"
Session 1931, printed by the King's Printer, being Appendix INa. 5 ta the
Journals of the House of Commons, 1931, be used, referred ta and deait
with by this Committee and by counsel as containing a true transcript of
ail things therein reported and printed; and further that the Exhibits be
given the samne numbers as those given ta them before the said House of
Commons Committee.

That in addition ta the evidence taken and Exhibits marked before
the Committee, ail the evidence taken and Exhihits marked hefore the
Commons Committee constitute part of the evidence under consideration
at this inquiry. The Exhibits number from 1 ta 154.

Speciai attention is directed ta the Order of Appointment of this Committee,
which order directed the Committee ta take into consideration the Report of the
Speciai Committcc of the Huse of Commons, in sa f ar as the samne relates ta
Honourabie Members of the Senate, and ta hear further evidence. It, therefore,
is deemed desirable that this report shahl, as f ar 'as the evidence may justify,
be based upon and follow in structure and in outline the report unanimously
agreed ta by the Committee of the bouse of Commons, and ta that end this Com-
mittee, as part of its report, begs leave ta extract from and, in its finding of
evidence and conclusions thcreof, ta adopt certain portions of the said Fourth
Report of the Commons Committee dated the 28th July, 1931, as follows, except
in s0 far as definite modifications thereof may be hcreinafter set out. The
extracts will be printed in italics.

bOUSE 0F COMMONS REPORT

TTJESDAY, July 28, 1931

The Special Committee appoînted ta investigate the Beauharnois Projeet
beg leave ta present the folawing as a Fourth Report.

1. On the lOth day of June, 1931, the bouse of Commons adopted the
following Resolution; That Messrs. Dorion, Fiset (Sir Eugène), Gardiner,
Gardon, .Jacobs, Jones, Lennox, Mackenzie (Vancouver Centre), Stewart (Leth-
bridge), be a cammittee ta investigrate fromn its inception the Beauharnoîs praject
for the development of hydro-electric energy by the use of the waters of the
St. Lawrence River so far as the matters referred ta are within the jurisdiction
of the Parliament of Canada, and without restricting the generalitv of the fore-
gaing words in particular ta investigate the matters referred ta in the speech
made in the House of Commons by Mr. Robert Gardiner, the honourable mem-
ber for Acadia, on the lOth day of May last, as reported on pages 1875-1887
of Hansard, and ta report fromn time ta time their observations and opinion
,thereon; with power ta send for papers, persans and records. bonourable W.
A. Gardon was an the l15th of .June, 193 1, appointed Chairman of the Special
Select Committee.
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2. (1) The Committee sat from the 15th day of June, 1931, to the 22nd

day of July, 1931, held on most of these days more than one session and

examined 35 witnesses.

(2) On the lst of July, the members of the Committee visited and inspected

the site of the works.

There were filed with the Committee 129 exhibits.

3. SOULANGES SECTION-ST. LAwRENCE RivER

(1) The Soulanges section of the St. Lawrence River is that portion thereof

lying between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis which are some 14½ miles

apart, and between which there is a fall of 83 feet. The average normal avail-

able flow of the river through this section is in the vicinity of 230,000 cubic

feet per second for 50 per cent of the time, making possible a development of

2,000,000 horse power of commercial electric energy at 85 per cent load factor.

The site is in close proximity to the City and Port of Montreal, and is con-

veniently located on what must soon be a waterway capable of accommodating
ocean-going vessels. It has therefore great possibility for industrial develop-
ment if cheap power is available.

(2) It is apparent that the Soulanges section thus presents an opportunity
for hydro-electrie development almost if not quite unique on the face of the

globe. It is one of the greatest national resources in Canada, and in its natural

state of great potential value.

4. HIsTORY

(1) About the year 1800, Edward Ellice, the Seigneur of Beauharnois,
erected a small "moulin Banal" at the mouth of the St. Louis River and in order

to increase the flow of the river, in 1807 built a small feeder, four miles in length
from Lake St. Francis to the head waters of the River. This constituted the

first diversion in the Soulanges section of the St. Lawrence River for power

purposes. Whatever water rights were incidental to this feeder later passed into

the hands of a family named Robert and apparently formed the basis of the

applications for power rights hereinafter mentioned. Details concerning the
Robert "rights" may be found in a judgment delivered in the Exchequer Court

of Canada in the case of Robert vs. the King (9 Exchequer Court Reports).
Reference may be had also to Exhibit No. 29, a memorandum prepared by Mr.
R. C. Alexander.

(2) In 1855 the Government of the Province of Canada built a dyke, known

as the Hungry Bay Dyke, as a protection against floods. It rebuilt the control

gates of the feeder and in 1883 the Government of Canada deepened and widened

the feeder and installed new gates in the dyke at the feeder entrance, consider-

able sums of money having been appropriated for this purpose.

(3) In 1902, J. B. Robert, as the grantee of the representatives of Edward

Ellice, brought action against the Crown for a declaration of his rights and

judgment was pronounced on the 17th October, 1904, deciding that Robert held

substantial rights in the feeder. A compromise was arrived at by which the

feeder was leased to the heirs of J. B. Robert by the Department of Publie

Works under date of the 28th December, 1909, for a period of 21 years. This

was authorized by Order in Council, P.C. 2168, of the 9th December, 1909.

(4) In 1902 by Quebec Statute 2 Edward VII, Chapter 72 of the 26th

March, 1902, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company was incor-

porated with power to enlarge and extend the feeder. As a consequence of

the finding of the Exchequer Court that J. B. Robert was not the owner of the
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feeder, in 1910 another Provincial Act was passed giving the Company the
right to build a new canal or feeder from any point on the original feeder to
any point on the St. Louis River at or near the town of Beauharnois. This
Company thus became possessed of certain rights in respect of the diversion of
water for power purposes from Lake St. Francis. The shares of the Beau-
harnois Light, Heat and Power Company were all owned by W. H. Robert and
other members of the Robert family. On the 3rd February, 1927, Mr. R. O.
Sweezey obtained from the Roberts an option of all the issued capital stock
of the Company and the Company's rights.

THE ROBERT INTEREsTs

(5) W. H. Robert and the other Robert heirs received for the 2,000 shares
of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company and such other rights,
if any, as were then outstanding in them

(1) Cash $1,520,000.
(2) 200 fully paid part interests in the Beauharnois Power Syndicate.
(3) 21,000 Class A shares of the Beauharnois Power Corporation.
(4) 100 fully paid part interests in the Beauharnois Syndicate trans-

ferred from R. O. Sweezey account, which became 200 part in-
terests in the Beauharnois Power Syndicate.

(6) In addition to the above-mentioned 400 part interests in the Power
Syndicate owned by the Roberts, W. H. Robert held a further three hundred
units in his own name on which he owed $10,000 as at December 17th, 1929.
For the 700 part interests, referred to above, the Robert heirs received, on the
dissolution of the Syndicate, cheques aggregating $95,000, together with 28,000
shares of the Class A Common stock of the Beauharnois Power Corporation
Limited.

(7) In the same year, Mr. Sweezey applied to the Quebec Legislature for
an amendment to the Act incorporating the Company permitting the construc-
tion of a canal between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis. This application
was refused.

(8) On the 17th March, 1927, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power
Company applied to His Excellency the Governor General in Council for
approval of a proposal to build a power canal " which can be readily adapted
for thirty foot navigation requirements also " from a point on Lake St. Francis
near the mouth of the St. Louis feeder to Lake St. Louis and to use so much
of the water of the St. Lawrence River as can be taken through the proposed
canal without interfering with navigation and without interfering with existing
prior rights in the River St. Lawrence." This application was not pressed.

(9) On the 17th January, 1928, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power
Company applied to His Excellency the Governor General in Council " for
approval under the Navigable Waters Protection Act of its plans and site of
proposed works herein described and for the right to divert forty thousand
cubic feet per second (40,000 c.f.s.) from Lake St. Francis."

(10) In March, 1928, by Statue of the Province of Quebec (18 George V,
Chapter 113), a new section, 11A, was added to the original Act of incorpora-
tion giving the Company the right to build a new canal from any point within
two miles in a southwesterly direction from the mouth of the St. Louis feeder
to any point on Lake St. Louis within one and a half miles in a westerly
direction along the shore of Lake St. Louis from the mouth of the St. Louis
River'and giving the Company the right to expropriate lands not exceeding six
arpents in width.
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(11) On the 27ti April, 1928, Mr. Sweezey and his associates obtained
the passing of an Order in Council by the Executive Council of Quebec author-
izing the granting to the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company of
an emphyteutic lease, which lease was subsequently executed on the 23rd June,
1928, and which grants to the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company the
rights of the Province of Quebec to such part of the hydraulic power of the
St. Lawrence River as can be developed between Lake St. Francis and Lake
St. Louis through a derivation (six diversion) Canal on the right (southern)
shore of a maximum flowing capacity of forty thousand cubic feet per second
(40,000 c.f.s.), (the Province reserving the ownership and the free disposition
of the surplus) for a period of 75 years from the 23rd June, 1928, at an annual
rental of $20,000 for the first five years and $50,000 for each of the subsequent
years and an additional payment of $1 for each horse power year revisable
after each period of ten years from the date the plant will have been put in
operation. The Company agrees that at the expiration of the first five years
it will have installed 100,000 h.p.; at the expiration of the sixth year, 200,000
h.p.; at the expiration of the seventh year, 300,000 h.p.; and at the expiration
of the tenth year, 500,000 h.p. The lease is granted without prejudice to
Federal and Provincial laws concerning navigation, mines, fisheries and the
driving of logs and also upon the understanding that the lessee "who is presently
negotiating with the Federal Government shall obtain from the latter in so far
as its rights are concerned, the authorization to divert a flow of forty thousand
cubic feet per second (40,000 c.f.s.)" and in the event of the approval of the
Federal Government not being obtained within twelve months, the lease may
be cancelled by the Lieutenant Governor in Council.

(12) Having obtained the amendment to its Charter and the lease from the
Province of Quebec, the Company pressed its application to the Governor
General in Council and on the 15th January, 1929, a hearing was held by the
then Minister of Public Works and two other members of the Dominion Govern-
ment, at which were considered protests from shipping companies and power
interests.

(13) The application originally contemplated the diversion of the whole
flow of the St. Lawrence River. To meet the opposition to the application at
this hearing, Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., who appeared for the applicant, amended
the application te read as follows:

The application of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company
now pending before the Governor in Council is purely and simply for the
approval of plans for hydraulic development which will be subject to a
condition that net more than 40,000 cubic feet per second shall be diverted
from the river-from Lake St. Francis, to be returned to Lake St. Louis,
and used for power purposes by the Company between these two points;
and any condition that the Government may exact, in any wording
satisfactory to the Government involving that limitation, is accepted in
advance by the applicant. If the engineers think that the plans should
be altered to meet this declaration the Company will submit to any such
alteration.

(14) It should be noted that notwithstanding the limitation to the 40,000
c.f.s. the plans of the Company and the works so far as constructed clearly show
and the officers of the Company and of the Department of Public Works admit
that at all times there has been in contemplation the diversion of the ivhole
flow of the River by this Company.
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(15) A Committee of Departmental Engineers was constituted, composed

of Mr. K. M. Cameron, Chief Engineer of the Department of Public Works,

Mr. D. W. MeLachlan, Engineer in charge of the St. Lawrence Waterway

Project, Mr. J. T. Johnstone, Director Dominion Water Power and Reclama-

tion Service and Mr. Louis E. Côté, Chief Engineer of the Department of Marine,
and on the 30th January, 1929, made a report which is part of Exhibit No. 17,
in the file of the Public Works Department 804-1-D.

(16) Certain paragraphs of this report are as follows:

83. The 40,000 c.f.s. diversion project can be authorized without

injury to existing navigation, if the plans submitted are subject to modi-

fication and to regulations embodying the restrictions referred to in this

report.
89. Having regard to the application under the Navigable Waters

Protection Act, now under consideration, your Committee are of the

opinion that the site and works proposed in the plans and application
filed by the said Company will not impede or interfere with navigation

on the St. Lawrence River if the conditions attached hereto are met by
the Company and, having consideration to the interests of the country

as a whole, we are of the opinion that if the works are constructed in

accordance with such application and plans subject to the said con-

ditions the same can be efficiently utilized in connection with and as

part of any feasible and economical scheme which the Government of

Canada may eventually decide upon for the deep waterway development
of the St. Lawrence River.

14. The works proposed by the Beauharnois Company consist of
the following:

1. A canal extending from Hungry Bay, at the foot of Lake St.
Francis to Melocheville, at the head of Lake St. Louis, said
canal being contained between banks which are 1,100 feet apart
where hard materials are encountered, and 4,100 feet apart,
where soft materials are encountered.

2. A power house at Melocheville equipped with ten 50,000 H.P.
units.

3. Regulating works at Thorn Island and at Leonard Island. These
are designed to hold up the level of Lake St. Francis, when a
diversion of 40,000 c.f.s. from that Lake is made.

4. A series of works in the four rapid stretches of the river between
Thorn Island and the head of Lake St. Louis. These are

designed to maintain existing depths in channels, and also to
maintain existing levels at the head and foot of the Cedar Rapids
works.

15. The works proposed by the Beauharnois Company affect in vary-

ing degrees canal navigation, river navigation, power developments, and
future plans for a deep waterway.

(17) The Committee expressed disapproval of the remedial works and

channel improvements and in Paragraph 28 stated that the Committee while

offering the suggestions aforementioned can only recommend approval of these

works subject to modifications to meet conditions as experience shows them to

be necessary. In Paragraph 31, the Committee says, " the design of remedial

works for use in the Rapids below Grande Island is not yet worked out in a

satisfactory manner." It will thus be seen that the approval of this Committee

was qualified and that certain of the plans were nôt in their view sufficient.
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(18) On the 8th March, 1929, Order in Council P.C. 422 was approved by
His Excellency the Governor General on the report from the Minister of Public
Works. This Order in Council recites the application of the 17th January,
1928, the deposit of plans, the grant of the emphyteutic lease and the report of
the aforementioned Engineers.

(19) It sets out twenty-eight conditions, subject to which the recommenda-
tion for approval is madé.

(20) The Committee, on the recommendation of the Minister of Publie
Works, submitted for His Excellency's approval, under Section 7, Chapter 140,
Revised Statutes of Canada, 1927-the Navigable Waters Protection Act-
(Subject to the foregoing conditions and to such additions, improvements, altera-
tions, changes, substitutions, modifications or removals as may be ordered or
required thereunde-), the annexed plans of works and the site thereof according
to the descriptions and plans attached in booklet form, which works were pro-
posed to be constructed by the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company
uith respect to the diversion of 40,000 c.f.s. from Lake St. Francis to Lake St.
Louis in connection with a power canal to be built by the said Company along
the St. Lawrence River between the two lakes mentioned.

(21) By reference to the large plan submitted with the application, and
referred to in the Order in Council P.C. 422, and which is Exhibit No. 2A, it
will be observed that there are two cross sections shown, one at Mileage 144-3
which shows a width between the embankments of about 1,100 feet, this being
typical of the rock section of the work. This cross section also shows a width
at the bottom of the deep section of the canal of something over 1,000 fect. In
the cross section which is given as typical for each section, at Mileage 152-0
the width between the embankments is shown as about 4,100 feet, and the
bottom of the deep section, approximately 27 feet, is shown as having a width
of about 500 feet.

(22) Subsequently on the 29th July, 1929, modified plans were submitted
te the Department of Public Works by the Company, and for these there were
on the 22nd August, 1930, certain other plans substituted. None of these has
as yet received the approval of the Minister of Public Works, although the
Chief Engineer of the Department bas recommended them for approval. Plans
submitted on the 22nd August, 1930, did include plans for the remedial works,
but such plans were subsequently withdrawn and as the matter now stands there
is not before the Department for approval any plan or plans of these remedial
works.

(23) On the 10th February, 1931, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power
Company applied to the Quebec authorities for a lease of a further 30,000 cubic
feet per second, and has now obtained this right.

(24) On the 25th June, 1929, an agreement was entered into between the
Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company and His Majesty represented
therein by the Minister of Publie Works of Canada, Exhibit No. 43, which
agreement incorporates the terms and conditions of P.C. 422.

(25) On the 6th November, 1929, the Governor General in Council passed
three Orders in Council, numbers P.C. 2201, 2202 and 2203, authorizing the
transfer of three water power.leases from the Montreal Cotton Company to the
Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, and on the 3rd December, 1929,
three agreements were entered into between the Montral Cotton Company, the
Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, and His Majesty represented
therein by the Minister of Railways and Canals of Canada (Exhibits 7A, SA
and 9A) by virtue of which the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company
acquired with the consent of His Majesty the right to use and divert into the
canal to be built 13,072 cubic second feet presently used by the Cotton Company
at or near Valleyfield under an effective head of about 10 feet.
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(26) A difficulty may arise in connection with these three lea ses by reason
of the fact that the Department of Public Works takes the position that.under
the Order in Council P.C. 422 there is only authority to grant an opening in
the Hungry Bay dyke sufficient to take 40,000 cubic feet a second (See Evidence
Page 363).

(27) On the 5th December, .1929, the Lieutenant 'Governor in Council of

Quebec passed an Order in Council authorizing the diversion of this 13,072
feet.

(28) On the 20th March, 1930, the Charter of the Beauharnois Light, Heat
and Power Company was further amended by enactment 20 George V, Chapter
136 (Quebec), which extended the expropriation powers of the Comnpany so that
for the purpose of building its new canal it miight ' expropriate sucli lands as
may be necessary, not exceedîng in all 21 arpents in width."

(29) In the final resuit, the Beauharnois Liglit, Heat and Power Company
appear to have obtained fromn the Dominion of Canada Orders in Council pur-
porting to authorize the diversion of 53,072 cubic second feet, subject to their
obtaining permission to breacli the Hungry Bay dyke sufficiently for that
purpose, and subject also to compliance with the conditions of the Orders in
Council and the approvals of plans.

(30) They have also obtained fromn the Province of Quebec a 75 year lease
for 40,000 cubic second feet, authority from the Lieutenant Governor in Council
of Quebec to acquire the use of 13,072 c.s.f., and in 1931 the right to use an
additional 30,000 c.s.f.

5. CORPORATE OIIGM'JZATION

(1) There were two syndicates prior to the incorporation of the Beauharnois
Power Corporation Limited, the present holding company, the first being the
Beauharnois Syndicate and the second the Beauharnois Power Syndicate. These
will be referred to, sometimes, for convenience as the First Syndicate and the
Second Syndicate, respectively.

THE FIRST SYNDICATE

(2) About the l2th May, 1927, Mr. Sweezey organized the syndicate known

as the Beauharnois Syndicate, having 5,000 units or part interests. This Syndicate
existed until the 4th April, 1928, at which date the holdings were as follows:-

Number Isu
Memnbers of part Iue AnŽount

interests price

Blaiklock, S. Turnstall........................... ....... ........ 25 100 00 21500

Crédit Général du Canada...................... ................ 800 37 50 30,000

Dobeli, Wm. M................................................. 50 100 00 5,0O0

Geoffrion, Aimé P........ ........ ................ ............. 200 100 00 20,000

Griffith, Hugh B ................... ....................... ...... 1O9 100 00 15,000

Ibbotson, Ivan L................................... ..... ..... 25 100 00 2')

Molson, F. S............................... .................. 30 45 71 10.000

Moyer, L. Clare ................... .............................. 800 37 90 30.000

McGinnis, Thos. A ........................................ 100 100 00 1MO0N

Newman, Hlenry.....................................0 100 00 5,000

Newman, Sweezey & Co., Ltd., In Trust .... ........-............. l'r 42 80 45,000

Robert, Wm. H........................... .............. 100 100 00 10, OCO

Shortt, Dr. Adam ....................................... 10 100 00 1,000

Stadier, John................... ............... ............. 100 100 00 10,000

Sutherland, Win.................................. ............ 25 100 ()0 2,500

Steele, R. W .................................. ............ 2F0 100 00 2.5.000

Sweezy, R. O ........... ........ .......................... .... 900 ... .... 300o

Kenny, T. Fred......... ............. ....................... __1___ 100__ 00___ 1___00

5,000 261,000
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(3) The units subscribed for in the name of the Crédit Général du Canada
-were subscribed and held for Senator Donat Raymond.

(3A) 1,000 of the units in the name of Newman, Sweezey & Company,
Lîmited, were held for Frank P. Jones and 50 for Fred M. Conneil. The Honour-
able WValter G. Mitchell had a haif interest in Mr. Jones' holdings.

(4) The units in the name of L. (?lare Moyer are said to have been
subscribed on behaîf of the late Winfield Sifton. Senator Wilfrid L. McDougald
states that, on the 18th May, 1928, he agreed to acquire them, the transaction
being completed about the end of that month.

(5) The units in the name of R. W. Steele were held for the Dominion
Securities Corporation.

(6) The price to subscrihers Raymond and Moyer was $37.50 per unit and
Frank P. Joncs acquired 800 of bis and Mr. Mitchell's units from Newman,
Sweezey & Company, Limited, at the same price

(7) 0f the 900 units in the name of R. 0. Sweezey, 600 were issued pursuant
to the syndicate agreement for consideration other than cash and the balance
of 300 subscribed for at $100 per unit.

(8)> The 350 units subscribed for hy F. S. Molson were at an average price
of $45.71 per unit.

(9) The Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited, units were at an average
price of $42.86 and ail other subscribers paid at the rate of $100 per unit.

(10) The average price of the 4,400 units sold for cash was $59.32.

THE SECOND SYNDICATE

(11) On the 4th April, 1928. the Beauharnois Power Syndicate was organ-
ized and acquired the assets of the Beauharnois Syndicate, the consideration
being two units of the new Syndicate for each one unit of the old Syndicate
with the right to unit holders to subscribe for as many units in the new syndicate
as each already held therein at $100 per unit, being the par value thereof.

(12) The members of the Beauharnois Power Syndicate holding 100 or
more units or part interests, as on the l7th December, 1929, were as follows:-

Number
Members of Part

Interests
Gerald E. F. Aylmer & E. J. Mackell ......................................... 100
S. Turnstall Blaiklock. .................................. ... ............. 100
A. L. Caron.......... .... ......... .................. ................ ... 221
Fred M. Connell ..... m.. c...e........................... ................ 200
H. V. Cullinan &D. M.Crihe..............-....... 250
William M. Dobeli .......... ....... ................ ......... ............. 200
Dominion Securities Corporation Ltd .............. .................. ...... 1,492
John P. Ebbs.......... >...... ................................... ........ 51200
Aimé Geoffrion ........................ .................... ........ .... 800
Hugh B. Griffith ............................................ .......... 600
Hanson Brothers lue............ ............ ............... .............. 110
C. J. Hodgson & Co ..... .............................. _....................75
Angus W. Hodgson.................... ...... ............ .............. 740
J. Charles Hope.... ............................ ...................... ..... 130
Jones Heward & Co. - ..... -.... .... ..... ..- 210
Thomas A. MoGinnis ..... >... ............................ ............ 4,e0
F. Stuart Molson...... ....... ...................... ...... ............... 465
F. W. Molson.. ....... ........ ..................................... - 100
Montreal Trust Co... ý........ ............................... ........ 8,000
Henry Newman.... ........................................ ................ 395
Newman, Sweezey & Co. Ltd............. ý......................... ........ 410
O'Brien & Williams ................................. ....... ............ 101
Joseph H. Pauli.............. ....... ............ ....... _ ...... .......... 100
W. C. Pitfield & Co. Ltd ............. ........................ ........... 11P2
Hon. Donat Raymond........................... ......................... 351
Ritchie (R. L.) and Gilmore (K. F.) in trust.......................... 350
Wm. H. Robert, Joseph H. Robert, Miss Sarah M. Robert, personally, and as

executors of the late Sarah Robert...................... ................. 200
William H. Robert........... ................................ ....... .... 366

Robert 0. Sweezey ............. ........ -.......................... 1,000
Part interest holders of less than 100 part înterests ........................ 1,932

2). 000



SPECIAL COMMITTER

All of these with the exception of -part interests exchanged for holdings

of part interests in the first syndicate, and the 2,000 part interests that were
used to purchase the shares of the Sterling Corporation, and also except 200
units issued to the Robert heirs, were paid for at the rate of $100 per part
interest. These 2,000 units are included above in the holdings of John P. Ebbs.

The 5,200 units in his name were held for Hon. W. L McDougald, and will
be referred to hereafter.

(12A) The capital of the Beauharnois Syndicate consisted of 30,000 units
at the par value of $100 each, of which 25,000 were issued.

(1) The tangible assets of the first or Beauharnois Syndicate totalled
not over $261,000 as on the 4th April, 1928.

BEAUHARNOIS LIGHT, HEAT AND POWER COMPANY

(14) This Company has been in existence since 1902, as previously men-
tioned. The control passed to Mr. Sweezey and his associates on or about the
3rd February, 1927. Under the agreement of that date (Exhibit No. 60) and

according to the Minutes of the meeting of the Directors held on that day,
Mr. H. B. Griffith was elected a Director and Secretary of the Company. It
was not, however, until the 13th June, 1927, that a Board of Directors con-
sisting of Mr. Sweezey and his associates including Mr. R. W. Steele, repre-
senting the Dominion Securities Corporation, took charge of the Company's
alTairs.

BEAUHARNOIS POWER CoRPoRATIoN LIMITED

(15) This Company was incorporated on the 17th September, 1929, by
the Ottawa legal firm of McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs by letters patent under
the Dominion Companies Act. It was granted wide powers of acquisition and
development of natural resources and in connection with the production, use,
distribution or disposal of energy, power, water, light or heat.

(16) The authorized capital stock is five Management Preferred shares
without nominal or par value; 1,799,995 Class A Common shares without
nominal or par value and 3,200,000 Class B non-voting Common shares with-
out nominal or par value.

(17) The holders of the five Management Preferred shares during the ten

years next succeeding the date of the letters patent have the exclusive right to
vote for the election of Directors of the Company. At the expiry of this period
these automatically become Class A Common Shares.

(18) At a meeting of the Company on the 31st October, 1929, held at the
office of Messrs. McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs in the City of Ottawa, a proposed
memorandum of agreement, dated the 31st October, 1929, between the Beau-
harnois Power Syndicate, the Marquette Investment Corporation and the Beau-
harnois Power Corporation Limited, was submitted providing for the acquisition

by the Company or its nominees of all the undertakings and assets of the

Syndicate except unpaid or uncalled balances in respect of purchases of units
or part interests of the Syndicate. The consideration was:

(a) $4,750,000 cash;

(b) the assumption by the Company of the liabilities and obligations of the
Syndicate, and

(c) the undertaking by the Corporation to defray expenses not exceeding
$10,000 of the winding up of the affairs of the Syndicate and the distri-
bution of its assets amongst the members.
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The Syndicate, on the other band, agreed to subscribe at $1 per share for 1,000,000
Class A Common shares of the Company.

(19) It was resolved tha>t this memorandum of agreement be approved and
executed on behaîf of the Company.

(20) The Dîrectors present at this meeting were 0. F. Howe, and D. K.
McTavish, barristers of Ottawa, and the Misses Belle Fraser, Lyla Brennan,
Edythe H. O'Malley, Bessie Conniffe, Lillian Dell, Elsie M. Burritt, Gwen
Gunderson, Kathleen llavey and Mary H. Kelly, stenographers, ahl of the City
of Ottawa.

(21) Atý thiîs sa me meeting, according to the minutes, there was authorized
a proposed agreement, dated the 3lst October, 1929, betwcen Beauharnois Power
Corporation Limited of the first part and Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited
and the Dominion Securities Corporation of the second part, providing for the
creation and issue of thirty year 6 per cent collateraI trust sinking fund bonds of
the Company to the authorized principal amount of $30,000,000 and for the sale to
Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited and the Dominion Securities Corporation
of the said bonds, together with 770,000, Glass A Common shares of the Company
for the price of $27,000,000 and accrutd interest of said bonds. This agreement
was subsequently ratified by the shareholders at a meeting held on the same day
and at the same place, the above named Directors being all of the shareholders
and all being present.

(22) The agreements were subsequently executed and carried out. The Beau-
harnois Power Syndicate was dissolved as of the l7th December, 1929, its tangible
assets at the time consisting of the amount paid in-aggregating for the two
Syndicates $1,561,000. This includes unpaid balances of subscriptions which on
the final settlement were deducted from the amounts payable to the individual
members, and $20,000 par of units issued to Robert in part payment for Robert's
righte.

(23) The tangible consideration received in respect of the 25,000 part
interests issued by the Beauharnois Power Syndicate may be shown thus:

Particulars Part Âion
InterestsA mon

Issued to meinbers of Beauharnois Syxidicate for the acquisition of the under-
taking of that Syndicate ...................... .................. .... 101000 261,000

Issued for cash consideration ..... ...-............... ...... ............. 13,0)00 1,3(0,000
Issued for the capital stock of Sterling Industrial Corporation Lirnited ........... 2, OCO...... «....

25,000 1,561,000

For purposes of exactness, it should perhaps be noted that the above amnount of $1,300,000 ineludes
620,000 in respect of 200 part intere8tis of Beauharnois Plower Syndicate issued as fully paid to the Robert
heirs in part consideration of the purchase of the shares of Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Comnpany,
etc.

(24) As a result of the agreement above mentioned, the Syndicate members
receive for e 'ach part interest $150, and 40 Glass A shares of the Beauharnois
Power Corporation Limited, which Glass A shares are set up in the books of the
Company at $1 per share and have had a market value as high as $17 per share,
the low price being $4 per share.

(25) On the above basis the cash profit paid to the members of the Syn-
dicate would amount to $2,180,000,'to which shoul' d be added 1,000,000 Class A
-shares, whioh were: purchased' by'an .aditional $1,,000,000 part of the con-
sideration for the transfer of the Syndicate 1ssets. The above mentioned



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

$2,189,000 was paid out of $27,000,000 received from the sale of the bonds and
shares under the agreement with Newman, Sweezey and Company, Limited, and
the Dominion Securities Corporation.

(26) The Marquette Investment Company is a company controlled by
Newman, Sweezey & Company, Limited, and organized for the purpose of acting
as trustee and depository and dispersement agent of the Beauharnois Syndicate.
(Exhibit No. 59).

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

(27) There are also the following wholly owned subsidiaries of the Beau-
harnois Power Corporation Limited, in addition to the Beauharnois Light, Heat
and Power Company, namely:-

The Beauharnois Construction Company, having charge of the actual work
of construction under contract; and the

Beauharnois Transmission Company, having to do with the actual trans-
mission lines and the transmission of the electrie energy to be produced; the

Beauharnois Land Company, in which is vested the lands of the Company,
including land acquired in addition to all that required for actual canal con-
struction and which it is hoped to dispose of for industrial sites, residence and
other purposes in connection therewith; the

Beauharnois Railway Company, organized to build and operate the con-
struction railway; the

Marquette Construction Company, a Delaware corporation, organized to
purchase in the United States and lease to the Canadian Construction Company
certain machinery which it is hoped to return duty free to the United States
after use on the canal, where it is said to be more readily saleable.

6. AUTHORITY FOR CONSTRUCTION WoRx

(1) According to Mr. Henry, actual construction on the north enbankment
was commenced on the 7th August, 1929, in the vicinity of Lake St. Francis,
and on the south enbankment on the 23rd April, 1930.

(2) Condition il of Order in Council P.C. 422 provides that the Company
shall not commence the construction of the works until detailed plans of con-
struction ". . . have been submitted and approved of by the Minister. . . ."

(3) The work as it is being carried out is not in accordance with the plans
referred to in this Order in Council in certain important respects, viz.:-

(1) The banks are about 3,300 feet apart, whereas the original plans
show a width of about 1,100 feet in the rock section and 4,100 feet in
the earth section.

(2) The width at the bottom of the navigation part of the canal
is shown in the original plan, Exhibit No. 2A, in one place as considerably
less than 600 feet, and in another at considerably more, whereas the
actual 27-foot channel is being dug at a bottom width of 600 feet.

(3) The entrance to the canal from Lake St. Francis according to
the last plan filed on the 22nd August, 1930, and as actually being
excavated, is some 3,000 feet northerly and nearer the head of the Cedar
Rapids than shown on the Plan, .Exhibit No. 2A.

(4) The remedial works shown on the original plan have not been approved
either by Order in Council or by the Minister.

(5) The Hungry Bay dyke has been breached and a substitute feeder for
the old St. Louis feeder dug on the south side of the proposed canal wholly
without governmental authority.
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(6) Certain questions have been raised as to the rights to pass Order in
Council P.C. 422--

(1) Does the N~avigable Waters Protection Act give the Governor
General in Council the right to authorize the diversion of the water
from a navigable river?

(2) Can any of the powers given under that Act to the Governor
General in Council be delegated to a Minister, or ta anyone?

(3) Is the right of the Governor General in Council limited ta the
approval of plans already submitted, i.e., can the Governor General in
Council approve of plans to be submitted in the future.

(4) Can the Governor General in Council approve of the plans after
the work has been done or partly done, or in the alternative is his power
limited to approval of work the plans of which have been submitted
before the commencement of the work.

(7) Your Committee finds as a fact that the work of construction is
proceeding according to plans which have not received the approval of the
Governor in Council or of the Minister of Public Works.

7. HuNGR-Y BAY DYSEz

(1) The Province of Canada in 1856 and subsequent year, constructed a
dyke along the shore of that part of Lake St. Francis known as Hungry Bay.
This dyke at Confederation passed ta the control of the Dominion of Canada,
and it has since been maintained through the agency of the Federal Department
of Railways and Canals. Ib will be necessary bef are water can be diverted ta
the canal from Lake St. Francis that permission be obtained fram the Crown
in the right af the Dominion of Canada to breach this dyke.

(2) An application was made on the 29th day of July, 1929, for a con-
veyance ta the Company of that part of the dyke opposite the lands owned by
the Beauharnois Company, ta the extent of 9,064 feet measured along the dyke.
This application is now pending.

8. AMBIGIYITY IN ORDER IN COTYNCIL

(1) Condition Number 3 of Order in Council P.C. 422 provides that " the
diversion of water shahl not at any time exceed the maximum quantity of 40,000
cubic feet per second." If this means that at no time can the quantity of water
diverted exceed 40,000 cubic feet per second, it is douhtful whether 500,000 h.p
can be developed by the use of that quantity of water, even adding thereto the
13,072 cubic second feet obtained by assignment, of the Montreal Cotton Com-
pany's lease.

(2) Your committee is of the opinion that any ambiguity àn this respect
should be removed.

9. CONTROL OF WÂTER

(1) The present plans do not provide for the control of the water at the
entrance to the proposed canal. It has been stated in evidence that for this
purpose and for reasons of safety, some method of control should be adapted,
whether by way of a dam and gates, or a control lock at this point.

(2) Considerable time was spent by Mr. Henry in an endeavour ta establish
that proper control could be maintained by the Dominion authorities at the
gates leading ta the water wheels.

(3) Your Committee was impressed with the idea that there siuld be
..ome means of control ai the entrance ta the canal.

4S236--2
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10. SIT 0F WoRKS

(1) The topography of the Iocality and the ground at the site of the works
are of such a character as to render possible and of comparatively easy attain-
ment the large power development contemplated at a quite reasonable cost.

(2). Your Committee is of the opinion that fromn the physical standpoint a
power development on the south shore of the Soulanges section of the St.
Lawrence River is fundamentally sound and that with proper safeguards and
regulation a navigable canal can be developed synchronously with the power
development and utilized as a link in the St. Lawrence Great Waterway, at a
reasonable cost to the Dominion of Canada for locks and bridges.

(3) While the present plans are not in accordance with the proposais of
the International Joint Board for this section of the river mentioned in their
Report of 1926, nevertheless, in view of the amount of money already expended,
and of the possibility, as we believe, of the utîlization of this canal for naviga-
tion purposes, we think that from the navigation standpoint the scheme should
not be ahandoned.

Reference will now be made to those portions of the Report of the Commons
Committee which affect specifically any Honourable Meinber of the Senate, the
Senators so specifically named are Senator Wilfrid Laurier McDougald, Senator
Andrew Haydon and Senator Donat Raymond.

SENATOR WILFRID L. McDOUGALD

The following extracts constitute a summary appearing in the Commons
Report of the evidence and findings as affecting Senator McDougald. Beneath
each extract will be found any commente or modifications of the findings of the
Commons Committee which after having heard further evidence we feel it our
duty to make.

PÂn.&RýrHs 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6

(1) Senator McDougald was flrst summoned to the Senate on the
25th June, 1926, but owing to the dissolution of Parliament was not then
sworn in and his appointment lapsed. He was again summoned in Octo ber
of that same year and was sworn in the following year. Since 19292, except
for a short interval in 1926, untîl 1930, Senator McDougald occu pied the
position of Chairman of the Montreal Harbour Board and, as he stated in
evidence, assumed a position of high responsibility in connection with the
development of the St. Lawrence Deep Waterway.

This Committee finds that this is correct, except that Senator McDougald
was summoned to the Senate June 25, 1926, and took his seat 9th December,
1926, and not as stated in the said paragrapli.

(2) In May, 1924, the thon Dr. McDougald was appointed a member
of the National Advisory Committee, whose membership included the
Honourable G. P. Graham, as Chairman, and Honourable Clifford Sif ton,
and several gentlemen interested in existing hydro-electric power devetop-
ments.

(3) On the 20th April, 1928, Senator McDougald was appointed a
member of the Special Committee of the Senate to inquire into and report
from time to time on the matter of the development and improvement of
the St. Lawrence River for the purposes of navigation and production of
electric current and power and matters incidental to such a project. Thot
Committee held several meetings in the month of May, 1928, and to which
reference will be made more specifically hereafter.
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(4) In 1923, Mr. McDougald became associated with Mr. R. A. C.
Henry, as has been previously pointed out in this report, and as a result
the Sterling Industrial Corporation Limited ivas incorporated and applica-
t ions made to the Departrnents of Publie Works and Railways and Canais
on the 5th and 7th July, 1924, as already indicated.

(5) Frorn this smull beginning, the interests of &enator McDougald
have expanded until at the time of his giving his evidence he was Chair-
man of the Board of the Beoeuharnois Powver Corporation, Limited. elected
on the 20th of December, 1929, the holder of Management Preferred
Shares; a director of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Comýpany,
the Beauharnois Construction Company, the Beauharnois Land Company,
and the Beauharnois Transmission Company.

(6) This expansion îs almost comparable to the present Beauharnois
Pro ject as compared with the original St. Louis feeder.

This Committee finds that the report of the Commons set out in the above
paragraphs is completely established.

PARAGRAPHS 7, 8 and 9

(7) The application of the Sterling Industrial Corporation was
allowed to lie dormant until some time in 1928. On the l8th of May,
1928, Senator McDougald agreed to take over 800 units of the first syndi-
cate which had been subscribed for by Mr. Clare Moyer on the /+th of
April, 1928, the day upon which that syndicate was dissolved, and upon
which day a payment o *f $15,000 was made by Mr. Moyer, of moneys
which he says he received in cash from Mr. Winfleld Su ton. A further
payment was made on the 1Sth of May, in an amount of $15,000 out of
moneys which Mr. Moyer says were received by him from Mr. Sif ton by
way of a bank draft containing no information as to the person who was
providing the funds.

(8) The 800 units thus acquired by Senator McDougald became
1,600 units on the formation of the second syndicate, and he, in the name
of Mr. Moyer, subscribed as he had the right to do for 1,600 more units
at a price of $100 per unit, and for which he agreed to pay $160;000 and
on which at the dissolution of the syndicate on the l7th December, 1929,.
he had paid $80,000.

(9) In the meantime, however, ninely on the 2nd October, 1928,
these had been transferred from Mr. Moyer to Mr. John P. Ebbs, a mem-
ber of the Haydon flrrn, by reason of some instructions from Senator
McDougald, about which there seems to bc some insolvable mystery, and
about which there need not have been any mystery at ail if the transac-
tions were an ordinary business one.

This Committee finds that the facts set out in the said Paragraphs 7, 8 and
9 are established, and inakes the following commente and findings with respect
to the said purchase by Senator McDougald.

It lias been disclosed at this inquiry that the first two payments made by
Mr. Moyer to the Beauharnois Syndicate were made with funds supplied himi
by Mr. Sifton and deposited by himi in the Wall Street Branch of the Bank of
Nova Scotia in New York, the first deposit being made on the 31st March, 1928,
for $15,000, against which hie issued a cheque for $15,000 on the 4th April in
f avour of the Marquette Investment Corporation, whîch was the corporation
used by the Beauharnois Syndicate for receiving and disbursing of its moneys.
This cheque was cashed hy the said Corporation on the 6th April. On the l7th
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day of May, Moyer made a further deposit by way of bank draft in the Bank
of Nova Scotia in New York, and on the lSth of May issued bis cheque to the
Marquette Investinent Corporation for $15,000, that cheque being cashed by the
Investinent Corporation on the l9th day of May. On the 23rd of May, Moyer
deposited in the Standard Bank of Ottawa a bank draft for $16,O0O and issued
his cheque against it for $16,000 in favour of the Marquette Investinent Corpora-
tion on tbe 26th day of May, which cheque was casbed by tbat Corporation on
tbe lst day of June, 1928.

Senator McDougald says that he purcbased the part interests subscribed
for by Moyer on the 18th day of May, 1928, by having delivered to the late
Winfield Sifton the real owner of the part interests carried in the naine of Moyer,
Dominion of Canada Bonds to the face value of $46,000, delivery being made
through bis solicitor, Mr. Barnard, and his financial man, Mr. Banks; the
delivery of the Bonds in the sum of $46,O00 baving been made ail at the one turne.

His evidence before the Commons Committee contradi6ts this statement.
He there said tbat the Bonds delivered to Sifton on tbis occasion were in the
sum of $30,000 only, giving bis reason therefor that he did not wish to take on a
commitinent for the 1,600 part interests in tbe Second Syndicate, on which there
was payable 10 per cent or the suin of $16,000.

It should bc borne in mind, as disclosed by the evidence of Mr. Clifford
Sifton, that there were no entries in the books of bis brotber, the late Winfield
B. Sifton, nor were there sny documents indicating tbe purebase of tbese part
interests hy Mr. Sifton, nor tbeir sale to Senator McDougald. There were no
Bonds of any description forming part of the assets of bis estate, nor moneys
representing tbe amount of the said bonds to the credit of bis bank aceount,
nor any charges to the said bank account in any wav indicating tbe purchase
of tbe said part intercsts by bim.

In fact, tbe acquisition of tbe part interests earried in tbe naine of Moyer
by Senator McDougald is eompletely shrouded in mystery, wben tbere was no
occasion for mystery whatever, andi leaves the wbole transaction open to tbe
very gravest suspicion that Sifton, in bis purcbase tbrougb Moyer, was at ail
turnes acting in whole or in part for Senator McDougald and using Senator
McDougald's money froin tbe 3lst March, 1928, wben Moyer made the deposit
in New York up to tbe end of tbe wbole transaction.

Senator McDougald gives as bis reason for not baving bis naine appear
as the owner of tbese part interests, tbat be did not wish otber persons to
follow huma in bis investment. It must be borne in mind tbat tbese were not
part interests open to tbe general public, the investinent being offered only to
persons of whom Mr. Swcezey or tbe management committee approved, and
that tbe public, tberefore, could not bave been influenced or injurcd by tbe
fact that Senator McDougald was interested in tbe Beaubarnois Project.

If, as is usual in business matters, Senator McDougald bad simply issued
his cbeque to tbe late Winfield B. Sifton, there would in tbat act be no such
revelation to tbe public of bis interest in Beaubarnois as would bave con-
stituted an invitation or signal for otber members of tbe public to follow.

PARAGRAPIIS 10 and 11

(10) As previously pointed out, &enator McDougald through his
representative, Mr. Ebbs, acquired for the five issued shares of the capital
stock of the Sterling Industrial Corporation, Lîmited, 2,000 part interests
in the second syndicate. These imits 'were given for a corporation the
rights of u'hich, as has been pointed out by Mr. Cameron, Chie f En-
gineer of the Public Works Department, on page 1019 of the evidece
" would be of no value ". The agreement u'as made in the Fail of 1928,
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andi the Beauharnois Compan&y considered these shares to be of such
value that theil stîll remain endorsed in blank, and have neyer been
transferred on the books of the Company. It can hardly be pretended
that this Company had any value, even as suggested, any "nuisance
value " or was or could be thought to be any serioiis obstacle in itself
ta the application of the Beauharnois Liriht, Heat and Power Company
to the Governor General in Council then pending. If so, there were two
former applications in the Department, one of which at least u'as
based on an aile qed acquisition of thc Robert rights, wvhich rights w.ere
the foundation of the Beauharnois application. Still, the carrying out
of the agreement was made conditional upan favourable action by the,
Governor General in Council, and it is beyond belief that had that
Company not been owned by Senator MlcDougald, who represented him-
self ta be a close friend of the admninistration, and R. A. C. Henry, soon
destined ta become Deputy Minis ter of Railways and Canals, or athers
equally influential, the Beauharnois Power Syndicate would have hardly
considered paying for it even the nominal amount that had been sub-
scribed as its capital stock, much less 2,000 units, which ultimately
became $300 ,000 in money and 80,000 shares of the Beauharnois Power
Corporation Limited but would doubtless have received the same con-
sideration as was accorded the other prior applicants-namely the privi-
lege of being completely ignored.

(11) It is suggested that the handing over of this large number of
units was in order ta induce Mr. Henry ta go over ta the Beauharnois
Compan y.. Why any inducement. other than a doubling of his salary
whîch actually occurred, should have been necessary in order ta induce
the man who had for at least sixr or seven years been most anxious ta,
be connected with a Beauharn ais Projeet is difjlcult ta understand, and.
your Committee cannot accept that as the explanation. On the con-,
trary we are convinced that the ' nisance value" consisted in the
necessity of a large inducement ta Senator McDougald in order that
he, a possible obstacle in the attainment of the abjects of the syndicate,
might become so vitally interested therein that any passible apposition
on his part might be obvia ted.

This Committee finds that the statements contained in the said Paragraphs
7, 8, 9, 10 and 11 are proven.

PARAGRAPHS 12, 13, 14 and 15

Paragraphs 12, 13, 14 and 15 deal with the evidence given by Mr. Henry
before the Special Senate Cornmittee and are relevant as relating ta Senator
McDougald's participation in these transactions.

' '(12) That Senator McDougald vas a factor in the success of this
ven'ture is apparent from the Proceedings o «f the Special Committee of
the Senate above referred ta, of whîch he was a inemnber.. It appears
that on the 3lst of May, 1928, he was instrumental in having Mr. Henry,
then his partner in the Sterling Comnpany, came bef are that Coimittee
and answer certain questions. These questions had (Sec page 215 of the
Proceedings) been prepared beforehand by Senator McDougald and sub-
mitted ta Mr. Henry.

(13) Mr. Su'eezey inP his evidence makes it very clear that the
reason for his having done some of the extraordinary things which he
did do was that time was of great importance from the standpoint af
financing the enterprise, owing ta the threatened financîal crisîs.
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(14) On the 25th May, 192S, Mr Aimé Geoffrion, Chie f Counsel
for the Beauharn ais Syndica te, and ilho according to his bill for pro-
fessionat services had a number o 'f interviewls, startinq an the l7th
December, 1927, uith Senator MeDougald, wlrofe to Sena for McDougald
urging that there u'as "no reason *for dele ying the application to the
Dominion Executive for approval of the Beauharn ais plans under t he
Navigable Waters Act.,"

(15) The last question irhich Sena for McDougald asked Mr. Henry
on this occasion, on. the 31sf of M~ay, 1928, uas as follows: (Page 231-
of the Committec»s Proceedinqs.)

Hon. Mr. McDougald: The lest question which I have, Mir. Henry.
is, in your opinion should the improvernent of t he St. Lawrence Waler-
way be gone on v'ifh as soor, as possible, and if so, why?

If is ta be recatled that fhirfpcn days previously on his own festi-
mony, Senator MclDougald had agreed ta beconie interested in this enfer-
prise fa the ext cnt of 800 Part Infercsts in the Beauharnois Syndicate.

The ahove Paragraphs 12, 13, 14 and 15 are in every w-av jiistified in thr
eviden ce.

STATEMENTS IN SENATE

PARAGRAPHS 16, 17 and 18

Paragraphs 16, 17 and 18 of the sumnmary have ta do with the correctness
and bona fides of certain statements made ta the Senate by Senatar McDougald
and are as follows:-

* (16) On the lPth of A prit, 1928, Sena for McDougald in a. speech
delivered by him from his place in the Senate stated: "I want fa rap here,
and ta say if wîth emphasis. that I do not own a dollar's worth of stock
in this enter prise, and have no interest in or association with thaf Com-
pany in any way, shape or form". ..... "Sa far as I myself arn concerned I
canna f add fao much emphasîs ta my denial of the suspicions and asper-
sions which these despatches" (referring ta despatches of the Toronto
Mail and Empire and the Globe of April 18, 19298) "have cast upon me as
a member of the Advisory Commit tee, as a member of this honourable
body, and as a priva te citizcn."

(17) On the 2Oth of May, 1931, Sena for McDougald, in referring fa
his former stae ment on thîs subjeet, and tho date thoreof, the 19f h of
A prit, 1928, made the following stafo ment from his place in fhe Senate:
"Hanourable Members of the Sena te, bef are the orders of ftho day I rise
on a question of privilepe. According ta the newspu pers of this morning
my honour and integrity as a member aof this Ho use have been attacked
in ana thor place, and I desire fa draw attention et once ta a stafement
which I made in the Senato in Aprit, 1928, regarding my position in the
much-discussod Beauharnois Power Company. Newspapor articles had
reflected on myseîf and ather members of the National Advisory Com-
mittea reparfing on the Sf. Lawrence Waterways. It was insinua ted that
aur decisians and recom7nendat ions were influenced by personal interest
in power devetapment on the St. Lawrence. In f his Hause I stated et the
time thaf I had no interest in the Beauharnais Power Company or ini the

* Syndica te. That was absolu fely truc and correct. I may say at once that
up ta that fimo.. . ." (that is April, 1928). "I had been invited on many
occasions fo become a inember of that syndicat e but hud always declined.
Af fer that date I was esked a gain, and had the whote prajeef investi-
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gated from every angle. When I was satis/ied that it: was a proper
pro ject for me as a member of this Sena te, as a business man, and a citizen
of Canada, to take a inancial interest in, I agrced to dIo so. Sorne six
months later, in October, 1928, 1 took an interest in the Beauharnois
Syndica te."

(18) On Page 930 of the Evidence appear these Questions and
Answers:

By the Chairman:
Q. That is not a correct statement, Senat or, I suggest to pou ?-A. 1

suggest, Sir, that it is a correct statement.
Q. Then your evidence yesterday was wrong, because you bought

from Sif ton in May?-A. I did not appear in it until October. Mr. Ebbs
was my representative in October, and I became active in it in October.

Q. Is that pour explanation for that statement?-A. That is my
explanation for that statement. I was in the syndicate-

Q. Whp, of course, pou were in the syndicate; here is pour evidence?
-A. The end of May, 1930, and not when I made the speech in the
Senate.

Q. You say in pour speech, distinctly that in October, 1928, you first
took an interest in the Beauharnois Syndicate. Yesterdap in pour sworn
testimony pou admitted that you had purchased from Sif ton in May,
1928?-A. That is correct.

Q. I suggest to you that your statement in the Senate was entirely
wron gi-A. It miay have been ambiguous, but it was not wrong. What
I meant was I came into it in October through Mr. Ebbs. That is the
first time I came into it.

Q. Just before pou go on with that, Mr. White, I want to complete
the question I was putting to the Senator a moment ago (To the witness).
While pou were making this ambiguous speech, as pou eall it now, in the
Senate on the 2Oth May, 1931, of course, pou were interested with Mr.
Henry in the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. That is right.

In expressing concurrence with the above this Committee cails attention as
well to the following considerations making some comment or expression of cpin-
ion thereon. The entire speech made 'by Senator McDougald in the Senate on
l19th April, 1928, as taken from the Senate Debates is as follows:-

Hon, W. L. McDougald: Honourable gentlemen, I desire to make a
statement on a question of privilege, and to give an absolute denial to
certain newspaper implications reflecting on my honour and integrity,
both as a member of this honourable body and as a private citizen.

The Toronto Globe of April 18, prints a despatch from its Ottawa
correspondent, dealing with the bringing down of correspondence between
the Canadian and United States Governments on the subjeet of the St.
Lawrence waterways, in which it saps, amongst other things:-

Hon. Senator McDougald is reputed to be connected with the
Beauharnois Power Company, u'hich recently obtained a charter from
the Quebec Legisiature for a gigantie development in the Quebec
section of the St. Lawrence.

The report also contains a number of statements relative to the merits
of private and public construction. I am concerned, however, only in giv-
ing an immediate, une quiv orcal and absolute denial to the implication of
the Globe despatch that I am connected with the Beauharnois Power Com-
pany. I want to say here, and to say it with emphasis, that I do not ow~n
a dollar's worth of stock in this enterprise, and have no interest in or
association with that company ini any way, shape or forrn.
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Now let me deal with a despatch which appeared in the Toronto Mail
and Empire, also on April 18, and similar to that of the Globe, with the
exception, perhaps, that where the Globe "reputes" the Mail and Empire
"suspects".

That the report was written by Senator McDougald, Sir Clifford
Sifton and Thomas Ahearn is believed, and the other members of the
committee played unimportant parts and did not influence the decis-
ion. These three capitalists are either known or suspected of being
interested in power schemes, and the proposal to develop the national
section first at the expense of private interests uho would have the
power, is credited to them ...... The criticisms so far advanced are
many and pertinent ..... that the proposal endorsed by the Govern-
ment was prepared by power interests represented by Sir Clifford
Sifton, Thomas Ahearn and Senator McDougald.
Speaking for myself, I want to make a further positive and absolute

denial of the implications and suspicions of the Mail and Empire. The
report was prepared by the Advisory Committee, and by the Advisory
Committee alone. That the Government put upon that committee men
who presumably knew something about power and power schemes was
probably for the same reason that it puts upon the Railway Commission
men who presumably know something about railways; but for two of the
prominent newspapers of this country to put out an impression to the
public of this and other countries that the members of the committee were
actuated by motives of private gain, or collusion with power interests, is,
I think, an action which is undue, unfair and unwarranted. So far as I
myself am concerned, I cannot add too much emphasis to my denial of
the suspicions and aspersions which these despatches have cast upon me
as a member of the Advisory Committee, as a member of this honourable
body, and as a private citizen. Perhaps I may take some slight comfort
from the fact that this sort of thing seems to be one of the ordinary
penalties of public life.

We have already dealt with the question as to whether or not at the time
this speech was made Senator McDougald was the owner in whole or in part
of the Winfield Sifton shares or part interests. Even if, however, we are to
assume that he became the owner only on 18th May, 1928, he was at the time
the above speech was made, and had been for several years before, the owner of
the Sterling Industrial Corporation (subject to an indefinite and un-enforceable
understanding for division of its stock with Mr. Henry) and the Sterling indus-
trial Corporation was interested directly and very practically as it turned out,
in the St. Lawrence Power and Canalization development at the very point in
question. In the body of the Mail and Empire article it is said that three
capitalists including himself "are either known or suspected of being interested in
power schemes and the proposal to develop the national section first at the
expense of private interests who would have the power, is credited to them."
When, therefore, Senator McDougald made on 19th April, 1928, "positive and
absolute denial of the implications and suspicions of the Mail and Empire," he
was not speaking the language of candor and truth.

Turning now to the speech of Senator McDougald in the Senate on 20th
May, 1931, and assuming again that his purchase of the Sifton interests in
Beauharnois Company was made on the 18th May, 1928, or twenty-nine days
after the speech of 19th April, 1928, we cannot acquit the Senator of lack of
candor again in saying in the latter speech that he became interested "some six
months later, in October, 1928," when the Sifton part interests previously held
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in the name of Moyer becanie held in the name of Ebbs. Senator McDougald
knew quite well that from ISth May, 1928, to October 2nd, 1928, Moyer held
for him just as Ebbs held for him from 2nd October onward. It is more than a
violation of language to describe such an error as merely an "ambiguity."

At this point it must be rememnbered that from the 2Oth day of April, 1928,
SSenator McDougald was an active member of a Committee of the Senate
appointed by virtue of the following resolution:

Ordered, that a Special Committee of the Senate be appointed to
enquire into and report from time to time on the matter of the develop-
ment and improvement of the St. Lawrence River for the purposes of
navigation and production of electrie current and power and matters
incidentai to sucli obj ects; and that the Committee be empowered to seîîd
for persons, papers and records, to examine witnesses under oath if deemed
necessary, and to employ stenographers and other clerical help subjeet to
approval of tAie Senate in regard to expenditures, &c."

This Committee held meetings and conducted hearîngs until the 7th day of
dune, 1!928. At its meeting of 3lst May, 1928, hie put certain questions (quotcd
in part from the Commons Report above) previously prepared and submitted to,
the witness, for Mr. Henry's answer. On the Senator's own admission, hie had
hield, as well as bis interest in the Sterling Industrial, a large interest in the
Beauharnois Company itself since 1.Sth May, 1928. It is a singular thing that
the sense of honour which on April 19, 1928, compelled him to deny before the
Senate of Canada any connection. w ith Beauharnois and ail the "implications,
suspicions and aspersions" which hie said were cast on himi by the Globe and Mail
and Empire, did not impel him to disclose to the Senate or its committee the
personal înterest which hie held in the very subject matter which the Senate
Commîttee was reviewing. In our opinion it was lis duty so to have done. On
t.he contrary hie contented himself by giving answers as follows:

By Mr. White:
Q. 1 suggest to you that on that date when you called Mr. Henry as

a witness you had an interest in the Beauharnois project?-A. That is
right.

Q. That is right. Did you disclose that to the Committee?-A. It
was none of their business whethier 1 bad or had not any interest in it.

The paragraphs of the summary dealing with the price at which Senator
McDougall purchased bis shares and to certain travelling expenses received by
1dim are as follows:

(19) Furiher in his speech on the 201h May, 1931, Senator Me-
Dougald said: I might add Mhat I paid into the syndicate dollar for dollar
wiith every othe.r member of it.

(20) As previously pointed out in Mhis Report, Senator McDougald,
Senator Raymond, and Mr. Frank Jones, bought their units in the flrst
.syndicate for many fewer dollars per share than any other of the members,
except possibly Mr. Sweezey who got some of his for a consideration other
than cash.

(21) It is also significant that Senxitor McDougald received consider-
able sums of money from the Company for travelling expenses.

In confirming the facts set out above, we add that the Beauharnois Com-
pany paid the hotel expenses of Senator McDougald in Ottawa during the time
the Commons Committee sat, thougli at that tîme Senator McDaugald. was in
Ottawa attending the Session of the Senate.

Included in the above expenses was the sum. of $7,500 the fees of Mr. Starr,
who appeared before the Commons Committee as counsel for Senator Mc-
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Dougald and who distinctly represented himnself as acting, and in fact did act
only for Senator McDougald before such Committee.

The concluding paragraphs of the summary are as follows:
(22) How one holding the high offices to which he had been called,

as Chairman of the Montreal Harbour Board, member of the National
Advisory Committee on St. Lawrence JVaterways, a Senator of Canada,
and a member of the Special Commit tee of the Se'nate, above referred to,
and as he himself has stated, having a high regard for his public duties,
should allow his private interest to so interfere with his public duty that
he found it necessary, speaking from his place in the Senate to be
" ambiguous " and incorrect, it is difficult for your Committee to under-
stand.

(23) Senator McDougald's actions in respect to the Beauharnois pro-
ject cannot be too strongly condemned.

In the judgment of the Committee the conclusions herein set up are amply
justified by the evidence that Senator McDougald's actions were not fitting or
consistent with his duties and standing as ,i Senator.'

SENATOR ANDREW HAYDON

A summary dealing with the connection of Senator Andrew Haydon with
the Beauharnois Power Project appears in the report of the Huse of Commons
Committc submittcd to us. We quote froin it as follows:-

(1) The flrst connection of Senator lia don with the Beauharnois pro-
ject appears to be in 1924, whcn his firm incorporated for Senator Mc-
Dougald and Mr. Heinry the Sterling Industrial Corporation on the 5th
July of that year and made the applicat ion of that Company to the two
Departments of the Govern ment for the right to divert 30,000 c.f.s.

(2) His flrm n'as retacvned by 11r. Sweezey for the Beauharnois Power
Syndicate in the faîl of 1128 under somewhat peculiar circumstances.

(3) Senator Haydon has been a member of the Senate since March
11, 1924, and was known to Mr. Sweezey to be a member of the Liberal
Part y uwho colle cted campaign fUnds. The retainer was of an unusual
character. The firm dem anded in excess of $30,000 per year but Mr.
Sweezey demurred and flnally arranged that the fIrm of M11cGiverin, Hay-
don and Ebbs would be paid the suin of $50,000, conditionally upon
approval of its application by the Governor in Council. On October 3,
19208, this firm received a che que from the Marquette Investment Com-
pany for $7,500 for legal services. On page 728, Mr. Sweezey says in an
interview with Mr. McGiverin, " However, by a compromise I agreed that
if the thing got through, I would prefer to pay on that basis; if it ment
through I would pay him $50,000, and a retainer for three years at
$15,000. . .it is human nature to work harder at a price." Asked, in
the event of failure what would happen, Mr. Sweezey's answer mas "Well,
he mould have his expenses. At li'ast I presumed that he mould have to
have his expenses. . . I va.ý svre he would i!harge mne .sonîething for it."
This arrangement was apparently made, according to Mr. Sweezey, some
time prior to the 2nd October, 1928, (Evidence Page 729).

(4) On the 2nd October, 1928, a trans fer mas made to Mr. Ebbs of the
Haydon firm, from Mr. Clare Moyer of the interest Mr. Moyer then held
in the Beauharnois Pouwer Syndicate for Senator McDougald.

(5) Mr. Ebbs, Senator Haydon's partner, acted as Syndicat e Manager
for some time representing Senator McDougald. The Order in Council
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was approved, Senator Haydon's firm wos paid $50,000 and thereaf ter
recewved several cheques in pursuance of the arrangement made witli Mr.
Sweezey by which that firm, was to be paid a retainer of $15,000 per year.

(6) Senator Haydon u'as a man of note and standing in his part y
and was recognized as, one of the official organizers of the Liberal part y
in Canada. Senator Haydon becume the recipient from Mr. Sweezey
and the Beauharnois Company of sums of money for campaign pur poses,
saîd to be in excess of haif a million dollars, and it is also to be noted
that throughout this firm did not render any detailed bill for prof essionil
services, as shown by the vouchers (Exhibit Nos. 85 to 87 inclusive).

(7) In these circumstances, your Committee is of opinion that the
acceptance of the above mentioned contingent retainer and of the $50,000
involved, and of the cempaign funds by Senator Haydon cannot be
defended and is strongly condemned.

Senator Haydon did not give evidence before the Huse of Commons Com-
mittee but gave evidence before this Committee. In view of the further evidence
given before this Committee with regard to Senator Haydon's relations to this
entire matter, w-e make the following comment, expression of opinion and
report:-

Senator Haydon denied before this Committee that the $50,000 fee was
made contingent on the passing of the Order in Council (P.C. 422). He also
stated that the entire fee received by bis firmn aggregating $80,000 was for work
which had been done for some time previous to the making of the fee arrange-
ment and also for work stili to be done.

In coming to a conclusion as to what the facts really were, it is necessary
to take into account the entire cîrcumstances surrounding this subjeot as revealed
in the evidence. It is noteworthy that, as found in paragraph No. 6 above,
Senator Haydon's firm did not render any detailed bill, as shown by the Exhibits,
and while it was decidedly in bis interests to shouw that the legal services rendered
were at least remotely commensurate with the money received, Senator Haydon
fell very far short of estnblishing such services by bis or any other evidence.
It is impossible for us to, find anything of a legal character that was done by
this firm, which would have been remunerated by any company on a business
basis at a figure equal or nearly equal even to the total retainers paid period-
îcally by the Beauharnois Company to Senator llaydon's firmn aside entirely
from the special $50,000 fee.

In the face of this fact and hnving in mind as well the high position enjoyed
by Senator Unydon in the public mind in relation to the party in which he
held high trusts, and having regard as well to the very positive, unequivocal
and comprehensible accounit of the arrangement given by Mr. Sweezey, it is
impossible for us to find otherwise than that the $5O,000 fee was contingent
on the passing of the Order in Council.

In this same connection it should be added that the account for services
kept in the office of Senator Haydon's firm wîth regard to the Sterling Industrial
Company was continued into the account for service kept by the same firm in
regard to the Beauharnois Projeet and alI became one account and was finally
closed by cheques from the Beauharnois Company.

Special reference must be made to the following evidence given by Senator
Haydon before this Committee:-

Q. Then- -A. Mr. Mann, you have asked me about my conversa-
tions with Mr. Sweezey.

Q. Yes, Sir?--A. As far as 1 remember-as far as 1 remember mv
first conversation in respect of Beauharnois of any consequence at îlf;
was with Mr. Sweezey. There were some others present; 1 don't remem-
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ber ail who they were. I saw in the papers that he had been sued or
was going to be sued by people from London which run publicly under
,the name of the Great Lakes Transportation and Power Company. Hie
always seemed to me one who w'as ready to go into ventures qtite
freely, from the time 1 first saw him. 1 first saw him at Queen's College
on these boards, and in respect of the discussion of investments and
things 1 first became acquainted with him. I asked him on this occasion
-it was sometime before 1929, or the beginning of 1929, perhaps-I
asked him what good was Beauharnois. It didn't seem to me it was
of any value, because he had no takers of power. 1 asked him if he
had any contracts for power. H1e said no, he had not particularly. Hie
talked about Americans who would corne and settie along the river, and
enterprise would begin. 1 said to him: " What is the good of them if
you don't have something nailed down?"-I think I used the word that
you have been asking me to repeat, " moonshine "-This will neyer get
anywhere. It is not any good." " Oh," he said, " but when we have a
contract in sight." 1 said, " where or how?" 1 had neyer heard of this
hefore. H1e said with the Ontario Hydro Commission. I said, " Why
don't you get it signed and get something solid ?" And his answer w-as
" Howard Ferguson won't let it be signed until he gets $200,0OO." I
said nothing more and heard nothing more about Beauharnois for a good
time.

This statement was at the first opportunity and rnost categorically, denied
by Mr. Sweezey. This Committee while of the opinion that the evidence given

by Senator Haydon and quoted immediatelv abovo was irrelevant to the sub-

ject matter entrusted to us as being beyond the scope of the inquiry, neyer-
theless agreed to take the evidence of Honourable Howard Ferguson, who was

living in England-upon his requesting, by cablegram, permission to be heard.
The Honourable Mr. Ferguson came to Canada and stated in evidence

that he came at his own expense and emphatically deriied that any such con-
versation had ever taken place with Mr. Sweezey or anyone else. Both Mr.

Sweezey and Mr. Ferguson gave evidence of the only two occasions upon which
they had met and that on both occasions men of prominence and high stand-
ing were present, and in this respect their evidence agreed.

It is also to be noted that, although Senator Haydon in his first refer-

ence to this subject testified that the statement of Mr. Sweezey was made in

the presence of others, he did not produce or offer to produce before this Com-
mittee any such other persons to confirmn his account of the incident. Under

these circumstances it is impossible to find otherwise than that Senator Hay-
don's evidence in this regard was not correct.

We ratify the conclusion of the Commons Committee as expressed in para-
graph No. 7 of the above report. Senator Haydon's conduct was unfitting
and inconsistent with his position and standing as a Senator of Canada.

SENATOR DONAT RAYMOND

A summary dealing with the connection of Senator Donat Raymond with

the Beauharnois Power Projeet appears in the report of the Commons Com-
mîttee submitted to us. We quote from such as follows:-

(1) Senator Raymond was appointed to the Senate on the 20th
December, 1926. He, voluntarily, after the permission of the Senate had
been granted, appeared bel ove the Committee on the af ternoon of the l6th
July, 1931, and stated that he had subscrîbed on the lst April, 1927, at
the suggestion of Honouvable Mr. Mitchell and Mv. Frankc P. Jones. for
800 units of the Beauharnois Syndicate at a price of $30,000, which he

xxviiî



BEAUHARNOIS POJVER PROJECT XI

paid. These became 1,600 units in the second syndicate and as was his
right, he subscribed for 1,600 further units, in the name of J. R. Lef ebvre
and made his holdings 3,2900 units. On the whole transaction he realized
as of the l7th December, 1929, $529,600 profit and 14,040 shares of Class
A stock of the Beauharnois Pouwer Corporation, Limited. Senator Ray-
mond sold ail hîs originally acquired units at the saine time that Mr.
Frank P. Jones sold his ot $550 per unit, and later Senator Raymond
bought from W. G. Mitchell 350 units and from R. T. Fu lier one unit in
the Beauharnois Power Syndicate and he held these at the dissolution of
the Syndicato on the l7th December, 1929. His total profit was as above
mentionod. He states that neither at Quebec nor at Ottawa did he exert
or attempt any political influence on behaîf of the Beau harnois applica-
tions. His evidence is that he "did nothing to push the deai." On page
794 of the evidenco, Senator Raymond was askod:-

Q. Then are we to undorstand you to say, that having this inter-
est in this projoct and knou'ing that thero was a very strong opposition
and a big fight being put up, you neyer turnod a hand to heip at ail?
-A. I do not know if thero was anything in my power to do towards
holping it.

Q. Weii, you could hoip?-A. I thought the only holp that I
couid givo was to put my money in.

Q. I may tako it then from what you say, that we have your
une quivocai statoment that at no timo did you attempt to exert your
personal influence on behaif of this pro ject?-A. At no timo.
(2) At the conclusion of his evidonco one of the members of the Com-

mittoe oxprossed tho view that ho ought to be commended for his frank-
noss in giving his evidenco. It was, however, la fer disclosed in evidence
that according to the bill of Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud'homme, Counsol
for the Beauharnois Syndicate (Exhîhit No. 114) from September 10,
1927, to May 23, 1928, there appear some sixteen ontries charging for
interviews with and telephone to and from Senator Raymond. An inter-
view appears to have taken place on one occasion with Hon.ourablo Mr.
Mitchell and on another occasion in Ottawa with Senator McDougald.

(3) On page 391, Mr. Frank P. Jones states, "I certainiy asked
Senator Raymond over and over again if he could not do something to
got somo action."

(4) It transpired when Mr. Swcezey returned to give further evidence
that Senator Raymond had received from Mr. Sweezey somo $200,000 of
campaign funds for the Libe rai part y. The commendablo frankness
would seem to require that Senator Raymond should have disciosod this
to the Committee if he wished the Committeo to understand that ho was
stating fairiy his conne ction between the Government and the Beau-
harnois promotors.

(5) In view of Mr. Su'eozey's attitude throughout and his views as
to the necessity for political influence, it is hardly conceivablo that Mr.
Sweezey would pay this large sum of money over to Sonator Raymond
uni oss he at least was satisfiod that the Senator's influence had been or
would be worth the mono y and it is remarkablo that Senator Raymond
did not insist on making somo expianation of his position in this regard,
in view of his evidence.

Senator Raymond appeared befýore this Committ-ee and gave evidence, as
he had done before the Commons Commit-tee. In explanation of the charge of
lack of frankness stated or implied in1 the report of the Commons Committee
with respect to himself, he submitted that at the Commons Inquiry he had not
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been asked at ail wîth respect to campaign funds, and would have admitted the
receipt of $200,000 for that purpose had he so been asked. i, stated that he
remained in the city and signified that he would give further evidence should it
be called for, and lcft only on the assurance given him by a member of the Com-
mittee that he would not be further required. No evidence was adduced to con-
tradict Senator Raymond in this regard and we accept his evidence. It should
be added, however, that according to the evidence of Senator Haydon, given
before this ommittee, Senator Raymond received furthcr large sums in the way
of campaign contributions such sums having first been given to Senator Havdon
by Mr. Sweezey and by him handed to Senator Raymond. If the evidence of
Senator Haydon in this connection is correct, and it is not disputed, it foliows
that Senator Raymond was not entirely frank in the submission of bis evidence
to this Committee.

Although further testimony was given by the production of a statement
of account for legal services filed by Mr. Geoffrion, K.C., that thcre had been
more conversations between Senator Raymond and Mr. Geoffrion after the
application had been made to the Governor in Council for the passing of what
became IP.C. 422, and although the evidence given before the Commons Com-
mittee clcarly. shows a very deep and continuous interest on the part of Senator
Raymond in procuring such Order in Council, nevcrthcless nothing xvas adduced
to contradict Senator Raymond's rcpeated declarations that he bad at no time
exerted bis influence with the Govcrnmcnt to the above end.

While this Committec agrees that the facts found in the summary of the
Commons report rcferring to Senator Raymond are established, and with the
opinions exprcssed in such summary, especially that contained la paragraph No. 5
thereof, it is impossible for us to do otherwise than accept Scnator Raymond's
denial that influence directed toward affccting government policy was actively
exerted by hlm.

The evidencc, however, is conclusive of the following facts: That Senator
Raymond accepted from a company-directly or indirectly-very large sums
of money by way of campaign contributions; that the company from which
sncb funds were accepted was dependent vitally on government franchises or
concessions; and that one of the governments from which such franchises or
concessions were necessary was the government of Canada, of whicb Senator
Raymond was a very prominent supporter.

This Committee feels it to be their duty to express the opinion that Senators
of Canada should not place themsclves in the position of receiving contributions
from or being interested in an enterprise dependent on specifie favour, franchise
or concession to be made by a government wbose conduet is, under the constitu-
tion of Canada, subject to review by both branches of Parliament.

All which is r-espectfully submitted.

CHARLES E. TANNER,
Chu irman.



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

TuESDAY, l6th February, 1932.
The Special Committee of the Senate appointed for the purpose of taking

into consideration the report of a Special Committee of the bouse of Commons
of the last session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, in so far
as said report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate, met this day
at 2.30 o'clock p.m.

PRESENT: The Honourable C. E. Tanner, Chairman, the Honourable
Senators Béique, Donnelly, Copp, -Griesbach, McMeans and Robinson.

The CHAIRMAN: iNow, gentlemen, you have before you the resolution of
the Senate, andyou also have the report which is mentioned in the resolution-
that is the report which is referred to, which is contained in the Senate Minutes.

Hon. Mr. BIlIQUE: Then there is the evidence taken in the House of Com-
mons.

The CHAIRMAN: The formai resolution of the Senate referred the report
to us, and then provided authority whereby we can get the evidence, if we want
it, from the Huse of Commons.

The CHAIRMAN: (To the Clerk of the Comrnittee) Mr. Hinds, you com-
municated with the honourable members of the Senate who are mentioned in
this report?

Mr. HiNDS: Yes, sir.
The CHAIRMAN: By letter, did you?
Mr. HINDs: Yes, sir.
Hon. Mr. BýiQuE: Senator Raymond is here. He was on the train this

morning.
The CHAIRMAN: May I ask if Senators McDougald, Haydon and Raymond

are here? 1 see Senator Haydon is here. Senator McDougald is not here, is he?
1 think you had better read that letter, Mr. Hinds, and we will put it in

the record.
The CLERK OF THE COMIITriE:

SIR,-I have the honour, by direction, to inform you that the Special
Committee of the Senate appointed for the purpose of taking into con-
sideration the report of the Special Committee of the House of Commons
of last session to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, in so far
as the said report relates to any honourable members of the Senate, will
commence regular sittings on Tuesday next, the i 6th of February instant,
at 2.30 p.m., in Senate Committee Room No. 262.

Your obedient servant,

A. H. HINDS,
Chie f Clero of Committees.

This letter was addressed to the Honourable W. L. McDougald, Room 919,
360 St. James Street, West, Montreal, P.Q. A similar letter was addressed
to Honourable Senator Haydon and to Honourable Senator Raymond. Thcv
were sent out on the l2th of February, instant.

Hon. Mr. GRIESBAÇH: By registered mail?
The CLERE OF THE COMMITTEE: YeS.
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Hon. Mr. B~iQuE: I know Senator Raymond is in the building. He may
be in his room just now. If he is required he can be had, because he is in the
building.

The CHAIRMAN: Is Senator McDougald present, or represented by counsel?

Hon. LIJciEN CANNON: Senator McDougaid is not here, Mr. Chairman.

The CHAiRmAN: Are you representing him?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I arn representing him, Mr. Chairman. I understood

the meeting to-day to be a preliminary meeting for organization purposes, and
that the Committee did not intend beginning its actual work to-day-that there
is to be an adjournment. That is the understanding I had.

The CHAiRmAN,: Then we can put it on the record that you are represent-
ing him.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Yes, sir.
The CHAIRM~AN: Senator Haydon, are you going to be represented by

counsel?
Hon. Mr. HAYD0N: Yes, by Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., of Toronto.

The CHAIRMAN: And Senator Raymond is in the building, and I think you

said, Mr. Béique, he did not intend to have counsel.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: I think he intends to have counsel.

The CHAIRMAN: W/el, I may say to the members of the Committee who
were not present at the last meeting we had, immediately after the Senate
adjourned, a resolution was passed to ask for counsel for the Committee of the

Sonate, I was in communication with the leader of the Senate, Mr. Meighen, but
up to the present time I have had no definite information as to who is to act
in that capacity.

Hon. Mr. BfiQuE: It can be done before the next meeting.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. Mr. Cannon, on behaîf of Senator McDougald
have you any suggestion to make as to when Mr. McDougald would find it con-
\'enient to be here?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: He is at the entire disposai of the Committee. We are

agltogether in your hands, Mr. Chairman. Whatever you decide will suit us.

The CHAIRMAN: I suppose that is true of you also, Mr. Haydon?

Hon. Mr. HAYDON: Oh, quite.
The CHAIRMA-N: And, I presume, of Mr. Raymond?

Hon. Mr. BÉIQUE: Yes, I would suggest that when this Committee adjourns
it should adjourn to Tuesday the 23rd-Tuesday next.

The CHAIRMAN: That is a week from to-day.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANs: The Senate meets on the lst of March. Perhaps
we had botter adjourn tili the 2nd of March.

The CHAIRMAN: It is very desirable that we should have ail the members

cf the Committee here without unnecessary inconvenience. Everybody would

ho here then. Senator Chapais is away. He could not be here to-day. Would
that suit you, senator?

Hon. Mr. BÉIQUE: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: Have you gentlemen any suggestion to make about that,
or any desire? It is proposed by the Committee to adjourn until Wednesday
the 2nd of Maroh, at il o'clock in the forenoon.

Mr. ROBERTSON: W/e will make that convenient for us.

The CHAIRMAN: W/e would like to consuit your convenience as well.

Mr. ROBERTSON: That is quite ail right.
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Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: Do 1 understand that the gentlemen would be pre-
pared to go on on that date-there would not be any requests for further
adj ournments-peremptorily?

The CHAIRMANI: Yes, well if that is satisfactory to ail the Committee will
be adjourned.

Hon. Mr. BIQLE: The witnesses will be called for then?
The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. Cannon, have you any desire that this Committee should summon

anybody, any witnesses?
Hon. Mr. CAN NON: Well, at present I arn not in a position to make any

suggestions along those Unes, but if we f elt that witnesses might, be summoned,
1 can give the Committee an assurance that I will communicate either with you,
Mr. Chairman, before the Committee meets again, or the very day it meets, so
that there will be no delay.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, that will be understood.
Hon. Mr. BIQUE: 1 would suggest that Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, KGC., be sum-

rnoned to appear.
Mr. ROBERTSON: May 1 ask if it would be quite in order to, let counsel have

in advance the names of the wîtnesses who are to be called?
The CHAIRMAN: Oh, I think so.
Mr. ROBERTSON: We could prepare much better.
The CHAIRMAN: Oh, certainly. We have open court here.
Hon. Mr. BÙiQuE: As to that, it might be under8tood that anybody inter-

ested will be at liberty to ask that witnesses be summoned, and that the Clerk
will let counsel know.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Hinds will have ail the information.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: And may I ask that counsel be supplîed with the pro-

ceedings of the Senate since the opening of this session, and also the proceedings
of the House of Commons, so we will have before us a record.

The CHAIRMAN: Anything like that we will be very pleased to give you.
Hlon. Mr. MOMEANS: You can get that from the Clerk.

The CHAIRMAN: WelI, if there is nothing cise, the Committee will stand
adjourned until Wednesday, the 2nd day of March, at il o'clock in the forenoon.

THE SENATE,

WEDNESDAY, March 2, 1932.
The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into considera-

tion the report of a Special Committee of the House of Commons of the last
session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, in so f ar as said
report relates to any honourable members of the Senate, met this day at eleven
o'clock in the forenoon.

iPresent: the Honourahie Senators Tanner (Chairman), Béique, Chapais,
Copp, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, MeMeans, and Robinson.
Counsel:

Mvr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quehec, and Mr. Arthur L. Smith, K.C.,
Calgary, Alberta, counsel for the Committee.

The Honourahie Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quehec City, Quebec; Mr.
John W. Cook, K.C., Montreal, Quebec; and Mr. Hugh E. O'Donnell, Mont-
real, Quebec, counsel for the Honourable Senator W. L. McDougald.
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Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, counsel for the Honourable
Senator Andrew Haydon.

Mr. Thomas Vien, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, counsel for the Honourable
Senator Donat Raymond.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, at the last meeting of the Committee a motion
was moved by Senator McMeans and seconded by Senator Donnelly, and it was
ordered that the Government be requested to provide counsel to assist the Com-
mittee. That was decided at the last meeting of the Committee.

Hon. Mr. B EiQuE: Mr. Chairman, I doubt that it would be regular. 1 think
the regular way of proceeding would be for this Committee to obtain authority
frorn the Senate to engage counsel. I do not think that it can be done in any
other way.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, in pursuance of the Order which I just read I was
in communication with the Department of Justice, and that departinent has
assigned Mr. J. A. Mann, K.C., of Mentreal, and Mr. A. L. Smith, K.C., of
Calgary, as counsel to assist the Cornrittee. Now, of course we ail understand
that the Senate lias to look to the treasury, which is controlled by the Govern-
ment, to pay for these counsel. I do not think there bas been any question
about the authority of the Committee, with the approval of the Governroent, as
to assurance that these counsel will be paid. However, that is for the Com-
rnittee to decide.

Hon. Mr. BÉiIQuE: Well, of course we may possibly take it for granted that
the Senate this afternoon will approve ef it.

Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: Yes.
The CHAIRNIAN: I think so. Now, these gentlemen are present this morn-

ing, Mr. Mann and Mr. Smith. and 1 understand that they are ready to take
the conduet of the proceeding, which would be very satisfactory, I shoffld think,
to the Cormiîttee, because as members of the Committee we do net want to
engage personally in these matters. We are bore, as 1 hope, in a senatorial,
judicial capacity, to hear what is to be said, and we will hear counsel for any
one who is int 'erested; but we have these two gentlemen who will carry on the
proceedingýs, and conduet thern, I feel sure, quite satisfacterily to the Committee.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: Mr. Chairman, 1 would make another suggestion; it
would be that the counsel who will act te assist the Committee be requested to
act as Atoeney-General.

The CHAIRMAN: I should think so, yes, certaînly; they are really repre-
senting the Senate.

Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: And representing the pyublic.
The CHAIRMAN: And representing the public; I think that would be quite

right. I tbink they are prepared to adept that attitude.
Mr. MANN: That is correct.
The CHAIRMAN: We are net here to presecute anybodv; we are here to

listen te anything thait is brought out. Gentlemen, in that case are yeu ready
te go on this morning?

Mr. MANN: We are ready, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRUMAN: Then we put the matter in yeur hands; what do yeu

propose?
Right Hon. Mr. GR#AHAM: Might I ask a question before yeu start? It

will cerne up later. New, as witnesses are te be subpeenaed, should net this
Committee have sernetbing te say as te what witnesses are te be subpeenaed?
Or can ceunsel go on and subpoena ami witnessýes they like, and open up any
aspect of the case they like, without consulting the Cemmittee? 1 arn net ask-
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ing this as a foolish question, because I have a littie information concerning it
which would seem to very much broaden the scope of the reference. 1 do not
think we have any right to go outside of that reference.

The CHAIRIMAN: Oh, yes, we cannot allow counsel to subpoena everybody
on everything.

Hlon. Mr. BÉIQUE: We must be consulted.

The CHAIn.MAN: I say ail the summonses for witnesses would have to bc
signed by me. 1 will try to safeguard the public interest.

Mr. ROBERTSON: 1 arn appearing for Senator Haydon, who is not capable
of being here this morning. H1e was anxîous to be, but he had a different opinion
from his doctor. I saw the doctor yesterday. I assume this Committee would
like to know what the dootor says, as to Senator Haydon being able to give
evidence or appear before the Committee, and the doctor was good enough Vo
give me a certificate stating his opinion.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not think we are in a hurrv about that. 1 would
prefer first to know what these gentlemen propose to, do. We will take ahl due
care to safeguard Senator Haydon.

Mr. ROBERTSON: I want the Conmnittee to know that he is not able to be
here, through illness, and I have information from his doctor that would be
available Vo the Committee if they want to know what they can do ab,'ut it.

The CHAnIMAN: That will be available later on.

Mr. MANN: 1 suggest that Mr. Robertson is right in saying for whom he
appears, and 1 tbink it would be right if you were Vo ask other gentlemen for
whom they appear.

The CHAIRMIAN: Well, we know about Mr. Robertson.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I might say that at the last meeting I appeared for
Senator McDougaid. I may add thýat I have the pleasure of having with me
two learaed friends-1\r. Cook and Mr. O'Donnell, of Montreal to assist me.

The CriAIRMIAN: Is there any other counsel?

Mr. ViENs: '.\r. Chairman, it was at first thought that it was not necessary
for Senator Raymond to be assisted by counsel before your honourable Com-
mittee, but iaasrnuch as there will be witnesses to be heard, and it miglit become
advisable to put a f ew questions, I beg leave to appear with him in this inquiry.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there any other counsel?

Mr. MANN: Then, Mr. Chairman, it mighit be well to have the order con-
vening the Committee read. There are four orders in ail.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: We had ail that at the first meeting.

Mr. MANN.: Before asking the clerk of the Houýse of Comnîs Co produce
the evidence on the inquiry last year, I might read these orders. The first order
is on the Minutes of tlîe Proceedings of the Senate of February 11, 1932, page 22,
as follows:-

That a Special Committee of nulle senators to be hereafter named,
be appointed for the purpose of taking into consideration the report of a
Special Committee of the House of Commons of the last Session thereof Vo
investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, in so f ar as said report relates
to any Honourable Members of Vhe Senate, said Special Committee to hear
such further evidence on oath bearing on the subj ect matter of such
report in relation to any such Honourable Members of the Senate as it may
deem desirable and in accordante with constitutional practice, and that the
said Committee be authorized Vo send for persons, papers and records.
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The second order is:-
That the fourth Report of the Special Committee of the flouse of

Commons appointed to investigate the Beauharnois Power iProject, laid on
the Table of the Senate on the lst August, 1931, be referred to the Special
Committee of the Senate appointed for the purpose of taking into con-
sideration the said report in so, far as it relates to any Honourable Members
of the Senate.

The next order will be found in the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate for
the 12th February, 1932, page 30:-

That the following senators, namely: the Honourable Senators ]3éique,
Chapais, Coppý, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, McMeans, Robinson,
and Tanner constitute the Special Committee appointed for the purpose of
taking into consideration the Report of the Special Committee
of the flouse of Commons of the last Session thereof to investigate
the Beauharnois Power Projeet in so f ar as the said Report relates to any
Honourable Members of the Senate, and that the said Committee be
authorized to sit during sittings and adjournments of the Senate.

And then we have this order:-

That a Message be sent to the flouse of Commons requesting that
buse to grant leave to their Clerk to appear and produce before a Special
Committee of the Senate a copy of the evidence adduced during the last
Session before the Special Committee of the flouse of Commons appointed
to investigate the Beauharnois Power Projeet.

Therefore it seems necessary that the Clerk of the flouse be here, Mr. Chair-
man, and that he ho required to: produce the evidence, included among which are
the Exhibits; and I assume that, for the convenience of the Committee and the
convenience of the public, that. the printed copies may be used, and that that
evidence is evidence before this Committee.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you want the Clerk called?
Mr. MANN: 1 want the Clerk of the flouse of Conimons.

ARTHUJR BEAUCHESNE, K.C., Clerk of the House of Commons, Ottawa,
appeared as a witniess, and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Mann:
Q.You are Cierk of the flouse of Commons, Mr. Beauchesne?-A. Yes.

Q. Will you look at the Exhibits before you, listed in a list signed by Mr.
Taschereau, the Clerk of Exhibits of the flouse of Commons, dated 29th of Jan-
uary, 1932, and will you look at the Appendix No. 5 of the flouse of Commons,
1931, being Report of the Special Committee, and say if you produce these
documents before this Committee as the Evidence, Proceedings and Exhibits taken
before the Special Committee of the flouse of Commons in the Beauharnois Pro-
ject investigation in 1931?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Please produce the list of alI the Exhibits that were produced in the
House of Commons Special Committee, as the Exhibits now before this Com-
mittee..-A. I produce now the list of all the Exhibits that were produced before
the Special Committee of the flouse of Commons which investigated the Beau-
harnois matter in the Session of 1931, together with the printed evidence that was
taken before that Committee.

By the Chairmcin:
Q. That printed evidence is part of the Journals of the flouse of Commons;

is that it-A. Part of the Journals, yes.
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By Mr. Mann:
QIt is Appendix INo. 5?-A. Yes, Appendix No. 5 of the Joumnals of the

House of Commons of 1931.
The CHAIRMAN: Do any of yeu gentlemen want to ask Mr. Beauchesne any-

thing?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Mr. Chairman, 1 do not wish to examine the witness, but

when the investigation was heid iast year the senators who are cencerncd in the
inquiry before your Committee were not parties to the investigation before the
bouse of Commons; se I wouid like to ask your Committee for a ruling. Is that
evidence produced with the understanding that, should any of the senators--I
arn speaking for my client-deem it advisable to cross-examine witnesses, an
opportunity not having been given iast year, is it understood that we have per-
mission to examine these witnesses if we wîsh to?

The CIIAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. ROBERTSON: May 1l take a some'what similar objection, but on broader

grounds? My client, Senator Haydon, was not even able to be present at the
examination before the House of Commonýs Committee, and had no opportunity
of taking part in it or examiningY any witnesses; so I suggest-and I do it with
deference, knowing that this Committee is net bound by any miles of evidene
or procedure-but 1 xviii submit this, after enquiring into the matter, that it is
ptecuiariy within the jurisdiction of the Senatc-the conduct of behavour or
standing of any member of the Senate-and it is net the practice, whcn a
matter is eue that pecuiiarly cornes within the Senatc's jurisdiction, te pay
attention to what bas happencd in the other House or in any Committee of
the other bouse. The matter is not one as to which this House concedes any
jurisdiction in the other bouse te inquire into. I make that objection.

The CHAIRMAN: The scope of our inquiry is very ciearly set out in the
order of reference. We do not propose to go beyond that scope. 0f course,
later on, if we wish witnesses, or if yen wish te examine witiieses, we will be
very giad te accommodate yeu in the way of having them breught here, teuching
the matters that this Committee bas te deal with.

Mr. MANN: I think, Mr. Chairman, it weuild be in order for this Committee
te pass a reselution in respect te accepting the Blue Book, the Appendix, which
has te be deait with by counsel or by the Committee, and that the Exhibits
be numbered simultaneousiy with the Exhibits as numbered in the House, in
erder te avoid confusion.

The CHAIRMAN: Is that the draft you gave me?
Mr. IMANN: Ye-s. (Draft of Rcsolution handed te Chairman, and copies

distributed te members of Committee.)
lon. M\r. BÉiQIJE: I would suggest that these werds be added after the

words " preduced upon the present inquiry "-

subject, how%,ever, te cross-examination which may be made by thc parties
intcrcstcd.

Mir. MANN: That is quite satisfactory; perfectiy ail right.
The CHAIRMAN: That is exactiy what we want te de.
Mr. MANN: Exactly. Will the clcrk read the motion?

The metion, as arnendcd, was then read by the Cierk of the Committee,
as f ollows:-

That the evidence taken and the exhibits preduced before the Speciai
Committee of the Heuse of Commons appointed te investigate the Beau-
harnois Power Project and now before this Cemmittee, be receivcd and
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accepted by this Committee to, avail as evidence before it, to the samne
extent and with the saine effeet as if the witnesses bad been examined
and the Exhibits, produced upon the present inquiry, subject, however,
te cross-examination which may be made by the parties interested; that
the Blue Book entitled " Special Committee on Beauharnois Power Pro-
ject," Session 1931, printed by the King's Printer, being Appendix No. 5
to the Journals of the House of Commons, 1931, be used, referred to and
deait with by this Committee and by counsel as containing a true traný-
script of ail things therein reported and printed; and further that the
Exhibits be given the samne numbers as those given to them before the
said Huse of Commons Committee.

The CHAIRMAN: IS that satisfactory to the Committee?
Motion agreed te.
Mr. ROBERTSON: May I speak to the resolution for a moment?
The CHAIRMAN: Yes, certainly.
Mr. ROBERTSON: I would like to make -a Suggestion, which is this. What

bas been referred by the Senate to this Committee is the report, and the report
onily. The evidence, exhibits. and ail that sort of thing bas not been referred
here. Then, that ýevidence not only was taken, in the case of my client, behind
bis back, but it was taken on an inquiry conducted for an entirely different
purpose. The conduct of no senator was in question at that time. That was
not the subjeet-matter of the inquiry. This Committee bas bad referred to it
now the duty of enquiring into the conduet of certain senators as referred to
in that report. My submission, with ail respect to this Committee, is that evi-
dence taken somewbere else-wbether i a Commons committee or anywhere--
for another purpose, would not be received in a police court; mucli less, I Submit,
shouid it be received in a place of this kind. Then, the Committee of the
Commons, it is clear-I can give this Committee reference to pages if necessary-
did not consider itsýelf bound by any rules of evidence in is inquiry, as counsel
for that Committee said on one occasion, " The sky is tbe limit "-spcaking of
what hie was bound by; " The sky is the limit "-wtbout any reference to
what the limîts were the other way. Now, one reading the evidence will find
that ail sorts of leading questions were asked, sucli as we meet in cases, but
particularly so in the case of my client, who was not there. Witnesses were
asked questions wbicb in the ordinary course of proceedings would be considered
as being atreciousiy leading.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: AlIow me te draw you attention te this. The Committee
has passed a resolution a moment ago accepting the evidence. iNow you are
objecting te that evidence being brought Up before this Committee.

Mr. ROBERTSON: I did net understand that the Committee l:ad finally
accepted the motion. I wanted te speak to it before it was decided.

Hon. Mr. BFÉiQuE: Tbere was a motion that was adopted five minutes age.
Tbat was the time for you te make objections.

.The CHAIRM~AN: I do net think you need te fear tbat this Committee is
going te ramble ail over investigating wbat this book contains, 'a wheie lot of
matter that is net relevant te our inquiry at ail; but we are able te distinguish
between tbat and wbat is relevant, I tbink.

Mr. ROBEnRTSON: But it is the evidence that might be censidered relevant
bere tbat I am objecting te, because it was net the subjeet of enquiry there.

The CHAIRMAN: But tbis Committee bas the right te leok at tbe evidence
te see if the report is well founded or net.

Mr. ROBERSON: Tbat is wbat I am submitting, with respect, that the Coin-
mittee should net do. But what this Committee is te do is really te enquire
into the conduct of these senators-itself, and net te take the other.
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The CHAIRMAN: The Committee is going Vo look at the evidence to see if
the report was justified or not justified.

Mr. ROBERTSON: But you are not trying the Committee of the Commons, to
say whether they were right in making the report, The charges are against my
client.

Hon. Mr. McMEANS: I do not think that there is anyone on trial at ail; it
îs just an inquiry.

The CHAIRMAN: You will have every opportunity of bringing any witnesses,
or cross-examining any witnesses that you like.

Mr. ROBERTSON: What I want Vo warn the Committee against is paying any
attention to the extraordinary examinations that were conducted before the Com-
mons Committee. They were noV such examinations as woffld be permitted on
an inquiry of this kind, and the Committee should noV submit to judging the
matter on that evidence.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAm: DontV you Vhink that the individuai members of
this Committee will exercise their right to value the evidence for what it May
be worth, taking into consideration everything?

Mr. ROBERTSON: 0f course, as counsel of some experience, I know the diffi-
culty and the trouble of letting the judge read anything outside of the record
except what he heard in court.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQvE: If any parties interestcd have any cross-examination to
make now is the time Vo make it.

Hon. Mr. Copp: Any witnesses that were heard at the former inquiry, any
counsel bas the right to recaîl them for any purpose, for cross-examination or
otherwise.

Hon. Mr. CH.Ais: That is accepted by the Committee.
The CHAIRMAN: What do you propose next?
Mr. MANN: Mr. Chairman, you will ail appreciate that there was a great

amount of evidence heard before the first committee a very large proportion of
which is irrelevant Vo this inquiry. IV was put in in a nun-chronolugicai way
which wouid be difficuit for this committee to follow or for anybody to follow
without considerable labour. IV was my proposai to put before the Committee
a species of chronological statement of the events leading up to the inquiry, the
matters inquired inýto, the subjeet matters referred Vo in the inquiry in order of
date, so that when you corne Vo inquire into the report and into the evidence,
and into Vhe further evidence that you may sec fit Vo eall or VhaV other persons
interested here may be privileged Vo cali it will be simple to follow. I venture
Vo suggest they will be privileged in every respect without any limitation what-
soever, to caîl anyone Vhey so desire. I think it is the desire of this Committee
that the fuilest and most searching inquiry should be made, and for that reason
in order to shorten and more systematize the matters that bave Vo be gone into
it was my suggestion Vo make a chronological statement of circumnstances and,
if that is satisfactory Vo the Committce, I wiil proceed Vo do so.

Mr. VIEN: To what extent wouid such a statement be evidence or help-
fui to the Committee? May I suggest that iV may perhaps be possible for the
learned counsel Vo advise thc committee of the inaterial i tlîis report whici ià
would be unnecessary for them to go into?

Mr. MANN: Well, in answer to my friend, Mr. Vien, I think that that is
throwing upon the committee and upon counsel a burden wbich their shouiders
are noV broad enough to carry. To do such a thing might resuit in very serious
difficulties because counsel might advise the committee, and the committee
might accept the advise of counsel, to eliminate certain portions of the evi-
dence which iV might be discovered. during the inquiry was absoiutely neces-
sary Vo determine some fact aud some circumstauce to fit into the chrono-
logical history of this iuquiry. That seems Vo me Vo be an answer to my friend,
Mr. Vien.
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Hon. Mr. BIlIQUE: I understand you have your statement in writing, the
statement you are going to give?

Mr. MANN: No, I have not got it in writing, Senator Béique. I have
memoranda.which I think I alone could read.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: You have no objection to letting us sce it before you
proceed?

Mr. MANN.- No. I think I have some copies of it here. There are some
copies here which I preparcd with the possibility in view that you might ask
for it. And I may say, Senator Béique, that there are a few interlineations and
a few explanations in respect to some of the statements that are not contained
in there but which wiii be printed in the report cf these proceedings and which
will be available, of course, to this committee.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuJE: Will you give us two minutes to consider it?
Mr. MANN: Yes, sir.
Hon. Mr. GRIESBACH: Unless counsel is permitted to read bis memoranda

into the minutes we are only wasting time, because I understand there are only
five copies avaîlable. If counsel gets on with his presentation then counsel
and everybody else wiil have an opportunity of reading the minutes of these
proceedings to-morrow. I suggcst he procced to do it.

The CHAIRMAN: Your idea, Mr. Mann, is to set out in chronologicai order
a skeleton of ail the facts?

Mr. MANN: Yes, that is it, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAIN: You are not presenting this as a speech at ail?
Mr. MANN: My idea, Mr. Chairman, is that by presenting this in chro-

nological form not only will it shorten the inquiry by systematizing the pro-
ceedings but it will be of some advantage to the committee in following the
proceedings before the House of Commons Committee, and it will also assist
counsel in following chronologically the history and circumstances of the Beau-
harnois matter.

Hon. Mr. BicWE: For my part I do not see any objection.
Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: I think it would be very useful for counsel.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: It is information not evidence.
Mr. MANN: Entirelv information, Senator Graham. Mr. Chairman, the

Committee of Inquiry before the House of Commons was brought about by
the charges cf-

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Before my friend proceeds further could we have a
copy of that statement?

Mr. MANN: I may say to the Hon. Mr. Cannon that I have had a good
deal of difficulty in gctting anybody to write anything; but we will endeavour
to have as many copies mnade as possible. I think you are wclcome to what-
ever the committee can spare.

The CHAIRMAN: You will get copies, Mr. Cannon, in the printed pro-
ceedings.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I understand that, Mr. Chairman, but I would like to
follow my learned friend as he goes along.

The CHAIRMAN: Ycs, certainly.
Mr. MANN: I was saying, Mr. Chairman, that the inquiry hefore the

House of Commons Committee resulted directly from three speeches made by
Mr. Robert Gardiner on the 22nd of May, 1930, on the 28th of May, 1930, and
on the l9th of May, 1931. These speeches are reported in Hansard of 1930 at
pages 2117 and following: then pages 2855 and following, and then pages
1875 and following of the year 1931.
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lion. Mr. Coi'p: What date is that of 1931, please? 1931 is not men-
tioned in the copy I have; it is ail 1930.

Mr. MANN: You will find it referred to on the 19th of May, 1931.
Hon. Mr. Coi'p: [it is 1930 here. That is the reason I asked the question.
Mr. MANN: The flrst one is the 22nd of May, 1930; then the 28th of May,

1930; and then the l9th of May 1931.
Hon. Mr. Copp: It is 1930 here.
Mr. MANN: It shou'ld be 1931.
Mr. VIEN: Would you repeat the references to the pages of ilansard, please?
Mr. MANN: The first reference is page 2117; the second reference is page

2855; an.d the third referen-ce is 1875, that is, of 1931.
Mr. VIEN: Thank vou.
Mr. MANN: The Commons ýCommittee met and they sat, Mr. Chairman,

from the 15th of June to the 22nd of July, and thýey had produced before them
exhibits numbered up to 129. There are a few more exhibits than 129, because
some of them are marked A and B, so there are probably about 135 exhibits. It
wilI not be necessary to refer to more than a very small proportion of those
exhibits-probably only those that are printcd in the Nlue book-and with your
permission 1 wil1 eaÀu this do-cument a blue book for short, which you have before
you.

There were four reports made. The flrst thrce reports were merely reports
of progress. The fourth report you will find at page 6 of the blue book. It was
made on the 28th of July, 1931. The rommittec took into consideration, for the
purpose of determining the scope of the inquiry, no doubt, ail the angles from
which they would have to go into questions, a species of short history of the
waterways,-the St. Lawrence waterways question. 0f course, I do flot intend,
except in thc most ýcasual rcmarks, to draw your attention to, the international
aspect of the St. Lawrence watervays question, and I only do it, Mr. Chairman,
in order that it may fit into the chronologîcal statements and the 'circumstances
coming hefore this inquiry, as weIl as certain edements fitting into the respective
commissions resulting from the respective international treaties, fitting ir as well
to the evidence which you wi1l have before you. But ia order that you will have
a complete chronological view of the international aspect, I refer you to the
report of this Special Committee of the Senate which was appointed on the 2Oth
April, 1928, in respect of which Senator Tanner was chaîrman. That committee
was appointed on the 2Oth April, 1928, and it hrought in its report in book form.
in July, 1928.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Is that one of the exhibits, Mr. Mann?
Mr. MANN: It is an appendix te the minutes of the proceedings of the

Senate.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I know, but has it been filed?
Mr. MANN: 1 do not know. The report bas been filed.
lion. Mr. CANNON: 1 mean before the Special Committee last vear.
Mr. MANN: Yes. The report you will find in the appendix. It is referred

to in several places, and I am only giving you that in order to shorten what I
was about to say, namely, that I do not want to go into the national aspect of
the international treaties:; that the whole of this perhaps will be found in the
beginning of that report at page 8, roman numerals.

On the 7th of May, 1924, there was finally the appointment of the engineers
representing the Dominion Government to an international board known as the
Joint Engineering Board. That resuilted from the negotiations spread over
several years, the appointmcnt of the United States engineering members of that
Board, and finally appointment by the members to represent that Board named
by the Canadian government then in office.
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On the 27th of May, 11924, there was appointed the National Advisory Com-
mittee. That committee was appointed under Privy Council Order 779, and is
Exhibit 113. Consequently it wili be Exhibit 113, by virtue of your resolution,
in this inquiry.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Are you sure the Senate appointed that commit-
tee?

Mr. MANN: No, the government.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Apoint-ed by Order-in-Council.
Mr. MANN: I beg your pardon. It was a goverument committee appointed

by Order in Council P.C. 779 on the 7th of May, 1924. I said the 27th-it was
the 7th.

Now, I thinkç this Order in Council ought to be read to the Committee,
because it is thc beginning of the -circumstances which we are going to review
in the next few days:-

P.C.779.7th May, 1924.

The Committee of the Privy Council have had before thema a Report,
dated 7th May, 1924, from the Secretary of State for External Affairs,
,submitting that the question of improving the navigation on the St.
Lawrence Waterway so as to provide access to, the Great Lakes for
maritime commerce, is one of considerable difficulty and complication,
and its right decision may be of the highest possible importance to Can-
ada. The project necessarily involves collaboration with the United
States of America and the expenditure of very large sums cf money.
The minutest examination of the problemn in ail its aspects, financial,
economic, technical and international, is not only justified but essential.
The International Joint Commission has held hearings on, the subjeet in
both. Canada and the United States, and has submitted a most elaborate
and valuable report; the engineering problems involved have already
been the subject cf inquiry and report by an international bGard of
engineers, and are te be further investigated by another gucb Board;
other technical connected questions are in course cf being studied by an
interdepartmental committee.

The Minister is cf the opinion that it would be in the public intefrest
to constitute a National Advisory Committee, to consider generaily
whether or net the projeet would, if completeýd, be beneficial to Canada,
whether the benefits which might acrrie and the pecuniary returns, direct
or indirect, which may be anticipated from it are such as te counter-
balance its disadvantages, if any, whether Your Excellency should indi-
cate a readiness te enter into discussions with thec United States of
America looking tewardis the negotiation of a treaty for the carr-ying out
of the necessary works, and what shouid be the charaýcter cf the stipula-
tions which any *such treaty shouid contain.

The Minister accerdingly recomniends that a National Advisory
Cemmittee be constituted for the purposes aforesaid, the Hlonourable
George Perrv Graham, Minister cf Bailways and Canais, te be Chairman
thereof, and the following te be its xnembers:-

Thomas Ahearu, Ottawa, Ont.
Honourabie Walter Edward Foster, St. John, IN.B.
Beaudry Leman, B.Se., C.E., Montreal, P.Q.
Edward D. Martin, Winnipeg. Man.
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Dr. Wilfrid Laurier McDougald, Montreal, P.Q.
Honourable Sir Clifford Sifton, K.C.M.G., K.C., Toronto, Ontario.
Major-General John William Stewart, C.B., C.M.G., Vancouver, B.C.
Honourable Adelard Turgeon, C.M.G., C.V.O., Quebec, P.Q.

The Committee concur in the foregoing recoinmendatîon and submit
the same for approval.

(Sgd.) E. J. LEMAIRE,
Clerk of the Privy Council.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: There seemsý to have been confusion always in
the public mind as to the functions of that National Advisory Committee. Lt
was in no sense international, hýeld no meetings jointly with the similar committee
of the United States Governent. A committce was appointed on eaeha side of
the line to advise its own government whether this project, if carried out, would
be beneficial to its ewn country. Lt had nothing to do with the other country.

Mr. MANN: That w'as the committee m-hich was appointed by this govern-
ment for the purposes which you have just mentioned.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: The reason I interject this is so that members
of the committee will not be led astray in thinking that it had functiors similar
to the Joint Engineering Board. Each side appointed members of a joint
engineering board that met internationally as well as nationally; but this board
was simply for the Dominion Government.

Mr. MAN.N: Exactly. If I have creatcd the impression otherwise I regret
it. It was purely a Canadian order.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Lt is a general impression.
Mr. MANN: Well, I may say it was a general impression with me for quite

a number of hours before I discovered it, it became a particular impression later.
Now, sir, I want to say here that it will becoine necessary-in disciissing

this in chronological order of events-to name certain gentlemen who will be
named throughout the investigations and throughout the evidence and through-
out the reports. I merely mention themn by name as part of the circumstance
of the chronology and for no other purpose; but it becomes a necessity in order
to follow the chronology from beginning to end and s0 that you may appreciate
what many persons intcrested-and some honourable gentlemen interested-
was the value of the water power projeet hoth f rom a navigation point of view
and from a power point of view. And, in that respect, I go to the report of the
National Advisory Committee, which is Exhibit 77. 1 am reading f rom page 19
cf the exhibit, and the report of the majority of the comnïittee. After all, it
was the report; but there werc observations given by two of the member.IS of the
committee in the form of a minority report. This is the observations cf the
miajority of the committee at page 19, Section 4:-

We believe that if a reasonable time were permitted in which Vo
enable the resultant power to he economically absorbed the development
of this national section would be undertaken by private agencies able
and willing Vo finance the entire work, including the necessary canaliza-
tion, in return for the right te develop the power.

Then at top of page 21:-
For the same reasons which convince us that the development cf the

national section of the St. Lawrence should be entirely domestie, we feel
that the Welland ship canal should continue Vo, retain its purely Canadian
complexion and be completed Vo whatever depth may ultimately be agreed
upon, at the expense cf Canada.
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Still reading from page 21 of the majority report:--
In conclusion we would suggest that early opportunity be taken to

reply to the overtures to Canada which the United States has made in
regard to the St. Lawrence project, and we are of opinion that Canada's
reply should contain the general sense of the views herein expressed. We
would add the suggestion that, in view of the delicacy of the international
negotiations involved, it would be inadvisable that our report be made
public until such time as, in the discretion of the Government, it might
be published without prejudce to Canadian interests.

The minority report,-it is not stated as a minority report but it is stated
to be " Observations upon the report of the Canadian National Advisory Com-
mittee, by certain of its members." That is signed by Beaudry Leman and
Hon. Adelard Turgeon, and it says, at page 27 of the report:-

It would appear of great importance that the Crown retain perman-
ently its proprietary rights in all the improvements connected with this
vast undertaking and pertaining to both navigation and power develop-
ment. It is not difficult to visualize the immense value to Canada of
retaining the control and disposal of such a large amount of hydro-
electric energy admirably situated and which may be advantageously
developed. In respect of an undertaking of this magnitude, which may
insure the prosperity of many generations of Canadian citizens, the per-
manent ownership of this great Canadian heritage should not be sur-
rendered to private interests but the operation of the power works
developed by such a project could be leased or farmed out, under condi-
tions to be studied and determined.

In the opinion of the undersigned, the project is feasible and prac-
ticable and may be proceeded with when the important economic and
financial questions involved in such an undertaking, a few of which are
outlined in the preceding paragraphs, have been satisfactorily dealt with.

Now, proceeding shortly to the report, which you have before you-

The CHAIRMAN: What is the date of the report?
Mr. MANN: The date of the report, Mr. Chairman, is the 11th January, 1928.
Further to the importance of the power project, I draw your attention to

page 6 of the report of the Commons committee, after hearing the evidence for
a month and a half. That is page 6 Roman numerals of the Fourth Report
of the House of Commons Committee:-

(1) The Soulanges section of the St. Lawrence river is that portion
thereof lying between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis which are
some 14½ miles apart, and between which there is a fall of 83 feet. The
average normal available flow of the river through this section is in the
vicinity of 230,000 cubic feet per second for 50 per cent of the time,
making possible a development of 2,000,000 horse power of commercial
electrie energy at 85 per cent load factor. The site is in close proximity
to the City and Port of Montreal, and is conveniently located on what
must soon be a waterway capable of accommodating ocean-going vessels.
It has therefore great possibility for industrial development if cheap power
is available.

"(2) It is apparent that the Soulanges section thus presents an oppor-
tunity for hydro-electrie development almost if not quite unique on the
face of the globe. It is one of the greatest national resources in Canada,
and in its natural state of great potential value."

Now, I think that view was shared by one honourable member, and I may
refer you, without reading, to the speech of the honourable member, Senator
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McDougald, published in 1930 at page 45 of the Debates of the Senate, Feb-
ruary 2, 1928, in which the honourable gentleman had the opportunity of review-
ing the situation and of referring to it as one of the greatest water powers on
the face of the earth. It may be quite easily said that the celebrated Muscle
Shoals, and Boulder Dam power projects in the United States were children
beside the possibilities of the Soulanges section of Beauharnois.

I will proceed as shortly as possible now to the circumstances leading up
to the organization of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company and
Inter the Beauharnois Power Company, and all of the circumstances that inter-
vened right up to the date of the inquiry.

You have before you in the blue book-and you will be obliged to read
and will read with care and interest-the history of Beauharnois, which is very
shortly stated in the report. It began in 1796, and up to 1902 there does not
appear to be anything except a general dealing with minor phases of the power
problem and the possibility of the developing of that section. It was nothing
more nor less than a small feeder to the St. Louis River, which was a grant to
the original Seigneur de Beauharnois, and the feeder was built by him for the
purpose of increasing the flow of the St. Louis River, a little river running from
Lake St. Francis and running out near the village of Melocheville into Lake
St. Louis. That was used by and leased to adjoining farmers from time to time
for operating their grist and saw mills.

In 1902 a family named Robert had acquired all of the rights of the original
grantees and they formed a corporation known as the Beauharnois Light, Heat
and Power Company. There was some discussion as to what rights the Roberts
had; but in any event what rights they did have they transferred to the Beau-
harnois Light, Heat and Power Company in 1902. There was litigation before
the Exchequer Court, and in 1904 the Exchequer Court rendered its decision,
indicating that while the Roberts did not have all the rights they thought they
had, they had at least some rights in the power development in that section.

In 1909, as a compromise, a Privy Council order issued leasing to them for
a period of 21 years the feeder which, in the meantime, had been enlarged.

The Canadian members of the enlarged Joint Engineering Board were Mr. D.
W. MeLachlan, Mr. Lefebvre, and Mr. Charles H. Mitchell, who are referred to
throughout the evidence. They were appointed on 7th of May, 1924. The
National Advisory Committee was appointed by P.C. 779 on the 7th May,
1924. On the 5th July, 1924, Mr. R. A. C. Henry, who is referred to at page
XVIII, had in his mind the canalization of the water power of the Soulanges
section on the north shore.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: On which shore?
Mr. MANN: I beg your pardon, on the south shore. Mr. Henry was an

engineer who had a very substantial interest in water powers; that was one
of his pet hobbies. In 1912 he joined the Department of Railways and Canals
of Canada, and he remained with that department until 1923. It is perhaps
important for the Committee to have Lhis chronology, because Mr. Henry was
examined at very great length as a witness. He went with that department
first as an engineer in 1912, and in 1923 he went to the Canadian National Rail-
ways, remaining with them until the 14th February, 1929, when he became
Deputy Minister of the Department of Railways and Canals.

On the 5th July, 1924, a company was formed, named the Sterling Indus-
trial Corporation. That company was formed by Mr. Henry. It is fair to say
that it was conceived by Mr. Henry and borne by him. Its birthrigit, to some
extent, was helped by the Hon. Senator McDougald, who advanced Mr. Henry
the sum of $10,000. That company will be referred to later in the chronology
of events. What Mr. Henry did with the $10,000 is perfectly clear. He em-
ployed engineering skill, he paid engineers, he had reports made to him; and
in any event, there was nothing improper in any shape or form in the advancing
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of $10,000 to Mr. Henry to further the hobby which he had. I have to state
here that one of the incorporators of that company on the 5th July, 1924, was
the Hon. Senator Haydon. I think his firm then was composed of the late H. B.
McGiverin, Senator Haydon, and Mr. John P. Ebbs. Mr. Ebbs was also examined

at great length in the inquiry. Only five shares of the company were ever issued.

At page XVIII of the report you will see that the Committee refers to the fact

that on the 5th July, 1924, an application was made by this company to the

Department of Railways and Canals, for the right to divert from the St. Law-

rence river 30,000 c..f.s. at lake St. Francis and to use the same for power pur-

poses. On the 7th July, 1924, a similar application was made to the Depart-
ment of Public Works.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAm: By the Sterling Company?

Mr. MANN: Yes, by the Sterling Industrial Corporation. The first one was

on the 5th July, 1924, and the next was on the 7th July.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Which shore were they dealing with, the south
shore?

Mr. MANN: The south shore. Those applications have a very important

bearing on the general circumstances, because when we get down to 1929 we
shall sec that they were considered by the honourable gentleman to whom I

have referred and Mr. Henry to have been very effective measures looking

to a prior right to a diversion of 30,000 c.f.s. of water from the St. Lawrence in

the Soulanges section. On the 26th September, 1926, Mr. John P. Ebbs, of the

then firm of McGiverin, Haydon & Ebbs, became President of the Sterling
Industrial Corporation.

Hon. Mr. CoPP: Who became President?

Mr. MANN: John P. Ebbs, on the 26th September, 1926. I am not sure if
Mr. McGiverin was dead then, but in any event the firm is now Haydon & Ebbs.

Hon. Mr. CoPP: You have referred to Mr. McGiverin several times as a

Senator. By so doing, you may cause confusion.

Mr. MANN: I beg your pardon. Mr. McGiverin was head of the firm but

I do not remember when he died. His name ceased to be in the firm name shortly
after he died. The firm now is Haydon & Ebbs; I am using the term " honour-
able gentleman " so often that I may at times use it where it should not be used.

Hon. Mr. Copp: The only reason I interrupted you was because if you refer

to the late Mr. McGiverin as a senator you may cause confusion by getting his
name mixed up with that of someone else.

Mr. MANN: Yes, you are quite right, Senator Copp; I appreciate that.
In 1926, or thereabouts, Mr. R. O. Sweezey comes into the picture. He was an

engineer of unlimited scientific imagination with respect to power, apparently.
He certainly was a man of indomitable courage and nerve. He says that after
the report of the Joint Board of Engineers was made he had a discussion with
an honourable member of the Senate with respect to that report, and it is only
fair to say that all he did was to ask the honourable member for his views on the

subject. What those views were do not appear. On the 3rd February, 1927,
Mr. Sweezey procured from the heirs of the Robert family an option on the stock
of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company. That is the family that
I referred to a little while ago as having formed the Beauharnois Light, Heat
and Power Company in 1902. If you will look at page VII of the report you
will find a condensed statement, showing that Mr. Sweezey procured an option
of all the issued capital stock of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Com-
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pany, ail the shares in which were owned by W. H. Robert and other members
of the Robert family, some 2,000 shares. At page VII, under the heading " The
Robert Interests," in section (5) there is this:

(5) W. H. Robert and the other Robert Heirs received for the 2,000
shares of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company and such
other rights, if any, as were then outstanding in them

(1) Cash $1,520,000.
(2) 200 fully paid part interests in the Beauharnois Power Syn-

dicate.
(3) 21,000 Class A shares of the Beauharnois Power Corporation.
(4) 100 fuliy paid part interests in the Beauharnois Syndicate trans-

ferred from R. O. Sweezey account, which became 200 part
interests in the Beauharnois Power Syndicate.

Now, 1 must say that the report there may be confusing, because it bas
anticipated itself away beyond 1927. What happened was this, that negotiations
went on between Mr. Sweezey and the Roberts. The original proposition
between Mr. Sweezey and the Roberts was not to give them this large sum in
cash and these part interests and this stock, because at that time Mr. Sweezey
had not in his mmnd projected or thought of or worked out the incorporation of
the Beauharnois Power Corporation, which was a corporation that came into
being oniy in 1929. Mr. Sweezey, of course, had an agreement with the Roberts,
the details of which it may be necessary to reveai later. On the 3rd February,
1927, Mr. H. B. Griffith, who was aiso examined as a witness at the inquiry,
became a Director of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company. Remem-
ber, Mr. Chairman, that as I said a moment ago, the Beauharnois Power Cor-
poration had not been conceived at that time in any shape. In 1927 there
was an application made to amend the charter of the Beauharnois Light, Heat
and Power Company, and on the l7th March, 1927, it is important to note, an
application was made for an Order in Council approving of a power canal
from Lake St. Francis to Lake St. Louis " which eau be readily adapted for 30
feet navigation requirements " and use of the necessary w ater not to interfere
with navigation. Now, that application was not pressed in March 1927.

The CEAIRMAN: To whomo was that application made?

Mr. MANN: It was filed on the l7th March, 1927, but it was not then pressed.

The CHAIRMAN: Fiied where?

Mr. MANN: With the Department of Railways and Canais, asking for an
Order in Council. The application is referred to on page VII of the Committee's
report. In May 1927 Mr. Sweezey had got f ar enough along to determine that he
would form the first syndicate, and here is reaily the beginning of ail the im-
portant circumstances. He organized what he calied the Beauharnois Syndicate,
which was an unincorporated syndicate with by-iaws which are of record in the
Blue Book, and with agreements to be signed hy members who joincd the Syn-
dicate. The whoie details will be found on page XII of the report. That Syndicate
whieh was organized on the l2th May, 1927, went out of existence on the 4th
April, 1928. I shall speak of that date, the 4th April, 1928, in few moments when
I come te the new syndicate, known as the Beauharnois Power Syndicat'e, or the
second Syndicate.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Was this one unincorporated?

Mr. MANN: Both of them were unincorporated. At page XII of the Com-
mittee's report there appear the names of the subseribers to, the Syndicate organ-
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ized in May 1927, but it must be borne in mind that those are not the persons
who subscribed at the beginning; they are those who during the whole period in
which the Syndicate was in existence became members of it and subscribed to the
5,000 units.

On the 13th June, 1927, Mr. Sweezey took complete command of the Beau-
harnois Light, Heat and Power Company, and he thereupon put in his new Board.
On the 11th January, 1928, the National Advisory Committee rendered their
report. On the 17th January, 1928, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power

Company made an application to the Governor General in Council for approval
under the Navigable Waters Protection Act, for the diversion of 40,000 c.f.s.
It may be appropriate to refer here to Exhibit 1-A, which contains the famous
Privy Council Order No. 422, passed on the Sth March, 1929. That application
of the 17th January, 1928, was the application which, subject to changes and con-
ditions made and imposed, became Privy Council Order No. 422, of the 8th
March, 1929.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: You say the application became the Order in Council?

Mr. MANN: The application was the basis of the Order in Council of the 8th
March, 1929.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Or was the reason?
Mr. MANN: Well, I would say that it was something that brought into being

the Order in Council, if you prefer that. Any language that you choose is per-
fectly satisfactory, I am sure, to me.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: The Order in Council was the answer.

Mr. MANN: The Order in Council was an answer. Exhibit 1-A, I may say,
is merely a copy of the Votes and Proceedings of the House of Commons, in
which is contained Privy Council Order No. 422. At page 5 it will be seen:-

That the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company bas asked
for the approval of its proposed development and in connection therewith
made application for all such authority from the Dominion Government
as may be necessary to divert from Lake St. Francis to Lake St. Louis and
use an initial flow of 40,000 cubic feet of water per second, and, pursuant
to the provisions of section 7, chapter 140, Revised Statutes of Canada,
1927, the Navigable Waters Protection Act-the Company. has applied
for the approval of the plans and site of works proposed to be constructed
in the St. Lawrence River with respect to the diversion of the flow of water
mentioned above (Plans of the works consisting of 12 sheets and descrip-
tions and plans of the site thereof, in booklet form, annexed) ; and so forth.

I have been reading from Privy Council Order No. 422, but this is stated
in the Order as being part of the application of the company:-

Should the Company desire to enlarge its canal and increase the flow
of water through it prior to the time at which the Government shall notify
it to install the locks above referred to the Company shall have the right to
enlarge its canal and divert through it and utilize for the development of
power all the flow of the St. Lawrence River between Lake St. Francis and
Lake St. Louis with the exception of water required for flotage through
the existing Soulanges Canal and with the exception of that quantity of
water to the user of which existing power plants are now legally entitled,
if at the same time it either constructs the locks above referred to, or
alternately, at the option of the Government; deposits with the Govern-
ment suitable guarentees to ensure the installation of the locks when they
are required.
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That is the substance of the application that I have just referred to, and
whicb, as suggcsted by the right honourable senator, resulted in an answer,
wbich is known as Privy Council Order No. 422.

That was in 1928. This matter, of course, was the subject -of a great
amount of public intcrest and discussion, as weli as of debate in the Senate and
the Huse of Cammons. I would merciy refer ta the Debates of the Senate of
the 2nd February, 1928, for an indication of the views of some bonourable mcm-
bers namcd as ta the great value of this project from -the standpoint of power.

Now, to go back to the syndicates, on the 26th Mardi, 1928, which was
witbin eight or nine days prior ta the time that the first syndicate was dis-
solved, you wiil find that Senator Raymond frankly admits baving 800 part
interests in that syndicate in the name of the Crédit Général du Canada. That
was the financiai organization used for the purpose of his enterprises. I arn
reminded by my friend Mr. Smith, tlîat I should say, in fairness ta Senator Ray-
mond, that the Crédit Général',- cheque had 'been put in a long time prior to
that; it is stated in the evidence that thc cheque was paid long before it appears
be became a member of the syndicate, when the shares were given and the part
interests were allotted to him. On the 4th April, 1928, there were ýallotments
ta Mr. Frank Joncs and ta Mr. L. Clare Moyer of 800 part interests in that
syndicate. Mr. Frank Jones does not furtber appear, because in the course of
a few months he sold out and took bis mýoney out, took wbatcvcr profit there
was. Senator Raymond sold at the same time. These* gentlemen do not
appear further in respect of the second syndicate, eycept that Senator Raymond
did buy 350 shares from one party and one share from anather party, in the
second syndicate, and he dîd own 351 part înterests in the second syndicate.
This syndicate we are concerned with now is the Beauharnois Power Syndicate.

On the 4tb April, 1928, Mr. L. Clare Moyer, a iawyer, subscrîbed for and
was allotted 800 shares of the first syndicate. That was the day that the first
syndicate dissolved, and it is stated that these shares were purchased on behaif
of the late Mr. W. B. Sifton. Those shares were purchased at $37.50. Incident-
aily, the shares purcbased by Senator Raymond were at $37.50, and those pur-
chased by Mr. Joncs were at $37.50. Thc ather shares were purchascd at from
$42 up ta $100 -a share, the average price of the shares being some $46.92, 1
think, including some 600 shares that were given ta Mr. Swcezcy for notiing.
When I say " for nothing " I mean not for moncy but for engineering services
and otiher work rendcrcd and information supplicd.

As a result of the dissolution of the first syndicate on the 4th April, 1928,
the Beaubarnois Power Syndicate was formed that day. Ail members in the
aid syndicate, thc Beaubarnois Syndicate, wcre given two part interests in the
Beauharnois Power Syndicate for one in the oid, as and from thc 4th April,
1928. Thc resuit was that members who iad subscribed in the old syndicate
for 800 part intercsts îmmediateiy became vcstcd with 1,600 part intercsts. And
ail other members were treated in the eame proportion.

On thc l8th May, 1928, one of the bonourable members mentioned in the
inquiry took over the interests stated by Mr, Moyer ta have been for Mr. Sifton.
This bonourable gentleman bas stated in public and in bis evidence tbat he took
over those intcrests on that date, thougi he bas aIseo stated in evidence tiat he
did bave chats about taking thcm over at a prior time.

Now, going on ta tbe 23rd June, 1928, there waýs an empiyteutic Icase.
Hon. Senatar Béique will be able ta infarm ather boneurable members of the
Committee ta the fullcst extent wiat an cmphyteutic lease is in French law.
In the presence of Hon. Senatar Béique and Mr. Aimé Geaffrion, I besitate ta
give a definition of an emphyteutic lease. In -any event, this anc was for seventy-
five years. It imports within its faur corners not only a icase but tic rigit in
tic soul, and it was grantcd on tic understanding tiat tic present negotiationa
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with the Federal Government should result in authority to divert 40,000 c.f.s. of
the river St. Lawrence. Between the 4th April and the month of October, 1928,
Mr. L. Clare Moyer subscribed to the second syndicate, the Beauharnois Power
Syndicate, for 1,600 part interests. That would be the additional equivalent
of the original 800 which he had in the first syndicate. All the members had
that right to subscribe at $100, and Mr. L. Clare Moyer did subscribe for
another 1,600, undertaking an obligation of $160,000, of which ten per cent was
payable.

On the 28th of October, 1928, one of the honourable Senators mentioned
in the inquiry took over by an agreement all of the Moyer interests-that is
to say, he took over 3,200 part interests in the syndicate, which Moyer states
in his evidence had been subscribed for on behalf of Mr. Sifton. In any event,
the honourable Senator stated in his evidence, and before the Senate, that in
October, 1928, he did take these over-and there is no doubt about that-in
the form of a transfer direct to him of these part interests, which later on
became cash and stock in the Beauharnois Power Company. The honourable
gentleman said that on the 18th of May he had paid Mr. Sifton for the shares.
The method of payment, I think, was said to be in bonds through Mr. C. A.
Barnard, if I remember correctly. They were taken over on the 18th of May,
and formally and documentarily taken over in October.

The Sterling Industrial Corporation, the creature of Mr. Henry comes
into the picture in December, 1928. You will note that all this time the appli-
cation of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company was before the
Government and met with more or less varying success. It is my duty to invite
your attention to Exhibit No. 75, an agreement between the Beauharnois Power
Corporation of the one part and John P. Ebbs of the other part, and one Lyla
Brennan, of the city of Ottawa, stenographer in Hon. Senator Haydon's office,
of the other part. That is a trust agreement whereby the 2,000 part interests
in the Beauharnois Power Syndicate which had been issued for the shares of
Sterling Industrial Corporation in October, 1928, were to be acquired by the
Beauharnois Power Corporation. These five shares were to be handed over to
Miss Brennan to be held by her, as trustee, and the consideration for the pur-
chase of these five shares, that had been issued and lain dormant was 2,000
part interests of Beauharnois Power Syndicate. That agreement was made
upon the condition that Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company's appli-
cation before the Governor in Council was approved. The condition is:-

If the said application of the said Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power
Company for the approval of its plan and site be not granted by the
Dominion Government on or before the 28th day of February, 1929,
then the trustee shall return to the said Ebbs and/or his nominees
the share certificates of the Sterling Industrial Corporation Limited
and the said Marquette Investment Corporation-

that was a Trustee Corporation formed by Sweezey for the purpose of dealing
in securities and finances of the Beauharnois Power Company.

-shall be no longer entitled to issue the said 2,000 part interests or
any part thereof or certificates in virtue of this agreement and of the
said resolution.

The sale was subject to the passing of the application of the Beauharnois Light,
Heat and Power Company.

Now, just prior to the 8th of March, 1929, there was an invitation issued
to all the interests who chose to discuss the application of the Beauharnois
Light, Heat and Power Company, and you will find in Exhibit 1-A that at that
meeting Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, K.C., who was acting as counsel for the Beau-
harnois Light, Heat and Power Company, in view of the protests put forth
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by a number of companies such as the Canada Steamships, the Canadian
Light, Heat and Power, and others, agreed to a very immediate and complete
modification of the application of the Company, and he said viva voce at the
meeting that:

The application of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company now
pending before the Governor in Council is purely and simply for
the approval of plans for hydraulic development which will be subject
to a condition that not more than 40,000 cubic feet per second shall
be diverted from the river--from lake St. Francis, to be returned to
Lake St. Louis, and used for power purposes by the Company between
these two points; and any condition that the Government may exact,
in any wording satisfactory to the Government, involving that limi-
tation, is accepted in advance by the applicant. If the engineers think
that the plans should be altered to meet this declaration, the Com-
pany will submit to any such alteration.

On the 14th of February, 1929, Mr. R. A. C. Henry was appointed Deputy
Minister of Railways and Canals, and on Sth of March, 1929, the famous Order
in Council, No. 422, which is Exhibit 2-A, and is contained in Exhibit 1-A, was
passed.

On the 25th of June, 1929, resulting from P.C. Order 422, an agreement
was executed between the Department of Public Works and the Beauharnois
Light, Heat and Power Company. This was followed by the filing of modified
plans on the 23rd of July, and a further application on the 29th of July,
1929, for the acquisition of 9,064 feet of Hungry Bay Dyke. Hungry Bay
Dyke, I may say, was merely a dyke built by the Dominion Government
following the completion of the Beauharnois Canal. The Beauharnois Canal
was built in 1845, and later on there was an enlargement of the feeder, and
there were hydraulic works which resulted in a certain amount of flooding, and
so forth, and a dyke was built along the foreshore. The part of this map
(Exhibit 18) which is closest to me is Lake St. Francis. The river runs off to
the north of Grand Isle, which is between the north shore and the town of
Valleyfield. This dyke was built following what would be the west shore of the
Soulange section, and is shown by a line on the exhibit I now show you.

The application of the 29th of July was an application to acquire in the
vicinity of a mile and three-quarters of the Hungry Bay Dyke. This is all
prior to the Beauharnois Corporation coming into being. Then follows the 7th
of August, 1929. It appears from the evidence, and I say it in general terms,
that while plans were to have been produced and complete plans approved, they
were not produced or approved in conformity with the requirements of the
respective orders. This is merely stated generally in the report, and I state it
generally here, if it ever becomes necessary during this inquiry to discuss
the engineering problems. But the plans were net approved, and on the 7th
of August this gigantic power project was proceeding without definite approval
of the plans on which it was being built.

On the 17th of September, 1929, the Beauharnois Power Company was
incorporated in the office of McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs. There flowed from
that company some subsidiary companies known as the Beauharnois Construc-
tion Company, the Beauharnois Transmission Company, the Beauharnois Land
Company, the Beauharnois Railway Company, and the Marquette Construction
Company, which was a Delaware company formed for the purpose of taking over
and leasing United States machinery. Those were the children of the Beau-
harnois Power Company.

On the 31st of October, 1929, there was an agreement entered into between
the Beauharnois Power Syndicate, the Marquette Investment Corporation and
the Beauharnois Power Corporation, which is the organization of the Beau-
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harnois Power 'Company. That is Exhibit No. 55. By that Exhibit, and by the
transaction which took place in the ýoffice of the firm of McGiverin, Haydon and
Ebbs, the Beauharnois Power Syndicate purported to seli to the Beauharnois
Power Corporation ail the right, titie and interest which it, the Beauharnois
Power Syndicate, had acquired through the iseries of events to which I have
drawn your attention during the last hourand a haif, for $4,750,000 in cash, to
be paid to the Beauharnois Syndicate, $10,000 to be used for the purpose of
liquîdating and winding up the Beauharnois Power Syndicate and taking care of
the liabilities. The members of the syndicate were also given the power to
subscribe to Glass A shares of the Beauharnois Power Corporation to the extent
of one million at the price of $1 per share. The same day an agreement was
entered into between the Beauharnois Power Company and Newman, Sweezey
and Company, of which Mr. Sweezey was the principal operator, under which
there was an undertaking to purchase from the Beauharnois Power Corporation
$30,000,000 of bonds at ninety, or $27,,000 (six per cent bonds), the price
being $30,000,000 of bonds and 770,000 shares of Glass A stock.

On the 5th of December, 1929, there was an Ord-er in Council passed in
Quebec -authorizing the transfer and assigument of certain waterpower leases
at Beauharnois which had been vested in cotton companies, and those were
assigned to the Beauharnois Power Corporation with the net resuit that the
Beauharnois Light, Heat and Powe-r Company, of which ail the stock was owned
by the Beauh-arnois Power Company-aii the assets had been transferred by
the Beauharnois Power Syndicate-had then vested in it the right of diversion
of 53,072 cubic second feet of the St. Lawrence river of a total estimated flow
of 230,000 cubie second feet.

On the l7th of December, 1929, the Beauharno-is Power Syndicate-that is
the second syndicate-was dissoived-you wilil find this at page 13 of the report-
then there necessariiy became vested in Mr. John P. Ebbs, on behaîf of the
honourable gentleman, 5,200 part ýshares of the 25,000 in that syndicate, with
the result, of course, that the syndicate had received the $4,750,000, divided
rateably among them. The resuit was that the syndicate got $150 cash and
forty shares of the Ciass A stock of the Beauharnois Power Corporation for
each part interest of the Beauharnois Power Syndicate.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I have not, thought fit tio go further in a chronological
way. 1 have brought you up to 1930, and it does not seem necessary to go
further than that at the moment.

The matters that you have to deai with have reference to the Hon. Andrew
Haydon, Hon. Wilfrid Laurier McDougaid and Hon. Donat. Raymond. Senator
Haydon was called to the Senate on the llth of March, 1924. 1le is a barrister
of réputation, a graduate of Queen's University, and a trustee of Queen's Uni-
versity. Hon. Wilfrid Laurier McDougald was cailed to the Senate on the
25th of June, 1926. H1e was twice chairman of the Montreai Board of Harbour
Commissioners, being first appointed in January, 1922, and the second time in
October, 1926. He is a graduate of McGili University. The Hon. Donat
Raymond, who was summoned to the Senate on the 22nd of Novûmber, 1926,
is weli known in financial rircles in Montreal. They are ail men of standing,
education, and of great financial responsibiility and wealth.

These gentlemen, sir, do not stand eharged before this Committee; they
stand named in a report of the Committee of the Flouse of Commons which
this committee bas thought, fit to act upon. They do not stand impeached
before this committee in any way. They are here for the purpose of an inquiry
into matters which have been mentioned and with which their names have
been connected throughout the evidence given before the Flouse of Commons
committee. Lt is fair to say that these men did to, some extent answer the
suggestions made against them. Senator llaydon was not able to, appear before
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the committee, a certificate of the doctor-I think it was Dr. Argue-stating
that he was not able to appear. Senator Raymond did appear. His evidence
appears at pages 787 and 796, and I merely invite your attention to that evi-
dence. Senator McDougald also appeared before the Commons committee. His
evidence is very extensive and your attention is invited to that evidence aise.
I may say, sir, that Hon. Senator McDeugald also defended himseif mn speeches
that he made before the Senate on the l9th of April, 1928, the 3Oth of May, 1931,
and the l6th of July, 1961, If you care for the references I can give thein
to you-the first one, the l9th of April, is page 236 of the Senate Debates of
1928; that of the 3Oth of May of 1931 is to be found ýat page 129 and following
of the Debates of the Senate of that year, and the honourable gentleman's speech
of the l6th of Jiily will be found ýat page 434 and following. I shall noV refer
to these speeches in any way 110W.

I think it is for you gentlemen te consîder that this is net a trial of indi-
vîduals; this is a matter for ýconsideration as te whether the dignity and privi-
leges of the Senate have been assailed, if any of its members have been guilty
of any offences, whether any of them has been guilty of breaches of trust, guilty
of corruption, guilty of breaches of duty as senators, or men occupving public
office, of conduct unbecoming the character of a gentleman, or subordinating
their duties as public men to their personal interests. I suggest, sir, that it is
the Comrnittee's desire, and the obligation that it has assumed towards these
honourable gentlemen, the Senate itself, and the people of Canada, that this
inquiry should be as searching and rigorous as it is possible to make it, and that
every opportunity should be given to these gentlemen to have any witnesses they
want cxamincd in the most searching and exhaustive way. Tlîey may have
every benefit of cross examination ef any witness you think fit Vo cail, so that
in every respect this question which has been a stain on the character of the
honourable gentlemen and upon the dignity and honour of the Senate, may be
probed to the bottoin. Everything, must be donc to obtain justice and truth in
order that the Committee may fulfil its duty te the people of Canada and to the
Honourable bouse of which they are members.

The Committce adjourned until 3.30 pi.

The Cornmittee resumed at 3.30 pi.
All the members of the Comrnittee heing present.

The CHAIRMAN: Now, gentlemen, -what will be our next step?
Mr. MANN: Mr. Chairman, the preliminaries of this inquiry have occupied

very mucli less tîme than we thought they would. Under the circumstances,
there had been some witnesses summoncd, but rather than have them stay
around here and do nothing, they have heen asked tocorneto-morrow morning.
I arn informed that there is one witness here who was asked te attend. If he
wants Vo give bis evidence ho may do so, but uinder the reserve of his returning
at a laVer date for cross-examination. If it is the deésire of the Committee that
hc should bc heard wc sec no objection to hcaring Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, and of
course we iust be just to, the Committee, with the reserve that he return for
oross-examination at a laVer date.

Hon. Mr. BIiIQIJE: Possibly you might wait until you have heard bis evi-
dence.

Mr. GEOFFRION: I have no objection whatever tocorne back if I arn needed
for cross-examination. I will try so that there will be no0 need of it, but if there
is any need I will corne.

Mr. MANN. We have no objection te the examination of Mr, Geoffrion pro-
ceeding.

Hon. Mr. McMEANs: Who is calling hum?
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Hon. Mr. BIlIQIJE: He is caliled by the Committee. It was stated the other
day that Mr. Geoffrion would be examined.

The CHAIRMAN: H1e is called at the instance of Senator Béique. Have any
of you gentlemen any objection?

Hon. Mr. BÉIQUE: With the consent of Senator Raymond.
Mr. MANN: We are informed by Senator iRaymond that hie is calling Mr.

Geoffrion.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: He is a witness on behaif of Senator Raymond?
Mr. MANN: Yes, se I understand.
Mr. VIEN: I think that it is at the request of hionourabie Mr. Béique, one of

the members of the Committee, that Mr. Geoffrion was brought here to-day.
That is the situation as I understand it.

Hon. Mr. BÉIQUE: At my request he was summoned to be examined to-day.
Mr. VIEN: That is my understandàng.

AIMi GEOFFRION, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, appeared as a witness, and,
having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

The CHAIRMAN: Is there anybody to examine him, or is he to make a state-
ment?

The WITNESS: Oh, I have no statement to make. I wîll be questioned.

By Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. You have been acting.for Senator Raymond, I think, or your firm, and

there are some charges made against him?-A. No, Mr. Béique, the charges you
are probahly referrîng te--thecase you discussed with me, some time ago-were
charges in an aecount, in a bill fer servics te the Beau-harnois, Liglit, Heat and
Power Company, in which the namne of Mr. Raymond appeared, connected with
either telephones or interviews.

Q. Have you a co'py of the Bill?-A. I have an extract freti the bill.

By the Chairman:
Q. You appeared before the House of Commons ýCommittee?-A. No.

You will flnd, 1 think, in the report of the Committee a suggestion that Mr.
Raymond's name appearcd in connection with telephones and interviews with
me in my bill against the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Comnpany; and
the suggestion, or insinuation, or inference was made that he had taken a very
active part in that affair, either by his influence or ot.herwise; and I was atsked
to corne here to say what I could say in connection with those charges. Now,
if you want me to make a statement I have no ohjecition.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

The WITNESS: Mr. Raymond was, as wvýas stated, personally interest1ed for
a time as a member of the syndic.ate that held the shares of the Be.ýuhairnois
Light, leat and Powcr Company, and he, was largely interested in that. H1e
wvas therefore one of my clients. Now, rny work down to August, 1928, was
entirely devoted to the Quebec end of this thing. I do not suppose you are
concerned with that part of it. If you are not concerned with that part of it,
as I will assume, then I will take the part of my bill for what I may cali my
activities in Ottawa. That begins in August, 1928, as f ar as I can Ù-41i, it is in
August, 1928, that I was first asked to take an interest ia the Ottawa end of the
affair. The application at Ottawa had been made long before. Sorne other
peuple concerned with the company had been attending to the Ottawa cnd, but
as far as I can judge from my bill, I was called in to, take a hand in the Ottawa
end of the affair only in August, 1928.
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By Mr. Mann:
Q. Excuse me, Mr. Geoffrion, if you will look at Exhibit 114 that is net

the bill we are discussing, now; that is the one previous ta, that; that seems to
end in July, 1928; that s.ztarts in 1927?-A. 1 have two bis.

Q. If you are referring ta saine other bill wou]d you mind letting us know?
-A. You --,e, the lease was signed in May, 1928, in Quebec. That bill refers
to, Quebec. 0f course I will discuss that end of it if you like. That bill is
exclusively occupied with services rendered in Quebec.

The CHAIRMAN: Is there a number on that?
Mr. MANN: 114.
Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: Services rendered to the company?
The WITNESS: Yes.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. And paid by the company. This apparently is referred to as vour bill.

This is the only one 1 arn able to discover in the record?-A. There is another,
because that covers my services before the Qucbec Legisiature and the Quebec
Government.

Q. Was thait put in before the Committee in the House?-A. I do not know;
I was in Europe, and I don'tknow what happened. Ail I can tell you is that
I know from my books that 1 have one bill for services for Quebec Legisiation
and before the Quebec Government in connection with getting thc Order ini

Council and the lease. Then there is another that deals with subsequent mat-
ters, and that includes my activities in Ottawa that began, as I say, apparently
in August, 1928.

Hon. Mr. Cari': Is there such a bill as that filed as an exhibit?
Mr. MANN: I do not find any but that bill 114.

By Mr. Mann:
Q.You are talki-ng of something of which we have no written information,

unless yau care to file it?-A. I do not abject to file it.
Mr. SMITH: That is not before the committee.

The WiTNESqs: The bill is exclusively devoted to services in Quebec. I do
not think you are concerned in that.

By Han. Mr Béique:
Q. Just state the purpose.-A. In Quebec I had twa things to do. I first

had to get the old charter of the Beauharnoîs Light, Heat and Power Company
amended in a very trifiing respect. Engineering had revealed that the plac e
where the intake from Lake St. Francis had been 1o<cated by the aid Statute
was not feasible as an engineering proposition. It had ta, be moved some hun-
dreds or thousands of feet north or south, I dan't remember. The same thing
applied ta, the outiet. Sa 1 needed legislation to move the intake and the outiet
to make it fcasiblc cnginceringly. I amn not reveaiing a secret by saying that
when I -came ta ask that rather harrniless bill I was met with tremendous oppo-
sition by the competing power eompanies. Xaturaliy they knew perfectiy weli
that the engineering scheme as contained in the charter originaily was nat
feasibie, -and that it would become feasible with the modifications. The first
year I went down in respect ta that I was met with tremendous opposition. I
had not approached the Governinent as ta the soheme itself, and they knew
nathing about it. Therefore I thought the best way was to withdraw my bill.
Then the next Session, when I approached the Legisiature with my bill, the
Governinent knew that my people were seriaus and that the scheme was feasible,
and there was a tremendous aniaunt of electric power ta be developed there.
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I convinced the Government that it would be a good thing, and my bill was
presented the second year and passed in spite of the opposition. Then I dis-
cussed with them the terms of the Order in Council-which Order in Council,
apparently, was acceptable te my clients-but it imposed the hardest conditions
that any government in Quebec had till then imposed on any company. After
discussion with my clients they accepted that as it was, and that was the end
of Quebec. But it has been suggested that those consultations with Mr. Ray-
mond at that time indicated that he was using influence. He was not using
influence at all; he was interested financially from a certain date, and from that
date I would sec him occasionally, not often, as shown in the account, and I
would give him information, get instructions from him, and I would gather those
people together and ask them whether such and such a condition was acceptable.

By the Chairman:
Q. Who were you acting for?-A. The compgny.
Q. The Beauharnois Syndicate?-A. The Beauharnois Syndicate-I beg

your pardon.

By Mr Mann:
Q. The company had not come into existence?-A. No; I was acting for

the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, whose shares were entirely
owned by the syndicate; sa that the members of the syndicate were, im a prac-
tical sense, my clients. Now, they came to see me sometimes, to see what was
done, or to know what was to be done, or to discuss whether such and such a
condition would be acceptable.

Q. The syndicate held the bag?-A. Oh, yes, the syndicate had the money.
When it came to the Ottawa end-

By Hon. 11r. Chapais:
Q. That was in 1927?-A. That was in 1927.
Q. You came twice. You became interested in 1927 and 1928?-A. In 1927

I discovered my plan was not matured, the Government knew nothing of it, and
I withdrew my bill.

Q. Had the companies here fought you very hard?-A. I saw when I went
first that I would not be able to get through, but the second time I went through
with sailing colours. In Ottawa my troubles were entirely legal, not engineer-
ing. The theory I held, and I still hold-and I think it is clearly a sound theory
-is that the water power belonged to the province, so we had asked for a grant
from the province. We now came to the Dominion only for approval or dis-
approval under the Navigable Waters Protection Act. If we were right on that
question, all the Dominion Government had to do was to get its engineers to
report on the subject. If the engineers reported favourably, namely, that this
was not an interference with navigation, they were bound to give us their
approval. The decision is a judicial one. If they thought it was an interference
they were bound to say no. That was a matter for the engineers almost entirely.
I did not need to consult Mr. Raymond, because as an engineer I do not think
he is of any use.

By Hon. M-r. McMeans:
Q. It depends on what kind of an engineer?-A. I have my engineers, and

they were fighting it out with the Government engineers, but there arose a second
point. That was that these waters belonged to the Dominion. I first tried to
convince the Department of Justice that that was not right. I was anxious not
to take any reference to the Supreme Court, because I was in a hurry, and that
reference might have gone to the Privy Council, and that takes long. So I sug-
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gested to the Government that they should put in the Order in Councîl a clause
stating that this was only an approval under the Navigable Waters Protection
Act, and that if it turned out that the Dominion was the owner of the waters
then the matter would be reopened. That did not succeed at that time. They
însisted on a reference to the Supreme Court. At last we got a iudgment which
was considered a victory for the province. The Dominion did not appeal, and
then they came to my suggestion and agreed to give me an Order in Council
which would contain a clause that if the Dominion Government had rights, then
we would have to make a new deal. I then started discussing with thcm about
the termns of that Order in Council. Mr. Raymond could not be of any help to
me. I did not need any influence. It was purely a question of law, negotiations
and terms. I thînk there are eight interviews altogether that I find during the
seven months, witb Mr. Raymond. They are ail of the same character. Appar-
ently 1 wanted information f rom him or he wanted an interview with me; but
I neyer had any need of his influence, because the fleld in which I worked any-
way-I arn not speaking of the field in which others work-had nothing to do
with influence. It was ail connected with legisiation, or discussing the terms of
the contract.

By M1r. Vien:
Q.Mr. Geoffrion, would you take this Exhibit 114 and look at certain entries

on the flrst page of it, where Senator Ilaymond's niame is mentioned once or
twice?-A. On the flrst page?

Q. Yes, on the flrst page.-A. I have an extract here prepared by my
employees showing where Senator Raymond's name appears. September lOth
there is an interview with Mr. Raymond. September l4th-

By Hon. Mr. Cannon:
Q. What Year?-A. 1927. And September l9th, and then nothing until

December.

By M1r. Vien:
Q.In ail these interviews did you, in any way, request or seek the Senator's

influence?-A. I was discussing, undoubtedly, Beauharnois, but I certainly did
not ask him for his influence because I did not need it. The field in which I was
working did not require it.

Q. And is that true of ail the interviews mentioned in this bill?-A. Neces-
sarily.

Q. So f ar as Senator Raymond is concerned?-A. That is what I am trying
to say. Ail my activities were activities of a class that did not require any
influence whatever.

Mr. VirN: That is ail, thanks.
Mr. MANN: Is that ail?

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Mr. Geoffrioli, would it bc correct to say that from August 1928, you

were in charge of the application for the granting of the Order-in-Council ap-
proving the application?-A. I was certainiy attending to it. Whether I was alone
as a lawYer or not I arn doubtful;- but 1 certainly was attending from time ta time
from August 1928 tili March.

Q. And do you recaîl Colonel Thompson acting under instructions from the
Dominion Securitice Corporation?-A. There were quite a few of them. I was
one of the lawyers.

Q. It was a legal inatter?-A. As far as I arn concerned it was nothing but
a legal matter.
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By Hon. Mr. Cannon:
Q.Mr. Geoffrion, you stated to, the Committee that that bill, which was

filed as Exhibit 110, covers work done by you in connection with activities in
Quebec.

Mr. MANN: Exhibit 114, Mr. Camnon.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Exhibit 114.
The WITNESS: I will explain that first. If Mr. Mann prefers to cross-

examine me he will find that once during that period I went to Ottawa. I think
I remember why it was, certainly in connection with Quebec, because at that
time I had neither the lease nor the Order-in-Council nor even a Bill, and I
believe it was because the people at Quebec had suggested and the government
had acquiesced in the idea that it might be better for me to get my approval from
Ottawa first. I suppose each government likes to pass the buck to the other
government. At ail events my experience is they do. I was told I had to go to
Ottawa first. Generally, we are obliged to get our grant from the province and
then corne to Ottawa for the approval. However, I came here and saw the
engineers of the department, and was given no encouragement in that direction.
'rhat is the only attendance in Ottawa at that time. Except for that it is ail in
connection with Quebec.

By Hon. Mr. Cannon:
Q. When evidence was being taken iast year before the House of Commons

Committee reference was made to certain itemns in your bill wherein Senator
McDougaid's name is mentionced?-A. The same remarks wouid apply.

Q. If you wilI look at your account, I think that the dates are December the
10th, December the l7th, 1927, and January the 9th?-A. December the lOth?

Q. Decýember the lOth, yes.-A. No McDougald entry on December the lOth.
Q. I see, a week later, on the llth December " Interview with Senator

McDougald ".-A. Yes.
Q. Wouid you state to, the committee, Mr. Geoffrion, if you recollect after

this interval of several years, what couid have been the reason for these inter-
views? A. I cannot do that. I can oniy give the generai character, and surmise
from my memory of the particular lines.of the case what was the general character
of the interview with these people. I cannot do more than that.

Q. At that time Senator McDougald was chairman of the Harbour Board
of Montreal, was he not?-A. I have no doubt he was.

Q. And you were counsel for the Harbour Board?-A. Yes.
Q. Was the Harbour Board connected in some way or other with power

projects at that time generally?-A. I tell you, Mr. Cannon, I am trying to
think. I think it is extremeiy unlikeiy that I would have charged to the Beau-
harnois Light, Heat & Power Company services rendered to the Montreal Har-
bour Board. I may have tried to see Mr. McDougald as chairman of the Mont-
real Harbour Board with the possible object of ascertaining what his attitude
was. That is a possibility; but as to the suggestion that I would charge that
to the Montreal Harbour Board-

Q. I have not suggested it.-A. It may have been done by mistake; but it
is not likely.

Q. I neyer suggested that, that you have charged to the Beauharnois work
that should have been charged to the Montreal Harbour Board. What I was
suggestîng is that you might have had an interview with Senator McDougald
as chairman of the Board.-A. That is possible, because I know there was quite
an agitation in Quebec. The Canada Steamnships, among others, were fighting
us. It had been suggested that the leveis of the water in the harbour might be
affected, and I might have telephoned on that account to Senator McDougald,
but I don't k'aow.
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Mr. MANN: I think you have expressed your willingness to send us that
other accaunt. You might send it on sa that it can lie filed as Exhibit 131
before this committee. Under the reservation which has been acceded ta, I do
nat think I have anything further ta, ask. Have yau, Mr. Smith?

Mr. SMITH: Not now.
Mr. MANN: Thank yau, Mr. Geaffrian.
Mr. VIEN: Mr. Chairman, if 1 arn in order I would like ta ask leave f or

the Honaurable Senatar Raymond ta make a very brief statement of fact anis-
ing aut af some comments cantained in the Faurth Repart of the Committee
af the bouse af Cammans which lias been tabled this marning. It will take
a very f ew minutes and I think it will facilitate your work if the Senatar is
allawed ta make a statement now. If it is in arder he is willing ta do it now.

Mr. MANN: Mr. Chairman, with the express views af this committee, and
as the matter bas been determined this morning-and I know the committee do
nat want in any way ta make it difficuit for Senatar Raymond or for anybody
else-we have decided te proceed in a chranological manner. But if Senator
Raymond feels that there is an injustice heing done in refusing bim permission
ta make a statement, as far as caunsel is concerned I may say ta the cornmittee
that we have no objection ta hearing bim, under the same reservation that he
return at a later time.

Mr. VIEN: It will be ciearly understood that Senator Raymond will always
be at tbe disposai of the committee and of counsel when required an notice, ta
be examined or re-examined, or crass-examined.

Mr. SMITH: Mn. Geaffrian was beard mare ta canvenience him as he bas
an important engagement. If Senator Raymond is going ta be here as bis
counsel says-night along, I can see no reason for interjecting at this time. How-
ever, as we say, we are entirely in the committee's hands.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: I do not sýee any objection. It is not a long statement.
Mn. VIEN: It is very short.
The CHAIRMAN: As far as I see the matter, I undenstood that we were going

on, that the gentlemen wbo are acting as counsel for us were going ta cail wit-
nesses. I tbink it would be more in onder ta have tbem cail tbeir witnesses and
complete their case and then let Senator Raymond came in with any answen that
lie lias, and any of tbe other gentlemen.

Mr. MANN: That would be the logical thing to do.
Mr. VIEN: I realîze, Mn. Chairman, that that might be the logical sequence

of the proceedings in a court of justice. The repart of the Committee of the
House of Commons lias been tabled before youn honourable cammittee this
monning, and arising -out af the repart thene are a couple of inaccuracies that
the Senator thinks should be carrected riglit now, and we believe tbat with those
corrections it will bclp counsel in the conduct of the inquiry and lielp tbe com-
mittee in the discharge of its duties. I do not believe it will distunli tbe order
set by counsel. It will help tbem instead.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, but Mn. Vien, it is not f air for us, having taken on
counsel, ta dictate ta, tbem in a matter of evidence. You would nat like it if
you were the counsel.

Mn. VIEN: If it wcre a court of justice it 'would be a diffenent matter; but
the learned -counsel bas been veny careful this marning ta state clearly that there
was nobody accu-sed at tbe bar. Sa far as we have proceeded, and we are ta,
praceed for some time at least, it. is only fact finding, and in respect of the finding
of facts I tbink it will be helpful if yau can spare a very f ew minutes-three or
four or five minutes at tbe mast-ta bear Senaton Raymond.
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Mr. RoBERTs0N,: Mr. Chairman, may 1 bring up another matter that cornes
Up directly with this. Senator Haydon had it in mind that he would be here
and make a stiatement somewhat perhaps of the character that my friend bas
referred to, not as evidence but rather having this in mind, that it might be well
at the beginning of the matter-and before the evidence is given-to supplement
the opening statement of counsel for the committee by a statement of the position
of the person who, it is suggested has something to explain. Not~ so much by
way of giving evidence. It is not evidence at ail; but rather for the purpose of
showing what the issues are and letting the cornmittee see what it is they have
to determine. Now, I have not a statement. Senator Haydon is not able to
be here to-day. I had thought that if such a statement was to be admitted
that he might have it for me for to-morrow morning. It is much to be regretted
he cannot make it himself because it would be bis stateinent and not mine, and
having that in mmnd I thought 1 would cali it to the attention of the committee
at this time.

Mr. MANN: I understood, Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Vien's suggestion was
that Senator Raymond wanted to make a statement Vo, correct some inaccuracies.
The ambit of the expression " correct somie inaccuracîes " may be quite great.
We did a moment ago, however, state that if Senator Raymond feit that any
injustice was being done we did net object to bis making a statement Vo correct
inaccuracies. But I do not think that the procedure cf the committee should
be upset by making a statement in correction of inaccuracies. Strictly speaking,
as my friend Mr. Cannon says, it is net a court of law. At the same time,
we have been at some pains Vo create a chronological sequence whereby we can
proceed, and if matters of this kind are going to be interjected it is going to
disrupt the procedure very materially. A statement of correction of inaccuracies
may be made, and we have no objection to it, but not a precedent to make a
statement prior to the examination of witnesses.

Hon. Mr. Copp: As I understand it, Senator Raymond is asking to be per-
mnitted te make this statement because of the fact that this report cornes Vo us
from the committee of the Huse of Commons. As I gathercd from Mr. Vien,
there was some misunderstanding in regard Vo that report, and now it becomes a
part of our case here. IV rather seems Vo me that if the Seuiator wants te make
a statement in reference to something that he Vinks has been brouglit here
inadvertently or in error, he should have the privilege to correct it now if he
wants Vo.

Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: Do not ail senators have that privilege of addressing
us, anyway? It is a privilege that a senator bas before any committee of the
bouse.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: 1 would just like Vo ask, you would net be at al
injured if you were noV permitted Vo make your statement until the proper time
came. While it does noV make very much différence whether you put it in now
or then, yet at the same time if it is going Vo disturb the order in which counsel
for the committee are going Vo put in their case then I think it had better be
lefV until the proper time cornes. If no injustice is going Vo be done then I would
suggest that counsel proceed Vo put in their case in the manner they have decided
on. bowever, if you tbink any injustice is going to be done to vou I would say
put in your statement; but if it is a mere matter cf convenience Vo, you I do noV
sc that your convenience should disturb, the chronological order.

Mr. VIEN: We believe there would be a prejudice suffered if the committee
were Vo carry on under what we consider must have been a wrong impresýsion
from the wording of the report of the committee. We would like now to make
a short statement to correct the wrong impression which may be gathered from
the reading of the report from the committee as you have it now before you.
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It is not evidence. It is a desire to correct what may lead to the making of a
wrong impression during the course of your inquiry and, that being so, there
ýmight be an injury if we have to wait until the evidence is called in its proper
order. We, therefore, suggest that you would be, in our opinion, further
advanced in the discharge of your duty if you jpermitted the Senator to make
such a statement.

The CHAIRMAN: Is that a statement under oatb or just a statement?
Mr. VIEN: Under oath, if you desire, or on his honour as a Senator if

you prefer. The Senator is willing to make his statement under oath.
The CHAIRMAiN: Well, iMr. Vien, we have no other business this afternoon,

and you will be no worse off to-morrow morning -when we meet at eleven o'cloek.
I tbink in the meantime the committee will consider the point. That would
be my view, and if they decide to let you go on then Senator Raymond can
go on to-morrow morning.

Mr. VIEN: Well, we are in the hands of the committee so far as that is
concerned; but it might expedite the work of the committee if he were allowed
to make bis statement now. As 1 say, bowever, we are in the hands of the
committee.

The CHAIRMAN: As I say. we have no other evidence this afternoon.
Mr. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, bef are vou arise rnay I say something with

respect to witnesses? Senator 'Graham spoke this morning of certain witnesses
having beon subpoenaed. As to that he is quite correct. Mr. Sweezey, Mr.
Griffith, Mr. Christie, Mr. Moyer, and one other witness have been asked to
attend here to-morrow morning. To-morrow morning was chosen for a number
of reasons. One was, as Mr. Mann said, hc thouglit bis statement would
occupy ail of the first day and we were anxious not to inconvenience those
gentlemen by baving them wait here, and secondly, baving in mind sometbing
of what Senator Graham suggested, because we were anxious indeed to know
if the coninittee themselves, or any member of it, have anv persons in mind
whom they think, from their knowledge of the matter, should be bere. We
would be very glad indeed if the committee will endeavour to put thoý,e names
before us so that we mav facilitate their coming here at the earliest possible
moment. But -we f cît we had to get somewhiere, and those persons largely
having to do with one ground were, therefore, summoned for Thursday morning.
~No others have been summoned as yet.

Rîght ion. Mr. GRAHAM: To be quite frank, Mr. Chiairman, 1 think that
the committee-I do not lîke to eall it a court-but if there be a court 'tbe
committee is the court and lias control of who is being asked to attend and
what is being done here. They are responsible for cvery witness that is
ca]led, and as I had been told that several witnesses had been subpoenaed
without the consent or knowledgc of the committce I thought I was perfectly
right in suggesting that the authority to have witnesses subpoenaed was in
the commîttce and not in counsel. 1 believe 1 arn correct, and that is the reason
T thouglit we were going the wrong end ta, if you might use that expression,
if someone was summoning w'itnesses without t he consent or approval of the
committee.

lon. Mr. Copr: In other words, we are being asked to assist counsel
instead of counsel assisting us.

Mr. MANN: Senator Graham and Senator Copp are under an entire mis-
apprehension. The names of witnesses that might be required to attend and
that should be examined were submitted to the chairman of this committee
and not certainly to every individual member of it, and upon that, instructions
were given to the clerk to ask those gentlemen to attend. We would prefer
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not to have it suggested that counsel took any illitiative to cali witnesses with-
out any consent of the cornmittee. We did not go to, the Right Hon. Senator
Grahamn and tell him; but we did go to, the chairman.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: You did not go to the cornrittee. I arn per-
fectly arnenable to what the chairman does and stay by what he does. I
believe I would be quite safe in that; but I do think, as a matter of fact, that
the authority rests in the comrnittee and that the cornmittee ought to, be con-
sulted and act through their chairrnan.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: I arn sorry to disagree with you. We are sitting
here as a comrnittee, or a judicial body. Our duty is to hear witnesses that
are produced before us.

Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: Who are counsel representing?
lion. Mr. MCMEANS: They are representing the people, the Attorney

General.
lion. Mr. ROBINSON: They do not represent the cornmittee.
Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: Yes. And they represent the people. They repre-

sent the Departrnent of Justice.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: They represent everybody then.
Hon. Mr. MOMEANs: I do not see how in the world you can ask them to

hunt up witnesses and say that one man shall be called and another shall not.
The CHAIRMAN: Many are called but few are chosen.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: It is no trouble to convince the corniittee if a

witness ought to be called.

The CHAIEMAN: The cornrittee will stand adjourned until 11 o'clock
to-rnorrow rnorning.



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

OTTAWA, THURSDAY, March 3, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into considera-
tion 'the report of a Special Committee of the Huse of Commons of the last
session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Projeet, in so far as said
report relates to any honourable members of the Senate, met this day at eleven
o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Senators Tanner (Chairman), Béique, Chapais,
Copp, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, MeMeans, and Robinson.
Couts el:

Mr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Mont-real, Quebec, and Mr. Arthur L. Smith, K.C.,
Calgary, Alberta, counsel for the Committee.

The Honourable Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec, Mr.
John W. Cook, K.C., Montreal, Quebec; and Mr. Hughi E. O'Donnell, Mont-
real, Quebec, counsel for the Honourable Senator W. L. McDougald.

Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, counsel for the Honourable
Senator Andrew flaydon.

Mr. Thornas Vien, K.C., Montreal, Quebec,' counsel for the Honourable
Senator Donat Rayrnond.

The CHAIRMAN: Gentlemen, 1 understand that the counsel for the Com-
mittee have some witnesses here this morning. Yesterday afternoon I understood
that Senator Raymond desired to make a very brief statement of some kind. I
arn sure the Committee have no desire whatever to prevent any member of the
Senate who, may possibly be involved in this from making a statement, although
we-some of us, at any rate-would prefer to have the work of the counsel go
on in a consecutive way. As f ar as I arn concerned, 1 would say now that if
Senator Raymond wants to rise in his place as Senator and take up three or
four minutes making a correction 1 am perfectly willing that hie should do it.

Hon. Senator RAYMOND: Thank you, very much.
The CHAIRMAN: Where you are; we are not swearing you.
Hon. Sena'tor RAYMOND: I will have to make it.under oath.
Hon. Mr. McMnANs: I understand he is not gîving any evidence at all.
The CHAIRMAN: No; hie is making a statement.
(Hon. Senator Raymond was not sworn.)
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Not to, be examined.
Hon. Senator RAYmOND: I amn hcre ready to answer any queistion the mem-

bers of the Committee may wish to ask me. But, first, of ahl, I would like, with
your permission, to make a statement, of facLs, concerning some reflections which
appear in the report of the Committee of the House of Commons. These f acta
would have been declared at the time, if the Committee had thought opportune
to ask me any questions about them.

At the conclusion of my evidence, before the Special Committee of the House
of Commons, with refererce to the Beauharnois Power Project, the Chairman
of the Committee (page 799) said: " Are there any further questions? Well,
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Senator, we thank you for attending here rit the Inquiry and giving your evi-
dence. There are no further questionýs the members- of the Committee or Caunsel
care to ask you, unless you have somne questions, Mr. Hellmuth."1 Mr. Lennox,
member of the Committee, then added: "I1 think the Senator should be com-
mended upon his fr.ankneýss."

On page 24 of the Report, the commendation above referred to is men-
tioned and there is added:-

It was,. however, later disclosed in evidence that according- to the
bill of Messrs. Geoffrion & Prud'homme, counsel for the Beauharnois
Syndicate from September 10, 1927, to May 23, 1928, there appear.some
sixteen entries charging for interviews with and telephones to and from
Senator Raymond. An interview appears to, have taken place on one
occasion with Hanýourahie Mr. Mitchell and on another occasion in
Ottawa with Senator McDougald.

In reference to which I wish to say that my attention was neyer valled ta
the bill cf Messrs. Geoffrion & Prud'homme which was produced without any
comments as far as it refers to me.

At ail events, if it needs any explanation, 1 can sav'--
I had several interviews, mostly by tclephone, with Mr. Aimé Geoffrio'n,

X.C., who was counsel for the Beauharnois Power Syndicate, of which 1 was a
member and with whom I. communicated from time ta time for information as
ta pragress. As ta interviews in Ottawa, 1 have no recollection of any, but, in
any event, I nýeyer made a tnrp ta Ottawa especially for Beauharnois matters,
and, if such interview took place with Mr. Geoffrion, it was a casual one and
must have been on a day when the Senate was sitting. I must add I rieyer had
any interview with Mr. Geoffrion and Senator McDougald, regarding this matter.

The Committee then had the following -report (pages 24 and 25):.
It tran-spired when Mr. Sweezey rcturned to give further evidence

that Senator Raymond had received from *Mr. Sweezey some $200,000
of campaign funds for the Liberal party. The commendable frankness
would seem ta require thait Senator Ra~ymond should have disclosed this
ta the Committee, if 4. wished the Committee ta understand that hc was
stating fairly his connection between the Government and the Beauhar-
nais promoters.

In view of Mn. Sweezey's attitude throughout and bis views as to
the necessity for political influence, it is hardly conceivahie that Mr.
Sweezy would pay this large sum of Ynoncy over to Senator Raymond,
unless hc rit least was satisfled that the Senatar's influence had been or
would he worth thc momey and it is nemankahie that Semator Raymond
did not insist on niaking some explanation of his position in this regard,
in view of bis eviýdence.

It must be pointed out, that at the tirnie I gave my evidence there had been
ma mention of campaign fumds, and I was mot asked anythimg about campaign
funds. If I had been, I would have statcd that, during the electaral campaign
of 1930, I was acting as trustee for the funds of the Liberal party, and, in that
quality only, bad neceived f rom Mr. Sweezey, of his own motion, and without
solicitation, the sum which this gentleman subsequemtly mentioned in bis state-
ment ta the Committce; and in due course aIl af this money was turncd over te
the treasunen of this part.

Later, I received a t-elegram from the Committee, summoning me te Ottawa.
Upon my arrivai, I saw the Hon. Ian MacKenzie, member of the Cornmittee,
who said ta me he thought I would mot be needed on that day. In the after-
noon, he sent word ta me that I was not 'wanted on that day. Notwitlistgmding,
I stayed aven until the evening and was then imformed persomally by M\r. Mac-
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Kcnzie that the Chairman, Mr. Gordon, had instructed him to tell me that he
did not think that 1 woiuld be wanted any more and that he, Mr. MacKenzie, had
informed Mr. Gordon that I would be available at any time on three hours'
notice. I then left Ottawa, but, before leaving, 1 renewed my decinration to
Mr. MacKenzie that I would be subject to thcir eall at any time and could be
in Ottawa on three hours' notice. I had no further communication from them.

1 do not think it is necessary for me to repeat what 1 have ahceady said
before the Committce of the Houise of Commons. You have already those facts
printed and I would respectfully refer the Committee to tbem.

The CHAIRMAN: 0f course it is understood, Mr. Vien, that Senator Ray-
mond would be in attendance at any time.

Mr. VIEN: The Senator is available at any time.

Mr. CooiK: Mr. Chairman, might I ask what are the Committee's arrange-
ments as to sitting, so that we may know w-bat instructions to give to witnesses?

The CHAIRMAN: I do ilot think it is likely that the Committee will sit
on Saturday. 1. have not consulted the members of the Committee yet, but
probably it may be arranged so that those out of town can leave on Friday
afternoon. Do you like that, Senator Béique?

lion. Mr. BiIQXJE: 0f course the Committee may sit, but 1 have to be in
Montreal on Frîday.

The CHAIRIUAN: Oiie or two mentioned the matter to me, that we might
adjourn so that those out of town cou]d leave on Friday afternoon.

Hon. Mr. CHIAPAIs: We will not sit on Saturday?

The CHAIRMAN: No. One or two members of the Committee mcntioned
that they might prefer to have the sitting resumed on Tuesday rather than
Monday. I will know more definitely to-day.

Mr. CooK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. There is one other point I would
like to ask. In view of the very voluminous record we have before us, 1 would
ask my friend Mr. Mann to indicate to us, as f ar as it is possible for hîm to do so,
the names of the witnesses that he proposes to examine, and the order in which
be proposes to examine these witnesses; because it is necessary, for the purpose
of cross-examination, that we should examine their evidence, and it is impos-
sible to carry everything in our minds as we would like to do. Probably Mr.
Smith would undertake to give us that information, if he eau, a littie time in
advance, so that we will have an opportunity to prepare it. I feel that it is
not an unreasonable request iu view of the size of the record.

The CHAIRMAN: 1 think that you gentlemen of the counsel could
co-operate a littie in facilitating the business by consulting one another in that
regard.

Mr. CooiK: T do not wîsh to ask Mr. Mann anything I should not ask
for, but 1 suggested this before.

Mr. SMITH: 1 will be very glad to tell you as f ar as we know at the present
time. 1 intend to begin this morning with Mr. Christie, who will only take a
few minutes; after that Mr. Sweezey, Mr. Griffith, Mr. Mover and Mr. Ebbs
in the order named. Beyond that 1 cannot say, because I dlo not know where
the thing is going to, go from there.

Mr. Cooy,: I would like to say that my understanding of the orders of
this Committee is that the counsel for Senators McDougald and Raymond and
Haydon are not to be called upon to bring any evidence before the Committee
until Mr. Manin bas finished bis evidence. In other words, that we are pro-
ceeding in the case more or less formally, because we wou]d like Mr. Mann to
finish bis evideuce first before we take the necessary steps to summon witnesses
who would be necessary on our behaif.

48236-5
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Mr. SmiTH: We intend to falkiw that exactly.
Mr. Coo0K: That is your understanding, Mvr. Mann?
Mr. MANN: 1 think Sa.
Mr. ROBERTSON: Yesterday afternoon I stated ta the Committee that

Senator Haydon had intended ta be here, if he bad been able, ta make a state-
ment somewhat in the same manner as Senator Raymond bas spoken this
marning. Senatar ilsydon is unfartunately nat able to be here, and bas
handed me a statement-his, not mine-whiÎch he desires that I shauld read
ta-day ta the Committee.

The CHAIUMAN: I suppase yau wilI sec that Senator Haydan would be
able ta came bere befare we clase?

Mr. ROBERTSON: As 1 said yesterday, I have his pbysician's certificate,
whicb I will be very glad ta give yau, and the physician said that he wauld
be very glad ta attend at any time and supplement that.

Han. Mr. MOMEAN: Is there any necessity af daing it naw? Cannat
yau wait until we get alan- with the evidence?

Mr. ROBERTSON: Na; I suggest, wîth respect. that it is na mare unreason-
able than Senatar Raymand's statement at this time.

The CHAIRMAN: We will give Senatar Haydan ail the time he needs.
Mr. ROBERTSON: It is nat the time 1 am asking; it is the accasian and the

appartunity naw, at the beginning af tbe enquiry, ta state lis positian.
Hon. Mr. BÉiQUE: As far as 1 am cancerned I think it wauld be an

advantage for this Cammittee ta have the statement made, because it will
help in questianing the ather witnesses that are called bef arc the Cammittee
-a shart statement.

Han. Mr. MCMEANS: I da nat tbink naw is the time ta do it.
Hon. Mr. BÉIQUE: 1 mave, Mr. Chairman, that the statement be al]awed

to be made. 1 da not sec what abjection there can be ta it. I tbink it is the
rigbt af senatars ta make whatever statements they cbaase ta make.

The CHAIRMAN: With Senatar Raymand we have the apportunity af exam-
ining him. Is there any guarantee that caunsol will bc able ta examine SenaLor
Haydan?

Mr. ROBEiRTSON: There is na guarantee that the senatar will ever be able
ta, attend this committee. His physician says that lie might be examined at his
hause if care is taken not ta put him. under undue excitement. That is about
the way the certificate reads.

The CMAIRMAN: I am nat in faveur af accepting it at the present time. I
wotild like ta think it aver.

Han. Mr. BÉic-uE: Mr. Chairman, I tbink I have a riglit ta have the motion
put. I make the matian that the statement be allowed ta be made.

The CHAIRMAN: We will have to vote an it.
Han. Mr. BÉiQuE: Exactly.
Hon. Mr. MÇMEANs: If I understand the learned caunsel, Mr. Haydon can

be examined if 'be is examined at bis hause.
Han. Mr. Copp: A possibility.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: That is, the counsel1 acting for the Crawn can go

there, with yourself and a shortband reparter, and take bis evidence, and be
can be asked for any evidence at that time.

Mr. ROBERTSON: Or some members of the committee could attend, as welI.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: We would not want ta, do that.
Mr. ROBERTSON: That i-, a matter of canvenience as ta arrangement.
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Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: So that if bis evidence can be t4ken in that way I
do not see any necessity for putting in a written statement.

Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: Why should we refuse to have a member make a
statement?

Hon. Mr. McMEANs: I arn not doing that. What be says is that he is
willing to take bis evidence before anot-her counsel.

Hon. Mr. BýiQuE: The question arises as to allowing any niember of the
Senate to make a statement if he desires to do so.

Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: It appears to me there is a difference between a
senator not bcing present here ýdesiring to make a statement, and a statement of
a present senator being presented to this committee. Senator Béique bas moved
that the statement be admitted. 1 would move in amendment that tijis be
deferred-the consideration of that request-unti1 to-morrow morning.

Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: I second that.
Hon. Mr. BlhQuE: 1 will be absent to-morrow.
The CHAIRMAN: Do you want to take a vote on that?
Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: I arn willing to wait.
The CHAIRMAN: Senator Béique is willing to let the matter stand over

until to-morrow.
LoRING C. CHRISTIE, Assistant Secretary of the Beauharnois Power Corpora-

tion, Limited, and Secretary of Beauharnois Subsidiaries, appeared as a witness,
and, having been duly sworn, testified as f ollows:-

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Mr. Christie, in January last you became Assistant Secretary of the

Beauharnois Corporation?-A. That is right.
Q. And vou occupy that position at the present time?-A. 1 do.
Q. And are also secretary, I believe, of the varîous subsidiaries which are

owned by that corporation?-A. I will have to refresh my memory. I arn
secretary of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company; Assistant Secre-
tary of the Beauharnois Construction Company; Assistant Secretary of the
Beauharnois Transmission Company, and Assistant Secretary of the Beauharnois
Land Company.

Q. That is probably sufficient; and you have been asked by the subpoena
whýich is served upon you to produce here certain vouchers with respect te the
payment of money?-A. Yes.

Q. I understand from you this morning that there are available the vouchers
of the corporation themselves?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have not brought with you the vouchers of the various syndicates?-'
A. No, sir.

Q. And you have arranged that they shall be here to-morrow morning?-
A. That is truc.

Q. Or will be in the hands of chief accountants who will be here?-A.
They will be here this evening.

Q. Those vouchers that he will produce corne from your custody?-A. Yes.
Q. And will be vouchers of those corporations and of those syndicates?-

A. That is correct.

ROBERT O. SWEEZEY, civil engineer, Montreal, appeared as a witness,
and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

By Mr. Smith:
Q.You live in Montreal?-A. Yes.

Q. And you are a civil engineer by profession?-A. Yes.
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Q. In so far as what has corne to be known as the Beauharnois Project
you are the originator, so to speak, of that enterprise?-A. Yes.

Q. In connection with that enterprise you formed first what was known
as the Beauharnois Syndicate?-A. Yes.

Q. And on the 4th of April, 1928, the Beauharnois Syndicate sold out to
the Beauharnois Power Syndicate?-A. Yes. I think you are reading from
the records.

Q. I have the minutes here that 1 was quoting from; it is the 4th day of
April, and the Beauharnois Syndicate, that is the first one, was composed of
5,000 units distributed among various people?-A. Yes.

QI think you used the words part interest rather than unit?-A. Yes.
Q.The second syndicate, or the Beauharnois Power Syndicate, was a syn-

dicate composed of 25,000 part interests?-A. Yes.
Q. And the present subscriber to a part interest in the first syndicate

received two for one in the second?-A. Yes.
Q. In other words, if I owned 1,000 in the first, at the time it was absorbed

by the second syndicate I became the owner of 2,000 interests?-A. Yes.
Q. And I also had the right at $100 for part, interest to subscribe for

2,000 more?-A. Yes.
Q. That, shortly, was the plan by which they were taken over?-A. Yes.
Q. Then those syndicates owned any right that you had frorn the Robert

f amily in the Beauharnois section of the St. Lawrence River?-A. Yes.
Q. And they, in turn, transferred their assets to a corporation?-A. Yes.
Q. And in the corporation the members of the syndicate were paid $150

in cash for each part interest?-A. Yes.
Q. And 40 shares of Class A stock in addition?-A. Yes.
Q. That, shortly, is the structure as we find it at the present time?-A.

Yes.
Q . Now, at the beginning you sought associates to join you?-A. Yes.
Q. It was obvious that it required considerable rnoney, and therefore you

Iooked around for some help; that is correct?-A. Yes.
Q. And among those with whom you associated early in the enterprise

were Senator Raymond, Mr. Jones and Mr. Moyer?-A. Yes.

Ye.Q. Each of those men held in the first syndicate 800 part interests?-A.

Q. And they were the largest holders in the syndicate at that tirne, aside
from yourself?-A. Yes.

Q. And the price which they paid was $37.50 per part interest-$30,000
for 800 part interests?-A. Yes.

Q. And it is also true, is it not, that they and they alone purchased their
interest at that price?-A. That was a special price for a larger block.

Q. And the fact is that that price was paid by those three men, and al
others paid more than that, frorn $37.50 up to $100 a share, or part interest?
-A. I think so, I arn not quite certain.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Will my learned friend allow me. AL this stage, Mr.
Chairman, for my own information I think that the Comrnittee might decide
if this Committee is going to hear anew the evidence which was taken last year,
or, s0 f ar as evidence is concerned, will hear only further evidence in connec-
tion with the subject-matter of the report. The fact is that my learned friend
is now bringing before the Comrnittee evidence fully put before the committee
of the House of Commons last year.

The CHAiRmAN: That is only a question of a few minutes. He is leading
up, I think.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: So I understand, that my learned f riend is leading up to
something else, probably. But if we are to traverse this year the whole of the
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evidence of last year, this investigation will be rather lengthv, and I wonder
if it would be in accordance with the terrns of the reference as passed by the
Senate.

The CI7AIRMAN: 1 do not think he intends to be very long.

Mr. SMITH: The length of tirne Mr. Sweezey is in the box will depend much
more largely on my learned friend Mr. Cannon than it will on me, I can assure
you of that.

By Mr. Smnith:

Q. In the course of your interest in the matter you wrote a letter to one J.
Aldérie Raymond?-A. Yes.

Q. And in f airness to everyone now, 1 should say that Senater Raymond
has said in a previous inquiry that he had no knowledge whatever of the letter

that you had written?-A. 1 would not think that lie would have. By the way, I

do not think Senator Raymnond was then a senator, as a matter of fact.
Q. Well, the gentleman who is now Senator Rayrnond?-A. Yes.

Q. In fairness to him, he said that lie knew nothing about the receipt of that
letter by bis brotber.-A. I would not tbink so.

Q. You had your syndicate forrned and Mr. Moyer, as a matter of fact,
became a manager of that syndicate?-A. Yes, at sorne stage; 1 do not recali
when.

Q. it was on Exhibit 58, that is the exhibit containing the Minutes of the

second syndicate. Mr. Moyer joined you on the 4tb April and acted as manager

after that. You can cbeck that, if you like, by glancing at thaz. That is the
situation?-A. Yes.

Q. Frorn time to time, I take iL, you dîd consult with vour associates in your

endeavour to forward your project.-A. Yes.
Q. And arnong those associates did you consult with Senator Rayrnond?-A.

No. I tbink Mr. Joncs was the rnan who eonsulted, if he did at ail, with Senator
Raymnond.

Q. You, as a matter of fact, as you have prevîously said, relied largely on

Mr. Jones, wbo was actively engaged with you?-A. Yes.
Q. And Mr. Rayrnond was associated witb hirn?-A. Yes.
Q. And later sold out his interest largely?-A. Yes.
Q. At the sarne tirne as Mr. Jones?-A. Yes.
Q. And that was purchased by you?-A. Yes.
Q. Mr. Raymond to get the matter straiglit, retained 351 part interests?-

A. Yes.
Q. I arn told that I arn wrong about that, and 1 hasten to correct it. He

repurchased, that is perhaps the better way to put it.

Mr. VIEN: The 351 shares were repurchased at $550 per part interest.

By Mr. Smith:

Q. And $550 was exactly the price you paid Senator Raymond at that tirne?
-A. Yes.

Q. iNow 1 want you to corne teo those part interests represented by Mr.

Moyer. And according to your Minutes lie carne in on the 4th April. You will

recali on the 4th April the old syndicate was absorbed cornpletely by the new
one-A. Yes.

Q. And the old one out of business?-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. Copp: The 4th April of what year?

Mr. SMITH: 4th April, 1928.
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By Mr. Smith:
Q. Now, what was your first knowledge of the Moyer position? I should

tell you that Mr. Moyer has already said, and it is in evidence.that he was
instructed by the late Winfield B. Sifton to make the subsoription for these 800
part interests. Now, what relation had you with Mr. Sifton?-A. Mr. Sifton was
occupied with Mr. Griffith in attending to all the details to keep us legally straight
in our efforts to organize a company, which was preceded by this syndicate, and
he and Mr. Griffith together were jointly concerned with developing the record so
that as individuals we would limit our liability as much as the syndicate would
permit.

Q. That was before your corporate existence?-A. Yes.
Q. And he was also a friend of yours, was he not?-A. Yes.
Q. I believe you were at school together at Queen's?-A. No, but we had

been in business some years previously..
Q. And he was also acting as your solicitor?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you at that time know Mr. Moyer?-A. I do not recall whether I

knew Mr. Moyer then or not. It was about that time that I became acquainted
with him.

Q. What I want to get at is this. When you first saw Mr. Moyer in con-
nection with this transaction he apparently attended a meeting of the syndicate
on the 4th April, and is one of the persons signing the contract of purchase by
the new syndicate, he and Mr. Molson-A. Yes.

Q. He is signing as secretary of the new syndicate?-A. Yes.
Q. You were present at that time, according to the record?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, what took place between you and Moyer? I mean as to who he

was or what he represented.-A. I was never very clear until some weeks later
as to what and whom he represented. He was brought in by Mr. Sifton and I
knew he had been a close personal friend of Mr. Sifton's, at least I was told
so, for some years.

Q. But how far did you carry that? You sec, the situation as it strikes me
is this. You were sitting in a meeting with a man who was one of your largest
holders?-A. Yes.

Q. That is true?-A. Yes.
Q. And you have already told me, and you have said previously, that you

were much interested in whom you associated with yourself in carrying out this
project?-A. Yes.

Q. So try to tell me, if you can, what took place between you and Moyer
as to whom he represented when you first saw him.-A. Nothing took place
between me and Mr. Moyer; it was between Mr. Sifton and myself.

Q. You knew from Mr. Sifton that Mr. Moyer was at least representing
him?-A. Yes, but I did not think that it was Mr. Sifton alone. I did not know
whether it might be his father, or some other members of his family, or even
some outsider.

Q. And when were you first aware that anyone else was interested in those
shares?-A. I do not recall exactly, but I knew that without being too persist-
ent I would find out in due course. Mr. Sifton did not want to reveal to me at
the moment, and I thought it was not necessary to question.

Q. And you did learn later that those shares came into the hands of Sen-
ator McDougald?-A. Yes.

Q. Now, had you had any discussion with Mr. Sifton with a view to inter-
esting Senator McDougald in your project prior to April, 1928?-A. Yes, I had.

Q. And my recollection is that you had failed, according to the last informa-
tion you had, that on his approach to Senator McDougald he had failed to inter-
est him in the matter?-A. Yes.
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Q. And we corne down to the place-I should have done this before-when
Senator Rayrnond, represented by Mr. Jones, sold out the major part of their
interest. That was in October, I think, of 1927?-A. 0f 1929.

Mr. MANN: 1928.
Mr. SMITH.- The note I have may be wrong. I will straighten that out

later. What I have is 1927.
The WITNEss: Are you referring to the sale by Mr. Joncs to me?

By Mr. Smith:
Q.Yes.-A. That was in 1929.

Mr. VIEN: You said part of the interest. It was ail the interest.

Mr. SMITH: Pardon me.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.Ail the interest of Senator Raymnond and Mr. Joncs in 1929?-A. Yes.
Q.And in so f ar as the original holdings, then they passed out of the

picture?-A. Yes.
Q..Senator Raymnond, so rny learned friend kindly inforrns me, for $550 per

share getting sorne 351 part interests?-A. Yes, but I did not know about that.

Mr. VIEN: It was not shares, but part interests or units.

Mr. SMITH: I will take eithei'; I arn glad to oblige.

By MUr. Smith:
Q. Now, in so f ar as your concern went, you had to do with the Govern-

ment of the Province of Quebec?-A. Yes.
Q. And you did there succeed in getting amendments to your charter?-A.

Yes.
Q. Which Mr. Geoffrion told us about yesterday. You were here?-A. Yes.
Q. And then according to your arrangernent with the Province of Quebec,

the terrns of your lease, in fact, you did have to procure the approval of the
Council of the Governrnent of the Dorninion?-A. Yes.

Q. And you were limited to a certain tirne, which, if rny rnerory serves rne
right, was one year frorn the date of your lease.-A. Yes; the lîrnit was placed
by the Province of Quebec.

Q. And you then turned your attention to Ottawa with a view to procuring
their approval?-A. Yes.

Q. Now, entering on this phase of the matter, I should say that according
to the evidence given at the last hearing Senator McDougald swore that he
becarne the owner of the Sifton shares on the l8th May, 1928.-A. Yes, I think.

Q. You have that date in your rnind?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, I want to knnw if after that tirne you consulted Senator McDoug-

aid with respect to your progress in Ottawa.-A. Oh, I had frequent talks with
hirn. I do not know if you could designate iL " consultation."

Q. Well, conversation?-A. Yes, it was certainly conversation.
Q. That wilI suit me just as well. And I take it that you also saw other

persons in connection with the sarne thing,-Mr. Jones, for exarnple?-A. Yes.
Q. And Mr. Joncs has told us that he hirnself was in Ottawa in connection

with trying to forward this rnatter.-A. Yes.
Q. When did you first hear of a corporation called the Sterling Industrial

Corporation?-A. Oh, it was some rnonths later, I think.
Q. It was after this day in May, in any event, which I have given?-A. Yes.

Q. And frorn whorn did you first learn of that corporation?--A. I think it
was Mr. Ebbs.

Q. That is Mr. Ebbs of the firrn now of Haydon & Ebbs?-A. Yes.
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Q. And having seen Mr. Ebbs, whom did you then see?-A. Well, I would
not be able to remember exactly, but I know I subsequently discussed that with
Senator Haydon and Senator McDougald and Mr. Henry, but just in what order
and precisely when it would be very difficult for me to recall.

Q. Did you discuss it with them all together or with any two of them?-A.
On one or two occasions I think I discussed it in the presence of Senator Haydon,
Senator McDougald, Mr. Jones and Mr. Griffith.

Q. And what was the discussion? I mean, what did they want and what
did you want?

Mr. ROBERTSON: May I just ask that the conversations be separated? He
said he had various discussions with different people at different times. It is
rather important to say with whom at any particular time.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Will you oblige Mr. Robertson, as far as you can?-A. I will sec if I

can get the import of that question.
Q. What he means, if I may summarize it, is that if you had a discussion

with Mr. Henry alone, for example, you should say so, when telling us what that
discussion was, and so on.

Mr. SMITH: That is what you mean, Mr. Robertson?
Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes.
The WITNEss: As a matter of fact, I did not know much about this Sterling

Company and did not pay much attention to it until some time in the fall.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. In the fall of 1928?-A. Yes. So that anything that occurred up to that

time until the final meeting when we agreed on the purchase, I can hardly recall
with any degree of accuracy.

Q. I want to know why this Sterling Industrial Corporation finally assumed
any degree of importance in your eyes. You had not been getting along in
Ottawa?-A. Well, our progress here entailed a great deal of technical discussion
with engineers of the departments, and in these discussions a great deal was said
about the feasibility of developing according to the plans that we were adopting
as compared with plans that were suggested by the Joint Board of Engineers.
And that occupied a great deal of time, and I never differentiated very carefully
as between the technical discussions and those which led to trying to convince
departmental authorities that our request should be granted for the approval of
our plans.

Q. What do you mean by making a differentiation between technical dis-
cussions and those which led to trying to convince departmental authorities?-
A. Well, one seemed to have to do with legal aspects of the case and the other
was purely technical.

Q. Did there come a time when you were dissatisfied with your progress?-
A. I was dissatisfied with our progress after the first two or three weeks. I
thought it would be an easy matter to get it done, but I did not know enough
about the procedure.

Q. Naturally, being an engineer, you came to an end of your engineering
difficulties at some time?-A. Yes.

Q. And there were further delays?-A. Yes, which I subsequently ascer-
tained were due to the fact that there was some doubt in everybody's mind as to
who owned the water-powers.

Q. You were in a situation as between the Dominion and the Province of
Quebec?-A. Yes.

Q. When did this Sterling Industrial Corporation assume importance in
your mind?-A. In the fall of 1928, when I felt that the delays had been pro-
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longing and I thouglit that maybe this other company might have some prior
dlaim. I was not sure, but in looking into the whole situation I said "if it bias
a prior dlaim then we ought to remove i.

Q.And having regard to that prior dlaimi you had discussion?-A. Yes.
Q.Who told you it had a prior claim?-A. I arn not certain who told me,

whether it was Mr. Henry-I think it was Mr. Ebbs, probably. H1e pointed
out that an application had been put in. And as a matter of fact Mr. Griffith
pointed that out to me some time previously, but I dîd not regard it very seri-
ously, although Mr. Griffith regarded it more seriously than I did.

Q. To come down to those discussions which were mentioned a moment ago,
will you tell me what took place?-. WeJ I thînk it was Senat:or Havdon and
Senator McDougald and Mr. Henry 'who suggested-it was not an urge-they
suggested that a good way te round up this -whoide situation would be to get alI
confiicting interests togetýher, nîl interests that might conflict. Thea Mr. Jones
bad some discussion-

Q. We will net worry about hir. discussion; it is yours that I amn conccrned
with at the moment. Yeu were out of touch with it for a while?-A. Yes.

Q. An'd you subsequently did make an arrangement?-A. Yes.
Q. And that arrangement was made aftcr the gentlemen you have men-

tîoned told you-I do not rememiber your exact words, but it was to the effect
that the proper way to round up the wholle situation was te, in effect, buy out that
company?-A. Yes.

Mr. ROBERTSON: I submit that is not a ýproper way te put it. "All conflicting
interests," hie said.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Did you buy out anyone elsc?-A. No.
Q. Se thîs was the enly conflieting interest which yen saw fit to buy out?

A. Yes.
Q. Now, there were other applications at the time for power in this section,

for diversion rights in this section, with the Dominion Government?-A. Yes, I
understand se.

Q. Among these was that ef the Transportation & Power Company?-A.
Yes.

Q. Did you, pay muchi attention to that?--A. No, because I knew they had
no financiad ýstanding.

Q. And for that reaseon, as yeu say, you paid no attention to it?-A. No.
Q. Now, converseiy, coming to the Sterling Company, the three you dis-

cussed that with were Senator Haydon, Senator McDeugald and Mr. Henry?-
A. Yes.

Q. Did yeu regard them as an obstacle bccause they were men of financial
standing?-A. T knew Seîiator McDougald was a man of financial Standing and
thought that lie would bie able to bring considerably more to bis support in a
financial way, if hie chose.

Q. In other words, was the fac't that Senator McDougald was ronnccted
with that company, was that a moving factor i your miaking that purchasc?

Hon. Mr. CAýNNoN: One moment. A few momentsý ago whien I asked whiether
the Commit-tee intended to hear the eviden-ce anew, my learned friend said that
lie was simply asking preliýminary questions leading Up to something that lie
wanted te put before the Committee and that weul!d havc some bearing on the
reference to Committee. Therefore I have not made any objections to the ques-
tions put by my dearned friend, but I need net insist on the fact that nearly all
the questions hie lias put se far have been most leading in character. If hie is
going to examine the -witness anew I wouid, with all respect and deference, ask
the Committee te request my learned friend to examine the wîtness in the usual
way and if possible not to lead him too mucli.
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The ýCHAIRMAN: I think he wvil1 be careful in that regard.
Mr. SMITH: There is no doubt that my ques-tions are leading. It does seem

to me that that is the sort of question best calculated to elicit the truth of the
situation and probably to save a good ideal of time.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not think counsel can ýlead this witness very f ar beyond
where he wanis to, go.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: I do not think he is bringing out anything new, but only
what is alrcady on the records. We ùlready have those facts.

Mr. SMITH: What I arn endeavouring to do, sir, with great respect, is to
clarify some thinýgs that are on the record. That is my objeet. However, 1 will
try to bce areful.

The CHAIRMAN: I really thought counsel was very brief. H1e is getting over
the ground very wel1.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Ycs, if thesýe are oniy preliminaries, very well. But if
this is the substance of the evidence that my learncd frien-d wants to put before
the Committee, 1 would ask him not to be the witness.

Mr. SMITH: My learned friend Mr. Cannon compliments me that I can be.
I appreciate that and wiill return it by doing my bcst to please him.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Did you at any time be-come worried about ge'tting your projeot through

the Dominion?-A. Yes, I was worried continuously, I think.
Q. And perhaps I will put it to you in this way, which I arn sure will please

Mr. Cannon: Would you tell me in your own way, and in your own language,
what these conversations were with respect to the purehase of the Sterling Indus-
trial Corporation?

lIon. Mr. CANNON: That is quite an improvement.
The CHIAIRMAN: That is very proper.
The WITlçaSS: Well, Mr. Joncs pointed out to me that he thought we had

better buy this. Hie had had some conversation about it and he discusscd it with
me carefully, nnd he said "TIf you think wc ought to purchase it, Say so, and
perhaps that is the best way to get it. I ýdo not know whether that is holding
us up or net. If that is what it isj~et us remove it. We cannot dclay this thing,
much longer, or I am gctting out of it." It was Mr. Jones' urge that movcd me
to sec ttic advisability of paying more than the thing was worth intrinsically
to remove that.

By Mr. Smnit.h:
Q. In your judgmnent, was it worth anything intrinsically?-A. Intrinsi-

cally, no.
Q. After this you mnade up your mind to purchase it?-A. Yes.
Q. Who arranged the terms of the purchase?-A. Mr. Joncs and myseif,

together with Senator Haydon and Senator MeDougald, Senator Haydon act-
ing, I took it, as Ser'ator MeDougald's counsel. I thînk Mr. Hlenry was also
present.

Q. And at that con ference an agreement was made which was subsequcntly
reduced to writing?- A. Yes.

Q. And that is Exhibit 75, of the House of Commons Committcc. Now,
there is a term in this agreement which I intend to rend, nanîcly clause 4:

1,1 the said application of Beauharnois Light, lient and Power Com-
pany for appfoval of its plans and site be not granted by the Dominion
Government on or before the twenty-eighth day of Februnry. 1929. then
the Trustee shial rcturn to the said Ebbs and/or bis nominees the share
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certificates of Sterling Industrial Corporation Limited and the said
M'arquette Investment Corporation shall no longer be entitled to issue
the said two thousand (2,000) Part-Interests, or any part thereof, or
certificates for the same, in virtue of this agreement and of the said
resolution.

Now, that time lirnîý. was subsequeiitly extended by another agreement in
writing, which was in exhibit before the Huse of Commons Committee?-
A. Right.

Q. And Lyla Brennan who is mentioned in this agreement as a trustee, is
a secretary or stenographer in the office of Haydon & iEbbs?-A. I believe so.

Q. And the metiod was to handie this purchase through a trustee? It a
an ex(' hange, shortly, of the five issued shares of the Sterling Company for 2,000
part interests?-A. Yc

The CHAIRMAN: bas that document a number?
1\r1 SIH Yes, sir, it was marked as Exhibit 75 before the House of

Commons Committec'.

Bq Mr. Smfth:
Q. And now, what, discussion did you have with respect to the time limait

set out in clause 4, wlinch I have just read to you?-A. That is the point which
was raiîsed by Mr. Griffith. He pointed out to me and Mr. Jones that it was
conceivable that we might not get through our efforts in Ottawa at ail, and in
that case w e wouid be left with whatever riglits we had acquired from Quebec,
which would be concei\,ablv worthi soinething, and if we had the Sterling
Company, in for i hose 2,000 shares it would be partîcipating in
what right- wc had from Quebec without having contributed anything,
and so we had to arrangre that in the rcalization of our assets they would not be
parti cipants.

Q. Tiiïtf is, your vendors w<nilc net bc participants?-A. Yes.
Q. 1 sc this agreement is dated l8th December, 1928?-A. Yes.
Q. What was your financial position at that tîme; I mean your syndicate's

financial position?-A. We had heavy obligations, 1 don't think we had much
cash at that time. We could not pay any cash for anytbing.

Q. My recolleetion is that von had donc considerable borrowing from the
banks at that time and if yýou had been forced into liquidation you knew that
you were facing heavy liabilities if your project failed?-A. Yes.

Q. And then this agreement, you say, was subsequently accepted?-A. Yes.
Q. In f act, after the Order in Council No. 422 was passed, carrîed out.?-

A. Yes.
Q. And the issue of capital, I think, was five shares in that corporation?-

N.Yes.
Q. And the incorpýorators appear here as in one of the exhibits. Now at

tuie time that you boughit thc Sterling agreement, in December of 1M2, did you
then know that Senator McDougald was the owner of part interest.s in Beau-
harnois?-A. Ycs.

Q. And I think they came into his name in the precedîng October?--A. Yes.
Q. Did you have any particular discussion with hima having regard to

them? I mean on the one hand he was in Beauharnois and on the other hand
lie was in Sterling, which was the conflicting interest yen had decided to pur-
chase?-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: One moment, Mr. Chairman. I objcct to the form of
qucstioning. My learned friend is arguing. I think he will have anl oppor..
tunity of arguing the case latex. 1 think that when the facts are put before
the committee it will be for the members to draw their own conclusions.
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Mr. SMITH: Surely I arn not offending this time; my question was simply
this: " Did you have any conversation with respect to that?"

Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1 beg your pardon. If that was the question I would
not have made any objection.

Mr. SMITH: Let's find out exactly what I said. Will you read the ques-
tion, please?

The reporter rend the following question:-
" Did you have any particular transaction with him having regard to that?"

Mr. SMITEI: Yes, that is what 1 thought it was.
Hon. Mr. CANNON.- I thought I heard something about a conflict of interest.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Some of these discussions, Mr. Sweezey-would you be good enough to

tell me if you had any conversations with Senator McDougald about the things
we have been lately discussing?-A. It is pretty hard to recali. I know we had
a gre.qt many as to what value should be ascribed to this Sterling Company, and
I think as Mr. Jones was with me, and he is a very astute trader, I arn pret.ty
sure that he used ail the -argument that should have been brought forth iat
the time.

Q. We will assume thien that vou did the best you could. In other words,
I presume you were not- exactly giving this thing away; you were trading as
best you could, and that was the best price you could get from these gentle-
men with whom you were dealing?-A. Yes.

Q. I want you to tell me as closely as you can when you first knew that
Senator McDougald was înterested as an owner in Beauharnois, and also when
you firsL knew he was intercstcd as an owner in the Sterling Indlustrial ?
A. Well, I will dispose of the last one flrst, because it iýs more easily recalled.
I did not know that Senator McDougald's intcrests had an interest in Sterling
until very late in the faîl, or shortly before the deal was made.

Q. Yes-?-A. Now, as to when lie came in, I arn not sure just when I
became definitely aware of his being in there. It was some time during the
summer of 1928.

Q. Yes-?
Hon. Mr. Copp: That you were aware that he was in Beauharnois?
Hon. Mr. McMnANs: What is the date of that agreement with Beauharnois

which you have there?
Mr. SMITH- December 18, 19-28, sir.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Thank you.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. You can't place that any more cioseiy than some time during the

summer?-A. No. I know that it was some littie time after Mr. Sif ton died.
Q. And he died, I think, on the l3th of June, 1928?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, coming back to your conversation resulting from which the agree-

ment entered here as Exhibit 75 was made-I arn speaking of your conversa-
tions with Senator McDougald and with Senator Haydon-what was advanced
by them in this bargain, or by either of them, to boost (if I may use that very
ordinary expression) the price of the 2,000 part interests?

Mr. ROBERTSON: Again I submit that is not a fair question. Nobody bas
said anybody was boosting anything, as a matter of fact it bas not been said
that Senator Haydon had anything to seil.

Mr. SMITH: You are quite satisfied now Mr. Robertson? Is that the way
you want the question in, or how do you want me to put it?
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Mr. RoBERTSON: I' would be quite satisfied if you would pass on and have
nothing to do with it.

Hon. Mr. Corp: That is good business.
Mr. SMITH: 1 think Mr. Robertson is very generous in giving us the real

object of his objection.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.Here is the purport of my question. I put it to you in this way: In

the conversations that you had in the presence of SenatorE'aydon and Senator
McDougald, both being there at the same time (that pleases you, 1 arn sure),
just what \vas urged on their behaif (I leave out the objectionable word boost),
in persuadîng you to pay 2,000 part interests fer this corporation with no
intrinsie assets-? A. The main argument was one of technical menit, as,
being ahead of our application; and I don't know just how I got to believe,
but I did believe, or thought, that there might be other people in it whom they
thought it would not be fair te, drop out and leave them unprotected while
they were coming in with us; and whilst I arn not clear as to whether they
actually said that or not I was given that impression-that the merits of their
arguments were that they were net alone in the matter that others might be
with them. I did not know how many shareholders there were in this, and I didn't
find eut until after the purchase was made.

Q. That was part cf your conversation; now I want you to tell me what
else they urged that you in proceeding might take up-my recollection is that
you gave up about nine per cent cf your undertaking?- A. That is about it;
2,000 eut of 25,000-that would be about eight per cent.

Q. And in giving that up what else was urged upon you?-A. That the
removal cf this obstacle would enable us te concentrate more effectively on
the one company.

Q. Yes ?-A. That is, in a few words, there were a great many arguments
to explain the proposais, 1 have ne doubt.

Q. And did you discuss (if I may suggest, with permission), did you dis-
cuss as to who the owners cf Sterling were?-A. No.

Q. I see?-A. Except with the two gentlemen whom I knew, Mr. Henry
and Senator McDougald.

Q. Were you shown a list cf the shareholders at that time?-A. No.
Q. So that, in so far as any definite knowledge cf yours was concerned

those were the only two owners?-A. Yes.
Q. Even among others that you knew?-A. Yes.
Q.. Now, was there anything else? I want you to search your mind as

carefully as you can-your memory. WVas there anything else urged as a rea-
son why you should pay this amount in part interests-

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I understand my learned friend means, again, during
conversations at which both Senators were present?

Mr. SMITH: Yes. When I arn speaking cf another one I will put eut
a flag te let you know.

Hon. Mn. CANNON: My learned friend knows, but the witness might net.
Mn. SMITH: I notice that you found eut very quickly.
Hon. Mn. CANNON: I arn here for that purpose.

By Mr.. Smith:
Q. You might, if you can, tell me anything further?-A. 1 can't think of

anything further of a very specifie nature, the whole things was more or less
mysterious you know.

Q. By that, just what do you mean?-A. I mean that as it had ne intrinsie
value I did net feel that we ought te purchase it, but as it had an obstruction-*
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ist value, for the purpose of getting on, for the purpose of gaining time, I
thought we should get it out of the way.

Q. You were interested in time were you not?-A. Yes. 1 amn not sure
that my last word was quite distinct, we thought we should get it out of the
way.

Q. Now, have you told me everything you have in mind?-A. I think so.
1 can't quite recali ail the details of the arguments used leading up to the
purchase-it was not done with a value to enhancing the physical value of the
layout, it was done with a view to gaining time; getting ahead, a littie faster
than 1 thought we otherwise would.

Q. Now, did you know, during these conversations, the positions oceupied
by the two gentlemen to whom you were talking; 1 mean, that they were Sena-
tors?-A. Yes, I understood that Senator Haydon was merely a solicitor, that
hie was not a shareholder-that was my understanding riglit through ail this.

Q. By the way, how did you get that understanding?-A. He told me
frankly.

iMr. SMITH: Excuse me just a moment, sir.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: I think you had better finish your answer.
Mr. SWEEZEY: Senator Haydon was most emphatic in stating that hie was

not a shareholder except through his office, acting in a legal capacity.
Mr. SMrITH: I find, sir, I arn through with this portion of my examnination.

I arn sorry for the delay.
Hon. Mr. McMnANs: Take ahl the time you like.
Hon. Mr. Copp: Our pay is going on just tlie saine.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANs: So is the solicitor's.

By M11r. Sm ith:

Q.Now, turning to another phase of the matter. You had a number of
solicitors employed in connection with your enterprise?-A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Geoffrion stated here yesterday that hie was involved in purely
legal matters , hie had notbing to do with obtaining influence, or anything of that
sort. I know that is the case, but I amn anxious that you should confirm that,
since I believe that to be the situation?-A. That is quite truc.

Q. But you did, in Ottawa, have other persons employed whose labours were
not strictly of a legal nature-I do not mean that they were illegal, but I mean
they did not have to do with matters of law ?-A. I think that is right.

Q. And among those von employed was Colonel Thompson?-A. Yes.
Q. What were his duties?-A. Now, I think Mr. Griffith might answer that

better than I can, it is a matter of substantial detail, much more than 1 could
recaîl.

Q. Very well, I will leave it to. Mr. Griffith. Perhaps I should point out
to you that in a bill of Colonel Thompson's, which is Exhibit iNo. 115 before
the Committee, hie seems to have interviewed a great many people who reside on
the Hill. There is a thing, I believe, called Parliament Hill in Ottawa. And
that is what is referred to likely as the Hill, is it not-? A. I think so.

Q. Well, in any event, you were climbing one bill and Colonel Thompson
was cimhing another. His was a physical one. Have you any knowledge-?
A. No.

Q. Or would Mr. Griffith be able to tell me-?-A. 1 did not pay any
attention to that phase of it at that time.

Q. Did you later? You say you did not pay any attention at that time
-?-A. No. I was connected more with the engineering and financial diffi-

culties as we were going ahead.
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Q. Then, dealing with the whole subjeet of lawyers' bis and s0 onl, 1 arn
much better advised to ask Mr. Griffith with respect to that than you-?-A.
Yes.

Q. I want to turn to another phase of the matter; that is, the subject of
campaign contributions. I want you, in your own way, to, tell the Honourable
Committee the history of these contributions.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: So f ar, 1 suppose, as is relevant to the subject matjter
of this examination.

Mr. SMITH: Yes. Perbaps you and I might agree that the subjeût matter
is wîth respect to, the gentlemen named in the report.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I can't verv well give any agreement for my learned
friend. I arn in the hands of the Committee. I arn just calling his attention
to the fact that he has put a most general question and reaily what the Com-
mittee wishies to bear is something which bas relevancy to the subject matter
before the Committee.

Mr. SMNITH: Very well, I will make it brief. The last objection made byrny learned friend was that I was being too particular, now bis objection is that
I arn getting too generai.

Mr. ROBERTSON: I think we should not be restricted in cross-examination
to go rnto, any subject relating to that matter.

Mr. SMITH: I arn quite ready to agree with you; I don't want to quarrel
with anyhody or anything.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. WTell wc wiii put it this way; you did make certain campaign con-

tributions-?-A. Yes.
Q. 1 wish you would deal with bhc major items flrst and tell me in yourown words in what amounts, and to whon-i, they were made-?-A. Weli, Icannot give you a great deai of detail. I can give you approximately the~ suî

total, but 1 could not quite tell you nîl the details of the amounts we paid over. Ilamounted to between $600,000 and $700,000. The payments were made mostlyto Senator Haydon, but on one or two occasions I said to Senator Haydon is itahl right as a matter of convenience to deliver it to Senator Raymond as thetrustee in the province of Quebec-can't I make it direct to him instead ofdelivering it bo you; and he said that is ail right, he and I are trustees for the
party fund.

Q. Which party fund-?-A. The Liberal Party.Q. About what time did these payments begin-?-A. It was a short time
before the elections of 1930.

Q. And can vou fix il any more closelv than that-?-A. Well, they
extended over a few wecks because 1 could flot rise the money ail in one feul
swoop.

Q. It was a lot of rnonev to raihe, even in a city like Montrea--?-. Yes.
Hon. Mr. Gn.&IIAM~': The needs grew'?
Mr. SWEEzEY: The needs grcw.

By Mfr. Smnith:
Q. And where did you make these payments, perhaps it wiil assist Senator

Graharn ?-A. In Montreal.
Q. And in what f orm were these payments rade-?-A In bonds, in

Dominion government bonds.
Q. These 1 suppose you purchased from time to time-?-A. Yes.Q. And where did you make bhose purchases-?-A. Oh, in different

places. Mr. Griffith made the purchases, and I ar n ot s0 sure wlietlier I did
make any myseif or not.
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Q. Perhaps Mr. Griffith knowe more about that aspect of it than you
do--?-A. H1e mav be more familiar with it than 1 arn.

Q. Do you think lie is much-?-Aý. 1 think lie is, but I don't think hie
has kept a record of it.

Q. No. I can quite understand that.-And you have none-?-A.
No-. It is not a thing, one is, well, iust proud of-much.

Q. And I take it Mr. Griffith was probably of a like mind. But, can you
fix the time any more definiteiy, that is to say, extending over a few weeks
prior to the Dominion ciection of 1930 ?-- A. No, 1 cannot be more accur-
ate than that because I know that it was probabiy in the late spring, beginning
in the late spring, and that may be May or June. 1 don't think there was much
paid until June.

Q. Whom did vou first sec in connection with the payments?-A. Senator
Haydon.

Q. Where did you sec him?-A. I don't recail just where, but hie toid
me an election was eoming on and, of course, we were regarded as probabiy
good subscribers; and from time to time more requests came in and as they
became more urgent I became more alarmed, but paid what I could and then
stopped.

Q. Yes. From whom did these requests continue to, come?-A,%. From Sena-
tor Haydon as the Trustee or coilector for the fund of the Liberal Party.

Q. And, as you say, you raiscd what money you couid, in the aggregate
you raised between $600,000 and $700.000. When you could raise no more you
stopped-that is what you told me just now?-A. Yes, when elections were on,
and I couid not raise any morc just then. I don't know if they wanted any more,
but I arn quiite sure it would have been accepted if I couid have produced it.

Q. I am sure that, wouid be quite true of any election, or of any party, or
of any iawyer for that matter. Coming back to it, you have not toid me when
you had your first conversation with Senator Haydon, or *what it was. 1 just
want to make it clear before I leave it; that you have told me ail you remember
of that conversation which took place on that first occasion?-A. I think it
worked up gradually. I do not think hie demanded ail that money ail at once
or I might have been frightened.

Q. I am very anxious not to lead you, particuiarly in a matter of this sort.
Do you recollect anything further of that first conversation?-A. No, 1 do not
even recoliect a specific first conversation. I do not know just when the thing
emerged from its hazy state into one of definite production of funds.

Q. Then you had further conversations, I gather, with Senator Haydon?-
A. Yes, from time to time.

Q. Is there any record, or can you assist me in endeavouring to find any
record, of the payment of these bonds? Or has Mr. Griffith, perhaps, some
such record?-A. I think Mr. Griffith can produce that; I do not know whether
hie can or not, but I think hie would if anybody couid.

Q. You cannot in any event?-A. No.
Q. Who actualiy made the payments, you or Mr. Griffiith, or both?-A.

Weil, both.
Q. Do you remember what payments you personally made?-A. No, I do

not remember exact amounts. Sometimes it miglit be $50,0410 at a time; some-
times it mighit be as such as $60.000 or $80,000, or various amounts, depending on
the facilities which we had from time to time.

Q. And in f airness I think we should point out at this time that, I think,
only $200,000 odd was Beauharnois money?-A. No-yes, it was something
likc that.

Q. $295,000; am I right in my memory of that, approximately?-A. Yes.
I amn not just siire, sornething-
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Q. Well, we wvill leave that go. Let us put it this way, the major portion
of that wvas not Beauhiarnois money?-A. No, that was my own money, and
money borrowed frorn some of my friends.

Q. Wiy, Mr. Sweczey, did you make these large contributions?-A. Well,
1 looked around to find out just how much a man in my position would be
expected to pay and 1 was rather alarmed to find that in an undertaking of thib
kind one was expected to pay handsomely: Not that anybody literally held a
gun on me, but I inquired what other companies paid-such as industrial com-
panies, banks, large contractors, and so on.

Q. And, of course, the size of the undertaking you were working on had
some bearing on the question?-A. Yes, I feit the size of the undertaking we
werc working on had some bearing on the amount of moncy that was expected.

Q. Yes. And you surely did your best accordingly?-A. Yes. Ours was a
$75,000,000 undertaking, and 1 feared that if some of the opinions proffered
where I had asked for advice, that it would be f ar more money than I could
raise. I wvas pleased to find that I could get away with paying no more money
than I did.

Hon. Mr. Copp: You didn't want to be a piker in comparison with other
corporations.

Hon. Mr. BiIQUE: May I suggest that you ask the witness whether it was
transmnittcd to one party alone, or to others.

Mr. iSMITH: I intend, sir, to go into that. And I think I had better go into
that Iiow.

By Mr. Smnith:
Q. Dici you makr, contributions to parties other than the Liberal party? I

amn speaking of the Dominion organizations, 1 am not concerned with Provincial
matters, but will go into that if the Committee think 1 should. The Dominion
I had in mind.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: We are well content that you should deal with
Domiinîin affairs.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Can you tell us anything about a payment to Mr. Leslie Bell, amount-

ing to around $5,OO?-A. That was my own contribution to Mr. Leslie Bell.
It was strictly personal. It would have taken place if there had been no such
thing as Beauharnois at nîl. I was always contributing to Mr. Leslie Bell's
campaign fund because hie and 1 went to college together, occupied rooms in the
same bouse and were old friends, and I would have helped him out had hie been
witlh any party; even if he had been against me if I had a party, which I don~t
have.

Q. Ilad you prcviously made contributions to Mr. Beil's election cam-
paigns?-A. Oh, yes, on two or three previous campaigns.

Q. A nd yoil were personal friends, as you have told uis?--A. Ycs.
Q. Now, following Senator Béique's inquiry. I believe you made-did you

make any further contributions to any other party or person in connection with
the Dominion electionis?-A. Yes. I made a contribution to a man wlio wvas the
trustce for funds for the federal party in Montreal, General M,,Cuaig.

Q. IIow mucli?- -A. $10,000.
Q. Yes. Any othcrs?-A. Not that I recaîl.
Mr. SmiTH: 1 arn quite prepared to go outside the federal field if the Corn-

mittec wish.
The CHAIRMAN: Oh, no0.
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Mr. SMITH: That is ail I had in mind to ask the witness. If the Commit-
tee wish to ask further questions that they have in mind 1 shall be glad to put
them.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQux: I do not think that the witness is able to speak of that.
but I think it might be enquired as to whether it bas not been the practice of
both parties to have election funds, subseription to the two funds, for a num-
ber of years.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: That is a fact that is already weli known. I think that
is apparent on the face of it.

Hon. Mr. GRIESBACH: What does this witness know about that?
Hon. Mr. Copr: Probably he can handie it, so far as the Committee goes.
Hon. Mr. GRIESBACH: The witness says he had no party. That is wasting

time.
Hon. Mr. Copp: He says he bas contributed to different elections.
Hon. Mr. BÉIQUE: Is he able Vo speak as to that?
The CHAIRMAN: I do not think we are interested as to that. Everybody

knows.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: I suppose any member of the Committee could ask

the question if he wanted to.
Hon. Mr. McMEANs: Yes, you can ask it if you want to.

By Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q.Do you know if it bas been the practice of both parties?-A. I knew,

vaguely before I got into Beauharnois, but I knew very much more definitelv
after I started Vo enquire.

The CHAIRMAN: Any doubt about it was removed.

By Right Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q.You said in your evidence that you did not wish your position as a big

undertaking to be less generous than that of bankers and others in industry, who,
you understood, contributed; then are we to judge that you understand that
those other interests do contribute to party funds?-A. Well, I made it my
business to ascertain the attitude of others, and they ail told me-why, they
thought I was simple if I didn't know that.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: That answers your question, Senator?
Hon. Mr. BSÉiQUE: Yes.

CROSS-ExAMINATION

By Mr. Robertson:
Q.Jusýt Vo follow what you said a moment ago, Mr. Sweezey, was it ail for

your information on whieh you were acting in making the contributions you
have spoken of that the substantial amount was given out to both parties, both
the Liberal Party and the Conservative?-A. Yes; my information was that
any big organization that held any position in the political horizon would gen-
erally pay both parties. Your bet would be the larger on the one xvou thought
would win, I think.

Q. I see, by reference to something that was said on the former inquiry,
that you had also some one speak to you about a contribution to the Conserva-
Vive Party fund?-A. Yes, in Montreal.

Q. Somebody suggested to you that you should contribute, or asked you Vo
contribute?-A. Well, somebody approached me.

Q. May 1 ask you who it was?-A. 1V was Mr. Cartier who suggested that
I should make a contribution, and at that time I was pretty well shook down,
if I may use the expression, and I had not much to contribute--had not much
left.
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Q. Did some one suggest, make a proposai, that it should be $200,000?-A.
1 tbink Mr. Cartier suggested the amount, only nothing came of it, though.

Q. Yes, but let us see what happened before nothing came of it; the sug-
gestion was that you shouid make that contribution to him?-A. Weli, to the
party, but it was not designated definitely to whomn personaily.

Q. Was General McRae's name mentioned?-A. Yes, he told me that Gen-
eral McRae was anxious to get some funds. H1e did not say it was Generai
McRac that was askîng for it, though.

Q. But he suggested not only the contribution, but the sum of $200,000?-
A. H1e thought that wouid be a fair sum, for me t--

Q. And what did you say when you were approached?-A. 1 told him that
$200,000 was an awful lot of moncy ut that time.

Q.When was this?-A. That was shortly before the election of 1930.
Q. And you said it was a lot cf money; what further?-A. Well, 1 wanted

time te think it over.
Q. Did you do anything further about it?-A. No, I was continuing to think

it over when I was finally told that it apparently would not-as a matter of
fact I was not toid anything, I was not pursued.

Q. Did you sec anyone else in regard to it?-A. No, 1 didn't see anyone
else.

Q. Did you speak to anyone cisc before you dropped the matter?-A. Well,
somebody eise iii the Beauharnois Company asked me if 1 had contributed anv-
thing or had made any arrangement to contribute anything te the Conservative
party.

Q. Did you sec any other representative of the Conservative partv?-A.
No, I did net; at least 1 thînk there werc one or two people with Mr. Cartier
at the time, but 1 can't recail. Thcy wec only int.roduccd to me then, and I
can't recali who they wcre.

Q. Did anyene edsc se you again?"-A. No, except Mr. Cartier, wvho wanted
to know what my attitude was towards thc idea, and I slightly failed him on
that.

Q. Had you formcd some opinion as to the possible resuit of the cicetion
that made you decide that. way?-A. No; the fact of the matter w-as that I had
uscd up al my available funds.Q. You had used up yeur moncy. you sav; thcn vou made carlier cntribu-
tiens, did yen net. for election purposes, or towards tÈle campaign funds through
Mr. John Aird?-A. Well, now, may I ask a ruling on this? This is getting
into provincial matters.

Q. Into what?-A. Into provincial questions, and 1 thinkc I got ii ruiling a
w-hile ago-

The CHAIRMAN: We have nothing to do witlî thut.
Mr, ROBERTSON: The purpose of ail those contribuitions, if they are all pure

and simple contributions te the good of the cause, ail vcry wlÏ, wc are net
concerncd in uny of thcm; but if there is any question, 1 am oniy cone&rned-

The CI-AIRNIAN: WTe are net intercstcd in John Aird at ail.
Mr. ROBERTSON: May I submit this, that if it is sought te alt.hch te the

contributions made te or through Senator Haydon any improper motive en the
part of Senator Haydon, any improper bargain. anything exccpt what the wit-
ness had here indicated -as a contribution by him in the pursuance of c:practice
thut may be geod or bud, if there is gnything werse te be attached te it1, then 1
submit the motive bchind them ail bats te be inquired into.

The CHAIRMAN: -Tt is eutside the scope of our inquiry aitogether. We have
ne authority te hear it.

Mr. RoBERTsoN: The Committec is surely trving te find eut if there is
anything corrupt abouit this sort of thing.
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The CHAIRMAN: It may be proved that John Aird got a million dollars;
that is no difference to us.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: That evidence is ail printed in that book, about that
contribution to John Aird.

Mr. ROBERTSON: No, 1 do not think it is ahl printed.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: That brings the Committee back to my suggestion.
Mr. ROBERTSON: If the Committee say that they are satisfied with this

witness's statement, that the motives are just as he says, we are not concerned;
it is entirely a matter of privilege--

Hon. Mr. McMEANS: I think you mighit -ive the Cornmittee sorne credit
for understanding about contributions to party funds.

Mr. ROBERTrSON: I have no doubt the Cornmittee know far more thon I do
about contributions to party funds, but the question is the motive and inten-
tion of this witness in rnaking thern; that is the purpose of the question.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not see that there is any use in taking up time with
such questions.

Mr. ROBERTSON: 0f course if the Cemmittee rule that eut I cannot pursue
it, but I submit it is on]y te be ruied out on one ground, and that is thot we are
not taking his statement-the witness's statement, if accepted just as lie made
it, in regard to Senator Haydon and the contribution te him.

Hon. Mr. McMEANs: The only difficultv about it is that this Airr business
has been aired so long that he would have to be called, here and examined and
cross-examined on what he did with the meýney, the $150,000.

Mr. ROBERTSON: ýYes, I think thet would be interesting.

Hon. Mr, MCMEA-NS: 11e has given that evidence in the Bluie Book, that
he put it in bonds, and he nover paid it over te anybody.

Mr. RoBEur'SON: It is net a very satisfvictory account, howev cix

The CHAIRMAN: It is ail in that book, anyway.

Right Hon. -Mr. GRAHAMN: The dificulty I see, Mr. Robertson, is. where
will we stop if this Committee proposes te investigate provincial rnaLt.rs? I
would ho as anxious as vou te find out ahi about this Aird business, let us under-
stand that, but if we step into that-

MUr. RIOBERTSON: I arn submitting that it is net a matter whother it is pro-
vincial or parochial or Domninion; it is the question of tho witness's motive,
and what was bohind it. If we have got the whohe story from hirn now. it was
a voluatary contribution, with no motive.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Robertson, on your responsibility as a Momber of the
Bar, do you think you can tr-ce this Aird inonoy te a member of the Seriate?

Mr. ROBERSON: NO.
The CHAIRMAN: Then we have nothing te do with it. Our business bore is

te investigate Beauharnois in se far as it relates te any member of the Senate.
Mr. ROBERTSON: Quite se; but I arn cross-oxamining the witness, and I arn

concerned in finding out on that cross-examination, ail that lies behind the con-
tributions that may be of a political character.

The CHAIRMAN: We are net interested in a fishing excursion.
Mr. ROBERTSON: If I arn net, then I cannot continue the cross-examination.
Mr. SMITH: It srcms you have done that three or four tirnes now.
Mr. ROBEwRso'N: I suppose my learned friend would prefer that I stoppod it.
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By Mr. Robertson:
Q.Then, Mr. Sweezey, let me take you back a littie earlier to the matters of

1928; now, you understood in the f ail of 1928, 1 think you said this morning, that
Senator Haydon, when hie was in the company with Senator McDougald in
certain negotiations you had regarding the Sterling Industrial Corporation, was
acting as Senator McDougald's counsel and advisor?-A. Yes.

Q. And that hie himself had no personal interest in the Sterling Industrial
Corporation?-A. Yes.

Q.That is your understandîng?-A. Yes.
Q.You may have understood there were nominal shareholders of one share;

I think hie told me something of that kind, that hie might be a nominal share-
holder?-A. No, in reality hie told me hie was not a sharebolder. He told me hie
would not benefit by one dollar in that.

Q. And that was the relationship of Senator Haydon, acting for Senator
MclDougald?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: For the company.
Mr. ROBERTSON: For the company, or for Senator McDougald. I under-

stood him to say Senator McDougald. 1 will let the witness say which hie meant.

The WITNESs: WeIl, hie had reference to the Sterling Company, but hie was
very empbatic in telling me-lie in fact told me several times-that hie and his
firm had no interest in the Sterling Company other than acting as solicitor for
that company on behaif of the owners of it; but hie did not reveal to me the
reality of the position of the owners.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Referring, then, to your evidence given before, of course you were exam-

incd on several occasions, and 1 think sometimes called back to answer particular
matters without very much opportunity for looking them up to refresh your
memory ?-A. Yes.

Q. And there seems a lîttie confusion in one part of your evidence-
H-on. Mr. MCMEANS: What page are you et?
Mr. ROBERTSON: I arn referring to page 728.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. You had some conversations from time to time, as I understand it, with

Mr. McGiverin, of the firm of iVcQiverin, Haydon & Ebbs?-A. Yes.
Q. And you had desired to retain them?-A. Yes.
Q. Mr. McGiverin was a well-known man in Ottawa?-A. Yes.
Q. And you wanted his services?-A. Yes.
Q. Then you told us that when you saw him first hie had had some retainer

from some one else, or was in some way engaged by some one else whose position
hie thought at that time might confliet with yours?-A. Yes.

Q. That was the Shawinigan interest?-A. The Shawinigan Light, Heat and
Power Company, who were our opponents for a time.

Q. Then later at somc time -this is what I wanted to see if we could
straighten out-at some time later you learned from him that hie was not any
longer under obligation to the Shawinigan people, and that hie could act for you?
-A. Yes.

Q.You learned that in some way?-A. Yes.
Q.Whether hie came to you or you communicated with him does not matter,

but you learned that?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, can you teil me whether or not that was before this bargain was

made in IDecember, 1928, to take over Sterling?
Hon. Mr. McMwANs: 1929.



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

The WLTNESS: 1928, December.
Mr. ROBERTS0N: iDecember, 1928, is the agreement with Sterling.
Mr. MANN: Exhibit 75.
The XITNESS: It was before that.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q.That is what is confusing me?-A. I might be uncertain about it, but

my impression at the moment is-
Q. If you will allow me, you were with Senator Haydon from time to time,

and sometimes with Senator McDougald, discussing Sterling?-A. Yes.
Q. And his interests were certainly not yours; he was at the other end of

Lhat?-A. Yes, but-
Q. INow, if you put the McGiverin retainer earlier than that, I do not quite

see how you make it?-A. It w as eaillier thaqn that; that is why Senator Haydon
revealed to, me that he was not himself a sharehlcder in Sterling; that having
acted for a dissenting group in isome respects, Up to that time he tried to point
out that in ne sense was he getting any benefit by his transactions with the Ster-
ling Company.

Mr. MANN. The business begiis the 2nd of October.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. There is a bill filed as an exhibit which shows a particular visit of Mr.

Ebbs to Montreal?-A. Yes.
Q. Taken early in October, 1928; do you recail that?-A. I don't recali just

when, but Mr. Christie would have the record when Mr. McGiverin and Ebbs
started in acting on our behaîf in a legal capacity.

Q. When they were acting on your behaif, as you say, the work they were
doing was largely in Montreal? A. Yes, they were back and forth te Montreal a
great deal, and there was a lot of work; it meant work dea-ling with engineers,
and differentia.ting between what was an engineering queýstion and a legal, or
question dealing with the validity cf titles on the St. Lawrence. They had a lot
to do with that.

Q. Mr. Ebbs is a man who has had a lot to do with tities, and that sort of
thing?-A. Yes.

Q. Then in that connection do you recaîl that there was paid a retainer for
an item cf $7,500?-A. Yes, I think I recail that.

Q. That was a retainer; may I -put àt to you this way, that Mr. MeGiverin,
intending te sever any further relations with the Shawinigan interests, desired a
retaining fee to be paid?-A. Yes, quite se.

Q. And that $7,500 retaîning fcc was paid under that arrangernent?-A. Yes.
Q. And was ne part cf an arrangement cf later date for a threeý-year retainer

beginning with October, 1929?-A. That is where I arn obscure, and I don't just
recaîl how that subsequent retainer was arrived at on the three-year basis, excett
that I do rememnber this-that I was much concerned about not having te pay
tee much until I was sure that we could finance our undertakîng. I was out te
bargain to, get the lowest fees possible.

Q. My suggestiôn to you is that, looking at the way matters occurred, taking
particularly the $7,500 retainer fee in October, 1928, that you were able te get
the transfer arranged at that time for that payment?-A. Yes.

Q. And that other paymcnts made later were matters of later arrangement?
-A. Yes. I must admit that I arn net veryedear on ail these thîngs, I have had
se many transactions the last thrce or four years that it is difficuit te clarify and
crystallize each one of them.

Q. Now, the application for the Order inCouncil granted on March 8,1929?
-You know what I amn referring to?-A. Yes.
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Q. 1 think it was filed in Janýuary, 1928; to whom was that application filed?
-A. Beauharnois Light, Heat an.d Power ýCompany.

Q. By what solicitor or firm of solictors?-A. I don't know; Mr. Griffith
could tell us that.

Q. In any event it was not Senator Haydon's firmn?-A. 1 -don't know whether
it was or flot.

Q. They were not ýdealing with you at ail in January, 1928?-A. No, of
course not.

Q. I see there is nothing on Exhibit 35 to indicate any solicitor, but you
think Mr., Griffith would, know?-A. Mr. Griffith will certainly know.

Q. And that is the application that Mr. Aimé Geoffrion had particu.larly in
charge until the end?-A. Ycs.

Q. And waspresent, I thiak on the occasion whe.n the Order in Couneil was
passed, and pressing your application?-A. I don't know whether he was actually
present on that day. There was a Committee of the Cabinet before whomn the
application was ýdiscussed, and ail our opponents-who appeared in great numn-
bers-argued against the idea of the feasibility of the development of the St.
Lawrence. MT. Geoffrion took thepositioa as our counsel that day, and argued
before that Committee.

Q. You do not know whether Mr. Geoffrion was here in Ottawa on the very
day the Order in Council was passed?-A. No, I don't know that.

Hon. Mr. McMEANS: Do you want to cross-examine, Mr. Cannon?

Hon. Mr. CANNoN: Even if I started now it is near one o'c'lock. Would the
Committee be satisfied if I give an answer when the Committee meets agaîn?

Hon. Mr. McMEANS: I asked that because if you did not have any questions
he could go home.

H'on. Mr. CANNON: Mr. Chiairman, bave instructions been given so that
counsel can have printed copies of the evidence?

The CHAIRMAN: Yeýs, as soon as it is available.

Committee adjourned at one o'clock until 2.30 p.m.

The committee resumed at 2.30 p.m.

The CHAIRMAN: Are you ready? I may say to you, gentlemen, that thc
reporting staff being shorthanded we shall have to adjoura at 3 o'clock for a
short while, wbile the Senate is sitting, tili say haif past three.

ROBERT O. SWEEZEY-Examination resumed.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Mr. Chairman, since the adjournment I have had time
to con sider whether I should cross-examine the witness or not. I may state
to the committee that in view of the evidence which the witness gave last year,
and whieh cuvers the whole facts ini the casýe, ini so f ar as niy client i.s coîîcerned,
I do not wish to examine him any further.

The CHAIRMAN: Are you through, Mr. Robertson?
Mr. ROBERSON: Oh, yes.
The CHAIRMAN: 1 did net know you had finished.
Mr. VIEN: I have nothing to ask.
The CHAIRMAN: Next witness.
Mr. SMITH: 1 thînk perhaps there is one thing 1 wish to take Up with the

witness, and if it dées not arise directly out of cross-examination I arn asking
leave, in any event, because it is something that I had not completed before we
rose. However, I had anticipated a cross-examination which, apparently, iýs not
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taking place, and I wonder if Mr. Sweezey could stand down to permit me to,
think over the thýing that I had in mi, and it may be that we will not require
hirn back; but I amn sure he will be glad to, corne if I suggest it to hirn. That
being so, I would like to call Mr. Griffith.

The WITNESS: I did not complete an answer this rnorning which 1 started
on. I wonder if I could complete it now?

The CHAIBMAN: Yes, surely.
The WITNESS: I was asked why I didn't buy the Transportation and Power

Comnpany. The answer that I gave was that I did not consider them financiatlv
worth while to bother about; but apart frorn that their project was an entirely
different one from the one that we were offering, that is, they were going to
by-pass the St. Lawrence past Lake St. Louis which I did not think could be
considered for a moment by anybody, bath frorn an engineering and economic
standpoint.

Witness retired.
Mr. HUGH B. GRIFFITH, banker, Montreal, Quebec, appeared as a witness,

and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Mr. Griffith, you reside in Montreal?-A. Yes.
Q. And until recently you were the secretary of the Beauharnois Power

Corporation?-A. I was.
Q. And also secretary of its subsidiary companies?-A. I was.
Q. And prior to that you were the secretary of the Beauharnois Power

Syndicate?-A. That is right.
Q. And prior to that were the secretary of the Beauharnois Syndicate?-

A. Yes.
Q. INow, 1 intend to confine my examination of you to one matter. You,

I believe, can tell me what portion of the arnount-estimated by Mr. Sweezey
to be between $600,000 and $700,OO-was paid by the Beauharnois Syndicate
Corporation, or whatever the clothes worn by the same cancern were?-A. I
do not think any of it was.

Q. Well, perhaps you will amplify that.-A. The particular contributions
that I understood Mr. Sweezey's evidence to tical with, that is the sums of moýney
or securities representing moneys that were given to Senators Haydon and
Raymond were, to the best of my knowledge, given out of Mr. Sweezey's own
personal resources and net from the company's funde.

Q. I will confine myseif to that. lie told us this morning that you would
be able to give us in greater particularity just what those contributions were
and in what form.-A. I arn afraid he was a littie bit optimistie because I can
only speak from recollection. I believe that it was ail given in the shape of
government securities.

Q. You rnean bonde, I suppose?-A. Bonds, yes. I had at the tirne some
record of the various amounts frorn time to time; but I quite frankly destroyed
that the day after the election.

Q. Yes, and your memory of it?-A. My memory would be very defective.
1 can remember the straight amounts $50,000, sixty, eighty and one liundred,
but I do know that after it passed five hundred thousand I told him that he
had done enaugh and had better stop.

Mr. SMITH: That being sa, Mr. Griffith and Mr. Chairm an, in view of the
fact that I have sent for and will have to-morrow marning, I think, a complete
list of such vouchers as are available to me, might I ask Mr. Griffith ta stand
down and, much as I dislike ta do it, ask him to remain until to-rnorrow marning,
and I will probably have an apportunity of taking thase up with hirn when I
get thein.
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By Hon. M1r. McMeans:
Q.Did you make any statement before the Huse of Commons Committee

as to the arnount of money subscribed by the company-A. Yes I did, sir.Q. Well, I did not quite understand what you meant when you were giving
your evîdence just now.-A. I said that none of the amount of money that Mr.
Sweezey referred to in bis evidence this morning came from company funds. I
understood that te be the question. There were other subscriptions which were
made.

Q. I did flot quite understand it. I gathered that there was no money came
from. cornpany funds. Is that what, you meant?-A. Oh, no, I did not say
that. I said that none of the monies that were given to Senators Raymond and
Haydon came from company funds.

Q. There was some money came from the company's funds?-A. Yes, sir.Q. The amount?-A. I believe it is $295,000. 1 would have te look at the
previous evidence to get the total of it.

Mr. SMITH: I merely thought I would leave the whole matter until I got
those vouchers.

Witness retired.

Mr. L. CLARE MoyER, barrister-at-law, Ottawa, Ontario, appeared as a
witness, and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows.-

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Mr. Moyer, I believe you are a member of the law society of Ipper

Canada carrying on the practice of your profession in Ottawa?-A. I arn also
a member of the law society of Saskatchewan.

Q. I arn glad to know that. I was born there. And you have been practis-
ing in Ottawa for how long?-A. 4 years,-a littie over 4 years.

Q. And prior to that I believe you acted in a secretarial capacity to the
*then Prime Minister?-A. I did for some time.

Q. And in the course of the practice of your profession you had to do with
the late Mr. Winfield B. Sifton?-A. Yes.

Q. And the particular business to which I ask you to direct your mind is the
transaction in Beauharnois part interests on behaif of Mr. Sifton. Now, when did
you receive your instructions from him?-A. Within a few da'ys, I imagine,-I
cannot fix the date-but within a f ew days prior to the 4th of April, 1928.

Q. And in what form were those instructions?-A. Verbal.
Q. And given at what place?-A. At my office in the City of Ottawa.
Q. And prior to that had you a retainer from the Beauharnois Syndicate?-

A. I had. Two or three months prior te that I had been retained.
Q. And had been rendering such services as you were directed to do in pur-

suance of that retainer?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And meeting Mr. Sifton then in your office as you say a few days prior to

the 4th day of April, just tell us whaL Look place.-A. Mr. Sifton came to me
and said I arn approachmng you as a client te solicitor. I want you to invest some
money for me; and he knew that I knew somcthing about the Power Syndicate,
the Beauharnois Power Syndicate. He knew that I knew that the Syndicate was
in process of organization and he did not need to tell me in great detail what that
involved except that he would give me money which I should invest in trust for
him and in my own name.

Q. Well, now, I want you, in so far as you can, to search your memory quite
exhaustively and tell me the whole conversation with the late Mr. Sifton.-A
Well, I think I have certainly given you the essence of it.

Hon. Mr. CANNoN: I suppose this evidence is being received with the under-
standing that any such conversation could not be binding on other people who
were not there?
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The CHAIRMAN: Oh, no.
Mr. SMITH-. Well, I may compliment you on many things but more on

your ingenuity at the moment than anything else.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: That is law, that is not ingenuity.
Mr. SMITH: Well, it is ingenious law, let me put it that way.

B'y Mr. Smith:
Q.Then perhaps you would answer my question, granted that I have the

permission of the committee. I want you to exhaust your memory and give
me the whole of the conversation which took place with the late 1\1r. Sifton
at that time-A. 1 have already stated that I have given you the essence of
what passed between us.

Q. Very well.-A. 1 think that he said to me I arn going to be able to sub-
scribe for a considerable block of part interests in this syndicate. I have rea-
sons of my own for -not wanting to subscribe in my own name. I would like
you to stand in my place and be a nominal shareholder.

Q. And then what next happened?-A. I duly subscribed on the 4th April
for 800 part shares, paid for them, haif of the value of them, with $15,O00 in
cash whieh Mr. Sifton gave to me and which I deposited in the bank and
which I issued on my own cheque to the syndicate.

Q. What I have in my mind is this: you received from him $15,000 in
cash ?-A. Yes.

QI think in the form of $1,000 bills?-A. That is my recollection, yes.
QThose bis, do you know where he got them, where they came from?

-A. I have no idea, no.
Q. They are known as legals, are they not?-A. 1 believe so, yes.
Q. Then in what bank did you put them?-A. 1 put them. in the Bank of

Nova Scotia, New York City. We were in New York at the time and had been
for two or three days.

Q. And why had you gone to New York?-A. He had asked me to accom-
pany him to New York. As a matter of fact several of those interested in the
organization of the Syndicate were in New York at the time in contact with
engineers and others down therc, and Mr. Sifton had told me that in taking
up those part interests for him I should qualify for and become a sy'ndicate
manager, and I was more or less being initiated into this, and others with
whom 1 would corne in contact.

Q Perhaps you will tell me where and when your first interview with the
late Mr. Sifton took place?-A. In my office some time before. Shortly before
the 4th April in my office in Ottawa.

Q. And after chatting with him how soon was it after that that you left
for New York?-A,'. Oh, I should say within-T cannot say as to days-within
perhaps 48 hours. It was very shortly afterwards.

Q. I suppose that was when he suggested to you that you should accom-
pany him to New York?-A. Yes.

Q. And the reason, as I understand you correctly, for your going there
was because other persons were in -New York who were in association in this
syndicate?-A. Yes, that was one reason, I sunpose. Thc principal reaýson
was-well, I don't know what his reasons would be.

Q. Wcll, perhaps you could make a skilled prophesy if I may caîl it that.
What were you going to say?-A. I was going to say he probably had reasons
for wanting to have this money deposited in my name in New York, in order to
make it difficult for anyone to know where he had got the money. I do not
know whether that was his reason; but in looking back it might, have been.

Q. And you went to the bank in New York, I suppose, and made yourself
known?-A. H1e took me to the bank and introduced me to the manager and
I deposited il. with hlm.



BEAUHARNOIS POWER PROJECT

Q. And you became known as the owner of that deposit in New York?
-A. Yes.

Q. And is there more than one branch of the bank of Nova Scotia in New
York City?-A. Wall Street. I don't remember the number.

Q. The Wall Street Branch of the Bank of Nova Scotia?-A. Yes.
Q. And that sirnply rernained deposited to your current account, I sup-

pose, in that bank?-A. For a short tirne until my cheque was cashed.
Q. Now, who were in New York when you went down there that you

referred to as associates?-A. Well, I think that iMr. Griffith was there and I
think that Mr. Sweezey was there.

Q. Did you see them?- A. I saw Mr. Griffith, 1 arn pretty sure, and I
thing I knew that Mr. Sweezey was there; but I was in New York more than
once. However, I cannot be quite certain about that.

Q. What I mean was you went down to New York, as I understood you to
say, because your associates were there,-and were you there introduced to
them?-A. No, I hiad met them hefore. I had met both Mr. Sweezey and Mr.
Griffith before. I had been retaîned by 'themn some months before.

Q. llhen did yoiî have contact with respect to the matter fromn mutual
intercst in New York on that occasion?-A. I do not recali any particular trans-
action that occurred. I think I dîi have personal contact wîth them, but
whether or not anv business was disclosed which concerned me I don't remem-
bcr.

Q. Well, I arn cozning back to your own statement. You say that one of
the reasons for your going to New York was that persons w-ho would be in
association with you a-s a manager would be in New York, so surely if you had
some business conversations wîth these new associates, business which was
entirely new to you, it would register in your mind?-A. 1 think it would have;
but I don't think there was anv serious business involvîng myseif while I was
on that trip.

Q. Perhaps you can leave out the word " serious." Did you have any
conversation with Griffith or Sweezey in New York with respect to the Beauhar-
noîs project? A. I don't recaîl any. I don't remember definitely whether
Griffith and Sweezey and I were in contact in New York, although I think they
were both there and T think I saw thern.

Q. Tien, having gone to the Bank of Nova Scotia, the rnoney having been
there deposited to your credt,-by the way how long were you down there?-
A. I think two days. It w-as less than a week and more than a day,-I think
about two days.

Q. And frorn wlhat place did you make your subscription? I take it you
did it bv înail?-A. I don't remember. I don't remenmber whether it was when
I got back to my own office or in Montreal on the way back. I rather think
it w-as in Montreal.

Q. And that, no doubt, was in witing?-A. Yes; your exibits will show
that.

Q. And have you the cheque which you issued for the $15,OO?-A. I
haven't, no.

Q. Where is it?-A. It has gone the way of all my old cheques. I had it
until a year and a haif or so ago.

Q. What you inean is that you have the habit of destroying your old
echeques?-A. After they become dead wood, yes.

Q. After a certain length of time? -A. Yes.
Q. And you perhaps can approximate more closely for me when you

destroyed this cheque?-A. No, I cannot tell you definitely or even approxi-
matcly. It was some time before the last inquiry, bèfure the Huse of Com-
mons Comrnittee, because I made a search then, and was reminded by the
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failure to find the cheque and a lot of stubs for a period running back some dis-.

tance that 1 did not have it, and that the others were also gone.
Q. Did you have a bank book covering this account in New York?-

A. Yes, 1 did.
Q.Have you got tlhat?-A. No, 1 cannot find that.
Q.Where is it?-A. 1 think it went the way of the cheques. There was

nothing in this account except the one transaction.
Q. Except the one entry?-A. Yes.
Q. In other words, save such records as may be in the bank you know of no

records which can assist this committee with respect to those fiftecn one thous-

and dollar bills?-A. 1 arn sorry to say I don't.
Q. And they were, as I understand you, destroyed according to your usual

habit?ý-A. Yes.
Q. Was this cheque destroyed any more quickly than you usually destroy

thcm?--A. I don't recaîl anytbing specific about its destruction at ail.

Q.You do not recaîl any discussion or anythîng of that sort?-A. None

whatever.
Q.Now, Mr. Sifton died on the 13th day of June?-A. Yes.

Q.You no doubt had this cheque then because he only issued it about

the 4th April?-A. I had it no doubt for a long time after that.

Q. And you bad no instructionsý from Mr. Sifton except verbal instructions?
-- A. Entirely verbal.

Q.Did it not occur to you that with nothing but verbal instructions upon

which you acted, aftcr he died it was a reasonable thing to do to preserve this

evidcnce of this money?-A. 1 thînk it is almost ccrtainiy a fact that I did pre-

serve tlicm until I ceased to be bis trustee. 1 don't know for certain but I think

it is altogether probable that I had those cheques and everything else for a year

after that.
Q. Wbat I have in my mmnd, Mr. Moyer,-and you no doubt have a per-

fectly good answer to it-by the way the second $15,00 you received from Mr.

Sifton?-A. Yes.
Q. By way, I think, of a bank draft?-A. Yes.

Q. In any event, you have no way of tracing that?-A. No, I have tried to

trace that.
Q. To the credit of what account did that go?-A. I deposited that to my

own account in the then Standard Bank in the City of Ottawa.

Q. And that, of course, no doubt went back to the bank?-A. No doubt,

and I have tried, I may say, to run it down; but the bank cannot produce it.

Q. You are, no doubt, able to tell me of the $15,000 deposited in your own

bank. I mean to say, cbaps like you and me don't usually handle large sums of

money like that. You have probably found out the date of the deposit of that

$15,O00 draft?-A. Yes.
Q. What was that?-A. I mentioned that in my last evidence before the

other commîttee. I cannot tell you, but I know it is in the records.

Q. At the moment you bave no recollection?-A. I thînk it is there. I arn

pretty sure it is.
Q. If it is not perhaps you will be good enough to find out for me?-A. Yes.

Q. And then having spent this $30,000 you subsequently suhscribed for

1,600 part interests?-A. Yes.
Q. And you took on a liability there of $160,OO?-A. Yes.

Q.Yourself?-A. Yes.
Q.And on whose instructions did you make that subscription?-A. On Win-

field Sifton's instructions.
Q. On Winfield Sifton's instructions. And can you tell me when you received

those?-A. Well, let me see.
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Q. Shortly, what 1 have in my mind is this: did yeu receive those instruc-
tions at the time that you bought the first, 800 part interests?-A. No.

Q. Did lie tell you then that later he would ask you to subscribe?-A. No,
he did not.

Q. Se you saw him again?-A. It was a picture that evolved as we went
along.

Q. Having in minci the date of his death-the l3th June--probably you
could place for me how long prier to that it was that lie instructed yeu to apply
for the 1,600 part interests?-A. My cheque which was, I think, drawn the same
day on which I deposited the $16,000, was dated the 26th of May. is instruc-
tions, I think, were within a day or two days before that.

Q. I think he-was quite iii at that time, was he not?-A. He was not wcll.
Q. Was he up and about?-A. Hie was about. 1 think he was up that day.

Hie had been iii, and had had a bad iseizure.
Q. Did yeu receive those instructions from hima in Ottawa?-A. In Mentreal.
Q. In Montreal?-A. Yes.
Q. And had you gene down to Montreal at his request?-A. No, I think not.

1 was in Montreal a great deal cliring that period. 1 was a syndicate manager
and there were meetings frequently, and Sifton and I were *working together as
common solicitors in the employ of the company and we were naturally-

Q. You mean solicitors in the common employ of the cempany, not common
solicitors?-A. And our activitiýes were very closely bound up together througheut
this period, and 1 am pretty certain it was in Montreal that he gave me the
instructions. 1 know that 1 was there twice a week ail through that period.

Mr. SMITH: I observe, sir, it is 3 o'clock, which is the time you said you
were geing te adjourn.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. Wc had better adjourn until haif past three.

The committee adjourned at 3 o'cleck te resume at 3.30 o'clock.

The Committee resumed at 4.30 p.m., ahl members of the Committee being
present.

Mr. L. CLAME Movan was re-called, and bis examination continued.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Mr. Moyer, when the Cemmittee rose a few minutes age, if my memory

serves me right, we were discussing or had discussed trips that yeu made te New
York, and 1 think yeu speke of having had ne discussion with those persens
with whom yeu were te be associated in the Syndicate on that tnip?-A. I think
that is a fair sumimary of what 1 said, what I recail.

Q. And the fact that at that time, or shortly after, you paid $15,000, and
had assumed a liability for a further $15,000 for the late Mr. Siften?-A. That
is correct.

Q. And I think you said that later in the month of May yeu received froin
him a further $16,000? A. Ycs.

Q. I de net think 1 asked you what ferm that meney was in?-A. That
was, as in the case cf the second $15,000, a bank draft.

Q. Can you tell me what bank those drafts were on, or either cf them?-A.
I cannot. 1 deposited them in my own bank, that is the Standard Bank~ cf
Ottawa, and I tried since, as I said a whule age, to find eut frem the bank what
was the form cf the draft, but they can give me ne information on that peint.

Q. Naturally they could net, but I was wondering if you knew what Mr.
Sifton's bank was?--A. I do net; I expect it weuld be in Brockville; lie was
living near there at the time. 1 de net knew that.
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Q. Do you know where the drafts were issued?-A. I suppose Ottawa, but
1 cannot say deflnitely.

Q. You do not remember the place upon which they were issued nor the
bank which issued them?-A. No,

Q. You are convinced they were bank drafts?-A. Yes, I arn sure of that.
Q. So when you got the $16,000 yeu then made application fonr 1,600 part

interests, and incurred a liability of yourself cf $144,000?-A. After 1 had paid
the $16,000, yes.

Q. You then incurred a further liabilitv of $144,00-A. Yes.
Q. iNow, had you anything in writing with respect to that second purchase?

-A. I have nothing in writing in respect to any purchase, except my applica-
tion to the company in each case.

Q. Shortly put, then, your position was that on behaif of Mr. Sifton you
incurred the first liability to yourself of $15,000, and secondly, after that was
paid, a further one of $144,000, and there was nothing in writing setting out
this trust which you made?-A. That is correct.

Q. And nothing, no documents of any kind whatever which exist to-day
which will throw any light on the transaction?-A. I do not know of anything
of the kind.

Q. Now, you became a syndicate manager?-A. Yes.
Q; And you attended meetings of the syndicate?-A. Yes.
Q. I notice your name in the bottom of resolutions and things of that sort?

-A. Yes.
Q. And yeu became somewhat active, did yeu not, in the affairs of the

managing committee of the syndicate?-A. As active as a syndicate manager
would be.

Q. 1 have neyer been ene; but in that way you would meet Mr. Sweezev?
-A. Yes.

Q.And ne doubt have had many conversations with Mr. Sweezey?-A. A
great many.

Q. And what did you tell Mr. Sweezey your position was?-A. Just what
do you mean by that?

Q. I do not want to offend yeu, but if I were anywhere representing
$160,000 everybody would think there was something peculiar about it, and
just wonder; you may be a very substantial man financially, I don't know, but
I wondered if vou told Mr. Sweezey what your position was?-A. I assume Mr.
Sweezey knew I was net representing myscîf, and I thought he knew ail about it.

Q. Did you have any discussion?-A. On that point, none.
Q. That would communicate that knowledge?-A. No.
Q. Or with Mr. Griffith?-A. No.
Q. You were simply accepted, and what was in their minds I suppose you

do net know, as there was no discussion?-A. Ne, there was no discussion.
Q. Now, Mr. Sifton died on the l3th June, 1928?-A. Yes.
Q. Left you with a liability of $144,000; did yeu know what was geing to

take place, or who was geing to take care of that lîability?-A. I did not. 1
cannot say yes to that question definitely, but I did know that I had instruc-
tions te do nothing in the event of his death until I received orders frorn Sen-
ator McDougald, which I did eventually receive.

Q. Now, when did yeu get those instructions from Mr. Sifton?-A. 1 can-
net tell you the date. 1 think it would be within a month of his death, but as
to the date I have net anything te fix that. He had been iii shortly before, and
I know he was iii about six weeks before he died.

Q. You think it would be about a month before bis death?-A. Within a
month of bis death.

Q. Where were you when yen get those instructions?-A. In -LNIntreal, I
remember, when we are at the Ritz Hotel.
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Q. 1 think you had gone down there on business in connection with this
Beauharnois Syndicate?-A. Yes.

Q. And just what was said to you at that. time?-A. Sifton said. Iarn
in rather a precarious state of health "-or words to that effect-"ý something
might happen to me suddenly before I have completed the plan in wliich you
are acting as my asistant. If I should die suddenly just do nothing- %vajt for
instructions from Senator McDougald."

Q. And yeu were content to take a liability of $144,000 on those bare
instructions?-A. I was. There had becn a relation of mutual trust from the
beginning, and I occepted bis instructions on the implication that I w'os pro-
tected.

Q. Then I take it, as far as you were concerned, coming bock tLo what I
asked a moment ago, ynu thoughit Senator McDougald would stand behind the
iiability of $144,O00 wbich you had incurred?-A. Well, I thought lie himself
or somnebody else would do it. I had o occasion to work out the details of a
hypothetical situation.

Q. I arn not doubting you, but it seems a start.ling thing that a ms-n would
have a liabilitv on himself of $144,000 for some one else. and notL know exactly
who thot some one else was, and when it was to be dischargcd; did flot that
occur to you at ail? A. As o motter of foct I thouglit the liability at that time
was an asset.

Q. Is that your view then?-A. Yes, that point had not occurred to me,
really. You mention it as a liobility, but I thiink it would be open to the argu-
ment thot it might have been an asset.

Q. I wont to get your point of view; you tell me now you did not worry
obout it becaus,-e vnu thought these were your protection; what was your posi-
tion?-A. My posi'tion was, ns I tried to say o few minute;s ago, I assumcd that
Sifton had made coinplete arrangements to relieve me of this stock, or if not,
someone else would give me the money to pav for it. I was simply a figure-
head. if you like. in bis place; I had done what hie tolci me in his lifet'nie, and
I did after bis death what was told me in bis lifetime to do in that event; that,
shartly, is the position I took.

Q. But have vou not got a note in a diary or something of the soe't which
will fix certain thi1ngs whichi I regard as essential dates, for example, the time
you got your instructions in Montreal? W'here did you stoy in Montreal at
the time you got your instructions from Mr. Sifton that you would take instruc-
tions from Mr. M1cDougald in the event of bis death?-A. Well, we always
stayed at the Ritz Hotel, I think, and I amn pretty sure it was in the Ritz on
that occasion.

Q. Have you no blotter of your own in your office whichi would indicate
that you were there?-A. I have currently, but not as for bock as th9t.

Q. You have not anythýing as far back as that?-A. No.
Q. Then your position is that you can be of no assistance to me xvhatever

in more exactly dctermiîning thot da-te? A. 1 Cannet determine it. I rnight say
this: I know I was in Montreal on the l8th May, on which day 1 paid the Com-
pany the second $1 5,000. I thînk you wilI find thiat iii the record of the previnus
examination; and it may have been that day; I cannot say definitel1Y that it
was, but it would not be before that, I think; it might have beeni that day or
very shortly after.

Q. I also observe that. in the agreement about transferring the 1asse-s of the
Beauharniois Syndicate to the Beauhiarois Power Syndicate you signed for the
Beauharnois Power Syndicate on -the 4th of April? A. Yes.

Q. As secretary-treasurer, and the late Mr. Winfield B. Sifton is the wit-
ness to the signatures to that document, with the exception of Mr. Sweezey's?
-A. I do not remnember the details which you mention.
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Q. Probably if you look at page 7 of Exhibit No. 58 you will observe-
R. W. Steele and Mr. Hugli B. Griffithi for the Beauharnois Power Syridicate,
and F. S. Molson, P-resident, and yourself as sccretary-treasurer, with Mr. Win-
field B. Sifton as witness to ail the signatures with the exception of Mr.
Sweezey?-A. Yes. 1 do not remember tIjnt being done, but I have no doubt
it is correct. 1 remetnber being in the office on ffhat morrnng.

Q. I arn wondering if you remeinher the names of these parties who were
there?-A. I think they were ail in when that was signed.

Q. And during the time of the discussion of the sale of the astA.Yes.
Q. And Mr. Sifton was present on that, occasion?-A. H1e was in and out

of the office. Whether hie took part in the discussions I could not say.
Q. You see, this is the flrst time you acted as a manager of this huge concern;

just what were the discussions that occurred; surely that would impress itself
almost indelibly on your mind? What took place that morning?-A. The
record indicates the only thing that took place--the emergence of the Syndi-
cate into the Power Syndicate.

Q. But was there no further discussion of' whiere we went from thcre, s0 to
speak?-A. No.

Q. I notice on some occasions---at least on one occasion-you disagreed
with Mr. Sweezev at this meeting of syndicate managers, do you remember
doing that?-Aj. Nýo, 1 do not.

Q. From whom did vou take your instructions as a syndicate manager?-
A. Invariably from my client, Mr. Sifton.

Q. And did you take any from. anyone else at any time?-A. I do not recaîl
any. I may have done in soute detail in which Mr. Sifton would havc bccn
presumed to concuir, but in anything that mattered I was under his orders.

Q. You must have had constant discussions with Mr. Sifton? lA. Oi yes, we
were together continually.

Q. As to -positions vou should cccupy as a manager of the Syndicate, did
you in those many discussions ask some greater assurance as to your personal
position than you had at that time?-A. No, I don't think I did.

Q. Now, these shares that you had became Part interest--3,200 in all?-A.
Yes, actually 3,201.

Q. The one was the management 8hare?-A. For which I paid $100 of
my own money.

Q.Whât became of that share? A. 1 eventually converted it and got what
it was worth on the market after the last syndicate became the company-cor-
poration.

Q. The management share of that was no more use than perhaps an ordinary
share?-A. Well, it was only an ordinary share at any tirne. 1 was entitled,
as manager, to, subscribe for onc, which 1 did.

Q. The balance of that. that is the 3,200, what bappened to them?-A. I
transferred the certificates for 1,600, and my application, and credit on the
remaining 1,600, on the 2nd of October I think it was-yes, October 2nd,-to
Mr. Ebhs in 1928.

Q. That is Mr. Ebhs, solicitor, of Ottawa?-A. Yes.
Q. And between the 13th day of June, the date of Mr. Sîfton's death, and

the 2nd of Octoher you had a number cf calîs from the Beauharnois Company?
-A. I had two or three cails, yes.

Q. For balance cf the payments dite on the 1,600 for whichi you had
subscribed ?-A. Yes.

Q. Why did you not communicate withi the man whcm Sifton told ycu you
were to takÏe instructions from with respect to this?-A. No, I did not.

Q. Why did you not? Aý. Sifton's instructions were that 1 should do notbing
in the event of his death until the man whom lie hiad named came to me with
instructions. H1e vwas very explicit about that.
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Q. Granted the Beauharnois Syndicate determined to make collection from
you, do you think it would have moved you then to communicate with some
one?-A. That is pret ty hypothetical. I suppose it wvouid have done, but that
neccssity did not arise.

Q. And that is ail you have to say as to that-simply that you did not
,communicate with Senator McDougald or anyone on his behaif, even though
the Syndicate were making calis upon you two or three times for payments or
balances due subsequent to the death of Mr. Sifton?-A. Yes.

Q. I take it that from that time you had your interest in this matter entirciy
gone?-A. On the second of October I ceased to be syndicate manager, and
,ceased to have any interest in the company except that one share that 1 sold
ufterwards.

Q. Prior to the 2nd of October you continued to act as a manger of the
'Syndicate?-A. Yes.

Q. And of course you knew, from your position, of those cails being made?-
A. Yes.

Q. In fact, you probably made them?-A. No, 1 did not make^ any.
Q. 1 amn sure some one must have donc so under your directions--yours

and others?-A. I was not the secretary at that time. 1 was secrctary only for
,one day.

Q.You were used for the purposes of transfer?-A. Yes.
Q.Mr. Griffith then took over?-A. Yes.

Q. In fact those cails were catis passcd by the syndicate managers?-A.
Ycs, no doubt they were.

Q. Was there any discussion about your failure to meet your obligation?-
A. None-none that reached my cars, 1 mean.

Q. None within your power as a manager, there was no such discussion?
-A. No.

Q. But those who wcre caiiing seemed to be quite satisfied that you wr
delinquent?-A. I had no indication of dissatisfaction.

Q. The thing simply was not discussed?-A. Yes.
Q. 1 eaul your attention to page 41 of Exhibit No. 58, and 1 sec this motion,

-which I pcrhaps had better rcad to vou:-
The position of Syndicate Members who have the right up until

three o'ciock to-day, under offcring, of shares made to holders of record by
virtue of resolution passed April l4th, was considered.

The WITNESS: Pardon me; what is the date of that?
Mr. SMITH: The date of that is the l8th May, 1928, at 12 o'clock noon,

at 136 St. James Street, Montreal, and I find this resolution on that date.
Apparently there was a prior resolution giving persons who had not subscribcd,
as your case, to 1,600, until 3 o'clock of that aftcrnoon to make their sub-
scriptions at $100 per share. The record proceeds:

There was some discussion, and it brought to, the notice of the
meeting that certain members of the Syndicate had not taken advantagc
of these rights, but had given notice that thcy intcnded to do so.

It was moved by Mr. Moyer, secondcd by Mr. Griffith, that al
rights not duly and rcgularly taken up and compieted by three o'ciock
this afternoon shouid be forfeited. Mr. Sweezey strongly opposed this
motion. The motion was passed on division, Mr. Sweezey disscnting.

At that meeting there werc-R. O. Sweezcy, Hl. B. Griffith, L. C. Moyer and
7H. M. Knight-is that a stenographer, a lady?-A. Ycs.

Q. I suppose not -an active person in the Syndicate affairs?-A. She was
.a member of the staff of Mr. Sweezey's firm.

Q. She is just like some of our lawyers use some members of their staff;
1 wonder if you recoilct that occasion whcn Griffith, who hiad no holdings
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of yours, at least very indifferent holdings of yours, and you out-voted
Sweezey?-A. 1 don't recollect the discussion. I recollect the motion now that
you read it, but not the discussion, if any.

Q. That was probably the only tirne that you and Mr. Griffith out-voted
Mr. Sweezey-You may accept this in s0 f ar as I arn concerned, it is the oniy
tirne I can find?-A. I recail only once.

QIs not that impressed on your mind?-A. No, I arn sorry it is not.
Q.Mr. Sweezey strongly opposed this motion; the entry says that the

motion was passed on division, Mr. Sweezey dissenting; 110w, cannot you recail
that discussion at aill?-A. I cannot.

Q.Can y-ou tell me whether or not. you consulted anyone with respect to
how you should vote on that rnotion?-A. Well, I would say the only person
I could have consulted, and the only person on whose orders I would have
acted as I did, were those of rny principal.

Q. You are simply reasoning?-A. Yes, I amn describing the obvious course
that I would have pursued.

Mr. SMITH: That is ail, Mr. Moyer. Shall 1 proceed, sir?
The CHALUMAN: Yes.
Mr. SMITH: Cail Mr. Ebbs.

Mr. JOHN P. EBBS, Ottawa, Ontario, barrister-at-law, appeared as a witness,
and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Mr. Ebbs, you are a barrister and solicitor carrying on the practice of

your profcssion in Ottawa?-A. That is right.
Q. You are presently associated with the firm of Haydon and Ebbs, your

partner being Senator Haydon?-A. Yes.
Q. Prior to that your firrn was McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs?-A. Yes.
Q. I believe Mr. McGiverin is dead?-A. H1e died a year ago last Feb-

ruary.
Q. That would be February, 1931?-A. Yes.
Q. And when did he sever his connection with your office?-A. Hie severed

his connections with the office, I think, on the lst October, 1930, 1 think just
six months prior to his. death. Hie went out to Victoria.

Q. You received some part interests from Mr. Moyer, the last witness?
-A. Yes..

Q.Under what circurnstances did you receive them? How did it corne
about?-A. The transfer of the part interests that Mr. Moyer held were trans-
ferred to rne, as I recail it, at Mr. Sweezey's office, Mr. Griffith, Mr. Moyer
and myself being present, about October 2nà, I think, 1928. I have not hooked.
over this docket of evidence, or whatever it was, very much, so if I arn wrong
as to dates you can correct me. October 2nd, 1928, 1 think was the date that 1
appeared at Mr. Griffith's office, and there were 3,200 part interests transferred
to me-i ,600 1 think which were fully paid for, and 1,600 which were not fully
paid for.

Q. Under whose instructions were you in Mr. Griffith's office to receive those
part interests 7-A. I was there under instructions from our own office.

Q. From whom?-A. Well, I don't know just which one of the firm it ws
I was not a partner in the firrn at that time, you know; so on instructions frorn
the firm-whether it was Senator Haydon or Mr. McGîverin, I don't know which.

Q. It wus one of the firm?-A. It was one of the firm.
Q. That instructed you to be there?-A. Yes.
Q. What were you to do?-A. I was to represent these part intcrests -in this

syndicate.
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Q. And you became a manager of the syndicate?-A. 1 wa.s, 1 believe, the
next day or the day af ter, at a meeting of the syndicate managers; I was made
a syndicate manager to, represent these interests.

Q. From whomn did you get your instructions as to the operation of that
syndîcate?-A. From whom did I g et my instructions?

Q. You are not a power manl; you are a lawyer?-A. 1 hope so.
Q. This proj oct was a power proj ect?-A. Yes.
Q. From. whomn did you get instructions as to, your attitude at the various

meetings which you attended?-A. Well, 1 don't think I got any instruction from
anybody as to the meetings that I attended. After the meetings 1 know that I
discussed some of the things with Mr. Henry, and I think perbaps with Mr.
Henry alone. I don't want to say alone, because I arn not altogether certaîin of
that.

Q. In your position, then, in s0 far as your share of the management went
in this concern, you were on your own?-A. What do you mean-that 1 managed
somethi'ng on my own? I have not seen the minutes of the meetings of the syn-
dicate managers that you may be referring to. Now, if you can tell me just.
what it is you aâre referring to I will be able to tell you just exactly where I got
the instructions.

Q. What I have in my mind is this, that you attenided a number of meetings
of the syndicate as a member?-A. That is right. I haven't a copy of this at ail.

Q. You took part as a manager, that is in the direction of this syndicate.
What I want to know is, in forming your judgment as to, things done, who
instructed you?-A. About what? It is just-I don't know what was actually
doue there because, as I say, I haven't seen these minutes, 1 don't think I ever
saw those minutes written up. If you could just give mc an idea as to what was
done there I think I would be in a better position to answer your question.

Q.Probably I can let you look at this later, you can then make up your
mind on that part of it?-A. Ail right.

Q. Now, you subsequently disposed of these part interests?-A. I don't
know that I disposcd of them, they were neyer mine.

Q. You got rid of the physical possession, and the titie, naturally?-A. Yes,
that is riglit.

Q. And to whom dîd you dispose of it; or, to whom did you divest yourself
from it?-A. You mean of the equivalent that came from the company; of the
syndicale pa-rt interest?

Q. Yes?-A. Senator McDougald.
Q. And you were holding these part interests for Senator McDougald fromn

the beginnîng, there is no doubt about it?-A. That is right, no doubt about
that.

Q.And you did issue the contract, if I may call it that, to Senator
MuDougald on the 28th of December, 1928?--A. As soon as they were put into
my name I immediately gave him something to show that in the event of anything
happening to me that these things did not belong to me or to my estate.

Q. And you gave him such assurance as in your judgment was necessary
to bring that about?-A. You are right.

Q. And then you became President of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?
-A. Some time, not then.

Q. Later you were the President of Sterling Industrial, I believe it was
first organized in 1926?-A. I cannot tell you that, stili, as you said a moment
ago it was set up in the office and I was made president.

Q. Did you approach Mr. Sweezey with respect to the sale of Sterling
Industrial to him, or to Beauharnois?-A. No.

Q. That date was 26th September, 1926?-A. That was when I was
appointed president of the company.
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Q.And did you have anything to do with the sale of the Sterling, Industrial
to the Beauharnois group, or interest, whatever you cail it?-A. No, sir.

Q. And from what date was your firm undier a retainer, I do not mean a
money retainer-from what date was your firm operating for the Beauharnois
syndicate-I think about the 2nd of October, 1928?-A. I think that is correct.

Q. Then did you know of the arrangements made by your firm with Mr.
Sweezey, or with the Beauharnois people, by way of retainer?-A. No, I did
not.

Q. There is a written agreement of which you have knowledge with respect
to the payment of fees, the sum of $50,000-1 beg your pardon, I arn wrong.
Do you know about any arrangement, do you know of the payment of that
money'?-A. I know there was money paid into the firm but I do not know
anything about any of the arrangements.

Q. You know nothing about the arrangements?-A. As I said a moment ago
I was not a partner in the firm.

Q. Were you a partner in the firm when the money was paid?-A. No, I
was not a partner until, I think, 1930.

Q. Ail right, I will leave you with that, not until 1930. 1 should have asked
you did the rnoney for the payments on your part interest, the remaining 1,600,
did you take them from-?-A. I think the books will show there were two
payments made by me, one of $10,000 and one of $15,000. The balance cf
the payments then, as I recail it, were made in some way by Mr. Griffith. I
do not know how that was done.

Q. They were made by Mr. Griffith for *sorneone of whom I have no knowl-
edge?-A. No.

Q. Where dîd you get the money to make these payments?-A. I th-ink
from Senator McDougald.

Q. Is there any doubt about that?-A. I clon't think so, the books would
show that.

Q. I haven't got your books?-A. I mean the Beauharnois books, I think
that was what it was, 1 know it wasn't my money anyway.

Q. Do you remember getting it?-A. I can't recaîl diîstinctly now at this
late having got it, but 1 would say that I got it from Senator McDougald.

Q. Do you mean to say you are not sure where you got it?-A. If I were
getting it for myseif perhaps I would remember it. It might have been in
my office but I wa,, merely Vurning it over to the Beauharnois people.

Q. I agree wîth you, in what form did you get it?-A. I don't remember that.
Q. Are you quite serious when you say that you turned over to Senator

McDougald $15,000 and again $10,000 and you do not knýow in what form
you got it?-A. That is right.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: If it will help my learned friend at ahl, he acted for
Senator McDougald and he received the money from Senator McDougald.

Mr. SMITH: It seemns rather mysterious that he cannot recaîl when he
received it.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: There is no mystery about it.
Mr. SMITH: I agree with you most heartily, I do not see how there could be.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.But the fact is you did geV these moneys and you turned them in Vo

the Beauharnois syndicate?-A. I would say so, yes.
Hon. Mr. CANNON. As the lawyer for your client, it was not only that, as

a matiter of fact, in rying Vo recail that, iV was only hast year I Vhink that I
tahked the matter over with Mr. Griffith.

Q. Do you know anything, or did you take part in any conference heading
Up Vo or having Vo do with the purchase of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-
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A. No, that is not before the agreement was drawn up. 1 think that Mr. Heward
and myseif drew the agreement regarding the transaction, that is ail.

Q. You refer to the agreement, Exhibit 75, between the Beauharnois power
syndicate, John P. Ebbs and Lyla Brennan?-A. That is right.

Q.And there was another one extending the time?-A. That is right.
Q.Exhibit 75 is an agreement made in your office, and this name here, Lyla

Brennan, who is that?-A. An employee of our office.
Q. In fact, ail the incorporators of the Sterling Corporation were persons

in your office?-A. That is right.
Q. You told me, 1 think, you had nothing to do with the negotiations leading

Up to Exhibit 75; you simply prepared it from instruetions?-A. That is right.
Q. From whom?-Aý. I think Mr. Henry gave me the figures there and

indicated with Mr. Griffith, and with Mr. Heward, of the Meredith-Holden
firm in Montreal, where this was run off.

Q. Well, what I arn coming at is this, you divested yourself, at least your
company divested itself of its assets, whatever they were, and in your recollec-
tion you thînk perhaps the instructions came from Mr. Haydon?-A. Yes, or
perhaps Mr. Griffith.

Q. Did you receive any in your office? You have heard, in this room--?-
A. But 1 wasn't here then, I just came in this afternoon.

Mr. ROBERTSON:- I would pre fer that you se what he knows about it, not
you tell him.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Now you answer me and tell him what you recolleet as to, the instruc-

tions you got for the preparation of Exhibit 75?-A. Well, my recollection of
that would be-

Q. Not what it would be, what is it?-A. Well, as I say, that agreement
was drawn by reason of instructions that I reoeived from Mr. Henry or Mr.
Griffith.

Q. Where did you get it, what town? I beg your pardon, I should say city
-What place?-A. I do not know whether it was Ottawa or Montreal.

Q. Where was the agreement drawn?-A. I can't even tell you that.
Q. Well, Miss Brennan's name on it should perhaps help you?-A. No, that

is not help. It might be drawn in Montreal by Mr. Heward, he was acting as
solicitor for the syndîcate, either one of us might have drawn that. I do not
recognize the typing.

Q. Everybody seems to be going to Mr. Griffith; however, I will ask himn
about that. I thînk that is ail 1 have, you will excuse me just a second, please.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. You put in a bill or schedule of disbursements in the Commons inquiry,

your expense account covering the period I think fromn October 2, 1928, up until
perhaps the early fali of the next year, until about the time of the incorporation
of the Beauharnois company. You remnember?-A. I remember the bill, but I
just don't remnember for what dates, for what time it was. I don't think I did
much extending beyond that.

Q. The question I want to ask you then is this: During the whole period
commencing with October, 1928, when you were rendering services for the Beau-
harnois power syndicate, or company, did you, or did any member of your firm,
to your knowledge, have anything to do with obtaining the Order in Council of
March 8, 1929?-A. Nothing whatsoever.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. You speak of yourseif ?-A. The question as I recali it was, of myseif, or

to my knowledge of any member of the firm.
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Q. To your knowiedge?-A. That is right.
Mr. SMITH: These are ail the witnesses, sir, that we have here to-day.
Hon. Mr. McME-s: What time in the morning would you be ready?
Mr. SMITH: This has gone much more quickly than I expected. I hope to

have Mr. Griffith here to-morrow morning. I can't go on with him u.nti1 I get
those vouchers from Montreal which he said woiild bc here to-morrow morning.

The CHAIRMAN: Is that ail the witnesses you have ready?
Mr. SMITH: I have none ready.
Hon. Mr. MCMF-1Ns: No other witness beside Mr. Griffith?
Mr. SMITH: The position is, sir, as I explained this morning, that until we

had heard the evidence of Mr. Sweezey we were not in a position to make Up our
minds as to whether we could then act-I have not yet had any opportunity of
consulting Mr. Mann to determine anything further.

The CHAIRMAN: We had better adjourn until to-morrow at il o'clock. I
do not know what the views of the committee are, but it has been suggested that
we adjourn at 1 o'clock until the following Tuesday-sit to-morrow at il and
continue until 1 o'clock if necessary, and then adjourn until Tuesday, because
some members of the committee want to go out of town over week.

Rt. Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: What time Tuesday-Tuesday morning at il
o'clock?

The CHAIRMAN: I arn mentioning it now for the information of counsel as
well as the committee. If that is agreeable to the committee we will go on with
that understanding. Is that satisfactory?

Mr. J. W. CooK, K.C.: May I be allowed to say one word? We will not
be expected, I understand, to go on to-morrow morning with the presentation of
the case for our clients.

The CHAiRmAN: We will not take anybody by surprise. I merely wi-sh to,
meet the wishes of the committee as f ar as possible.

Mr. MANN: Mr. Smith and I would necessarily have to discuss for a few
moments the witnesses we will cali to be here next Tuesday morning. Mr. Smith
has a witness who, I think, will occupy a substantial part of to-morrow. I take
it that my Right Honourable frîend at my right (Rt. Hon. Geo. P. Graham) will
allow me to mention the names of witnesses to the Chairman without going back
to him.

Rt. Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: In my hearing, yes.
Mr. MANN: Has it got to be in your hearing?
The CHAIRMAN: I think you have behaved ail right so f ar.
Mr. MANN: That is ail right. I take it that it is with the consent of the

committee that we will give you the names, of witnesses we may cali for the next
seEssion without f urther coming to the committee.

Rt. Hon. Mr. GItAHAm: You are before the committee now.
Mr. MANN: Ail right, sir.
The CHAIRMAN: Well then, we stand adjourned until to-morrow morning

at il ocelock.



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

OTTAWA, Frilay, 4th March, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into consiýder-

ation the report of a Special Committee of the House of Commons of the last

Session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Proj ect, in so far as said

report relates to any Ilonourable Members of the Senake, met this day at eleven
o'c.lock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Senators: Tanner, Chairman, Chapais, Copp,

Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, MeMeans and Robinson.
Counsel:

IVUr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Arthur L. Smith, K.C.,
Calgary.. Alberta, counsel for the Committee.

The Honourable Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec, Mr.

John W. Cook, K.C., Montreal, Quebec; and Mr. Hugh E. O'Donnell, Mont-

real, Quebec, counsel for the ilonourable Senator W. L. McDougald.

.Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, counsel for the Honourable

Senator Andrew Haydon.

Mr. Thomas Vien, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, counsel for the Honourable
Senator Donat Raymond.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, gentlemen, are you ready?

Mr. SMITH.- Caîl Mr. Griffith.

Mr. MANN: Mr. Chairman, while Mr. Griffith is getting ready to corne to

the chair 1 want to say, for the benefit of the Committee and for the advantage

of counsel, that we propose to call on Tuesday-as 1 understand you are going

to adjourn until Tuesday next-

The CHIAIR-.!AN: Yes.

Mr. MANN: We propose to eall R. A. C. Henry, Col. Thompson and Mr.

Ainslie W. Greene, so that the counsel may know, and be in a proper position

to deal with the matter. Those three gentlemen may take quite a large propor-

tion of tiie tîme on Tuesday.

Mr. ROBERTSON: Those are the only ones for Tuesday?

Mr. MANN: Those are the ones we will caîl for Tuesday, which is the day

to which the Committee is going to adjourn.

Mr. HUr.H B. GRIFFITH was recalled as a witness, and testified as follows:

By Mr. Smnith.- f
M[r. Griffith, you have been already sworn?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. The oath you have taken is still binding?-A. Yes.
Q. You were the secretary of the Beauharnois Power Syndicate, and I

think of the two corporations, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company

and tle Beauharnois Power Corporation?-A. Yes.
Q. In your capacity as seoretary you had to do, to some extent, with certain

campaign tunds, and you told me this morning that you thought there might be
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some nîiisapprehension, and you wished to clear up that matter; 110W you had
probably better just do that; in the first place 1 can put it in this way: In so faras the corporations are concerned, lias any of their money gone to and been inpossession of either Senator Raymond or Haydon? 1 understand there was somefinancing done by the company for Mr. Sweezey for small amounts, some
$50,000, wiuch was returned to the company ?-A. Yes.

Q. In the ultimate?-A. Apart from that, none of the company funds went
to either of the two senators for the Federal Liberal party.

By Hon. Mr. Griesbach:
QI dlid not hear your answer?-A. With the exception of some temporary

financing, none of the company's funds went to Senator Ilaydon or Senator
Raymond for the Federal Liberal party.

By Mr. Smith.-
Q.The company did make contributions in provincial matters?-A. That

is truc.
Mr. SIMITH: If I understand correctly the ruling, we do not care to go into

those matters here.
The CHAIRMAN: No.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.Now, as far as you are concerned, these funds of Mr. Sweezev, did youmak-2 delivery to either Senator Haydon or Senator Raymond, or both?-A. In

somie cases I did.
Q.Where were those deliveries made?-A. In Montreal.QIn what form, were the deliveries made?-A. In the formi of bearer bonds

-Dominion of Canada Bearer Bonds.
Q. Did you have anything to do with the purchase of these bonds?-A. Onsome occasions I did purchase securities, or assisted in the purchasing of them.Q. Iu what amounts were those deliveries made-I do not mean wîth auyexactness ?-A. I would say in approximate amounts of $.50,000, $75,000, or pos-

sîbly as much as $100,000.
Q. Whiat was the smallest that you remember?-A. If you cali auything

smaller than an approximate $50,000.
Q.That is the minimum, which you were giving me?-A. Yes.Q.Have you any record of the payment of those varîous amounts?-A.

No, I have not.
Q. You no0 doubt had evidences of purchase of those securities at one time?

-A. I did, yes, those that I purchaeed.
Q. And you no0 doubt had written evidences of the origin of those moneys

which you delivered, generally speaking?-ýA. Yes.
Q. And what hias happened to any of the pa.per writings reflecting thosepurchases?-A. Well, I destroyed everything immediately after the paymentis.Q. So that you are unable to produce anything of the kind before this

Committee now?-A. Yes.
Q. You had to do with the employment of solicitor-s?-A. To a large extent

I was responisible for that.
Q. And among those solicitors was the late Mr. Winfield B. Sifton?-A.

Yes.
Q. lu what capacity was hie employed by you? When I say you I mean

you on behaîf of the Syndicate?-A. I think hie mighit have been described as ageneral legal advisor. He advised not only in respect of the prelimînary pro-ceedings but in respect to corporation matters and in respect to the power
development, and in respect to the commercial and financia* as well as in respect
to legal matters.
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Q. Was he advisor with respect to politicai persons?-A. Yes, we respected
his advice in that regard.

Q. Shortly put, did you or Mr. Sweezey have much knowledge of Ottawa
affa irs at the time you began to further your program in Ottaw'a?-A. No, I
say we had practicaiiy no knowiedge.

Q. And on whom did you rely with respect first, say, with respect to advanc-
ing things in the goverilment departments-on whose advice?-A. W'ell, initialiy
on Winfield Sifton'qs advice.

Q. And subsequently I think the first person you employed was Mr. Ainsie
Greene of Oftawa?-A. I can't remember just in what order we employed.Q. Did you employ Mr. Ainsie Greene, Colonel Thompson and Mr. Pugs-
iey?-A, Oh, yes.

Q. And on whose advice were those gentlemen empioyed?-A. On Mr.
Sifton's advice.

Q. In what capacities we-re they employed?-A. Mr. Greene was the agent
in Ottawa of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, and throughhis office ail communications of a formai nature with the department were made.
In addition to that, Mr. Greene, together with Mr. Pugsley and Colonel Thomp-
son, were charged with the generai responsibiiity of promoting the intcrests ofthe company-the nterests of the Beauharnoýis Light, Heat and Power Com-pany-with their associates and acquaintances, and cbarged with the responsi-
bility of reporting to me or to Mr. Sweezey any advance which they thought
would be of interest or use to us.

Q. Perhaps you would elucidate that a bit more; you have seen their bis?-A. Not for some little time, but I did see them last year.
Q. 1 arn sure you must have a general recollection of their nature?-A. Yes.Q. Take, for example, Colonel Thompson's bill; there were manv interviews

with persons in Ottawa who held public office-senators, memnbers of parlia-
ment, and pers:ons of that kind?-A. Right.

Q. And was that within the scope of theîr authority fromn you?-A. I would
think so. They were charged with supplying information, and describing to
any interested party any matter concemiîng the interests of our company.Q. Is that ail they were to do-describe the application? Generally what
was their business?-A. 1 cannot go further than that. I think they were
charged with the creation of a receptive atmosphere so that the coimpany 's
application might be favourably received.

Q. Receptive atmosphere in whom?-A. In ail those who might be con-
cerned or have an opinion about it.

Q. Who were you applying to?-A. We were appiying to the Governor in
Council.

Q. Is the creat ion of this receptive atmosphere in that body what you wrseeking?-A. 1 think I might better describe it if I were te say that their
primary charge was, in a sense, to prevent our opponents from creating an
unfavourable atmosphere-a matter of counterbalancing the very steady and
persistent propaganda again6t. the enterpriîse.

Q. With whom?-A. With the departmental officials, with members of par-
liament, with members of the government, with the civil service generally. You
must remember that at that time it was by no means decided whether or flot
the power rights were owned by the province or owned by the Dominion.Q. They were not the men to determine that; you had other persons advis-
ing you on that-Mr. Geoffrion?-A. Oh, his advice was definite. We were
not asking their advice as to that.

Q. You were not asking the advice of those gentlemen in matters of that
Sort?-A. No.
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Q. Perhaps 1 might say they were here ta create a friendly atmosphere
towards yaur application?-A. That describes it.

Q. And that application was ta the Governor General in Council?-A.
Yes.

Q. And they were here ta prevent that favourable atmosphere being
created for your oppoDents?-A. What îs that, Mr. Srnith?

Q. They were also here ta prevent that favourable atmosphere being
created in f avour of your opponents-things that are equal ta the same thing
are equal ta one another?-A. Yes, I can agree with that.

Q. Now, you discussed the employment of those people with Mr. Siftan,
you tald me?-A. Yes.

Q. What did you arrive at? IHow many persans were you ta emplay?
-A. As many as cauld be useful ta us.

Q. In ather words, did you make an effort ta emplay-did you ever
hear the word lobbyist?--A. Yes, frequently.

Q. Would that help at ail in what we have been dfiscussing?-A. That
would depend on your definitian of the word lobbyist.

Q. I arn not permitted ta define it for you. and 1 think you defined it
fully well befare this, but I want ta knaw what was your view of a lobbyist?
-A. Well, I think a labbyist and a departmental agent are almost synony-
mous.

Q. Then, with your permission, 1 will speak of lobbyists now; s0 that
these persans were employed by you as labyists, you having an application
for approval bef are the Governor General in Council?-A. I arn not sure
that I should accept the appellation of lobbyist, because yau must remember
that a lobbyist usually is a person who is promoting a prîvate bill or a piece
of legisiatian, whereas we had no legisiation.

Q. We will eall him a departmental agent, and accept that; now, these
departmental agents, whîch you had, yau first had a consultation with Mr.
Sîfton ta determine ta employ them?-A. Yes.

Q. And hie made the selections, as I understand?-A. He advised the
names.

Q. And was your effort ta employ ahl the departmental agents that yau
could get in Ottawa who you thought could be of assistance ta you? Shortly,
was that what yau tried ta do?-A. Yes.

Q. And it was a great compliment ta those three distinguished gentle-
men; they arrived at first, second and third base shortly after that?-A. Yes.

By Hon. Mr. Cainnon:
Q.You hiad others besides those three; did you not?-A. Yes, 1 think Mr.

Moyer.
Q. And Mr. Daly?

By Mr. Smith;ý
Q.Tell us about Mr. Daly?-Aý. Mr. Daly we were unfortunately too late

with. We offered Mr. Daly a retainer-I sent him a retainer-and he sub-
sequently, shortly afterwards, returned it ta me with the advice that hie was
acting for other interests and could not act for us.

Mr. SmrrHi: Then 1 will include in the gallery of fame, for Mr. Cannon's
delectation, Mr. Daly, being an affable gentleman, in whose interest I know
you are speaking.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: YtS.

By Mr. Smith:
Q Now, I want ta deal perhaps separately with Mr. Moyer; you ernployed

him?-A. We did.
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Q. And what was his function?-A. He not only bad some general instruc-
tions wbicb were given to the other legal representatives, but we made rather
larger- daims on bis time and services, and in f act bis office in Ottawa became
the office of the syndicate or company, and was used more generally.

.Q. In fairness to bim, he was practically a fuli-time employee of yours
for some time?-A. I would say we had ninety per cent of bis time.

Q. And you used bis office in Ottawa for tbe purpose of tbe syndicate
or corporation?-A. We did.

Q. And tbat purpose was wbat?-A. Largely as a publicity office.
Q. You disseminated literature from tbat centre advocating your position?

-A. Tbat is true.
Q. Now, witb respect to tbe question of hbis, I have no intention of tak-

ing you over the details of any of tboee bills, because tbey are already
exbibits in the case, but I want to ask you tbis: Wbat was the basis of
your fee arrangement witb tbose tbree gentlemen-I arn leaving out Mr.
Moyer, because I tbink he was doing sometbing different; is tbat a fair state-
ment?-A. That is correct.

Q. With Mr. Greene, Col. Thompson and Mr. Pugsley?--A. My recollection
is that each of tbem. received at the time tbey commenced to work for us a small
retainer, with tbe verbal understanding tbat the matter of determination of fees
would be left until it could be ascertained wbat period of time their services were
required for, and wbat demands we would make on them; and I tliink it was
largely generally understood that if tbe company was successful in financing itself
and tbe syndicate became a success that we would pay a somewbat larger fee
than if we were not successful.

Q. Your last statement, whicb was very general, would you make that a littie
more particular? Wbat was your arrangement with respect to the fees witb tbose
three men? On wbat was it contingent?-A. Well, I besitate to say there was
any definite arrangement with respect to fees. It was a matter wbicb was under-
stood not only witb our legal staff but our engineers and otber people who worked
for us, that tbey migbt expect to, receive a larger fee if the company was success-
fui.

Q. In wbat?-A. In concluding its entire enterprise.
Q. Are you suggesting that Mr. Greene and Mr. Pugsley and Col. Thompson

were engaged on more than one tbing down bere? What were you seeking at
Ottawa?

Mr. ROBERTSON: Is my learned friend cross-examining tbis witness? H1e is
making statements.

Mr. SMITH: You would not be surprised 'if I would-
Mr. ROBERTSON: It is perfectly intelligent, the statement.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: I wisb vou would not interrupt, and let us get on with

tbis.
The CHAiRMtAN: H1e bas a perfect rigbt to ask those questions bere.
Hon. Mr. MeMEANs: Every latitude bas been ailowed and will be allowed.

Please do not interrupt. Let us get on witb tbc proceedings.

By Mr. Smîth:
Q.I arn asking bow tbey belped tbe promotion of the object you were seeking

to bave accomplisbed in Ottawa with tbe Government?-A. Approval of tbe
plans of tbe developrnent.

Q. And under this Navigable Waters Protection Act?-A. Primarily under
that, and subsequently under tbe various con tinuing approval.

Q. I am speaking of wbat subsequently became Order-in-Council 422?-A.
That was the immediate objective.
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Q.And that was what you were seeking to have passed?-A. Yes.
Q. That is true?-A. It i *s not ail we were seeking.
Q. It is the oniy application you had before the Government when you

employed those three men?-A. Oh, yes, true.
Q. And those three men were employed te assist you in passing the Order in

Ceiineil, P.C. 422?-A. Yes.
Q. Then what arrangement did you make in respect to fees with those men,

having regard to the passage of what became P.C. 422?-A. None at ail.
Q. No relationship whatever?-A. None at ail.
Q. Then when you said a moment ago that their fee was dependent on the

success of your enterprise, what you meant to say was, irrespective of the suceess
of their work; do you intend that?-A. No, I don't think se, because 1 think that
their work certainly was contributory in part to the success of the enterprise.

Q. The passage of P.C. 422 was essential to, the success of your enterprise?-
A. Yes.

Q. They were engaged to assist in the passing of P.C. 422?-A. Yes.
Q. And the arrangement you made with respect to, fees was a more generous

fee if the enterprise suceeeded?-A. Yes; I think 1 might put it this way-that
we would postpone discussion of a fee until we had finished-until we had
determined whether the enterprise was going te be a success.

Q. Then we wvill take it, what actually did happen, you flnally paid thcem
fees?-A. Yes.

Q. Was the amount influenced by the success of the enterprise at the time of
payment?-A. It was influenced by our capacity to pay.

Q. Just answer the question; were there not particular influences?
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Griffith, many people here are quite f amiliar with this

business. You have these lawyers here. We know what they were working for.
There is no use beating about the bush in the matter. You can help this by being
frank.

The WIrNESS: I think I am being frank.
The CHAIRMAN: You did not employ those people for nothing. Everybody

that has been in politics knows what they were here for. We see them every day.
Mr. SMITH: Don't thînk 1 amn criticising. I arn not suggesting any wrong.

What I want you te tell me is this: you said a moment ago that there was a
general understanding that the amount of the f ce sheoild be determined having
regard to, the success of the enterprise.

The WITNESS: Yes.

By Mr. Smith:
QIn other words, it is not a very unfair assumption to say that if the

enterprise succeeded the amount of the fee would be greater; that is what you
meant?-A. Naturally; quite.

Q. And the passage of P. C. 422 was a sine qua non; without P. C. 422 your
enterprise could have no success?-A. I think that is true.

Q. So that on the passage of P. C. 422 the business upon which they were
engaged and for which they were employed depended, and the amount of the
fee te some extent?-A. Yes, that is true.

Q. As I understand it, you had nothing to do with the negotiation of the
agreement for the absorption, or purchase rather, of the Sterling Industrial Cor-
poration?-A. That is true.

Q. You did have to do with the making of those formai documents, the
drawing of the agreement?-A. That is correct.

Q. But you did have nothing to do with that negotiation?-A. No.
Q. Now, regarding the campaign funds, you were kind enough to see me this

mornillg, and we had a long discussion of ail these matters?-A. Yes.
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Q. Is there anything that you have in mind? You know what this inquiry
is about, don't you?-A. Quite.

Q. I arn confining myseif, of course, to Senators Haydon and Raymond;
is there anything further that you can tell this Committee with respect to the
payment of those funds, which may be of value to us?-A. No, I think I have
nothmng to add.

Q One thing 1 should have asked you; Mr. Sifton died on the l3th day of
June, 1928?-A. I think that is right.

Q. Ctin you tell me at what time you learned that Senator Mcl)ougald was
interested in Beauharnois? I give you that date because I want to speak in
respect of it?-A. I fear, I cannot determine the date with any degree of exact-
ness. I can say that at the time that Mr. Moyer subscribed for part interests
in the syndicate I did not know that, Senator McDougald was interested. At
the time that Mr. Sifton died I did know that Senator McDougald in ýsome way,
which was, not clear to me, had becorne interested in Mr. Moyer's holdings. Mr.
Sifton h-ad intimated that to me some time before his death. 1 cannot fix with
any definiteness the date on which that happened.

Q. D)id you confirm that, with Senator McDougald?-A. After Mr. Sifton's
death.

Q. Not until aftcr his deatli?-A. Not until after his death.
Q.And you simply say that at some time between the 4th of April andMr. Sifton's death you learned it, but you cannot give it to me any dloser than

that?-A. I cannot. T would bave to choose a date midway between, to be fair
to niyself, probably.

Q. 1 do not want you to guess at it, if you do noV know?-A. No, I arn
afraid I cannot tell you.

Q. Let me put it in this way: You were, of course, interested in your
associates in the carrying on of thîs enterprise?-A. Quite.

Q. Did you use any diligence to find out who they were, or was that left
largely to Mr. Sweezey?-A. I think we were both equally intere~sted. I can
say frankly, without being unfair to Mr. Moyer, that we would not have
accepted Mr. Moyer's subseription if we had not feit that he was acting for
sornebody of more substance than Mr. Moyer was at that time. And we
aecepted Mr. Moyer's subscription at the request of Mr. Winfield Sifton and on
his verbal undertaking that he would be responsible for the payment that that
involved.

Q. That was the situation, that Mr. Sifton gave you bis verbal assurance?
-A. Yes.

Q. Were you in New York when Mr. Sifton and Mr. Moyer visited that
city?-A. I was trying to recail that yesterday. I have been in New York on
several occasions when Mr. Sifton was there. I recail one occasion when Mr.
Moycer was there as well, but whcthcr that was the occasion referred to by Mr.
Moyer, I do noV know.

Q. Were you aware of the deposit of thoee nioneys, of those fifteen $1,uO
bis un the Bank of Nova Scotia in New York?-A. No, I was not. I might
qtulify that. I must have been aware at some timc of the fact that Mr. Moyer
was paying me frorn a New York bank aecount, because although 1 d'O not
recali the forma in which the payment was made, I must bave known it at that
time.

Q. You are reasoning now. I amn asking you for your recollection.-A. 1
have no rccollcction or knowledge.

Q. If you were paid on that bank, of course you would be paid in New
York funds of some sort; but I arn interested in your recollecition of that tnîp.-
A. No, I bave no knowledge or recollection.

Q. What was your first discussion with Mn. Moyen in connection with the
affairs of this company?-A. In 1928.
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Q. He came in on the 4th of April.-A. I knew him before that. 1 was
introduced to Mr. Moyer by Mr. Sifton early in 1928; 1 would have to look up
the records, and I do not know that they would tell me just when it was-I
think it must have been in January, or perhaps it was late in 1927; but 1 had
known Mr. Moyer, I arn sure, for some months before he became a member of
the syndicate, and had scen him quite frequeatly in Ottawa, and I think he
was under a retainer frorn us at that time.

Q. I arn interested in your first discussion with him with relation Vo Beau-
harnois, if you can fix it.-A. 1 think the first time 1 met hirn we started dis-
cussing Beauharnois.

Q.That was with Mr. Sifton?-A. Yes.
Q.Was there any discussion between you at that time, between you and

Mr. Sifton and Mr. Moyer, with respect to Sifton subscribing in Moyer's name?
-A. I think Sifton asked if we would accept Moyer as a 6ubscriber and that
we said we would.

Q. On his verbal assurance, as you have told us?-A. Yes. I f orget whether
Mr. Moyer was present at that time, but perhaps he was.

Q. I noticed that Mr. Sif ton witnessed the signatures Vo the agreement of
the 4th of April whereby the Beauharnois Power Syndicate absorbed the Beau-
harnois Syndicate. 1 arn wondering whether there was any discussion at that
tine.-A. Thýey were both in the ýoffice during those meetings, and I thinik we
can regard Mr. Sifton as having acted -as a witness more or lýess accidentally.
In other words, he was available Vo witiness a document.

Q. It indicated to me that he was there, and I thought that might assist
you in recalling any discussion that the three of you may have had at that
time-A. Mr. Sifton and 1, 1 think, discussed very fully the steps we were
taking, the windîng up of one syndicate and the forming of another. And it
was concurrently with tlhese things happening that Mr. Moyer became a
syndicate manager.

Q. I amn only interested in the discussion with respect to MT. Moycr's sub-
soription.-A. Frankly, I think 1 have told you ail 1 know with respect Vo that.

Mr'. SMITH: That is ail.

By Hon. Mr'. Cannon:
Q.Mr. Griffith, would you state Vo the Committee when to your perso-nal

knowledge, and not through hearsay, or from the records of the company when
you were secretary, did you flrst know that Senator McDougald was interested
in the Beauharnoisl Syndica,ýte?-A. In so f ar as the records of the company are
concerned, lie -did not become intcrested umtil very laVe in 1928. In so f ar as
my personal knowledge is concernýed, 1 knew that lie was intcrested sorne time
after Mr. Sifton's death.

Q. Somne time after Mr. Siftoii's dteath? That is, after June, 1928?-A.
That is correct.

Q. Now, as regards the legal gentlemen whorn you retained in Ottawa in
connection with the Beauhiarnois application, did you or did anybody else con-
nected with the Svndicatc, Vo your own personal knowledge, instruet these
gentlemen to exercise here in Ottawa any undue influence of any kind?-A. No,
neither here nor anywhere else.

Mr. SMITH: 1 wonder if I may be forgiven for interrupting. Unduýe influ-
ence is a legal term, variously deflned. 1 arn sure my learned friend knows
what it means, but I do not know w'hether the witness dots.

The CHAIRMAN: I think the w ording of the question had better be changed.
The question is rather comprehensive for a " yes " or a " no " answer.

Hon. MT'. MCMEANS: I think if vou get the evidence cf what they were
employed for, the Comrnittee will have the facts befo-re them and will draw
their own inference.
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By Hon. Mr. Cannon:
Q.For what purpose, generally speaking, dîd you employ Vhese legal gentle-

men at the time vou did?-A. 1 tried to, describe that already to, Mr. Cannon.
I think it was for the purpose of promoting, by every proper means at their
disposai, the interests of their clients, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and PowerCompany.

Q. And the three of them were listed here as Parliamentary Agents?-A.
That is truc.

Mr. VIEN: And they were ]awyers.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: They could not be Parliamentary Agents unless they

were lawyers.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Mr. Griffith, may I ask you first about the agreement made in Decem-

ber 1928, taking over the Sterling Corporation: 1 understood you to say
to my learned friend, Mr. Smith, that you had nothing to do with the
negotiating of that agreement.-A. That is correct.

Q. You had to do with the drafting of it, I undcrstand.-A. That is
correct.

Q. And was it in connection with the drafting of it that you inserted a
clause, or suggested, I think Mr. Sweezev said, the clause by which the agree-
ment was conditional upon the approval of the application to the Governor
General in Counil?-A. 1 thînk it was my suggestion.

Q. But it was made during the period of drafting and not during the period
of negotiating?

Mr. SMITH: le was flot in the negotiations.
Mr. ROBERTSON: 1 should have thought he would assent to my question.
The WIrNE-sS: I presume the negotiations could flot have been closed

until that was accepted.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q.Isuppose when you are drafting any document the other man has

something to say about it?-A. Yes.
Q. And to that extent, 1 suppose, the negotiations were not closed till

the document was signed?-A,%. No.
Q. And the persons you were dealing with at that time were-Was it Mr.

Ebbs?-A. I think it was Mr. Ebbs.
Q. So far as the other end was concerned?-A. Yes.Q. Do you know who actually drew the document?-A. 1 think it was

Meredith, Holden, Heward & Holden of Montreal.
Q. And you suggested the inclusion of that clause?-A. Yes.
Q. And they already had instructions to draw the agreement? A. Yes.Q. And you wanted that included in it?-A. Yes.
Q. There is one othcr matter that 1 think might perhaps be further cleared

up. I want to refer Co something that was referred to hy an honourable
member of the Committee yesterday when you were giving evidence, with
regard to what you saîd at the previous inquiry, as shown at page 831. 1
want just to, get it absolutely cleared up. You said something to Mr. Smith
about it this morning, the contribution which the company made to campaign
funds ?-A. Yes.

Q. You put it, when you were examined before, at $295,000. Arn I correct
in understanding whether that amount is right or not, that none of the
company's funds was contrihuted to any campaign fund of a federal purpose
through either Senators Raymond or Haydon?-A. That is correct.
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The CHAIRMAN: Ask him through -whom it was given.
Mr. RoBERTSON: I arn going to ask him that.
The CHAIRINAN: I do not like those very comprehiensive questions. That

is a whole book you are putting to him.
Mr. ROBERTSON: I arn only repeating what hie bas already sai.
The CHARMN: Ask him to whom hie gave it.
Mr. RoBERTSON: I arn going to ask him that. Don't be alarmed.

By Mr. Robertson:
QIt was not contributed to them? I want to know to whom it was con-

tributed.-A. Well, to give that evidence with exactness 1 would have to prepare
a memorandum.

Q. Was any of it contributed to anybody for the purpose of federal
campaign funds?-A. Yes. I think that Mr. Sweezey gave some evidence
in respect of that yesterday.

Q. To whom, for the purpose of any federal campaign fund, was any
of the company's funds cuntributed?-A. To General McCuaig.

Q. To anyone else?-A. I do not think the contribution to Mr. Bell
can corne under that.

Q. Perhaps not, in ,riew of what Mr. Sweezey said vesterday. Anyone else?
-A. I do not recali at the moment anything else.

Q. 1 want to read to you a paragrapli from the report of the Comn-
mons Committee, which has been referred to this Committee. At page xxiv,
paragraph 20, the report reads:-

Your Committee considers that return should be made immediately
of any moncys improperly taken from the companies' funds for political
subscriptions by those responsible for their extraction.

Has the money contributed to General McCuaig from the companies' funds
been returned to your knowledge?-A. Not to my knowledge.

Hon. Mr. MeMEA.Ns: There is no evidence, as far as I know, that the
company countributed that money to Gencral McRae.

Hfon. Mr. CANNON: It is not General McRae but General McCuaig.
Hon. Mr. McMFANs: Yes. What I understood f rom Mr'. Sweezeys evidence

was that hie had made that contribution himself. I do not want a confusion
between the comparty's funds and the private funds of Mr. Sweezey.

Mr. ROBERTsoN: I want to get that exactly straiglit. And this witness tells
us that it was the company's funds that Gentral McCuaig got.

By Mr. Robert son:
Q.That is what you stated?-A. That is true.
Q.One thing more. My learned friend was asking you about the retainer of

certain gentlemen in Ottawa for certain specific purposes that you dese ribed in
your own way. And my learned friend was asking you as to the conditions upon
which the amount they should get might be larger or smaller.-A. Yes.

Q. Now, you have said to him that the obtaining of the approval of the
application, which was approved by Order* in Council, was important, perhaps
essential, to the company's success?-A. Correct.

Q. Did it make the company's success, so that on that event they were
entitled, or the company was in a position to pay, a larger fee?-A. No.

Q.It was one step on the road to success?-A. That is correct.
Q.And that is all?-A. That is ail.
Q.But much more had to be done before the events would have happened

upon which their fee would have been increased, is that correct?-A. That is
correct.
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By Mr. Smnith:
Q.What more did happen?

Mr. RoBERTSON: The fee was finally paid to Ainsie Greene in 1930).

By Mr. Smith:
Q.You paid them $10,0O0, did you?-A. That is my recollection.
Q.You paid them $10,000 for those items which are set out in their bis to

you? That is what it was paid for?-A. Well, really, I do not recail what they
said in their bill. 1 paid them $10,000 for the services that I knew they had
rendered.

Q. You looked over their bis, and they were at least 90 per cent for inter-
viewing persons in Ottawa?-A. I think Mr. Pugsley's bill wa.s simply for services
rendered. Mr. Greene's I do not recall.

Q. Well, take Col. Thompson's. There is no doubt about the correctness, of
that?-A. I think that is s0.

Q. And the fee was arranged between you and these gentlemen?-A. Yes.
Q. It was arranged on the bassis of $10,000?-A. I arn not sure that it was

the same fee for ail of them.
Q. Whatever the sum was, you thought you were treating them generously?

-A. Quite.
Mr. SMITH: Mr. Sweezey bas told me that lie wants to be recalled, honour-

able gentlemen, to make a slight correction of some kind.

Mr. ROBERT 0. SWEEZEY was recalled as a witncss.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. You are being recalled. I understand you have something that you wish

to say. I do not know what it is. Will you tell us what you wish to say?-A.
Yes. In my testimony in regard to an interview concerning the consideration of

possible subscription to, the Conservative party, 1 said that the gentleman I met
was Mr. Cartier, with one or two others whose naines I do not remember. I
find I have to, correct that, because my meeting with Mr. Cartier had to do with
an entirely different matter, not concerning this inquiry, and the gentleman I met
was Mr. Howard Smith.

The CHAIRMAN: There is always a Smith in it.

By Right Hon. Mlr. G rahamin:
Q. You mean by that, the gentleman you met who came on the same errand

that you thouglit Mr. Cartier came on, as stated in your evidence yesterday?-A.
Yes.

Q. That was with respect to campaign funds for the Conservative party?-
A. Yes.

Mr. SMITH. I have nothing further to, offer this morning, Mr. Chairman.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Have you anything for this affernoon.
Mr. SMITH: No, sir. There are three wîtnesses who will be subpoenaed for

Tuesday.
Mr. MANN: They are the witnesses whose names I gave to the Committee

this morning.
Mr. SMITH: They are Mr. R. A. C. Henry, Col. Thompson and Mr. Ainslie

W. Greene.
The CHAIRMAN: The Committee will stand adjourned until Tuesday morn-

ing next, March 8, at il o'clock.
48m"~-



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

OTTAWA, Tuesday, March 8, 1932.

The Special Cornmittee appointed for the purpose of taking into considera-
tion the report of a Special Committee of the Huse of Commons of the last
session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, in so f ar as said
report relates td any honourable members of the Senate, met this day at eleven
o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Senators Tanner, Chairman; Chapais, Copp,
Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, MeMeans and Robinson.

Counsel:
Mr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quebee, and Mr. Arthur L. Smith, K.C.,

Calgary, Alberta, for the Comrnittee.

The Honourable Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec; Mr.
John W. Cook> K.C., Montreal, Quebec; and Mr. Hugh E. O'Donnell, Mont-
real, Quebec, for Hon. Senator W. L. McDougald.

Mr. Thomas Vien, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, for the Hon. Senator Donat

Raymond.

Mr. John P. EBBS, barrister-at-law, Ottawa, Ontario, appeared on behaif

of the Honourable Andrew Ilaydon.

The CHAIRMAN: 1 think we may proceed now.

Mr. R. A. C. HENRY, civil engineer, Montreal, appeared as a witness, and

having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Mr. Henry, what is your present position?-A. I arn Technical Head of

the Beauharnois Power Corporation.
Q. How long have you been interested in the l3eauharnois Power Corpora-

tion or its project?-A. 1 have been interested in what is now the the Beau-
harnois development since 1923.

Q. Prior to 1923 you were in the Federal Department of Railways and
Canals?-A. 1 was.

Q. In what capacity?-A. 1 started in as Inspecting Engineer in 1912.
Q. And continued in several positions and capacities until 1923?-A. Yes.
Q. At which time, 1 understand, you joined the Canadian INational Rail-

ways?-A. That is correct.
Q. And remained there until the llth of February, 1929, when you became

Deputy Minister of Railways and Canals?-A. The l4th of February, I think.
Q. The 14th of February. And you left the Department on what date?-A.

March 10, 1930.
Q. And is it fair to say that from that date you went into the Beauharnois

Power Corporation?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. March 10, 1930?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. 1 arn not going to follow you through the whole history of what you

said, but 1 should like some enlargement of the evidcnce you gave before the
Commons Committee. When did vou first as an engineer, and having an
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interest in power projects interest yourself in the Beauharnois projet-that
is the south shore of the Soulange section, fromn your own personal point of
view?-A. Approximately 1923.

Q. Had you interested yourself fromn an academic point of vîew prior to
1923 in the possibility of power deve]opment?-A. I cannot say I did. I was
interested in transportation.

Q. And is it fair to say that your mmnd from then on was fixed upon the
possibilities of power developmcnt?-A. Incidentai to transportation, yes.

Q. What formn did your inquiries or investigation take when you became
interested in hydro elcctric energy, incidentai to anything?-A. The form it
took, was the samne form that any engineer's would takec.

Q. I arn not an engincer, and do not know what that form would be?-
A. That involved an investigation, first of ail, of the site. I investigated the
territory betwecn Hungry Bay, Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis, north and
south sides. The second step xvas the investigation of the rights that then
existed in that territory.

Q. That was about the vear 1923, or immediateiy prior to the conclusion
of 1923?-A. This investigation continued from 1923 right on to the time this
pro.jcct dcvcloped.

Q. If I understand corretly--correct mc if I arn wrong-in your evidence
before the Commons Committee I think you stated that vou had met Senator
McDougald about 1922, towards the end of 1922. Is that correct?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1923.
Mr. MANN: I arn saying what hie said on the inquiry.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: He said 1923.

By Mr. Mann:
Q.Did you say 1922 or 1923?-A. I don't know what I said. The facts

are that some time in 1922-
Q. Some time in 1922. At that time you were discussing, were you, some

question other than water power?-A. At that time the question related to the
use of elevator facilities, of which the Montreal Harbour Commission had a
great number.

Q. That is the occasion on which you met the senator?-A. It was.
Q. And I think you said thiat at that time hie said to you that if you

ever came across any first class water power development hie would be glad to
interest himself in it or help you finance?-A. If I said that, it is subject to this
correction: Water power was not mentioned at ail; it was any kind of project
which I thought was good, and which required financial assistance.

Q. It was a discussion, then, of any commercial possibility, not limited to
water power?-A. Quite.

Q. Will you please say, following that conversation, what conversation you
had with Senator McDougald, if any, and when, referring to water power,
because we are not interested in automobiles or anything else at the moment?
-A. I did not have any conversation witlh Senator McDougald with relation
to water power until some time during the summer or fail of 1923.

Q. Would you be kind enough to tell us what that discussion was?-A. In
1922 the report of the International Joint Commission came out, and in studying
that report I saw what they had to say regarding the Soulanges section. And
that section being located f airly close to Montreal, and being of such a character
as would permit of a relatively-I thought relatively small-capital invest-
ment, it indicated substantial menit. That was the first thought when I started
to look into it, and after I had looked into it I had a chat with Senator
McDougald and told him it was my thought that that presented a possibility
from the standpoint of power development.

4823-S
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Q. Let us know as shortly as possible how far that discussion or suggestion
or thought presented itself in any conversation you had with the senator up to
the time that you projected the Sterling Industrial Corporation.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I think in all fairness to Senator McDougald that my
learned friend might point out that at that time he was not a member of the
Senate.

Mr. MANN: I shall be very glad to do that. It was merely an omission.
Dr. Wilfrid L. McDougald became a senator only in 1926, and when I use the
word "senator" I am using his present appellation, that is all.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Did you understand my question?-A. I think you had better repeat it

again.
Q. Having expressed this thought, what were the other thoughts expressed

in conversation between you prior to the project of the Sterling Industrial
Corporation, which came into being on the 5th of July, 1924?-A. I cannot
recall the discussion, but my guess on that point is that I went over with him
what it meant in terms of investigation and terms of capital outlay and so on.

Q. And, is it unfair to say, in terms of future possibilities??-A. Oh, I
imagine so.

Q. You have said that the consideration of the subject, certainly in so far
as you are concerned, was purely from the point of view of water power develop-
ment?-A. That was the purpose of that.

Q. And could you just enlarge a little bit on the discussion which led up
to the formation of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. Following the dis-
cussion to which I have referred, I proceeded to investigate the rights which
other people had as indicated, first of all, by the charters which were then
existing, and I came upon the charter of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power
Company.

Q. I do not suppose it is unfair to say that at least Senator McDougald
knew that you were investigating the rights other people had?-A. I imagine-In
an investigation of that kind one of the basic considerations is to determine
what is there.

Q. You have hardly answered my question: It is as to whether the senator
at that time knew-the gentleman who is now senator, knew that you were
making the investigations?-A. I would say perhaps he did know.

Q. Well, perhaps. I would like you to try and say whether he did or did
not.-A. You are talking about the time prior to the formation-

Q. Prior to 5th of May, 1924, before you projected the Sterling Industrial
Corporation.-A. The 5th of July.

Q. I beg your pardon. The 5th of July. You are right.-A. I would not
say that prior to that time I did tell him the nature of my investigation.

Q. I did not ask you if you told him the nature of your investigations; I
asked if he knew that you were making investigations.-A. Oh, yes.

Q. No doubt of that?-A. No doubt of that.
Q. And I think it is fair to say that there must have been a discussion some

time as to the incorporation of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. After
I had looked over the Robert Act-that is the Beauharnois Light, Heat and
Power Company's Act-I came to the conclusion that that Act did not provide
the corporate machinery through which an economical development could be
made between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis, because of the fact that it
was based upon the construction of a canal along the route of what was known
as the St. Louis River; and second, that it was a provincial charter, and my
impression was then that the proper course to follow was to make application
through the federal department, because of the fact that I thought the rights
rested in the Federal and not the Provincial Government.



BEAUHARNOIS POWER PROJECT 87

Q. Your opinion was, if I understand you correctly, that the rights in the
water power of the St. Lawrence River vested in the Federal Government?-A.
Yes.

Q. And not in the Provincial Government?-A. Yes.
Q. And therefore you came to the conclusion that the applications which

had been made by the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company were not
such as were of value, if your conclusion was correct?-A. They were not of
value, in my opinion, because they were based upon rights which, if they were
carried out, would involve the construction of a canal which was not economical.

Q. So, having come to the conclusion that you have referred to, did you
discuss that conclusion with Senator McDougald?-A. I did.

Q. And thereupon, may I say, you formulated in your mind something
which would at least procure some rights in the form of a corporate entity?-A.
That is correct.

Q. And the formation of the Sterling Industrial Corporation followed your
then opinion that the water power vested in the Federal Government, and you
proceeded to form this Corporation?-A. I started out first with another corpora-
tion-

Q. You might let us hear about that?-A. -known as the Superior Sales
Company. After I had come to that conclusion-

Q. Who were the parties interested in the Superior Sales Company?-A.
The Superior Sales Company-I will clear that up.

Q. Yes?-A. After I had come to the conclusion that the charter powers
of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company were not such as to permit
of economic development between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis, I went
to Dr. McDougald and told him that if any application was to be made it would
have to be made through some properly organized company, and therefore a
charter would have to be obtained. He told me that he had a charter known
as the Superior Sales Company, and instructed one of his men to give me a copy
of it. I took it away and studied it, and came to the conclusion in my own
mind that the powers which were enjoyed by the Superior Sales Company were
adequate; but later on, just in what fashion I don't remember, I did discover
that the powers were not adequate.

Q. You do not remember just how you discovered that?-A. No. I may
have thought that myself and wanted some legal advice on it, or someone may
have suggested it.

Q. Do you remember having taken legal advice on it?-A. Yes.
Q. From whom?-A. I went to Senator McDougald, and he suggested that

I go to Mr. Haydon.
Q. The present Senator Haydon?-A. Yes. He looked over the charter

powers of the Superior Sales Company and advised me that they were not
adequate.

Q. Not adequate, I assume, for the purpose you expressed to Senator
Haydon, or the purposes you had in view?-A. No doubt about that.

Q. Then what happened?-A. I told him to organize a new company with
proper powers.

Q. Do I understand you to say that you told him to organize a new com-
pany?-A. Senator McDougald had told me that if the powers of the Superior
Sales Company were not adequate, to get Mr. Haydon to-

Q. For the purpose you had in view?-A. Yes.
Q. And then Mr. Haydon confirmed that?-A. Yes.
Q. And you proceeded to the incorporation of the Sterling Industrial Cor-

poration?-A. That is correct.
Q. In the office of Senator Haydon?-A. Yes.
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Q. Now, you stated in the evidence before the Commons Committee-you
used the expression that Senator McDougald financed you. Would you just
tell me what you meant by that, because the word "financing" may have quite
a large ambit of meaning?-A. I think he asked me in the initial discussion,
some time in the fall of 1923-

Q. I would be very much obliged if you would try not to think?-A. He
certainly asked me what it would cost to carry out an investigation which could
be used as the basis of an application, and my impression is that I told him it
would be about $10,000.

Q. There must have been, I think it is fair to say, a fairly reasonable
and comprehensive view of what that investigation was going to import in the
minds of both when you arirved at the figure of $10,000?-A. I arrived at the
figure of $10,000 from my general knowledge of what an engineering investigation
sufficient to prepare preliminary plans and estimates for filing-

Q. And that was how long prior to, or was at the moment of the application
for the incorporation of the Sterling Industrial Company?-A. That was some
months prior.

Q. Had you had the advantage of the examination of the Joint Board of
Engineers?-A. No. I had had the advantage of the report of the two engineers
who had been engaged on the investigation for the International Joint Commis-
sion, and whose report was, I think, brought in in 1922. I had the advantage of
that.

Q. Had you discussed with anybody, had you discussed with Dr. McDougald
that report of those engineers?-A. Oh, I think so.

Q. Now, just tell me how this financing of $10,000 was carried out?-A. So
far as the actual engineering investigation was concerned, I believe I made an
arrangement with Mr. J. B. McRae, a consulting engineer, and the actual pay-
ment to him was either made through the firn of MeGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs
or by Senator McDougald. I cannot tell you which.

Q. You didn't pay it?-A. I didn't pay it.
Q. Was there any agreement of any kind in the form of an undertaking to

finance you, or that you would do any particular thing in view of the financing
of $10,000?-A. Nothing whatever.

Q. It was a gentleman's agreement, I think you said, in the first place?-A.
That is all.

Q. And you had the report of Mr. McRae at a later date?-A. Yes.
Q. In respect of the organization-I mean the organization minutes and

election of directors and so forth of the Sterling Industrial Corporation-did you
take any part?-A. I went over the-the organization, let me see, I do not
think I paid very much attention to the organization, Mr. Mann.

Q. What I am asking you is did you take any part in instructing or advising
Senator Haydon as to who would be the provisional directors, the president and
so forth? Did you do any of that?-A. I think I discussed that with him in the
initial stage.

Q. With whom?-A. Mr. Haydon.
Q. Did you have any instructions from anybody as to who was to be presi-

dent?-A. No.
Q. Can you tell me by what authority Senator Haydon became president,

if you know that he did? I tell you that he did.-A. I do not recall just how
that happened.

Q. You don't remember how it was arrived at that Senator Haydon should
be president of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. I am afraid I cannot
answer that question.

Q. Before I go further into the organization of the Sterling Industrial
Corporation. You made an application on the 5th of July to the Department
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of Railways and Canals or the Department of Public Works-in any event
another was made on the 7th of July to either of those Departments; I forget
which was which on the particular date. That application was prepared by
you, was it?-A. The application was prepared by me.

Q. What had you before you to permit you to make that application, other
than your own knowledge?-A. Well, I had spent some months-

Q. Other than your own knowledge?-A. Other than my own knowledge?
Q. Yes?-A. Nothing.
Q. The report of Mr. McRae came substantially later?-A. Mr. McRae

had been making his engineering investigation some time prior, but it was
largely based on my own knowledge.

Q. He had been making his investigation prior to the applications of July
5 and July 7?-A. Yes.

Q. And had been making this investigation on the agreement to which
you had referred?-A. He had been making the investigation on the basis of
the understanding.

Q. How long prior to that?-A. Oh, it must have been in the early spring,
I should think.

Q. In the early spring of 1924? And then we come to July, 1924, and the
application was put forth to the two federal departments?-A. It must have
been after the snow went off, because we went over the ground together, so that
I would say it was probably April, 1924.

Q. In respect of the incorporation and the organization of the Sterling
Industrial Corporation, did you pay a bill to Senator Haydon for that?-A. No.

Q. Were you asked to pay a bill for that?-A. I was not.
Q. Do you know if a bill was paid, personally?-A. I do not know.
Q. You know nothing about it?-A. No.
Q. What was the next step following the 7th of July, 1924?-A. Well, I

might say that in between the time that I made this arrangement with McRae
to carry out the engineering investigation, the Government decided to appoint
an enlarged Engineering Board.

Q. That was in 1924?-A. That was in 1924. And I knew then that it
would be impossible for the Government to deal with an application of this kind
until that report came in. But I nevertheless went on with the investigation,
concluded it.

Q. Yes? And that report did come in on the 16th of November, 1926,
finally?-A. Yes.

Q. And while you went on with the investigation how active were you in
furthering the applications of the Sterling Industrial Corporation? I take it
that you were not active because of those additional engineers being added to
the Board?-A. Very foolish to try to be so.

Q. Did you know in September, 1924, of any project with regard to the
development of the power at the Carillon whîch was a subject of discussion of
the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. I knew about the Carillon project, yes.

Q. In Exhibit 92 of the House of Commons Committee I see a minute of
a meeting of the 27th of September, 1924, of the Sterling Industrial Corporation,
at which were present John Parsons Ebbs, Belle Fraser and Lyla Brennan. I
take it you did not know the last two named.-A. Well, they were-

Q. They are stenographers in the office of Senator Haydon. The minute
reads as follows:

The secretary stated that some consideration had been given to the
filing of an application by the company for rights to develop water power
on the Ottawa River at Carillon under an agreement with the Govern-
ment through the Department of Railways and Canals and that Mr. J.
B. McRae, consulting engineer, Ottawa, had made a preliminary
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investigation and estimate upon the project and that if this application
were made and the rights granted Messrs. Harris-Forbes, of Boston,
would undertake to finance the project. Messrs. Harris-Forbes' repre-
sentative is Mr. W. E. McGregor, who is to-day represented by Mr.
Berkowitz. Mr. Berkowitz stated that if the Sterling Industrial Corpora-
tion should acquire any rights at Carillon he would require some assurance
that this Corporation would be ready to transfer them to Mr. McGregor.

It was moved by Miss Fraser and seconded by Miss Brennan and
unanimously carried that this corporation will, at the request of Mr. W.
E. McGregor, of Boston, Mass., assign to him or his nominee any interest
in the navigation power development undertaking at or near Carillon on
the Ottawa River that this company may acquire under any contract
from His Majesty, the King, represented therein by the Government of
Canada.

And so forth. Now, would you be kind enough to tell me how, as far as you
know, it would be competent for Mr. John Parsons Ebbs, Miss Belle Fraser
and Miss Lyla Brennan to deal with what might appear to be an asset of the
Sterling Industrial Corporation at that meeting of the 27th of September, 1924,
if you know?-A. Well, I sometime in 1924 met Henry I. Harriman, of the
New England Power Company, whom I had some knowledge of in the railway
field, and I was endeavouring to interest him in the development on the south
side between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis. He went over the ground
with me, or at least if he did not, he sent one of his engineers, a gentleman by
the name of Eaton-

Q. If you will excuse me, I do not want to go into the details of the Carillon
power development. I am merely asking you if you can tell me how John
Parsons Ebbs, Belle Fraser and Lyla Brennan had been put in a position to
deal with what apparently was an asset, or might be a substantial asset, of the
Sterling Industrial Corporation.-A. Well, I think he was interested in some
way with Harris-Forbes.

Q. Who was interested?-A. Mr. Harriman, with Harris-Forbes.
Q. Did Senator McDougald discuss or know of negotiations in respect of

the Carillon development which is discussed in the minutes of the Sterling
Industrial Corporation, to your knowledge?-A. I do not know.

Q. You do not know?-A. No.
Q. Do you know anything about any instructions to Mr. Ebbs, Belle Fraser

and Lyla Brennan on the 27th of September, or prior thereto, which gave them
the power to deal with an asset of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: One moment. Mr. Chairman, I think the time has
come for me to ask my learned friend what part of the report he is dealing with.
I understand your Committee has been instructed to investigate the report of
last year. Is there any mention of Carillon anywhere in it?

Mr. MANN: None whatever, no mention whatever. I am dealing entirely
with the Sterling Industrial Corporation.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I think we have got enough troubles with the Beau-
harnois, without going into the Carillon.

Mr. MANN: I was suggesting that to the witness a few minutes ago. I
am not trying to increase but to decrease troubles. I am endeavouring to
secure the personnel and active management of the Sterling Industrial Cor-
poration.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, go on.
The WrrNEss: I do not recall precisely whether I asked Mr. Ebbs to do

that or not, but there was some discussion between myself and Mr. Harriman
to go over on to the Ottawa instead of what is now the Beauharnois develop-
ment.
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By Mr. Mann:
Q.1 arn merely asking you now, was there any collaboration with Dr.

McDougald, or any discussion that you had that this might take place?-A. I
may have discussed it with Senator McDougald; I cannot recaîl it precisely.Q. You say you may have. You cannot say? In any event, you gave no
instructions to those persons present at that meeting to deal with the subj ect?-
A. I would not go as far as to say that; 1 may have done that.Q. Were you in a position with respect to the Sterling Industrial Corpora-
tion to give instructions to anybody to deal with an asset of the Sterling In-
dustrial Corporation?-A. Well, I think perhaps I considered myseif to have
some interest in it.

Q. Just what interest had you in it? I think you said that the beneficial
interest was vested in Senator McDougald? Just what interest had'you in it?
-A. I had no defined interest in it.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I beg your pardon. The witness made no such state-
ment. H1e said the beneficial interest in the Sterling Industrial Corporation
belonged both to Senator McDougald and himself.

Mr. MANN: You are quite right, Mr. Cannon, if I arn wrong.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: And I arn wrong if you are right.
Mr. MANN: I arn wrong. At page ;569 of the evidcnce given at the buse

of Commons Cornmittee, this question was asked:-
Q. May I take it then that the beneficial ownership in these shares

was in you and Dr. McDougald?-A. Unquestionably, absolutely. Thero
is no question about that.

You are quite correct, Mr. Cannon. Gentleman, I stand corrected.

J3y 11fr. Mann:
Q.Now, having this beneficial interest vested in you and Dr. McDougald,

what was your înterest?-A. It was neyer deflned.
QIt was an undefined interest?-A. Yes.
Q.Something in the back of both vour heads, may I take it, that some day

you would have an interest?-A. That. is correct.
Q. What I would like to know, if you can tell me, is who did give the

instructions?-A. I could not answer that positively.
Q. Did you give thern?-A. I could not even answer that positively.
Q. Well, it occurs to me that with the public knowledge of the water power

on these respective rivers, including the Ottawa Carillon, that it was a matter
of some importance, Mr. Henry?-A. I was not particularly interested in the
Carillon, because I did flot believe it was a very economical development, and
any discussion I had with respect to Carillon was because of the fact that MVr.
Harriman and bis interests, whom I was trying to induce to become interested
in the section of the river between Lake St. Francis and Lake St. Louis, sccmed
to be interested in it. That is the only interest I ever had.

Q. But you sec the resolution gives power to assign to MVr. McGregor of
Boston, or bis nomince, any interest in the navigation power development under-
taking at or near Carillon on the Ottawa river.-A. I think bis idea was-

Q. I amn nýot asking wbat was bis idea but the idea of the Sterling Industrial
Corporation, so far as you can give it to me.-A. I think my idea was to give
my consent to tbe use of the Sterling Industrial Corporation's rigbts for perbaps
making an application in respect to Carillon-let me put it that way-at tbe
reuuest of Mr. Harriman's interests.
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Q.Is that what you have said borne out by the letter which I see also incor-ý
porated in the minutes, a draft letter of the 27th of September, 1924, reading as
follows:

W. E. MOGREGoRt, ESQ.,
Boston, Mass.

Dn.AR SiR,-This is Wo confirmn the fact that this Corporation xviii at
your request assign to you or your nominee any interest ina Navigation
and power development project on the Ottawa River at or near Carillon
that this Corporation may acquire.

I Lake it that Sterling Industrial Corporation would sign the letter, because it is
a draft letter prepared by the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. That neyer
was carried out, at any rate. They decided to do it some other way.

Q. Is that ail you can tell us about it?-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Has that letter been filed as an exhibit?

Mr. MA.NN: I cannot say that. The draftL of the* letter is filed as part of
Exhibit 92.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: You cannot tell the Committee whether the letter was
sent or not?

Mr. MANN: No. The draft of the letter is fiied with Exhibit 92.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: It is a mere draft?

Mr. MANN: Yes, I said that. It is a draft letter filed with the minutes of

the Sterling Industrial Corporation, which are Exhibit 92.

By Mr. Mann:
Q.Now, I ýsee the minute of this same meeting goes on to say:-

The secretary further reported that there was danger of some comn-
plications and embarrassment with the Government, resulting from the
Company having two applications before the Government at the samne
time and it was considered advisable that this company be not used for
the Carillon application, but that a new company be formed for that
purpose. Resolved accordingly.

Do you know anything about that resolution?-A. Well, I have a recollection
that something like that was done.

Q. What was the meaning of that, if you have a recollection of it? What
was the meaning of the embarrassment in respect of the two applications? Did
you mean that Sterling should not go on and make an application for Carillon
while it had applications in for Beauharnois? Is that what it meant?

Hon. Mr. CAN NON: One moment. I wunder if-

The CHAIRMAN: Let him gîve bis explanations.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Before hie does, Mr. Chairman, may I say I wonder
if the witness is competent to explain the minutes. The documents are there
and speak for themselves. How can the witness be cailed upon to explain to the
Committee what a document means? It is right there.

The CHAIRMAN: We will hear what Mr. Henry has to say.

The WlTNESS: 1 think the reason was that Messrs. Harris-Forbes and the
Hi1arriman interests did not want Wo mix the Carillon up with the other, and
because sonie riglit miglit emnerge from Carillon and not emerge f rom the other
and they wculd not know how to divide the interests, that is my impression.
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By Mr. Mann:
Q. So the governing mind on the matter of not mixing up Carillon with the

Sterling's other applications was Harris-Forbes and Harriman?-A. Yes.
Q. Can you say if that situation was known to Dr. McDougald?-A. I

could not testify to that.
Q. Did you have any discussion with him in respect of the phases and

aspects of the matter to which we have just been referring?-A. I imagine I
did.

Q. I would prefer you not to imagine. I do not want you to say you did
if you did not, but I would rather that you would not imagine.-A. I think I
did have discussions with him on it.

Q. Discussions? Can you go a little further than to say that you think,
because "think" and "imagine" are almost synonymous, you know.-A. Well,
I cannot remember-let me put it that way.

Q. You cannot remember?-A. I cannot remember.
Q. So that is the furthest you can go?-A. Yes.
Q. Is it fair to say that inasmuch as the beneficial ownership of the entire

Sterling Industrial Corporation was vested in you and Senator McDougald
that you did discuss it with your co-beneficiary?-A. It would be natural to
say that I did, but I cannot remember having done so, definitely.

Q. Do you say that you do not remember having a discussion or that you
do not remember the subject-matter of the discussions?-A. I do not remember
the subject-matter.

Q. Can we pass from this to in the vicinity of the 11th of November, 1926,when the report of the Joint Board of Engineers was formulated and published?
-A. The 16th of November.

Q. The 16th of November, 1926, was it?-A. Yes.
Q. And during that period the matter lay dormant, to a certain extent,

except I think you said you continued to make investigations and get informa-
tion. Can you tell us during that period what information and data you had,
and what relationship in respect of the procuring of information and data, you
had with Dr. McDougald-up to 1926 Dr. McDougald, and afterwards Senator
McDougald?-A. Well, knowing that the application could not be pressed, I
continued to make engineering investigations to endeavour to develop the
engineering possibilities more completely, and I discussed it with Mr. Harriman
and other bankers, and some of them sent engineers up and went over the project
with me.

Q. This was during the interval up to November, 1926?-A. This was
during the interval.

Q. Have you finished?-A. They criticised my own conclusions on it and
suggested modifications, and seemed interested in it if rights could be obtained
and if the power could be sold.

Q. Did you discuss their criticisms and their suggestions of modifications
of the project, as you viewed it, with Dr. McDougald?-A. I did not tell him
anything except the fact that I had had discussions with these people.Q. Now, what I take from your answer is that you did not reveal to him
what the discussions were?-A. The discussions were largely of an engineering
nature, and therefore I did not discuss them with him.

Q. But finance must have come into it to some extent, I think it is fair
to say, must have mixed a little bit with the engineering matters?-A. Well,
finance came into it to the extent of the amount necessary to carry out the
project, and I naturally told him what the estimates were.

Q. You told whom?-A. Senator McDougald.
Q. And that is the financial information you procured through Harris-

Forbes and other bankers with whom you discussed it?-A. Yes.
The Committee adjourned until 3 p.m.
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The Cornmittee resumed at 3 o'clock p.m.

Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, appeared of counsel for Hon.
Senator Andrew Haydon.

Mr. R. A. C. HENity was recalled as a witness, and testified as follows:-

By Mr. Mann:
Q. At the adjournment, Mr. Henry, we had got as f ar'as the report of

the Board of Engineers, which 1 think you said, when before the Comrnons
Comrnittee, created quite a considerable amount of discussion; you did.say
that?-A. I don't recali, but I know it did.

Q.You know it did?-A. Yes.
Q.And did you feel then that in developing the Soulanges section there

would be a considerable amount of dificulty, both mechanical and political?
-A. I feit that the report, in effect, conternplated a combined navigation and
power developrnent, partly in the river and partly on the north side, and not
on the south side as was contemplated in the scheme I was advancmng.

Q. Exactly; you feit that the difficulty then might be to combine the corn-
bination of the two elements on the south instead of the north side, as the ten-
dency looked evcryw'here running that way; is that a f air statement of it?-
A. I feit that it would be pretty difficuit for anybody to induce the Governrnent
to go contrary to the recommendation made in that report.

Q. Xow, with the continuity of purpose which seemed to characterize you
from your early investigations what did you think?-A. I proceeded to analyse
the recommendations made in the report with a view to seeing whether it could
be carried on by a private company or not.

Q. And was the private company you had in mînd the Sterling?-A. Well,
I thought the Sterling rnight be a modification.

Q. And as a result of that analysis what conclusion, if any, did you corne
to?-A. That it could not be carried on by a private cornpany; it would have
to be done by the Government.

Q. That is, after studying the report you carne to that conclusion?-A.
Yes.

Q. Did you convey that view or týhat conclusion to anybody in association
with you?-A. Well, I think I did fear that Senator McDougald had begun
to lose faith in the conclusions which I had prevîously advanced as to the
proper scheme of development of that section of the river.

Q. May I take it, that means that he had begun to lose faith in what
your previous views were as to how it should be developed?-A.- Yes.

Q. Does that go also to losing f aith in the federal riglits in the water
power?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I do not want to interrupt my learned friend, but Mr.
Henry is your witness, and I think you are leading.

Mr. MANN: He is a witness for the peop]e, not my witness.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: This is the chief exarnination. If rny learned friend

would ask the witness what he thought or what he said.
Mr. MANN: 1 do not think you will have much to complain about with me.

I have no ulterior motive, 1 can assure you.

By Mr. Mann:
Q.Did you understand the question?-A. I think you will have to ask the

question over again.
Q. Did the f aith, as it appeared to you, that Senator McDougald was

losing -nean faith as well in the projeet from the mechanical or physical point
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of view as well as from any other point of view, namely, the legal point of
view?-A. Well, I neyer knew what his views were with respect to the federal
versus the provincial rights. I proceeded personally upon the assumption that
the federal government had the right, and I assumed, from that, that hie agreed
with me; otherwise hie would not have backed me. But I neyer knew that as
a fact, I mean, that hie did agree with me in regard to that.

Q. H1e did not so express himself to you?-A. No.
Q. Following the autumn of 1926, and proceeding in 1927, what did you then

do in furtherance of an interest you may have had in the development of power
on the south shore?-A. Well, I was engaged then in looking up the informa-
tion, you might say, a necessary part of the development at that time; that is,
the means of using the power; and in the course of those efforts I got in touch
with a large number of users in the United States who might be willing to
construct some sort of a development that would use the power.

Q. Would that be beginning as early as the autumn of 1926 and the begin-
ning of 1927?-A. Yes, it was.

Q. You got in touch with large users in the United States; did you convey
that information to Senator McDougald?-A. I helieve I dîd.

Q. To what extent did you take it to him? What was.the extent of the dis-
cussion of the subject between you?-A. Well, I think it was a subject of dis-
cussion more or less in a general way.

Q. And did you pursue that policy of gettiing information and data in
respect to 'ail possibilities through the year 1927?-A. In the late fail of 1926
there was a gentleman of the firm of A. B. Leitch and Co., who asked me-I do
not think hie knew at that time that I was interested in any power development
-lie asked me if I knew where there was an economical site at which haîf a
million horsepower ultimate development could be made. It was as a resuit of
that that I gave him certain information which I had in my possession, and hie
had some of his engineers look over it.

Q. Who were A. B. Leitch an*d Co.?-A. They are a banking hoîise in New
York.

Q. Was that information given with Senator McDougald's concurrence in
any way?-A. I think so.

Q. You cannot say more than that you think?-A. No.
Q. Is your recollection that in any event that matter was broughit to his

attention by you or anybody else?-A. I think it was brought to his attention
by me.

Q. Now, proceeding through 1927, just tell us what other steps you took?-
A. Well, in 1927, through a mutual acquaintance I got in touch with Dillon-
Read; Mr. Miller, who was one of the vice-presidents of Dillon-Read, and I
laid the project before him in New York, and hie went over the estimates 1 had
prcparcd-various alternative schemes for d1eveloping from 250,000 horsepower
up to 500,000 horsepower. H1e told me that his firm-Dillon, Read & Co.-would
be interested in a development of that kind provided the riglits could be obtained,
and provided some industries to use the power could be induced to locate in that
vicinity.

Q.And Dillon-Read was a financial house as well?-A. Banking.
Q.Was the Dillon-Read connection or interview a subjeet of discussion

between you and the Senator?-A. No, it was not.
Q. 11e did not know anything about that; and would you please tell me what

further you did during that year-and let me here draw your attention to the
fact that on the 2nd or 3rd of February, 1927, Mr. Sweezcy had begun his negotia-
tions with the Robert interests-I merely do that to hieip your inemory?-A.
Well, some time-I would venture to guess that it was some time in the fali of
1926 or early in 1927 Mr. W. H. Robert, with whom I had been in touch in a
general way since the fail of 1923-
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Q. Mr. W. H. Robert was one of the Robert heirs interested in the Beau-
harnois Light, Heat and Power Co.?-A. Yes; hie was trying to interest me in
using his charter.

Q. As a medium of proceeding for the development, if possible?-A. That
is correct; but 1 had told him and bis people that the charter was not of a
character that would permit of an economical development. I tuld himt that
many times.

Q. If I understand you, Mr. Robert was endeavouring to get yoti interested,
at least to the extent of considering the value of this charter?-A. Right.

Q. Did it go far enough to suggest to you to interest yourself in the power
development?-A. Oh yes.

Q. And that was late in the fall of 1926 or in the early part of 1927?-A.
No; that started in 1924.

Q. And continued then?-A. Yes, continued throughout.
Q. And when it came to 19927 Mr. Robert informed you that he was in

negotiation with Sweezey?-A. He informed me that he was negotiating with
Messrs. Newman, Sweezey & Co., and that I ought to meet Mr. Sweezev and
talk the thing, over with hýim.

Q. Mr. Henry, from the beginning of those discussions with Mr. Robert to
which you have just referred, in 1924, would you tell the time you lcarned of
negotiations between Mr. Robiert and Sweezey, had you dîscussed with Senator
McDougald the fact that Robert had talked to you, and did you have discussion
with 1dm to the extent of tellingr him your conversation with Robert?-A. I
discussed it with him to the extent of telling him I did not think the charter
Robert haýd was a charter with which an economical development could take
place.

Q. But you did not open the discussion by saying, "I don't know"ý-some-
thing; you must have opened the discussion in some other form than saying, "I
don't think thîs charter is sufficient." I want you to tell me what the discussions
were over that period of three and a haîf years?-A. I remember telling him
that that charter was not, in my opinion, worth while using, a while before the
Sterling Corporation was incorporated at ail. Had I thought it was I would
have been inclined to have made a deal with Mr. Robert.

Q. And before you formed the Sterling Industrial Corporation, as far as
you were concerned you had made up your mind that the Beauharnois charter
was of littie value?-A. 0f littie value as a medium for -an economical develop-
ment of that soheme.

Q. Exactly; you explained that this morning; in fact, proceeding into the
whole year 1927, what was the progress of your ment-al development on the
general subject?-A. Well, the progress of my mental development then was
ait endeavour to re-orient myself in relation to the provincial versus the federal
position, on one hand, and to re-orient myseif, on the other hand, to the fact
that the Government had before it a report which did not recommend a
development on the south side.

Q. And as a resuit of this re-orientation, what happened, and wvhen did
it happen?-A. Well, Mr. Robert told me that he was negotiating witb Messrs.
Newman, Sweezey and Co., and that led me to believe that somebody else had
had in mind a development on the south side, otherwise they would not be
bothering with the Robert rights. But I had not made up my mînd-remem-
ber, there were a lot of other discussions about the provincial versus federal
rights-and I had not made up my mmnd whether the time was appropriate, or
whether representations ought to be made to the proper department of the
government that no private company could undertake a developînent on the
north side. I was just turning that over in my mmnd.
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Q. You were turning that over in your mind, but you got light on the
stage of turning it over in yor mind, didn't you?-A. 1 don't know that I saw
any daylight, throughi the way 1 went at it-if that means anything to you.

Q. It does not mean very much to me, but you can probably help me;
when did you begin to see daylight? Have you seen daylight since, 1 would
like to know?-A. Well, the federal versus the provincial side of it does not
seem to have been crystallized yet; but some time in the spring of 1928.

Q. Daylight began to dawn on it?-A. Daylight began to dawn-put it
that way.

Q. What f orrn does the dawn take?-A. In that 1 obtained knowledge of
the fact that certain rights bad been granted in the form of a lease to a syndicate.
I thought, at first, it was Newman, Sweezey and Co., but I learned later it was
a syndicate.

Q. Just how did you get that information? Where did you get it?-A. 1
don't remember.

Q. You could not remember where you got it?-A. No; you see, that was
some time early in 1928.

Q. Now, just what was the information you got in regard to that syndicate,
and if possible try to, tell me who you got it from, or through what sources you
got it?-A. Well, I think the first inkling 1 got of it was tbrough Mr. W. H.
Robert.

Q. A continuai source of information since 1924?-A. Right. At first I
did not believe it; I thought he was trying, perhaps, to continue to interest me,
but it evidently turned out that he had made an agreement.

Q. You think you got that frorn Mr. Robert; did you cominunicate that
to Senator McDougald?-A. I believe I did.

Q. What was the resuit? What was the nature of the discussion you had
with him then? Had you the details of that syndicate from Mr. Robert?-
A. No.

Q. Had you the details of information from Mr. Robert?-A. No; he left
me wîth the impression that it was Newman, Sweezey & Co.

Q. Then, if I understand you correctly, ail you had was an impression?-
A. Yes.

Q. That the Roberts had negotiated, or were in some transaction, with
Newman, Sweezey & Co., but the details of that transaction you did not know,
and ail you communicated to, Senator McDougald was what you did know,
which appears to have been quite a srnall amount at that tirne; is that correctt
-A. That is correct, yes, but in the winter, during the Session in Quebec-I
think it was in the early spring-I dîd have knowledge, from what source 1
arn not prepared to say at the moment.

Q. Do you mean you are not able to say?-A. I arn not abile to, say,
because these things corne to you from various sources. I arn not able to say
definitely where I got it, but I did get some knowledge that there was under
consideration the granting of a Icase.

Q. To the Beauharnois, Light, Heat and Power Company?-A. To the
Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company.

By Hon. M1r. Béique~:
Q. A lease frorn the Quebec Government?-A. A lease from the Quebec

Government.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. You got a communication that the Quebee Government was looking

favourably on the granting of a lease; was that the subjeet of conversation
between you and-
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By the Chairman:
Q. What position did you occupy in 1928?-A. I was director of the

Bureau of Economics of the Canadian National Railway.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. It was the 14th of February, 1929, that you became Deputy Minister?

-A. Yes.
Q. Did you convey the information in respect to the possibility of the

granting of a lease from Quebec, to Senator McDougald?-A. I believe I did.
Q. Did you verify that information by further research?-A. Yes, I think

I made some inquiries, and ascertained that the lease was under consideration.
Q. You don't remember from whom you made those inquiries?-A. I don't.
Q. Just tell me, Mr. Henry, as closely as you can when you got definite

information, if you did get definite information, what the transaction was as
between Robert and Sweezey or the syndicate?-A. I don't think I have any
positive knowledge of that until well into the summer of 1928.

Q. Yes, but you see you qualify the word "knowledge" with the adjective
"positive"; but had you knowledge of it-leave out the "positive"?-A. Well, I
don't believe-I cannot answer positively no, because when I did learn the figure
the extent of that rather astounded me.

Q. What figure are you referring to?-A. That is the million-the equival-
ent of a million and a half; that is what I understood it to be.

Q. Now, you did not at that time know that there was in operation a
syndicate; you subsequently learned that there had been syndicates, but at that
time you did not know?-A. I thought it was Newman, Sweezey and Co.

Q. You did not know there had been a syndicate; you thought Newman,
Sweezey and Co. were the people who were in negotiation or had the agreement
with the Roberts; is that correct?-A. That is correct.

Q. To what extent, if any, was that the subject of discussion with Senator
McDougald, and to what extent did the prospects of the Sterling Industrial Cor-
poration come into such discussion? You quite clearly understand what I mean?
-A. Yes; I think we did discuss to some extent the position in which Sterling
found itself under the conditions of this lease, yes.

Q. You did discuss the position that Sterling found itself in, in view of the
lease to which you referred a few moments ago?-A. Yes.

Q. And what was it you found, so far as you were concerned?-A. Well, I
was still of the opinion that the right rested in the federal government, and
there would be considerable difficulty in the way of making an agreement with
the federal government.

Q. Notwithstanding what appeared about usurpation by the province, you
still felt that the federal government had the rights in the water power?-A. Yes.

Q. Then may I say this, that if that was still paramount in your mind you
must still have believed that your Sterling application was to the right quarter?-
A. Right; that is correct.

Q. When were you disabused of that view that you held, that Sterling was
in the right place and Beauharnois was in the wrong place? When did you
finally become disabused of that view?-A. I don't think it was until the fall
of 1928, and I don't know that I was entirely disabused of it then.

Q. But you have not changed your mind?-A. Well, I had it-since then,
perhaps, I think, but not at that time.

Q. Since you went to Beauharnois you have changed your mind?-A. Prob-
ably. There may be something in that.

Q. Were those views you held in the early part of 1928 the subject of dis-
cussion with Senator McDougald?-A. They were.

Q. Was that still in the early part of 1928?-A. Yes.
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Q. So that, I may take it, in the early part of 1928 you stili viewed the
Sterling application as being in the right place, namely, to the federal govern-
ment?-A. Yes.

Q. And you stili view the Beauharnois application as in the -wrong place?-
A. 1 also had in mind this, which I would just say incidentally, that the charter
which the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company had did not permit of
an economic development.

Q. I was merely directing my questions to your view of the legal situation
which you had in the early part of 1928, and which I think you said you dis-
cussed with Senator McDougald; now, would you be kind enough to tell me
when, following that period, you first knew deflnitely of the circumstances of the
Beauharnois Power'Syndioate and the Beauharnois Syndicate?-A. I knew
something about it in July, I should say.

QIn July, 1928?-A. July, 1928, I knew something about it.
Q.What did you know about rit? And how did you know?-A. I knew it

through Senator McDougald.
Q. What did he tell you? 1 would just like you to tell the Committee what

he told you in 1928?-A. H1e told me that he had joined the syndicate.
Q. Did he describe the assets of the syndicate, or the holdings of the syn-

dicate, or the powers the syndicate had, or what the syndicate expected, and
if so, anything of the kind?-A. 1 thinýk he described it in a general way to me.

Q When was it that the question came up as to the disposai of the interests
of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. A littie bit later on.

Q. In what form did that come up for discussion between you?-A. Well, I
wanted to know whether he decided that the Sterling Industrial Corporation
application was the right medium to proceed through, or the Beauharnois Light,
Heat and Powcr Company through Quebec.

Q. You wanted to know?-A. I did.
Q. For the purpose of satisfying your mind you wanted to know?-A. For

the purpose of determîning whether he was stili backing my project or not.
Q. Just what form did that conversation take, leading to your desire to

know? I just want you to tell me what the substance of the conversation was?
-A. I don't recali what the substance was. 1 can only state my impression of it.

Q. I do not think we want your impression; we would like,'as, close as pos-
sible, the substance of the conversation; I do not think the Cornmittee wiIl mind
if you take the time to think it out; I am certain they will not?-A. Well, I think
the substance of the discussion related to which of the two applications had the
best chance of success. I arn inclined to think he leaned towards the Quebec
end of it.

Q. You think the Senator leaned towards the Beauharnois application as
having the best chance of success; you feel reasonably certain that was his view,
do you?-A. I do.

Q. And your leanings were what, at this time?-A. Well, I was 'beginning
to waver by that time.

Q. When did you complete your wavering process in respect to the applica-
tion?-A. Some time in October would be as near as I could guess. It is only a
guess.

Q. But the senator's views did not influence your views in July, 1928, except
to make you waver. Is that correct?-A. That is correct.

Q. There was some discussion in July, I take it, as to disposing of the
Sterling Industrial Corporation's rights to Beauharnois, wasn't there?-A. No,
they didn't commence until later.

Q. Later than July?-A. Later than July, to the best of my knowledge.
Q. What do you know about that question of the diisposai? Do you know

anything about it?-A. Oh, yes.
4a236-9



SPECIAL COMMITTE

Q. Just tell the Committee what you know about negotiations for the dis-
posai of the Sterling Industrial Corporation's interests in the Beauharnois pro-
ject?-A. 1 know that Senator McDougald asked me te consider whether I
ought not te throw in my lot with the Beauharnois Syndicate.

Q.When was that?-A. 1 would say in October.
Q.He asked you to, consider as to, whether or not you shouki throw your

lot in with the Beauharnois interests. That was in October.
The CHAIRMAN: 1928.

By Mr. Mann:
Q.Did you coneider throwing in your lot with the Beauharnois interests?-

A. I did.
Q. To what extent did you go into detail as te, the conditions upon which

your lot should be thrown in with the Beauharnois interests?-A. I asked
Senater McDougald questions-

Q. What was the purport of those questions?-A. To determine just what
the Syndicate really was; what it constituted, what its financial structure was,
who the people were that were in it, and what their respective holdings were,
and particularly wha-t had been the nature of the arrangement respecting the
purchase of the Robert charter.

Q. Did you get that information?-A. I did.
Q. Were you -able to, formulate any basis upon which your lot, fin se, far as

your lot is the Sterling Industriai Corporation, should be thrown into the Syn-
dicate or the Beauharnois interests?-A. Oh, yes. Senator Mcflougald asked
me what I thought it was worth; what I thought the merging of the interests was
worth.

Q. And I take it that as a business man and a competent engineer you con-
sidered ail the aspects before you determined what it was worth?-A. Yes.

Q. From the timc Scuator McDougald asked you to make up your mind
what you thought it was worth te throw in your lot, and throw in the Sterling
with Beauharnois, how long a time eiapsed before you decided?-A. Not very
long; perhaps a couple of weeks.

Q. During that couple of weeks what did you do?-A. I considered what
I had done myseif in engineering and other investigations made over a period of
five years, and came to the conclusion that it was worth the equivalent of
$50,000-

Q. And as a resuit of that?-A. -and, if you wili let me finish.
Q. Yes?-A. -and that $50,000 transiated inte part interests, what had

been subscribed for the part interests by those people who went inte the Syndi-
cate first, was equivalent to about 2,000 part interests. I teld Senator McDougald
that the merging of those interests ought te be worth 2,000 part interests.

Q. What was hîs attitude towards -thc suggestion?-A. He thought it was
all right.

Q. And that was the conclusion?-A. That was the conclusion.
Q. At that time had there been any arrangement as to what number of part

interests you were to get?-A. No, there was not.
Q. Any discussion of it?-A. No.
Q. During this information-getting campaign and these discussions, from

the early part of 1928, did you run into Mr. W. B. Sifton? Did you know Mr.
Sifton?-A. 1 knew Mr. Sifton, yes.

By the Chairman:
Q. Can .you say how much money was actually spent up to that stage on

the Sterling Industriai Corporation?-A. 1 couid only make an estimate.
Q. Approximateiy how much aetual money ?-A. I wouid estimate my

own out of pocket expenses as in the vicinity of $5,000. Senator McDougald
wili have te, speak for himself.
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By Mr. Mann:
Q.You don't know anything about what he spent yourself?-A. I do know

Mr. McRae was paid, I think it was $3,500.
Q. That is what you said at the other inquiry. Now, coming to Mr. W. B.

Sifton-and when I speak of Mr. W. B. Sif ton, I mean in relation to power
projeet on the south shore-when did you see Mr. Sifton in relation to power
project on the south shore for the first time?-A. Would you refresh rny
memory by telling me when the Ottawa-Georgian Bay Canal project was going
through.

Q. 1 am afraid you have got me. 1 didn't know that it did go through?-
A. It was under consideration.

Q. It was under consideration when I was a small boy.
Hon. Mr. McMEANS: H1e means the ]ast part of it; the time they were

making application to get their charter.
The WIrNESS: Yes.
Hon. Mr. McMFNs: It cannot be more than a couple of years ago.
The WITNESS: At any rate, it was about the time the Georgian Bay dis-

cussion was going on. I don't remember what year it was.

By Mr. Mann:
Q.Let us take the year 1927. Can you pîcture any circumstance in your

mmnd in 1927 that associates you with acquaintanceship with Mr. Sifton in respect
of power on Beauharnois?-A. No, certainly not in 1927.

Q. Let us say in 1928?-A. 1 think 1 had some discussions with him in
1928.

Q. What were the discussions in 1928?-A. They were largely academie.
Q. Mr. Sifton was a lawyer. You knew that?-A. They related chiefly to

the question of provincial versus federal rights.
Q. So you were discussing the legal question with Mr. Sifton?-A. That

is the only question I ever discussed with hlm.
Q. Would that be in the early part of 1928, that you spoke of fifteen or

twenty minutes ago?-A. I think so, yes.
Q. Where was that?-A. That was in Ottawa.
Q. Did you ever see Mr. Sifton in company with Senator McDougald on

any discussion of power?-A. 1 don't recail that I ever saw the two of them
together.

Q. I am not limiting that to 1928; 1 arn taking that at any time?-A. I
don't really recaîl any occasion that 1 did sec the both of them together in
connection with power development, or anything else for that matter.

Q. Did you know Mr. Leslie Clare Moyer?-A. Yes.
Q. Who was he?-A. H1e was a lawyer in the city of Ottawa.
Q. What relationship did he have to Beauharnois Power, so far as you

know?-A. I understood that he was a representative of the Syndicate.
Q. Who did you understand that from?-A. 1 think from Senator Me-

Dougald.
Q. Can you say about when that was-that you ]earned Mr. Moyer was a

representative of the Syndicate?-A. 1 cannot say.
Q. Is that ail you learned-a representative? Did you learn anything

about his powers or his ability to deal with financial matters respecting the
Syndicate?-A. I did not.

Q. Just tell me what you Iearned from Senator McDougald, and I will con-
tent my self with that?-A. All I remnember learning was that he was one of
their Ottawa representatives.

Q. You saw Mr. Moyer, 1 suppose?-A. Oceasionally.
Q. And discussed what with him?-A. Dîdn't discuss anything.
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Q. Ail you did was to say good morning or good afternoon, as the case
might be?-A. That is ail.

Q.And that is your total association with Mr. Moyer?-A. That is correct.
QI wonder if yeu could suggest a reason why in 1928, when you were

fixing your Sterling Industrial shares, the issued capital of the Sterling Industrial
Corporation-why your interest as betwecn you and Senator McDougald was
not defined, because 1 think you told mie it was not then defiued?-A. No, it
was not defined. 1 might tell you that 1 had it in the back of my mimd that
at that stage it ought to be on a fifty-fifty basis. Earlier in the progress of
the development 1 realized the fact that some large financial assistance or con-
tribution might be made and that under those circumstances I might not be
entitled Vo fifty per cent; but the thing that was in my mind at that time was
the fifty per cent interest. But it neyer was defined.

Q. Ail you are saying, as I understand it, when you came to the summer
of 1928 you concluded that you should have a fifty-fifty share in the project?
-A. That is correct.

Q. When did you suggest to Senator McDougald, or hie to you, what your
interest should be in the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. On August 1,
1929, 1 sat across the table from Senator McDougald, and hie said: "You are
about Vo go into the hospital. We ought to clarify our respective positions in
this Sterling project. Do you think that a thousand part interests would be
fair?" And I said, " I believe it would."

Q. You have handed me a letter dated the lst of August, 1929?-A. This is
Scopy.

Q. Is that a copy of a letter vou received from Senator McDougald?-A.
That is a copy of the letter.

(Copy cf letter cf August 1, 1929, W. L. McDougald to, R. A. C. Henry,
filed, marked Exhibit No. 132.)

Q. Now, Mr. Hlenry, do you state that the first suggestion that the sale price
cf Sterling Industrial should be 2,000 part interests came from yourself?-A.
Yes, sir.

Q. And that was after the consideration of the circumstances cf the assets
and value cf the Syndicate and the entire review?-A. Lt was based largely
upon what 1 considered the efforts 1 had made over these five years were worth.

Q. iNow, you have come te the fixing cf the value cf the Sterling Industrial
Corporation, and 1 have jumped to the lst of August, 1929, when you settled
your partnership interest, if I may caîl it that, in respect of the Sterling In-
dustrial Corporation.

The CHAIRMAN: What is the date of that?
Mr. MIL4N: lst of August, 1929. That is when they settled up between

them.
By Mr. Mann:

Q.What did you do in respect cf the selling of the Sterling te the Beau-
harnois interests.' from 1928?-A. I did ncthing whatever.

Q. You had fixed the value at 2,000 part interests, and did nothing whatso-
ever Vo, get the Beauharnois Syndicate te agree te pay 2,000 part interests?-A.
Nothing whatever.

Q. De yeu know what, if anything, was done te geV the Beauharnois Powcr
Syndicate te agree te pay 2,000 part interests te Sterling?-A. I know that some-
time in December, 1928, an agreement was made te scîl it.

Q. Before that agreement wvas made were yeu told by Senater MeDougald
that the Beauharnois Syndicate hiad agreed te pay 2,000 part interests for the
Sterling Industrial Corporation stock?-A. 1 was led te understand that they
were wiI1 ing te pay it. I was net told they had agreed.
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Q. What do you mean by saying that you were led ta understand?-A. 1
mean that in my discussions with Senator MýcDougald I got the impression that
they had agreed ta acquire it on that basis.

Q. On the basis that vou had decided was the basis ta acquire it in July
or August, 1928?-A. No, that was probably October.

Q. I thuught you told me it was in about August, 1928, that you had the
discussion leading to determing it?-A. No, it was later than that.

Q. The first discussion was later than that ?-A. The first discussion-I
would say it was about the middle of October I fixed the price.

Q. Then, as far as you know, there had been no discussion whatsoever over
the purchase of the Sterling Industrial by Beauharnois up ta that time, or fol-
lawing that time, until yau learned it had been purchased?-A. Correct.

Q. Have you any information that will help us in illustrating how these
negotiations were carried on ta the ultimate conclusion of purchase?-A. None,
whatever.

Q. Who did the negotiating?-A. Mr. Ebbs asked me whether 2,000-
whether it was ail right ta make an agreement for 2,000 part interests; but just
when that occurred, between the middle of October and December, I could not
Bay pasitively.

Q. Apropos of that, what did you mean when you said in the inquiry before
the House of Commons Committee: "I think I instructed Mr. Ebbs ta take his
instructions at that time from Senator McDougald, because Senator McDougald
was then interested in the Syndicate."

The CHAIRMAN: What is the page of the report?
Mr. MANN: Page 573.
The WiTNEss: What I meant hy that was that Mr. Ebbs had really been

lookîng ta me in regard ta Sterling, and he asked me about these 2,000 part
interests, and I think I told hlm it was ail right for hima ta take bis instructions
from Senator McDougald.

Q. Don't you see that someone must have told Mr. Ebbs about 2,000 part
interests or he could not have said that ta you?-A. My impression is that
Senator MacDougald must have.

Q. Where do you gather that impression?-,A. The fact that lie came and
asked me.

Q. The fact that Mr. Ebbs came and asked you?-A. Yes. Hie was repre-
senting Senatar McDougald in the Syndicate, and was also president of the
Sterling.

Q. I sec. Sa for those reasons you immediately assumed that Senator Me-
Dougald must have told hlm the agreement you had came ta between you, so
that you should get 2,000 part interests f rom the Beauharnois graup. Did you
or did yau not have a conversation with Senator McDougald which impressed
upon you the nccessity of staying out of any negatiations for the purchase by
the Beauharnois Power Syndirate of the Sterling Industrial Company.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: One moment. Again I want ta caîl the attention of
the Committee ta the formn of the question. This is your witness. That my
learned friend should ask all about conversations, when they took place and
what was said, is ahl riglit; but here he defines the nature of the conversation and
asks did it take place.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not think Mr. Henry is in any danger. H1e is a
very careful witness.

Mr. MANN: 11e is not ini very much danger.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: No, but ini fairness to everybody. I will agree that

Mr. Henry is a most able witness. That is an additional reason why Mr. Mann
ouglit ta be satisfied ta question hlm in the usual way.

Mr. MANN: I think Mr. Henry is able ta take care of himself.
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By M1r. Mann:i
Q.Did you have a conversation with Senator McDougald whichi indicated

to you or impressed you with the fact that you should have nothing whatever
to do with negotiating for the sale of the Sterling Industrial Corporation to, the
Beauharnois Power Syndicate?-A. No. 1 don't think we had any discussion
about it when I made up my mmnd that 2,000 part interests was what I con-
sidered the fair value under the circumstances, and that satisfied him. I left
the rest to him entirely.

Q. You left the rest to himi entirely?-A. 1 did.
Q. Although you did flot have a conversation whereby you left the rest

to him entirely ?-A. There was no discussion.
Q. It was merely a process of understanding?-A. Yes.
Q. "'Two souls with but a single thought." Is that it, in respect of the

negotiations?-A. Well, hie having agreed with me that 2,000 part interests
was the proper consideration, I didn't think it was any of my business, or that
it would be altogether right for me, to try and negotiate when hie was doing it,
s0 I left it entirely to him.

The CHAIRMAN:' Are you going to read that letter?
Mr. MANN: Perhaps I had better. This is Exhibit No. 132:

360 St. James Street,
Montreal.

August 1, 1929.
R. A. C. HENRY, Esq.,
145 Broughton Ave.,
Montreal West, P.Q.

DEAR MR. HENRYÇ-FOr good and valuable considerations, I, hereby
agree to turn over to you or your nominee, or in the case of death, to your
Estate; One Thousand (1,000) Fully Paid Up iPart Interests in the
Beauharnois Power Syndicate, you to receive when the Beauharnois
Power Syndicate is paid off, ($150) One Hundred and Fîfty Dollars per
share in cash and Forty Thousand (40,000) shares of Common Stock in
the Beauharnois Power Corporation, which is to be the Holding Company;
this in accordance with an Agreement between the Bankers and the
Beauharnois Power Syndicate.

The only condition attached to this transfer is that you agree to,
pool with me the above-mentioned shares, namely (40,000) Forty Thou-
sand, for a period of ten (10) years toi comply with an undertaking which
I am to enter into with other interests for a pooling agreement of all my
own holdings in Beauharnois Power Corporation.

Yours very truly,
(Sgd.) W. L. MeDOUGALD.

WLMcD
F
Witnessed

(Sgd.) JOSEPE F1uNx.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Mr. Henry, you had to do with the organization or incorporation of the

Sterling Industrial Corporation in about 1923 or 1924?-A. 1924.
Q. As I understand it, what we might caîl the corporate activities of that

company ceased about 1924, I mean directors' meetings, and that kind of thing?
-,k. I do flot remeinber whether they did or not.
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Q.That is a matter, perhaps, of record?-A. Yes.

Q.But whether they ceased or continued, your own activity and interest

in promoting the schcmc that you had in mid in coirnection with that company

stili continued?-A. Yes.
Q. And you had activities in the way of trying to see what could be done

in the way of getting necessary rights from people wyho had them?-A. Yes.

Q. As 1 understand your evidence, you interested yourself in seeing what

could be done to seli power?-A. Yes.

Q. And you were spending a good deal of your time and thought on that

kind of thing?-A. Yes.

Q. And 1 take it from what you said this afternoon that to, your mind

that considerably enhianced the value of the Sterling proposition. 1 do not inean

that it gave it a market value, but that was ail work that would be necessary

and valuable if Sterling finally became a goingr concerfi? What do you say?

-A. The value depended upon the soundness of the pros ect, the ability to

finance-
Q. But no matter how sound the proj ect might be, purchasers of the power

that the project developed were very necessary?-A. And the ability to sel

the power.
Q. And you had been negotiating somewhat to that end?-A. Oh, yes.

Q. Had made, you thought, some substantial progress that way?-A. Well,

I had inquiries f rom people wh.o wanted haîf a million horsepower.

Q. They were substantial people?-A. Oh, yes.

Q. People who you expected were able to take the powerý, if you decided to

sell?-A. Yes.
Q. Those were matters that would ail be valuable to such a proposition,

if you got it going?-A. Yes.
Q. And you were working along that way, as I understand it, as late as

1927, in any event?-A. Certainly in 1927.

Q. And along in 1928 you heard of what we might cail the oppositon

scheme, the Beauharnois scheme, that Mr. Sweezey was f athering?-A. Yes.

Q. And 1 understand that for a time you rather thought you had the better

horse of the two?-A. Well, 1 thought that my scheme of developing the power

was more economical than theirs was.

Q. And 1 understand you also had the idea that you were in a better place,

I mean you were goinýg to the Dominon and hie was working along Provincal

lines, more particularly ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you thought the neces-,ary rights were to be got from the Dominion?

-A. 1 did.
Q. Then it was rather the f ailure -of your opinon as to the Dominon rights

that made you change your mmnd somewhat in the f ail, is that right? That is,

you began to think so many people were satisficd that the province had the

power, that you thought perhaps you were wrong, that perhaps the province

had the power?-A. Well, 1 was beginning to think that, yes.

Q. That was the circumstance, as 1 take it from your evidence this after-

noon, that was the circumstances that made you rather lose some of your f aith

in your own project, that rather than anything wrong with the project itself?-

A. I think thaît is f airly stated.

Q. As a matter of fact, the Supreme Court had not at this time-that is in

the f al of 1928-given any decision in .the matter?-A. 1 do not think it had.

Q. The matter was stili to be decided by any court, but you found that

you had a good many people around you who thought you were wrong?-A. Yes.

Q. And you began to think that perhaps you were wrong too?-A. Yes.

Q. That is what a lawyer thinks when the Court of Appeal is against him,

hie begins to think that hie is wrong.
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The CHAIP.MAN: I understand hirn to say that he is not sure Yet that lie
is wrong.

The WITNESS: 1 arn not sure.

BY Mr. Robertson:
Q. That was the sort of thing you had to dispose of, and you began to

think that perhaps you had better get into the other schernes?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, the other scheme at this time had stl a good rnany rivers to cross

before it reached success?-A. It had.
Q. While I understand the evidence has been that in the final outcorne

sornetirne later the rights you acquired, the part interests you acquired, did
bring in a good deal of money and other interests that were valuable, that was
a long way in the future?-A. It certainly was.

Q. And by no means a certainty?-A. That is correct.
Q. Would you say it 'was a fair way to put the exchange that was made

in December, 1928, to compare the trading of Sterling with what was ultimately
received for the 2,000 interests of Beauharnois? In your opinion is that a fair
comparison to make, looking at it as it appeared in the fali of 1928?-A. I wasnot very confident that anything would develop for sorne considerable time in
1928. 1 certainly was not confident that anything would develop within any
reasonable time.

Q. And it was quite uncertain if it would develop at all?-A. Because of
the confiots between the two jurisdictions.

Q. And it was under those circumstances, as 1 understand it, that at your
suggestion a trading value of 2,000 part interests in the Beauharnois Syndicate
was suggested?-A. I really was considering merging interests and trying to
get something.

Q. At the tirne did you think it was fair?-A. At the time I thouglit it was
fair, having regard to my knowledge of what it would cost to make the investi-
gations which I had made myscîf.

Q. And having regard to the problematical value of what you were getting?
-A. Yes.

Mr. SMITH: 0f course, ylou are not overlooking the fact that the payment
of the 2,000 part interests was contingent upon the action of the Governor
General in Council.

By Mr. Robertson:
QI understand that it was the other people and net you who imposed the

conditions? Mr. Griffith has told us that it was lie who împosed that condition
and not these people.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not think the Committee will spend mucli time on the
question as to what was a fair value.

By.AMr. Robe rtson:
Q. Throughout the Sterling operations, or whatever was donc, iýs it not the

fact that it was ahl donc under the instructions of cither yourself or Senator
McDougald?-A. So f ar as-

Q. So far as any'thing donc by the Directors or Board of Directors of that
eernpany?-A. That is correct.

Q. They were simply your nominees 'and doing what you told them?.-A.
That is correct.

Mr. RoBEITsoN: That is ail, thank you.
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By Hon. Mr. McMUeans:
Q.When you were dealing with those gentlemen in New York, trying to

interest themn in power, were you acting on behaif of yourself or the Sterling
Industrial Corporation?-A. Well, 1 disclosed to thema the fact that I had an
application under the Sterling Industrial Corporation, or was interested in it.

By Hon. Air. Cannon:
Q. Did I understand you rightly when you said that the price which a

eventually paid for Sterling was fixed by you?-A. The price was fixed by me.
Q. For the reasons which you have gîven to the Committee?-A. That is

correct.
By the Chairman:

Q. I should just like to be clear upon one matter. You went with the
Department of Railways and Canals in 1912?-A. Yes sir.

Q. Were you in continuous -service with the railways until you became
Deputy Minister-I mean cither the Department of Railways or the Canadian
National Railways? Was your service continuous?-A. My service with the
Department of Railways started in 1912. 1 left the Department of Railways
in 1923 and my services with the Canadian National Railways continued until
Mardi 10, 1930.

Q. 1 mean, there was no break? It was either the Departmen-t or the rail-
ways?-A. Yes.

Col. ANDREW T. THOMPSON, K.C., of Ottawa, appeared as a witness, and
having been duly sworn, testified as follows:-

The CHAIRMAN: My colleague, Senator Béique, suggests, Mr. Mann, that
perhaps you iad better give a brief summary of wiat Col. Tiomp:son said before
the other Committee. I understand you intend merely to supplement it?

Mr. MANN: That is nîl.
Hon. Mr. BÉIQTuE: Will you *commence by making a summary of it?
Mr. MANN: Well, it is difficult to summarize what he said, except to say

that it relates principally to Exhibit 115, whici is Col. Thompson's bill.
The CHAIRMAN: Have we a copy of that?
Mr. MANN: It is part of the record, Exhibit 115.
The CHAIRMAN: It is not printed, is it?
Mr. MANN: No. But my examination of Col. Thompson wîll be very short,

and I venture to suggest that perhaps it wouid be shorter than taking the book
and making a summary of what he lias already said.

By Mr. Mlann:
Q.You wcrc examined before the Committce of the Commons?-A. Yes,

Mr. Mann.
Q. And you gave evidence in respect of services, rendered as recited on the

bill dated 24th of July, 1928, and rendered to Vie Beauharnois Light, Heat and
Power Company?-A. Yes.

Q. You are familiar with the bill which you rendered?-A. Yes.
Q. This account, I may say, was rendered from your books?-A. Yes.
Q. Tien I think you said your first retainer was from Vhe Dominion Securi-

ties Corporation, in about Octoher, 1927?-A. Tiat is rigit, sir.
Q. And from that:it developed into a process of advi8ing or doing work for

tie Beauharnois Power Corporation?-A. Yes.
Q. And tie work that you did from the receipt of that letter is what is set

forth in Vie bill, Exhibit 115, is that correct?-A. Yes, itemized.
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Q. I note that in the bill there are many names not spelled but referred to by
a capital letter.-A. Yes.

Q. Is that the habit in relation to your work?-A. Oh, yes.
Q. But why?-A. Well, in sending out bills of account to clients I wish

to show them that services were rendered upon the dates shown in the account,
but I do not make a practice of stating the names of the people whom I inter-
view. If they want to ask me about it I can tell them, as long as it is shortly
after the bill.

Q. Is that because of parliamentary practice that you would rather have
the matters kept-I take it that there is nothing under-hand about it, what-
soever?-A. Quite so.

Q. It is merely that you would rather have these names kept free from
public gaze, in so far as you possibly can?-A. Quite so, sir.

Q. There is nothing wrong, but I have to ask you.-A. Yes, quite right.
Q. I have to ask you during the progress of the inquiry as to whom you

did refer when you mentioned initials.-A. Yes.
Q. Now, you have handed me your file and I will be obliged to read from

a number of letters in this file. I am proceeding down the bill to the item of
January 4, 1928. I see that on January 4, 1928, January 5, and January 6,
that you had consultations, long consultations with Mr. Steele. First of ail,
Mr. Steele was the Manager of the Dominion Securities Corporation.-A. Vice-
President.

Q. Vice-President and General Manager of the Dominion Securities Cor-
poration?-A. Yes.

Q. And Mr. Fred Brown, who was he?-A. He was one of the engineers
in connection with the Beauharnois.

Q. And Mr. Ainslie Greene?-A. A lawyer of Ottawa, who was employed
with me in the parliamentary work. At the time he and I were employed to
do work with the Department of Railways and Canals and the Department of
Public Works.

Q. And Mr. Winfield Sifton?-A. Yes.
Q. Who was also a lawyer?-A. Yes.
Q. And Mr. Hugh Griffith, who was the Secretary?-A. Yes.

Q. And that work consisted in doing what?-A. Well, in consulting together
as to how best to promote the application of these gentlemen for the Order in
Council which they required here in Ottawa.

Q. And what did that consist of?-A. We found that the application was
being strongly opposed here by other power interests. We were asked to inter-
view as many people as we could and to explain to them the merits of our
project and to meet and refute, as far as possible, arguments which were put
up by our opponents in opposition to it.

Q. And I take it that there was certain further information that did not
come within the ambit of the press and that you got, in relation to the opposi-
tion that was put up against you?-A. I cannot recollect as to that. But it
was to promote, as far as we could, the interests of the applicants.

Q. And I find that on January 7, 1928, you have "Further work re report
of Committee and important interview with Mr. C." Who was Mr. C, of
Quebec city, re the attitude of citizens of Quebec?-A. I could not tell you at
this date who Mr. C was. That is how many years ago, over three?

Q. Yes, it is over three.-A. Frankly, I could not tell you that.
Q. It is exactly four years and a month.-A. We were trying to get the

attitude of people all over the country as to this development which was partly
navigation as well as power.

Q. Let me proceed to the 12th of January, 1928. You had an interview
on that day witb Mr. Greene and Col. Daly. What was Col. Daly's function?
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-A. He is a lawyer practising here in Ottawa, and also a Parliamentary Agent.
I was instructed to retain Col. Daly in support of the application. I did so
and I paid him a retainer of $500. A few days subsequently Col. Daly replied
that he found because of other interests that he could not act for the promoters
and he returned the money.

Q. Yes, I quite understand that. That appears by the debits and credits.
-A. Yes.

Q. He returned the retainer?-A. Yes.
Q. And who was Major Moyer, and what were his interests?-A. As far

as I know, and I think I do know, because we were constantly in conference-
Q. Yes, I see that.-A. Major Moyer was retained just as Mr. Greene and

I were, to promote, as far as he could, the interests of the applicants. And
bis office, I think, was largely used for display of maps and sending out litera-
ture, and so on.

Q. Would it be fair to say that the interest that you had in mind was
putting as satisfactory a light as possible upon the interests of the applicants
in the political field?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is a fair statement?-A. Yes; and, as I say, also see people from
all over Canada who happened to come to Ottawa, if they were men of import-
ance in their own places.

Q. Your work was painting as nice a picture as you could to the powers
that be?-A. We certainly wanted to create a favourable impression.

Q. And then you proceeded in the creating of that favourable impression,
you proceeded to discuss the matter with cabinet ministers?-A. Yes.

Q. And with senators?-A. Yes.
Q. And the powers whom you hoped to wean to the favourable considera-

tion for your clients, is that correct?-A. Members of the House of Commons-
Q. People whom you hoped to wean over?-A. I would not say they had

to be weaned over. I do not know that they were opposed. We sought to extend
our project along the lines of those various memoranda which were distributed.

Q. Now, Col. Thompson, during this progress I may take it that you had
interviews with your clients on numerous occasions?-A. Oh, yes.

Q. Represented by their many lawyers?-A. Yes.
Q. And I suppose represented by their officers? You had conferences with

your clients?-A. Constantly.
Q. Now, coming to the 13th of January, I see that you had an interview

with a gentleman whose name you have not given an initial to, but he is declared
to be a cabinet minister.-A. Yes.

Q. That was on the 13th of January. That was in furtherance of this
desire that you had?-A. Yes, absolutely.

Q. And on the 14th of January a Mr. W. Are you able to tell me who that
Mr. W happened to be?-A. No, sir, I have not the slightest idea. That, too,
is four years ago.

Q. Am I to say that in respect of all those initials you are not able to say
who the men are?-A. I think you might say with regard to all of them.

Q. I notice that you have mentioned the Hon. Mr. R and Senator R and
Senator S. You do not know who those gentlemen are?-A. No, I do not know.

Q. But you have no doubt who Mr. Church, M.P., is?-A. Yes, I know Mr.
Church.

Q. You have named him in full?-A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: There is only one.
The WrrNEss: Pardon me, isn't that in connection with some action that

Mr. Church took in the House of Commons? It was not an interview with Mr.
Church, was it?
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Mr. MANN: 1 think it was some anxiety expressed by somebody with
respect to a motion he made in the House of Commons.

The WITNESS: Yes.

By the Chaîrman.:
Q. Did those senators know that they were being designated by those

initials?-A. 1 do not think so, sir.
Q. For instance, if we called the roll would they stand up?-A. 1 do not

think so. It was the big thing of the session and being discussed by everybody.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. It was the big thing?-A. I wouid say so, decidedly.
Q. 1 see quite a number of interviews here with the Hon. Mr. R and long

interviews with Senator R. I arn wondering, Col. Thompson, if with so many
Senator R's in those documents if you cannot just place him. You suggested
to the Committee before that if you had the Parliamentary Guide that you
might be able to say who it was.-A. Have you got one for that particular
year?

Q. I have not one for 1927, but 1 have one for January, 1928 (producing).
-A. 1 have the list here, sir. Do you want me to read the names?

Q. Who is Senator S?-A. Senator R you were talking about. Well, there
were Senators Rankin, Raymond, Reid, Riley, Robertson, Robinson, Ross and
Ross. That is ail.

Q. And which one of those was it?-A. Well, 1 do not think I could swear
to any individual one.

Q. Perhaps you saw them ail, Col. Thompson?-A. I may have done so.
1 certainly would make that endeavour, sir. The only one-well, I remember
seeing one, and 1 do not think there is any harm in telling it. The gentleman
is dead now, my old friend, the Hon. John Reid, 1 remember sccing him. He
had beeiî a former Minister of Railways and Canais and had a great deal of
knowledge of projeets of that kînd. And probably 1 saw three or four of the
others. I may have seen them ail; I did the best I could.

Q. Wiil you takce the M's in the list of senators and tell nie who Senator M
was in this bill, if you can tell me? Did you see ail the senator M1's?-A. No,
I could not tell you.

Q. Will you just tell me who Senator M was, if you can? He is mentioned
several times-"2Important interview with Senator M, March 1," and "Important
interview with Senator M, March 15."ý-A. I think that March 15 was extended
to be Senator McDougald. I think there is very littie doubt about it.

Q. My difficuity is that it is not extended on the bill.-A. But that bill is
the bill that I sent out from my office.

Q. I take it that I have the bill that you sent out from your office. This
is the bill that was filed before the House of Commons Committee?-A. Yes
sir.

Q. And you say that the name of Senator McDougald on March l5th was
extended where?-A. I think that was in my docket.

Q. Wihl you look and see if it is, and also look at March lst?-A. In other
words, I would like to make that clear, because I amn perfectly frank with the
Committee and intend to be so. That bill, of course, was sent out long before
there was any inquiry ever xnooted. That was sent out from my office and
that is the copy on my file and there was no endeavour to send out a bill of
costs, different from the ledger to deceive the Committee.

Q. 0f course, that goes without saying. The bill is dated 24th Juhy, 1928,
and the Commiittee sat oniy a year ago, so there can be no doubt about that.-
A. There couhd be no endeavour to deceive.
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Q. Not in the slightest.-A. Just as I told you, it is written " Senator
McDougald " in f ull here on the lst of March, in rny docket.

Q. But you will appreciate that we have not had the confidence of that
docket tili this minute.-A. This book was filed with the House of Corumons
Committee.

Q. 1 mean here, I amn asking you just what was that?-A. That is ail
right, and I arn trying to f acilitate you, and'now I see his name is extended in
that particular case.

Q. What was it on the flrst of* Mardi-Important interview with Senator
McDougald? Does your docket show what that interview was about?-A. No.
Would you like to see it?

Q. No, Col. Thompson, I will take your word; you cannot remember what
it was about?-A. Not a thing in the world.

Q. You cannot remember? 1 think you said the Marci 15th one was with
Senator McDougald, and you cannot remember what it was?-A. No, not to
my knowledge. Senator McDougald and I have been friends for many years.
I have had many interviews with him, and I have no doubt it was such. I
regarded him as an important man; hie had been chairman of the Harbour
Board of Montreal; hie was prominent in finance, and a senator. I went to
him. and discussed these matters with himi on two different occasions, and I have
no douit I got considerable information froin him, because hie knew more
about those things than I did. But apart frorn my docket I cannot state any-
thing.

Q. I don't suppose you know whether vou hiad those interviews up on the
lli or down at your office?-A. I don't th:ink lie xvas ever in my office in his

life. Lt migit have been at the Chateau.
Q. Then I take it that you cannot remember?-A. I cannot, any more than

I tell you.
Q. There is one date, Marci 20, 1928,-" Morning, conference with Mr.

Sifton. Afternoon, interview with Mr. Sifton, who asks written opinion on
certain phases of the Independence of Parliament Act." Tell us, if you Cali
remember what were the phases of the Independence of Parliament Act that Mr.
Sifton asked?-A. I cannot swear positively to that. 1 think it was in regard
to selling shares to members of Parlianient-Whether that would be a breach
of the Independence of Parliament Act. 0f course I was able to expiain to
him offhand that members of parliament iad a perfect rigit to own shares in
companies, even if those companies are before Parliament; but I do not think
I gave iim a written opinion.

Q. No; ail that is here is that Mr. Sifton asked you for an opinion as to
certain phases of the Independence of Parliament Act?-A. Yes.

Q. And you tiink you gave ii a verbal opinion?-A. Yes.
Q. In respect to the ability or righit of men in publie office, as members of

parliament, of the flouse of Commons?-A. That if hie want-ed to seil shares in
tus company to tiem, whether that would be a proper thing, or wiether it
would fail under the ternis of the Independence of Parliament Act.

Q. It strikes you that if tic question was tiat Mr. Sifton wantcd to seli
shares to a meinber of parliament of Canada, it was a perfectly proper thing
to do?-A. I arn not positive, but that is my ratier hazy recollection of it.
That is as near as 1 can get.

Q. Surely, would it not suggest itself to you as an experienced lawyer that
a member of parliament siould not be debarred fromn buying shares and securi-
ties; that would not interfere with the Independence of Parliament Act?-
A. That is wiat 1 told iim.

Q. But there must hiave been sonriethiing a littie more than that, Col. Thomp-
son, because Mr. Sifton, who xvas a prominent lawyer, would not suggest that the
Chairman or the members of the Committee could not buy whatever stock they
liked?-A. No.



112 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Q. Now, what was the thing that required an opinion?-A. Unless it was

that this matter was current and going on at the time, and whether it would

lead to regulations if he did so. There might be some question of the price at

whieh he sold stock. But this is ail surmize. 1 tell you sincerely I do not know

the terms of that interview, and I cannot tell you.
Q. Since the last investigation you have not refreshed your memory?-A.

No, 1 neyer thought of it.
Q. 1 may take it that the Independence of Parliament Act was under dis-

cussion between you and Mr. Sifton in thereIationship, in some way, between

members of the Canadian parfiament and the project?--A. There is no doubt of
it.

Q. Who those members were you are not able to, say?-A. No; I think it

was just a general question.
Q. The only thing you are able to say is that you did have that general dis-

cussion with Mr. Sifton?-A. Yes.
Q. I wonder if 1 might trouble you to refer to your docket again and turn

to the entry of January 26, 1928, and tell me about the item there, which is-

'Active work on ll-important interviews with Senator S." Does the docket

indicate who Senator S. was?-A. (Turning to page 124 of docket). What was
the date, again?

Q. January 26, 1928?-A. Well, ail 1 have got in my docket here is-

"Active work on ll, and important interviews." I have not got any name at
ail of any kind.

Q. On January 26th it says-"-ýActive work on li-important interviews

with Senator S."?-A. Well, 1 will'see how my docket is. My stenographer

inakes out these bis of costs. The docket says, "Active work on lli; im-
portant is."

Q. Can you tell me who the "Hon. Mr. R." is on the 28th January?-A. No.

Q. Does your docket show who the "IHon. Mr. R." was?-A. What date was

that?
Q. 28th January?-A. Well, perhaps it does-(examining docket) No.

Ion. Mr. R. miglit have been a member of the House of Commons; it may have
been a cabinet minister.

Q. You do not remember?-A. No.
Q.Now, Col. Thompson, coming to April, 1928, the same general work appears

to have been pursued upon the Iill?.-A. Yes.
Q. I find on April l6th the words-"-jImportant, day on account of promised

tablîng of correspondence re St. Lawrence Waterways;" then on April l7th-

"Several interviews re yesterday's remarks in Commons and newspaper ac-

counts of correspondence with U. S. Government"; followed by attendance on

both Senate and Ibuse of Commons; then, on April l9th 1928, "Several inter-

views with senators re proposed Committee of Enquiry"?-A. Yes.
Q. What proposed Committee of Enquiry was that?-A. 1 could not tell

you at that date, that proposed Committee of Enquiry; but there must have

been something said or mooted at the time, and I tried to get some information
as to its seope, and so on.

Q. Wouid it be f air for me to suggest that there was a Committee of

enquiry proposed to be made in the Senatc?-A. I couid not tell you the scope

of it, but 1 think 1 overheard something. I do not know any more than you

have read. There must have been something in the newspapers or the corridors

that there was to be a Committee of Enquiry, and 1 wanted to find out what its

scope wouid be, and so on. It was no doubt interestîng to my people.

The CHAIRMAN: That wouid be the Senate's inquiry in April, 1928.

Mr. MA.NN: That is what I am trying to get from Col. Thompson, and 1
have no doubt he is trying to remember.

The WITNFSS: You are quite right.
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By Mir. Mann:
Q.Was it the National Advi-sory Committee that you referred to-an

inquiry by themn?-A. 1 could not tell you.
Q. Or was it the inquiry of the Senator Tanner Committee?-,A. Were there

two different committees at that time?
Q. I have asked you whether there was a Committee or not?-A. I cannot

tell you anything about it, more than there must have been sojne committee
being mooted, and I was making what enquiries 1 could.

Q. Col. Thompson, is there any objection to Mr. Smith and myseif having
that docket of yours, on the understanding that nothing in the docket will be
revealed except for the purpose of getting information?-A. Not a bit. I arn
not a bit afraid of you stealing my clients. I don't think you would try, and
I don't think you could.

By Hon. Mr. Cannon:
Q.You have produced that docket already?-A. Yes.

Q. 1 think you produced that docket before the Commons?-A. Yes.
Q. This book was placed before the Committee last year?-A. Absolutely.
Q. And again you have volunteered ail the information you possibly could?

-A. Everything that I could give.
COL. THOMPSON: Mr. Chairman, may I correct the last statement made in

the evidence given by Mr. Griffith on page 83, in justice to myseif?
The CHIAIRMAN: Yes.
COL. THOMPSON: Here is the examination:

Q. You paid them $10,000, did you?-A. That is my recollection.
Q. You paid them $10,000 for those items which are set out in their

bis to you? That is what it was paid f or?-
and so on. Now, he was referring to me in common with the other parlia-
mentary agents at the time. I did not receive such fee. My pay was $6,0OO,
coverîng a period of nearly two years. Had I charged $1,000 1 think my charge
would have heen excessive, I think that the amount I received was reasonable,
and I would like that error to be corrected.

The CHAIRMAN: You are correcting it now.

By Mr. Vien:
Q. Col. Thompson, can you state to the Committee whethcr any of those

interviews with Senator R. mentioned in your bill-if any of those were with
Senator Raymond?-A. No; that I can state positively, hecause I had not the
pleasure of his acquaintance. They were not with Senator Raymond.

Mr. MANN: Mr. Chairman, I have summoned Mr. Ainslie Greene, but we
have conferred in reference to whether we want to caîl Mr. Greene, and we do
not think we will cali him, so, I have no more witnesses to-day, but I want to
recali Mr. Ebbs.

Mr. JOHN P. EBns was rccalled as a witness, and testified as follows:-

By Mr. ,mith:
Q.Mr. Ebhs, you are stili under oath, and I have asked you to search

the records of your office with a vîew to letting the Committee know what
moneys you reecived for services in connection with the Sterling Industrial
Corporation?-A. Yes; the bank book shows that there was $2,500 received
and deposited.

Q. When was that?-A. I thought I gave you the date.
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Q. You told it to me, but I asked you Vo be in a position Vo tell it to the
Commttee?-A. Well, I have just forgotten. When I gave it to you I thought-

Q.From whence did that $2,500 come?-A. Weii, now, I can't tell you.
Q.Where did it go?-A. It was deposited in the bank. Do you want me

to get the bank book? Perhaps that would be best.
Q. Perhaps 1 had hetter stand you down, and you can teli me what moneys

you got, and when, and whence you got them, and what you did with them
in connection with the Sterling Industriai Corporation?-A. I oniy know what
the entries in the book show. When you ask what I got and what I did with
them, I did not get them, and did not do anything with them.

Q. I mean the firm?-A. I can say what the books show.
Q. The firm of McGiverin, Haydon & Ebbs, and the Sterling Industriai

Corporation; I want to know what moneys you received and how they were
dispensed, and I want that to-morrow morning?-A. Ail right.

The CHAIRMAN: Is that ahl?
Mr. SMITH: We intend to recail Mr. Ebbs on this one question; that is

very short. I intend recailing Mr. Griffith and Mr. Sweezey, both in connection
with campaign funds; there seems Vo be a disparity, at least, in connection with
their evidence. Mr. Sweezey is here; Mr. Griffith is arriving at some time
to-night, and they have both agreed to place themselves at my disposai this
evening, to see if I cannot find the facts and bring them before your Committee.
That being so, these are ail the witnesses the Counsel intended Vo bring before
you, with this reservation, that I have discussed the matter with Mr. Cook,
and he told me that Senator McDougaid întended giving evidence. Mr. Robert-
son has also toid us that perhaps in some other place-something you wiii deai
with at a laVer date--Senator Andrew Haydon intends Vo give evidence. I have
had no discussion with Mr. Vien in reference to the matter. In my opinion
I think that is the logical way in which the matter should proceed, and then
we will ask such questions as we may to bring out any further facts that we
think shouid be brought out. So I may say, for the benefit of the gentlemen
at the other table, that early to-morrow morning, so f ar as the generai evidence
goes, it wiil have been concluded.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I understand that Senator McDougaid would give
evidence provided the evidence adduced up Vo that time would necessitate it.

Mr. SMITH: 0f course I do noV want you to place any wrong impression on
anything I have stated.

Hon. Mr. CANoN: That is what Mr. Robertson and myseif intend doing.
The CHAIRMAN: Then that is ail to-nigyht?
Mr. SMITH: Yes.

The Committee adjourned until Vo-morrow at il a.m.
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OTTAwA, WEDNnSDAY, March 9, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking intoconsidera-
tion the report of a Special Committee of the House of Gommons of the lae,
session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois iPower Proj ect, in so f ar as said

report relates to any honourable members of the Senate, met this day at eleven
o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Senators Tanner, Chairman; .Béique, Chapais,

Copp, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, McMeans, and Robinson.

Counsel:
Mr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Arthur L. Smith, K.C.,

Calgary, Alberta, for the Committee.
The Honourable Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec, Mr.

John W. Cook, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Hugh E. O'Donnell, Mont-
real, Quebec, for Hon. Senator W. L. McDougald.

Mr. Thomas Vien, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, for the Hon. Senator Donat
Raymond.

Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, for Honourable Senator

Andrew Haydon.

Mr. SMITH: Cail Mr. Ebbs.

Mr. JoHN P. EBBS was recalled as a witness, and testified as follows:-

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Mr. Ebbs, you are stili under oath?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. You have brought with you this morning the bank book of the Sterling

Industrial Corporation, ýshowing its account in the Ottawa Branch. of the Bank
of Nova Scotia, which. showed a deposit on the 26th of September, 1924, of
$2,497, and on 29th September, 1924, of $3?-A. That is right.

Q. Making a total of $2,500?-A. That is right.

Mr. SMITH: I tell you this as Exhibit 133.

(Bank Book of Sterling Industrial Corporation with Bank of Nova Scotia,

filed, marked Exhibit 133.)

By Mr. Smith:
Q. This Exhibit 133 shows ail the moneys that were received at any time

by that Corporation?-A. Well, as f ar as I know.
Q. And yýou have been an officer of it for some time?-A. Yes, but as I say,

I don't know of any-how I know is what the bank book shows.
Q. You know of no other moneys that were received from any other source

for this Corporatîon?-A. I don't know.
Q. And do you knorw where this $2,500 came from?-A. No.

The CHAIRMAN: That shows $2,500; what is the $3 item?

Mr. SMITH: 1 imagine that was to make Up the exchange.
The WirNEss: Yes.
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By Mr. Smith:
Q. Do you know from whom it came?-A. No.
Q. You have also produced for me the cheque books of the Sterling Indus-

trial Corporation, and to stubs of those cheques the return paid cheques have
been appended or pasted?-A. Yes_.

Q. I observe that the first one is a cheque of September 29, 1924, to J. B.
McRae for $1,500?-A. That is right.

Q. That is the Mr. McRae we have been hearing about, the consulting
engineer?-A. Yes.

Q. On the same date a cheque of the Carillon Industrial Corporation for
$500?-A. Yes.

Q. And of the balance there is a cheque to McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs
as of the 4th day of November, 1924, for $127.15; your own dishursements in
connection with the Sterling Industrial? A. That is right.

Q. Then there are four or five of $5 týo the Secretary of State, which is just
the annual fee of those concerns making its annual return?-A. Right.

Q. There is another cheque, I should say, which is not here-the stub of a
cheque for $250, 4th November, 1926, to Mr. J. B. McRae, who is the same Mr.
McRae we have been speaking of?-A. Yes.

Q. And those show the total receipts and dishursements of that Corporation
in s0 far as you know?-A. So far as I know.

The CHAIRMAN: Are those marked as Exhibits?
Mr. SMITH: No; I was going to tender thýem bath as Exhibits 134 and 135.

(Cheque Book silowing cheques issued by the Sterling Industrial Corpora-
tion, filcd, markcd Exhibit 134.)

(Cheque Book of Bank of Nova Scotia, Ottawa, showing cheque issued by
Carillon Industrial Corporation, filed, marked Exhibit 135.)

The CHAIRMAN: Have you any questions?

By Mr. Robertson:
QI understand you were in no sensýe running the Sterling Industrial?-

A. No.
Q. I think, as some other witnesses have said-perhaps you will confirm it

-you were acting much as the office staff and mem-bers of the firm, were acting,
and as you sometîmes act, as dummy director?-A. Yes.

Q. Doing what you were toid by someone else?-A. Yes.
Q. And I suppose those entries were made in the same way; when somebody

directed you to, make them you made them?-A. Yes.
Q. I think somcehody said that Senator llaydon was president at some time

or other; I see you signed the cheques as president of the Sterling Industrial,
and you had to sign, I suppose, to fill that position?-A. I neyer knew that
Senator Haydon was president of the affair at ail.

Q. No, in fact he is not; you wvere acting president and you were president?
-A. Yes, I was.

Mr. MANN: Hie was for the first fewv years.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. The cheques are ail signed by you as president?-A. I think that is

right.
Mr. ROBERTSON: Whenever he was around he was president.
Mr. MANN: I dowi't know; he was around in 1924, I believe.
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Mr. R. O. SwEEzEy, recalled as a witness, testified as follows:--

The CLERK 0F THE COMMITTEE: You are stili under oath.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.Mr. Sweezey, I understand that with respect ta one item of campaign

funds, namely, an item of $10,00O, concerning which Mr. Griffith gave evidence
here a day or two ago, you have some comment to make; I am speaking of
$10,000 paid to General McCuaig?-A. Well, there ba-s been some confusion
about it.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: General McRae?

Mr. SMITHn: No; McCUaig.
The WITNESS: There seems to have been some confusion about it. There

is no doubt about it, it was my personal funds that I paid ta General McCuaig.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Did that money f orm. any part of funds of the Beauharnois Power Cor-

poration?-A. No, sir,Q. I tbink I should ask you this; there has been some question as ta funds
coming from the corporation and funds coming from yourself; would you have
made those donations, some large in amounts, were it not that you were promoter
of Beauharnois?-A. Most unlikely.

Q. Is that ail you have got ta say about it?-A. Well, I think it is obviaus
that I would not have. I might have been generous, but not ta that extent.

Mr. SMITH: 1 think that is ail I have ta ask Mr. Sweezey.

By Riqht Hon. Mr. Grahamn:
Q.You differentiate, do yau, Mr. Sweezey; between money given by your-

self, no matter who yau are, and money given by you on behaif of the corpora-
tion?-A. Oh no, I always gave it as my own.

By Mr. Robertson:
QIs Mr. Griffith here?-A. Yes.

Q. Does he agree witb you?-A. I don't know; 1 iave not spoken ta Mr.
Griffith, only for a f ew moments, sînce be came up from Montreal.

Q. I would have thouglit that you would have consulted before you came
into the witness box?-A. I did not know I did, but I noticed, in reading Mr.
Grifflth's testimony of last July, I tbînk it was, he appeared ta refer ta the
confusion in which bis mmnd xvas at that time.

Q. And you appear ta refer ta the blank state of yours as ta where the
money came f rom, and you referred ta Mr. Grifitb?-A. Yes, as ta details.

Q. You said ta, the Committee ta see iMr. Griffith; you bave no records
ta refer to?-A. No. I have no records of that kind.

Q. You were here last Thursday and made a statement in regard ta other
campaign funds, and you mentiGncd Mr. Cartier?-A. Yes, but I correeted
that.

Q. No one suggested the name of Cartier ta you; you gave it yourself, and
you came back the next day and said you were wrong?-A. Yes.

Q. Was Mr. Cartier present?-A. No.
Q. How was it you mentioned Cartier on Thursday and corrected it an

Friday?-A. That was the confusion, because I had communication with Mr.
Cartier an an entirely different matter, and the number of people I meet in a
year is legion, and I have difflculty in going back and picking out each indi-
vidual; but as soon as I came out and got a view in the ncwspapers of the state-
ment I made, then I remembered that Mr. Cartier was not the man.
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Q. And the statement made this morning, 1 understood you had no0 record
of it, but there was money of the corporation disbursed for campaign funds?-
A. It depends on which campaign funds you refer to.

Q. I amn not making it any more particular than that?-A. I don't think
there was any for the federal. 1 feel that we are confined to, federal here.

Q. Maybe we are, but 1 arn trying to cross-examine you as to sources ofinformation; you have no list anywhere to distinguish between federal and pro-
vincial contributions?-A. Well, provincial contributions are easier to remem-
ber.

Q. You have no lîsts?-A. No, I have no list.
Q. You have nothing to refer to; it is ail a pure matter of memory?-A.

Yes.
Q. And you corne here to make a statement, you say, without having

discussed the matter with Mr. Griffith, who made these st.atements?-A. Yes.
Mr. ROBERTSON: Ail right.

Mr. IIIUGH B. GRIFFITH was recalled as a witness, and testified as follows:
The CLERY, 0F THE COMMITrEE: You are stili under oath.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.You are stili under oath, Mr. Griffith?-A. Yes, sir.Q.You have heard the statement Mr. Sweezey made in regard to this $10,-

000?-A. I did.
Q. What have you got to say about it?-A. Why, Mr. Sweezey disbursed

the fundýs; I did not; I was simply campaigning, and 1 have no knowledge that
would contradict the statement Mr. Sweezey has made.

Q.s Perhaps you can clarify' it stili more; you said here the other day that
ths$10,000 liad corne from the funds of the company; that shortly, is what

you said, and is there some confusion about that?-A. I believe there is. I had
in mmnd the particular $10,000 disbursement or cheque, and Mr. Sweezey last
night-he stated in evidence-he discussed with me and told me the $10,000
I had in mmnd was for some other purpose.

Q. And not a federal purpose at all?-A. Not a federal purpose.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. When you made the statement on Friday last you believed it to be

true?-A. I did.
Q.And you stili believe it to, be true?-A. No.
Q.You think it is not true?-A. It was made to the best of my knowledge

and belief last week.
Q.ti And you have no further information to-day?-A. I have the infor-
mainMr. Sweezey gave me last night in conversation.
Q. H1e said hie did not talk to you about it?-A. I think Mr. Sweezey said

we had a discussion last night.
Q. H1e did not know what your statement was about it-however, we will

leave it there; we have your evidence.
Mr. SMITH: That is the evidence, subj ect, sir, to such evidence as may be

given by Senator McDougald, Senator Raymond and Senator Haydon, whom
we have reserved the right to cail in the event of their not giving their own
evidence; that concludes the evidence we have to offer the Committee.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Mr. Chairman, I understood at the opening of this
investigation that it was agreed that our learned friends, Mr. Mann and Mr.
Smith, were to lay what they considered relevant evidence before the Committee,
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and after they had done so the senators wbo were connected with the report
would then bring evidence if they thougbt fit, or not bring evidence. My
learned friend now says that he declared bis case closed, subject to his rigbt to
eall the senators if he wishes to. I would like to have frorn hirn a clear and
definite statement whether bis case is closed or whetber it is not.

The CHAItMAN: There is no case closed; this is not a court.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Wben I used the word closed 1 used it in tbe sense

wbether he bas put before the Comrnittee ail whichbch considers essential, as
representing the publie, as be bas been dcscribed. He ougbt to know wbether
be is tbrougb or not.

The CHAI1RMAN: That was, 1 understood, for convenience, in order tbat you
gentlemen would know wbat was going to bc said. 0f course I speak for
myseif; I took it for granted, and bave taken it for granted ail along, that the
senators rnentioned intend to give evidence. I would be very much surprised
if they do not.

Mr. ROBERTSON: Before saying anytbing on tbis subj ect rnay I make this
further suggestion. In stating my position on the matter of evidence I said
I tbought, frorn sometbing tbat was said early in the case-you will rernember,
Mr. Cbairman, that wben the book was put mn-the proeeedings frorn the
Commons Cornrittee-rny friend Mr. Mann properly said there was a good
deal in it that was not properly relevant bere. I tbougbt there was something
to follow, and I suggest now tbat it would be a very convenient thing if my
friend could point out-I mean give us a statement in sorne f orm or other-
as to just wbat part of this evidence be does tbink irrelevant. It is a littie
embarrassing to be told, "bhere is a book with largely irrelevant evidence," and
whieh irrelevant evidence we do not know. It means that we bave got to take
it ail unless something of tbat kind is donc. I mention that for the convenience,
perhaps as mueb for your own convenience as my own. Now, as to Senator
Haydon, he desires to give evidene. It has always been intended that he
should give evidence. I have told the Cornmittee before that he is a very sick
man and may not be able to, be bere, and something bas been said-perbaps not
in the Committee but by yourself, Mr. Chairman-that something eouid be
arranged in that way. Now, if tbere is any lingering sort of doubt in anybody's
mmnd as to Senator Haydon's ability to be present, I have Dr. Argue, bis
physician, here. I asked him to corne at this hour this morning, and if the
Committee desire to bear bim at ail be is bere.

Hon. Mr. MCMnE&NS: Wbat do you propose to do? I don't undersýtand

yoMr. ROBERTON: My suggestion is tbat in some convenient way the Com-
mittee would so arrange tbat Senator Haydon can give his evidence at his
bouse, ail opportunity being afforded for cross-examination. The Committee
themselves can go down en masse if so desired-I do not know that tbat is
wise-but be was anxious to be beard, and I saw him no later tban last night,
and he said that bis doctor forbade him, and I brougbt the doctor here to satisfy
you if you so desire.

Hon. Mr. MCMnANS: Tbe doctor does not forbid the giving of bis evidence
at bis bouse?

Mr. ROBERTSON: No, he said tbat rnigbt be done.

The CIIAIRMAN: The point, as I understand it now-we are dealing witb
Senator Haydon-

Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: You are informing the Committe that bis medical adviser

does not tbînk that be is fit to corne bere; is that it?
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Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Tbat bie is fit to give his evidence privateiy in his home,

for example; arn I right in tbat?
Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: So far as I know, the Cornmittee is very anxious and will

be very anxious to facilitate that in sorne way, because we certainly expect to
hear this evidence from Senator Haydon. Senator Raymond bas informed us
already tbat bie is prepared to stand examination.

Mr. MANN: I was merely-
Hon. Mr. BÉIQUE: I was going to suggest this, tbat the evidence might

be given in your presence-in the presence of tbe Chairman of the Cornrittee
and a couple of members.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes; the main point I wanted to lie elear about is that
there is no question about Senator Haydon givilig his evidence provided lie is
not brouglit into this big crowd. I think that is the point, is it not?

Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes; the doctor, first of ail forbids any sort of exciternent
and the physical exertion of coming.

Riglit Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Don't you think, Mr. Chairman, it would be
wise if the doctor were called to say that--for future reference, because some
person migbt arise and say we bad not any evidence at ail except the statement
of bis Solicitor that Senator Haydon was not able to corne.

The CHAIRMAN: I Was coming to t.bat, yes.
Mr. MANN: Mr. Chairman, I was going to suggest, in addition to tbat,

for wbat it was wortb, that perhaps this Comrnittee rnigbt think that it was
advisable for tbe Cornmittee itself to name a representative to see Mr. llaydon
witb bis own physician.

Tbe CHAIRMAN: W/ho is Senator Haydon's physician?
Mr. ROBERTSON: Dr. Argue; lie is bere.
The CHAIRMAN: I do not know what the rest of tbe Committee think,

but I arn quite of the sanie mind as Mr. Mann. I think tbis Comrnittee should
aiso lie represented by a pbysician of standing. 1 think we sbould also bave a
statement frorn an independent pbysician.

Hon. Mr. Copp: I tbink the staternent of a pbysician as distinguished
as Dr. Argue ougbt to be taken by this Commrnttee, as to whether bis patient is
fit to corne before the Cornrnttee or not.

The CHAIRMAN: I think on the buse of Commons Committee tbey had
three physicians going to see him.

Mr. ROBERSON: Yes, they had three bis to pay, and it resulted just in
hirn not being tbere.

The CHAIRMAN: 1 arn agreeing for this reason, not mereiy to satisfy myself
that Senator Haydon is or is not fit to give evidence. but if lie is in the condition
in whicb lie is said to be, and as I understand you to say lie is, this Committee
ouglit to be assured that lie is not goîng to take a step which miglit resuit in
a very unfortunate event. For that reason alone I would like to have tbe advice
of more than one physician.

Mr. ROBERTSON: May I suggest the convenience of Dr. Argue being here in
the event that you miglit hear birn now, and you do not need to make up your
mmnd until you hear hirn, about getting another doctor.

Hon. Mr. McMEANs: Is it usual or necessary to eall a doctor and put him
on oath in a matter -Df this kind when lie lias given a certificate?
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Mr. ROBERTSON: I arn willing to go any distance to satisfy the Corn-
rnittee, and I do not want to go any further. I have the doctor here to satisfy
you.

Hon. Mr. Copp: It is rnuch easier for the doctor to corne and give his
evidence than to sign a certificate.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuF: We are going to have his evidence.
The CHAIRMAN: No doubt about that; it is only a question cf bow we go

about it. We ail want his evidence.
Mr. ROBERTSON: Shall 1 cail birn now-Dr. Argue?
The CHAIRMAN: I arn thinking of Senator Haydon. We want te, safeguard

birn and safeguard the Cornrittee.
Mr. ROBERTSON: Shall 1 cali Dr. Argue?
The CHAIRMAN: Wbat do you say about the other physician?
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: If there is going to be a medical man cailed in I

think tbey ougbt to consuit together before either cf tbern giving any evidence.
The CHAIRMAN: I would like the views cf the Comrnittee on that. If

we tbink we are te have another phy'sician beside Dr. Argue I tbink the two
sbould act together.

Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: There is net any doubt about hearing Senator Hay-
don at ail. 1 understand the irnportance cf the doctor's evidence, but if it is
only a question of wbere you bear Mr. Haydon-wbetbier you hear hirn bere
or at bis bouse-J don't think it matters se rnuch then about the doctor's
evidence, and I do not see the necessity cf three or four doctors.

Tbe CHAIRMAN: I don't know. I have heard se rnucb about Senator
Haydon's iliness tbat personally I would not undertake to go even to bis bouse
uniess tbe physician were there at the time cf exarnination. I arn expressing
only my personal opinion, but I bear se rnu(ýb taik, I don't know wbetber it
is correct or net; but I want to be safeguarded, as well as Senator Haydon.

Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: We ail feel tbat, Mr. Chairman.
Tbe CHAIRMAN: I think, Mr. Robertson, tbat we ougbt te let the rnatter

stand over until this afternoon, and we will decide about the otber pbysician.
I do net know wbetber the Comrnittee agrees witb me, but I say tbis witb tbe
understanding that we ail want te take Senator Hayden's evidence. There is
ne prejudice to Senator llaydon.

Mr. ROBERSON: Dr. Argue is a busy man. Sball I bring birn back?
The CHAIRMAN: We are ail busy rnen.
Mr. ROBERTSON: He is busy in Ottawa, and it is cf sorne importance te

hirn wbether be cornes back or net.
The CHAIRMAN: We rnay net want any doctor.
Mr. ROBERTSON: I really suggest, Mr~. Cbairinan, tbat I arn asking tbe

Cornrittcc if tbcy cannot bear bim nom%
The CHAIRMAN: If tbe Cornrittee agrees with rne w-e will let the matter

stand for tbe mnoment.

Mr. ROBERiTSON: I arn not asking Dr. Argue te corne back unless the Corn-
inittee wants te hear hirn bere.

Rigbt Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: My suggestion was that we want te bave serne-
tbing on record. I thougbt it was tbe rnost innocent tbing in tbe world that as
Dr. Argue is bere be rnigbt go on record.

Mr. ROBERTSON: I do net see why Dr. Argue cannot rnake a staternent
bere now. He is bore for that purpose.
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Hon. Mr. McMEANs. If there is any doctor to be appointed by the Com-
mittee-if that policy is to be followed out-I think it would be useless ta ask
Dr. Argue to give an opinion without his consuiting the doctor who might be
appointed.

Mr. RoBERTSON: I would not suppose for a moment that Dr. Argue, who
has been in attendance on Senatýor Haydon for months, is going ta change his
opinion because somebody appointed by the Committee runs down and looks
at the man. Dr. Argue is a competent man, and a man of capacity.

Hon. Mr. BÉIQTE: As far as I arn concerned I think the question is very
unimportant, because we are going ta have bis evidence. What is the trouble?
I fail ta see what is the trouble. We are gaing to have his evidence, and it is
not very important whether bis evidence is given here or given at his own house.

The CHAIRLMAN: Well, the Committee will talk that over. Well, what next?
Mr. SMITH: As f ar as I can see, caunsel for Senator McDougald have not

yet told the Committee what their attitude is. I heard the statement by my
learned friend Mr. Cannon, complaining that we had nat lived up ta something
we said at the beginning, and he lef t the inference th-at we might not. I do
not intend ta answer that at ail, but I wish they would state their attitude
towards calling Senator McDougald. I think tbey could suggest, as ather
Mgentlemen have done.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I think I stated it already, but I want ta clear any
inisapprebension my learned friend migbt have in bis mind. At the very out-
set of the proceedings I said Senator McDougald was at the disposai of the
Committee, and su lie is. He is alsoa t the disposai of my iearned friends.
Tbey are conducting this inquiry; I arn not. Secondly, on Tbursday Mr. Cook
made this statement:-

Mr. CooKz: I wauld like ta say that rny understandîng of the orders
of this Committee is that the caunsel for Senators MeDougald and
Raymond and Haydon are nat ta bc cailed upon ta bring any evidence
befure the Committee until Mr. Mann lias finished his evidence. In
other wards, that we are proceeding in the case more or iess formaily,
because we wouid like Mr. Mann ta finish bis evidence first before we
take thc nccessary 8teps ta sumnion witnesses who would be necessary
on aur behaif.

Mr. SMITH: We intend ta faliow that exactly.
This is my iearned friend Mr. Cook speaking. That is iast Thursday.

The third point that I wish ta put bQfore the Cammittee is that it would not
anly be convenient, but I might say essential, for bath the members of the
Committee and for counsel, ta find out from aur learned friends what they
deem-as my friend Mr. Robertson bas stated-what they deem. material and
what they deem immaterial in this bulky mass of evidence, so that we would
know what we bave ta deal with. My leariied friend bias not made any
statement; and again I say that the Senator is at the entire disposai of the
Committee. He does nat wish ta change bis attitude in the least, and if the
members of the Committee or my learned friends think that he could be usefully
put back before the Committee, he is right bere ta do sa.

Mr. SMITH: Perhaps I had better read ta, you wbat Senator McDougald
himself says as ta what he intends ta do. On the l6th day of July, 1931,
speaking in the Senate, he made this statement:

iNow, honourable members of the Senate, in concluding that state-
ment my attorney said there was another place where I could be examined
if my colleagues saw fit. I earnestly ask that a special committee of the
Senate be appointed at once ta investigate my interest in, and my con-
nection with the Beauharnois Power Company, and I assure the Senate
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that 1 will f acilitate in every way the bringing before the cornrittee of
any material it may require, to substantiate anything 1 have said; also
that 1 will put before it the facts concerning rny interest, as to how and
when it was acquired, and as to rny connection with that cornpany from
its inception to the present time.

1 took it that counsel for Senator McDougald would implement the statement
he made.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: That staternent was made in July, 1931. Since then
Senator McDougaid did give evidence, and that is a fact that has to be borne
in mind. lis evidence covers hundreds of pages of the report. This evidence
has been brought before the Committee as an exhibit. When Senator McDougald
said he was willing, and not only wiliing but eager, to, place the facts before
a special committee of the Senate, should such a committee be appointed, the
Senator does not wish to change his attitude at ail, and this morning I simply
reiterate on his behaîf what he has already stated.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, Mr. Cannon, 1 do not know what the views of my
colleagues of the Committee are, but as 1 see the matter we are now at the
stage when the Committee is ready to hear from your client, the Senator or
any wîtnesses whom you want to hring before us.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: With ail due respect, Mr. Chairman, I have my doubts
as to that, because my learned friends have not stated to the Committee what
stage they have reached.

The CHAIRMAN: I arn saying it; I do not know whether you believe it
or not.

Hon. Mr. CA-,NON: Oh, 1 believe every word you say.
The CHAIRMAN: The counsel for the Cornmittee have informed us that

they have no other witnesses to bring before us.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I do not think they make that statement.
The CH-AIRMAN: I said, on hehaîf of the Committee, some days ago that

if you desired time for the purpose of bringing witnesses here you 'would have
that time.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I can take it for granted.
The CHAIRMAN: If you do not want to proceed to-day very good. The

Cornmittee is not going to force you to proceed; but as I understand it, we
have now arrived at the time when we are to hear what your clients have to say.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: That is not my understanding of what my learned
friends said. When they make that stateinent I will agree with you, Mr.
Chairman, but they have not.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not quite understand what you mean. You know
what we are here for, and yoti know why we are here.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: If my learned friends will agree with the statement
of the Chairman-if my learned friends wiil concur in what you, Mr. Chairman,
have said, I have nothing further to say.

Hon. Mr. MCMx.&NS: Mr. Cannon, eouid you not be candjd with us, and
let us know-

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I wiil try to be.
Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: Will you let us know whether you are going to caîl

Senator McDougald or not?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I wiil cail hirn if it is necessary.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: We are sitting here and want to know whether you

are going to cail hirn or flot.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Will my learned friend answer the question-will you

have further witnesses to eall?
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Mr. SmiTH: I have said 1 have no further witnesses, reserving the right to
eall those gentlemen if you do not do so.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Why don't you cali themn now?
Mr. SMITH: I ask you to implement this, if you will-

I will put before it the facts concerning my interest, as to how and
when it was acquired, and as to rny conntection with that company frorn
its inception to the present tirne.

Do you intend to live up to that undertaking that was given by your client to
the Senate, or do you not? Then I wiIl know what to do.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Mr. Chairman, I refuse to be cross-examined by rny
learned friend in that way. The point that I put before the Committee is
simple; and in answer to Senator MeMeans I do not wish to appear as not being
candid in any way. Senator McDougald is here before the Committee, at your
entire disposai. If Mr. Smith or Mr. Mann wish to examine him they can do so right
now. If they do not wish to do that, before I decide whether I wiil examine
Senator McDougald or not J wouid like my learned frîends to point out to the
Committee what is material and what is not materiai in this bulkv evidence, so
that I wili know what I have got to examine my client upon.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, but the Committee is not going to eall on counsel
now for addresses. We- have the evidence. The Comrnittee is going to consider
that evidence. We are not trying this case. We are not delivering a final
judgrnent. We are here to hear the evidence and report to the Senate that
evidencc, the facts. Any final dealing with the matter is entirelv beyond us.
It is the Senate fhat. muist deal with it; therefore there is no advantage to
anybody for us to have speeches at, any stage.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I arn not referring to speeches. I state that Senator
McDougald is at your disposai. If my learned friends desire to examine him
they may do so. If tiiey decide not to, before I decide what I shouid do 1
'vould. like to have from, my friends some kind of information as to what they
consider materiai for the work of this Committee in the mass of evidence that,
was given last year, so that 've can kznow in sonie way what to do and what line
of examination I should follow if Senate4r McDongald is to take the stand. I
think this is very reasona bic.

The CHAIRMAN: You are not insisting on that?
Mr. MANN: I arn going to ask my fricnd, and insist on it. What I said at

the beginning of this inquiry and what I intended to convey was that in the
biuebook which is before you tiiere wvas a lot of evidence which would he
irrelevant here. For the benefit of my friend, in order that the matter that is
shrouded in mystery may be cleared up, I may say here that the engineering
problem, that the mechanicai and physical matters of the Beauharnois projeet
wcre irrelevant here. That is not what we were to inquire into, whcther it was
a proper mechanicai or physical operation, but we were te inquire into the
evidence which is appended, in that sense, that xas takçen before the Commons
Committee at the iast session. That is what I meant by relevant matter here;
and in order that my friend may be in no way prcjudîced I say now that I do
not consider relevant the subject of how many thousand feet may flow through
the St. Lawrence river, or whether it was proper to put the canal some other
place. Those are matters that are entirely irrelevant to this inquiry. The
inquiry is simpiy within the four corners of the order. If my friend wishes to
sit up nights and study the engineering prohiem, tliat is something for which
I amn not responsible.

The CHAIRMAN: Do I understand. Mr. Cannon, now definiteiy and
positively and cleariy, that you are not going to ask Senater McDougaid to go
into thýý box and be sworn?
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Hon. Mr. Copp: Before Mr. Cannon answers 's'at question would you
pardon me, Mr. Chairman?

The CHAHÎMAN: I just want to know.
Hon. Mr. Copp: 1 would ask at Ibis stage if there is not some misunder-

standing about it. I undcrstood at the beo--inniinga that Messrs. Mann and Smith
were retained, with the approval of the Committc, to assist the Committee in
carrying on this investigation.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Copp: And I think there wvas a motion by Senator Béique that

týhey were to represent the people, as the Attorney General, to get this evidence.
Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE,: That wvas the understandingu.
Hon. Mr. Copp: That being so at the beginning, the idea was that they

were to go on and bring out before the Committee ail the facts they had to
lay before the Committee and the public in this investigation, with regard bo
the transactions that we are considering connected with the Beauharnois, as
f ar as Beauharnois bad to do in this report with the three senators named.
Now, it does s"em to me that the counsel acting for the Committee should be
in a position to say whether or not tbey have concluded their case, and con-
cluded the giving and supplying of evidence here in regard to the matter. If
they do so, and bave corne to a conclusion, then it does seem to me for the
senators, representcd by counsel, to say wbether or not they desire to take tbc
stand on their own bebalf. If they do not do that, then I think the counsel
for the Committee sbould say whether they are through witb their case or not.
That is my idea in regard to it.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Quite reasonable.
Mr. SMITHI: We have tried from. the outset to act in the manner suggested

by Senator Copp in connection with this matter, and I arn anxious that you
should know that we have no jockeying for position, or anything of that sort.
I have said to the Committee that we have no evidence to offer save wbat
may be given by the honourable gentlemen; that I inbended to examine them
if their counsel did not sce fit bbemselves to do so. If Mr. Cannon can
immediately say that he is not going to do it, I may immediately cail the
senators.

Hon. Mr. Copp: The only difference is, that you acting for the Committee,
if you wanb to eall Senator McDougald, can call him, or Senator Haydon.

Mr. SMITH: I take it as a mabter of *courtesy, or even propriety, in vicw
of wbat we bad a moment ago, that Senator McDougald would give bis evidence
in bis own way. I would bave thought so.

Hon. Mr. Com'p: I do not want to argue with you, Mr. Smith, in favour
of Senator McDougald. Wbat I say is that if you, as representing the people,
want to caîl Mr. McDougald, you can cail bim.

Mr. SMITH: I bave said ail I can.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: As I understand this matter, it is referred to a special

committee to consider a certain report made by the House of Commons. The
Committee was appoinbed for the purpose of giving those gentlemen evcry
opportunîty to off er any explanation that tbey may see fit. Now we are bere,
and I see no reason why those gentlemen named sbould not take advantage of
the considerabion given tbem. by the Senate, and make any explanation they
desire.

Hon. Mr. Coip: The only thing in which I differ with Senator McDougald
is whether he should or should not; I arn not arguing whether bhe senators should
or should not give evidence; that is for the senators to say for themselves.
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Hon. Mr. McMEANs: The Committee was formed for the purpose, and the
reference was made for the purpose, so that those gentlemen could not be con-
demned .without being heard themselves. There was a resolution of the Senate
that no member of the Senate could be condemned unheard. Now, when the
report came down from the House of Commons casting very serious reflections
on those three g'entlemen the Senate said, "They must be heard; we will create
a special committee and give them every opportunity of appearin'g before it."
That is the view I have taken of it right along, and now we have reached the
stage where these gentlemen have the opportunity of coming before it and
giving their explanation, or evidence, or whatever it is.

Hon. Mr. Cop: I take the ground that it is not a question of condemnation
at the present time, or anything else; it is a question of the evidence given by
the senators.

The CHAiRMAN: Referring to what Senator McMeans has just mentioned,
when the House of Commons report came down to the senate it was considered
by the Senate, and at the last session of the Senate it unanimously passed a
resolution, which I have in my hand. I am not giving the Committee all of it,
but there was this paragraph in it:-

And whereas this honourable House has been deeply perturbed by
the condemnation levelled by the said report against certain senators and
is keenly conscious of its duty to act in the matter, fully and without
delay:

And whereas imminent prorogation precludes immediate action by
the Senate, as it is the constitutional right of a senator to be heard by
his colleagues in his own defence before any punitive or other action be
taken:

And whereas the constitution does not permit of effective penalties

being applied to the senators implicated should they fail to justify them-
selves, as under the British North America Act a member of the Senate

may be disqualified from sitting in Parliament only upon one of the
following grounds:-

(a) lack of property qualification;
(b) failure to reside in the Province which he represents;
(c) bankruptcy;
(d) conviction of treason, felony or any infamous crime.

.Therefore be it resolved that in the opinion of this House:-

(1) A special committee of the Senate should be appointed
within the first week of the next session of Parliament to deal with
the conduct and actions of the senators above referred to, as set out
in the said report;

The CHAIRMAN: Now, that is the basis upon which this Committee was

appointed-for the purpose of hearing what the senators referred to in that

report have to say, if they have anything to say; and that is what we are here
for. Now, I was asking Mr. Cannon whether or not he desires any witnesses
to be heard; whether or not he proposes to ask Senator McDougald to be sworn

and give evidence now or at a later date. If a postponement is desired, I am
sure the Committee will consider that.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Mr. Chairman, I wish to say that my client appreciates
everything which bas been done by this Committee by way of facilitating, so
to speak, his explanation, and so does his counsel. We appreciate that to the
fullest extent. Now I am given to understand, by the discussion that took place,
that my friends have now put before the Committee what they consider as the
evidence that could help the Cmmittee in reaching a conclusion; and my
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learned friend, Mr. Smith, says that as far as the senators are concerned-I
am speaking for Senator McDougald-that he thought the senators themselves
would offer any explanation they had to offer, or lay whatever facts they con-
sidered should be laid before the Committee themselves. He says he does that
in courtesy. I appreciate that. I am sure, Mr. Chairman, that Senator
McDougald will put certain facts before the Committee. How it should be
done I am not prepared to state now, or what those facts are. As I said, I
did not expect my learned friends to close this morning as they have, so I may
state now that we will offer some explanation or put some facts before the
Committee, or maybe call some witnesses. Now, Mr. Chairman, if it is agreeable
to the Committee I think that counsel for the public and counsel for the senators
might arrange between themselves how it could be done in the easiest way
possible, so as not to inconvenience the members of the Committee.

The CHAIRMAN: When would you be ready?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Immediately. I do not know how the proceedings

would be if we would deal first with Senator Haydon; I do not know anything
about Senator Raymond.

Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: Have you something to say on behalf of Senator
Raymond, Mr. Vien?

Mr. VIEN: Mr. Chairman, I want to make it abundantly clear that the
position of Senator Raymond is exactly as it was stated at the opening of the
proceedings of this Committee. I would like, first, to dispel the impression which
may be derived from remarks of some honourable senators, members of this
Committee, that there is against Senator Raymond any charge, censure,
reprimand or accusation of any kind. I am unable to find anything of the
kind in the report of the Committee of the House of Commons to that effect.

Hon. Mr. McMEANS: Is the honourable gentleman making a speech now?
Mr. VIEN: No, I am simply stating the position of Hon. Senator Raymond,

that he does not feel that he is now under a cloud or under an accusation. There
has been no charge, no censure or any reprimand against him. There was a
mild remark or reflection to the effect that in the minds of some of the honour-
able gentlemen who composed the Committee of the House of Commons, the
report of which is now before you in this bluebook, a lingering impression that
he perhaps may not have deserved to the full the commendation which the
Committee has offered him for his frankness. Well, I repeat that the position
that we take at this present stage is that we believe that Senator Raymond's
case is developed to the full.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not want to interrupt you, but I do not think we
need to hear a speech like that just now. The question with us is this: Is
Senator Raymond going to make any more statements, or not? Are you
going to put him in the box?

Mr. VIEN: I was trying to explain the position.
The CHAIRMAN: We understand all that.
Mr. VIEN: I want to tell the Committee that Senator Raymond considers

that all that he has to offer to the Committee is contained in his evidence before
the Committee-contained in the bluebook and in the statement which he made
at the opening of this Committee on his honour as a senator. He is ready, if
the Committee so desires, to implement his statement under oath, but he believes
that he has given to the Committee everything that he can offer by way of
information to help the Committee to discharge its duty.

The CHAIRMAN: You understand, Mr. Vien, that all this Committee can
report to the Senate is evidence under oath. That is the order to us. We took
Senator Raymond's statement, but it is distinctly marked on the record, you will
observe, as not being sworn.
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Mr. VIEN: Exactly.
The CHAIRMAN: It is nothing but a statement.
Mr. VIEN: The senator would then like, if that is the expression of the

Committee, to state that lie is willing to declare under oath, and he desires to
declare under oath, ail the facts that he bas mentioned in his statement which
wvas read to the Committee.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: H1e hias got to be examined as a witness, not to, swear
that the statement is true; he has to be subject to examination.

Hon. Senator DONAT RAYMOND was cal]ed as a witness, and, having been
luly sworn, testified as follows:

Mr. VIEN: 1 think it would expedite the work of the Committee if the state-
ment which is already on record would be sworn holus-bolus. If not, the senator
wvill now read. under oath, the statement which is now already on record. It
would be, to my mind, childish and futile.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Mr. Vien, I would like you ta be straightened up
in this matter. When you ask for that statement to be read, explain to this
Committee that it was sirnply a matter of correcting some inaccuracy, and you
thought by putting in the statement that you would save this Committee a
great deal of time, and the counsel a great deal of time by doîng that.

Mr. VIEN: The position is the same.

By Mr. Vien:
QSenator Raymond, at the beginning of this inquiry you read into the

record of this Committee a statement correcting certain inaccuracieýs which you
considered to be contained in the report of the Committee of the flouse of Com-
monts now before the Committee in the f orm of this bluebook?-A. Yes.

Q. Are the f acts and the staternents that you have made true?-A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. BýiQLir: Refer to the statemnent which was made.

By Mr.. Vien:
Q. I find your statement in pamphlet No. 3 of the proceedings of this

Committee on the 3rd of March, at pages 33, 34 and 35. I arn handing you a
copy of the proceedings of this Committee, pages 33, 34 and 35.-A. Is it your
wish that I should read the whole thing?

The CHAIIIMAN: No.

By Mr. Vien:
Q. Will you please state under oath whether the statement made at that

time by you, and reported as I have just indicated, contains the truth?-A. It
does.

Q. Have you any further remarks to make to the Comrnittee to explain the
position as you see it?-A. None whatever.

Mr. VIEN: That is alI I have to ask the sena.tor.
The CHAIRMAN: Do you want to ask the senator any questions, Mr. Mann

or Mr. Smith?
Mr. SMITH: I do, sir. As a matter of fact, I have not brought my notes

with me with respect to questions that I intend to ask Senator Raymond, but I
can get them shortly. I was under the impression that I perhaps would be
asking some questions of Hon. Mr. Cannon's client, before I would be questioning
Senator Raymond.
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Mr. ViEN: 1 can state that Senator Rayrnond wilI be available at the
convenience of the Cornrittee at any time.

Mr. SmrrH: 1 would be very glad to ask those questions irnrediately after
lunch, Mr. Chairman. And Mr. Cannon wants to see me, so I think it would
be an appropriate time to have a discussion with him now. 1 amn sure I could
shorten the examination of Senator Raymond if I had my notes.

The Committee adjourned tili 3 p.m.

The Cornrittee resurned at three o'clock p.rn.

Hon. SENAToR DONAT RAYMOND was recailed as a witness, and testified as
follows:

The CLERK 0F THE COMMITTEE: You are stili under oath, Senator.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Senator Rayrnond, when were you sumrnoned to the Senate?-A.

December, 1926.
Q. When were you first interested in what has corne to be known as Beau-

harnois project?-A. On the lst of April, 1927.
Q. I believe that was on a subscription for 800 part interests?-A. Right.
Q. That subseription was made through whom?-A. Crédit National

Canadien.
Q. And I believe you were awarded those 800 part interests in what is

known as the first Syndicate?-A. Exactly.
Q. You later converted those 800 part interests for 1,600 part interests in

t.he second Syndicate?-A. Exactly.
Q. And then you subscribed, as you were entitied to, for 1,600 rnore?-A.

Exactly.
Q. What did you pay for the first 800 part interests, that is in the first

Syndicate?-A. $30,000.
Q. And what did you pay for the 1,600 part interests in the second Syndi-

cate?-A. $160,000.
Q. So that you had a total investrnent of $190,000 in the Beauharnois pro-

ject?-A. Exactly.
Q. About what tirne did you subscribe for the second 1,600?-A. I cann:)t

recali just now, i)ut at the same tirne as the others. I had the privilege to sub-
scribe.

Q. It would be early in 1928, in rny opinion?-A. Eariy in 1928.
Q. The 26th of March, I believe--carly in 1928? A. Yes.
Q. You then were in the position of having an investment or a commitment

of $190,000 in this Syndicate?-A. Yes.
Q. What interests did you take in Ît?-A. In what way?
Q. I mean, were you active in any way?-A. Not at ail.
Q. What advice did you have to invest ail this very considerable amount

of rnoney?-A. I was asked to join at the beginning by Mr. Joncs, which I did
at that tirne, and it was only for $30,000.

Q. Then you increased the $30,000 by $160,000?-A. Exactiy.
Q. What considerations rnoved you to do that?-A. That was our privilege,

and I had the privilege to subscribe to it. and I took advantage of it.
Q. Why did you? What reason had you to spend that rnuch rnoney?--A

Why did I? Because I had confidence in the project.
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Q. Then you did have some considerable knowledge of this project?-A.
I had some.

QI believe you are native to the section where it was projected?-A. Yes.

Q.1 want ta know what moved you ta spend this comparatively large sum

of money?-A. None whatever.
Q. And what enquiries did vou make as to the prospect of your money

returning you more money-makiing a profit?-A. What enquiries? I did not

make any more enquiries except I accepted Mr. Geoffrian's and sometimes Mr.

Jones' reports as ta the progress in their domains.
Q. You learned. then, of course, that this Syndicate was seeking from the

Province of Quebec an amendment ta the charter of the Beauharnois Light, Ileat

and Power Company Limited?-A. I knew something about that.

Q. You also knew when they had reached an arrangement with the Province

of Quebec, they obtained a lease; that lease was conditional on getting the

approval of the Governor General in Council in Canada within one year under

the Navigable Waters Protection Act?-A. Oh, 1 did not know it had to be

made within one year, but I knew it had to be something in Ottawa.

Q. But you knew the grant from Quehec was valueless without the approval

of the Dominion Government?-A. iExactly.
Q. And with that knowledge y.ou saw fit ta invest $190,000, or ta, commit

yourself to invest $190,000 with that knowledge at that time?-A. Exactly.
Q. You also knew the gentlemen who were connected with the projett, the

individuals who were associated with you in the first Syndicate?-A. I did. I

don't know whether I knew them all, but I knew that Mr. Jones and Mr. Sweezey
were interested in it.

Q. iDid you know at the price you paid for yaur first 800 part interests

works out at $37.50 per part interest-that you were one of the three persans,
and three persons only, who obtained shares at that price?-A. I didn't know
anything about it.

Q. You have since learned that ta be true?-A. Exactly.
Q. I believe your introduction ta the concern came through Mr. Jones?--

A. Exactly.
Q. You have since learned that he is one of those persans wha bought nt

that price?-A. Yes.
Q. That the other was a Mr. Moyer, whose shares ultimately turned up in

the hands of Senator McDougald?-A. I didn't know anything about it.
Q. You have learned that since?-A. I have learned tbat since.

Q. Can you give me any reason why you should be permitted ta purchase

at a lower price than other subqcribers?-A. No. They asked me if I would

subscribe-Mr. Joncs asked me if I would subseribe ta it. I agreed, and they
made the price; I did not make the price.

Q. Did he mention the numnber of part interests for wbich he wished yau

ta subscribe?-A. 1 want ta, correct myseif. In reading over this afternoon

I noticed that 1 said I did not know what interest Mr. Jones bad. Mr. Joncs

and Mitchell, bath of them, 1 did not know what interest they bath had, but

1 know what interest Mr. Joncs had, because he asked me how much I wanted

ta subseribe. He said, " Will you be interested as much as I am in that Syn-

dicate?" I said, " Very well, and how much will that be?" And he said,
"800 units, $30,000."

Q. No doubt he told vau at that time that it was the intention af this

Syndicate ta develap the whole of the St. Lawrence at that time?-A. I don't
know.

Q. Surely you are not putting $190,000 in a power projeet unless you
gathered some idea of the extent of that project?-A. 1 neyer thought for a

moment that 1 was an expert on power, and whatever information I did not

know I would ask, except that 1 knew it was close ta Mantreal, and he was a

man of vision, and he asked me if 1 would go along with him, and I said yes.
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Q. Then arn I correct in saying that your present statement is that .at the
time you put up your $30,000 or agreed to pay it, that you did not know the
extent of the project to which you were subscribing?-A. Yes.

Q. You did not know how much of the river they intended to use?-A. No.
Q. You did not know what power they intended to develop?-A. They

expected to develop about 500.000 horsepower.
Q. Who told you that?-A. Jones.
Q. Then he would at least tell you that at the time you made this sub-

scription?-A. I think so.
Q. Now, I want to know if you had any view as to who had the control

of this hydraulie power-the province or the Dominion of Canada?-A. 1 was
always under the impression that it was Quebec, and I don't know at what
stage, but he told me, "Ail we need to take from Ottawa is whether it is for
navigation or not, and our engineer says no."

Q. And who did you consuit to form an opinion that this was the property
of the Province of Quebec?-A. Our solicitor.

Q. Who was that?-A. Mr. Geoffrion.
Q. And you know of references made to the Stipreme Court of Canada, I

suppose, in respect of that?-A. Yes.
Q. 1 won't ask you what Mr. Geoffrion told you aboutthat-I think you

told us that the other day-but you were one of those persons who from the
first were under the impression that those rights belonged to the province?-
A. Exactly.

Q. You were also aware that navigation belonged exclusively to the Do-
minion?-A. Yes.

Q. Or did you worry about it? Did you think about it?-A. No.
Q. Then I want to know if at the time you made this subscription, you

were concerned about who owned the water rights at that time?-A. I under-
stood that they had bought the Robert rights.

Q. And it w as on the Robert rights,, then, w hatever they were, tlîat moved
you to subserihe to this concern?--A. Exactly.

Q. And you have since learned, of course, that the Robert rights were
pre-Confederation rights; then were you concerned at the time about the owner-
ship of the rights between the province and the Dominion?-A. I was not.

Q. Now, having made this investment, what inquiries did you make as to
the progress of the concern in whieh you had invested?-A. I don't know that
I made any in 1927, because I understood they had to go to the legisiature in
Quebec early in 1928.

Q. You know that they did apply to the Dominion Government in 1927,
in March?-A. I don't know.

Q. Have you learned that since?-A. No.
Q. They applied againi in January, 1928?-A. To Ottawa?
Q. Yes?-A. 1 did not know. I neyer took any part on deliberation in the

Syndicate or the Company. I was neyer in the Company, and in the Syndicate
I neyer took any part in the deliberation.

Q. Why didn't you?-A. Because my naie did not appear first, and I
neyer took any part in the deliberation.

Q. Stili, you have an investment of $190,000?-A. But it was later.
Q. You had a commitment to pay $190,000 in Mardi, 1928?-A. In 1928,

ye.Q. And from that time on did you make any enquiries as to the progress
of this concern?-A. I knew that the thing had gone through in Quebec.

Q. Did you know that they had applied in Ottawa?-A. I knew they had
to get some permission in Ottawa, whether it interfered with navigation.

Q. You kncw that they had to get an Order in Council, and subsequently
one was passed?-A. WeIl, I was not interested in that.

4826-11
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Q. What were you interested in? Yau had an interest of $190,000 in
money, and 1 want ta know how that reflected itself in your activitioe in the
concern?-A. None whatever. I may say, to simplif y the thing, that in Ottawa,
if I remember right, it was not tili the fali of 1928 and 1929, that in July, 1928,
I had no more money at stake in the Beauharnois Syndicate; and the manth
after 1 had no money at stake-I was ten thousand on the good side-100 units
so that would be sufficient lest I should worry about the outcorne of the Beau-
harnais resuits.

Q. You mean after you had sold out?-A. After 1 had sold out in July,
1928.

Q. After you had sold out you had no great concern in the Beauharnois,
resuits ?-A. Exactly.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: May I suggest that for greater clarity it might be well
to ask the senator what hie means when hie says hie sold out; hie did not seli ail.

The WrrNEss: No, I sold 2,000 shares at $100 each, that makes $200,000.
Well, my investment was $190,000, so I was $10,000 to the good, besides retain-
ing 1,200 shares part interests in the Syndicate.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. In other words you had got your money back and you stili had the

major portion of your interests?-A. Not the major, but I had a part, 1 had
1,200 of part interests.

Q. You did not then concern yourself with the progress of the scheme?-
A. Not at ail.

Q. Mr. Jones has said that he saw you repeatedly in Ottawa in 1928, and
asked you-

Mr. VIEN: I think my Iearned friend will flnd that Mr. Jones bas not
stated deflnitely that he has seen the senator in Ottawa. He stated that he
had seen the senator, but I do nat believe it was in Ottawa.

The CHAiRmAN: I do nat think, Mr. Vien, really, that you need interrupt
him. He is treating the witness very fairly.

Mr. VIEN: Mr. Chairman, I arn sure that I hope I am not interrupting
as meaning that Mr. Smith is not treating the witness very fairly; hie is, I arn
convinced, but I think it is better to correct some inaccuracies of fact which
are unintentianal than to let those go on record incorrectly, for the greater
comprehension of the record. I do not want to interfere unduly.

Mr. SMITH: I will leave out the word Ottawa; it is immaterial ta me;
Mr. Jones said this, on page 391-be had been asked as to what hie was doing
to further his project, then the word "assisted" was used, and counsel for the
Committee said this, " It is a common English word," and Jones replied, " WeIl,
my answer is that anybady who took an interest in it and who listened and
got his view as ta who owned the water, gave us their opinions by way of
assistance, otherwise direct assistance, nobody that I know of." Then hie says,
"I certainly asked Senator Raymond over and over again if hie could not do
something to get some action."

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Now, did hie do that?
Mr. VIEN: Will you finish the thing?
Mr. SMITH (reading): "-Now, I think I should perhaps mention I thought

that perhaps the Premier was waiting for this assistance of the reference case
to the Supreme Court."

The WITNESS: Jones asked me, but the fact that hie said over and over
again means that 1 had not done very much in the matter of helping him.
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By Mr. Smith:
Q.But did Mr. Jones over and over again ask you if you could not get

some action-and of course that action was at Ottawa at that time, wasn't it?
-A. I couldn't say.

Q. But you are sure of that-Jones was here in 1928 very often?-A. No
doubt lie did ask me, but I have not, done anything.

Q. You were in the Syndicate?-A. I could not do anything. I amn not
an engineer, and if it is a matter of engineering concern, whether it will interfere
with navigation or not-

Q. Senator iRaymond, you are not suggesting for a moment that Mr. Jones
would be asking a request of you as an engineer to be doing something, because
you are not an engineer, and lie knew that; no doubt about that?-A. No doubt
about that.

Q. So I think we can eliminate any other such request of Jones to you;
then what assistance was lie asking you f or?-A. I don't know that lie men-
tioned anything emphatically.

Q. He says lie saw you over and over again-" I certainly asked Senator
Raymond over and over again if lie could not do somnething to get some action."
Now, what were those conversations?-A. Hie asked me if I could do some-
thing, and I told him no-I presumne so.

Q. Then lie asked you again if you could do something, and you told him
no?-A. I again told him no.

Q. H1e was very persistent, apparently?-A. Yes, and I was the same,
persistent in saying I could not do anything.

Q. You constantly, through your associate, Mr. Jones, said no; did you
give hlm any reason?-A. No.

Q. H1e is an able business man, is he not, Mr. Raymond?-A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Do you know him personally?
Mýr, SmiTH: No, I do not know him, but I understand lie is able and

persistent.
Mr. MANN: And Scotch.

By Mr. Smnith:
Q Perhaps the measure of his persistence and intelligence is that lie con-

tinued to ask you to do something, and you merely said no?-A. I could not
do anything.

Q.Cannot you remember any more of lis conversations?--A. No.
Q.You remember nothing more than that; if you could not assist on the

engineering side, on wliat side miglit you have been of assistance?-A. I don't
know of any.

Q.What Government was in power at that time?-A. Liberal.
Q.That would be the late Government of Riglit Hon. Mackenzie King;

that was the Government that was in power at that time?-A. Yes.
Q. And I suppose with some prîde you can say you belong to the same

political persuasion?-A. I do.
Q. And, being of tliat persuasion, can you suggest to me that you would

have no influence here in the Government?-A. I don't think 1 lad, I arn sure
1 lad none.

Q. You must have had some ýbefore you were summoned, but we will not
go into that; but surely you would have some influence in Ottawa, wouldn't
you?-A. None whatever. If I did 1 neyer tried to udse it.

Q. That may be better, but surely you had some?-A. I don't know that
I lad. I neyer tried it.

Q. Jones thought you lad some?-A. Hie migît.
48236-11 à
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Q. H1e dîd, didn't lbc? Otberwise why would he be asking you those fooiish
questions?-A. H1e might.

Q. You made a good deal of money from this investment? $400,000 and
odd, and 351 part interests subsequently became, I think, 14,000 odd shares?-A.
14,b00 common sbares.

Q. And that is your net profit?-A. Ycs.
Q. And the success of this projeot, as you have told me, among other tbings,

perbaps, was dependent on the consent to lie gained from tbe Governor in Council
of the Dominion of Canada; that is true?-A. Yes.

Q. Now I want to put this to you; remember, I am flot sitting in judgment
for a moment, because I find the longer I stay in Ottawa the less I know about
the things I did think I knew; but there was a syndicate here wbose object was
to make some money by diversion of wrater ir.to St. Lawrcnce; you went in to,
make money?-A. Naturally.

Q. So did Jones, and 1 gather everybody else did the same; now, I want you
to assume for the moment that that syndicate, instead of being composed of Mr.
Sweezey and bis associates, was comnposed exclusively of the 96 senators of the
Dominion of Canada; do you follow me?-A. Yes.

Q. And that syndicate, then composed of those M6 senators, obtained this
consent from the Dominion Government, and subsequently financed their project
to the Canadian public, as the Beaubarnois--you follow me?-A. Yes.

Q. 27,000,000 bonds went to the public;, would you think that you, as a
senator, and under those c'rcumstances, would lie justified in making a profit-
or the profits that you did?-A. Certainly, I neyer thouglt-

Mr. VIEN: I am asking the Committee if this is a fair question. I do not
tbink it is, and I respectfully submit that it is not.

The CHAIRMAN: I do not sec anyt.hing unfair about it.
Mr. SMITH: Wby not?
Mr. VIEN: That is an assumption of three facts.
The CHIRMAN: Hie is only asking bis olpinion.
Mr. TiEN: It is a highlv hypothetical question whicb, I respectfully submit

to the Committee, bas no bearing on tbe niatters wbich the Committec is
investigating.

The CHAIRMAN: That remains to bie seen, Mr. Vien. We are not settlîng
tbat bere.

Mr. SmiTH: I miglit explain myseîf the reason I bave for asking tbe ques-
tion. It seems to me, Mr. Cliairman, that your Committee is here to, consider
matters affectina tbe bonour and dignitv of the Senate; and it does scem to me
that if I advance an illustration, as I bave, takîng ail the senators and substitut-
ing thcm for tbe syndicate or ai those other people, wboever tbey were, tbat the
view on tbat of one of tbe bonourable gentlemen whose name bas been called in
question, is exceedingly pertinent, in my judgment. However, I await your
ruling.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Do you not tbink, Mr. Smitb, tbat you are
predicating your question on an impossible situation, an unthinkable situation?

Mr. SMITH: My view would bie that it would bie unthinkable, I quite agree.
Tbe CHAIRMAN: Go on.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. 1 gather that you are to answer me, if you will, Senator.-A. If I under-

stand your question, you want to see whether if as a senator I interested myself
in the question of wbetber it depended altogether upon Ottawa for the success of
tbe enterprise. Is tbat wbat you asked me? I want to say tbat as far as the



BEAUHARNOIS POWER PROJECT

Beauharnois is concerned, right from the beginning 1 did not think that Ottawa
Iiad anything to do with it, and 1 was led to helieve that by our counsel, Mr.
Geoffrion, that as far as Ottawa was concerned they had to say yes, to grant it,
if it did not interfere with navigation; and if it did interfere with navigation
they had no alternative, they had to say no. So 1 neyer thought that Ottawa
had anything to do with the development of any power in the province of
Quebec.

Q. If it deveiops that in fact Ottawa does own hydraulie power--because in
my judgment the thing is verv far from being settied yet--

Hlon. Mr. CANNON: Luckily for the iawyers.
Mr. SMITH: What thc Supremne Court did w'as just hand it back again.
The WITNESS: 1 cannot say I have been wrong untîl they have decidcd.

But my opinion was that they had nothing, to do with it.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. I have a great regard for Mr. Geoffrion's viewpoint, but I think the

matter is not settled.-A. I would be at a loss to know why wc could not take
our counsel's advicc.

Q. Are you just putting yoursclf in this position, that relyinýg solely on the
advice of Mr. Geoffrion you feit yourself justifjcd in going in?-A. Exactly.

Q. You told me that when you made your first investinent the question of
owncrship in the province of the Dominion was not a matter of concern?-A. I
was interested in that same project a]most twenty vears before.

Q. But you did say to me a moment ago-I ýlam very anxious not to mis-
quote you-I understood you to say a few moments ago quite cleariy, when I
was cxamining you with respect to your views as to whether it was a Dominion
or provincial ownership of this hydraulie power, 1 understood you to, say that
when you made your investment you were not concerned as to who owned.
I think you said that to me?-A. If I did-I was conccrncd, I aiways feit it
belonged to, the province of Quebec.

Q. And I think you did not make any inquiry, at the time you made your
first invcstment, of Mr. Geoffrion? That was later, was it not?-A. No, I
think we had then the opinion of Mr. Geoffrion that it was only a matter of
Quebec.

Q. Did you? I am speaking of the time that Mr. Joncs induced you to
put up your money.-A. I think I did.

Q. I beg your pardon.-A. Mr. Jones mentioned to me.
Q. Mr. Jones mentioned to you that Mr. Geoffrion was of the opinion that

it was a matter of the province of Qucbcc?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, you had many communications and interviews with Mr. Geoffrion.

I have Exhibit 114 here and I have counted up and find you had, I think,
twenty telephones and communications with him-I mean by telephone or in
person, you understand, in connection withi Beauhiarnois, because it is his bill
with respect to Beauharnois. I have no intention of going into this in any
detail at ail. Probably you cannot remember them; onc's memory, perhaps,
cannot do that. But I suggcst them to you to show that you were taking a very
active interest in the progrcss of Beauharnois.-A. I think I have already
declared that in the spring of 1928 I was not in Canada, but I passed through
and naturally I would call up Mr. Geoffrion to find out as to progress.

Q. Is that ail? A. You see, these are again in September, 1927.-A. 1
was in Montreal then.

Q. And thcy carry on through December, three occasions; January, 1928,
threc occasions; January again, five occasiorns; Fchruary, two occasions; April,
three occasions; and May, two occasions. Just a minute; I want to see whether
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those interviews were prior ta or after the emphyteutic lease. I understood
Mr. Geoffrion ta say that after that lie had a bill which indicated to hlm that
lie had been in communication with you. Would that be correct?-A. Yes.

Q.Wîth respect ta what?-A. With respect to the financing of the projeet.
Q.Did it have anything ta do with the passage of the Order in Council?

-A. Not at ail.
Q.Nothing at all?-A. No, sir.
Q.Your position then, sir, ta make it plain, is that you were simply taking

no interest in that matter at alI?-A. None at ail.
Q. Althougli it was samething in which yau had a very, very substantial

financial interest?-A. I would flot eall it very substantial.
Q. You mean eamparatively?-A. First $30,000, and then finally I was

$10,000 ta the good. I do not caîl that very substantial.
Q. At one time yau were cornmitted for $190,00O, which I-forgîve me

-thouglit was rather ýsubstantial. You did have those many dollars commîtted
ta this enterprise?-A. I waýs responsible.

Q. And your position is that even thougli that was sa, y0u were not interest-
ing yourself ta have that step taken without which there could be no success?-
A. 1 do not see what I could do in the matter. And I was neyer part of the
Syndicate.

Q. It neyer appeared in your name, you mean?-,&. No, I mean I was
neyer a director, and 1 was neyer in the campany.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Neyer a manager.

By Mfr. Smith:
Q. You were neyer a manager of the Syndicate? That is what yau mean?

-- A. Yes.
Q. Yau mean yau wouid nat know what ta do in order ta advance an

Order in Council?-A. Exactly.
Q. Yau would prabably lire Col. Thompson, Mr. Pugsley and Mr. Greene?

-A. I did nat know any of thase gentlemen either.
Q. Before yau had subscribed for anything, 1 observe by Mr. Geoffrion 's

bill lie had a number of interviews with yau. Your subscription was about the
lst of April, 1928, your first $30,OO?-A. lst of April, 1927.

Q. I think yau mean the 27th of Mardi, do yau not? The first Syndicate
dissolved on thc 4th of April.-A. 1928. My first subseriptian was on the lst

f April, 1927.
Q. Sa that yau had subscribed in April, 1927?-A. Yes.
Q. I want to, read you anc or two items from Exhibit 114, page 5. There is

an item of the 23rd January, " telephane ta Mr. Sweezey, interview with
Senator Raymond-" -A. What year was that?

Q. January, 1928. (Continues reading) "Interview with Senator Raymond;
further telephone ta Mr. Sweezey; a letter receîved from Mr. Cannon of the
23rd inst.; telephone from Senator Raymond; interview with Mr. Sweezcy;
telephone f rom Hon. Mr. Mitchell; interview with him; interview with Senatar
Raymond; letter received fram you enclosing copy of pleadings in Montreal
Trust v. Sweezey." And on the 25th of January: "Telephone ta and from thc
Han. Mr. Mitchell; telephone ta Senator Raymond, telephane ta Mr. Heward."
And an the 26th: "Telephone ta Mr. Mitchell; telephone ta Senatar Raymond;
telephone ta Mr. Heward."1 I have referred ta four days in which you were in
constant communication, and I was just wondering if fram the readings of those
ta you, you could recaîl the substances of thase conversation?-A. I think I
mentianed before in my evidence that I left Montreal on the l7th of December,
1927. I do not know exactly what date of thc month I came back ta attend
ta my duties in Ottawa, in January I presume. I miglit have been in Montreal
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f or a couple of days, two or three days-Il doubt that 1 was in Montreal more

than that time. 1 came at the opening of the Session and 1 went back to Florida

to attend my f amily, and 1 did not return until some time in April. So it was

natural for me to caîl up those gentlemen and find out what progress had been

made as far as our application was concerned.
Q. Then you were taking an interest in the passage of this application?-

A. Certainly.
Q. And it is only f air to say that you were probably taking a similar

interest in the passage of the application witb the Dominion Governrent?-

A. With my associates and no more, the same in Quebec as in Ottawa.

Q. That is your position, that you were active, but with your associates,

and that you did not influence any Cabinet minister?-A. Exactly, to flnd out

as to progress.
Q. But what 1 have in my mînd and what 1 understood you to frankly

admit is this, that you were very much interested in the passage of that Order

in Council, although anything you -did was a quite proper thing to do. That is

a surnrary of your proposition, isn't it?--A. I was interested in it but I neyer

made a move towards it.
Mr. SMITH: I tbink that is ail.

By the Chairman:

Q. I just want to be clear about a point or two, with regard to, your

evidence at page 793 of the proceedings of the flouse of Gominons Committee.

If I understand you, Senator Raymond, you said that your total profit out of

the transaction was $529,600?-A. I dîd not check it over.

Q. That is $476,950 plus the 350 units?-A. Plus 351 units, for which 1
received $150 per unit.

Q. That is totalled. into $529,600?-A. Exactly.
Q. That is ail profit?-A. All profit, plus 14,040 shares of common stock.

Q. Was that all profit in cash?-A. All profit in cash.

Q. Between what dates did that profit corne to you? 1 mean, can you

give us the date when you became a shareholder and the date when you got

the money? Over what period was that?-A. I subscribed in 1927, the lst of

April. In 1928, in July, I sold 2,000 part interests. 1 did n-ot corne into all

the money then, because I was taking my responsibility of paying, which I

think was $16,000 per month, or every two months, I do not recail.

Q. When was the whole profit earned by you?-A. The ten thousand was

to the good, because the 6,000 part interests, for which I subscrîbed, were

sold-
Q. What I just want to get, succinctly, is this: There was one date when

you went in and there was another date when you got out. Between those

two dates you got $529,600 profit?-A. That was when Mr. Jones and I sold

to Mr. Sweezey.
Q. When was that?-A. 1 do not recaîl. That was some time in September

or October, 1929.
Q. That is near enough. Now, where did that money corne from, that

profit?-A. Mr. Sweezey bought those interests.
Q. Did it corne ont of the public?-A. Not at aIl. There was no company

then.
Q. Was it dug out of the ground?-A. 1 have neyer asked him where hie

got his money.
Q. Was it the procecds of bonds sold to the public?-A. There were no

bonds sold then.
Q. Or securities sold?-A. There wvas no securities sold then; there was

no company, even.
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Q. Was the company making money, manufacturing it?-A. Well, ail Iknow is we gave the option to Mr. Sweezey for 6,900 shares at $550.Q. If you got $529,600 it came from some source. Can you tell me whereit came from, how the Syndicate came to get it?-A. We may ask Mr. Sweezey;
he may be able to tell us.

Q. You do not know?-A. I do not know.
Mr. SMITH: You see, sir, the company was not organized until December,

1929.
The CHAIRMAN: I know, but was there somebody delivering cartloads ofmoney to the Syndicate Vo be divided?
The WITN,'ESS: Sweezey was the man.
Riglit Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: They were flot particular where Mr. Sweezey

got it, so long as lie gave àitVo them.

By the Chairman:
Q.Ail you know is that you put in $190,000 and you took out a profit in

cash of $529,600?-A. Yes.
Q. And you do flot know where it came from?-A. Yes. I sold out to Mr.

Sweezey.
Mr. VImN: So far as we are concerned, Mr. Chairman, we have no other

witnes:s.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Has the Committee decided whether it will take upSenator Haydon's side of the case or Senator McDougald's at Vhis time? Weare at thc ýdisposai of the Committee.
The CHAIRMAN: We can decîide about taking &enators Haydon's evidencein a way that will be satisfactory. We shail have Vo go away from here to

take bis evidence. Are you ready, Mr. Cannon?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Woul-d it be more convenient if Senator McDougald

offercd bis cvidcnce now?
The CHAIRMAN: Yes.

Hon. Senator WiLFi L MeDOUGALD: Mr. Chairman, honourable gentle-
men,-

The ýCHAIRMAN: Are you going Vo be sworn?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I think that the senator will explain in a minute whatlie intends to do. I may summarize it by saying that first the senator wishes Vouse bis constitutîonal privilege as a senator to make a statement. Secondly,after that statement bas been made for the convenience of the Committee, liewill offer himself as a witness under oath.
The CHAIRMAN: What we would like Vo know is whether we are goinýg togeV a statement under oatb or not.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: He wilI be under oath afterwards.
Hon. Senator MCDOUGALD: Honourable gentlemen, following the suggestion

made Vhs morning by tîhe Honourable the Chairman of Vhis Committee, in orderVo assist this Committee in so far as I can in the investigation which it is nowmaking into the matters connected with the Beauharnois project,' I wish, as wasdone by the Honourable Mr. Raymond, to avail myself as a member of theSenate of my riglit to make a statement in more concise form than appears inmy evidence before the Special Committee of the House of Commons coveringthe matters personal Vo me in connection with the matter. Following this state-ment I will be glad Vo make same under oath and be examined in connectiontherewith in so far as any member of the Committee or its Counsel may consider
proper,
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(1) In the year 1923, or prior to my appointment to the National Advisory
Board or to the Senate, I had been connected with Mr. R. A. C. Henry and had
agreed to finance that gentleman to the extent of $10,000 in regard to possible
power developments. The Sterling Indu-strial Company Limited was incorporated
on the 5th of July, 1924, certain applications being filed with the Department
of Railways and Canals hy that Company on the 5th of July, 1924, and with
the Department of Public WVorks on the 7th of July, 1924. These applications
and the plans filed with them were for the diversion of water from Lake St.
Francis, on the south shore of the St. Lawrence River, and lay dormant until
the year 1928.

(2) 1 here desire to point out that the report of the Joint Board of Engin-
eers, which was adopted by the National Advisory Committee, favoured a
development on the north shore of the St. Lawrence. On the llth January,
1928, Vhis report was concurred in by a majority of the National Advisory
Committee, of whom 1 was one, having býeen appointed Vo this Committee on the
7th May, 1924. I had been sworn as a member of the Senate in January,
1927. In concurring, I gave no consideration wha.tever to any possible
rights that might have belonged to the Sterling Corporation by reason of its
applicati@ns. These rights were limited Vo the south shore, and it may here be
remarked that they were adversely affected hy the report in question, as a
development of power on the north shore would necessarily have precluded any
similar development on the south shore.

(3) The first Beauharnois Syndicate lad been dissolved on the 4th April,1928, and on the l8th May, 1928, 1 agreed to purchase the holdings of the late
Mr. Winficld Sifton in the second Syndicate, which tIen stood in the name of
Mr. Clare Moyer.

(4) The sale of the Sterling Company, which was effected on the 18th
of December, 1928, was concluded when I was in England, tbough it lad
previously been considered. It was an entirely f air and open transaction,
agreed to after full discussion, in whicî I took part. The evidence of Mr.
Sweezey, Mr. Griffith and Mr. White will corroborate this statement. At the
time of the transfer of the Sterling Company to the second Beauharnois
Syndicate, on the l8th of December, 1928, 1 was very largely interested in
this Syndicate, being the owner of 3,200 iinits. It is absurd to suggest that
holding sucli an interest I would be a party to anything detrimental to the
success of the enterprise. The sale of the Sterling assets was made in good
f aith, and in the event of the projeet not being a success, those who lad put
in their money were given a preferential ranking over those who held the
Sterling units. Examination of the Decd of Transfer of the lSth December,
1928, and of the evidence given before this Committee by Mr. Griffith will
make this fact abundantly clear. The Transfer was submitted to the Syndicate
Managers and approved by them.

(5) 1 will now briefiy refer to tIe statement made hy me to the Senate
on the lOtI April, 1928. As above explaincd, I had no interest whatever in
the Beauharnois Power Company or Syndicate until the iStI May, 1928, when
I acquired Vhe rights of tIe late Mr. Winfield Sifton. The charges of the
Globe in this respect were false. The charges of Vhe Mail and Empire with
regard to my motives as a member of the Advisory Committee were aiso,
unfounded as 1 have already explained. My statement to the Senate on the
19t1 April, 1928, was literally true and corret.

(6) Dealing with the statement made by me to the Senate on the 2Otli
of May, 1931, my purpose in making Vhis statement was to re-affirm the cor-
rectness of the one previously made by me on the l9th April, 1928, to the effeet
that at that time I had no înterest in the Beauiarnois Power Company or
Syndicate.
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As regards that portion of the second statement in which I declared that

"it was not until six months later in October, 1928, I took an interest in the

Beauharnois Syndicate," while it is true that the initial transaction was on the

18th of May, 1928, it was only on the 2nd of October, 1928, that I appointed

my own personal nominee, Mr. John Ebbs, to represent me in the matter.

Further it should be remembered that I was speaking in 1931 of events which

had taken place over three years before, and that there was no possible reason

for me to deceive the Senate as regards these dates. Nothing occurred between

the 18th May, 1928, and the 2nd October, 1928, to affect the matter in any way.

(7) I would here refer the Committee to Section 12 of the report which

is in the following terms:-
(12) That Senator McDougald was a factor in the success of this

venture is apparent from the Proceedings of the Special Committee of
the Senate above referred to, of which he was a member. It appears
that on the 31st of May, 1928, he was instrumental in having Mr.

Henry, then his partner in the Sterling Company, come before that
Committee and answer certain questions. These question had (see page
215 of the Proceedings) been prepared before hand by Senator Mc-
Dougald and submitted to Mr. Henry.

In the report of the Proceedings of the Special Committee appointed to enquire
into the development and improvenent of the St. Lawrence River, Messrs.

Harvie, Ferguson and Henry were examined and at page 141 of the proceed-

ings I stated:-
In all the deliberations of the National Board, of which I was a

member, I think you will agree that it was natural and fitting that I
should confer with the technical staff of the harbour on all questions
affecting the Harbour of Montreal; and in order to facilitate matters,
I have prepared a series of questions to be asked Mr. Harvie and Mr.

Ferguson. I submitted the questions to them and asked them to pre-
pare replies so that there would be no question about what they would
have in their minds. Then, of course., any member of the Committee
may ask any questions he sees fit.

Hon. Mr. MURPHY: Are they technical men?
Hon. Mr. McDoUGALD: Mr. Harvie is General Manager of the Port

of Montreal, and Mr. Ferguson is the Assistant-Manager.
The CHAIRMAN: I think that is very satisfactory.

and later, in regard to the examination of Mr. Henry, the following appears.

(Report of Senate Committee, page 215):-
The CHAIRMAN: We have Mr. Henry here. He is the Director of

the Bureau of Economics of the Canadian National Railways.
Hon. Mr. McDoUGALD: Before we start Mr. Henry's evidence I

would just like to say a word. During the investigations made by the
National Advisory Board I was able, by the courtesy of Sir Henry
Thornton, to go to Mr. Henry at all times, and he was in a position to

give some very valuable information and supply very valuable data
in regard to transportation, not only in connection with Railways but
in connection with the waterways; and I can say here that the informa-
tion I obtained from him was of great assistance to myself and other
members of the National Committee in arriving at some of the con-
clusions which we reached. Having that in mind, I think that perhaps
you might allow me, as on the occasion when we had the men from the
Harbour of Montreal here, to prepare some questions. Yesterday I

prepared some questions, and submitted them to Mr. Henry last night,
having in mind what you said yourself, Mr. Chairman, so that he might
bc famiXiar with them, and so that we might cover the ground quickly.
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and later, the Right Honourable Mr. Graham remarks, at page 232 of the
Report, relating to Mr. Henry's evidence:-

You and Colonel Dubuc and these other gentlemen have been giving
us just the information that we have been after about these things.

(8) In view of the foregoing, I submit that the inferences and suggestions
made in paragraph 12 and following of the report are entirely unwarranted,
especially bearing in mind the fact that the evidence of these gentlemen was
given, not in connection with any power project, but almost entirely in con-
nection with navigation.

I was only one of the twenty-five members of that Committee, which, at
the conclusion of its efforts, merely recommended "that the Senate, at the
beginning of the next Session of Parliament, should consider the possibility of
again appointing the Special Committee to continue this enquiry "-a recom-
mendation which was never acted upon.

(9) I would also refer to paragraphs 19 and 20 of the report of the Com-
mons Committee. These are as follows:-

(19) Further in his speech on the 20th May. 1931, Senator
McDougald said: " I might add that I paid into the Syndicate dollar
for dollar with every other member of it.

(20) As previously pointed out in this Report, Senator McDougald,
Senator Raymond, and Mr. Frank Jones, bought their units in the first
Syndicate for many fewer dollars per share than any other of the mem-
bers, except possibly Mr. Sweezey who got some of his for a consideration
other than cash.

The suggestions of these paragraphs are untrue. I was never a member of
the original Beauharnois Syndicate, this having been dissolved on the 4th of
April, 1928, and my original investment having been made on the 18th of May,
1928, when I purchased Mr. Sifton's interests. This the Committee of the
Commons well understood, as will appear by paragraphs 3, 3A and 4 under the
heading of "corporate organization," which are as follows:-

(3) The units subscribed for in the name of the Crédit Général
du Canada were subscribed and held for Senator Donat Raymond.

(3A) 1,000 of the units in the name of Newman, Sweezey & Com-
pany Limited, were held for Frank P. Jones and 50 for Fred M. Connell.
The Honourable Walter G. Mitchell had a half interest in Mr. Jones'
holdings.

(4) The units in the name of L. Clare Moyer are said to have been
subscribed on behalf of the late Winfield Sifton. Senator Wilfrid
McDougald states that on the 18th May, 1928, he agreed to acquire
them, the transaction being completed about the end of that month.

As originally I was not connected with the first Syndicate and had paid into
the second Syndicate dollar for dollar with every other member in it, the
suggestion to the contrary is unfair and improper.

(10) In like manner, I resent the statements of paragraph 9, in regard
to the transfer of these units, this paragraph reading as follows:-

(9) In the meantime, however, namely on the 2nd October, 1928,
these had been transferred from Mr. Moyer to Mr. John P. Ebbs, a
member of the Haydon firm, by reason of some instructions from Senator
McDougald, about which there seems to be some insolvable mystery,
and about which there need not have been any mystery at all if the
transactions were an ordinary business one.
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This statement is peculiarly malicious in view of the evidence of Mr. Ebbs,
a member of the Ottawa Bar, who testified to the effect that the shares in the
new Syndicate had been purchased with my money and who later said at
page 723, in answer to a question by Colonel Lennox:-

Q. There seems to be an awful lot of mystery about McDougald?
-A. There is no mystery as far as I can see. These shares of Senator
McDougald were placed in my name. 1 gave Senator McDougald
Declarations of Trust immediately.

The explanation as to why these shares were allowed to remain in Ebbs' name
is simple. Until certain as to the soundness of the enterprise, 1 did not wish
my name connected with it, as thereby others might possibly be induced to,
invest. These, 1 may add, were also the reasons of others, members, of the
Syndicate who did likewise and whose names I need not mention.

(11) Paragrapli 23 of the report which concludes " that my actions in
respect to the Beauharnois project cannot be too strongly condemned " is
altogether unfair and is unsupported by the evidence or documents of record,
anid I arn prepared to so testify under oath if required. I deny most emphatic-
ally the suggestions of this paragraph. At no time directly or indirectly, as
Chairman of the Montreal Harbour Board, as a member of the National
Advisory Committce on St. Lawrence Waterways, as a Senator of Canada,
or as a member of the Special Committee of the Senate, have I allowed my
private interests to interfere with my public duties, nor have 1 ever, speaking
from my place in the Senate, or elsewhere, knowingly made incorrect, or
untruthful statements and 1 respectfully request this Committee to so declare.

The whole respectfully submitted.

Hon. Senator WiLFRiD LAURIER McDO-UGALD appeared as a witness, and,
having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

By Hon. Mr. Cannon:
Q. You have just been sworn, Senator McDougald.-A. Yes, sir.
Q. WilI you produce before this Committce, ais Exhibit 136, the statement

which you have just read as a senator to the Cornmittee?-A. Yes.

(Statement read to the Committee by Senator McDougald filed, marked
Exhibit No. 136.)

Q. Now, Senator, under oath will you state to the Committee if the state-
ment which you have read is truc?-A. 1 do.

Q. Have you anything further to add to that statement and to say to the
Committee at fthc present fime?-A. I do not think se.

Q. Now, Senator, befere I turn you over te rny learned fricnd, Mr. Smith,
will you produce , as Exhibit 137, the procccdings of tlic special Senýate Com-
mittee? I do not think fhey have been produced.-A. Yes.

Q. These are the proccedings of fthc special Senate Committec fo which you
have referred in your statement ?-A. Yes.

(Proceedîngs of the special Senate Commitrcc appointed te inquire int o the
development and improvement of the St. Lawrence river, filed, marked Exhibit
No. 137.)

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: What is the date?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Report of the special Coinmittcc of the Senate, 1928.
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By Mr. Can-no~n:
Q. Will you produce as Exhibit 138, the report of the Joint Board of

Engineers on the St. Lawrence Waterway project?-A. Yes.
(Report of the Joint Board of Engineers on the St. Lawrence Waterway

project filed, marked Exhibit iNo. 138.)
Hon. Mr. Cop. What is this exhibit?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: That is the report of the .Joint Board of Engineers on

the St. Lawrence Waterway project.
Hon. MVr. Copp: The Board of which he was a member?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: NO.
Mr. MANN: The National Advisory Cornmittee was the Government corn-

tnittee, under P.C. 779.
Hon. Mr. CANINON: As I understand it, the Joint Board of Engineers

exarnined into the project and made a report, and that report was subrnitted to
the National Advisory Cornrittee, of whîch Senator McDougald was a member.
What I have produred now is the report of the JToint Board of Engineers. I
think the report of the National Advisory Cornrittec has already 'been filed,
but in case it has not, I will ask the Senator to produce it now as Exhibit 139.

(Correspondence between the Governments of Canada and the Unitcd
States, 1927 and 1928. Rleport of the Canadian National Advisory Committee,
January, 1928, and observations thereupon 'by certain of its members. Orders
in Council, etc., filed, marked Exhibit No. 139.)

Hon. Mr. CANNON: That is ail.
Mr. SMITH: I find myseif in some difficulty, Mr. Chairman. A statement

has been read and marked as an exhibit, and I arn supposed to examine on it,
but 1 have neyer seen it or read it.

The CHAIRMAN: We can give you time to go into it.
Mr. SMITrH: Even at the expense of tirne, I think I should have on oppor-

tunity of reading it.
Hon. Mr.* MCMEANS: You are not confined to that alone in your ex-

amination.
Mr. SMITH: I do not intend to confine myseif to it, sir, but there is no

use in my going over the same ground twice. If I can follow the matters in
the order in which they are referred to in the statement, it might be a good
idea. I arn content to go on now, but I think I could save time if I had an
opportunity to read the statement first.

Hon. Mr. Copp: That is fair enough.
Hon. Mr. McMEANs: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: We will give you time.
Mr. SMITrH: I think perhaps you should, sir, I will take the statement

and study it in the interval. I may not need to use it at ail, of course.
The CHAIRMAN: I should think if you studied it you could shorten your

exarnination.
Mr. SMITH: I arn sure I can, sir.
Hon. Mr. Copp: Unless you have prepared your examination along other

lines.
Mr. SMITH: I have questions along other lines, but they are bound to be

interwoven. I would rather let the whole thîng stand in the meantime.
The CHAIRMAN: I expiained to Mr. Robertson that we were talking about

-two physicians, with regard to Senator Haydon. It seems there would be a
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littie tirne lost arranging that, and as f ar as 1 arn concerned, after thinking
it over, 1 arn satisfied teo have Dr. Argue corne and lay the ground for the
exarnination. I have asked Mr. Robertson if he thought he could have hirn here.

Mr. RoBERTsoN: Sorneone is telephoning for him now. I wiIl know in a
moment or two whether he is available.

The CHAmMAN: If he can corne now we rnight take his evidence.

The Cormiîttee adjourned until 4.30 p.m.

The Cornmittee resurned at 4.30 p.rn.

The CHAmmAN:- The Dector is not available and it is a littie indefinite
whether he will be able to get here. Hie will be the first witness in the rnorning.
We will adjouru now until il o'clock to-rnorrow rnorning.

The Cornrittee adjourned until to-rnorrow rnorning, Thursday, March 10,
st il o'clock.



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

OT'rAwA, Thursday, March 10, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into -consider-
ation the report of a Special Committee of the flouse of Commons of the last
session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Projeet, in so far as said
report relates to any honourable members of the Senate, met this iday at eleven
o dcock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Senators Tanner, Chairman; Béique, Chapais,
Copp, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, McMeans and Robinson.

Counsel:
Mr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Arthur L. Smith, K.C.,

Calgary, Alberta, for the 'Committee.
The Hon. Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec, Mr. John W.

Cook, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Hugh E. O'Donnell, Montreal, Quebec,
for the Hon. Senator W. L. McDougald.

Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, for the Hon. Senator Andrew
Haydon.

Mr. Thomnas Vien, K.C., Montreal, Quebcc, for the Hon. Senator Donat
Raymond.

The ýCHAIRMAN: Is the doctor here, Mr. Robertson?
Mr. ROBERTSON: fie is here now.

Dr. JOHN FENTON ARGUE, 'Ottawa, appeared as a witness, and, having been
duly sworn, tes'tified as follows:

Mr. ROBERTSON: Shail 1 examine the doctor, or would you prefer to, Mr.
Chairman?

The CHAIRMAN: Oh, yes, you examine hlm.

By Mr. Robe rtson:
Q. Dr. Argue, you are the physician in attendance upon Senator Hay-don?

-A. I amn, sir.
Q. And you have been in attendance upon him as his physician in his

present illness since when?-A. Since he broke down a year ago February.
Q. And you, for the purpose of shortening matters and putting your

evidence in concrete shape, gave me a certificate at the be.ginning of the taking
of evidence in this inquiry?-A. Yes.

Q. Probably you will read that?-A.-
116 Nepean Street, Ottawa,

lst March, 1932,
To the Select Comm-ittee of the Senate:

Gentlemen: The Hon. Andrew Haydon has been continuously under
my professional care since January, 1931. fie is suffering from arterio-
eclerosis-

that is an enlargement of the arteries.

-with coronary thrombosis,-
that is the arteries affecting the heart, mostly.

-and for the past nuimber of months he has spent the greater part of
his time confined to bed.
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Since the first meeting of your Committee he ha.s been eonfined to
his bed, except for an hour sitting out each e'vening.

l is physiýcal condition is such that he should have no mental or
physical strain, but sbould it be necessary to question bim it migbt be
-done at bis own home, care being taken to avoîd any excitement or undue
strain.

Q. Is that stili the condition to-day?-A. Yes, sir.

By Mr. Mann:

Q. Is the bonourable gentleman confined to his bed at the moment?-A.
H1e is in bed at the moment.

Q. I do not mean be bas not got up yet to-day. Is he confined to bis bed?
-A. H1e was up bere, 1 tbinik, at the openîng meeting of this Committee, and
went home and went to bed, and bas been continuously in bed, except for Sitting
out an hour eacb evening.

Q. But you feel tbat if be were examined at bis home in the ordinary way
there wouid he no irndue danger?-A. The senator's condition is such that it is
often assoeiated witb s'udden death due to any undue strain or excitement. I
told bîm that if be were bound to give evidence to do so at bis own borne, but
it wouid be on bis own-

Tbe CHAInRMAN: -responsibilîty.

By the Chairman:

Q. 0f course, you would be present?-A. I told him I wouid be there. I do
not expeet any sucb tbing, but sueb tbings have happened.

By Mr. Mann:

Q. Undue strain would comprise bis own mental attitude?-A. Mental or
physical strain.

Q. But you feel tbat be could be examined if it is done- A. I tbink in the
ordinary-

Q. Ia the ordinary course, and witbout any excitement?-A. Yes.

By the Chairman:

Q. The chiefdifficulty wou1d be bringing bim up wben be suffers like this?-
A. H1e suffers from attacks of sbortness of breatb, even in bed.

The CHAIRMAN: I was going to suggest, Mr. Robertson, that probably you
bave it in mind to bave bim read a statement. Were yýou tbinking of that.

Mr. ROBETSO~N: Probably not exaetly that, but a very f ew questions to
wbieh he would bave the prepared answer xvbich he eould read, and take it
quiet-ly.

The CHAIRMAN: I was going to suggest, in order to facilitate matters, that
if you bave sueb a document you ýsbould gîve counsel a copy of it.

Mr. iROBERSON: I baven't at the moment, but I will bave, and I will do that.
Mr. MANN: Does Mr. Robertson refer to prepared questions that be will

bave for the purpose of examination when I bave completed my examination?
Mr. ROBERTSON: No, 1 thougbt I was ýcaýlling bim. Wbat I propose to do

is this: I propose to bave about tbree questions wbicb will eall for somewbat
extended answers, perbaps. I n iii give you botb the questions and wbat be will
bave prepared.

Mr. MANN: And the answer?
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Mr. ROBERTSON: The answer will be bis, not mine. To be perfectly frank,
1 have already told him what the questions wiIl be. 1 do not know just wbat
the answers are to be. I understand bis secretary is seeing hirn this morning
and later to-day will have the answers that he proposes to make, and I will
give Vhem Vo you.

The CHAIRMAN: And we will make arrangements about the time of the
examination later.

Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Copp: IV might be of advantage Vo know wbat time of the day

the doctor thought most satisfactory.
Mr. IROBERTSON: I understand the afternoon is better than the morning.
The CHAIRMAN:- We will ascertain Vhat. 1 wiIl consuit with Mr. Robert-

son about it.
Mr. SMITH: There is a short matter that I overlooked in connection with

the examination of Senator Raymond. 1 have communicated with bis counsel
and told him the questions 1 was going Vo, ask, and be bas no objection Vo
Senator Raymond returning.

Hon. DONAT RAYMOND was recalled.

By Mr. Smith:
QSenator Raymond, wben you gave evidence before, you said you did

receive from Mr. Sweezey a sum-you did noV mention the amount-which ho
said was about $200,000, as campaign contributions. Is that correct?-A. Yes.

Q. In wbat f orm and in wbat amounts was that received?-A. I do not
remember in wbat amounts, but it was received in the f orm of Government
Bonds, payable Vo bearer.

Q. Was it received aV various times?-A. I do noV recail wbether it was
two or three times.

Q. And I believe you said you bad some position; I Vbink you said you
were a trustee?-A. A trustee for the party funds.

QFor wbat?-A. For 1930.
Q.And you did noV keep any portion of the money wbicb you received?

-A. NoV a cent. 1 Vurned it over Vo the treasurer of the party.
Q. There bas been some criticism that 1 arn not delving deeply enougb.

Is there anything more in connection witb Vbat maVter VbaV you can tell the
Committee that migbt be of interest? Who delivered these securities Vo you?
-A. Wbether Mr. Sweezey or Mr. GrifflV-I tbink in one instance there were
the two of Vbem; 1 do noV know wbetber at any time one or tbe other was alone.

Q. Under wbat circumstances was delivery made? AV your office?-A. Yes,
in my office.

Q. In the f orm of bonds?-A. Exactly, and witbout any request from me.
Q. You bave beard Mr. Sweezey say that he was advised by Mr. Haydon

that these payments migbt be made Vo you?-A. Yes.
Q.You bave no reason Vo doubt tbat?-A. None wbatever.
Q.As trustee for the party in the province?-A. Exactly.

Q. Did you bank tbem?-A. I did noV.
Q. Or did you deliver Vhem on in specie Vo the reasurer?-A. I Vurned

Vbem over to the treasurer of the party.
Q. Exactly as they came to you?-A. No, I Vhink I got tbe cash for them,

but I did noV bank Vhem at ail.
Q. You realized Vhem?-A. 1 realized Vhem.
Q. Got cash for Vbem, and it was that cash that you Vurned over to the

treasurer ?-A.. Exactly.
48236-12
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Hon. WILFRID LAURIER MCDoUGALD was recalled.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. You are a senator of the Dominion of Canada?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And I believe that you were summoned to office when?-A. In 1927.
Q. And at that time and prior to that time you occupied a position as

chairman of the Harbour Board of Montreal?-A. Yes.
Q. And you were appointed to that position by the same Government in

power at the time you were appointed to the Senate?-A. Yes.
Q. And prior to that you had been extensively engaged in business?-

A. Yes.
Q. And prior to that you had served on a committee-prior to appoint-

ment as senator-on what is known as the National Advisory Committee?-
A. Yes.

Q. Your appointment to that committee, was, I believe, in May of 1924?
-A. Yes.

Q. Now, in 1923, as we have it in evidence, you had a discussion with
Mr. Henry with respect to the development of power on the St. Lawrence River?
-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Is my learned friend referring to this year's evidence?
Mr. SMITH: As a matter of fact I was referring to the blue book, but Mr.

Henry did mention it.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. In any event, you did see him and had discussions with him as to the

development of power?-A. Yes.
Q. And in so far as this Beauharnois project is concerned, that was your

first introduction to it, as I understand?-A. We never discussed Beauharnois
at that time. I knew nothing about Beauharnois.

Q. I mean the power on the Soulanges section of the river?-A. Oh, no. I
think I had known about it in a general way for a good many years.

Q. But Mr. Henry's discussion was the beginning of any direct interest in
it?-A. Which led up to the present situation.

Q. And I suppose there is no doubt that you interested yourself in Mr.
Henry with a view to making some money for yourself?-A. No doubt at all.

Q. That is a natural and laudable ambition. So from 1923 you were inter-
ested in the development of projects on that section of the river with a view to
making yourself some money?-A. Yes.

Q. And you succeeded in so doing?-A. Eventually, yes.
Q. Now, the National Advisory Committee were appointed in May of 1924?

-A. Yes.
Q. And you were meeting from time to time?-A. Yes.
Q. I had forgotten another Committee-the Special Senate Committee,

under the chairmanship of Senator Tanner. You were also a member of that
Committee?-A. Yes.

Q. You were named to that in-do you remember the time?-A. 1928. May,
1928, I think.

Q. The 20th of April, 1928, is I think the date of its creation. And you
attended the meetings of these two Committees, and were always pf the view
that the development of the power in the whole Canadian section that is in the
Province of Quebec, should be donc by private interests?-A. Well, neither one
of those Committees were dealing with power; they were dealing with the
development of the St. Lawrence waterways. The power was incidental.

Q. Then, aside from Committees, your own view has been from the begin-
ning that that development should be done by private interests?-A. Quite. I
do not believe in public ownership.
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Q. Then the converse of that is that you did believe in the development of
this power by private interests?-A. Quite.

Q. And believing that, you no0 doubt were at ail times interested in the
ownership of that power, that is as between the Dominion Government and the
Province of Quebec?-A. 1 hadn't given that mucli thought. That was a purely
legal matter. I didn't feel competent to give any opinion on it whatever.

Q. I don't know that you were competent to deliver an opinion, but you
must have had some opinion?-A. 1 didn't have a settled opinion about it.

Q. Have you-any now?-A. It is stili as unsettled as it was at that time.
Q. So far as you were concerned, ail through these years you have had no0

definite view as to who had the ownership?-A. Quite unsettled in my mmnd.
Q. In other words, it may be the Dominion and it may be the Province of

Quebec?-A. It was a legal matter, in my mind, pure and simple.
Q. But as I say, the ownership was in one place or the other, and you neyer

have made up your mind as yet which it was?-A. No.
Q. Now, Mr. Henry incorporated a company known as the Sterling Indus-

trial Corporation?-A. Yes.
Q. Prior to that he had made some investigation with your knowledge of

this section of the river?-A. Yes. That is what I authorized him to do in 1923.
Q. And he discussed with you from time to tîme the progress he had been

making?-A. In a very general way only. I asked him first how much it would
take to make a report and make an investigation, in 1923, and he said he thought
an -amount not to exceed $10,000 would cover the report and whatever he wanted
to do, and I told him to go ahead and do it, I would be wîlling to pay $10,000.
When I allowed him-or agreed with him to do that, I had no notion of under-
taking any part of the detail of it at ail. While he may have spoken to me in
a general way, it was neyer in detail. I gave him carte blanche.

Q. You made him your agent with. full authority to make these investiga-
tions?-A. Yes.

Q. And provided him with the money?-A. Yes.
Q. Believing you both would share in the fruits of the enterprise?-A. That

icertain.
Q. You were in a sense partners in the enterprise?-A. You might caîl it

that. There was no0 partnership. I was simply having him mýake an investiga-
tion. W/e were associates.

Q. You were associates, looking to mutual benefits?-A. Yes, if anything
came out of it.

Q. But you did have discussions with him from time to time, general dis-
cussions, as you say, as to what he was doing?-A. Yes.

Q. And you had a discussion with hîm with respect to the user, or the using
of a company called the Superior Sales Company?-A. That is right.

Q. To make an application to the Dominion Government?-A. Yes.
Q. And he concluded that the charter was not broad enough for his pur-

pose?-A. Right.
Q. You knew ho was making an application for the diversion of water?-

A. Hie told me he would have to.
Q. You knew he was making an application to the Dominion Government?

-A. Yes.
Q. And you knew too, later on, that through the medium of a Company

called the Sterling Industrial Corporation-?-A. Yes.
Q. What did you spend in connection with that Sterling Industrial Cor-

poration? You remeniber I called Mr. Ebbs, and as far as he can find there is
only $2,500 that went to the credit of that Company?-A. All I can say is that
I agreed with Mr. Henry that I would allow him, or would pay bis up to $10,000.
I couldn't swear whether $10,0OO, $7,000 or $8,0O0 wýas spent. At that time I
had various companies in which I was interested, and it was my custom if 1 had

48236-121j



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

an application, or had given an undertaking, to say to my financial man "I have
agreed with Mr. Henry that 1 will pay bis up to $10,000 on his say-so." 1
could not say whether it was $10,000 or $6,000 or $7,OOW, and have no way of
finding that out.

Q. I think it is $2,500. Mr. Henry has told us he received no money at
ail?-A. Yes.

Q. And we brouglit an officer of the Sterling Industrial Company, and the
bank book?-A. Yes.

Q. And the only credit was the surn of $2,500.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I think in fairness you might mention the McRae

report.
Mr. SMITH: This shows. that McRae liad been paid $1,500) of that $2,5OO.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.Do you know of any other sums advanced to anybody-A. I think Mr.

Henry said he got $3,500. Whether he got it through Mr. Henry or through Mr.
Haydon's office I cannot tell you.

Q. Mr. Henry lias told us nothing was paid tlirough hirn, and Mr. Ebbs has
told us of ail the payments lie knows anything about. The point is, you are not
in a position to tell us liow mucli you paid on your undertaking?-A. I couid not
tell you, no.

Q. This Company liaving been incorporated-You knew it was going to be
incorporated ?-A. Yes.

Q. And you sent Mr. Henry to Senator Haydon for tliat purpose. H1e may
have been Mr. Haydon at that time?-A. I think lie was.

Q. You sent him to Mr. llaydon for that purpose?-A. Yes. I suggested
Mr. Haydon as a good lawyer tliat he shouid go to him.

Q. And the Company was tlien incorporated, and it later was agreed between
you that you had an equai interest in that Company?-A. Not until 1929.

Q. We have the letter of 1929?-A. A long time after.
Q. Was this not so-you heard Mr. Henry's evidence tliat he had had in

the back of his mind that lie would have a fifty per cent interest, and that finaliy
that was consummated?-A. To be frank, at that time 1 liad not mucli idea
about it. I dîdn't put mucli faitli in it tliat anything wouid corne out of it. It
was a gamble. I put rnoney into it just the same as I wouid put money into an
oul syndicate out in your part of tlie country witliout mucli certainty as to tlie
resuit.

Q. You shouid try that in Alberta and you would be certain that you wouid
get nothing out of it.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: You would get a lot of corroborative evidence.
Mr. SMITH: Ail we have irs gas.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.But irrespective of liow you got it, you reaiized ail tlirougli tliese years

that you did have a beneficial interest in the Sterling Company?-A. Oh, quite.
Q.No doubt about that?-A. No doubt about tliat.
Q.Now 1 corne to later days. You did invest in wliat is known as tlie

Beauharnois Syndicate?-A. Yes.
Q. You reaiized, of course, that, tlie Sterling effort, if I may use that

expression, was based on the ownership of this power by the Dominion Govern-
ment?-A. Yes.

Q. You realized that the Beauharnois effort was based on the principie that
tlie province owned the power?-A. Yes.
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Q. So you were in a position either way in this development-to, realize
from this development no matter where ownership lay?-A. No, sir. At that
time 1 had dismissed the Sterling Industrial Corporation from my mind entirely.
The National Advisory Board had made their report. The report of the engineers
of the National Advisory Board had recommended the development on the north
side of the St- Lawrence River. The Board accepted that, and we so recommended
to the Government of the day. If the Governent had gone on with deepening
of the St. Lawrence waterway, as every member feit they should and would do,
there would have been no0 development on the south side of the river whatever.

Q. The Government, then, must have changed its mind as to the development
in that section?-A. I don't think the Government had made up its mmnd as to,
any development.

Q. The Government provided by Order in Council 422 to consent to this
development with provision for the protection of navigation works?-A. That
came after the National Advisory Board, and had nothing to do with the Board
at ail.

Qel. This came on the 8th of March, 1929. You know order 422?-A. Very

Q.And that provides for development, and canalization for shipping on the
south side?-A. But that was--

Q. That is true, isn't it-A. But not by the Government at Ottawa; that
came from Quebec, and the Beauharnois Company were simply asking the
Government, or offering the Government, if they would pass the Order in
Council approving their plans, that they would give free and clear to Canada
the use of that canal.

Q. On the south side?-A. On the south side.
Q. So that as I say, if we change the canalization from the north side to

the south side the Government of the day must have changed its mind as ta
the proper place to do that work?-A. Not necessarily.

Q. How could they do anything else?-A. Well, that diversion of 40,000
cubic feet of water on the south side did not interfere with any development
that the Government might decide to make on the north side at ail, if they
wanted to go on.

Q. You know, of course, as weil as I do that the Beauharnois project is
admitted hy everybody, Mr. Henry and Mr. Sweezev and anybody who had

antigto do with it, that it contemplated the whiole flow of the river?-
A.Ithink so.

Q. And their financing to the public was donc on that basis?-A. Yes.
Q. And if we take the whole flow of the river on the north side we cannot

carry boats on the south side?-A. No.
Q. So it is obvious that someone in authority must have had a change of

mind whcn the Beauharnois project was iinder consideration?-A. I do not
think that the Government of the day ever made up its mmnd about anything.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Thc Govcrnment of that day?-A. Well, they have not mnade up thcir

minds yet, I do not think.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Coming back to, the Sterling again, you say that you forgot about it?-

A. Up to that time, yes.
Q. You lost interest ini it?-A. Yes.
Q. When was that interest revîved?-A. Late in the summer of 1928.
Q. Can you place it any more definitely than that?-A. 1 shouid say some

time in September.
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Q. 0f 1928?-A. Yes. 1 could not place it any more definitely than that.
Q. And at that time you were in Beauharnois?-A. 1 was in Beauharnoîs.

Q.You had a financial interest in Beauharnois?-A. Yes.
Q. And that interest you obtained from whom?-A. Frorn the late Win-

field Sifton.
Q.And when did you do that?-A. On the 18th of May, 1928.
Q.You had been approached by Mr. Sifton prior to this on more than one

occasion?-A. Many occasions.
Q. With respect to taking an interest in Beauharnois?-A. Yes.
Q. And as 1 understand you, in the initial stages you refused to take an

interest?-A. Yes.
Q. When did you make up your mind to take an interest?-A. Some tirne

around May, the lSth of May or thereabouts.
Q. 1 mean, it was not a conclusion you came to suddenly?-A. No, 1 had

been thinking about it and had information about it for some time.
Q. And you had been negotiating with Sifton for it for sorne trne?-

A. H1e had been negotiating with me.
Q. It takes two people to make negotiations, surely?-A. Not always.
Q. Well, you had been having conversations?-A. Yes, that is botter, con-

versations.
Q. H1e was taking the lead?-A. Yos.
Q. And you were the person boing sought?-A. Yes.

Q.And hie finally succeeded in corning to a conclusion with you?-A. Yes.
Q.Well, that mattor was concluded on the l8th of May, you say. How

long had sorious negotiations been going on with respect to that purchase?-
A. 1 should say pcrhaps over a pcriod of a week or two.

Q. You would confine it to that, would you?-A. He had spoken to me
about it long before that. Hie carne to me, about the first tirne that I can
rernember wben hie discussed it scriously with me, or when I discussed it
seriously with him, was in March, 1928. 11e c~ame to nîy house in Moritreal;
1 was laid up at my bouse, and hoe wanted me to make up my mind then to
go in. H1e had spoken to me about it several tirnos, and lie told me that the
first Syndicate was being closed on tho 4th of Aprîl and that hie had a block
of sharos that must be allocatod to somebody before that date and hie wanted
me to corne in or thoy would go to sorneone else. 11e wanted me.to make up
rny mmnd to go in, and I told him I was not interested. And 1 saw him some
tirne later on, about the end of the month, and hie again pressed me to go in,
and I stîll said I was not interested. And ho told me at that tirne that hie was
going to take up the block of shares himself, if hie could not get me in, because
hoe would like to know what hands they were going into. And 1 did not see
hirn again till about the 18th of April. I can rernember that very distinctly
because 1 carne back to Ottawa-I had boon in Bermuda-and hie again wanted
me to go into the Beauharnois; but on that particular occasion it was to show
me a staternent that was in the Toronto Globe and in the Toronto Mail and
Empire, in which they made roference to the findings of the National Advisorv
Board, of which the late Sir Clifford Sifton vwas a mnember and of which I wais
a member.

Q. And that was the occasion when you rnade a speech?-A. Yes, I made
a staternent in the Senate.

Q. And at that tirne had you corne to a conclusion as to any investrnent in
the Beauharnois?-A. No, I had not thought about it, oven.

Q. Then your idea is that you began to think about it a week or two
before the lSth of May?-A. I could not say. H1e came to me around that date
ard had discussion before that, of course, and stated to me thon that he was
in very bad health, did not know whether hie would live a day or a month, and
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would like to get rid of this obligation that he had taken on. H1e told me that
lie did not know wbether he could finance the next payment that was coming
due and urged me to take up his shares.

Q.And you finally did so?-A. Yes.
Q.What form did your purdhase take?-A. Do you mean how was it

paid for?
Q.Yes.-A. It was paid for in bonds.
Q.Yes?-A. Paid at my office, paid by my solicitor and my financial

man.
Q. At your offie?-A. Yes.
Q. In Montreal? A. In Montreal.
Q. Were these bonds personnally handed to, the late Mr. Sifton?-A. By

my man, ycs.
Q. Whom do you mean by your man?-A. Mr. Barnard, who was my

solicitor at the time, and Mr. Banks, wvho was my financial man.
Q. Mr. Charles Barnard, you are speaking of?-A. Yes.
Q. I notice lis name appears in the book as Mr. Barnet, but it should be

Barnard?-A. Yes.
Q. And it was Mr. Barnard who handed those bonds over to Mr. Sifton?-

A. Yes.
Q. Where did be get them?-A. From my financial man, Mr. Banks.
Q. Were you present?-A. I was not.
Q. Whom lad you instructed in connection with the purchase?-A. I had

instrueted Mr. Banks and Mr. Barnard.
Q. And how mudli did you turn over, I mean face value?-A. $46,000.
Q. 0f what kind of bonds?-A. They were Canadian Victory bonds. I

cannot remember the year.
Q. Do you remember the price?-A. No, I cannot say that off hand.
Q. If 1 tell you they were at $110 at that time, does that refresh you.r

memory, if I suggest that to you?-A. No, it would not, because there was a
series of bonds, '33s and '37s.

Q. At any event, they were selling at a premium?-A. Yes.
Q. So that you were paying to Mr. Sifton this $46,000 together with the

premîum that was on the bonds at thc time?-A. Yes.
Q. And was that the arrangement you made with bim?-A. That was the

arrangement I made with Mr. Sifton.
Q. Not that he should receive $46,000 exactly?-A. He was to receive

$30,000 for what he had paid for the 800 înterests in the first syndicate, whîch
.afterwards became the second syndicate wlen I bought them, and there was a
10 per cent payment on the second syndicate, amounting to $16,000; and my
arrangement with him was that he should get $46,000 of bonds, which would
take care of the $30,000, which lie had paid for the first syndicate shares, and
$16,000, which woild be the firqt payment on the second syndicate, and the
difference in price would be for bis out of pocket expenses, whatever it was.

Q. If I arn right about the 10 per cent, that would bc $4,600, around that
sum?-A. Yes, if you are right.

QIf there was a premium of 10 per cent at that tirne?-A. Yes.
Q.What docuiments were exchanged between you and Mr. Sifton?-A.

None wbatever between mys-eif and Mr. Sifton. Mr. Barnard got a letter.
Q. I suggest that Mr. Sifton gave somebody a receipt?-A. H1e gave Mr.

Barnard a letter.
Q. A letter in his own handwriting?-A. Yes.
Q. And that letter ivas the acknowledgment of this $46,000 worth of bonds?

-A. Yes.
Q. And I suggcst to you that Mr. Barnard then. saw you with this receipt

and told you that there was a loophole I arn not trying to quote bis exact
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language-because Mr. Moyer was not on the document and lie was the ostensi-
ble owner of the part interests?-A. I knew that from Mr. Sifton.

Q.1 suggest to, you that Mr. Barnard pointed that out to, you?-A. He did.
Q.And what did you eay to tha't?-A. I said that if lie was satisfjed with

the receipt and that I was properly safeguarded, I was sa.tisfied.
Q. 0f course, my suggestion to you is that he told you he wau very far fromn

being satisfied with the receipt?-A. No, lie did not put it that way.
Q. You had not the consent of the man who was the actual owner of the

part interests?-A. Mr. Baxnard hiad the letter whicb wus turned over before the
bonds were delivered to Mr. Banks, the financial man, and Mr. Ba.rnard called
me up and read me the letter. I was at the Har>our ait the time, I was busy,
that is why I was not there personally. And lie pointed out that there might
be some difficulty with Moyer, and I said if he was isatisfied to take the chance
that 1 would take the chance.

Q. Where îs that letter?-A. At the time M.r. Barnard told me that his
arrangement witb Mr. Sifton was that after this deal was eonsummated-tbis
i6 the part that there îs the mystery about, that everybody is talking about as a
mystery-

Q. I bave not said it was a mystery.-A. It was stated in the old report.
,Mr. Sifton neyer wanted biýs name to appear in the Beauharnois transaction.
That was one of the conditions that lie made witb Mr. Barnard and also with
myseif, that it would not lie revealed that lie was the owner of the shares; that
is why lie put them in the name of Mr. Moyer. H1e did not give me ail the
reasons for it, and I arn not going to suggest what the reason was. Both lie
and his fatber did nýot want it revealed, and lie had lis own personal reasons for
itand I accepted Vhem. At the sa.me ime I did noV want to appear at that time
in the Beaubarnois Syndicate, and I was satisfied to allow the shares to remain
in the name of Moyer until I was ready to make the next move.

Q. But you are a man of business, and here were the shares in the name of
Moyer, and Mr. Sifton 'died on the 13Vb of June?--A. Yes.

Q. And you bad not a scratch of a pen f rom the ostensible~ owner of those
shares, Mr. Moyer?-A. Just the letter that my attorney bad, and lie was
satisfied with it, and I think you should ask him about it. I was satisfied with
him.

Q. I arn not satîsfied yet. You are a man of mucli business experience?-
A. I bave taken lots of gambleýs and I was satisfied with that gamble.

Q. Yeu do not gamble wben you do not bave to-I do not mean for pleasure,
of course, but I mean you do not take a chance in business, surely, wben there
is no necessity for your doing so?--A. Well, I did not consider I was taking any
great chiance.

Q. Here you were in tbis position, that you took a receipt from Sifton. Moyer
was the registered owner of tbose interests and you did not bave a scratch of a
pen from Moyler ?-A. Notbing from Moyer, no.

Q. And I amn suggesting to, you that what you told Mr. Barnard was to
forget about Moyer, tbat you would look after that, or words Vo that effect?-
A. I cannot recail Vbat I ever said anytbing of the kind to Mr. Barnard.

di.Q. Then your statement is this, that you put it up Vo, Mr. Barnard?-A. I

Q. And said that if lie was satisfied that you were?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, wbat bappened to this receipt or letter in Mr. Sifton's bandwriting?

-A. Mr. Barnard told me when Vhs laut inquiry was on, I asked him about
it-at the beginning, in f act, lie told me that Mr. Sifton asked bim not to reveal
it to anyone. I saw it myseif at the time, and Mr. Banks brouglit it to me.

Q. I suggest that Mr. Barnard brouglit it to you?-A. No, Mr. Banks
brcugbt it to me. Mi. Barnard read the letter Vo, me on the Velephone, or gave
me the substance of wbat Sifton would put in this receipt.
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Q.What wau in it?-A. 1 cannot tell you now.
Q.You were going to tell me where the letter was?-A. Mr. Barnard told

me that one of the stipulations was that the letter would noV be used unles6 it
wus necessary to use it, and iV neyer became necessary Vo, use it. And he agreed
with Mr. Sifton that when the shares were transferred the letter would be
destroyed.

Q. You say an agreement was made between Barnard and Sifton that when
those shares were ransferred to you the receipt shouli be destroyed?-A. Yes.

Q. Why was Mr. Barnard taking instructions frorn Sifton with re!spect to a
re-ceipt which was your own property, flot Siftons?-

Hon. Mr. CANNON: How can the witneýss answer that question? If rny
learned friind wanVs Vo find that, out, the man who can tell him is Mr. Barnard.

The CHAIRMAN: This witness can look after hirnself. There is no difficulty
about this witness.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: My learned friend is asking the witness to give Vo the
Committee the reasons why Mr. Barnard did so and so. That is for Mr.
Barnard to, say.

The C!HAIRMAN: The witness is quite competent Vo look after hirnself in
that respect.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Well. Mr. Chairman. I arn not doubting for a minute
that the witness is competent, but I arn pointing out to the Cornmittee that the
question which is now being put Vo the witness is of such a nature that he cannot
answer it.

The CHAIRMAN: You do noV need to worry abouV the Cornmittee; the Com-
mittee understands.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: If I do noV worry abouV the Committee or about my
client or anything, I do not see why I should be here.

Mr. SMITH: Worry about me.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.You no doubt have had some discussions with Mr. Barnard?-A. Yes.
Q.And you have no doubt learned where this receipt îs?-A. Yes, he told

me at the time that he destroyed the receipt, the letter.
Q.That he, Barnard, hirnself had destroyed that letter?-A. Yes.
Q.And did y-ou ask hlm why he, as your solicitor, had destroyed your

property?-A. Yes, because he had agreed to do so with Mr. Sifton. IV was a
gentleman's agreement, I Vhink that would be the answer I would make to that.

Q. That was after you appeared in public as the owner of these shares?-A.
That was after the 2nd of October when the shares were transferred Vo John P.
Ebbs, who was my norninee.

Q. After they carne out of Mr. Moyer's hands?-A. Yes.
Q. I arn suggesting this Vo you, and I want you to think it over. You at

that tirne had put up $46,000?-A. Yes.
Q. Plus the premiurn, whatever it was?-A. Whatever iV was.
Q. And you had taken on an obligation of $144,000, that is the $160,000

less the $16,000 which was the first payrnent?-A. Again a gentleman's under-
Vaking. I was noV in iV at that time.

Q. Moyer was the man in the books of the company who was stuck for that
$144,000-1 do not mean that in any offensive way, I mean liable for it?-A.
Yes, he would have been.

Ye.Q. H1e was the person who would have been liable for the $144,000-A.

Q. And you had neyer seen this man who was hable for the $141,000?-A.
Oh. yes, I had.
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QI mean, you had neyer discussed this transaction with him?-A. No.
Q.You say Sifton gave your man, Mr. Barnard, this handwritten document.

Then what about your liability of $144,000? What were you thinking about
that?-A. Well, there was no eall, as f ar as 1 knew, excepting the $16,000 which
had been paid, until October.

Q. Mr. Moyer bas told us that he received a number of cails after Mr.
Sifton's death.-A. I knew nothing about calls at the time.

Q. Did you not communicate with Mr. Moyer and say, "Here, I arn your
paymaster"?-A. No, 1 did not communicate with him at ail.

Q. Did it occur to you that that young man might be worrying about
being called for a portion of $144,000 when the shares were not his?--A. No, I
did not think so.

Q. And his client was dead?-A. No, 1 did not think so.
Q. It strikes me that you might have taken some interest in it, Senator

McDougald?-A. Well, at the time lie had the word of Winfield Sifton that they
would le taken care of, and he told me that le had instructed Moyer that he
would get instructions from me at the time. 1 did not consider it was the time
for me to give instructions and I did not get in touch with him until 1 was ready.

Q. So that you lad a moral responsibility for $144,000, aithough the bonds
were not registered in your name, a moral responsibility to pay $144,000, and
there was no communication wlatever between yourself and the person who held
them for you?-A. iNot a thing.

Q. And the evidence of payment for that in the hands of your solicitor?-
A. That is right.

Q. With an outstanding agreement with your vendor that the evidence of
payment should be destroyed when the shares came into your name?-A. That
is right.

Q. Rather a peculiar and circuitous way of handling a transaction, was it
not?-A. No, 1 think that is a common way.

Q. Again I must plead my lack of expericnce. But it could have been
done more simply?-A. Excepting for the reason that neither Sifton nor myseif
at the time cared to have our names appear in the transaction.

Q. Perhaps you can explain why you did not care to have .your name
appear in the transaction. You have said that you did not think that other
people should be influcnced by the fact of your investment, but did you not
think that that was the time wlen the public should know that you were
in it?-A. No, 1 did not think so. At tlat time 1 thought it was a pure and
simple gamble.

Q. A pure and simple gamble where you had no legal commitment to pay?
-A. Do you mean I was trying to take advantage of it?

Q. I do not mean that.-A. What do you mean?
Q. You said you felt morally bound?-A. Yes.
Q. But you had no legal commitment to pay?-A. No, I had no legal

commitment to pay.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I think it is an unfair thing to state that lie was not

legally obligated. I would be willing to argue the other side, with a good
chance of success.

Mr. SMITH: I know you would have some chance of success, but I was
trying to get your client's view of that thing. I bave got it, so we wîll not
need to argue it now.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. iNow, xvit]i respect to that letter, I suggest that that letter was returned

to you by Mr. Barnard, after the shares came into Ebbs' name on the 2nd of
October.--A. It was not.
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Q.That is incorrect?-A. That is incorrect.
Q.And you have told me, pcrhaps, ail you can as to your knowledge of

what happened?-A. That is about ail.
Q.Now, you wcre then in Beauharnois on the 1Sth of May?-A. Yes.
Q.Mr. Sweezey was the promoter of that concern?-A. Yes.
Q.And yýou saw him from time to time, no0 doubt, in and about Montreal?-

A. 1 had seen him with Mr. Sifton prior to that time on several occasions.
H1e had asked me to join the Syndicate on several occasions.

Q. And you no doubt saw him afterwards in Montreal?-A. Yes.
Q. And in Ottawa?-A. Yes.
Q. When did you first let Mr. Sweczey know that you had an interest in

Beauharnois?-A. I could not fix a date but 1 think some time in the late
summer of 1928, some time after Mr. Sifton's dcath.

Q. Would you care to fix the month?-A. I could not .fix it.
Q. When did you let Mr. Henry know you had an întcrest in Beauharnois?

-A. 1 should say not until about September of that year.
Q. Did Henry know you had an interest in Beauharnois whcn you wr

negotiating with Sweezcy for the sale of Sterling to Beauharnois?-A. Certainly,
absoliutely.

Q. H1e kncw that?--A.. Absolutely.
Q.No doubt about that?-A. No doubt about it at ail.
Q.When did Sweezey knoxv that you had an interest in the Sterling?-

A. From myseif, do you mean? 1 can only tell yýou when he knew it from myscîf.
Q. Tell me that.-A. Some time in the summer of 1928.
Q. And that was the summer of the ycar in which your intercst in Sterling

rcvivcd?-A. That is right.
Q. Tell me about that revival. Howý did it come about?-A. WTelI, after

the National Advisory Board had finishcd and their report was in-
Q. You mean the National Advisory Committec?-A. Ycs.
Q. The Board was the international one?-A. Yes.
Mr. MANN: The international body was the Joint Advisory Board, and

the other body was the National Advisory Committec.
The WITNESS: Yes. Mr. Henry camne to me and wanted to know what was

to be donc with Sterling and whcther he would continue his activities, and
told me that he had been for some time in touch with various interests in
New York and in Boston, and particularly witli Dillon-Reid in New York, and
that they were rcady, he thoughit, to go on and finance any project that he
might refer to them that hiid any merit. Hec wanted to know what I thought
about it, and I told him that I was in the Beauharnois Company, that I had
gone into the Beauharnois Syndicate, and that he should think it over and
sec whethcr some arrangement could not be made by which the Beauharnois
Company would take on the Sterling, instead of having that competitor, that
there migh.t be some basis that they could eome together on, and I askcd him
to think it over.

Q. What then?-A. H1e did not give me any opinion about it at the time
at all. H1e thoughit he had as good a chance to do something with the Sterling
Company as Sweezey had with thc Beauharnois Company. In f act, hc thought
very little about the Beauharnois Syndicate at the time, cither from an economie
point or from the group itself. Hec did not know whcthcr thcy could finance it.

Q. Was that aftcr you told him you wcre in it?-A. Yes, it ws
Q. That was rather disrespcctful, was it not?-A. I should not say so. H1e

had no obligation to me at ahl.
Q. Surely lic had an obligation to you?-A. Very little.
Q. Wcll, ho had some in connection with Sterling, no0 doubt about that?-A.

Yes, if you would cail that an obligation.
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Q. You were a part owner of Sterling?-A. Yes.
Q.And hie had that obligation to you?-A. Yes.
Q.And the obligation of a gentleman not to desert an asýsociate?-A. That

is exactly what 1 was doing with him, I was not going to desert him.Q.But hie was in that position witli respect to you?-A. Yes.Q.Now, go on.-A. Tlie next time I saw him hie said hie had thought
it over and that hie thought we had better get together, and 1 asked him to
figure out what hie thought the Sterling was worth and what hie would be pre-
pared to take for it. And 1 think 1 told him at the time that if hie wanted to get
another group in it I would be prepared to step out.

Q. If necessary, we can recaîl him as to that. Did you tell him that you
were content to step out?-A. Yes, in rny own mind I arn positive I said that.Q.Do you recolleet it?-A. Yes.

Q.When was it,?-A. I could not fix a date.
Q.About what date?-A. ibout that time in September when I was talk-

ing to him.
Q. 0f 1928?-A. It is hard to fix everything in a conversation. I was

having hundreds of conversations every day with different people. But I arn
positive I would have saîd that to him.

Q. That you would have? Well, go on.-A. Well, hie came back and
told me that hie had arrived at what hie thought was a f air exehange. The
idea was not to seil them those shares or to get money, but an exchange of
shares. Hie has explained to this Committee how lie arrived at that. And I was
satisfied that that was a proper basis, and I took it up with Mr. Sweezey. I
arn also sure that hie and Mr. Sweezey met and had a discussion before that in
the interval. I do not recail that hie said that the other day in bis evidence,
but I think if you followed up Mr. Sweezey's evidence you will see that hie said
that he and Mr. Henry talked about it.

Q. Mr. Henry said that he learned about the composition and set-up of
the Beauharnois Syndicate from you?-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Did hie say that this year or last year?
Mr. SMITH: I do not think I should have to tell my learned friend just

when the witness said something.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I think when my learned friend refers to evidence hie

should tell us where it is. 1 am not objecting to the question hie has just put,
but in future it wou]d be only right to do that.

Mr. SMITH: As long as you are niot objecting, 1 will go on.
Mr. MANN: The pages are 100 and 101, particularly 101,

By M1r. Smith:
Q.You did give to Mr. Henry the financial structure and set-up of this

Beauharnois Syndicate?-A. In general ternis, yes. I think I told him the
personnel of it and what their intentions were. He knew something about it
before, no doubt.

Q. He had previously met Mr. Sweezey?-A. Well, at some time.
Q. And then you came down and you fiaally made a deal with the Beau-

harnois Syncicate?-A. Yes. I did not make the deal; I discussed it with Mr.
Sweezey and hie had agreed that 2,000 part interests would be satisfactory, and
I then instructed Mr. Ebbs to negotiate with either Mr. Sweezey or Mr. Griffithl,whoever was named by the Syndicate manager, to negotiate a document, if that
would be required.

Q. There is no doubt about this, that irrespective of documents, the pay-
ment of 2,000 part interests for the five shares of Sterling was the resuit of
discussion between you and Sweezey?-A. Yes.
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Q. And in as far as Ebbs and Griffith were concerned, they were merely
putting your arrangement into some proper form?-A. That is correct.

Q. And the forrn of that was that the payment of these 2,000 part interests
was subject to the consent of the Dominion Government beilng obtained in
terms of the emphyteutic lease that they bad with the province of Quebec?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: One moment.
The CHAIRMAN: Let the witness answer the question.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: But, 1 am here to represent his interests, Mr. Chair-

man, and the objection that I amn going to make 110w is that the question as
put by my learned friend does not describe the situation as it was. The Govern-
ment of Canada was neyer asked to consent to an ernphyteutic lease or to
anything of that kind.

The CHAIRMAN: Cannot the witness say "No"?
Hon. Mr. CAN NON: No. That is a point of law, that the witness does

not know anything about, and I happen to know about it.
The CHAIRMAN: Well, the witness can say he does not know anything

about it.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I do not think the Comrnittee would be satisfied with

an answer of that kind.
The CHAIRMAN: I do not see any reason for interrupting. 1 neyer saw a

witness more gently handled.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I arn not criticizing the way rny learned friend is

exarnining this witness, nor the way he has exarnined any other witness. 1
arn stating that the question as put to the witness describes the legal situation
as regards the Dominion Governrnent in a way whicb is not really according
to the law and according to the facts.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, that may be your opinion.
Mr. SMITH: I will try to re-state myseif, so that there will not be any

objection to it.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. The Beauharnois had an emphyteutic lease from the province of Quebec?

-A. Well, I cannot tell you that.
Q. Did you ever hiear that?-A. I don't thinjk I ever heard that term until

I heard it before this Cornrittee.
Q. I am going to leave out that word-that they had that right from the

province of Quebec to do certain things in that Soulanges section leading to
the development of power?-A. Yes, I knew that.

Q. And you knew that it was a terrn of that arrangement that an agree-
ment mnust be entered into with the Dominion of Canada within one year under
the Navigable Waters Protection Act; you knew that?-A. I knew that, yes.

Mr. SMITH. IS that SatisfactOry?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Very satîsfactory.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. And that being so, what do you say about the p*sition of Sterling?-A.

Well, I thought-now 1 arn talking as one interested in the Beauharnois
Syndicate; 1 was a big shareholder in the Beauhiarnois Syndicate at the time-
I thought that they *were coming to Ottawa, and that they bad a year in which
to have their plans approved there, by what you have just stated. 1 thought
it would be better for Mr. Sweezey and his partners, of whom I was one, to
rernove any opposition that there might be at Ottawa here, and 1 have
particularly in mind that Mr. Henry-I knew him as being a very competent
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man, I considered him one of the best engineers in the country, and I knew
that he could be associated or associate himself with anyone of two or three
groups here opposing this scheme at Ottawa very strenuously; and my advice
to Mr. Sweezey was that idea of compromise, and if possible something should
be done by way of getting the Beauharnois Syndicate and the Sterling interests
together; and he agreed with my suggestion. Now, as to the terms of the
agreement, and that clause that you are mentioning there, I knew nothing
about that. As a matter of fact, what I had in my own mind was that that
would not-thinking again of the Beauharnois-I never thought about any
such clause, but I did think that if the application to Ottawa by the Beau-
harnois Syndicate failed with their Quebec charter, that then they might fall
back on the Sterling.

Q. The application to Quebec had been granted, Senator McDougald?-
A. Not at Ottawa. I am talking about Ottawa now.

Q. You mean that if the application for the agreement with the Dominion
Government failed?-A. Yes.

Q. Then you thought they might rely on Sterling; they might have a chance
with Sterling for what?-A. The development from Ottawa if Ottawa had the
federal rights.

Q. Then you regarded your inteersts in the Sterling as being of value to
get diversion rights of water from the Dominion Government-A. No. I did
not think at that time at all-I was not thinking about the federal rights.

Q. You just told me now that you felt-A. There had been no decision at
all made about federal or provincial rights.

Q. Follow me for a moment; you said just now, within the last minute, that
you felt that if Beauharnois failed to get the necessary consent in Ottawa, then,
being the owners of Sterling, they could use that vehicle-you did not use that
word; I am summarizing what you said-to get from the Dominion Government
diversion rights?-A. I had that in mind, yes.

Q. Then you did think, as an owner of Sterling, that it was of some value for
procuring diversion rights for hydraulic purposes from the Dominion Govern-
ment?-A. Mr. Henry always took that position with me, that he had an equal
chance.

Q. What did you think?-A. I had no opinion at all.
Q. I want to know what you think the value of Sterling was; and was

that it?-A. No, I didn't think that was the value of it.
Q. What did you think the value of it was?-A. That it was a prior applica-

tion in the department here, and I had in mind that Mr. Jones had gone to Quebec
with the application there, and Mr. Taschereau told him he was just too late, that
Mr. Sweezey was there ahead of him with the Beauharnois application, and then
I had in mind that they joined their forces, and Jones went into the Syndicate
with Sweezey.

Q. That may be all right, but what did you think was the value of Sterling?
-A. Being a prior application in that department at Ottawa, and that it would be
a benefit to Beauharnois to have that.

Q. The value of what?-A. The diversion of water of that amount.
Q. Then if it was to be a benefit to Beauharnois to have it remain, why have

it removed?-A. Well, I thought it was a benefit to have the opposition removed.
Q. This business was owned by you and Henry?-A. Yes.
Q. So when you said it would be a good thing to have the opposition removed

it would be removing what was owned by you and Henry?-A. No; why would
I oppose something that I had $144M00 or $160,000 in? I was a very big holder in
the Beauharnois Syndicate at the time.

Q. No doubt whatever, and that is the reason I cannot understand you
receiving some interest from Sterling?-A. That was donc with the knowledge of
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everybody in that Syndicate-Mr. Jones, Mr. Sweezey-tbey ail had knowledge
of it; tbey knew, here in the Syndicate, they knew 1 had interest in that Sterling,
and it was simply a compromise of the wbole, the removing of that opposition that
would be the particular opposition of Mr. Henry if he associated himself with
another outside corporation.

Q. You are going to say that at the time you deait with Sweezey for Sterling
lie knew you were in Beauharnois?-A. Yes.

Q. Did lie know you were in Sterling the first time you negotiated for
Beauharnois?-A. Yes.

Q.When was that?-A. I couldn't tell you that.
QIn what month?-A. I coukin't tell you that.
QIn what year?-A. 1928.
Q.Then your position with respect to that is that when you let Sweezey

know that you were in Beauharnois your shares were standing in the name of
either Moyer or Ebbs?-A. It was Moyer.

Q. That you then told hlm you were in Sterling?-A. Yes.
Q. Se that at that time your interest in Sterling may have revived?-A. It

was after Henry had corne to me, and what he said about reviving Sterling.
Q. When was that?-A. It would be in August or September, I cannot fix

the date.
Q. Did yen tell Sweezey at that time that you thouglit Sterling was an

obstacle te bis success here in Ottawa?- A. I don't know whetber I used Sterling.
1 saïd I thouglit Henry was an obstacle.

Q. Did yeu mention Sterling?-A. I miglit have.
Q. What did yen tell Sweezey in respect te Sterling; that is what I want te

know?-A. 1 told bim 1 thouglit it would bie an advantage te the Beauharnois
group, or te Sweezey himself, if he could get Henry satisfied in some way se that
lie would corne ýalong and join forces with Beauharnois.

Q. Did you ever hear any member of His Majesty's Council-a member of
the Governor General in Counil-ever suggest at any time, in connection with the
granting of P.C. 422 that Sterling was an obstacle in its way?-A. Neyer.

ta.Q. As a matter of fact, it bas not been withdrawn yet?-A. I can't tell yeu

Q. You have heard other people speak of it?-A. 1 don't know wbether
that is riglit or not.

Q. The shares in the Sterling Company up te some time ago had flot even
been turned over te the Beaubarnois Power?-A. I don't know that.

Q. Then I ask you if it is true that it neyer turned eut te be an obstacle
te Beauharneis at ail; did it?-A. Net after il was removed.

Q. The application was neyer withdrawn?-A. That did net matter; they
owned the shares; they could withdraw whenever they felt like it.

Q. But in se far as the Gevernor in Council was concerned, that application
was neyer withdrawn prier te the granting of P.C. 422 te the Beauharnois?-
A. Neither Henry nor myself ever pressed it afterwards.

Q. It neyer was withdrawn?-A. I don't know, but I don't think it is in
Beauharnois.

Q. Many people bave sworn te it; I want you te accept my word for it.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I don't think anybody bas sworn te it; there was neyer

an application te the Gevernor in Council.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.There were two applications made, te tbe Public Works and te Railways

and Canals?-A. I cannot tell yen anything about tbat, because I did net do it.
The CHAIRMAN: But you are net divulging any Cabinet secrets.
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By Mr. Smnith:
Q.You knew there was an application to the Government ini some capacity

for the diversion of water?-A. 1 knew it because I saw the letters that he
received-Mr. Henry-that is the way I knew it.

Q. You saw a letter from the Government?-A. No, a letter from the
Department of Public Works.

Mr. SMITHI: I cannot find that for the moment; 1 will see if I can find it
later.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.There is one thing just in this connection I want to ask you; you told

me a moment ago that at the time you were negotiating with them to take
over Sterling, Sweezey knew you were then iBeauharnois?-A. Yes.

Q. The answers I wanted to direct your attention to are on page 941; Mr.
White was speaking to you, and he said, "'And at the very time the company
took over the Sterling Industrial Corporation you were interested in the Beau-
harnois Syndicate," and your answer was, "Yes. That was why-" You were
apparently interrupted; the next question was, "So they had you, anyway"?
And your answer was, "Mr. Sweezey did not know that. That was why I was-"
And you were interrupted again, and the question was asked, "And I suppose
you did not tell them"? And you answered, "No. That was why I was par-
ticularly anxious to get Mr. Henry in there."

*Mr. SMITH: 1 think I should give the witness a copy of what I am reading,
so that he will sec it for himself. (Handing witness copy of buse of Gommons
report at page 941, top of page.)

Mr. SMITH: Then Hon. Mr. Mackenzie added, "A pretty good poker game,
I think," and Mr. White remarked, "That is a game of which, I am not able
to say anything, of course."

Right Hon. Mr. GIi.4HAM%: Peter was not under oath.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Now, my submission to you is that the meaning can be taken there

that at the time you wcre negotiating with Sweezey for Sterling he did not know
you were in Beauharnois and that you did not tell him?-A. Al .1 can say to
that is that I think you are handling me much more gently than I was handled
at that Committee.

Q. 1 do not know whether that is a compliment or not?-A. And as you
will have noticed in the questions there and the answers, I was interrupted
whenever I would start an answer, I would be interrupted, and I must confess
I was a bit confused as to many things that were asked me at the time, and
perhaps I would give an answer that was not exactly correct from lack of
knowledge of exactly what they were wanting. Now, it has been stated by Mr.
Griffith in evidence that he knew I was in Beauharnois, and there was no
secret at ail about Mr. Sweezey knowing it.

Q. 0f course I know that, at some time, but I am speaking of the time
of the negotiations for the purchase of Sterling?-A. When I was negotiating
with Mr. Sweezey he knew I was in Beauharnois, of course.

Q. This fact is correct, that you felt that Sterling was an obstacle to
Beauharnois?-A. Yes, on account of the prior application.

Q. We will leave the particular application just there, you mean in some
department in Ottawa?-A. I mean on account of the application that was in
the department--the prior application. There was a prior application in the
department.
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Q. And you have previously described that value as nuisance value, not
once but many times?-A. Well, 1 used the word once, and then the chairman
of the House of Commons Committee, and Mr. White f ollowed it Up.

Q. You stayed with them; you came in every time they came?-A. Well, it
is a common expression, a very common expression.

Q. Do you want to change that now?-A. No, I think that it had a nuisance
value, 1 think that would be-mn addition to other values.

Q. What were the others?-A. Prior application.
Q. That is the only reason it had a nuisance value?-A. And Mr. Henry.
Q. What do you mean-Mr. Henry?-A. Because 1 think, and thought at

the time, that Mr. Henry, if hie had associated with other interests, that the
Beauharnois Syndicate would have had greater opposition than they had. They
were having opposition there from evcry quarter at the time.

Q. You knew that?-A. Yes.
Q. That was apparent to you here in Ottawa?-A. Absolutely; everybody

knew it.
Q. And were you doing, everything you could to fight back that opposition?

-A. Not at that time; 1 just came into it at that tîme.
Q. You came into it in May, and you did not get Henry until October, at

lcast; no doubt about that?-A. No doubt about that, and hie was not in them,
either..

Q. iExcept through bis Sterling units, and they were turned over, I think,
in July, 1929.

Q. But you made the agreement long before that?-A. There was an agree-
ment made in October-or December 18th.

Q. December 18, 1928, so Henry did not corne in until that time?-A. No.
Q. Then we have all the time betvween May 18 and December 18, 1928?-

A. Yes.
Q. That this opposition was going on to this project?-A. Well, I don't

know much about the projeet at that time, I knew about it afterwards.
Q. But you do know that the application was pressed from January, 1928?

-A. I don't remember the date, no.
Q. There was a prier application in March, 1927?-A. I did not know that.
Q. But I want to know what you had done with respect to Henry, will we

say, bctween May l8th and December?-A. What had 1 done with Mr. Henry?
Q. Yes?-A. I had done nothing witlh Mr. Henry.
Q. What discussions did you have? What lines dîd that follow?-A. What

I told you, that I thought it would bie in the best interests of very one if some
arrangements could bie made with the Beauharnois by which the Sterling and
Beauharnois would get together.

Q. When did you discuss with Henry?-A. Some time in August or
September.

Q. It was after disclosing that to Mr. Henry that you had this negotiation
with himi with respect to Sterlilug?-A. Yes.

Q. You have told me it had an obstructionist effect?-A. I did not use the
word obstrucetionist.

Q. Do you prefer that to nuîsance?-A. No.
Q. You said it had a nuisance value because of the prior application?-A.

Yes.
Q. That would be an obstruction?-A. No, I would not use that word. I

neyer intended to obstruct.
Q. 1 did not say you intended to do anything, but if I understand you

correctly, the fact that Sterling had a prior obligation to the department at
Ottawa would obstruet the granting of the order to Beauharnois?-A. Well, Mr.
Henry always took the position that hie had just as good a chance of having
it-
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Q.Will you answer rny question?-A. 1 arn answering your question.
The CHAIRMAN: The witness can answer the question, and then give any

explanation he wants to. That is the regular course.
Han. Mr. CANNON: Mr. Chairman, with ail deference and cvery respect to

you and the Cornrittee 1 think the witness ought to be allowcd to answer.
The CHAIRMAN: Well, why not let him answer?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1 arn letting him answer, but it is rny learned fricnd

who is interrupting.,
The CHAIRMAN: He was not answering the question; he was giving a

different staternent.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I beg your pardon.
The CHAIRMAN: Well, I beg yours.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: This witness is right before the Cornmittee.
The CHAIRMAN: Put your question, Mr. Smith.

By Mlr. Smith:
Q. By what 1 understood your evidence to-day ta be, it is that anc of the

values of the Sterling Corporation was because it had a prior application ta the
Government departmcnts here for the diversion of watcr, and because it was a
prior application it stood in the way of the Beauharnois application being
granted?-A. Riglit.

Q. Do I correctly interpret what you said?-A. That is correct.
Q. Then I think yau will not mind the use of the word, that it was an

obstruction ta the granting of the Beauharnois order?-A. Yes, it would be,
naturally.

Q. And the owners of that property were the nnly persans who could deal
with that obstruction?-A. Yes.

Q. And yau and Henry wcre those owners?-A. Yes.
Q. And you did deal with that obstruction by selling it ta the Beauharnois

Power for 2,000 part intercsts?-A. That is right.
Q. Now, about value, you have told me about Mr. Henry; what other

value did it have?-A. Well, it had no physical assets. The two values it had
were prior application, and in rny opinion the value of Mr. Henry ta the
Beauharnois group. What I had in mmnd was that Mr. Henry would be asso-
ciated with the Beauharnois enterprise if it got under way propcrly, and he
would corne into it-as he has done.

Q. Mr. Henry carne in with the Beauharnois group, that is truc, and he
becarne general rnanager?-A. Yes.

Q. And he received a salary of $40,000 a year?-A. 1 think o
Q. And he was getting a number of shares in the Company aside frorn the

salary?-A. A number of shares, yes.
Q. And according ta the evidence, as I read it, the salary he had drawn for

a great many years, his maximum was $10,00-A. I don't think sa. I would
not discuss Mr. Henry's personal affairs.

Q. I arn not discussing his personal affairs; I arn discussing evidence; it
was $10,000 in two places, but he said anc could not take bath under the
regulations of the Governrnent.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: He said he was with the Canadian National Railways.
I don't know what his salary was, but I think surely it was rnore than $10,000.

Mr. SMITH: You seem ta think that is small change.
Han. Mr. CANN~ON: If my learned friend had been here he would have

found out.
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By Mr. Srnith:
Q. But that was the position that Mr. Henry took with this Company?-

A. 1 just don't understand what you are getting at, Mr. Smith. If you could
make it a littie clearer perhaps I could answer.

Q. Mr. Henry did join the Beauharnois?-A. At what time do you mean
lie juined the Beauharnois?

Q. When he became Chief Engineer and General Manager, and they began
to pay him?-A. Yes, but this was a long time after this Sterling. Now, are
you divorcing Sterling?

Q. I arn divorcing Sterling, and aside frorn what he got from Sterling, he
received generous treatment from the Company; that was more for bis engineer-
ing ability?-A. I think he was worth it; personally I do not think that salary
amounts to, very much if a man is the right man.

Q. Now, on various occasions you have in public places discussed this
wbole Beauharnois project?-A. 1 have discussed the St. Lawrence waterways.
For years, if I may say so, 1 tbink I was one of the first public men in Canada
to point out and publicly advocate the deepening of the St. Lawrence waterways,
and for tbat, by the Montreal press I was called a traitor. I have been the
man. who started and backed the St. Lawrence waterways from the very be-
ginning, and still believe in it.

Q. Now tbat you bave said that, do you want to say any more about that?
If not, we will talk about something else?-A. Ail right; I arn ready.

Q. Now, you made a speech in the Senate in response to an attack upon
you, or what you thought was an attack upon you by the Toronto Globe and
the Mail and Em'pire?-A. Yes.

Q. And of course you remember the date of that, I think; when was it?-
A. I think it was the l8tb of April, 1928.

Q. The 19th, I think, as a matter of fact?-A. Well-
Q. And you, of course, know wby I mention this, because there bas been

a lot of controversy over what you said at that tirne. I will summarize it if I
inay, or I will read it if you want me to.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I would rather my learned friend would read it. He
summarizes very well, but it is not always satisfactory.

Mr. SMITH: I will read it.
Hon. Mr. CASGRAIN: Read aIl the speech.
Mr. SMITH: I will do my best to please you too.

You said this:
Honourable gentlemen, I desire to make a statement on a question

of privilege, and to give an absolute denial to certain newspaper implica-
tions reflecting on my honour and integrity, both as a member of this
honourable body and as a private citizen.

The Toronto Globe of April 18 prints a despatch from its Ottawa
corresponident, dealing with the bringing down of correspondence between
the Canadian and United States Governments on tbe subject of the St.
Lawrence waterways, in which it says, amongst oLher things:

Hon. Senator McDougald is reputed to be connected witb the
Beauharnois Power Comupany, which recently obtained a charter
from the Quebec Legislature for a gigantic development in the Quebec
section of the St. Lawrence.

The report also contains a number of statements relative to the
merits of private and public construction. 1 arn concerned, however,
only in giving an immediate, unequivocal and absolute denial to the
implication of the Globe despatcb that I arn connected with the Beau-
harnois Power Company. I want to sav bere, and to say it witb empbasis,
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that I do not own a dollar's worth of stock in this enterprise, and have no
interest in or association with that company in any way, shape or form.

Now let me deal with a despatch which appeared in the Toronto
Mail and Empire, also an April 18, and similar to that of the Globe,
with the exception, perhaps, that where the Globe "reputes" the Mail and
Empire "suspects."

That the report was written by Senator McDougald, Sir Clifford
Sifton and Thomas Ahearn is believed, and the other members of
the committee played unimportant parts and did not influence the
decision. These three capitalists are either known or suspected of
being interested in power schemes, and the proposal to clevelop the
national section first at the expense of private interests who would
have the power, is credited to them. . . . The criticisms so far advanced
are many and pertinent. . . . that the proposal endorsed by the Gov-
ernment was prepared by power interests represented by Sir Clifford
Sifton, Thomas Ahearn and Senator McDougald.
Speaking for myself, I want to make a further positive and absolute

denial of the implications and suspicions of the Mail and Empire. The
report was prepared by the Advisory Committee, and by the Advisory
Committee alone, That the Government put upon that committee men
who presumably knew something about power and power schemes was
probably for the same reason that it puts upon the Railway Commission
men who presumably know something about railways;-

You perhaps have not appeared before many of those boards. They vary.
but for two of the prominent newspapers of this country to put out an

impression to the public of this and other countries that the members of
the committee were actuated by motives of private gain, or collusion with
power interests, is, I think, an action which is undue, unfair and unwar-
ranted. So far as I myself am concerned, I cannot add too much emphasis
to my denial of the suspicions and aspersions which these despatches have
cast upon me as a member of the Advisory Committee, as a member of
this honourable body, and as a private citizen. Perhaps I may take some
slight comfort from the fact that this sort of thing seems to be one of the
ordinary penalties of public life.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Hear, hear.
Mr. SMITH: I beg your pardon.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Hear, hear. U
Mr. SMITH: I don't know whether you are applauding the sentiment or the

way in which I read it.
Then you made a further speech some time later, on the 20th of May, 1931,

in which you referred back to the speech made at this time. I am going to read
only a portion of it. If my learned friend wants the whole text he will have to
read it himself. What you said was this:-

Honourable members of the Senate, before the Orders of the Day, I
rise on a question of privilege. According to the newspapers of this morn-
ing the honour and integrity of myself as a member of this House have
been attacked in another place, and I desire to draw attention at once to
a statement which I made in the Senate in April, 1928, regarding my
position in the much-discussed Beauharnois Power Company. Newspaper
articles had reflected on myself and other members of the National
Advisory Committee reporting on the St. Lawrence waterways. It was
insinuated that our decisions and recommendations were influenced by
personal interest in power developments on the St. Lawrence. In this
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House 1 stated at the time that I had no interest in the Beauharnois
Power Company nor in the syndicate. That was absolutely true and
correct. 1 may say at once that up to that time 1 had ýbeen invited on
many occasions to became a member of that syndicate, but had always
declined. After that date I was asked again, and had the whole projeet
investigated from every angle. When I was satisfied that it was a proper
project for me asa member of this Senate, as a business man, and as a
citizen of Canada, to take a finanolal interest in, I agreed to do so. Some
six months later, in October, 1928, I took an interest in the Beauharnois
syndicate. I want to assure this House and the country that I was not
considering polities or party in any way in becoming a member of that
syndicate, and was infiuenced solely by my business judgment.

1 may add that I put into the syndicate dollar for dollar with every
other member of it, and when it was dissolved I received my portion of
the common stock in the new company, and my portion of the money
distributed, as did every other member of that syndîcate.

Now 1 have no apology to make for accepting the chairmanship of
that company, nor have I any apology to offer on behalf of the company.
I state at once that the men who had the vision and the courage to under-
take the building of that great power canal, with ail its potential advan-
tages, should be commended instead of being condemned.

Then you went on:-
At tbe present moment the Beauharnois Power Company are employ-

ing 3,000 men on the site of the work-
and you recited the work they had been doing, and tbe sale of debentures, say-
ing that part had been taken care of by the best legal brains in Canada. Then
you concluded in this way-

I ask honourable gentlemen again to take my word and my assur-
ance that when I made the statement in this buse it was the truth, and
nothing but the truth. In another place a committlee is to be appointed
to investigate this whole Beauharnois project, and I am confident th-at the
whole thing will be cleared up there to the entire satisfaction of both
Houses of Parliament and the country at large.

The only thîng I wîýsh to pause and ask you about is your statement that you
put into this syndicate dollar for dollar with every other member of it. 1s that
true?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. How can it'be true? Perhaps 1 should go furthcr and say that you got
in on the basis of $37.50 per unit of the first syndicate?-A. I wasn't in the first
syndicate at all.

Q. You took over Mr. Sifton's interest?-A. 1 wasn't in it. 1 took it over
at what he sold it for.

Q. You took over his interest in the first syndicate on the basis of $37.50?-
A. No, sir, I took it over ab $30,000.

Q.That is $37.50?-A. I don't know anything about tbat.
Q.You can work it out?-A. I wasn't in the first syndicate.
Q.You perhaps will agree that the 800 part interests you got-the 1,600

part interests you got, representing the first 800 Mr. Sifton had in the first
syndicate, you got for $30,000?-A. That is correct.

Q. And working it out, that is $37.50 per share?-A. I take your word for
that.

Q. Thank you very much. And you have no doubt learned that there were
only three persons who got that interest at that priee?-A. I was told aftcrwards
by Mr. Griffith that I had paid the same price as everybody else in the syndicate,
and I took bis word.



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Q. You are not going to dispute the findings of the Huse of Commons
Commitee in that, are you?-A. I don't agree with a lot of the things in the
Commons Commitee.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: XVe do not agree with that.
Mr. SMITH: 1 do-say this to you: That the Commons Committee made a

finding that three gentlemen, and three only, got their part interests on the basis
of $37.50 in the first syndicate?-A. I was not one of those three.

Q. You were not one of those three?-A. No.
Q. One was Mr. Moyer?-A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Where is it in the reiport?
Mr. SMITH: You have got to do somne of your own work soon.
Hon. Mr. Copp: I should be glad to, know the page.
Mr. MANN: Page 12.
Mr. SMITH: Look at pages XII and XIII.

By Mr. Smnith:
Q.Now, on that basis do you suggest that your statement there is accurate,

that you paid the dollar for dollar with everyone in it?-A. I do.
Q. When you made that speech you hïud aequired, between you and Mr.

Henry, 2,000 part interests in the second syndicate?-A. We will just divorce
Sterling from, that. I w asn't thinking about Sterling when I made that speech;
neither was the public.

Q. Gîve me a chance to make it perhaps even better for you. You said you
had invested dollar for dollar with alI other persons, and you were referring ta
thesecond syndicate?-A. Yes.

Q. You had received for Sterling 2,000 part interests in the second syn-
dicate?-A. Yes.

Q. At the time you made this speech you, on behaîf of yourself and Mr.
Henry, had received those 2,000 part interests?-A. Yes.

Q. Then, referring to your statement:
I may add that I put into the syndicate dollar for dollar with cvcry

other member of it, and when it wvas dissolved I r&ceive-d my portion of
the common stock in the new company, and my portion of the money
distributed, as did every other member of that syndicate.

Do you regard that as an accurate statement, having regard to the f act that you
got Sterling for nothing?-A. I didn't get it for nothing. It was an exchange of
shares between the Beauharnois Syndicate and the Sterling, and had no value at
that time at all except the value Mr. Sweezey put on those sharies.

Q. It was an exchange of five incorporators' shares?-A. It doesn't matter
what it was.

Q. It was an exehange of five incorporators' shares, those incorporators
being largely stenographers in MVr. Ebbs, office?-A. As happens in every under-
taking.

Q. I haven't got enough stenographers in my office to make a Dominion
încorporatîon?-A. That has no significance.

Q. This Company had no signifiýcance, except that it was a nuisance to
Beauharnois?-A. Yes. It had a prier application.

Q. And therefore it was a nuisance?-A. That is for Mr. Sweezey to say.
Q. Don't leave it ta Mr. Sweezey? AN. That is alI right.
Q. So this exehange of shares, these five incorporators' shares for 2,000 part

interests, was about eight per cent of the total Beauharnois undertaking at that
time?-A. Well, I don't know-
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Q. I understand your application-2,O0 against $25,000. So I again say
now, having refiected on tbis matter, 1 wonder if you regard the statement at
page 127, on the 20th of May, 1931, as an aceurate statement of affairs?-A. I
do.

Q.You do?-A. Yes.
Q.Then, how do you explain the question of the Sterling securities? Where

does that corne in on a dollar for dollar basis?-A. In my own mind I treated
the exehange of shares on the same basis as the Committee t.reated Mr. Swveezey's
600 shares that he got for nothing.

Q. He, originated this seheme and did a lot of work?-A. Yes. So did Mr.
Henry do a lot of work in the Sterling.

Q. What ýdi'd he do? Show me one piece of paper that you have got with
respect to Mr. Henry and what he did?-A. Hie made a lot of reports and
investigations, and spent a lot of time over a period of five years, and, as he
told yeu, he considered his work, if paid for, to be worth $50,000.

Q. And that was ýdone in the employ of the Government or the Canadian
National Railways?-A. Not in the Government.

Q. That was done in the employ of the Government or the Canadian Na-
tional Railways, one or the other?-A. I wouýld confine it to the Canadian Na-
tional Railways.

Q. That was done during the time of his employment by the railway?-Aý.
Yes.

Q. And do yýou agree with this $50,000?-A. I do.
Q. What have you to show for it?-A. I haven't anything to show for it now.
Q. It is just your view?-A. It is my view, yes.
Q. iNow, you made another speech. I amn trying to cover as best 1 can al

your public pronouncements in connection with this matter. On the l6th of
July, 1931, yeu addressed the Senate again on a question of privilege, and you
referred to what had gene on last yc'ar and you read the statement which had
been reaýd to the ýCommons Committec hy your counsel, Mr. Starr, and then you
proeeeded:

Now, honourable members of the Senate, in concluding that state-
ment my atterney said there was another place where I eould be examined
if my colleagues saw fit. 1 earnestly ask that a special committee of the
Senate be ap.pointed at once to investigate my interest in, and my con-
nection with, the Beauharnois Power Company, and I assure the Senate
that I will facilitate in every way the bringing before the committee of
any material it may require, te substantiate anything I have said; aise
that I will put before it the facts concerning my interest, as to how and
when it was acquired, and as te my connection with that company from
its ineeption to the present time. I may say that 1 arn, I think one of
the few who stili h~ave ail their original shares in the venture. 1 have
neyer sold a share;, on the contrary, I purcliased more shares after the
venture got under way, and stili have them.

Now, as te what your interest in this Company is, it is represented, I think,
by about 502,000 shares?-A. I don't think se.

Q. No, 1 arn wrong-200,O0O odd. I got the five in the two spot-two
hundred odd thousand shares?-A. That ineluded the 40,000 shares of Mr.
Henry 's.

Q. Being haîf of the 80,000 whieh went for Sterling?-A. Yes.
Q. And you, as a matter of fact, at the time the Beauharnois Power

Corporation took over the assets of the syndicate, received shares and cash?
-A. 'Yes.

Q. So you stand to-day in this position, that you are, I think, the largest
sharehokier in Beauharnois?-A. I couldn't say.
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Q. You own jver twenty per cent of the share interest in the total enter-
prise?-A. I amrn ot sure of that.

Q. You wouldn't doubt it, would you?-A. Yes, I would doubt very much
that 1 was the largest shareholder.

Q. Would you doubt that you hold twenty per cent?-A. I will take your
word for that.

Hon. Mr. CANN~ON: We would like to have your source of information.
Mr. SMITH: H1e bas taken my word for it.

By Mlr. Smith:
Q.And of that interest, roughly one-fifth of this total bas îiot cost you

one single net dollar?-A. I put $110,000 into the Beauharnois syndicate in
cash, and was obligated for another $80,000 that I would have had to pay if
they had not been able to finance. Like everybody else in it-

Q. I say you are the owner of that interest, and you have not one single
net dollar invested in that corporation to-day?-A. 1 put $160,000 or $200,000
into the syndicate, the same as any other member of the syndicate. I got
cash and shares when the syndicate was dissolved, on the same basis as every
other member in it.

Q. You put $200,000 in it?-A. Yes.
Q. That is $190,000 allowing $10,000 for your investment in Sterling?-

A. Mr. White allowed that. I didn't.
Q. Then you put in $190,000, and on the l7th of November, 1927, you

took out $780,000 A. Yes.
Q. And 208,000 shares?-A. Yes.
Q. So that is your position in this company at the present moment.
Mr. SMITH: 1 think this would he a vcry good point to adjourn, Mr.

Chairman.
Mr. CooK: Before we adjourn, while we are on this, I should like to point

out that of the figures you mention a certain amount of the money and the
shares helong to Mr. Henry.

Mr. SMITH: Clearly.
The Committee rose until 3.30 p.m.

The Committee resumed at 3.30 o'clock p.m.

Hon. Senator WILFRID LAURIER M-\cDOUGALD was recalled as a witness, and
testified as follows:

The CLERK 0F THE COMMITTEE: You are stili under oath, Senator.

By 31r. Smith:
Q. When the Committee rose before lunch I was discussing with you the

speech which you made on the 20th May, 1931, in the Senate, and I direct your
attention to this portion of it; you said:

Honourable members of the Senate, before the Orders of the Day, I
rise on a question of privilege. According to the newspapers of thîs
morning my honour and integrity as a rnember of this buse have been
attacked in another place, and I desire to draw attention at once to a
statement which I made in the Senate in April, 1928, regarding my
position in the much-discussed Beauharnois Power Company. Newspaper
articles had reflected on myseif and other members of the National
Advisory Committee reporting on the St. Lawrence Waterways. It was
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insinuated that our decisions and recommendations were influenced by
personal înterest in power developments on the St. Lawrence. In this
buse I stated at the time that 1 had no interest in the Beauharnois
iPower Company or in the syndicate. That was absolutely true and
correct.

You did not actually acquire your interest until the lSth day of May?-A.
That is riglit.

Q. The speech there was mado on the l9th day of April, 1928?-A. Yes.

Q. And your first acquisition was the late Mr. Sifton's interest?-A. Yes.

Q. Which you wero previeusly nogotiating for, and acquired on the l8th
day of May?-A. Yos.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: The l8th day was the negotiation.'

Mr. SMITH: Yos, he said ho had been negotiating for a woek before, and

I said, on the l8th of May you had acquired this interest you had been
previously negotiating for.

Q. Then to, continue:
1 may ýsay at oncýe that up to that time 1 had beeýn invited on many

occasions to bocome a member of thýat syndicate, but had always declinod.
Aftor that date 1 was asked again, and had the whole project invostigated
from every angle.

Now I want to know what investigation you made of this projeet betwoen the

19th of April, 1928 and the l8th of May, 1928?-A. Well, first of ail I wanted

te find out whether or not, as asenator, I could take any interost whatever in the

proj oct. I had information from the Beauharnoiýs Company that thcy came to

Ottawa bore wîth their plans, and were simply coming here to ask the Goern-

ment at -Ottawa to approve of their plans se f ar as thýey affectod navigation;
that they were asking no bonus whatever; that thore would be no logisiation

askod of the Government; and that therofore thero was no reason at all why 1,
as a sonator, could net ally mysoif with tbe undertaking.

Q. That confirmation you received frem Mr. Haydon?-A. 1 received it

from Mr. Haydon. I did not bave a written opinion from Mr. Geeffrion, but
I know ho had given asimîlar opinion to Mr. Raymond and othors.

Q. That was the on±ly investigation yen made?-A. No, I also found eut

more definitely xvho were in it, what thoir plans were, what theîr plans for
advancing it were.

Q. Areýyou suggesting that Mr. Sifton haýd net tolýd you about this?-A. Yes,
ho had told me on many occasions about that.

Q. Thon yen said:
When 1 was satisfied that it was a proper project fer me as a member

of this Sonate, as a business man, and as a citizen of Canada, te take a
financial interest in, 1 agreed te do so. Somne six months laber, in (}ctober,
1928, 1 took an intorest in the Beauharnoîs syndicate. I want te, assure

thils Heuse and the country that I was îîut considering politics or party
in any way in becoming a member of that syndicate, and was influencod
solely by my buscintess judgment.

Q. Now I am referring te the statomont of yeurs, taken with the context
which I had roa d:

Somo six months ýlater, in October 1928, I took an intorest. in the
Beauharnois syndicate.

What do you say in respect te that statemont?-A. I have te Say this. It is

true that 1 bought those interests on the lSth of May, also the 1600 part interests
in the second syndicate. I paid 10 per cent, which was the first eall made, and

allowed them te romain in the namo of Moyer until the 2nd of October, and



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

the 2nd of Octoher was fixed in my mind becau.se it was the day on which mv
own nominee, Ebbs, took over the interests from Moyer and gave me a deed of
trust for them.

Q. You wiIl admit frankly that that statement of yours was entirely
mistaken and misleading?-A. No sir, I won't admit anything of the kind.

Q. That you were assigned the shares, part interests, on the l8th of May,
1928; and you have been discussing in this speech that 1 read to you, prior to
this statement you had been discussing a previous statement on a certain date,
which was April 19?-A. That was the only reason I got up to make a state-
ment on the date that you are referring to.

Q. Just follow; I want you to get the context of this speech clearly in your
mind; then you had previously denied having any interest on the l9th of
April?-A. Yes, and I got up to reaffirm thaýt.

Q. And you did that?-A. Yes.
Q. And having denied the interest on that date, the date that you

acquiýred the interest would surely be uppermost in your mind?-A. Not neces-
sarily.

Q. Why would it not?-A. Lt was three years later when 1 made the state-
nient in the Senate. I arrived here the night of the day that Mr. Gardiner made
a speech, and 1 feit that 1 should get upon my fret and reaffirm the sqtatem'ent I
liad made to the effect that I was not in this Beauharnois project on the l8th
of April, 1928-that I was not in it in 1928 when I made the statement at that
time-and 1 simply got on my feet without any preparation, without looking up
any notes, to reafflrm that the statement which 1 made in 1928 was correct. Now,
l Liad in mind the date on which my nomince, Mr. Ebbs, took that interest from
Mr. Moyer, and that was the date that was fixed in my mi, and I did not
think it made any difference at ail as long as 1 was not in it. 1 made the speech
in the Senate on the Igth of April, 1928.

Q. Then, is youýr summary of your explanation that when you made thýat
speech on May 2Oh, 1931, that you forgot the fact that ypju liad become
interested in this syndicate in May, 1928, and not in October?-A. No, I had
not forgotten; the date wa-s not fixed in my mind, and I simply used that as
fixing the date that came into my mind as the date when my nominee went in
there. I was not trying to deceive the Senate. The date made no difference to
the truthfulness of the statement.

Q. You wili admit that the statement you made there was entirely incor-
rect?-A. 1 will admit the statement was perhaps indefinite; I was not clear,
and when I used the word "ambiguous" in the buse of Commons Committee
last year, what I meant xvas not the interpretation the Committee put on it
but that perhaps I Lad not made myseif perfectly clear to the members of the
Senate hearing me.

Q. That is your attitude as you describe it now?-A. I describe it as
perhaps not exactly clear in so far as the date is concernied.

Q. It is, in fact, an omission amounting to a concealment, is it not?-A.
Nothing of the kind, sir.

Q. You assumed to describe it?-A. Just a littie inaccuracy in dates, that
is ail, because it made no difference to the position at ail. Ail '. wanted to say
when I made my statement in 1928 in the Senate was that I was not in the
Beauharnois Company, and 1 was reaffirming that statement.

Q. That wa8 that when you made your speech in 1928 you were not in the
Beauharnois?-A. Lt makes no difference if it was only the next day.

Q. The fact is that within one month and one day you were interested, and
that was denied in April, 1928?-A. My statement was, absolutely true to
fact when I made it.

Q. That being so, and standing up in your place in 1931 to reaffirm your
position, surely it is obvious that the fact you did come in within one month
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would be uppermost in your mind?-A. Not necessarily at ail. The only fact
1 had in rny mind was that I was not in on the l9th of April when I made the
statement. That was the only thing I had to reaffirm, and the only thing I had
to prove.

Q. This fact remains, that you were not in when you made your speech ini
April?-A. No, sir.

Q.You inteinded to reaffirin tlat?-A. 1 did.
Q.At some time later you had corne in?-A. Yes.
Q.And you intended then to teli the Senate that you were in?-A. At what

time did I intend to tell them 1 was in?
Q. In a speech you made you did tell them you were in?-A. I could have

made my statement to the Senate by simply saying I was not in the Beauhar-
nois scbeme on the l8th April, 1928. 1 might have said that, and thaL would
have heen ail that would be necessary to state; you might think-

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Compiete your answer, senator.
The WITNESS: I simply went on, hecause of an attack that had been made

in another place by a member there, to give some littie explanation to the
honourable members of the Senate in regard to the Beauharnois project. 1 went,
perhaps, into some little detail as to the financial set-up, because I was blazoned
ail over the country as a man who had made thirty millions out of the Beau-
harnois Company, and other charges that were absolutely ridieulous, and I was
trying then sirnply to assure honourable limembers' of the Senate that the state-
ment 1 had made in April, 1928, was ahsolutely correct, and nothing more.

By Mr. Sm ith:
Q.But on the 2Oth day of May, 1931, when you made this spee(h, it was

then a notorious f act that you were intcrested ia Beauharnois?-A. I would not
call it notorious.

Q. I use the word in its proper sense; it was a well known fact that you
wvere interested?-A. It was well known, but not notorjous.

Q. That word is applied to people of ili-repute, but I mighit be notoriously
a good preacher, and there would be nothing wrong with it; that is the sense in
which I was using that word?-A. Ail right.

Q. Using it in that sense, it was well known to members of the Senate that
you were then, when you made the statement, interested in Beauharnois?-A.
Certainly, it was known to everybody.

Q. And therefore you came to explain to the Senate how you became
interested?-A. I was not trying to explain anything on that.

Q. You said you had made a very thorough investigation; you told me you
took legal advice, and you said when you satisfied yourself that it was a proper
project for you as a member of this Senate, as a business man and a citizen of
Canada to take a definite interest, you did so? A. The only thing that interested
the honourable members of the Senate was whether or not, as a senator, I had
any right to take my poýition in the Beauharnois Company. They had no
interest at ail in what financial-

Q. I arn through with that portion of your speech, and I have accepted
your statement, and I arn dealing with the statement that you did make and
the speech in which you mentioned the 2nd of Ocetober; will you go that far
with me?-A. No.

Q. How do you distinguish it?-A. Because in May I I ook a ten per cent
interest in the second syndicate. I had pledged myseif to take the whole of
that commitment, $160,OO-it was only put into rny name, and I had for the
first time any connection with it offiially-I will put it that way-through my
representative, Mr. Ebbs, who took it over from. Mr. Moyer on the 2nd of
October. Then he gave me-what do you eall it-a declaration of trust.
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Q. There is no doubt whatever that you were the beneficial awner of the
Moyer interests from the l8th day of May?-A. That is right, yes.

Q. You aequired them on the l8th day of May?-A. That is right.
Q. You then say that you acquired those interests on the 2nd of October;

1 think I arn using a kindly word, surely it is incorrect?-A. 1 did not say I did
a cquire-

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Hie made no such a statement. I don't think that my
learned friend will find it in that speech.

Mr. SMITH: I will read it again.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. You took an interest in Beauharnois?-A. Yes.
Q. And you were referring ta the Moyer shares, were you not?-A. I was

referring ta bath shares that 1 had taken and-
Q. Yau were at least referring ta the Moyer interests?-A. Well, I had at

least my interest in Beauharnois.
Q. What was acquired from Sifton?-A. Yes.
Q. Who had it in Moyer's name?-A. Yes.
Q. And from the l8th of May yau had that interest?-A. Yes.
Q. Those were the interests you were referring ta in 1931 ?-A. Yes.
Q. There is no question about thet?-A. Nat at ail.
Q. Then yau naw say that it is not an incorrect statement yau made at that

time ta say that yau acquired those interests on the 2nd of October?-A. Well,
is it nat clear; the statement I made was not exactly clear, I admit that; I sc
that, ail right.

Q. You have no further explanation?-A. I could not have any further
explanation.

Q. Now I want ta discuss, for only a moment or twa, the meeting of the
Senate Committee; by that I mean the Cammittee of which aur present Chairman
was Chairman at that time?-A. Yes.

Q. Look at page 917 of the blue book; I quate from the Order:
Ordered, that a Special Committee of the Senate be appointed to

enquire into and report from time ta time on the mattcr of the development
and impravement of the St. Lawrence River for the purposes of navigation
and production of eleetric current and power and matters incidentai tai
such abjects; and that the Committee be empowered ta, send for persans,
papers and records, ta examine wîtnesses under oath if deemed necessary,
and ta employ stenographers and ather clerical help subjeet ta approval
of the Senate in regard ta expenditures.

You see what I arn reading?-A. 1 see.
Q. You observe what I have read?-A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: If my learned friend will allaw me, in arder ta camplete

the record could he not read into it the names of the Committee?
Mr. SMITH: Oh yes, certainly.

-and that the Committee be campased of the following Senators: The
Honourable Messieurs Beaubien, Béique, Black, Buchanan, Casgrain,
Copp, Farrell, Gillis, Graham, Hardy, L'Espérance, Lynch-Stauntan,
McLennan, McDougald, McMeans, Malloy, Murphy, Pope, Reid, Rabert-
son, Ross (Moose Jaw), Sharpe, Smith, Tanner, and Willoughby.

By 1r. Smnith:
Q. In pursuance of that Order this Committee held meetings?-A. Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: If my memory serves me right it sat fram the 2Oth of April

until I think the 7th of June, 1928, the date of the repart.
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By Mr. Smith:
Q.And you brought certain persons there to give evidence?-A. Yes.
QI believe they were two gentlemen connected with the Harbour Board in

Montreal?-A. Yes, sir, Mr. Harvie and Mr. Ferguson.;
QAnd Mr. Henry?-A. Yes.
QI want to know if you disclosed to the Cornrittee at that tirne that you

were interested in a developrnent in the St. Lawrence River?-A. No, 1 did not.
Q. You have already been exarnined, I have no intention of going through

it; I wonder if you have any further explanation to offer for your failure to do so
than you gave it to the Commons Cornrnttee?-A. I think that was a sufficient
explanation. It was of no interest to any member of the Senate whether I had
un iii terest in waterpower development or not. We were there to discuss the
adoption of theSt. Lawrence waterway.

Q. You read the Order of Reference before your deliberations?-A. I don't
believe 1 would have, because that Committee was appointed in the Senate
following a debate in the Senate on the report of the National Advisory Committee
on the St. Lawrence development, if you read that reference-if I arn right, and
I think I arn right--there was no reference at ail to the report when the Advisory
Comrnittee report was read.

Q. Have you read the reference?-A. I think I can make a definite state-
ment th-at 1 did not read the reference at the tirne.

Q. Although you brought witnesses there?-A. Yes.
Q. During that period you prepared questions for those various witnesses?

-A. That is correct.
Q. And arnong those persons you prepared questions for was Mr. Henry?-

A. Mr. Harvie, of the Harbour, first.
Q. But among those persons was Mr. Henry?-A. Mr. Henry.
Q. And you prepared questions for Mr. Henry?-A. Yes.
Q. And you did discuss those questions with him after you submitted thern

to him?-A. Yes.
Q. And you knew what answers he was going to rnake?-A. No. I did not

know what answers he was going to make.
Q. What dîd you learn frorn your interviews?-A. I could not tell you that,

after this lapse of tirne, but I did not know the answers he was going to make.
Q. You could have discussed with hlm and thus learned bis view?-A. I told

hirn what the Cornmittee wanted to know.
Q. Then you subrnitted the questions to hirn?-A. Yes.

Q.He saw the questions?-A. Yes.
Q.So lie knew what you were going to ask him?-A. Yes; and the objeet of

that was se that he would have tirne to collect the answers lie was going to make.
Q. Having given hirn questions, you discussed them wîth hirn?-A. No, I

did not dîscuss thern with hirn at ail.
Q. On page 919 of the bine book Mr. White was asking you questions, and

your answers were these-I arn reading frorn the tenth line, referring to the
questions:

Q. Who prepared thern?-A. I prepared them.
Q. You prepared thern?-A. Yes.

Q.And you discussed them with Mr. Henry?-A. Yes, sir.
Q.Beforehand?-A. Quite.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: That is what the witness said. You asked hlm about
the questions; now you have got the answers.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Did you discuss those questions with him?-A. Yes, sir, I think, and for

this reason, if I, rnight explain; before Mr. Henry agreed to corne before the
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Committee he told me that he wanted to get the permission of Sir Henry
Thornton, because he did not know whether any private opinions that he might
have in connection with the waterway would conflict with Sir Henry Thornton's-
and the officiais of the iNational Railway; therefore he would like to, discuss with
Sir Henry; and I personally asked Sir Henry if he would have any objection to
Mr. Henry coming before that Committee.

Q. Do you mean to say that Mr. Henry, giving answers before the Senate
Committee in a broad enquiry, was limited in lis answers by his employers?-
A. No, but feeling in Montreal and in that section at the time was-

Q. Answer my question?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: My learned friend has been very fair, and he reads the

answers to the questions, but I would like to read this one:
Q. You knew the answers he would make hefore you asked the

question?-A. No, sir; 1 did not know the answers that he would make.
That is what he said last year, and that is what he says now; so there is no
contradiction. H1e did not know the answers; it is right there.

Mr. SMITH: H-e said so here; you do not need tn go back a year ago.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: It is not debatable at ail.
Mr. SMITH: You and I are not talking about the same thing.

By Mr. Smith:

Q.What discussion did you have in submitting those questions with Mr.
llenry?-A. What Mr. Henry wanted tc know was that he wouid not be asked
any questions that might be in conflict with the policy of the National Railway.

Q.You have told me you submitted certain questions to him?-A. Yes.
Q.And that afterwards you discussed them with him?-A. H1e looked over

the questions and said the questions were satisfactory to him and lie could
answer them.

Q.That is what occurred?-A. Yes.
QSo when you told the Commons Committee, your meaning was, you

discussed the questions and you asked him, and he said yes?-A. And what I
toid you before, that Mr. Henry said he did not want to come before the Com-
mittee until he found out whether it would conflict with the policy of the
Canadian National.

Q. But he came, so it.did not conflict?-A. 0f course he came.
Q. You submitted the questions and asked him if he could answer them, and

he said yes?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, page 928 deals with the last question submitted by you to Mr.

Henry and answered by him, and to make the matter very short, you remember
speaking to him about how expeditiously this general work of development
should proceed, and you remember his answer was that it should proceed at
once?-A. Yes, I remember that.

Q. And at that time both you and Mr. Henry were interested in a corpora-
tion or corporations having to do with power development in the Soulanges section
of the river?-A. That had no bearing-

Q. Just answer me, please; you were interested, were you not, both?-A. I
did not consider that the Sterling was a factor at that time at ail.

Q. 1 think you really should answer me; it is a simple question; the Sterling
Industrial Corporation was in existence.-A. The Sterling Corporation was in
existence at that time.

Q. And you were interested in it?-A. Yes.
Q. And so was Henry?-A. Yes.
Q. And you were also interested in Beauharnois?-A. Yes.
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Q. I leave 110W the Senate Committee; we know what happened, and we
will leave it there; at the time the Order in Cauincil P.C. 422 was passed Mr.
Henry was Deputy Minister of Railways and Canals?-A. I think that is
correct.

Q. Naw I want ta refer shortly, not in1 any detail, because you have heard
evidence with respect to Mr. Geoffrion on the bill; I want ta turn yaur attention
to a letter on page 995 of the book which you have in front of you, which yau
wihl observe is dated the 25th day of May, 1928, and is a letter of Mr. Geoffrion's
to you?-A. Yes.

Q. And yau will observe that the purport of the letter is that there is no
reasan for a delay in the application of Beauharnois to the Governor General in
Council; perhaps you will take time ta read it?-A. I have it fairly in my mind.

Q. Why was that letter written ta you?-A. You will have ta ask Mr.
Geoffrion an that; I cannot tell yau.

Q. What did you tell Mr. Geoffrion in reply?-A. I don't think I discussed
it with hýim; 1 don't even remember the letter.

Q.You sec it now?-A. I see it now, yes.
QIt was the Sterling Industrial Corporation on the 25th day of May,

1928?-A. Yes.
Q. From. Mr. Geoffrion's statement did yau suggest there was no0 occasion

for delay ta the Governor General in Council and the Beauharnois project?-A.
X es.

Q. And you have no further comment ta make except that yau don't remem-
ber answering?-A. I don't think I ever answered it.

Q. You don't remnember discussing it with _Mr. Gecifrion?-.A. No.
Q. And you are unable ta give me any reasan why he wrote you that letter?

-A. 1 think he wrote that letter sa that the Committee could advise the
Beauharnois Company, and I think if yau read the letter in full you will find that
was the abject of it.

Q. There is not a word in there in respect ta the structure of the Beau-
harnais Company; he is simply telling yau that they have got through in Quebec
and they are making an application ta the Governor in Council in Ottawa?-A.
They were asking his approval of their plans at Ottawa.

Q. Why should he write you in respect of it?-A. 1 could not tell you.
1 was gettîng communications from different people, and lots of people, at that
t me.

Q. Then you have no further explanation than that as ta why he should
write you?-A. I have nlot.

Q. In respect ta his bill and Cal. Thompsan's bill, you have heard the
evidence here?-A. Yes.

Q. You will observe quite a number of communications by those two gentle-
men wîth you; you were in cammnunication with those gentlemen?-A. They
were in communication with me.

Q. What about?-A. I don't know a thing about it. I don't know at ail
what they were talking ta me about.

Q. Bath of those bis are to the Beauharnois Corporation?-A. That is
my understanding.

Q. They are hoth very estimable gentlemen?--A. Very, bath of them.
Q. I take it there is no suggestion from. you that they are making charges

ta the Beauharnois Corporation when those interviews with yau dîd not take
place?-.A. I would not say that at all.

Q. You would not suggest that for a manment some of them. are important
interviews, others are long interviews; you can give me 110 answer as ta what
they were except that you remember nothing about it?-A. I remember nothing
about it.
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Mr. SMITH: Now I arn going to ask the witness with respect to a couple
of vouchers; 1 arn going to give thern to counsel before I do that.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Now 1 want you to follow me in a few figures; they are nof very difficuit,

but you will probably check thern; including Mr. Henry's interest you had
5,200 part interests in the second syndicate?-A. Yes.

Q. For which you received $780,000- -150 tirnes?-A. I think I received
$700,000- -put it that wa-y if you like; I think it works out the same way.

Q. And of that, Mr. Henry of course was entitled to $150,000?-A. Yes.
Q. With respect to the interests that resulted frorn Sterling?-A. Yes.
Q. And you paid hirn that too?-A. I paid him $100,000, and stili w

him $50,000.
Q. If you take off Mr. Henry's $150,000 it leaves you having received $630,-,

000? A. Yes.
Q. Then as a member of the Advisory Corrnittee you received $5,000?-A.

Yes.
Q. And in vouchers which are already in you received the surn, in round

figures, of $8,300?-A. I could not tell you off hand.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: That is correct.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. And I believe there was a cheque returned of $800, but stili using the

round figures, which gives me a figure of about $637,500 that you received one
way or another from this Beauharnois Comnpany-

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Did you say you were deducting an arnount of $800
something?

Mr. SMITH: Yes.
Hon. Mr. CANNON.- What was that?
Mr. SMITH: It was an amount returned by Senator McDougald, about the

last hearing, to the Beauharnois Comnpany.
The WITNESýS: I think that mnust have heen that famous Bermuda trip.
Mr. SMITH. I arn not goîng to bother about that.
The WITNEfss: Perhaps I will bother about it later.
Hon. Mn. CANNON: Did you say you liad something to say about it,

Senaton?
Mr. SMITH: HEe said he would have sometbing to say about it later.
The WITNESS: If I rnay say it now. I did not know just how or when to

bring up the f amous Bermuda trip. I think out of fairness, first to Mn. King
and myseif, that I should give an explanation here which I have not had the
opportunity of doing up to the present time, or before the House of Commons
Gornmittee. I rnay say that the finst tirne I heard about the famous Bermuda
voucher, as it is called was over a long distance telephone. I called up Senaton
Haydon from Montreal one night and in the course of the conversation he told
me that he did not know that the Beauharnois Comnpany had paid Mn. King's
bill in Bermuda, and bis own bill, until that day. I was very rnuch surprised,
because it was the first that I had heard about it myseif. I eould not under-
stand how it happened, and I told him I would corne to Ottawa that night to
appear before the Housc of Commons Comrnittee and dlean it up, and give an
absolute denial to it, because I knew it could not be riglit, and there was sorne-
thing, wrong with it. I carne to Ottawa, but I did not get before the Comrnittee
at that tirne. I had no funthen information about it. The records were out of the
Beauharnois office, the original voucher, and when I did appean before the
House of Commons Comrnittee Mn. White, who was the Attorney-everybody
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had told me that the Bill attached to this voucher was the Bermuda hotel bill of
Mr. King, and everybody was so sure about it, and I was feeling very badly
about it myseif that I took for granted that 1 was being told the truth
about it; and Mr. White simply held up the document in his band, and he said,
"Attached to this is Mr. King's"-words to that effect-"'Mr. King's bill in
Bermuda." Now, when the original vnuchers caýme back to the Beauharnois
office in Montreal, and when I had an oppertunity to investigate and find out, I
found that the Bermuda hotel bill which was attached to that voucher was a
bill of my own personal expenses in the Hotel Bermudian which I have here in
my band. INot a dollar of Mr. King's expenses on it at all; it was the expense,
thýe bill, of my ewn roms. I had two roms at the hotel. I went there on the l4th of
April and left there on the l9th of April, two days before Mr. King lef t Bermuda.
Now, I did state at the time before the House of Commons Committee that I
personally had paid Mr. King's expenses in Bermuda. I paid them, as a friend
of Mr. King's, with no idea in my mind of charging them to the Beauharnois
Company-no such thought at all. They were two bills, two separate bills for
Mr. King's expenses on one sheet and my own on the other.

By the Chairman:
Q.Are these the original vouchers?-A. These are the original. There is

flot a dollar of Mr. King's expenses on the hotel bill in Bermuda. The balance
of that amount was made up of my travelling expenses from Montreal to
Bermuda and back. Mr. King did net travel with me; hie went there I think
fromn Halifax on one of the Canadian National boats and did not travel with
me. The balance of thc account was for hotel expenses in New York, all of
which were my ewn personal accounts.

By Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q.To what exhibit are you referring?-A. Exhibit 118 in the proceedings

of the special Committee of the Huse of Commons.

By Hon. 3flr. Cannon:
Q. And you say that exhibit was not shown te you last year?-A. Mr.

White simply held the bill in his hand and I took it for granted, because I. had
been told by everybedy that Mr. King's personal bill was attached te that
voucher that went te, the Beauharnois office. And as I said before, I felt very
badly about it myseif and did net know exactly what had happened. If it was
there I knew it would be by errer on somebody's part in my office, because I
neyer had instructed that that was te be done. I did net even instruct that my
own bill should go into the Beauharnois office and I did net intend that it should
be paid.

By Hon. Mr. Béique:
Q. How did it come te be paid?-A. I was in Europe at the time. I left

Montreal early in June. I want it elearly understeod that I wau the Chairman
of the Beauharnois Company, and the expenses that Mr. Smith is referring te
werc legitimate expenses paid for by the Board of Directors of the Beauharnois
Company. TÉhey were paid te me as Chairman for expenses that they thought I
wvas entitiled te for services rendered. I had net put in any expense account
from the lst of Januýary that year until the time I left in June. Mr. Henry, the
manager of the Company, wa.s in my office one day, and said to me that if I
would make out an expense account for that period that a cheque would be sent
te my office. I instructed my secretary to make eut an expense account. There
was a balance on an old trip in 1929, Nýovember 22nd, a balance of $2,5m0, which
included a trip te, Europe and other incidentai expenses, and nothing for the year
1930 at ail, for that six months. And I instructed my secretary to make eut an
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expense account and send it in. 1 diýd net tell him what to put in or how ta
make it up. He went off on holidays immediately after 1 left for Europe, and
the man who was in the office, Mr. Browning, is here ta swear ta the accuracy
of what 1 say, if hie is required. He was asked by someone in the Beauharnois
office ta send in this expense account, and it was mentioned ta him that my
Bermuda trip would be included. And hie made Up my own personail expenses
ta Bermuda, and not a dollar of Mr. King's in that whatever.

By Hon. Mr. Cannon:
Q.And you have refunded the amount?-A. 1 refunded the whole amount.
Q.Why?-A. Because I neyer intended at any time ta charge even my own

personal expenses on that trip tai Bermuda.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. May 1 see the document, please?-A. I thought yau had it.
Q. No, I have not got it. Now, 1 arn showing yau a cheque with voucher

attached, which has just been given ta me, a cheque by the Beauharnois Comn-
pany. Woul you mind looking at it?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Are those the vauchers that I have seen?
Mr. SMITH: Yes.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1 do flot abject ta that evidence, Mr. Chairman, but I

would like ta have a ruling, if yau consider we should have it. 1 have examined
the vouchers, through the courtesy of my learned f riend which are naw being
examined by Senator McDougald, and 1 notice that these vouchers are dated
January, 1932. Does this Cornmittee întend ta go into events which have taken
place sinýce the investigation of last vear? If the Committee intends ta do so,
then probably I shall have ta consider what evîdence I should adduce before the
Committee. If we have righit now an expression of views from the members
saying that we are restricted ta the reference and nothing else, rny task will be
casier.

Mr. SMITH: I have been trying ta find out ail suins paid by the Beauharnois
Company ta Senator MrDoiigald, and ta that end I did get and checked the
vouchers from this Company. I arn anxious te arrive at the total amount which
lie bas made or rcceived from the development of this concern. I conceive that
ta be very important, because I had intended, after praving these two exhibits,
ta ask Senator McDougald the source of incarne of this Carnpany. I say ta yau
that in sa f ar as rny investigations have grie, the Company had only anc source
of incarne, namely from its securities sold ta the Canadian public. Therefore I
conceive that what I arn doing now is of very great importance in arriving at
the amount.

The CHAIRMAN: What are these vouchers?
Hon. Mr. CAN NON: I do not-want ta be misunderstood by my learned friend

or ta delay the proceedings. I have no objection ta this evidence itself. The
payments were made properly, but the evidence opens up the question of whether
rny learned friends will be allowed ta go beyand the scepe of the investigation
of last year. That is the important thing.

Mr. SMITH: If yau are not objecting ta examination about these vouchers,
ahl right. I gave these vouchers ta you and Mr. Cook, assurirîg you that they
were the only two vouchers 1 intended ta prove.

H-on. Mr. CANNON: Will my learned friend give me an assurance that as
far as his investigation is concerned hie is not going into facts which happýened
since the investigatian of last year?

Mr. SMITH: I arn putting these documents in merely for what they show
on their faces.
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Hon. Mr. CANNON: Now?
Mr. SM~ITH: Yes.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Does my learned friend intend to, bring any further

evidence?
Mr. SMITH: I intend bringing in no further evidence with respect to these

matters.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: With respect to these matters?
Mr. SMITH: Or any other matters subsequently.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Ail right.

By -7kfr. Smnith:

Q.Will you look at the cheque which i showed to you, Senator McDougald,
and the voucher attached, and tell me what it is?-A. That is a cheque in
payment of Mr. Starr, who was my counsel, as Chairman of the Beauharnois
Company, before the House of Commons Committee last year, who rendered
ta the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limîted his bil, which is attached.

Q. As appears on its face?-A. Yes.
Q. With respect to this cheque, that obviously is just a stenographer's

carry-over, Senator McDougald, that date 1931, because you will observe-
Hon. Mr. CANNON: It should be 1932.
Mr. SMITH: We can agree on that.*
(Cheque of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, dated Janu-

ary 8, 1931, which it is agreed should be January 8, 1932, payable ta the order
of J. R. L. Starr, for $7,500, paid January 15, 1932, through the Royal Bank of

Canada, Montreal, endorsed by "J. R. L. Starr, Starr, Spence & Hall," Attached
is bill to the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, in account with J. R. L.
Starr, K.C., Starr, Spence & Hall, 1931, June 22 ta July 20. " To professional
services ini connectiun with Beauharnois Investigation; counsel fees attending
before the Investigating Committee; also engaged most evenings in consultation,
advice and preparation, including statement in regard ta the findings of the
Committee and statement in regard ta House of Commons Committea as ta
attendance of a Senator before it; fee in ail, including dishursements of $554.54
--$7,500. Toronto, July 3lst, 1931." Below is written: " Received payment
of above amount in full of a/c. January l2th, 1932. J. R. L. Starr, Starr, Spence
& Hall." Attached also is copy of the Company's voucher, reading: "J. R. L.
Starr, $7,500. In settlement of your account dated July 31, 1931, addressed
ta Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited," filed, marked Exhibit No. 140).

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Would you look at a further document which I show you and which 1

have already submitted ta your counsel (showing) ?-A. Yes sir.
Q. That is a cheque which was received by you?-A. Yes.
Q. And it is a cheque of the Beauharnois Lighit, Heat and Power Company

of the l2th of January, 1931-and in this there is the same error as to the year,
I think we can safely say, Senator?-A. Yes.

Q. It is payable to Dr. W. L. McDougald, for $477.15, a cheque of the
Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, and endorsed, apparently, for
deposit-I do not know whether that is your signature or the signature of
someone on your behaîf, Senator McDougald.-A. That is my secretatry.

Q.A deposit, of course, to your credit?-A. Yes.
Q.And with that there is a voucher, " Beauharnois Liglit, Heat and

Power Company, Dr. ta Dr. W. L. McDougald, travelling and hotel expenses
during parliamentary Investigation, $477.15"?-A. Right.

4M26-14A
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(Cheque of Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, dated January
12, 1931, wbich sbould be .January 12, 1932, payable ta Dr. W. L. McDougald,
for $477.15; with voucher "Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, Dr.
to Dr. W. L. McDougald, Travelling and hotel expenses during parliamentary
Investigation, $477.15," filed, marked Exhibit No. 141).

Q. By the way, Mr. Starr appeared before that Coinmittee as your personal
counsel? A. As Chairman of the Beauharnois Company.

Q. If yau look at the record, and I have read it carefully, there is flot a
suggestion that hie appeared other than as your personal counsel?-A. I do
not care how it appears, but hie appeared there as my counsel, because it was
decided by the Beauharnois Company that I should be represented by separate
counsel, and they undertook, correctly so, to pay Mr. Starr's accaunt.

Q. Is there a minute anywhere of the Beauhiarr.is Company to that effeet?
-A. I could not tell you that, but I do know that it was approved by the
management and by the Advisory Board and tben passed by the Board of
Directors.

Q. I know that the bill was passed, but was there a minute ta that effeet?
-A. I could not tell you that.

Q. You will observe that at the opening of this inquiry Mr. Starr was asked
whom hie appeared for andi he sîmply said hie was appearing for you.-A. I
made the arrangement withi Mr. Starr.

Q. You observe that?-A. Yes.,Q. And when you spoke in the Senate you made the statement, you read
bis statement ta the Senate, the statement which was read by iMr. Starr before
the House of Commons Committee?-A-ý. That is c'orrect.

Q. And that statement was giving reasons wby yau, Senator McDougald,
should not appear, but not as Chairman of the Beauharnais Light, Heat and
Power Company but because yau were Senator McDougald? That is true,
is it not?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: He could not divide himself Up.
Mr. SmiTH: Could hie not? I tbink you are making the division now,

but you are just a jump abead of me and 1 will get up ta you in a moment.
By Mr. Smith:

Q.You made that statement ta the Senate, quoting the statement made by
Mr. Starr ta the Hanse of Commons Committee an your behaîf, giving as a
reason why you shauld not appear before the Committee, that yau were a
senator? That was not as Chairman of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power
Campany ?-A. Well, he was acting in a dual capacity. 0f course, I was there
as Chairman of the Company.

Q. I will leave it at that. And of course the subsequent cheque was for
your own expenses at that time ?-A. Yes. Everybody else was paid their
expenses.

Q.And taking the sums which I have given it makes a total of $645,475.Taking away fromn that, in round figures, the $200,000 you had invested in this
proj ect, it leaves you a personal profit of $445,475. Yoiu will not disputa those
figures?-A. No.

Q. And in addition ta that 168,000 class A shares of the Beaubarnois Power
Corporation ?-A. I think that is correct.

Q. Sa you have that, or had that, and without one dollar's investmnent-
I do not mean that, I mean taking away the investmnent, that was your net
position?-A. That would be correct.

Q. I want ta get your view as ta your position fromn this standpoint: You
are a man who bas occupied very responsib]e positions, Presîdent of the Montreal
Harbour Baard, member of the National Advisory Gommittee, member of the
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Senate Committee, and a Senator of the Dominion of Canada. This money
which you received came frorn no other source except through the sale to the
public of the securities of the Beauharnois?-A. It came through the sale of
the assets of the Beauharnois Syndicate.

Q. It came through the sale of securities issued by the Beauharnois Syndi-
cate?-A. It came through the sale of the assets of the Beauharnois Syndicate
to the Beauharnois Power Corporation.

Q. The Beauharnois Power Corporation had not and has flot since received
any money except from the sale of its securities to the public? It has flot got
to the profit making stage in its enterprise?-A. Not yet.

Q. So that although it came by the sale of the assets by the Syndicate teo
the Corporation, the moneys which paid off the Syndicate were the Corporation's
moneys?-A. That is correct,

Q. And those moneys came from the people of this country by subscription?
-A. I got the sarne as every other member of that Syndicate did.

Q. 1 know you did, but if you will follow me I will be through in a second.
There is no doubt that the $445,475 that you got as a profit came frorn the
sale of the Beauharnois securities to the Canadian public? There is no doubt
about that?-A. I would not say that exactly, because I arn not sure that would
be correct.

Q. From what other source did that Company get any money?-A. The
Bcauharnois Power Syndicate had assets, valuable assets. They sold them Vo
the Beauharnois Power Corporation and they got-I do not know, I cannot
give you the exact figure that they got, but they got a substantial sum for
those assets, and out of thc moneys that they got for those assets the members
of that Syndicate rcceived their money; and I got my share of it just the same
as cvery other member.

Q. What I arn coming at is that the money that the Corporation used to
pay off the Syndicate came by way of subscription from the people of Canada?

-A. I cannot say that, exactly.
Q. I think it is obvious.-A. And more than that, it was donc on the advice

of the most prominent lawycrs in the country, and every member of the Syndi-
cate got exactly what I did.

Q. I know they did.-A. So that I was in no different position from any-
body else.

Q. I say this to you, that you as a Senator of Canada made a profit of
$445,475?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Not as a senator.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. While you wcre a senator?-A. That is different. Do you mean to Say

that a senator cannot inake any money?
Q. No, I do noV.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: That would be too bad.
Thc WITNESS: I do not know whether the honourable gentlemen of this

Committee will agree with Mr. Smith on that.
Mr. SMITH: I played bridge with two of thema the other night, and they

both made money.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. While you were a Senator of Canada you made, in its developmental

stage, from one of the natural resources which you say might have belonged to
the Dominion Government, that sum of money?-A. That Company out of
which I made money turned over an asset to the Dominion Goverament of
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$16,0O,000 at that tirne, a free canal, and since then the present Governrnent
have confiscated that canal-

Q. I arn not going into that.-A. I arn going into it, because that is what
happened, so that they were taking nothing fromn the Dominion, and they were
giving the Dominion a canal that cost $16,0O0,0O0, free of ail charges, for trans-
portation. That is what the syndicate were proposing to do, so that they took
nothing frorn this country, no rights from Ottawa whatever; they took no power
or anything else that belonged to the Federal Governrnent but they took it frorn
the province of Quebec and frorn the province of Quebee only, they got ail their
rights from the province of Quebec. Ail that was done here by this Government
was to approve of the plans, so that they got no assets whatever or no concessions
from the Federal Government. And therefore as a senator I have nothing to
apologize for to, anybody.

Q. Then the Sterling was absolutely valueiess and useless, if you are so sure
that those riglits belonged to the province of Quebec?-A. You ask Mr. Sweezey
about that.

Q. I arn asking you about it. That money and those shares were paid for
sornething that was absolutely useless and valueless, if the province of Quebec
owned ahl this power?-A. I would not say that at ail.

Q. Well, corne back to what 1 was at a mornent ago. I say to you that
you got $445,475 in xnoney and $168,0O0 in shares from the development of a
resource, let it belong to Quebec or let it belong to the Dominion, during the
developrnental stage of that project?-A. And took a chance on a political
gamble, that is what I did.

Q. Took a chance on what?-A. A gamble.
Q. You used an adjective hefore the word "garnble"?-A. A poiical

gamble.
Q. A political gamble, that is what you said?-A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. McMEsANs: What is a politi-cal gamble, Mr. Smith?
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: You are ton old to, ask that seriouslv.

By Hon. Mr. Cannon:
Q. I think Senator MýeMeans wanted to know what a political gamble was,

Senator McDougald.
Hon. Mr. McMENs. I was not asking the witness.
Hon. Mr. CANN 'ON: Politics is a gamble, there is no doubt about that.
Hon. Mr. Coi'r: You are speaking from experience, I suppose, Mr. Cannon?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Yes; we ail know that.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: May I ask a question, Mr. Chairman?
The CHAIRMAN: Certainly.

By Right Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q. Ia Mr. Henry's evidence, if 1 remember correctlv, and I think 1 do, hie

used the word "merger" in explaining the transfer of Sterling to Beauharnois.
Would that more accurately describe the transaction than the word "sale"?-A.
It would, sir. That is what happened, exactly; it was an exehange of shares
only. Both ventures were a gamble up to that time. The Sterling had no
assets, and the Beauharnois Cornpany, while they had sorne money in their
treasury, had no rights at ail, and the Beauiharnois rights only became valuable
when they got their charter as amended hy Quebec, and when they got their
approval at Ottawa, then they had no value and dîd not have value untîl they
were able to seli power to the Ontario Hydro Electrie and to the Montreal
Lîght, Heat and Power. And in that interval there were a great many things
that had to be done that cost rnoney, which no one here knows anything about
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and which you cannot tell about, but it was only then that the shares in the

Beauharnois Syndicate took value. They had their contracts with the Montreal

Light, Heat and Power and the Ontario Hydro Electric, and everybody knows

that they could not have had the money to pay ail those amounts that Mr.

Smith has been bringing out so clearly, unless they had those contracts, and on

the contracts they did their financing. So up to that time the thing was a

gamble. And everybody knows what the shares are worth to-day; they are seil-

ing at one dollar or less on the market, because of what 1 would caîl this

political gamble, because of the situation the Company flnds itself in now be-

cause of the investigation that took place in the House of Commons last year.

Right Hon. Mr. GlRAHAM: May I ask another question, Mr. Chairmnan?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes, certainly.

By Right Hon. Mr. Graharn:

Q. Senator McDougald, did you on account of being a senator, or for the

reason that you were a senator, make a dollar that you would not have made

if you had not been a senator?-A. No, sir, not one single dollar. I neyer

used what they caîl political influence in any way, shape or form, and neyer

advanced anything regarding my position to anyhody here at Ottawa or any-
xvhere else.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Are you trying to find out how a senator could make
a dollar?

Hon. Mr. ROBERnTSON: We are ail interested.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: I will tell iny colleague this, that if he traversed
St. James strcct up and down he would find this is a very ordinary transaction.

The CHAIRMAN: I want to rernind Senator McDougald that lie should not

talk too glibly about gambling, because the Senate won't let me buy a $2.50
sweepstake ticket.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: They are protecting us, because we cannot afford
it.

The CHAIRMAN: The Senate has adjourned until Tuesday evening. I had

a conference with Mr. Robertson, who represents Senator Haydon here, and

we practically came to an understanding that Senator Haydon would be readyý

for an examination on Tuesday afternoon. I suggest that if it is convenient to

everyone the Comrnittee adjourn now until Tuesday afternoon next at 2.30,
with the expectation that we shall proceed to take Senator Haydon's evîdence
at his residence.

Hon. Mr. BÉi~QuE: What other witnesses are to be examined?

The CHAIRMAN: I do not know if counsel have any more witnesses.

Mr. SMITH: Just Senator Haydon, as f ar as I amn concerned.

Hon. Mr. DoNNELLY: Have yuu any other witness, Mr. Cannon?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1 am not ready to make a definite statement now, sir,
but 1 think the Committee can feel pretty safe that I will not offer any further
evidence. I may have to change that, but I do not think it is probable.

The Committee adjourned until Tuesday, March 15, at 2.30 p.m.



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

OirwÂ, TUESDAY, MarCh 15, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking înto considera-
tion the report of a Special Committee of the House of Commons of the last
session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Proj ect, in so f ar as said
report relates to any honourable members of the Senate, met this day at 2.30
o'clock in the afternoon.

Present: The Honourable Senators Tanner, Chairman; Chapais, Copp,
Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, MeMeans and Robinson.
Counsel:

Mr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Arthur L. Smith, K.C.,
Calgary, Alberta, for the Committee.

The Honourable Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec; Mr.
John W. Cook, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Hugh E. 0'Donnell, Montreal,
Quebec, for Hon. Senator W. L. McDougald.

Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, for Hon. Senator Andrew
Haydon.

Mr. Thomas Vien, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, for Hon. Senator Donat Ray-
mond.

The CHAIRMAN: 1 understand we are ail ready to go down to Senator
Haydon's home?

Mr. CooK: Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, I have discussed this matter with
my friend Mr. Cannon, and so far as counsel representing Senator McDougald
are concerned, we are most loathe to put any undue strain on Senator Haydon,
and it occurred to me that perhaps it would be unnecessary for Mr. Cannon and
me to attend before the Committee for his examination. My learned friends
Mr. Mann and Mr. Smith have conducted the examination with great fairness,
and 1 am quite sure they would not ask any questions that would unfairly
prejudice our client. ýConsequently 1 suggest, Mr. Chairman, that Mr. Cannon
and myseif, as representing Senator McDougald, be excused from attending at
Senator Haydon's examination. The evidence of Dr. Argue xvas given here and
was of a very serious character. H1e said that any undue strain might affect
Senator Haydon unfortunately, and we would like to minimize the chance of anv
such thing as far as possible, if it meets with the approval of the Committee.

The CHAIRMAN: Well, the Committee has no power to tell you to go or to
stay. The matter is wholly within your own discretion.

Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: But I think it would meet with our approval.
Hon. Mr. T)ONNELLY: Yes.
Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: 0f course.
Mr. MANN: 0f course, Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the tremendous respon-

sibility resting upon my own shoulders in the examination of Senator Haydon. I
think what you say, sir, is correct, that my learned friend Mr. Cook will have
to take the matter in his own hands, because 1 cannot see how we can say that
aur questions will be limited in any way. They may refer to his client, and I
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venture to say that they will in some respecte. Certainly 1 can assure him there
will be no undue advantage taken, whether he is there or not. But I have to
tell my learned friend Mr. Cook now that questions 1l have to, ask Senator
Haydon will relate to his client Senator McDougald.

Mr. Cooic: I understand that with regard to the examination of Senator
Haydon the questions were to be prepared by Mr. Robertson and Senator
Haydon's answers were also to be prepared, and that Mr. Robertson was going
to show the questions and answers to counsel. When I made my application
it was merely with the desire of avoiding any possible undue and unnecessary
excitement to Senator Haydon from the unnecessary presence of a number of
counsel.

The CHAIRMAIN: There is no member of the Committee who wants to do
anything disadvantageous to Senator Haydon, but you can understand that the
Committee cannot take any responsibility in the matter of your attending or
not attending at the examination.

Mr. CooK: No, sir, but I feel that I would not like to be absent without
explaining my reasons and Mr. Cannon's reasons. It is not out of any disrespect
to the Committee that we desire not to attend.

If I may be permitted, I should like to mention one other point. When we
adjourned on Thursday last I understood that my friends had finished their
evidence. Indeed, I had clearly understood before, that that was the intention.
But on Friday or Thursday last 1 was notified by Mr. Mann Éhat it was intended
to reopen the inquiry by examining certain other witnesses. I very respectfully
suggest to this Committee that that procedure should not be followed, and that
after Senator Haydon. is examined, as Mr. Smith clearly said in his very last
statement, the evidence against these gentlemen should be eonsidered as con-
cluded.

The CHAIRMAN: This Committee is not trying a case; there is no plaintiff
and no defendant here. This Committee is appointed to consider certain matters
and to hear whatever evidence is brought before it, and if a witness turns up
to-morrow if is our duty to hear him, if he has evidence relative to the subjeet-
matter. So f ar as I am"concerned I shaîl not consider this inquiry closed until
we are satisfied that all the evidence available is brought before us. I have
no intention that you or the honourable gentleman you represent should be
prejudiced in any way, hecause you will be allowed ail the time you want.
If you should desire to cail another witness I am sure the Committee will
give you aIl the time necessary. I arn not going to refuse to hear any witness
on any side until we find we have exhausted the matter.

Mr. MANN: Mr. Chairman, in fairness to Mr. Smith and the Committee,
if will be remembered that at 4 o'clock last Thursday afternoon I was called
to another conference in this building. So far as Mr. Smith was coneerned,
there was no question of closing anything but unly that he had no other witness.
We liad flot then had time to confer with regard to the evidence of that day,
but as a result of that evidence we decided there wcre other witnesss we wished
to caîl.

The CHAIRMAN: We are here to hear any witnesses that may be called.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: The press seems to think we have not called enough

witnesses.
The CHAIRMAN: Everything is now in readiness for us to go to Senator

llaydon's.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Mr. Chaîrman, did the Committee decide that

ail the members were to go down? I was not here ail the time.
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The CHAIRMAN: I tbought that was the understanding, that we ail would
go. Mr. Robertson told me it would be quite convenient and satisfactory, that
the place is large, and that there would be no objection whatever to the whole
Committee going.

Mr. ROBERTSON: The room is large enougli. But it occurred to me tbat
it is not a very pleasant, errand for anybody.

The CHAIRMAN: I think Senator Haydon will likely be glad to see ail bis
colcagues who are on the Committee.

H on. Mr. MCMEANS: 0f course, tbe evidence will be printed.
The CHAIRMAN: We must have five members there, at least.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: I thougbt that about three would be enough to go down

there. I should rather be excused.
The CHAiRmAN: Three cannot function.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: There is no functioning to do.
The CHAIRMAN: I do not think tbe Committee should sbirk any of its

duties.
Hon. Mr. McMEANS: I think the Cnmmittee cniîld deputize the Chairman

to go alone.
Hon. Mr. Coi'i': 1 think there is something in the suggestion of Senator

Robinson, and it is questionable whether it would be wise for us ail to go.
I tbink we could deputize three members, the Chairman, Senator Chapais and
Senator Graham.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: So long as you do not deputize me.
Hon. Mr. Coi"': 0f course, any member who wants to go can go.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: 1 second Senator Copp's suggestion.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: No member of the Committee can vote because

eacb is interested.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Is it your view, Mr. Chairman, that a majority of

the Committee bas to go?
The CHAIRMAN: There must be a quorum or there will be no Committee.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Lt is irksomc to me to go down tbere, but I will

abide by your rulîng.
The CHAIRMAN: Are you ready to go, Senator Copp?
Hon. Mr. Copi': Yes, but 1 would rather not go.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: Senator Graham suggests that if five of us are going

we ail might as well go.

The Committee adjourned to meet at the residence of Hon. Senator Haydon.

The Committee met at the residence of Senator Haydon, tbe Driveway,
Ottawa, at 3.15 p.m.

The CHAiRMAN: Are you rcady to start, Mr. Robertson?
Mr. RoBERTs0N: Yes.

Hon. ANDREW HAYDON appeared as a witness, and, having been duly sworn,
testified. as follows:-

By Mr. Robertson:
Q.There are two matters mcntioned in the report of the Commons Com-

mittee with which your name is specially connected, and with respect to which
I desire to ask you some questions.
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Q. In the first place, I refer to what is said in the Commons report
respecting contributions to the campaign funds of the Liberal Party made
through you?-A, My answer is that it is correct, as Mr. Sweezey has stated
in bis evidence before the Senate Committee, that he did make such contribu-
tions through me a short time before the election in July, 1930. I received no
contributions from the Beauharnois Company, but only from Mr. Sweezey per-
sonally. I would suppose Mr. Sweezey would have been the proper person
for the Committee to ask why he made the contributions. He told me nothing.
He made no bargain with me or with anybody else that I ever heard of for
any favours received or to be received. No promises were asked and none
were made. There was not the slightest relation between bis contributions
and the passing of the Order in Council on the 8th of March, 1929, by Mr.
King's Government. This whole matter of campaign funds is one on which
the general public is liable to become very self-righteous. Everybody knows
that elections cost money-and a lot of money-for perfectly legitimate ex-
penses. The ordinary voter gives nothing. The practice referred to by Mr.
Sweezey in bis evidence of large contributions by wealthy men or corporations
to political campaign funds was not invented either by Mr. Sweezey or by
me. When I acted officially as the general party organizer, nine or ten years
ago, I used to preach the doctrine at organization meetings that a man should
give to bis political party as he would to bis church-but I never got any
cheers. A man commits no crime by helping with money in an election, and
he is quite within the law. The Election Act was amended two or three years
ago in a way to help Mr. Gardiner's party, so that now the farmer's organiza-
tion can make campaign contributions from their funds without being specially
incorporated for such purposes, as was previously required.

I have only to add that I made no explanations or disclosures regarding
campaign funds to Mr. King, or to any of bis ministers or to anyone else. The
money went directly into the general organization work of the Liberal Party
as soon as it was received.

Q. The next question: Then I want to refer to a statement by Mr. Sweezey
in his evidence before the Senate Committee to the effect that on some two or
three occasions you were present and participated in a discussion between him
and Senator McDougald regarding the purchase of the Sterling Industrial Cor-
poration. What is your recollection?-A. I have no recollection of any such
meeting, and I am confident that Mr. Sweezey is mistaken. I took no part in
these negotiations. I desire to add that I had no interest whatever in the
Sterling Industrial Corporation. It was incorporated in our office in 1924 as
any other company might be, and my connection with it at any time was only
as a lawyer. I was not president. Mr. Ebbs was president, and some of our
staff were directors, but this was entirely nominal and in accordance with the
common practice in company matters in any lawyer's office.

Q. The next question is: It is said that you or your firm accepted a con-
tingent retainer-a retainer in which payment was contingent upon the passing
of the Order in Council approving a certain application made by the Beauhar-
nois Light, Heat and Power Company. What have you to say on this matter?
-A. There was no contingent retainer. Neither I nor my firm was retained
to perform any services in connection with the application of the Beauharnois
Light, Heat and Power Company to the Governor General in Council. The
Commons' Committee's report refers to the application as my firm's applica-
tion. That is a gross misrepresentation for which there was not a word of
support in the evidence before the Committee. It is well known, and the
evidence shows, whose application it was, and that it was filed long before 1
or my firm had anything to do with Beauharnois. There was also ample
evidence as to what solicitors were retained in connection with and to forward
that application. Several of them gave evidence; some of them have given
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evidence before the Senate Committee also. Not a single witness has ever
connected me or my firm with that application or with the Order in Council,
and for the very plain and simple reason that we had nothing to do with it.

As Mr. Sweezey has admitted before the present Senate Committee that
hc was mistaken in his recollection of his arrangements with my late partner,
Mr. McGiverin, regarding the retainer, it is no longer necessary to go into that
matter, except to say that neither from Mr. McGiverin nor from any other
person did I ever hear of such a thing as the retainer being contingent upon
the passing of the Order in Council, and it was not. As a matter of fact, the
fee in question covered, among other matters, the incorporation of the Beau-
harnois Power Corporation, which was not incorporated until the autumn of
1929, and the fee was paid on October 19, 1929, when that work was completed.
It is rather absurd to talk about the fee being payable on the passing of the
Order in Council which was passed six months before our work was done.

I want to say further that any retainer my firm had was a retainer that
any lawyer might accept whether he is a member of the Senate or Commons
or not. It involved no breach of the Independence of Parliament Act, nor the
performance of any service that could in any way conflict with my public
duty as a Senator.

In respect of my personal position I desire to say: As a member of the
Senate and of a firm that received law fees from the Beauharnois Power
Corporation for services rendered, I have not either directly or indirectly contra-
vened any section or clause of any Act of Parliament, and particularly any
part of what is called the Independence of Parliament Act.

The Beauharnois Power Corporation, the work of incorporation of which
was done by Mr. Ebbs of my firm, working with Messrs. Meredith, Holden,
Heward and Holden, of Montreal, and Messrs. Blake, Lash, Anglin and Cassels,
of Toronto, acting for the bankers and other interests, had no contract with
the Crown and never could have, so far as I know. If it is illegal for a member
of the Senate to be a member of a law firm which incorporates companies under
the Dominion Companies Act, then every member of the Senate and every
member of the House of Commons, who is a lawyer and does any business of
any consequence at all, has contravened the law many times. Such an argument,
of course, is no excuse if my conduct was wrong; but the explanation of what
I and my firm have done will clearly show that I was not wrong, but that all
the hateful publicity of last year constituted in my mind, so far as I am con-
cerned, one of the greatest wrongs that could have been done to any man in
public life in Canada. This is not a complaint. I am not the only example
in history. It is only a comment upon the political zeal of some people who,
to injure a political opponent, will stop at nothing.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Perhaps you would like to rest a moment?-A. No, no, go on.
Q. The questions and answers which have just been spoken were the subject

of a written document which you had before you, prepared prior to this exam-
ination?-A. Yes.

Q. You became a senator in 1924, Senator Haydon?-A. I think so, in the
spring, in March or April 19-

Q. Of the year 1924. Did you know Senator McDougald before you
became a senator?-A. Oh, yes.

Q. For how long?-A. Oh, I don't know-a number of years.
Q. What were your relationships with him? Business relationships?-A.

My firm and myself had business relationships with him, yes.
Q. For a period of approximately how long prior to 1924?-A. Oh, I don't

know-several years.
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Q. Did those relation3hips in any way go ta the discussion of power
projects?-A. Yes.

Q.To what extent?-A. My firm incorporated the-
QI have not quite corne ta that. I arn talking of prior ta 1924?-A. I

say priar ta 1924-
Q. I beg your pardon?-A. As far as I can rernember, we incorporated the

Carillon Industrial Corporation, for example.
Q. What year would that be, approximately?-A. 1923, perhaps, or 1922

-1923, perhaps.
Q. Was that Carillon Industrial Corporation one in which Senator

McDougald was interested?-A. Yes.
Q. To what extent, as far as you personally know?-A. I didn't know

whether he had others with hirn in it or not.
Q. As f ar as you know, he was the one interested?-A. lie was' one

interested, anyway.
Q. And yau incarporated that Company?-A. Yes.
Q. And rendered it a bill for the incorporation?-A. No, I don't think there

was any.
Q.Were you interested in it personally?-A. No..
Q.On behaif of yourself or any persan else?-A. Ohi, no.
QIn no way?-A. In no way whatever.

Q. Sa 1 take it that the only person yau know wa-z interested in it was
Senator McDougald?-A. That is ail I know.

Q. How far did the work in connection with the Carillon Industrial Com-
pany proceed?-A. It proceeded a very considerable distance. It was the
subject of a debate in the Huse of Commans in 19-I don't know what-24,
I think.

Q. But apart from the debate in the House of Commons, how far did its
active work in respect of the prosecution of this enterprise go?-A. It was
organized provisionally and stayed at that state.

Q. It did not go beyond the provisional organization?-A. It was organized
provisionally, as far as I can remember, with the idea of acquiring riglits at
Carillon and dispasîng of thern. As ta, that I dont-

Q. You dan't rernember that?-A. I didn't know about this business.
Q. Those rights you referred ta that they acquired at Carillon, they were

for the development of hydro-electrie energy?-A. Yes. There was already a
developrnent there.

Q. This was a development anticipated under the corparate structure of this
Carillon Industrial Company. Is t-hat correct?-A. As far as I know, yes.

Q. And application lodged with the departrnents of the Government?-A.
Yes.

Q. Which?-A. Well, with the Railway Departrnent, for one, as f ar as
I know. I don't k-n-aw whether any other was interested or not.

Q. Do you remember any further than the Railway Departrnent?-A. I
don't, without reference ta documents.

Mr. MANxN: I don't suppose you have tlie documents here, Mr. Robertson?
Mr. ROBERTSON: Oh, no.
lion. Mr. CANNON: I do not want ta pralong the proceedings, but I want

to have it noted that I do not see what this bas ta do with the subject of the
investigation.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. In any event, applications were lodged with the appropriate depart-

ments, or sorne departments of the Government, on behalf of the Carillon In-
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dustrial Corporation. Is that right?-A. There was an application, as far as.I
can remember, lodged with the Railway Department. I don't know of any
others.

Q. Do you remember what the distribution of the stock or shares of the
Carillon Industrial Corporation was?-A. No. I don't know whether it went
far enough-whether it -was in a position to have a division.

Q. Do you remember what proportion of the capital was paid up?-A. No,
except it was paid sufficiently to satisfy the provisions of the Companies Act.

Q. By whom?-A. By Dr. McDougald, as he was then.
Q. It was his Company?-A. It was his Company as far as I know, but I

didn't know who else were with him I told you.
Q. How long have you known-if you have known him-Mr. R. A. C.

Henry?-A. Oh, about twelve or thirteen or fourteen years.
Q. That would go back of the incorporation of the Carillon Industrial

Company?-A. Oh, yes. He was attached here to the Railway Department
years ago, and formerly with the Mackenzie-Mann Company. I have known
him I don't know how long.

Q. Did Mr. Henry have any interest in the Carillon Industrial Ccrporation?
-A. I don't know.

Q. From an acadernic point of view, if not otherwise, as far as you know?
-A. He had no relation of any kind, as far as I know.

Q. Following 1923, when you incorporated the Carillon Industrial Company
on behalf of Dr. Wilfrid Laurier McDougald, did you have at his instance
other professional-did you perform other professional services in respect of the
corporation of other companies, or the examination of their charters?

Mr. ROBERTSON: I do not desire to interrupt anything, but do not let us
get to the place where the solicitor must not reveal his client's business. You
know the restrictions I mean. You cannot tell all about your client's business.

Mr. MANN: Is this raising a question of privilege?
Mr. ROBERTSON: I am not the client; I am not entitled to raise it. I am

merely suggesting to you: I am not raising any objection.
Mr. MANN: Perhaps the senator will answer it.
The WITNESS: What is it?

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Following the incorporation of the Carillon Industrial Company in 1923,

were you engaged by Senator McDougald to incorporate another, or other com-
panies in respect of power development?-A. I think my firm incorporated the
Industrial-whatever the name of it is.

Q. The Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. Yes, the Sterling Industrial
Corporation.

Q. Do you remember the details of that incorporation or the instructions
received by your firm in respect of its incorporation?-A. No, except that-

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I object to that evidence. My learned friend knows
that it should not be brought out. But I am not going to insist. This is no
place to discuss it. My learned friend knows that he should not bring in that
evidence, but if he wants to, let him go ahead.

Mr. MANN: I am not quite sure that I follow the mental attitude of my
friend. I should like to know what he means-that I should not. I think it is
fair of counsel to state what he means.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I do not want any argument here.
Mr. MANN: I don't want any argument either, and I am not going to have

any argument; but counsel usually formulates his objection on some basis.
What is the basis?



BEAUHARNOIS POWER PROJECT

Hon. Mr. CANNON: It is fundamental.
The CHAIRMAN: We did not interrupt the senator. The senator made a

statement. There was a whole lot in it that had no relevancy to what we are
here for, but we did not interrupt him. A lot of it was argument.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: For the moment I am satisfied to have my objections
noted, and I will argue them somewhere else. There is plenty of opportunity
for that.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Then, Senator Haydon, would you please tell us from what and from

whom-what instructions and from whom you received any, if you did, in respect
of the incorporation of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. I don't think
I can remember exactly. I think Mr. Henry had some interviews about it at
the beginning. You see, it is eight years ago or so, nearly. I am not carrying in
my head everything that happened as to what the office did or didn't do.

Q. A company was incorporated, in any event, in your office?-A. Yes.
Q. Didn't you examine prior to that the charter of the Superior Sales Com-

pany, said to belong to Dr. McDougald?-A. I never saw it.
Q. You never saw it?-A. I never reinember having seen such a thing in

the office or anywhere else.
Q. In respect of the Sterling Industrial Corporation did Dr. McDougald

give you any instruction?-A. In respect of what?
Q. In respect of the Sterling Industrial Corporation did he give you any

instructions-I mean yourself personally?-A. I don't know that he gave me any
personally.

Q. Did he give any to your office, of which you have a personal knowledge?
-A. No. I think Mr. Henry said something about the need of having such a
thing, and the general powers required. I don't think there was any discussion or
consideration of what was to happen about it.

Q. I am referring to the time of the incorporation of the Sterling industrial
Company?-A. I am afraid I cannot remember anything about that-the fact
of what they said or didn't say.

Q. In respect of the Carillon Industrial Company the previous year, and the
Sterling Industrial Corporation in 1924, it is fair to say that an account was
rendered by your firm in respect of services rendered to procure these incorpora-
tions and their organization?-A. It is what?

Q. It is fair to say that your firm rendered accounts for professional
services?-A. I don't think they did. I don't know. I had two partners. The
senior partner, I am sorry, is not living to-day. I may tell you quite briefly, if
you will let me.

Q. Yes?-A. I thought these things were all moonshine. We have forty of
them in our office-people wanting to start things and try them out, and they
never get anywhere. Any office of any consequence in the city of Ottawa is full
of such things. You don't expect from day to day--it is all right to look back on
the situation, but day to day as it happened at the time it is impossible to answer
questions.

Q. Did you think at the time they were moonshine? The Sterling Industrial
Corporation?-A. It seemed to me it was always a difficult thing to work out for
anybody: it was always tangled with politics, and as Sir Joseph Flavelle said
the other day, when you get politics into business, business does not get very
far.

Q. You said you thought they were moonshine. Moonshine is something in
the air. Is that what you mean?-A. I take back the expression and will make
it clear by saying it never seeined--it seemed to me that they were the beginning
of possible or impossible things, and that I never paid much attention personally
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to what would corne out at any tirne, or ever. 1 arn speaking of the feeling and
position at the tirne you are talking about.

Q. That applies to the two corporations to whicli we have been referring, the
Carillon Industrial Comnpany and the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. Yes.
As I told you, there are forty more for other people in McGiverin and Haydon's
office.

Q. We are just interested in these two?-A. Yes.
Q. Did you so express that to Senator McDougald, in the forrn of rnOont-

shine?-A. I don't 'know wlietlier I did or not. If you carne in and wanted
.sornething done I don't know tliat I would tell you it was silly, even if I thought
so.

Q. You don't think your firrn ever rendered a bull for these rnoonshine opera-
tions?-A. I don't know. I don't follow out the bill rendering, or didn't.

Mr. MANN: I arn going to ask Mr. Robertson if lie anticipated that we
would discuss Sterling Industrial Corporation, and if lie lias any books of Senator
llaydon's firrn that will lielp us.

Tlie WrrNESS: Tliey were ahl produced hast ye ar.
Mr. MANN: That rnay be true, but they are not produced at tlie moment.
Mr. ROBERTSON: No. I rnay tell you tliat I did not anticipate that you

would bie asking tliat, because, for one reason, I thouglit you liad alreadv
examined Mr. Eblis in regard to it.

Mr. MANN: But we didn't liave any moonshine fron -Mr. Ebbs, and we
have moonshine frorn Senator Hlaydon, and I would like to sec these bills.

Mr. SMITH: Mr. Ebbs can probaly produce them for you inter.
Mr. ROBERTSON: Do you mean tlie dockets?
Mr. MANN: Yes, exactly.
Mr. ROBERnTSON: It was produced last year. You can see it any tirne.
Mr. MANN: That is not the difficulty, I arn not able to ask Senator Hay-

don anything about it wlien I arn looking at it.
Mr. ROBERTSON: I ratlier think tliere is, in fact, I arn sure there is an

exhibit, a copy of the account as it appeared in Lhe books.
Mr. MANN: I cannot find any copy anywliere in tlie record.
Mr. ROBERTSON: There was one in tlie record just as it appeared in the

books.
Mr. MANN: Are you referring to tlie copy of account, Exhibit No. 88?

Surely tliat is not tlie aecount you are referring to.
Mr. ROBERTSON: I think it is.
Mr. MANN: You see, the difficulty wvitli that account is that it starts in

September, 1928. How can that le tlie account which we are discussing in 1923
and 1924?

Mr. ROBERTSON: Tliat is tlie only aceount I have seen. If there is another
one I don't know about it. I don't know wlietlier there is on in 1,924. I bave
neyer seen it.

Mr. MANN: Quite. That is the only account I have seen.
Mr. ROBERTSON: If tlie book is avaihable, I don't know anything about it.
Mr. MANN: Then I rnay take it that it lias not been anticipated that I

w'ouhd discuss the Sterling Industrial Corporation, and tliere are no books liere.
Mr. ROBERTSON: There are no books here.
Mr. MANN: Tliere are no accounts or items for services rendered in respect

Of the 1923 and 1924 incorporation-
Mr. ROBERTSON: Tliere are no books liere of any kind.
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Mr. MANN: Wil you make a statement that they will bie produced by
someone else, possibly, subject ta, the necessity that they will have to be dis-
cussed with Senator Haydon again.

The WITNESS: 1 will dis cuss anything. There isn't anything wrong with
the books or the entries or anything else. You can take themo home if you like;
put thema in your own records.

Mr. ROBERTSON: If there is any other book-and I have neyer seen it or
been told about it-if there is another book which can be got it will be produced
for your inspection.

Mr. MANN: I don't knov, what you mean by "another book." I mean a
record of the account for services rendered by McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs in
respect of the incorporation of this company in 1923 and 1924. I don't know
what you mean by "another book." 1l mean the book or docket-

Mr. ROBERTSON: I arn not intending to split hairs. If there is any book
stîli available with any such entries in it, it will be produced for your inspection.
The reason I say "another book" is because I was shown one book with an
account in it.

Mr. MANN: I have an account for disbursements that starts in September,
1928, which obviously lias no relation to an account in 1923 or 1924.

Mr. ROBERTSON: That is the only one I have ever seen, I arn telling you.
Mr. MANN: That is the only one I have ever seen.
The CHAIRMAN: What is this that you gentlemen are arguîng about?
Mr. ROBERTSON: I haven't the faintest idea. I thought I was giving the

broadest undertaking possible. If anybody can add to it, I will give that too.
I want it to be distinctly understood that if there is any kind of book having
relation to these accounts it will be produced. I don't know that there should
be any more discussion about it.,

Mr. MANN: I can't sec any reason why there should.
The CHAIRMAN: What is it, exactly, that you want, Mr. Mann.
Mr. MANN: Just exactly wýhat Mr. Robertson lias now said lie will give

me.
The CHAIRMAN: Then you ought to get on in that case. Go ahead.

By Mr. Mann:
Q.Senator, arn I to understand that in sa far as the business transacted

by the Sterling Industrial Corporation is concerncd, you have no recollection
of it?-A. I have none.

Q. May I ask you if you have any personal recollection of any transaction
in respect of'the Carillon development which was the subj ect of minutes of the
Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. What is that?

Q. Have you any recollection of any matter relating to the Carillon
development which was the subject of minutes of the Sterling Industrial Cor-
poration?-A. I haven't any. I didn't know there was any relation between
tlier.

Q. I think you have told me that the Carillon Industrial Company had
filed application with some appropriate department in respect of Carillon?-
A. Yes.

QI find in the minutes, Exhibit No. 92- -A. Minutes of what?
Q.The minutes, Exhibit No. 92, of the Sterling Industrial Corporation,

of the 27th of September, 1924-reference ta the Carillon development in the
following terras:-

The secretary stated that some consideration had been given ta the
filing of an application by the company for riglits to develop water-power
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on the Ottawa River at Carillon under an agreement with the Govern-
ment through the Department of Railways and Canais and that Mr.
J. B. McRae, Consulting Engineer, Ottawa, ha.d made a prelirninary
investigation and estimate upon the project and that if this application
were made and the rights granted Messrs. Harris-Forbes, of Boston,
would undertake to finance the projeet. Messrs. Harris-Forbes' repre-
sentative is Mr. W. E. McGregor, who is to-day represented by Mr.
Berkowitz. Mr. Berkowitz stated that if the Sterling Industrial Cor-
poration should acquire any rights at Carillon he would require some
assurance that this Corporation would be ready to transfer themn to Mr.
MeGregor.

Does that in any way refresh your mernory?-A. No, I neyer heard it before.
Q.You neyer heard of it before, nor of McGregor or Harris-Forbes?-

A. Oh, yes.
Q. In reference to the minutes that 1 arn referring to as being from the

books of the Sterling Industrial Company?-A. No. 1 was not following the
work of the Sterling Industrial Corporation in any way whatever.

Q. Were you taking any instructions from anybody?-A. I was not.
Q. Was anybody in your office?-A%. I don't know.
Q. To your knowledge?-A. Except Mr. Ebbs, so far as he did, if he did.
Q. Was the late Mr. McGiverin?-A. Mr. McGiverin may have been doing

it, I don't know. H1e didn't tell me.
Q. Do you say you personally took no instructions from Senator McDougald

in respect of the operations of the Carillon Industrial Company and the Sterling
Industrial Corporation?-A. Nothing further that I remember, except in respect
of thc incorporation of the company.

Q. And that is ail you know about it?-A. That is ail I remember about it.
Q. Subsequent to that you say Mr. Ekbs may have?-A. Hie may have.

May be Mr. McGiverin-
Q. Did you instruct Mr. Ebbs to take instructions frorn Senator McDougald?

-A. I don't remember that I did so. It may be difficuit for you to understand.
I was away a great deai; I wasn't at my office haîf the time. If I had been at
home I would not be here. However, I cannot help that.

Q. You are not able to say then how instructions were given?-A. No, I
arn not able to say.

Q. You took no part in instructing Mr. Ebbs to take instructions from
Senator McDougaid?-A. No. What you have read to-day I have iistened to
for the first time.
* Q. Foilowing 1924, after the incorporation of the Sterling Industrial Cor-

poration, did, you in any way foilow the fortunes of that Corporation?-A. No.
Q. Did you have any interest whatever in its future from any point of view?

-A. I neyer had any interest in its presentor future under any circurnstances.
Q. Did you have any knowledge of its possibilities?-A. No.
Q. Did you have any discussion with.Senator McDougald, or any members

of your firrn, in respect of its possibilities for the deveioprnent of water power?-
A. I wasn't developing water power.

Q. I arn asking you if you had any knowiedge?-A. I did not.
Q. Or took any interest in its possibilities?-A. I had no knowledge; I

didn't know what it was doing.
Q. Did you ever, later, know what it was doing?-A. No.
Q. Do you know between 1924 and the 'present date what it has done?--

A. No, except what I read in the papers last summer of the investigation.
Q. Only what. you have read in the papers?-A. As far as I can rernember,
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Q. May I take it that from 1924 to 1928 you neyer at any time discussed
with Senator McDougald the possibilities of the applications that had been put
in to the appropriate departments of the Government by either the Carillon
Industrial Corporation or the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. I don't
remember.

Q. You say you don't remember having had any conversations?-A.,. Thaý
i.s what I say.

Q. Did you see Senator McDougald in your office in respect of these two
companies or their possibulities in regard to the development of water power?-
A. 1 don't know that I did.

Q. Is that ail you can say, senator?-A. Yes.
Q. You don't know what you did?-A. That is wýhat I can say.
Q. Just tell me what that means--you don't know that you did?-A. Well,

I was not engageýd with Senator McDougald in promoting anything. For example,
to start with, 1 was not engaged in promoting power sehemes on any river or any-
where else.

.Q. I quite appreciate that?-A. I can't remember when a man cornes iii
and talks about something four or five or six years ago.

Q. You are a professional man and a prominent lawyer?-A. Ail right,
leave it at that.

Q. You are satisfied that I should leave it at that?-A. My statement.
Q. And you incorporated in your office these two cornpanîes?-A. Yes.
Q. And there had been applications made by these two companies for water

power rights on the Ottawa River at Carillon-?-A. Yes.
Q. And on the St. Lawrence, in the Soulanges section?-A. Yes.
Q. And you knew that?-A. Yes, I knew that.
Q. And you ha'd seen Mr. Hlenry in connection with one of those corpora-

tions?-A. Yes.
Q. And you knew Mr. Hîenry was an engineer?-A. Yes.
Q. And that he had been connected with the Government, in the Depart-

ment of Railways and Canais. Is that correct?-A. Yes, I knew lie had been
there.

Q. And you did know lie had gone to the Canadian iNational Railways in
1923?-A. He went sometime, I don't know when.

Q. And now, what I arn asking is: Did you advise Mr. Henry or Senator
MciDougald, or either of them, or discuss with Mr. Henry or Mr. McDougald,
or either of them, the possibilities of advantage to be gained by either of those
companies ?-A. Neyer remember having-

Q. In the power field?-A. iNever remember having anything to do with it.
Q. And were neyer asked?-A. Neyer remember having anything to do

with it.
QIs that correct?-A. I neyer remember having any such.
Q.Then I may take it that in so far as any interest whatever in the projects

of these two companies is concerned you have no knowledge at all?-A. Nothing
more than I have told you.

Q. Did you, later on in 1928, have any interest or knowledge revived in the
course of operations of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. No.

Q. Did you know anything about the Beauharnois development in 1927 or
1928, let us say?-A. Oh, I had heard a lot about the poSsible Beauharnois
developrnent in late 1927, and part of 1928, perhaps.

Q.Late 1927 and part of 1928, perhaps. When you say you had.heard a
lot about it, do you mean you had read a lot, or had discussed it*?-.;A. Oh,
mostly from newspaper stuif, Mr. Sweezey's interest and the possible interest of
the Great Lakes Transportation and Power Company about which I didn't know
anything except what 1 saw in the papers.
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Q. You mentioned Mr. Sweezey?-A. Yes. I saw that in the papers from
time to time.

Q. You didn't have anything from Mr. Sweezey?-A. Oh, no0.
Q. Did you see Mr. Sweezey at all?-A. I saw him occasionally. Mr.

Sweezey and I were both on the Board of Trustees of Queen's University. I
used to see him there two or three times a year. I neyer talked to him about
any such thing.

Q. Neyer talked about power with Mr. Sweezey?-A. Neyer talked about
power with Mr. Sweezey, no.

Q. He neyer talked power to y.ou?-Aý. I don't remember that he did.
Q. Merely general conversation as co-trustees of the University?-A. Well,

up there, there was neyer anything spoken of.
Q. Did you ever at any time frorn 1923 up to, date discuss power with Mr.

Sweezey or refcr to the project of the Beauharnois Power Corporation, or any
other power project-with Mr. Sweezey-in relation to the development of the
Soulanges section of the St. Lawrence River?-A. I neyer discussed power projeets
with him, no. I had no reason to do so. I had no relationship with Mr. Sweezey.

Q. Did you ever discuss with Senator McDougald or with Senator Raymond
the resuit of or the effeet of the delîberations of the National Advisory Committee
in respect of navigation and hydro electric energy?-A. With what?

Q. With respect-?-A. Wýith what concern?
Q. The National Advisory Committee, the Comm;ttee under the Privy

Couincil Order 779, 1924, which brouglit ini this report in January, 1928?-A. I
certainly neyer discussed that Cominittee with Senator Raymond, and I do not
remember discussing it with Senator MýeDoiuald. If, as I think he says some-
where, he asked me sornething about it -if he says I gave hlm an answer I abide
by what he said, but I have no recollection. W1ýhy should 1?

Q. We don't know why?-A. Neither do I.
Q. We are trying to, find out if you did?---A. I hqrl nothing to do with such

things. That was a Commission, as I understand, under the Govermmpnt. I had
nothing to do with such things. They were not part of my business to look after.

Q. Then, arn I to take it that you do not remember, or that you cannot say
whether or not you did discuss-?-A. My answer would bc that I didn't,
because I know of no0 reason in the world why I should.

Q. May I put it this way? So far as power developments on either of the
rivers to whicb we have been referring are concerned, you did not discuss them
with Senator McDougald, and had no0 interest whatsoever?-A. I bad no0 interest,
no0.

Q. And didn't discuss them with Senator McýIDougald in any way?-A. My
firm incorporated the two companies. the Carillon on the Ottawa and the Indus-
trial on the St. Lawrence. Neither. of these had the remotest connection with the
enterprise.

Q. I arn asking about after the incorporation?9-A. HIe may have asked me
questions from time to time. I may have answered them as best I could. I can't
tell you 110w. How can I recali occasional conversations over a series of years?

The CHAIRmAN: Have you much more to ask?

Mr. MANN: 0f course there is one branch that I bave not touched at ail.
I am pretty nearly through with this.

The CHAIRMAN: The doctor thinks you hari better not go beyond an hour.

Mr. MANN~: I was going to suggest that we have a rest.

The CHAMIRAN: Hie said you could go on for about ten minutes.

Dr. ARGUE: Ten minutes or fifteen minutes is the outside-no matter how
you feel, Senator Haydo.
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By Mr. Mann:
Q.Then--A. Mr. Mann, you have asked me about my conversations with

Mr. Sweezey.
Q. Yes, sir?-A. As f ar as 1 remember-as far as 1 remember my first

conversation in respect of Beauharnois, of any consequence at ail; was with

Mr. Sweezey. There were some others preserit; 1 don't remnember ail who they

were. 1 saw in the papers that he had been sued or was goîng to be sued by
people from, London whieh run publicly under tbe name of the Great Lakes

Transportation and Power Company. 11e always seemced to me one who was
ready to go into ventures quite freely, from the time 1 first saw bim. 1 first saw

him at Queen's Cellege on these boards, and in respect of the discussion of invest-

ments and things I flrst became acquainted with him. I asked him on this
occasion-it was sometime hefore 1929. or the heginning of 1929, perhaps-I

asked him what good was Beauharnois. It didn't seemn to me it was of any value,
because he had -no takers of power. I asked hirn if he had any contracts for

power. He said ne, he had not particularly. Ile talked about Americans who
would corne and settle along the river, and enterprise would begin. 1 said to
himn: "What is the good of themn if yeu cion't have semetbing nailed down?"-I

think 1 used the word that you have been asking me to repeat, "moonshine"-
This will neyer -et anywhere. It is not any goçed."' "Oh," he said, "but then we

have a contract in sight." I said. "where or how?." I bad neyer heard of this

before. H1e said witb the Ontario Hydre Electric Commission. I said, "Wby
don't you get it signcd and get sornething .!olid?ý" And bis answer was, "Hloward

Fergusen won't let it be signed until be gets $200,000?" 1 raid nothing more and
heard notbing more about Beaubarnois for a good timne.

The CHAIRMAN: But you were ail wrong about that, because it is a big
undertaking.

The WITNFSS: It is net verv big to-day.

By Mr. Mann:

Q. Do you rememnber, senator, what prernpted you te make that inquiry,
and wben tbat was?-A. I tbink it was sometime in late 1928 or the beginning
of 1929.

Q. Don't you knowv, senator, that in late 1928 and the beginning of 1929
your firm was doing professional work for the Beauhiarnois Power Company.

Tbe CHAIRMAN: Now, Mr. Mann, 1 understand it may take you a littie

wbîle te finish. Tbe docter prefers, on behalf of Senator Haydon, that yeu

should stop here, and if you have more te ask bim, te cerne back another day.

Mr. MANN: I quite prefer that niyself, sir.

The CIIAIRMAN: Tbat is the dector's suggestion.

Mr. MANN: Absolutely. I prefer that. There is ne suggestion whatever
to disobey the doctor's orders.

The CHAIRMAN: We will go back te the Cominittee Room.

At 4.10 p.m. the Cemmittee adjourned te C'ommittee Roem Ne. 262.

The Committee resumed at 4.30 p.m. at Committee Roem INo. 262.

The CHAIRMAN: I propose that we adj eurn until to-morrow morning at
il o'clock.

Hon. Mr. McMnANs: Are we going to bave some witnesses to-morrow
morning?

Mr. MANN: Yes, Mr. Chairman, there are tbree witnesses.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Are you ready to go on?
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Mr. MANN: Yes, we are ready for il o'clock.
Mr. SmITH: I suppose it is a question whether the witnesses will be ready.
Mr. MANN: I understand the question was directed to us. We are ready.

As to the witnesses, I understand that they will not be here, or some of them
at least, until to-inorrow.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Who are they?
Mr. MANN: A representative of the Winfield Sifton estate-I think hisname is Dunlop, if I amn not mistaken; perhaps Clifford Sifton, Jr., and Mr.Banks, Senator McDougald's financial man. While Mr. Banks has net beensummoned, on the letter from the Chairman of the Senate Com&nittee toSenator McDougald it was requested that he be here and that the Senator behere also to bring certain papers, and perhaps if Mr. Banks is the one in chargeof those papers he may have them. The other witness is Mr. Charles A.

Barnard, K.C., Senator McDougald's solicitor.
The CHAIRMAN: You do not expect any of them to be very long?
Mr. MANN: I do not think so, Mr. Chairman. But our expectations goawry sometimes. I do not know whether they will be long or not; it depends

upon themselves, I suppose.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Are we going to cali Howard Ferguson?
Mr. MANN: If we are going to London to examine Mr. Ferguson, I suggest

we examine Mr. F. P. Jones too.
The CHAIRMAN: I want to say this, that as far as I arn concerned we have

endeavoured to carry on this inquiry without any colour or suggestion orexpression of political bias, and I hope that if we are to have any more evidencewe shall not have any political speeches incorporated in that evidence.
The Committee adjourned until to-morrow morning at il o'clock.



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

OTTrAWA, Wednesday, March 16, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into consider-

ation the report of a Special ýCommittee of the House of Gommons of the last
session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, inl so f ar as said

report relates to any honourable members of the Senate, met this day at eleven
o'clock in the forpnoon.

Present: The Honourable Senators Tanner, Chairman; Béique, Chapais,
Copp, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbaých, McMeans and Robinson.

Caunsel:

Mr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Arthur L. Smith, K.C.,
Calgary, Alberta, for the Committee.

The Hon. Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec, Mr. John W.

Cook, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Hughi E. O'Donnell, Montreal, Quebec,

for the Hon. Senator W. L. McDougald.

Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, for the Hon. Senator Andrew
Haydon.

Mr. Thomas Vien, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, for the Hon. Senator Donat

Raymnond.

The CIIAIRMAN: Have you anything to presenit, Mr. Mann?

Mr. MANN: Before proceeding to eall the witnesses that have been sum-

moned for to-day, Mr. R. 0. Sweezey asked if 1 would ask the Committee to

hear a statement that hie desires to make under oath in respect of an answer

given by Senator Haydon in his evidence yesterday. Mr. Sweezey has asked

me to reaýd it to the Committee and ask the Committee to permit him to make a

statement under oath after the statement by Senatior Haydon.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Robertson is not here.

Mr. COOK: Mr. Robertson asked me to say that hie was engaged in a case

for a f ew minutes, and would be here as soon as possible. Perhaps it woul not

inconvenience the Committee very much to allow the matter to stand until he
cornes. He will be here shortly.

The CHAIRMAN: 'What about these other witnesses?

Hon. Mr. BilIQUE: Have you other witnesses to hear?

Mr. MANN: This matter will be very short, and perhaps by the time we
get it started Mr. Robertson will be here.

Hion. Mr. CAINON: Is it a statement from Senator Haydon, or from Mr.
Sweezey?

Mr. MANN: A sta-tement made by Senator Haydon in his evidence.

Hon. Mr. CANNON:- It seems to me it would be just as welI to wait.

Mr. COOK: Whiat right has Mr. Sweezey to, made a statement? Is it under
oath?

The CHAIRMAN: I do not think we had better discuss it until Mr. Robert-
son comes.

Mr. MANN: Then 1 wilJ eali Mr. Barnard.
201



202 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Mr, Ci-A1Ls AusTiN BARNARD, ]K.C., Montreal, appeared as a witness,
and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By M1r. Manni:
Q.You are a lawyer, practicing your profession in Montreal?-A. Yeq.Q. And have been for a great many years?-A. More than I like to say.

Q. And a member of lis Majesty's Counsel?-A. Yes.
Q. And have you aeted in re-cent years or for some time as a solicitor to

Senator McDougald, or in an advisory capacity to Senator McDougald?-A.
Yes, also as a friend.

Q. And I take it, from that, that you have been a friend of Senator Mc-
Dougald for some time?-A. About eighteen years,, I think.

Q. Have you acted as bis solicitor and legal aýdviser for any considerable
period of time in respect of certain matters?-A. In respect of certain matters,
yes, but I know that hie hadother counsel.

Q. Exactly; now, ýdid you act for Senator McDougald during the years 1927,1928, 1929 and 1930, let us say, in respect of any interest hie may have had
during part of that period of time in the Beauharnois Project?-A. INot in con-
nection with the Beauharnois Projeet, I had nothing whatever to do.Q. You had nothing whatever to do as to advising him in conneetion with
Beauharnois Project?-A. iNo.

Q. May I ask you if, in the early part of the year 1928 you did not then
advise Senator McDougald, or do some professional work at bis instance, in con-
neetion with the Beauharnoîs Project?-A. In connection with the Beauharnois
Syndicate shares, yes.

Q. I take it, you understand that to be the Beauharnois Project?-A. Yes;
well, that is correct.

Q. When was that, in respect of the Beauharnois Syndicate shares, that you
acted for Senator McDougald, as closely as possible?-A. Well, I would not like
to state here. I rememher the date, but I would not like to swear to the date
fromn memory, because 1 could not give you anything definite, but 1 worked it
out that it must have been some time in the third week of May, 1928.Q. But you acted in your professional capacity, did you, or in your friendly
capaecity, which?-A. I acted as solicitor.

Q. And I take it that a solicitor keeps some books and some memoranda of
services hie renders?-A. Well, in usualcases I do, but Senator McDýougald was
a special friend, and my relation to himn was that I did not keep any memoranda
of what I did or when I saw him. When we would think that I was entitled to
something, a cheque, he would give me a cheque for what hie thought was done
up to date, a.nd that would finish it. Idid not keep any details.Q. Arn I by that to understand that in your profesýsional relationship with
Seniator MeDougald you neyer made any charge in any docket or book for any
professional services rendered, notwithstanding their magnitude?-A. Absolutely.

Q. That is correct?-A. Absolutely.Q. The usual custom in respect to those matters, what I think others do,would be to keep a memorandum in the forrn of a docket as to the charges they
make for services rendered?-A. Well, to be frank, I do not. 1 arn alone in my
office, and most of my clients, my relations with them are that when we think
I ought to be paid something on account they give me a cheque. It is done in an
amicable kind of way.

Q. You trust your clients to pay you?-A. I do, and I must say I have been
lucky so far.

Q. I wish I had had the samne experience; then you have no book whatever,
or no memorandia, or no data referring to professional services rendered to
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Senator McDougal in connection with Beauharnois, under your statement?-A.
Neither in connection with Beauharnois or in connection with anything for
eighteen years.

Q.You say for eighteen years?-A. Yes.
Q.But you have neyer rendered accounts for your services?-A. No, and

have neyer suffered in any way.
Q. Then you say you acted in 1928; can you fix in your mind any professional

services you rendered to Senator MciDougald in 1928? I arn only giving you
the whole year now, to embody that entire period?-A. I would like to sav, Mr.
Chairman, that my relations with Senator McDougald in connection with this
reatter were as solicitor, and under our law in Quebec it is a privilege, and unless
I arn released from that privilege by Senator MciDougald I do not feel that I
have any right to give details of what I did or what advice I gave. If Senator
McDougald will release me from that privilege I wilI be glad to do it.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you release 1dm, Senator McDougald?
Hon. Senator McDOTJGALD: I have no hesîtation whatever in releasing Mr.

Barnard, and permitting him to give whatever evidence hie may give in connection
with any matter.

The WITNESS: What was the question?

By Mr. Mann:
Q. I will repeat the question; the question is in respect of what advice or

professional services you rendered to Senator McDougald in the year 1928
having reference to the Beauharnois Power IProject, its securities, the purchase
of securities, or in relation to any interest that Senator McDougald may have
acquired in that projet-be it Svndicate or Corporation?-A. Well, approxim-
ately the third week in May I acted for Senator McDougald in connection with
the purchase by him of the late Mr. Xinfield Sifton's interest in the Beauharnois
Syndicate which was carried in the name of Mr. Clare Moyer.

Q. Now you have approximated that to a particular week, the third week
in May; just how have you approximated it so closely as the third week in May?
You have no letters or memoranda?-A. Nothing in writing.

Q. I just want to know how you approximate it to the third week in May?
-- A. Well, Senator McDougald hiad his office in the saine building.

Q. What building was that?-A. Dominion Express Building.
Q. On St. James Street?-A. On St. James Street. Hle had his office in the

same building and on the samne floor as I had my office, only he was on the
opposite of the corridor. Now, he had told me sometime previously, in April, that
hie was going to move and go to the Royal Bank Building, and I had gathered
that lie would go the first of May. Well, I happened to be in there some time
on the l5th May, arouind that.

Q. In where?-A. In his office.
Q. In the Royal Bank Building?-A. Oh no, iii die Dominion Express

Building, and I noticed that hie had not moved yet, and as far as I could see
there was no preparation made to move; so that I asked his man whether they
had actually leased or not, and hie said yes, that they had not moved yet, but
they would move between then and the end of the month. Now, I know was
in there again--oh, it must have been towards the end of Mayf-and at that time
they were moving. It was between those two times that I had this matter of the
Sifton securities dealt with.

Q. So that the question of the Sifton securities or any professional advice
you gave, or services you rendered, was in the Dominion Express Building?-A.
Exactly.

Q. Before Senator McDougald moved to the Royal Bank Building?-A.
Exactly.
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Q. And you say it approximately must be May, because at that time he had
not moved; is that the way you fix jt?-A. 1 was surprised that he had flot
inoved, and made enquiry, and was told that they were going >to move about
the end of the month.

Q. Then 1 take it that what prompted you to say the thîrd week of May
was that you were surprised they had not moved?-A. Yes, and the business was
done, that 1 had, in the old Express Building.

Q.Will you say it approximated between the two dates?-A. Yes.
Q.Will you tell me what that transaction was, as closely as you can?-A.

Well, the first thing I had to do with it was that I had a telephone message from
Mr. Banks.

Q.Who was Mr. Banks?-A. Hie was Senator McDougald's financial man.
Q.What are his initials?-A. I think it is Howard N. Banks. H1e is here.

He telephoned me to go into the office, that Senator McDougald had telephoned
him with reference to a deal that lie had made. I went into the office, and there
I was întroduced to Mr. Winfield Sifton.

Q. That would be somewhere in the third. week of Ma,,y?-A. Exactly.
Q. An~d you were introduced to Mr. Winfield B. Sifton; who was there?-A.

He was therc-Mr. Banks, Mr. Sifton and myseif.
Q. And what was the conversation?-A. Mr. Sifton told me that lie had

arranged to seli his units in the Beauharnois Syndicate that were being carried
in the name of Mr. Moyer.

Q. L. Clare Moyer?-A. Yes, and that hie had arranged to seil these; he
had arranged with Senator McDougald to seil these to Senator McDougald in
consideration of $46,000 to be paid in War Bonds.

Q. Had you known prior to that what the silgnificance was of units in the
Beauharnois Power Syndicate-what the significance of that expression was?-
A. Well, I took it that it was a syndicate, and that was the designation they had
given to the part interests in the syndicate. Some call them units.

Q. Some explanation must have been given to vou then or at a previous time,
as to what that syndicate was?-A. 1 did not know anything previously. The
only thing was, Mr. Sifton said lie had so many units in this syndicate. 11e did
not tell me what the capital of the syndicate was, and he had arranged to sel1

these to Senator McDougald.
Q. But the purpose of getting you to that office was not simply to give you

a story; it was to give you some instructions, was it not, in order that there miglit
be a change of ownership in this Beauharnois Syndicate, was it not?-A. Mr.
Banks told me that Senator McDougald had told him to get me in to, see that
this purchase of those units was put through in a manner that would be legal,
and protect Senator McDougald.

Q.Banks told you that?-A. Yes.
Q.Would you just tell me what your next step was?-A. Well, I discussed

the matter with Mr. Sifton.
Q. Did you go to your own office then witb Mr. Sifton?-A. No, I first

discussed it in the office with Mr. Banks for a short time, and then Mr. Sifton
and I went into Senator McDougald's private office, and there we discussed it
more fully.

Q. Just tell me what tlie discussion was?-A. I was going to tell you. Well,
the net substance of the discussion was that Mr. Sifton was carrying 1,600 parts
interests or units-we cail them units.

Q. That expression is perfectly right.-A. And he had arranged to seli those
to Senator McDougald for $46,000, payable in bonds; and lie made it clear to
me-Oh, excuse me, I asked him how they were being carried, and lie said in the
name of Mr. Moyer, and then-

Q. Why did you ask him how- tliey liad been carried? Wliy did you not
assume tliey had been carried by Sifton himself?-A. He liad mentioned pre-
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viously, in Mr. Banks' presence that they were carried in the naine of Moyer,
and I asked him whether hie hiad any trust agreement from. Moyer that he was
carrying.

Q.This was ail in the presence of Senator McDougald?-A. Oh, no.
Q.You have not mentioned his presence yet; I want you to get out of his

presence?-A. I had not seen Senator McDougald that, morning at ail.
Q. I thought you said you had gone to his private office?-A. Yes.
Q. But hie was flot there?-A. No, hie was down at the harbour, and Mr.

Banks told me that Senator McDougald had telephoned him and said that hie
could not corne up himself, and that lie wanted Mr. Banks and myseif to attend
to the matter.

Q. Go ahead.-A. I asked Mr. Sifton if hie had any trust acknowledgment
from Mr. Moyer,,as I would like to sec it, to sec what.exactly the legal position
was. Hie said hie had not; that hie had full confidence in Mr. Moyer; that hie had
known himi for years, and hie was a very reliable man, and hie knew that as far
as hie was concerned it was ail riglit.

Q. A gentleman's agreement, as it were?-A. Exactly. And then Mr. Sifton
explained to, me that his idea of carrying out the transaction with Senator
McDougald was to get a receipt for the money, and a direction in that rcccipt
to Mr. Moyer, ýadvising him that Senator McDougald had taken his-Sifton's-
place, and to carry on on behaif of Senator McDougald instead of him--Sifton.

Q. This is Sifton's suggestion as to tlic manner in which the transaction
should he brought about?-A. Yes.

Q. This is ail stili in Senator McDougald's private office, with Senator
McI)ougald not present, but with Mr. Banks present?-A. No, Mr. Banks was
not present in the private office.

Q. Mr. Banks had not gone into the private office?-A. No.
Q. And there were only you and Sifton in that private office?-A. Yes.
Q. Go ahead;, Sifton mentioned the method just reiated of putting the

transaction into effeet; is that it?-A. Exactly.
Q. By a receipt?-A. By a receipt and a direction to Moyer to carry them

for Senator McDougald instead for him--Sifton.
Q. Then teli us what happened?-A. Well, I said, "why is it you have not

carriqd them in your own name?" and hie said that there were reasons why
he had not wanted to appear in the matter, and that those reasons were stili
paramount.

Q. H1e didn't give them to you?-A. No, 1 didn't ask him. I imagine what
they were.

Q. Neyer mmnd what you imagine; hie did not tell you what they were?-A.
He did not tell me. I did not need to he told of the matter. I put two and two
together, and '[ gathered what the real reason was.

Q. What did you do then? The receipt had not been drawn hy this time?
-A. No. I toid him that from the iawyer's point of view 1 thought there ouglit
to he something more than the mere direction to Mr. Moyer that $enator
MeDougald had taken Mr. Sifton's place; that there was need of what we eall
a lien de droit hetween Moyer and McDougald, and that I thought to compiete
the transaction in an absolutely ship-shape f ashion we ought to have something
from Moyer recognizing and admitting that hit was then going to carry them
for Senator McDougald instead of Sifton. Well, Mr. Sifton said that Mr.
Moyer was a very reliable man-as I have already said. Hie then told me also
that Senator McDougald had stated that hie, neither, also did not care to appear
in the matter for the present; and we had some talk about it, and then I thought
that it was my duty to get in touch with Senator McDougald, whieh I did on the
phone.

Q. He was at the harbour, I think you said?-A. Well, I don't know that
positiveiy, but they gave me a number where I spoke to him.
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Q. And nothing had been done in the form of a writing of any kind, or

stenographîc notes, or anything, by this time?-A. No, but Mr. Winfield Sifton
had written out, in his own handwriting, the proposition that hie tliought would
be satisfactory.

Q. But how did it appear to you that at this stage of the proceedings,
while you were in Senator McDougald's private office with Mr. Sifton, that

Sifton writes out, in his own handwriting, an agreement to transfer the rights
which Moyer had owned, or appeared to, to Senator McDougald? How does
that happen?-A. Well, we discussed the matter, and 1 asked him what his idea
was of the mode of carrying it out, and then, as I told you, he explained it to
me, and then hie said, "I will write out-I will give you a receipt-or I will give
Senator McDougald a receipt;" and 1 said, "well ail riglit, let us eall in the
stenographer and you will dictate it." Well, lie seemed to be reluctant to have
even the stenographer know anything about it, and he said, "I will write it out."

Q. He did not want the stenographer to know about it?-A. Apparently not,
because 1 offered to cali in my own private stenographer.

Q. And Sifton would not agree to tliat?-A. No; lie liad a folder, and hie
hiad some paper in it, and lie took some paper out and wrote this receipt as to
bow the transaction should be completed.

Q. It bas been stated, and it appears to be a fact, that that receipt or that
document no longer exists?-A. That is a f act.

Q. Do you know for a fact that it bas been lost or been destroyed?-A. I
personally destroyed it.

Q. Wlien did you destroy it?-A. Well, we are jumping along-
Q. We are jumping one hurdie until we get to the other, but we will get

back to the other?-A. It was early in October.
Q. 0f the saine year?-A. 0f the samne year, after Senator McDougald told

me that lie now had the shares transferred from Mr. Moyer to Mr. Ebbs as bis
nominee; and lie liad followed my advice then in getting an acknowledgement
of trust from him, and that there was no longer any reason'I should not carry
out tlie promise to Mr. Sifton.

Q. Had you made the promise to Mr. Sifton to destroy that document ?-A.
I made a promise to Mr. Sifton that I would liold that document; I would use
it if it became necessary, and if it did not become necessary I would return it
to him wlien Senator McDougald's rights liad been safeguarded and the trans-
action completed, and tliat if lie was not liere-be seemed to bave an idea that
lie was not a very well man, and lie said, "If anything bappens to me and you
cannot return it to me personally, tear it Up," and I said, "Ail rîglit, I will tear
it Up."

Q. Was this promise made on this occasion at thie samne time and the samne
place that it was written out, in tbe private office of Senater McDougald?-
A. Yes.

Q. And before you liad talked to Senator McDougald? -A. No, after I
had talked to him.

Ye.Q. After you liad talked on the telephone to Senator McDougaid?-A.

Q. Did you then convey to Senator McDougald on the telephone tlie desire
of Mr. Sifton that tbis receipt sliould lie destroyed at some cenvenient date in
tlie future?-A. I don't remember wlietlier I told him. that or not, but I told
Mr. Banks wben I came in.

You got the receipt, and you get this request from Sifton tliat it would be
destroyed 6ome day?-A. Exactly.

Q. And you liad the impression tliat lie was an iii man?-A. Hie struck
me as a man sliglit, that lie miglit not last long.

Q. Did that strike you from bis conversation, or observation?-A. From
bis conversation. WTell, lie seemed to liave doulits as to wliat the condition of
bis healtli was.
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Q.And hie so expressed them?-A. Exactly.
Q.Ani this request had been made to you that when everything was

completed and the lien de droit had been concluded that the receipt would be
destroyed?-A. Yes.

Q. Was it after that that you went in to Mr. Banks? You must remember
that 1 wu~ not there, and you were, and you must help me in the matter?-A.
I will give you ail the facts.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: If you allowed hlm to speak you would get the facts.
The WITNESS- After hie had written out this receipt as being his suggestion

of the mode of completing the matter I telephoned to Dr. McDougald and I
explained what Mr. Sifton wished, and I mentioned to Senator McDougald
that f rom the lawyer's point of view there was a link in the chain that, accord-
ing to me, was missing, and I told him what Mr. Sifton's suggestions were, and
we discussed the matter a littie over the telephone-all this in Mr. Sifton's
presence-and I told Senator McDougald that it was a matter really of business
judgment, if hoe wanted to go on with the transaction. Hie asked me, " do you
think I arn safe?" and I said, " well, considering the standing of the people
you are deahing with, and the fact "-oh, I should have mentioned that Mr.
Sif ton liad said that hie would tell Mr. Moyer that if bie felt-that whenever
it was reouired hie would tell Mr. Moyer that, he would take bis instructions
from Senator McDougald instead of from Mr. Sifton. Taking into considera-
tion the standing of the people-I bad known of Mr. Sifton, I had known bis
father, and I know wbo tbey were-.

Q. Had you known Mr. Moyer?-A. No, T didn't know Mr. Moyer. I
on]y bad wbat Mr. Sifton bad told me about Mr. Moyer.

Q. Mr. Sifton gave Mr. Moyer a fairly dlean bill of health?-A. H1e gave
him a very high classification, if you want to put it that way.

Q. Just go on?-A. I thought tbe standing of the people, and tbeir general
position, and the fact that Mr. Sif ton was a man of means, that should anything
go wrong we would have a clear recourse against Mr. Sifton, because hie
acknowledged receipt of those moneys in payment of those interests, and if
we did not get them I took it we would have a clear action against Sifton; and
taking the fact that bie had promised to give these instructions to Mr. Moyer,
I tbougbt that if we wanted to go on with the transaction, that from the business
point of view hoe was fairly safe. As tbings turned out-

Q. H1e was fairly safe?-A. The outoome showed that hoe was f airly safe,
and I think Dr. McDougald'e evidence bas shown that he did not lose anything
by it.

Q. No, hie did not lose anything by it; now Mr. Barnard, this was quite
a substantial telephone conversation you had?-A. Yes.

Q. I assume that hie said sometbing to, yon in reply, that you made the
answers to which you have referred, that considering the general situation, if
hie wanted to go on with it bas was f airly safe?-A. Yee; hoe said, " well, if
you think so, go ahead."

Q.Now, that is ail before you got out of tbe private office?-A. Absolutely.
Q.When did you get out of the private office te Banks?-A. Well, there

is one thing I sbould mention, Mr. Mann.
Q. Mention everything you can?-A. That is, that after this conversation

over the phone with Dr. McDougald-which Mr. Sifton just beard, yen see
-hie said, 1'well, I will tell you what I will do."ý-that was after I bad tele-
phoned with Dr. McDougald.

Q. Sifton said what?-A. "I will give yeu xny eignature in blank, outside
of this receipt; I will give you my signature i.n blank on a piece of paper, s0
that if anything should corne up that yon think it is neesslary te give notice
te Mr. Moyer, or do anything else, yen will have that additional protection,"
and hie gave me his signature in blank.



SPEClAL COMMITTE

Q. And that was on a sheet of papcr?-A. Yes sir.
Q. And is that signature now extant. or is it destroyed?-A. I arn glad to

say it is extant. 1 gave it to Mr. Banks when I took back the receipt signed
by Mr. Sifton. I gave himi this signature in blank, and 1 told Mr. Banks, "now,
Mr. Banks, this receipt, 1 think, is your authority to hand over the bonds,"
and hie said, " well, ail right." Then 1 gave himi the signature in blank, and hie
said, " well, 1 would like to show this thing to Senator McDougald as what
you tell me is my authority for turning over those bonds, and I will give it
back to you "-because I told Mr. Banks that I was under a promise to destroy
the receipt as soon as Senator McDougald had got the delivery of his units.

Q. Can you tell us what was in the receipt, that document-as close as
you can remember it? How was it captioned? llow was it addressed, and just
in substance what was in it?-A. 1 would not like to pretend that I can give
you it verbally, but I can give you the general lines.

Q. That would be the substance of the receipt, wouldn't it?-A. Yes.
Q. That is exactly what I asked you for. 1 did not expect you to give il

verbally?-A. Well, I apologize, then. 1 could not give you the verbal sub-
stance, but I can give you the general substance. The general substance -was
-"Received from Hon. W. L. MVlDoiigald $46,000 par value in Dominion War

Notes."
Q. Was it in series?-A. No, 1 think they were bearcr bonds, and it a

mentioned in the receipt, " bearer bonds."
Q. But the maturity year, the interest date, or the period of the bonds was

not mentioned?-A. Oh no. When Mr. Sifton drew out that receipt we did not
know anything about -what the series of bonds would be. It was merely
$46,000 of Dominion War Bonds.

Q. It was Dominion Security in any event?-A. Yes.
Q. But there was nothing to identify what that securîty would be except

it was an obligation of this Dominion?-A. That is it.
Q. Go ahead, then?-A. In payment of 1,600 units--I don't remember

whetber it was Beauharnois Syndicate or Beauharnois Power Syndîcate.
Q. You know there were two syndîcates?-A. Well, I did not grasp that

at the time, but it was in payment of 1,600 interests or units in the Beauhar-
nois Syndicate and of a substantial first payment on the second 1,600-the
first caîl on the second l,600-and it went on to say that it was; it went
that directions were given to Mr. Moyer that Mr. Sifton hiad sold his interest
in those units to Senator McDougald, and hie was to act---carryv on-the shares
for Senator McDougald instead of Mr. Sifton. That was the general tenor
of the receipt.

Q. That was the general tenor of-it?-A. Yes.
Q.And signed by Sifton and handed to you?-A. Yes.
Q.And then you did what? There was no copy made, 1 take ît?-A. No;

one single document.
Q. Did you'ever make a copy of that document?-A. No sir, I did not.

Q.Did you ever see a copy of it?-A. No sir, neyer.
Q.Then you took it in to Mr. Banks?-A. Took it in to Mr. Banks.

Q. And what did you do then?-A. 1 told Mr. Banks that this would be
his authority for paying over the bonds, and 1 also gave hîm that blank sig-
nature, and I told him that 1 was under a promise to Mr. Sifton to hand him.
back that receipt as soon as Dr. McDougald got delivery of bis securities and
that if anything happened to Mr. Sifton before that event had been ac'om-
plished 1 was to destroy, the receipt. Mr. Sifton bad not said anything about
destroying the signaturein blank.



BEAUHARNOIS POWER PROJECT

By the Chairman:
Q. Mr. Barnard, referring to that signature, were you to be at liberty to

use that signature any time vou Iiied[? A. Yes sir. The object was that,
there might be some-Mr. Sifton was giving me this as an extra precaution.

Ho1n. Mr. CANNON: Go ahead. give any explanation, 1\1. Barnard.
The C-iAIItMAN: Neyer mind interrupting the witness.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I was not interrupting, him.
The WITNESS: It was not to say that, I was to fill anything in; I hiad to

pass it on to Senator McDougald, to do anything he liked with it.

By the Chairman:
Q.You or Senator McDougald ýwere to bc at liberty to use it any time you

liked?-A. Exactly.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Having drawn this sheet of paper with the signature of Winfield B.

Sifton on it, and the reeeipt you describe as nearly as your memory serves
you, what was your next entrance into this transaction, if there was any?-
A. 1 was present when the bonds were delivered. 1 did not count them. Mr.
Banks went out and got them somewhiere and gave them to Mr. Sifton, and J
saw them dclivered, and I went back to my office.

Q. How long was that after the events which you have just been dis-
cussing?-A. The delivery of the bonds?

Q. Yes?-A. Oh, it was concurrently. le j usL went out into another
room where there was a safe and got the bonds out and gave them to him.

Q. Now, my difficulty is that at the time you had that document fromi
Mr. Sifton there was nothing to identify it in the form of bonds except they
were to be bonds with Dominion security?-A. None.

Q. And then Mr. Banks said lie would like to communicate with you?-
A. No, lie just went out wliere there was a safe somewbere, at any rate lie got
the bonds in 35 seconds or a couple of minutes, and lie got the bonds, and they
counted them together. I did not count tbem. Hle then delivered them to Mr.
Sifton. I don't know wlietber I saw the actual delivery, but I walked out of the
office into my private office.

Q. Then MT. Banks went out of the office, lie got some bonds and handed
them, over to Winfield Sifton?-A. You are asking me something-I arn not
sure tliat lie even went out of the rooms, but we got the bonds there and then,
and delivered tliem.

Q. But you were not able to examine the bonds to see what tliey were, and
you did not count tliem?-A. I did not think it was any of my business. If Mr.
Sif ton was satisfied, tliat is ail that I was coneerned about.

Q. You do not know what those bonds were?-A. I know tbey were War
Bonds.

Q. You know tliey were Government Scrip?-A. They were $1,000 bonds, at
least the one I saw was.

Q. You do not know liow many tliere were because you did not count tliem?
-A. I did not count them. I beard Mr. Sifton-he looked tbem over, and -I
think he must bave counted tbem. I did- not, lear him count them, but lie
seemed satisfied there was $46,000 of bonds there.

Q. Would you be kind enougli to tell me, from the time that day that you
first went in to see Mr. Banks, and from there witli Mr., Sifton into Senator
McDougald's private office and coming baek to Mr. Banks witli the receipt, and
the counting and delivery of the bonds to Mr. Sifton, approximately wliat time
elapsed?- »A. Well, I sliould think that the wliole thing did flot take more than
twenty minutes. It iniglit have, been another -extra five minutes, more or less.
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Q. So far as that particular transaction was concerned in that twenty
minutes, had you any relationship further in connection with carrying out the
transaction, coming to the time that Senator McDougald finally became vested
with the Beauharnois Syndicate units-I mean apart from the consideration of
the matter?-A. I discussed the matter a few days after with Senator McDougald,
and he seemed satisfied.

Q. What did you discuss?-A. I said, "How do you feel about this trans-
action?" and he seemed satisfied, and I didn't think any more about it until
some time later, in September, and Dr. McDougald then told me that he was
going to make some large payment; he expected to have to make some large
payment in connection with the mattter, and I suggested, owing to the fact that
he was going to have somebody act for him, to take Mr. Moyer's place, I sug-
gested, "Well, if you are going to have some money, a large amount of money,
get a trust of acknowledgment."

Q. May I take it, Mr. Barnard, that you had not any misgivings as to the
legal situation from the beginning?-A. Well, if it had been people that I did
not trust, and did not know all about, I certainly would have felt that it was not,
from the lawyers' point of view, a satisfactory transaction.

Q. Of course you did not trust Mr. Moyer; you only had Mr. Sifton's state-
ment as to who he was and how he could be trusted?-A. I had that, and I had
Mr. Sifton when he mentioned that he himself had no acknowledgment-that it
would be very hard for Mr. Moyer to substantiate any claim that he had made
those payments with his own money.

Q. I have a difficulty here; you have told me that you felt it was not any
of your affair to count the bonds or to sec what the bonds were; that part of it
was not any of your business?-A. Exactly.

Q. You have also said that at a later date you thought it was your business
to ask Senator McDougald how he felt about it?-A. No, I did not say I felt
it was my business to do it. I met the senator in connection with other important
matters, and I naturally referred to'this one Sifton matter, and I don't know
whether he asked me how I felt about it or how it came about, but I again
repeated the conversation I had had with him over the telephone, and I told
him from the business point of view I thought he was not taking any chances.

Q. From the legal point of view did you think he was?-A. Well, I thought
that if Mr. Moyer had-

Q. Did you not think he was taking a chance-as a lawyer, and an expe-
rienced lawyer?-A. You mean from the strictly legal point of view?

Q. From the strictly legal point of view, yes?-A. From the legal point of
view, yes, I thought that the thing was not in shape; that if I had been brought
in to defend it against somebody that was not particular, that I might have
difficulty. I did think, and I told him, it was a transaction that I would have
done myself.

Q. And it is a transaction that you would have done?-A. Yes, as a business
proposition.

Q. Did you or did you not discuss with Mr. McDougald the difficulty that
might have ensued had Winfield Sifton dropped dead the day after that trans-
action was concluded, or the day that transaction was concluded, rather than
four weeks later?-A. I did not anticipate any trouble from Mr. Sifton. Mr.
Sifton was a man of means, and what I felt was the doctor's protection was,
more, that should there be any trouble from Mr. Moyer we had a clear action
against Mr. Sifton or his estate for that money.

Q. You realized, did you not, Mr. Barnard, that if Winfield Sifton had died
that day instead of a few weeks later, and had not instructed Mr. Moyer to
take his instructions from Senator McDougald, and that Mr. Moyer had been
somebody other than Mr. Moyer turned out to be, that it would have been a
difficult legal situation?-A. We had Mr. Sifton's directions to Moyer to deal
with Dr. McDougald as the owner of these units-in writing.
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Q.But you had no instructions from Mr. Moyer?-A. Absoiutely correct.
Q.You had oniy a statement from Mr. Winfieid Sifton that Moyer was his

representative?-A. Absolutely correct.
Q. You had no document from Moyer?-A. Except his own statement.
Q. And you had nothing froma Moyer except the transfer froni Sifton to

McDougald-nothing whatever in writing?-A. Neyer had anything.
Q. Then I ask you again, if Mr. Sifton had dîed that day instead of three or

four weeks later, whether you would not have considered then that the legal situa-
tion was very, very difficuit, froni the recourse that you have suggested Senator
McDougald would have had upon the receipt?-A. Well, as 1 say, Mr. Sifton
had said that lie had known Moyer for years, and that if Moyer did not do
what was bis duty to do that Moyer could not have substantiated the payment
by him of those moneys out of biýs own funds.

Q. Now I ask you again, did you not consider that there was a very serious
legal difficulty in Dr. McDougald obtaining what Moyer had, had the matter
not been carried out? Now, was there not a serious legal difficulty?-A. If Mr.
Moyer had turned ont to be a man of a different description than lie was, there
wouid have been a legai difficuity.

Q. Did you not appreciate, then, that there was a serious legal difficuty?-
A. 1 aiways appreciated that there was a legal difficuity, but I thought the worst
that wouid happen wouid be that Senator McDougaid wouid get back bis money
froni Sift on.

Q. Did you not convey your appreciation of that legal difficuity to Senator
McDougaid?-A. Yes, I toid Senator McDougaid that, according to me, there
was a iink missing in the chain, when lie asked me, "What do you think about
the whole thing? Arn I safe?" I said, "I can only say, as a business proposition,
that in view of the fact of the standing of the people we are deaiing with, it is
a transaction that 1 personally-I may be- how shall I say it?-optimistic in
matters of this kind"-

Q. I suggest that perhaps you are optirnistie?-A. I did think it was a
transaction-and I told him conscientiously that it was one-that 1 personally
would take a chance on.

Q. You did realize that if Mr. Moyer had refuseýd to acknowledge Mr.
Sifton in any way in that transaction, that the only recourse Dr. McDougald
would have had would have been to get the money back, represented by this
bond transaction?-A. Well, I thouglit that Senator McDougald would have a
very strong action against Moyer under ail the circunistances, and particularly,
I should say, under these circunistances it would be for Mr. Moyer to show
that they actually were bis property, and in order to show that they were his
property lie wouid have to say-we could find out froni him and trace him as
to where lie got the money to pay for it.

Q. As to where Mr. Moyer got the money to pay?-A. Where lie got bis own
money to pay.

Q. Hie, Moyer, to pay for the units which he had purchased and which lie
had subscribed for?-A. Exactly.

Q. But what I arn asking you is this; if ail you had was a statement from
Sifton that Moyer was carrying this load for him-that is ail you had?-A.
Exactiy.

Q. You had neyer seen Mr. Moyer?-A. No sir.
Q. Had Dr. McDougaid, to your personai knowledge, seen Mr. Moyer?-

A. Not to my personai knowiedge, but Dr. McDougald did tell me that lie
beiieved in Mr. Moyer-later-not at that conversation.

Q. At that conversation did lie tell you lie knew Moyer?-A. I don't know
wliether lie toid me eitlier then or later, but lie did teli me that lie was satisfied
as regards Moyer.
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Q. You have been very frank in your evidence, and 1l have no doubt you
will admit this frankly, that you were troubled about that legal situation, and
expressed your troubles to Dr. McDougald?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: He has said that aiready.
The WITNESS: I would not say I was troubled, but 1 would say that as a

lawyer I did not think that the transaction, as regards Moyer, was in as good
a shape as, if 1 had been dealing with somebody else that 1 did not know, 1 would
have insisted on putting it.

By Mr. Mann:
QBut you did not know Mr. Moyer?-A. No; Dr. McDougald and Mr.

Sifton had toid me about him.
Q. Dr. McDougaid and MVr. Sifton satisfied you then that Moyer's position

was ail right; is that what you are saying?-A. Weii, I gathered from the fact
that Mr. Sifton thought it unnecessary himseif to get any trust acknowledg-
ment, that he must have had faith.

Q. But Mr. Sifton was getting $46,000 of bonds?--A. But I arn talking of
the interval between the payment and the transaction with Mr. McDougald.
There had been $15,000 paid on account of it.

Q. But you did express your doubts to Dr. McDougald on at least one oc-
casion in respect to the strict legal position, didn't you?-A. 1 can only repeat
that I told Dr. McDougaid over the phone that there was, in my humble opinion,
a missing iink.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: We have hiad that ail before, about six different times.
1 want to know what the witness told Dr. McDougald.

The WITNESS: It was the same thing.

By Mr. Mlann:
QBut Dr. McDougaid reassured you that he was satisfied?-A. H1e was

quite satisfied.
Q. And is it because he was quite satisfied during the period that elapsed

Irom May until October that you did not procure an acknowledgement of the
assignment from Moyer? Is tliat a fair statemnent?-A. Well, I did gather in
September that the transaction of Senator McDougald taking over these Sifton
interests had more or iess leaked out, and that the insiders did know that it was
Dr. McDougaid now-the ow'ner of the shares held in Moyer's name.

Q. Did it ever occur to you to write a letter to Moyer-did you have lis
initiais and bis address when Sifton spoke to you?-Did it ever occur to you to
write a letter to him?--A. I w-as under promise not to mention the matter to
anybody. -AJlI 1knew about Mr. Moyer was that in that receipt he was de-
scribed, as Ciare Moyer, barrister-at-law, Ottawa.

Q. And in any event, in the generai discussions you had, and the general
situation, you did nothing to procure an acknowledgment from Moyer that he
was holding-for Sifton? A. I did nothing, because I was under an obligation
not to mention the matter to anybody. It was passed on to Dr. McDougald, and
he was to do what he wanted,

Q. And he instructed you to do nothing in regard to procurîng an acknowl-
edgment?-A. No, we didn't discuss that at ail.

Q. H1e gave you no instructions to do anything?-A. No. 11e was satisfied.
Mr. MANN: That is ail, thank you.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: That is ail right, Mr. Barnard.
Mr. MANN: Now, Mr. Chairman, there are here, summoned by the Com-

mittee to appear before it to-day, the executor-one of the executors of the
estate of the late Winfield B. Sifton, and the accountant of the estate and the
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Sîfton interests. You will appreciate that it would be somewhat of an advantage
ta look at the papers before putting one of those witnesses in -the box, in order to
shorten the evidence, because I have not had an opportunity of looking at them,
and I would therefore ask if we could have an adjournment for at least an hour.
I would like an hour ta examine the papers and documents with the witnesses
in order that we miglit shorten the evidence.

Hon. Mr. B•ÉiQuE: May I ask for my own information what is the abject
of this evidence?

Mr. MANN: It seems, Senatar Béique, that the abject of the eviderice neces-
sarily is ta indicate the transactions of Sifton in respect ta Benuharnois in 50
f ar as they may lie revealed by bis books, papers and correspondence.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: What for? What have we ta do with Sifton's business?
Mr. MANN: We have not anything ta do -vith Sifton's business. We have

this ta do: we have Sifton put forth as the owner of the shares, and it is to
determine, if it can be done, that Sifton was or was not a bona fide owner of the
Beauharnois Corporation shares. That is the abject of it.

Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: Mr. Chairman, before we consider the question of
adjournment, I would like to briefly refer ta the information that wns given
ta us by Mr. Mann at the opening of this sitting. Hie told us that Mr. Sweezey
was here and was prepared ta dcny, I believe, a statement made by Senator
Haydon yesterday. Under a large heading in the morning Citizen 1 read this:

Senator Andrew Haydon yesterday declarcd that about the beginning
of 1929 Robert 0. Sweezey, former president of the Beauharnois Company,
informed him he could not get a contract with the Ontario Hydro Electrie
Commission because G. Howard Ferguson, then Premier of Ontario,
"wouldn't let it lie signed until lie got $200,0002"

Now, the Ontario Legisiature is in session at the present time, and in the
second column of the same paper I see a despatch from Toronto, as follows:

Reports were current in the lobbies of the Ontario Legisinture to-niglit
that there would bie discussion in the assembly of the statement to-day
by Senator Andrew Haydon that former president R. 0. Sweezey of
Beiauharnois declared G. Howard Ferguson demanded during bis premier-
slip of Ontario $200,000 for approval cf a hydro contract for Beauharnois
power.

In view cf the publicity given to that ftiatter, and the fact that it is referring
ta a former Prime Minister of the Province of Ontario, 1, as a member of this
Cornmittee and a resident of Ontario, wish ta urge that it is only f air to the
Higli Commissioner that Mr. Sweezey lie called now ta give bis statement.
The objection lias been made that Senator Haydon's solicitor, Mr.
Robertson, is not here. Mr. 'Robertson was present at the examination of
Senator Hlaydon yçsterday; lie heard that statement made. To me it appeared
ta be a considered statemetut which was made after a whispering conversation
with bis solicitor.

The CHAIRMAN: While lie was iinder onth?

Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: Whule lie was under oath. 1 arn not a lawyer, but
I do not think that in an ordinary court of law that would lie permitted. This
Committee has given special consideration ta Senator Haydon. It may lie
suggested that this matter should not lie brouglit in until lie bas completed bis
evidence. But the adjournment of bis evidence was made at the rcqucst of
bis solicitor, and 1 think in ail foqýirness ta the Higli Commissiaijer that we should
hear Mr. Sweezey's statement.
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Hon. Mr. McMEANS: As ta that particular point.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: Don't you think we should wait until the solicitor

cornes?
Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: If Senator Haydon's solicitor thinks his client has

been prejudiced in any way, the Cominittee will meet again, and hie will have
an opportunity ta deal with any statements mnade by Mr. Sweezey.

Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: Will Mr. Ferguson suifer frorn a few minutes delay?
Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: If we wait until after 1 o'clock this will corne up

in the legislature. I understand that Mr. Sweezey is willing ta corne forward
and refute the statement, and I arn anxious that lie should do so.

Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: Is hie here?
Mr. MANN: Yes, hie is here, and has requested that I ask the Committee

ta permit him ta corne and make a statement.
Hon. Mr. Copp: Senator Donnelly has referred with some degree of doubt

as ta the propriety of the statement made by Mr. Haydon because hie whispered
with his lawyer. If I remember correctly, Mr. Robertson referred ta Mr. Mann
before hie spake to Senator Haydon while he was under oath. I did not hear
the conversation, but I know that Mr. Robertson turned and said something
ta Mr. Mann.

Mr. MANN: I can assure the hanourable gentleman that Mr. Robertson
said nothing whatever that relates ta, flows from, or is coincident with anything
hie said in the whispered conversation with Senator Haydon. Mr. Robertson
may have said something ta me, but it was ail apart from the statement that
Senator liaydon made. I looked over and saw Senator Haydon motion Mr.
Robertson ta speak ta him, and Mr. Robertson spoke to himr, and I had not
the faintest idea of what it was about.

Hon. Mr. Copp: I dîstinctly remember that Mr. Robertson turned around
and said something ta you. I don't know what it was ail about.

Mr. MANN: It had nothing whatever ta do with that.
Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: Let us hear Mr. Sweezey.
Hon. Mr. Copp: Pardon me. Then I want ta say another thing in regard

ta the matter, and the assumption that that would not be permitted in a court
of law at ail-a witness speaking ta his solicitor while under oath. On the
other hand, a great many thing-s have taken place here that would not take
place in a court of law.

lion. Mr. ROBINSON:- And one of the worst things would be ta have this
aired without the solicitor being here. That would not be allowed in a court
of law.

lion. Mr. DoNNELLY: I do nut think we shouid do what may be an injustice
ta the High Commissioner because the solicitor does not appear this morning.
He was aware of the statement-he himself was there-and the publicity given
ta it in the papers. It was his business ta be here.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: There was not such serupulaus care in rushing
ta Senator Haydon last year when he was grossly misrepresented in headlines
not only in Ottawa but ail over Canada. While I arn strongly in favour of
allowing Mr. Sweezey ta make bis statement-we would be doing wrong if we
didn't-I do think we wili do the Committee more harm, and Mr. Ferguson
less good, by having the statement made when the solicitor of the man who made
the statement is not present.

Hon. Mr. MCMýýNS: Where is Mr. Robertson? lias hie sent any word
to the Committee?
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Hon. Mr. CANNON: I understand that he bas a case which is now going
on before the courts, and that he expected to be detained for a while this
morning-the Treadgold case. Mr. Mann knows ail about that case.

Mr. MANN: 1 didn't hear that.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1 say my learned friend knows perfectly well what

case Mr. Robertson is busy with before the courts; that lie could give the
information.

Mr. MANN: I have not the faintest idea what court Mr. Robertson is in-
Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1 arn sorry, then.
Mr. MANN: -or what part of the city he is in. I know nothing about

his litigation.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I arn not interested in this at ail. Senator MeMeans

was asking for information, and 1 volunteered the littie 1 had.
Mr. MANN: About my knowledge.
Hon. Mr. BiiQuE: Have you any other witnesses, Mr. Mann?
Mr. MANN: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BÉiQUjE: Then you might proceed.
Mr. MANN: But, as I said, I wanted to examine the books in order, if

possible, to shorten the evidence.
The CHAIRMAN: I want to say, if you are ail through, Senator, that as far

as I arn concerned Mr. Robertson bas sent no communication to me. I have
nothing from him intimating when lie will be here, or that lie will will evcr be
here again. The other day we adjourned the Cornrittee for the convenience
of Mr. Robertson. When we resumed he was not present, but lie had someone
here to represent him, and I should think it would be a very easy matter for
him to have someone here to represent him again.

iNow, with regard to Mr. Sweezey. My honourable friend Senator Copp lias
spoken about the whispering conversation. In view of the fact that Senator
Haydon was ili in bed and in care of a physician, I made no interruption
yesterday whatever of bis staternent of evidence, nor did I interrupt hîm when
lie proceeded to introduce what was really irrelvant matter. So far as relevancy
goes, anyone who heard bis statement, or read bis statement, wîll observe that
it is ninety per cent legal argument on facts and law înstead of a statement of
facts-argunents irrelevant a bout-general arguments about carnpaign funds
generally, and conclusions, ail under the sanctity of oath-a most remarkable
statement to me, under the sanctity of an oath. I really could not understand
why it was necessary for Senator Haydon, who is a lawyer, to undertake to
swear to the law and the facts. However, I only mention that for this purpose:
that, lie having gone so far off from the relevancies of the question, and havîng
abssailed important mnen and introduced this foreign matter, so far as 1 arn con-
cerned I think it is only fair that Mr. Sweezey and the other persons mentioned
with Mr. Sweezey should be permitted to make a staternent, but only in regard
to that matter. We are not going into a general investigation of the Hydro
Electrie of Ontario, but 1 arn perfectly willing that Mr. Sweezey be allowed to,
make a statement meeting the statement of Senator Haydon. And if Mr.
Robertson wants to examine him about that point later on, I would be very happy
to accommodate him, if the Committee is satisfied.

Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: NO.
Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: I will say I amn-
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: Most irregular.
Hon. Mr. Copp: I think no harm can corne to anybody. I quite agree with

the Chairman that Mr. Sweezey should be given every opportunity to make bis
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statement in regard to what Senator Haydon or any other witness has said,but 1 do not think we should at this stage be in such a terrible hurry that it bedone in the next ten or fifteen minutes, or haif an hour. Mr. Mann bas askedfor an adjournment to look over some papers, and we could very well adjourn and
let Mr. Robertson know wlien we are going to meet so that he could be here.

Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: If we get sorne assurance that Mr. Sweezey can makebis statement before 1 o'clock, I would be agreeable; otherwise I intend to move,
seconded by Hon. Mr. Chapais, that Mr. Sweezey be perrnitted to make bis
staternent 110W.

Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: Make it a party vote.
Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: It is not a party matter. I resent the suggestion.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: I repeat it.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: The motion is that he be permitted to make the

statement now?
Hon. Mr. DoNNELLY: If we have an assurance that he can make it before1 o'clock, I arn quite satisfied, in order to have Mr. Robertson here; but I think

in fairness to ail parties interested it should be-
Hon. Mr. Copp: I agree- that Mr. Robertson be communicated with, and

if he can be here at 1 o'clock-
Mr. SMITH: Courts usually adjourn at 12.30, sir. Does that help out?
Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: We can meet at a quarter to one.
Hon. Mr. R0oBINSON: 2.30.
Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: A quarter~ to one, on the understanding that Mr.

Robertson be here.
The CHAIRMAN: Is tliat satisfactory, gentlemen-a quarter to one?
The Commîttee adjourned, to meet at 12.45 p.m.

The Committee resumed at 1245 p.m.

The CHAIRMAN: I understand the Comrnitee now wants to hear the state-ment which Mr. Sweezey wishes to inake.
Mr. RoBERTSON: Mr. Chairman. before Mr. Sweezy is called may I say thatI have been told since I came here within the last few minutes that there wassorne criticism. of 8ome two things affecting myself. I arn a hard-boiled. Iawyer

who is not very much affected by what anybody savs, and I arn quite used to
abuse, but I want to explain why 1 was not here this; morning. I understood
from what was said yesterday afternoon that the ýCommittee was going on withcertain witnesses, with whose evidenice I was not concerned, and I did not corne
here because I am engaged at the Court House on a trial that has been going on
for the last week.

The other matter to whieh I wisli to refer is that I understand it lias been
stated there was a conversation between Senator Haydon and myseif during the
course of bis cross examination yesterday. There was no conversation. What
took place there was this, that Senator Haydon, as you ail saw, leaned overin his bed and indicated he wanted to say sornething to me. I did not hear what
lie said and I said nothing to hirn. There was no0 conversation.

The CHAIRMAN: Ail riglit.
Hon. MT. DONNELLY: As I perhaps arn the member of the Comomittee who

made the reference to that matter, I xway say that I xvas sitting there and saw
the movernentS I heard the whispering and it had ail tlie appearance of a
whispered conversation to me. I aceept your word, of course.
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Mr. RIOBERTSON: I quite understand. I thought at the time it was an em-
barrassing thing for the Senator to lean over that way, but I did flot hear what
hie said.

Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: My point in raising the matter was not so mucli to
find fault but to show that the conduet of the Committee had not been carried
along court lines, because I quite realize that that would not be permitted in an
ordinary court.

Mr. ROBERTON: May 1 say that the statements made by Senator Haydon
in answer to certain questions were of course something 1 knew ail about, and 1
had given a copy of them in advance to M\r. Mann. But the questions on the
cross examination and the answers that were made, and ail the rest of it, were.
quite unknown to me and were not the subject of any previous conversation.

The CHAIRMAN: We will hear what Mr. Sweezey bas to say.

Mr. ROBERT O. SWEEZEY was recalled as a witness.
THE CLERK 0F THE COMM1=rE: Mr. Sweezey, you are stili under oath.
The WITNESS: Mr. Chairman, 1 have before me the statement that Senator

Haydon made vesterday.
The CHAIRMAN: You had hetter read the part that you want to speak

about.
The WITNESS: Well, the part I want to speak about is-I will sec if 1 can

pick out the beginning-this is Senator Haydon referring to me:
H1e talked about Americans who would corne and settle along the

river, and enterprise would begin. I said to him: "What is the good of
themi if you don't bave something nailed down?"-I think 1 ýused the
word that you bave been asking me to repeat, "moonshine"-This will
neyer get anywhere. It is not any good." "Oh," hie said, "but thenl we
have~ a contract in sigbt." I said, "where or how?" I had neyer heard
of thiýs before. 11e said with the Ontario Hydro Electrie Commission.ý
I said, "Why don't you get it signed and get something solid?" And bis
answer was, "Howard Ferguson won't let it be signed until bie gets
$200,00O?" 1 said nothîng more and heard notbing more about Beau-
harnois for a good time.

Now, I simply wish, Mr. Chairman, to categorically deny any such conversa-
tion. I do not know that there is anything to be added. I neyer had any sucli
conversation with Mr. Haydon.

By Hon. Mr. McMeans:
Q. What you mean to say is that you neyer made the statement to him

that Mr. Ferguson would not let a contract be signed until hie got $200,OO?-A.
Absolutely not. There are two or three illogical points in that idea. In the
first place, I had met Mr. Ferguson only once two years previous to that for
about five minutes, and when 1 opened negotiations with the Hydro it was
always through Mr. Gaby, the Chief Engineer, and througli Mr. Magrath, the
Chairman, and 1 neyer deait with anybody else in ail my dealings about con-
tracts in Ontario, exccpt with the Hydro Electrie Power Commission of On-
tario. The only other time 1 met Mr. Ferguson was in Quebec, after the
contract had been entirely agreed upon between my company and the Ontario
Hydro Electrie Commission. That was in the presence of Mr. Taschereau,
the Premier of Quebec, and Mr. Aimé Geoffrion, also Mr. Strachan Johnston,
representing Ontario. And any discussion that we had then was entirely on
affairs affecting the two provinces, with regard to the export of power from
one province to another.
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Q. As 1 understand it, what you are saying now is simply to deny a con-
versation alleged to have been held between yourself and Senator Haydon.
Might 1 ask you if you ever at any time had any communication with Mr.
Ferguson about $200,OO?-A. Absolutely not, a most absurd idea.

By the Chairman:
Q.Directly or indirectly?-A. Directly or indirectly.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q.Mr. Sweezey, this is a question, apparently, is it not, between your recol-

lection or veracity and Senator Haydon's recollection or veracity? That is what
it seems to be, isn't it?-A." It is not a case of recollection. I know that I neyer
said any such thing, I know that. I do not care what you term that.

Q. You gave evidence last Tuesday, a week ago yesterday?-A. Yes.
Q. Contradicting a statement made on the prcvious Friday by Mr. Griffith?

-A. Yes.
Q. On the Friday when Mr. Griffith made his statement you were in the

witness box to contradict a statement previously made by yourself?-A. Yes,
in regard to the name of an individual.

Q. Yes. Now you are in to contradict Senator Haydon?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, the matter of a contract with the Hydro Electric Power Commis-

sion was a matter of negotiation?-A. Obviously.
Q. And in connection with that negotiation was a man named Aird con-

cerned?-A. He did not have anything to, do with the negotiations.
Q. Did Mr. Aird receive a payment of money in connection with the negotia-

tions?
Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: If you will excuse-
The CHAIRMAN: We have nothing to do with Mr. Aird, nothing whatever.
Mr. ROBERTSON: If you will pardon me, I want to deal with the statement

as made by Senator Haydon, not as made here to the witness and contradicted.
Senator Haydon did not say that the statement was--

The CHAIRMAN: This Committee is not going into any inquiry about Mr.
Aird. You can take that as decided.

Mr. ROBERTSON: I want to cross examine this witness as to the situation
at the time of the negotiations. There is no statement made by Senator Haydon
that Mr. Sweezey saîd he had made any promise to Mr. Ferguson or that Mr.
Ferguson asked him for anything or that he had any dealings with Mr. Ferguson,
but a statement that Mr. Ferguson would not allow a èontract to be signed by
somebody else until a certain payment was made. That does not imply a con-
versation with Mr. Ferguson.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. That is what I want to ask you about, if you did not have with Aird

negotiations, conversations, connected with the Hydro Electrie contract that led
to the payment of a sum of moncy. Isn't that so?-A. Not until a long time
after.

Q. But it is so. The money was paid in December, 1929, or the bonds.
That is so, is it not?-A. I do not know whether I am permitted to answer in
regard to the Aird matter or not, but it is a matter of record.

Q. Don't be alarmed in talking about it. That is so, is it not?-A. A pay-
ment was made to Mr. Aird. That is common knowledge, yes.

Q. Common knowledge?-A. Well, it has been published, broadcast.
Q. It has been' stated. My point is that that was in connection with the

Hydro Electrie matter.--A. I don't attach direct connection of the Hydro
Electric matter with that. The contract was signed and completed and over.
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Q. Did you have any conversation with Aird in regard to that payrnent
that related to the Hydro Electric contract?-A. Yes.

Mr. SMITH: Do you mean before or after it was signed?
Mr. ROBERTSON: Before it was signed.

By the Chairman:
QI understand you to say, Mr. Sweezey, that any talk with Aird was after

the-.-A. iNo. He introduced the subjeet to me, but I dismissed him and would
have nothing to do with it until after the contract was signed and I was a way
out of the difficulty.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q.You say you had no talk with Aird?-A. He introduced the subject to

me of a contribution, which I refused to, discuss with him because my financial
condition was not such that I could discuss it at the time, nor would I discuss
it until I was ail through the contract with the Hydro.

Hon. Mr. MOMEANs: Mr. Robertson, 1 do flot desire to interrupt you, but are
you undertaking to establish any connection between Mr. Aird and Mr. Ferguson?
The statement was that Mr. Ferguson would not allow a contract to be signed.
That has been contradicted. Can you sec any connection between Mr. Aird and
Mr. Ferguson? If not, I think it is outside the purpose of this inquiry altogether.

Mr. ROBERTSON: My purpose now, as will be shown in my next question, is
by reference ta Mr. Sweezey's prior testimony to ask him if he did not understand
the payment ta Aird was made for the Conservative party in Ontario, of which
Mr. Ferguson was leader. That is the connection, a very obviaus one.

The CHAIRMAN: Suppose hel did understand that. What bas that to do with
this inquiry?

Mr. ROBERTSON: It has got everything ta do with this.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON' Why are there sa many obstructionis of the cross-

examination?

By Mr. Robertson:
QIs it not a f act, and did you not say sa inl your evidence before the

Commons inquiry Iast year, that you understood the contribution made ta Aird
was intended for the purposes of the Conservative party in Ontario, of which
Howard Ferguson was then the leader?-A. Yes.

Q. When did your negotiations in connection with the Hydro Electrie contract
begin? When did you first open negotiations?-A. I do not recall definitely. It
must have been early in 1929.

Q. How early in 1929?-A. I do not recail. The records might show you
that.

Q. It might have been as early as January?-A. I do not think we had any
draft contract written out until early in the spring.

Q. I arn not talking about draft contracts but I arn talking about negotiations.
You began negotiations perhaps as early as January?-A. Yes, but I amn not very
positive.

Q. And they continucd for some time?-A. Yes, tbey took some months.
Q. You were anxious ta get the contract signed?-A. Naturally.
Q. And were met with difficulties?-A. No, not met with difficulties they

were simply technical problemns to be settled. It was a very large contract and an
important anc.

Q. INow, I want ta put this ta you and you can answer it any way you like.
Did the contribution that was made through Aird and that you understood had
ta do wîth the Conservative party in Ontario, of which Howard Ferguson was then
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the leader, did that have any connection in your mind with the Hydro Electric
contract?-A. None whatever. The Hydro Eiectric contract was made with the
Hydro Electrie Power Commission and had no connection whatever with cam-
paign funds.

Q. You of course have no memoranda to refer to in any of these matters?-
A. 1 do not know what you mean.

Q. Have you iooked at any memorandum since you heard of Senator
Haydon's statement yesterday?-A. iNo.

Q. How many minutes after you heard the statement had been made by him
did you say that you were going to deny it?-A. I denied it immediately, because
I knew 1 neyer had any such conversation.

Q. It was not a matter of reflection?-A. I did not need to refiect.
Q. About your previous deniai, did you speak to anybody yesterday before

you offered your evidence to this Committee, anybody representing the Govern-
ment, any member of the Govcrnment?-A. No. The newspaper men came toi
speak to me and I spoke to them.

Q. Did you speak to anybody before you spoke to the newspaper men?-
A. Not that I remember. 'I'ere might have been somne members of the Govern-
ment-

Q. Yesterday is not very far back?-A. No. I mean I spoke to a good many
people who came and asked me about it.

Q. I want to get the first one; were they ail newspaper men?-A. Yes.
Q. Are you swearing to that?-A. I do.
Q. That you spoke to no one about it at ail, but you taiked to newspaper

men?-A. It was the newspaper men that told me about it.
Q. With reference to the occasion when you came back last week, Mr.

Griffith had made the statement regarding $10,000 paid to Generai McCuaig
from the company, a week ago last Friday?-A. He made it some time.

Q. Take my word for it, a week ago last Friday, and on the next Saturday
the Beauharnois Company was unabie to find the money to pay wages for its
men?-A. What bas that got to do with it?

Q. That is so, is it not?-A. I don't know.
Q. You say you don't know that is so?-A. I don't know; I am not president

of the company to-day.
Q. Do you say you don't know that a week ago last Saturday the Beau-

harnois Company had not the money to pay its men their wages?-A. I don't
know whether it was Saturday or Monday; I know one day we had some
difficuity in negotiating our matters at the bank.

Q. And just at that period?-A. We have been like that for the last six
months.

Q. On any other occasion?-A. Yes, for the last six months every time we
had to pay wages we had to go to the bank and negotiate for the money.

Q. My question is a simple one-
The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Robertson, excuse me a moment; what is ail this

about?
Mr. ROBERTSON: IL is about the reliability of Mr. Sweezey.

The CHAiRMAN: Where do you propose to take it?

Mr. ROBERTSON: This is quite within the realm of what you have been
investigating here. IL has to do with the matter.

The CHAIRMAN: We are not here to sit and hear an argument between you
and Mr. Sweezey.

Mr. ROBERTSON: It is not an argument; it is a question to, which I arn not
getting an answer.
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By Mr. Robertson:
Q.Was there any occasion prior to the week before last when the Beauhar-

nois Company had to pass payment of its wages?
Mr. MANN: That is not what you asked at ail. You asked iiim, is there

any other time that they had difficulty, and he said yes.
Mr. RoBERTSON: I did not say that.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: What does it ail turn on? Is there any dispute

about these things? I think we ail know that the Beauharnois could not pay
their wages.

Mr. RoBERT.SONý: 1 would like to know why I arn not entitled to ask
ordinary questions. We have a question of credibility, and it is on that 1 arn
askîng questions.

The CHAIRMAN: Why did you not ask him those questions before when he
was on the stand?

Mr. ROBERTSON: Suppose I choose to ask him anything on the question
of credibility, that question is more in issue now than it was before.

By 31r. Robertson:
Q. Is it not the fact that this was the first occasion when the Beauharnoîý

Company was not able to pay and did not pay its wages when they were due?
-A. I don't know whether it was or not, because 1 have not been president of
the Beauharnois Company now. for two or three rnonths. I do know that every
pay-day wc had difficulty, and had to go to the banks to negotiate.

Q. But on that Saturday you did not pay wages?-A. 1 don't know. 1
know one tirne there was a delay of two days, I don't know whether it was
that Saturday or not.

Q. On thie Tuesday when you gave evidence contradicting Mr. Griffith the
wages were paid?-A. I don't know whether it was paid on Monday or Tuesday
or Wednesday.

Q. You knew there was dîfficulty that week-end?-A. No, I didn't. I was
here in Ottawa, and I did not know what was passing. I know, as I told you,
thrce tirnes we had difficulty about money.

The CHAIRMAN: Do you want to ask him any questions?
Mr. MANN: No; it is a voluntary statement.

By the Chairman:
Q. You referred, Mr. Sweezey, to Mr. Magrath; ià that Mr. Charles A.

Magrath?-A. Yes.
Q. He was president?-A. H1e was chairman of the Hydro-Eiectric Power

Commission.
The CHAIRMAN: Now we will adjourn.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Before we adjourn I would like to say a word. My

learned friends instructed the clerk that a letter be sent to my client, Senator
McDougald, asking him to bring certain papers, and if necessary his financiai
adviser, Mr. Banks. In order that there rnay be no misunderstanding, as there
was last year, I may state right now, for my learned friends' benefit, that Mr.
Banks is here, wiliing to give evidence at any time.

Mr. MANN: We express our gratitude.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Last year there was some misunderstanding.
Mr. MANN: This is not last year.
The Committee adj ourned until 3.30 p.m.



SPECI4L COMMITTE

The Committee resumed at 3.30 p.m.
The CHAIRMAN: Are you ready to go on?
Mr. MANN: Cali Mr. Banks.

Mr. HowARD M. BANKS, manufacturer, Westmount, Quebec, appeared as a
witness, and, having ýbeen duly sworn, testified as follows:

By Mr. Mann:
Q. You reside in Montreal?-A. Westmount.
Q. And have your office in Montreal?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. In what building was your office in the year 1928?-A. At that time it

xvas cailed the Dominion Express Building.
Q. On St. James Street?-A. Yes; now it is the Canadian Pacific.
Q. Do you know Senator McDougald?-A. 1 do.
Q. Have you known him. for some time?-A. 1 have known him eighteen

or twenty years.
Q. In 1928 had you any business relationship with him, and if so what?

-A. Well, 1 acted in a confidential capacity for him at times, although 1 was
no longer on bis pay-roll. I had wound up a number of bis companies for him,
beginning with 1925 and 1926, and 1 stili stayed with him in rather an informai
capacity, and made myseif useful to him at various times whenýever the occasion
arose.

Q. Were you there at any part of 1928?-A. From time to time, yes, sir.
Q. Where was your office in relation to his in the Dominion Express Com-

pany Building?-A. It adjoins-part of the same suite.
Q. Are you the Mr. Banks Chat was referred to by Mr. Charles Barnard

this morning?-A. Yes.
Q. You heard Mr. Barnard's evidence?-A. Yes.
Q. You heard bis evidence witlh respect to a transaction whereby somne bonds

were delivered by you in the prescnce of Barnard to one Winfield B. Sifton?-A.
I did.

Q. You were the gentleman to whom, Mr. Barnard referied as having
delivered those bonds?-A. 1 am.

Q. What were the bonds?-A. They were the 1933 Victory Bond series.
Q. And the amount of them?-A. There were 46 bearer 'bonds of $1,000

denomination.
Q. With the interest coupons attached, the then current coupons attached?

-A. I believe so, yes.
Q. Do you know what price they were on the mnarket at that tîme?-A.

No, I don't; I should say around 104, 105, along in there; that is just my
impression.

Q. And the receipt warranting the delivery of those bonds you heard
described by Mr. Barnard?-A. Yes.

Q. Did you have that receipt or letter in your possession?-A. I had it in
my possession for about a day.

Q. What did you do with it?-A. I showed it to Senator McDougald the
first time that he came into the office, ta account for the delivery of bis securi-
tics from my custody, and after he had seen the receipt and was satisfied of the
delivery he said, "well, give that to Mr. Barnard," which 1 did within the next
twenty-four hours; and that is the last I saw of it.

Q. You showed the receipt to Senator McDougald after you had delivered
those bonds to Mr. Sifton?-A. Yes.

Q. And you thereupon, on bis instructions, delivered the receipt to Mr.
Barnard within a ittie while after?-A. Yes.

Q. And yeti have not seen the receipt since?-A. I have not.
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Q. You had somte instructions from Senator McDougald with respect to
the class or series of bonds that you were to deliver to Mr. Sifton, prior to the
deiivery?-A. Yes, I did.

Q. How long prior to that delivery?-A. It was the samne morning.
Q.Before Barnard came in?-A. Yes, sir.
Q.Or after?-A. Before.

Q. Therefore, I take it, you were instructed by Mr. McDougaid that
Barnard and Sifton and you would have a discussion with regard to the delivery
of those bonds?-A. Yes.

Q. And at that time Dr. McDougald instructed you what bonds to hand to
Sifton?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is correct?-A. That is correct.
Q. Were those bonds in your custody or possession at the time Dr.

MeDougald gave you the instructions that morning,?-A. Yes, sir.
Q. And had been for some time?-A. For some littie time, yes.
Q. Was that one particular set, or was that just some of the others?-A. It

was part of the securities I had. For ten or fifteen years 1 have had from,
$10,000 to $100,000 of securities under my charge al1 the time, in my custody.

Q. Did you keep any books in relation to the transactions you were carrying
on for Dr. McDoug-ald?-A. Those particular transactions?-This one here, the
only record I had of that was the reeeipt from Mr. Sifton, which I delivered to
Mr. Barnard within the next day or two.

Q. There is no record in any book of account or iedger or any inventory
book with reference to this particular transaction?-A. We used to, keep formai
records of ail those .things up tili the time our companies dissoived.

Q. What do you mean 'by companies?-A. The companies Senator Mc-
Dougaid controlled-a number of coal -companies of which. I was eontrolier.

Q. But in 1928, and at the time of this transaction, so far as this bond
transaction was concerned there were no books?-A. We had no books; only
formai entries. You asked me if I meant in that particular transaction.

Q. That is, in other transactions where bonds were concerned did you keep
books or memoranda or notes of any kind?-A. Yes, we used to have notes that
we wouid take and enter, and we would go over the slips pretty correctiy once
or twice a year.

Q. But what I am asking you is, did you have a debit and credit ledger for
bonds and securities?-A. iNo sir.

Q. Did you have an inventory iedger?-A. No.
Q. Did you have a iedger or book of any kind in which bonds in your

possession were listed?-A. No.
Q. So when you had bonds in your possession or custody for Dr. Mc-

Dougald they were just there without any memoranda as to what was found
and what was not?-A. No, we always had memos.

Q. What form did those memos take?-A. I wouid make out a list several
times a year and give Senator McDougald a memo of i-Ihold to your
account such and such securities,'"-and we wouid ceck it over from time to
time 50 that wc would know, in a generai way, what 1 beid for him.

Q. Was there a iist in which these $46,000 of 1933 were included?-A. I
don't remember.

Q. Was there a iist at the time those bonds, $46,000, were in your possession,
of bonds you had in your custody?-A. I could not say for certain. We would
only keep those lists until we would check them up the next time. It was. a very
informul arrangement.

Q. It was so informai that it might be correct one minute, but not be accur-
ate a week from that?-A. That is probable.
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Q. How did you kee~p track of what you delivered? From the stock you
had in hand?-A. Yes, they had a list.

Q. Did you use any list of the $46,OOO you delivered on this occasion?-A.
1 did.

Q. 1 thought you said a moment ago that you did not remember the list?-
A. Well, that was my custom; I used to have a list. They were not formai records
of the office.

Q. You told me a moment ago that you did not remember if they were on
the list?-A. Well, frankly, 1 don't remembeT the exact list that those were on,
but that was my custom, to work with those memo lists that 1 che.eke-d up with
the senator at odýd intervals, and make a memo against those deliveries, but I
don't remember the actual list that those bonds were on.

Q. So that they were on a list; you believe that?--A. Well, I presume they
were on the list.

Q. And what happened to these lists after you checked them off, or crossed
off the list of bonds and so on, what happened to these lists afterwards?-A. We
did not keep them.

Q. And you are not able to say if there was any other record whatsoever
except what you have given us of these bonds?-A. No sir.

Q. Except the receipt which was handed to you by Mr. Barnard as having
come from Mr. Sifton?-A. That is the onIv one.

Q. 1 suppose you delivcred bonds to Senator McDougald from time to time,
and other securities?-A. Yes sir.

Q. Did you take a receipt from him?-A. Neyer.
Q. You neyer took a receipt from him. Did you give him a reccipt when he

handed bonds into your custody?-A. No I neyer did that, never have.
Q. Absolute and unfiinching confidence in each other?-A. Absolutely.

Mr. CLIFFORD SIFTON;, Toronto, Ontario, appeared as a witness, and having

been duly sworn, testified as follows:-

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Your occupation?-A. Barrister and solicitor.
Q. Your residence?-A. Toronto.
Q. You are a solicitor praeticing your profession in Toronto?-A. Yes sir.
Q. You are a brother of the late Winfield B. Sifton?-A. Yes.
Q. Your brother Winfield B. Sifton died on the 13th of June, 1928?-A.

Yes sir.
Q. And you, together with Henry A. Sifton, W. Victor Sifton and John W.

Sifton were executors of the estate of your late brother?-A. *We were, and stili
are.

Q. Did you in your capacity as executors of the estate, with any of the
other executors or by yourseif or in conjunction with one or more of them, gather
together any books, papers, documents and securities belonging to your late
brother?-A. Yes, everything of that nature that we could find wc got together.

Q. He resided in Brockville didn't he?-A. Just outside of Brockville.
Q. Have you in your possession in your quality as executor ail the papers,

paid cheques, statements and securities which formed part of your latebrother's
estate?--A. Well ail that formed part of the estate, that is everything we couid
find we put in. We stili have everything we could find.

Q. And there is nothing, no other documents of value, or correspondence
that relates to financial affairs, which you know of which you have not in your
possession. That is correct?-A. That is correct, except for the fact that there
are obvious vacancies in the documents, a f ew. For instance his returned
cheques start I think it is March or April of 1928. His cheques before that
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time, while we have a copy of the Bank statement they have not been able to
locate the actual cheques. There are obvious deficiencies of that kind. But
everything we have been able to find we have got.

Q. What you are speaking of now are the returned cancelled cheques?-
A. Yes.

Q. You have only found them. beginning March, 1928?- A. The first is
the 8th of April.

Q. The cheques you have there are fromn the 8th of April, 1928, to, the date
of bis death, and including cheques that were outstanding and paid afterwards
through the bank?-A. That is as I understand it.

Q. Accounts in what banks have vou?-A. We could only find an account in
the Bank of Nova Scotia, Brockville.

Q. Have you any knowledge of any other bank accounts, or have you
reason to believe he had any other bank account than the Bank of Nova Scotia,
Brockville?-A. No I have no reason to believe he had.

Q. Have you procured f rom the Bank of Nova Scotia, Brockville a statement
oi your brother's account?-A. Yes, a rough statement.

Q. If so will you say what that statement covers, the dates of the beginning
and the end of the statement, and will you be kind enough to produce it as Exhibit
142?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Before it is produced I suppose my learned friend will
give us an opportunty-

MVr. MANN: Absolutely, go ahead and look.
Q. Tell me what the date is and what it covers and then hand it tu Hon.

Mr. Cannon.
The WITNESS: This is a list which I got yesterdav, because we had no

reason to ask for it befoýre we reeeived your subpeona, a rough list, one of them is
headed: Stateinent of Credits, and purports to include every credit which appears
ifl bis account starting l6th June 1926, which was about the time, if my memory
serves me correctly, that he took up residence in Canada as far as that is
concerned; and ending 3lst March 1929, which is some time after his death.
The reason for that is, there was one overdraft which we paid sometime after bis
death. That is ail on one page.

Q. There is a second list, ineluding flve pages. which is a statement of the
debits. It has no information except the actual figures. It starts 16th dune
1926 and goes to some months after his death, the last items being outstanding
cheques and interest debits for the overdraft. It bas got the bank stamp and is
signed by the Manager of the bank, and was given to us as a statement of the
figures appearing on their ledger sheets. (Statements handed to Hon. Mr. Can-
non for perusal).

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I just eall the Committee's attention to the absolute lack
of legal value of sucb a document.

The CHAIRMAN: We will take it for wbat it is worth.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: It goes in for wbat it is worth I understand?
The CHAiRmAN: Yes.
The WITNEss: I have the covering letter wbich came witb this, perhaps it

should be attached.
Mr. MANN: This was handed to you by the Bank of Nova Scotia, Brock-

ville, as being from the books of the bank in reference to the late W. B. Sifton's
account?-A. That is not quite correct. I phoned the Manager of the bank at
Brockville and asked him to send it to me at Toronto. He sent it to the head
office branch in Toronto with a covering letter, of which this is a copy, and I
went down and the Assistant Manager, Mr. Russell, gave it to me as being the
figures appearing in the ledger account.
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1 have another letter from the Bank Manager referring to it, in which hie
says it is a rougli statement, which lie says lie trusts will be convenient for the
purpose.

The CHAIRMAN: It came to you as an executor?-A. I demanded it and
received it as an executor.

Mr. MANN: Have you any doubt that it represents the statement of your

brotlier's affairs witli the Bank of Nova Scotia at Brockville?-A. 1 neyer saw
the account. I received it as sucli, and have no reason to doubt it.

Q. And certified by the Bank of Nova Scotia, Brockville, by McCallum,
Manager?-A. It appears to be. I cannot add anything, 1 have explained how
I got it. And there are two accompanying letters.

Q. I do not think we need burden the record with these letters.-A. It
explains liow we got tliem.

Mr. MANIN: Unless my friend insists that the letters be in.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1 would not keep my friend from liaving the pleasure
of examining anything.

Mr. MANN: Your friend has not had mucli pleasure during this enquiry,
because lie lias not filod anything.

Mr. CHAIaRIAN: Those are just the covering letters?

The WITNEss: Yes Sir. The last letter is not exactly a covering letter, 1
asked for the dates, I said no doubt your Committee would like to know the
dates to which these figures refer, and the last letter is an additional letter from
the Bank Manager giving the dates of the first and last figure ecd month,
so that the date could bic marked. And the figures appearing in red pencil were
put on at my instigation transcribing the information from the last letter. Those
came in the form of a letter and were transcribed on tlie other document at my
request.

(Statemient of credits and statement of debits to W. B. Sifton~s account at
Bank of Nova Scotia, Brockville, filed, marked Exliibit No. 142.)

Mr. MANN: Looking at statement Exhibit 142, you mentioned that there
was an overdraft in your brother's account at the time of his deatli. The over-
draft was how much?-A. 1 cannot say exactly, it does not appear in the list.
1 said there was an overdraft because as an executor 1 know there was an over-
draft, and I was a party to paying it. 1 know one item here, amounting to,

$8,512.17 paid on the 3lst Mardi 1929 was the exact amount necessary to clean
off the account. That included the overdraft at the time of my brotlier's death
plus interest up until the tîme we paid it, but exactly what the figure was I
am not in a position to say at the moment.

Q. Thc amount you mentioncd is the amount the estate paid?-A. Event-
ually, on the date I mentioned.

Q. To cover thc debit balance in f avour of the bank plus interest to the
date you made tlie payment?-A. Yes.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Before my friend goes any furtlier, as I pointed out
to the Committee, this document legally lia absolutely no value as evidence.
If this is only a preliminary question I am not going to insist, but if my learned
friend for reasons unknown to me wislies to investigate the late Mr. Sifton 's

affairs, I would insist that legal evidence be adduced, that we have the Manager
liere and s0 on.

The CHAIRMAN: We are not tied up.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I appreciate that, so 1 do not think my learned friend
will prosecute tliat mudli furtlier.

Mr. MANN: I am afraid your frîend intends to prosecute that evidence, or

cail the Manager of tlie Bank to prove that these are the figures, I thouglit



BEAUHARNOIS POWER PROJECT

there could not be much doubt about it. 1 intend to prosecute the question in
respect to the account.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Then 1 raise my objection.
Mr. MANN: I ask for a ruling. 1 will ask the Committee to accept this

document in the meantime at least as evidence of the account, subjeet to pro-
ducing the Manager to corroborate it.

The CHAIRMAN: As f ar as 1 arn concerned it is in now.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Yes it is in, but what legal value has it?
The CHAIRMAN: That ha8 to be considered later by the Committee.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I think you should consider it now. Let us have legal

evidence. If my friend is going ta investigate the la;te Mr. Sifton's affairs there
is one way of doing it. His brother here knows absolutely nothing, he does not
know whether this document is accurate or not, does not know the first thing
about it.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Cannon, we are not going to ;onvict anyone of any
crânre.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: We are not talking about conviction.
The CHAimAN: We are j ust here as a committee of enquiry. We are not

going ta give a verdict of guilty or not guilty against anyone on a criminal
charge.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: We are not afraid of verdicts of guilty or not guilty.
But this Committee is composed mostly of lawyers, and up to now we have gone
along legal lines. I would like us ta proceed along legal lines. If my frîend for
some reason unknown ta, me wishes to investigate the estate of the late W. B.
Sifton, let us do it legally. If he wants to. investigate the bank account that Mr.
Sifton might have had in Brockville, let us have the Bank Manager put in the
books. He is the man who can tell us something. His brother cannot -tell us
anything. Why are we wasting time? This witness along these lines would flot
be listened ta in any court of law. He admitted himself he did not know per-
sonally anything about these things.

Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: Do yau suggest that the statement is not correct?
Hon., Mr. CANNON: I do not say that for a minute.
Hon. Mr. McMEANs: In a commission of enquiry such as this, if you had

any doubts you could just telephone ta, the bank and ask if the statement is
correct. That would save a lot of trouble.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I would be quite satisfied, with ail due respect, if my
friend would tell us what he intends proving.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Your objection is not so much ta the document as ta
the evidence?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: No, if my friend wishes ta investigate the whole affairs
of the late Mr. Sîfton, then I would like to have this investigation carried an on
legal lines. If he just wishes to put a few questions to Mr. Sifton I arn not going
to waste the time of the Committee by objecting.

The CHAIRMAN: I do flot think it is of sufficient importance.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I attach no importance ta it at alI.
Hon. Mr. Corpp: I f eel that if Mr. Mann wants ta use this as a memorandum

from which to ask the witness questions, well and good. But if he is going ta
file it as absolute proof that this is the full statement, I do not believe it should
be done in that way.

Mr. MANN: For the Honaurable gentleman's benefit and for my friend's,
I intend to use that as the statement af the late W. B. Sifton's aocount with the
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Bank of Nova Scotia, and point out to the Committee items of the account,
assuming it is the account from the Bank of Nova Scotia.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: You could assume that. There is only one assumption,
if you are a court, and it is a legal assumption.

The CHAIRMAN: We have it in evidence now that this statement came into
the possession of the executors of the estate from the bank.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: With ail due deference, the witness tells us, I received
a subpeona and in order to be able to fulfil the summons which I reeeived I
telephoned the bank to try and get whatever documenits I could, and I received
this. Now if my friend wishes to use this in a sort of casual way to help him
along examining this witness, I have no objection. But if he wishes to file this
as an Exhibit being a legal document showing the exact position of the late Mr.
Sifton at the time of lis death, with that bank, with ail due respect I submit
that this is no way of doing it.

The CHAIRMAN: I -think you are quite right, if this was a court of Iaw he
would have to produce the original books.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Tbis is the highest court of law in the land.
The CHAIRMAN: We are not a court of law.
Hon. Mr. MOMEAN,,s: I do not think you would have to produce the books.

If my memory serves me right, there was an Act passed that where a bank was
subpeonaed they could make an extract from the books and that would be
accepted as evidence.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: But certified by an officiai of the bank who can say,
This is an extract from the books. Tbis is only signed by the Manager, I
understand. 1 am nôt doubtiiig bis sigiiatuiue, I do iiot think Mr. Sifton even
knows it, he cannot vouch for the signature. But again I repeat 1 am not
going to waste the time of the Committee, but 1 would like to know what my
friend is driving to.

The CHAIRMAN: 1 thiiik we better go on, and if there is anytbing really
vital, and there is any douht as to whether it is correct, we can have it verified
by the banker.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1 am satisfied with that.
Mr. MANN: 1 think I can assure my friend we will have the Bank Man-

ager here to verify it.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Well my friend has had since Friday to prepare this.
Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: I should tbink you could agree about that.
Mr. MANN: 1 should not think there would be the slight est trouble about

it. 1 tbînk my friend migbt want to look at it and say he will agree that it is
the statement of the bank account.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I do not know anytbing about it.
Mr. MANN: Ail rigbt.
Q. Mr. Sifton, look at Exhibit No. 142, look at the credits iu the statement

and tell me if, beginning the lst of January, 1928, you find anv credit there of
a sum. of $15,0O0 from the lst of January, 1928, to the dlate of your brother's
death.

The WITNESS: No. The iargest credit or deposit seems to be in April, 1928,
$3,000. That is excluding the $8,500 odd which we paid ourselves.

Q. That is something you paid after bis death?-A. Yes.
Q. I am talkîng about up to the time of bis deatb, or a few days after,

when cequies might have been paid in that were outstanding? A. The largest
individual item appears to be $3,000, accordîng to this list.
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Q. Would you be good enough to look at the debits and see if there are
any cheques drawn against that account-what is the largest cheque drawn
against it from January lst, 1928, to the date of your brother's death, to the
end of the account?-A. The largest cheque charged against Vhis account
appears to be $913.35 some time in April, 1928.

.Q. That is the largest cheque from the first of January to the time of your
brother's death?-A. According to this list, I only know what is on the list.

Q. Which we will nearly say purports to be the account?-A. Exactly.
Q. Did your brother take ill any time before lie died?-A. A few days, I

forget the number of days.
Q. Around three or four or five?-A. Something like that.
Q. From the timc lic took ili was he confined to the house unable t'O transact

any business?-A. Yes I understand that is so. I was flot present until the
very end, but 1 understand that is so.

Q. That would mean that lie took ill somewhere around the 8tli or 9th
of June?-A. I presume that was true.

Q. And lie died on the l3th. The state of his account was a substantial
overdraft at the time of bis death?-A. Yes.

Q. Which the estate paid?--A. Yes.
Q. Now among the assets of your brotlier's estate-did you gather together

as executors, you with your brothers, the assets of bis estate?-A. We did.
Q. Did you make a list of them?--A. We did.
Q. At the Commons enquiry 1 think thiere was filed as Exhibit No. 105 a

document being a statement of the estate of your late brother, with an affidavit
as Vo succession duties attached. (Showing document to witness.) That is the
Exhibit produced on the Commons enquiry?-A. This appears to be a copy of
the Succession Duties Act affidavit which we prepared, yes.

Q. And includes within it an inventory of the securities which made up your
brotlier's estate?-A. Yes.

Q. Was there among the assets of the estate any Dominion of Canada bonds
whatsoever?-A. No.

'Q. Was there among the papers of the estate any reccipt for any sums of
money paid Vo the Beauliarnois Syndîcate or the Beauiarnois Power Syndîcate?
-A. I do not recollect any sucli receipt.

Q. Would you recolleet it if it had been tliere?-A. Not a receipt, no.
Q. There was no receipt?-A. I do not say that, I say 1 arn not sure I would

have recollected it. If it had been a receipt for money which was loaned which
constituted an asset I arn sure I would have listed it.

Q. Was there any receipt from the Beauharnois Syndicate or the Beauhar-
nois Power Syndicate for any sum of money appearing to have been paid to
that Syndicate in the form of a suibscription?-A. I cannot answer categorically.
Certainly I neyer heard of sucli a thing and 1 do not recollect having seen such
a thing. There is nothing I can recollect whicli rcfers to that.

Q. Was there any reference to a subscription by your brother to stock or
units in the Beauliarnois Power Syndicate or Beauharnois Syndicate?-A. I
neyer savý such a thing.

Q. I merely ask was there any sucli thing among the papers of the estate?-
A. I cannot answer categorically because we have haif a trunk full of papers, I
did flot examine every one to see wliether there was such a thing, but I do flot
recollect any question of such a thing.

Q. You did examine the papers to find what the assets of the estate were?-
A. Exactlv. There was nothing which appeared Vo me to be an asset whicli
referrcd to that, at least not that we found.

Q.And there was not in the estate any evidence so far as you found, liaving
looked over the assets, any evidence that lie was at any time a subscriber to
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the stock or part-interests of the Beauharnois Power Syndicate or Beauharnois
Syndicate?-A. Certainly not at the time of bis death. I would not be parti-
cularly interested in what he was before, but I can recolleet nothing-

Q. 1 arn only asking what you found at the time of bis death?-A. I do not
remember finding any such thing, but I mnust explain that if it was an interest
which would have terminated before, it is not the kind of thing we would be
particularly looking for. 1 cannot recollect even having seen anything which
referred to an interest wbich bad terminated.

Q. What 1 arn asking is if there was arnong the papers of your late brother's
estate any evidence that he had been prior to bis death necessarily interested
in the shares or part-units or part-interests or units of the Beauharnois Syndicate
or Beauharnois Power Syndicate?-A. Not within my knowledge, no.

Q. Who rnade up the inventory of the estate?-A. It was made up under
my direction. Myseif and my clerical help.

Q. Was it made up from, information you furnished to the party who put
the figures down?-A. It was done directly under my own hand.

Q. And as far as the executors have been able to find, the only assets of
the estate are as appears on Exhibit No. 105?-A. With one exception, which
turned up afterwards, one that I can recollect; that was a small matter of a
f.ew shares in a hotel cornpany at Brockville, I think it was. We learned about
it because there apparently had been a subscription and there was rnoney owing
on it, and in that way we learned about it. I cannot remember anything else
which carne uip subsequently whicb was an asset.

Q. May 1 rernind you that there was a surn of something over $10,00O, a
fee which had not been collected frorn sorneone?-A. It appears in the statement.

Q. That is the sum of $10,088.70, due by the Beauharnois Company, which
had not been paid at the tirne of bis death?-A. Yes.

Q. Was paid after bis death?-A. Fees and expense account, yes.
Q. And expenses. And I note the very large proportion of the estate is

referred to as bank stocks and other stocks, $489,300?-A. Yes.
Q. That you have inforrned me is stock in the Armadale Corporation?-

A. That is right.
Q. The Armadale Corporation is what?-A. A private company.
Q. Belonging to the members of the Sifton family?-A. Yes.
Q. And he had stock in the Armadale Corporation which was valued at

$4S9,300 at the time of bis death?-A. Wbich we valued at that price for the
purpose of this affidavit, ves.

Q. And that is the value of shares in the Armadale Corporation whîch your
late brother owned?-A. Generally, yes, but what actually happened was that
the shares were owned by trustees, and be bad a beneficial interest, and when
it is ail wasbed out this is the amount of interest.

Q. Did any part of that interest which your brother owned at the time
of bis death resuit from bonds or securities of any sort or description which he
had handed in to the Armadale Corporation within three montbs prior to bis
death, say?-A. Bonds or securities?

Q. Yes.-A. Nothing to do with any of these matters. Within three months,
no nothing within three months.

SQ. Well let us say fromn the lst of January, 1928, that is five months?-A.
No.

Q. He had handed in no securities or bonds or anything of the kind into the
Armadale Corporation wh.ich went to create the beneficial interest which he had
in it at the time of bis death?-A. I think that is correct.

Q. Or rnoney?-A. I tbink that is correct.

Mr. MAN~N: I think that is ail.
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By Hon. Mr. Cannon:
Q.You are your brother's executor?-A. I arn one of them, yes, sir.
Q.Last year, while the Hou-e of Commons Committee was sitting, you had

been asked to look through -ail these papers and try and find out whatever
could be of any value or worth to the Committee?-A. Last year, no, sir.

Q. When was this Exhibit prepared?-A. That appears ta be a copy of a
Succession Duties affidavit which we prepared. How it came ta get before the
Carnmittee I have no idea.

Mr. MANN: If my memory serves, what they did, they telephoned the
office where the probate was and had some solicitor make a copy and send it
Up.

The WITNESS: As a matter of fact when it came ta my knowledge that
there was some question with regard to rny late brother's records, I made a
special trip from Brockville, m-here I was staying in the summer, in here and
told the solicitors for the inquiry that if there was any other information hie
wanted we would be very glad ta give it ta him.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: When was that?-A. That was the last day of the
enquiry, but we were not called.

Q. Last year?-A. Yes.
Q. And they did not cail you last year?-A. No.
Q. And this year you were summoned Friday or Saturday?-A. Well Mr.

Mann got me an the telephone and said they wanted certain information, and
wanted ta know who would be in possession of it. I told him aur accountant
would be in charge of the records, that anything we had would be a question
of record, and beyond aur personal knowledge, anything which.I thought hie
would want, and I said, you better eall the accauntant. But in looking oven the
matter and helping the accountant ta find evenything which I thought would
be of interest ta the Committee it appeared there was very littie of interest, and I
was afraid it might appear that we had asked ta have the accauntant summoned
for the more purpose of avoiding the issue, so I came myseif.

Q. What I would like ta make clean is that not only this year but Iast
year you volunteened ail the information you might have in youn possession
which might be of any interest?-A. That is right.

Q. And ail you have ta offer to the Committee is what you have said now?
-A. Now, with regard ta what I have been asked. Anything cisc is availabie
if they want it.

Q. You have heard Mr. Bank's evidence, you have heard Mr. Bernand's evi-
dence, and as ta these things you do not know anything?-A. Personally no.

Mr. MANN: Mr. Chairman, there is anc Exhibit that bas not yet been filed,
Exhibit INo. 1311I think, which was Mr. Geoffrian's bill. I spoke ta Mn. Geoffnion
the other day, hie said hoe wouid send it right up ta the Cierk of the Comrnitteo.

Thon Senator Haydon 's examination bas not yet been concludod, and what
may resuit from Senaton Haydon's examination and what mav resuit fnomn the
items in Mr. Geoffrion's account Exhibit No. 131, and subjeet ta the necessity of
cailing the Manager of the Bank at Brockvile-

The CHAIRMAN: Weil you have niothing more this afternoon?

Mr. MANN: No I have nothing more this afternoon. Have yau Mr. Smith?

The CHAIRMAN: In that case I arn going ta ask the Committee ta meet
tomorraw monning at il o'ciock, wîth the expectation that we can arrange ta
finish Senatan Haydon. In the meantime I wiil get into communication with bis
counsel and ascertain if we can go there in the f orenoon. Is that agneeable ta the
Committee?

Hon. Mr. McMp-ýNs:. I think yau wili have ta sce the doctar.



232 SPECIAL COMMITTER

The CHAIRMAN:. Yes, but 1 thought if we met at il o'elock we will know
definitely, and probably be able to go down before 1 o'clock.

Hon. Mr. GRA~HAM: Is the end in sight, or are we just getting ready for the
next-

The CHAI1RMAN: I hope so.
Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Is not the time coming when we wilI say we will finish

to-day?
The CHAIRMAN: I hope so. 0f course we are not very bitsy just now.
Mr. SMITH: WeIl can we have this Exhibit No. 142 admitted for what they

obviously know it is?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: No, I do not want my friends ta bring the bankers.
The CHAIRMAN: 1 thought we understood that.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Certainly.

The Committee adjourned until to-morrow at il a.m.



MINUTES 0F EVIDENCE

OTTAwA, THUffSDAY, Mareh 17, 1932.

The Special Gommittee appointed for the purpose of taking into considera-
tion the report of a Special Committee of the House of Commons of the last
session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, in so f ar as said

report relates to any honourable tuembers of the Senate, met this day at il
o'clock in the forenoon.

Present: The Honourable Senators Tanner, Chairman; Béique, Chapais,
Copp, Donnelly, Graham, Griesbach, McMeans and Robinson.

Counsel:

Mr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Arthur L. Smnith, K.C.,

Calgary, Alberta, for the Committee.

The Honourable Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec; Mr.

John W. Cook, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Hugh E. 0'Donnell, Mont-

real, Quebec, for Hon. Senator W. L. McDougald.

Mr. John P. Ebbs, Ottawa, Ontario, for Hon. Senator Andrew Haydon.

Mr. Thomas Vien, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, for Hon. Senator Donat

Raymond.

Mr. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, may I make a correction? In my examination
of Senator McDougald I referred to him as owning roughly twenty per cent of

the stock of the company. 1 was wrong. It is exactiy nine and one haif per
cent. I amn anxious to correct that.

The CHAIRMAN: Now we are to consider the takîng of certain evidence f rom
Senator Haydon. Mr. Ebbs, arc you representing Senator Haydon?

Mr. EBBS: Dr. Argue is here, and I thought perhaps he might say a word

or two. I do not know whether your Commîttee has dccidcd whether you wish
to go out to Senator Haydon's home.

The CHAIRMAN: We will hear Dr. Argue.

Dr. JOHN FENTON ARGUE was rccallcd as a witness, and testified as follow 8:

By the Chairman:
Q. Will you tell us, doctor, about Senator Haydon? We contemplated going

down to his homc this forcnoon. Will you tell us what you think? The Com-
mittee would like to have your judgment in the matter.-A. 0f course, Senator
llaydon is feeling the strain of thuid more or less, and I had to go out to sec him

last night at 9 o'clock, and he was in a rather nervous condition and I had to
give him a rather heavy sedative to insure him a night's rest. If your Commit-tee
could see your way clear to leave his examination tili this afternoon, or pre-
ferably tili to-morrow, I think it would be better for the Senator's health.

Hon. Mr. McMEANs: I fancy the examination will not be very long. doctor.
Mr. Mann, how long would you think?
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Mr. MANN: I do not think it wouild be long at ail.
lion. Mr. MCMEýANS: How long -would you say?
Mr. MANN: It is a very difficuit thing to say. That depends upon the

answers to the questions, but I should say at the oubside haif an hour or thirty-
five or forty minutes. I should not think it could possibly be longer than that.

By the Chairman:
Q.You would prefer it to-morrow?-A. Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: It is possible the Senate may adjourn to-night, so I under-
stand, until Tuesday. I feel 110W that if we decide to, postpone the investigation
until to-morrow it may not be necessary for ail the members of the Committee
to go, as we did before.

Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: No; that is what 1 was thinking.
The CHAIRMAN: 1 would be quite wiliing to go, for one. I prefer to, go

when the doctor think-s the Senator is in1 the best condition.
Hon. Mr. CHAPAis: You are perfectly right. It would -be enough that you

and two other members of the Committee should go. I amn sure nobody is anxious
to go.

By Right Hon. MIr. Graham:
Q.What do you think, doctor, would it be better if we did not ail go?

A. Weil, of course it is a small sized room, and if you get fifteen men in there
for an hour-

lion. Mr. CHAPAIS: We were crowded there the Iast time, there were too
many.

The WITNEsS: Yes, too many.

By the Chairman:
Q.Do you think he would be ail riglit for this afternoon?-A. If, as Mr.

Mann says, haîf an hour-
Mr. MANN: Yes, I think I can almost assure the Committee it would not

be longer than that.

By Hon. Mr. MeMVeans:
Q.You see, doctor, there are several counsel here from Montreal and

elsewhere. If there is any possibility of seeing the Senator without any undue
strain- -A. I think a reasonable time would be ail right. lie is very anxîous
to get it over with himself. I think if it was a i easonable time it probably
would not do him any damage this afternoon; but as a physician, I would
prefer twenty-four hours later. lie is very anxious to get the thing concluded.

By the Chairman:
Q.Could it be arranged this way, that we decide to go down at, say,

4 o'clock this afternoon, unless you advise differently in the meantime?-
A. Yes sir. I will let you know. If you do not hear from me by 1 o'clock
you will know it is perfectly safe to make your arrangements for 4 o'clock.

The CHAIRMAN: The Committee will understand that we are to be there
at 4 o'clock, unless otherwise advised.

Hon. Mr. CHAFAIS: I think, Mr. Chairman, you had better arrange to go
with two or three others; we do not need to have the whole Cornmittee there.

lion. Mr. McMEANS: I think Senator Graham should go, because he is
not like a stranger there.

The CHAIRMAN: It will be necessary, if that is to be done, for the Com-
mittee to name certain members as a sub-Committee.
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Hon. Mr. BÉiQuJE: I think a sub-Committee of three would be sufficient.
I move that the sub-Committee consist of the Chairman, Senator MeMeans
and Senator Graham.

Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: 1 second that.
The motion was agreed to.
Hon. Mr. McMEANs: When shall we meet again as a full Committee?
Hon. Mr. DONNELLY: When the sub-Committee returns from Senator

Haydon's residence the full Cornmittee should meet.
Hon. Mr. Copp: The sub-Committee should be back by 5 o'clock.
Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: Mr. Smith, have you any further witnesses after

Senator Haydon?
Mr. SMITH: No sir.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Are you proposing to call any more witnesses, Mr.

Cannon?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Surely not.
Hon. Mr. MCMENSs: Then we may close with Senator Haydon's evidence

this afternoon.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: Yes. It will not be necessary for ail the counsel to

go to Senator Haydon's. We have no further evidence. 1 understand my
learned friends declared yesterday they would complete their evidence with
Senator Havdon, subject onlv to anything that might arise from bis examina-
tion. Arn Jright, Mr. Mann'?c

Mr. MANN: About as right as you have been ail through the proceedings.
You are nearly right.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: This is my birthday. You ought to be careful.
Mr. MANN: 1 did say subject to further examination on Exhibit 131, and

that is not here yet.
Mr. SIrTH: I take it, Mr. Chairman, that inasmuch as you are trying to

reduce the number in attendance at the examination of Senator Haydon, that
1 may be excused and that Mr. Mann alone may go as Cornmittee counsel.

The CHAIRMAN: 1 think so.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Mr. Ebbs will be there, I suppose?
Mr. Enns: Yes sir.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Mr. Robertson will be there?
Mr. EBBS: I expect so.
Hon. Mr. MCMFANS: If he is not there, I suppose you will take lis place?
Mr. EBBS: Yes.
The CHAIRMAN: Now, gentlemen, I may say that it has been suggested

to the Committee that perhaps counsel for the honourable senators who are
mentioned in this matter might desire to give the Committee a statement or
summary of the evidence, something in the nature of a brief. I do not know
whether you desire to do that, but I arn sure that the Committee will bc
pleased to have your briefs if you wish to present them, and the only stipula-
tion we make is that we would prefer to have them before we begin to formu-
late our reports.

Mr. VIES: Mr. Chairman, may I ask if it is the intention of the Com-
lnittee to request Mr. Mann and Mr. Smith to address the Committee?

The CHAIRMAN: No.
Mr. ViiES: Nor to, request any other counsel to make an address?
The CHAIRMAN: No.
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Mr. VIEN: The suggestion, if I understand it rightly, is that counsel will
have the privilege of filing a written brief containing a summary of the
evidence and suggesting conclusions.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: And giving the references.
Mr. VIEN: And giving references to the pages of the evidence, so as to

facilitate your work in checking the accuracy of the statements macle.
The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Mr. VIEN: On behaif of rny client, I desire to express the request that we

be granted such a privilege.
Hon. Mr. BÉiQux: The counsel for the Cornrittee have been requested

to do the sarne thing.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: We appreciate vcry much this offer frorn the Corn-

rnittee but I arn not willing to say whether we will file anything or not. We
will consider it, but our action will depend upon what rny learned friends do.
1 arn perfectly willing to leave the matter in the hands of the Committee as it
is now.

The CHAiRMAN: Well, the matter is open. If you are submitting any
briefs we should like to have them, I think, not later than the end of next week.

Hon. Mr. BÉiQun: It would be mucli more satisfactory for the Committee
to have a kind of brief from ahl parties.

Hon. Mr. CHAPAIS: Yes, it would be a great help.
Mr. VIEN: May I suggest that it might be advisable for the Cornmittee

to determine a data for the filing of the briefs concurrently?
Hon. Mr. Copr: I think we should wait until we have heard Senator

Haydon's evidence and are satisfied that no other witnesses are to be called,
before we fix a date. Thcn we could ascertain f rom counsel for the Cornrittee
how long it will take for them to prepare a staternent.

The CHAIRMAN: That is quite satisfactory.
Hon. Mr. BÉiQuE: I understand that any briefs submitted will form. part

of the record for the information of people who are interested in these pro-
ceedings.

The CHAIRMAN: We can consider that matter when we get the briefs.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: That rnîght cause counsel to be more careful.
Mr. VIEN: May I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that these briefs will be ad-

dressed to your Committee, but we would expect and desire that thev be
available to ahi honourable senators in the House when your report is býefore
them.

The CHAIRMAN: Surehy, yes.
Mr. VIEN: For that reason it might be more convenient to all concerned

if the brief s were embodicd in the report of the Cornmittee.
The CHAIRMA'N- Once they corne here they are public.
Mr. VIEN: If the briefs of other counsel are pubhished, it rnay be advisabhe

to make further staternents, upon request.
Hon. Mr. MOMEANs: It looks to me as if you are preparing for an appeal

now.
Mr. VIEN: Not quite, senator. Wc have understood frorn the very start

that this Committee is a fact finding body whose purpose was to cohlect
evidence and report thereon to the Senate, which would be the court of ultimate
jiirisdictinn in the matter.

Hon Mr. CorP: There is no appeal from the Senate's decision.
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Hon. Mr, CANNON: Perhaps it would shorten matters if we were given an
opportunity to present briefs after my honourable friends the counsel for the
Committee have filed theirs. If that were done, we would know what stand.
they took and what particular matters we have to discuss.

Mr. SMIT17: Counsel for the Committee do not intend to take any stand
at ail. Whatever expression is good for your own soul, just rnake it.

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Mr. Cannon, I would not miss anything.
The CHAIRMAN: The sub-Committee wvi1l meet at haif past three for the

piirpose of arranging to go to, Senator Haydon's residence, if the doctor thinks
it wîll be ail right for us to go. The full Committee will stand adjourned until
5 p.m.

The Sub-Committee, consisting of Hon. Senator Tanner, Chairman, Right
Hon. Senator Graham andý Hon. Senator McMeans, met at the residence of
Senator Haydon, the Driveway, Ottawa, at 4 o'clock p.m.

The following counsel were present:-
Mr. J. A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, for the Committee.
Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, for Hon. Senator Andrew Hay-

don.
Hon. Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec; Mr. John W.

Cook, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Hugh E. O'Donnell, Montreal, Quebec,
for Hon. Senator W. L. McDougald.

Hon. Senator ANDREw HAYDON was recalled as a witness, and testified as
follows:

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Senator Haydon, the books showing the charges to Sterling Industrial

Corporation have just been handed to me this minute, and in order to Save time
in the examination I arn going to ask you to produce, as Exhibit 143, accounts
of Sterling Industrial Corporation, beginning with date 5th July, 1924, page 534
on the book which Mr. Robertson bas just handed me, and continuing further
to page 702 of the same book as Exhibit 144 of what appears to be a continua-
tion of that account carried into another docket or ledger as of date June 19,
1929, under the heading Beauharnois Power Corporation, and being account No.
6, sheets No. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7-seven sheets altogether; Have you had an oppor-
tunity of looking at those aecounts since we last met two days ago, Senator
Haydon?-A. I just looked ovcr them generally; I would not know anything
about thcm more than what is there.

Q. Perhaps you might help us to understand a little of what some of the
items menn; I see there arc mentioned interviews with Dr. McDougald and Mr.
R. A. C. Henry?-A. Yes.

Q. And references made to letters from Dr. King in reference to the rights of
.J. B. Robert-I take it that was the J. B. Robert who had held rights in the
Beauh arnois section ?-A. Perhaps.

Q* The account, Exhibit 143, seems to end at page 702 of the ledger with
the words, "Carried to ledger 9/3"; the last date on page 702 is December 7,
1928; I assume that the carried forward reference is to Exhibit 144, namely, to
the other ledger.

Mr. ROBERTSON: That is what I would take it to, be.
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By Mr. Mann:
Q.Perhaps you could help me, Senator Haydon; what does that 9/3 mean?,

-A. I have not the faintest idea. I have not seen those books for years. You
would hardly expect me to be the bookkeeper to the firm.

Q. No, 1 would flot expect that; in any event 1 find that the first item that
appears to be cbarged to Beauharnois Power Corporation is dated 19-th June,.
1929, in this ledger; you can check that, Mr. Robertson?

Mr. ROBERTON: Yes; I suppose that wvas the date of incorporation.
Mr. MANN: They were incorporated later than that, and the Iast item

appears to be November 6, 1931.
Mr. ROBERTSON: That is riglit.
Mr'. MANN: The addition is $8,757.53, and is balanced by a similar

amount in the credit column; that is correct, is it not?
Mr. ROBERTSON: Oh yes.

By Mr. Mann:

Q.Now, in an answer to a question the other day you stated:
As a matter of fact, the fee in question covered, among other matters,

the incorporation of the Beauiharnois Power Corporation, which \vas flot
incorporated until the autumn of 1929, and thie fee was paid on Octoher
19, 1929, when that work was cumpleted. It i's rather absurd to talk
about the fee heing payable on the passing of the Order in Council which
was passed six months before aur wark was done.

Now, with the information taken from your books, do you stili maintain the
statement which I just read to you?-A. As I remember, the Order in Council
issued in March, 1929, and the work of the coinplction of the incorporation of
Beauharnois intcrests was in October or November in the samne year, which was
more than six months.

Q. But, you sec, the accaunt appears to proceed right through from 1924 ta
1931, according to-?-A. Na account of Beauharnois; there was not even
a word in sight in 1924.

Q. No, but the account appears to proceed right tbrough from 1924 to 1931?
-- A. Yes.

Q. It is carried right through in sequence of dates from Sterling right to
Beauharnois, and it is captioned Beauharnois in the second ledger I referred ta?
-A. So f ar as I know.

Q. And it is ail carried through as one aecount?-A. Ye.s.
Mr. ROBERTSON: That is the way it is in that book.

By Mr. Mann:
Q.Now, I would like ta see where the credit for the $5O,000 fee appears in

that account, if it does appear anywhere?-A. It must he.
Mr. ROBERTSON: I don't know that it is in that account; 1 do not see it.
The WITNESS: The books were before the Committee last year.

By Mr. Mann:
Q.But we are in this year, and 1 would just like Vo find out where that

$50,000 fee is?
Mr. ROBERTSON: Here it is. It cornes in, curiously enough, October 18,

retainer, by cash, same $50,000.
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By Mr. Mann:

Q.At sheet No. 5, account No. 6, in the general account to which we have
been referring, Exhibit 143 and 144, 1 find an item of October 18, to retainer
herein, by cash, same, CB. 212-I take that to be cashbook-$50,OO debit, with
a credit of $50,OOO; is the cashbook here?

Mr. ROBERTSON: No, it is not.
Mr. MANN: Is there any entry to show on what date that $50,000 was paid?
Mr. ROBERTSON: Do you want me to show, or the Senator to show?
Mr. MANN: You helped us; I want to look for the entries.
Mr. ROBERTSON: I think we have helped him. We want to look at the books

together.
Hon. Mr. MOMEANS: Does the book not speak for itself?
Mr. MANN: No.
Mr. ROBERTSON: The question, as I understand, is-Is there anything in the

book te show the date.
Mr. MANN: The entry in this ledger is October lSth; I don't know why

"retainer herein" is put in; by cash, $5OWO, on the l8th October, 1929. Now,
you see the debit is on that date to which you have referred, and there is also
a credit wîthout any date.

The WITNESS: Wcll, I cannot make the bookkeeper-if she bas made the
entries improperly I cannot help it.

By Mr. Mann:

Q.What were the circumstances of that retainer, Senator Haydon? How
did it come about?-A. Well, Sweezey says that he-

Q. I do not want that?-A. That he talked to Mr. McGiverin in the fail of
1928. If he did, I have nu personal knowledge of it. I was away during a great
deal of the fail of 1928.

Q. Let me interrupt you, Senator Haydon: I want your answer, not Mr.
Sweezey's; do you know how that retainer came about-the circumstances of
that $50,000 retainer?-A. It just was a general dlean-up for, everything done.

Q. A general dlean-up for everything done?-A. As far as I know, and to
be donc.

Q. But who arranged the value of the services done? Did you or your
partner, the Hon. Mr. MeGiverin?-A. I suppose he did most of it.

Q. Did you discuss with your partner?-A. Yes, I think I did.
Q. And did you jointly corne to the conclusion that $50,000 was-.-A. Yes,

I remember his distinctly saying that it would be satisfactory, that they would
pay.

Q. Who suggested $50,OO?--A. I think it was suggested-As f ar as I know
personally it was suggested by Senator McDougald. As far as what Mr. Mc-
Giverin did, I think-I don't know-I know that it wa-s his view, McGiverin's
view, but what they did among themsclvcs, talking and se on when I wu. absent,
I simply don't know.

Q. So that before that ameunt, was paid, in concert with yourself, Senator
McDougald and Mr. MeGiverin, thiýs amount of $50,000 was arrived at as being
a f air amount for the services rendered; how long before it was actually paid?-
A. Oh, perhaps a ycar.

Q. Perhaps a year before?-A. A number of months. As far as I know
it was worked out with reference to the completion of a final company which
sheuld gather in the Beauharnois situation, which company did become the
Beauharnois Power Corporation.
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Q. And ail you can say is that it was worked out between your partner,
yourself and Senator McDougal?-A. 1 don't think there was any working. I
think there was just a lump jump at it, as f ar as I know.

Q. And it was sornewhere in the vicinity of a year prior to the date of the
payrnent?-A. It was a good number of rnonths, as f ar as I know.

Q. And that was paid on October 18; I think the cheque bears that date,
or about that date, October 18, 1929; you don't know, but take a year back,
or say eigbt to, twelve rnonths, would you say it would be eight to twelve
menths back, would you say it wauld be eight to twelve rnonths back that that
payment was made?-A. I can't say; it was sorne manths; that is the best 1 can
tell yau.

Q. 1 have in mind, Senator Haydon, that you referred to these water power
projects the other day as moonshine; 110W I would just like to know what you
mean by rnoanshine, in the liglit of that $50,000 retainer, eight or fine months
back of October, 1929?-A. No, I arn not talking about that eight or nine rnonths
back. I look upan every kind of individual that cornes into my office-and
McGiverin, was exactly the same, we were always of the same view-who cameý
in with any business that was at ail speculative, that it was moanshine, if yau
like, until the day that it was carning to completian, and sometimes it took
years, and sametimes months, and many tirnes it neyer got anywhere.

Q. Sa that your view of it was that until it got ta sorne solid position where
it was sornething real, that it was rnoonshine?-A. Well, it was speculative.

Q. Do you suggest it was speculative when this $50,000 was suggested,
or had it got to sorne consolidated state?-A. 1 don't know that it was vcry
consolidated, it rnay have been, 1 can't tell yeu that; I don't rernember.

Q. Arn I te take it that the $50,0O0 was thrust upon the firrn of McGiverin,
Haydon and Ebbs, or was there any bargaining about it?-A. There was no
bargaining that 1 know of.

Q. It was a generous offer by sornebody; is that what I arn entitled to say
to you?-A. Well, it was a proposai, as far as 1 can remember, ta dlean up
what had been done, and go on and dlean up what was necessary still to do, in
view cf the need for campleting a cornpany in this cancern which should be a
financial company of that undertaking-just one cf the many companies con-
cerned with whieh we had nothing ta do.

Q. And, may I take it, that was with a view cf vesting in that cempany
sorne substantial rights te carry on its propeets?-A. Oh, it would have ta be
a cempany that would gather in ail the rights some day etherwise it would
not be any gaod.

Q. And it was in that view that yau were retained ta the extent af $50,00O,
narnely, the gathering in af ail rights?-A. No.

Q. What was it you were retained for?-A. I have already told yeu, far.
daing a lat of things that we had aiready dane far a number cf years, and things
ta be dene; wbat they were was perfectly indefinite, ar fairly indefinite, as ta
tirne.

Q. Yau do nat know what was remainîng ta be dane?-A. Na.
Q. Du you remember any anc at ail? A. I have tried ta tell yau that thp

incorparation and campletien cf the final holding campany was yet ta be donc,
and it had ta be donc in cannectian with the varieus solicitors for the variaus
interests that were in and ta be interested-bankers and atherwise-and it
happens in every stage of the undertaking.

Q. But yau see that my difficulty is that here is an arrangement fer $50,OO0
that was rnade somewhere in the vicinity of ten months or a year before
Octoher 18, 1929 that is correct, is it not?-A. Sorne manths, as far as I know.

Q. Yeu said a year; I arn not lirniting you ta a year; I will lirnit it, if
you like, te six rnonths or te tweive manths?-A. Go an; You can get loaded up
like it was ]ast summer.



BEAUHARNOIS POWER PRO JECT

Q. At the time this was arranged for, there was not any Beauharnois Power
Corporation in prospect at ail, at the time this retainer was arranged for and
agreed upon?-A. I think so.

Q. Do you know that there was or there was not?-A. Nothing could ever
work out except there should some day be a company that could finance. That
is what I told you the other day in connection with the prospects for the under-
taking; except it had things that they worked with people that could buy power
it could not get anywhere.

Q. You cannot tell me, in arranging this $50,000 retainer, to what extent
you and your partner, Mr. McGiverin, discussed it with Senator McDougald?-
A. 1 cannot tell you; I couldn't rernember. I can't rernember ail that was
discussed with men four or five years ago, this day and to-morrow and the day
after.

Q. Do you remeînber the cheque for $7,500 on the l2th of June, 1930?-
A. Yes. 1 don't remember it, but 1 ean tell you how it came about; is that
what x'ou want to know?

Q. Yes, and I arn asking of your choque of $15,000 in June, 1930?-A. Yes,
my partner, Mr. McGiverin, said, " They will have a great deal of work to
do in Ottawa and in a variety of places," and hoe said, "I1 have a lot of things
to do; I arn going to try to have a retainer." I went away; I did not hear
anything about it any more. When I came back hie told me that hie had applied,
and that is the retainer.

Q. Are you talking of the $7,500?-A. 0f the $7,500.
Q. You have got past the $5,000?-A. Yes.
Q. Thc $50,000 retainer had been paid, as agreed upon, some months

prior?-A. Yes. That ended with the incorporation of the Beauharnois Power
Corporation.

Q. That retainer was paid in anticipation of the incorporation of the
Beauharnois Power Corporation?-A. 1 mean the payment naturally endcd
with the incorporation of that company in the f ail of 1929; is that clear?

Q. Not qiiite?-A. Well, ahl right, go en.
Q. Was the Beauharnois Power Corporation incorporated by the l9th of

October, 1928?-A. It was incorporated very shortly after. 1 cannot tell you
the number of days.

Q. So that $50,000 finished the work in respect to the Beauharnois Power
Corporation; is that what vou say?-A. Yes, that is what I say.

Q. Then the following items of $7,500 werc something after the -$50,000
amount had been used up?-A. Yes, that is what you had last year.

Q. Were you familiar with the transfer of the units of the Beauharnois
Power Syndicate from Senator McDougald to Mr. Ebbs, and the circurnstances
concerning it?-A. No, I know no more about this than you do, and neyer did.

Q. Did yuu know anything about Senator McDougald having an intcrest
in the Beauharnois Power Syndicate or the Beauharnois Syndicate?-A. I
knew that hoe was later, some time late in 1928 or 1929, anyway, interested in
the undertaking.

Q. But 1 see hie is mentioîied in the accounts in Exhibîts 143 and 144 which
are carried right through from 1924 on to 1931?-A. Yes; who is mentioned?

Q. Senator McDougald; you knew hoe was interested in the whole projeet,
did you not?-A. H1e was interested on his own account.

Q. Yes, on his own account, I mean?-A. Long before it had anything to
do with Beaulharnois Corporation, any more than the man in the moon.

Q. Nothing to do with the Beauharnois Corporation, but it had to do with
the development of water power in the Soulanges section?-A. I don't know.

Q. Did it, or did it not have any?-A. I don't know what hie was after;
lie was after something down there.
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Q. But according to the accounts in Exhibits 143 and 144 you had con-
ferences with Senator McDougald?-A. In so f ar as it concerned the Sterling
Industrial Corporation.

Q. In so f ar as it concerned what?-A. The Sterling Industrial Corpora-
tion.

Q. You say it referred to nothing else but the Sterling Industrial Corpora-
tion?-A. As far as 1 know.

Q. Nothing dealîng with the incorporation of the Beauharnois Power Cor-
poration?-A. Nothing as far as I know.

Q. When you say it referred ta the Sterling Industrial Corporation do
you mean it referred ta the Sterling, or the development of water powers in
the Soulanges section?-A. I did nat know he had any interest in the develop-
mnt of water powers except through the Industrial Corporation. If he was in
some other companies I did not know anything about it-on bis own accaunt-
I did not know anything about it.

Q. And, later, through the Beauharnois Power?-A. Later, of course, he
came into the Beauharnois thing.

Q. And you advised him through the whole af these înterests?-A. I
advised hîm occasionally if he asked me.

Q. Did he ask you frequently anything?-A. H1e might have. How eau
I tell? If I met you four years ago and you asked me something, how can I
tell whether I spoke to you or whether I didn't?

Q. Do you say you do not remember what you advised him upan, other
than what is in your books?

Mr. ROBERTSON: MVr. Mann, that is bardly a f air way to put it, because the
entries in the books are not bis work.

Mr. MANN: I have got to get it from samewhere. I cannot get it from
you; I suppose yau do not know.

Mr. ROBERTSON: No; I arn suggesting that you should not put the question.
The WITNESS: Mr. Mann, I tried ta tell you some çlays ago, and I tried ta

get it inta your head to-day, as Mr. Meighen says, if I can get it into your head.
Mr. MANN: I cannot get it into my head, Senator iHaydon.
The XYrrNESS: Then we will leave it out..
Mr. MANN: Try to get it into my head.
The WITNESS: No; just leave it the way it is; take it or leave it; dO as

you like with it.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Were you k-ept advised in any way by Mr. Ebbs as to the administra-

tion of Senator McDougald's interests,?-A. No, I did not follow the develop-
ment of the company at ail. I was not here tbree days a week, two days a week.
I did not see Mr. Ebbs sometimes for a month or twa at a time.

Q. I do not want ta trouble you too much, but I merely would like if you
would not mind letting mc ask my questions; I quite appreciate that it may be
difficult for you, but I would like you ta let me ask the questions and then you
answer them; I did not ask you anything about incorporation or incorporations;
I asked you if you were instrueted or informed by your partner, Mr. Ebbs, in
connection with the circumstances af the transfer from Glare Moyer of his inter-
est in the Beauharnois Syndicate and Beauharnoîs Power Syndicate to Senator
McDougald?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: If he was, what evidence is that?
The WriNms: I was not.
Mr. MANN: Go on and tell.
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The CHAIRMAN: He is answering the question.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: There will be no more assuming here, as far as 1 arn

concerned.

Hon. Mr. McMEANs: 1 think under the circumstances counsel shouid

refrain from taiking to each other.

By Mr. Mann:

Q.Just prior to the elections of 1930 did you occupy any position of trust

in respect of Federal campaign funds?-A. Oh, 1 suppose you eau put it that

way. 1 had occupied positions of trust for twenty years. It was uothing new to

occupy any position of trust that year or any other year.

Q. Then what was the position you did occupy? 1 may tell you that I arn

referring particularly to the funds which Mr. Sweezey contributed; just. tell me

the position you occupied?-A. Well, 1 don't think 1 was in any different posi-

tion from other times. I was general organizer of the Liberal party, and the

general secretary of the National Liberal Committee appointed after the con-

vention of 1919, and 1 followed definitely during the last of the year 1919, the

whole of 1920, and -the whole of 1921, until March, 1922, when I resigned. There

was neyer any definite appeiutmcnt of any successor; and just because 1 had

gone everywhere, I suppose, and seen everybedy-and I was not dealing in funds

of any kind, it wvas just ordinary organization, going here and there and trying

to get men to corne and to make reports of situations in counties ail over Canada;

1 had not anything to do with money, had not anything to do with election

money or any other kind; I sometimes u 'sed to have to pay money away, as f ar

as that weut, but that does not matter-a good deal of it for that. There was

neyer any definite successor; because I have doue that for two or three years

men took it for granted-as they do in political life take much more for

granted than they should-I got the jag, and they came from everywhere-"-!See

Haydon; he will do this; ask him about that," and most of my life was spent at

that job for ten years. It came in the manner of ordinary devolution that 1 was

expected to, be treasurer for this campaigu; that is ail I can tell you about it.

Q. That is ail I wauted to, ask you. New, f oliowiug that explanation, hav-

ing in view that it has been stated, and I thiuk without fear of contradiction,

that some moey-s in the neighbourheed of $600l,000 had been contributed

through you or Senator Raymond te the party funds, 1 want to know hew it

happened-if you know-that part of those funds were given te Senator Ray-

mond?-A. I gave them te him.

Q. Then the fuunds were given te you?-A. Yes, I got everything that came,

as far as I know, came through R. O. Sweezey te me.

Q. Then yeu handed over how much te Senator Raymond, do you remnem-

bcr?-A. No. The whoie thiug was something like $700,000, as the papers and

Commons had it iast year; it may be a littie more. He got the haif of it, as

far as I know. I gave haîf of it te Raymond. It may be that 1 did net get al

of it, and that Raymond got some of it direct from Sweezey. I don't know

whether he did Or uot. Noue of it came from anywhere else, as far as 1 kuow.

1 said in my statement that it came from Sweezey and net from. the company,

and it did net matter as yýou know, whether it came from the company or net.

Q. That is ail 1 ýwanted you te heip me with; yen got approximately $600,-

000 or $700,000; yen say it is approximately that amount; and as closeiy as you

could divide it in two you did se, and gave the other haîf to Senater Raymond;

that is your answer?-A. That is my answer.

Right Hon. Mr. GIUAAM He said that Raymond may have get some direct.
4823&-18
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By Mr. Mann:
Q.1 understood you to say that Raymond may have got some entirely

independent?-A. No, part of this direct fromn Sweezey, instead of it having corne
to me and handed back to Raymond, part of the lot may have gone to Raymond
direct, and did go, as far as 1 know.

Q. I just want you to teli me about how mucli of your haîf of the amount
you gave to Senator Raymond?-A. What is a hall? Cannot you divide it?Q. If you will give me something to, divide?-A. I have told you the
amount; I have told you it was somewhere hetween $700,000 and $750,000.Q. I see; how much of the haîf did you give to Senator Raymond?-.A. 0f
what haîf?

Q. 0f the half of the total amount?--A. Darnn it, man, I amn telling yoit
that the whole amount was divided and Raymond got hall of it.

Q. I understood you to, say that some of it went direct to, Raymond from
Sweezey?-A. I don't know how much.

Q. Part of the haif went from you?--A. Not part of the haif; but part of
that whoie, $700,000 or $800,000, and if you can suhtract that from the whole of
it and divide it in two, one of those halvcs was what-

Q. What you gave direct; that is riglit, Senator?-A. Yes.Q. Haif of the $700,000, or $800,000 iess what he got fromn Sweezey would
be what you gave direct?-A. No.

Mr. ROBERTSON: You are getting it very badly mixed.
By Hon. Mr. McMleans:

Q. I understood you to say that you got about $700,000 or $800,OO?-A.
Yes.

Q.And that haif of it went to Raymond?-A. Yes.
By Mr. Robertson:

Q. And that part of the half may have gone direct?-A. If a man dîvided
$750,000, the whoie of it, $375,000 is the haîf of it. Maybe I gave haif of that,
and rnaybe some of the haif Raymond rnay have got direct from Sweezey.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. Were you aware, Senator Haydon, during the progress of the Beauharnois

Light, Heat and Power Company's application to, the G-'overilment, of the general
progress through the government departments ?-X~ No.

Q. Did you take any personal interest in that at all?ý-A. No. It was ail
done from Montreal, as I understood.

Q. Did you personally take any interest in the passing of the Order in
Council 422, March l9th 1929?-A. None.

Q. Or know anything of the details of the application leading up to the
passing of that Order in Council?-Aý. None whatever.

Q. Do you know of anybody in your office that did?-A. No, I would be
surprised if anyhody did.

Mr. MANN: I think that is ail.
By Mr. Robertson:

Q. Just one matter, Senator Haydon; your secretar, spoke to me about some
correction in the report?-A. Oh, yes, I want that clear.

Q. I think it was said in the official report of your evidence before that
it was perhaps open to the construction, in any event, that the conversation with
Mr. Sweezey which you spoke Of took place at Queen's University?-A. Yes.Q. I understand you want to say something about. that, and correct some-
thing or other in the report?

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Is that regardîng this matter that is so much in
dispute?
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Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes.
The WIrNESS: 1 want to say that the report-if it is in the report--and it

is in the newspapers, fixing a conversation that I spoke of with Mr. Sweezey, was
not had at Queen's University at any time. If was had in Montreal. That ic
ail.

By Hon. Air. MciTleaiis:
Q. Do you want to fix the date?-A. I cannot fix the date.

By Rigyht Hon. 31r. Grahamn:
Q. The newspapers rather left the impression that if was at Queen's Uni-

versity?-.A. Yes, I saw that. What I said was that I first met Sweezey at
Queen's University years before.

By Hon. Mr. MlcMeans:
Q. And you were on the Board fogether?-A. We were.

By MIr. Robertson:
Q. Is that ail that you desire to say?-A. Yes.

The Sub-Committee withdrcw af 4.55 p.m.

The Committee met at Rooin 262 at 5 p.m., pursuant to adjournment.

Ail members of the Committee and ail counsel present.

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Secretary, you wiIl put in the minutes that the Sub..
Committee reported the evidence of Senator Haydon.

Hon. Mr. BýiQuE: Are you throughi with the evidence of Senator Haydon?
The CHAIRMAN: Yes. I do not f hink you were present this forenoon,

Mr. Robertson, when we announced that the Commitfee would be very pleased
if you cared to send us a summary of the evidence from your viewpoint, and
any conclusions thaf you thinik the evidence shows. Senator Béique bias ex-
pressed the sanie matter in a typewritten memorandum which I will read-

For the information, crificism or appreciation of that part of the
public who may be inferested in or have followed the proceedings of
this Commiftee, may I be aliowed to say that as this Commîttee bas now
to find ouf in the voluminous evidence which ba- heen adduced before us
as well as is contained in the report of flic Special Committee on the
Beauharnois Pow-er Projeef, session of 1931, a volume of 1019 pages,
the evidence pertinent to the reference Messrs. Mann and Smith have
been requested to prepare for the Committee a summary of the evidence
pertinent to flhc reference which may he found in the volume above-
menfioned or hias been addîîced before the Commit tee, with reference to
the pages where sueh evidence is to be found and their own conclusions
to be drawn from the samne, and that they have also heen instructed to
request the attorneys acting for the honourable members of the
Senaf e concerned in the reference to also likewise prepare a summary
of their own of the samne evidence and their own conclusions, in order
that the whole may be weighed and passed upon by the Committee.

48236--18à
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Mr. ROBEBTSON - I suppose that any brief that we put in should be properly
confined to the matters that are mentioned in the Commons report. I mean
this, that it is the report of the Commons, after ail, that is the matter which
is referred to this Committee, and that the Committee is dealing with, and that
you have to pronounce upon.

The CHAIRMAN: You can use your own discretion. When this Committee
reports to the Senate the whole matter will necessarily be discussed in the
Senate.

Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes, quite so.
The CHAIRMAN: And the decisions will be made in the Senate, and not

here.
Mr. ROBERTSON: In our briefs we are not to travel outside of the subjeet

matters of the Commons report.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Oh yes, on the evidence that has been taken here

as well.
Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes, but it must be evidence relevant to the matters that

are reported in the Commons report.
Right Hon. Mr'. GRAHAM: Adhec to the Senate reference and you will not

be wrong.
Hon. Mr. DoNNELLY: But the order of reference asks this Committee to

take further evidence.
Mr. ROBEaRTSON: Yes, but it must, be evidence relevant te the report in the

Commons.
Thc CHAIRMAN: Precisely.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: There w-as a qluestion of setting the date for filing

these briefs.
The CHAIRMAN: Yes, the Committee would like to have the summaries

as soon as possible. I suggested the end of next week.
Hon. Mr. CAN NON: Don't you thirik it would be fair if a date was set?

To whom will the statements be sent?
The CHAIRMAN: To the Clerk of the Committee, Mr. Hinds.
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I think you suggested yourself, Mr. Chairman, that

a week from Saturday might be agreeable.
The CHAIRMAN: I did suggest that. If that is agreeable to the Committee

it is agreeable to me.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Senator Copp made a suggestion this morning

that the counsel for the Committee should be asked to name a date when counsel
would hand in their briefs, and that would be the date, because we did not
want to crowd them.

Mr. MANN: I think a week frorn Saturday is quite suitable.

The CHAIRMAN: You see, the Senate will not be sitting tili after that, and
members wîll be away.

Mr. MANN: I f orgot about Good Friday and Saturday and Sunday.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Will counsel just put in one copy of the brief, or
furnish each one of the Committee with a copy?

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Copies will be furnished to ail the members of the
Committee.

Mr. MANN: Has it oeeurred to you that next week is Easter?
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Cannot you work at Easter?
Mr. MANN: Yes, but I arn really asking the counsel if they have thought

of next week being Easter?
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Mr. CooK: It does make a difference.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM' It may not make a difference with these gentle-

men, but it will make a difference with their staffs to, get up the documents.

Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: We will not likely be back here until the Tuesday
following, wili we.

The CHAiRmAN: 1 realiy do not know. In any event this Committee is

a very flexible body, and if we want these summaries we will see that we get
them, even if they are a day or two late.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: 1 understand the Senate is to adjourn until Tuesday
next week. What about fixing the day for the filing of these briefs at the date
that the Senate will re-convene after Easter?

Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Fix the date by which we re-assemble.

The CiAIMmAN: Do you not. think you can have them ready by the

Mr. ROBE.RTSON: That really means getting themn off on Thurs-'

The CHAiRMAN-: Suppose we get them on Monday; we will
28th March. If they are a few hours late we are not going to 1

it.
Mr. MANN. Give them until Tuesday the 29h.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: What about the lst of Ar

Hon. Mr. MCMEA.,Ns: I think the best wq-
them in at ail.

The CHAiRm&N: In the meantime
of the* Chair. Tuesday the 29th Me-

The Committee adjourn-"
the Chair.
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'OTTAWA, Friday, March 18, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into considera-
tion the report of a Special Committee of the flouse of Commons of the last
session thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Projeet, in so f ar as said
report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate, met this day at
2.30 o'clock in the afternoon.

Present: The Honourable Senators Tanner, Chairmnan; Copp, Graham,
Griesbach and Robinson.

CA, Counsel:
Mr. Arthur L. Smith, K.C., Calgary, Alberta, for the Committee.

The CHAIRMAN: Are you ready, gentlemen? We do not want to delay
~you.

1 arn sorry to have had to cali you gentlemen together, but this morning
iLZreceived a cablegram fromn the Hon. G. Howard Ferguson, Higli Commissioner

ip, f Canada, and I did not feel that 1 should deal with it or reply to' it without
ýb consulting the members of the Committee. 1 am sorry that a number of the

* menùers of the Committee are out of town on account, of the adjournment of
k ~?th>enate. However, we have a quorum.

*.~. The message which I have received is dated at London, March 18, addressed
w myself as Chairman of the Committee, and is as follows:

e'X Have just seen press despatch quoting statement Senator llaydon
before your Committee that Robert Sweezey President Beauharnois
Company had informed him that he could not get a contract with Ontarjo

p Hydro Commission because Howard Ferguson would not let it be signed
until he got two hundred thousand dollars such statement absolutely
f aise and without a shadow of foundation desire to give evidence before
your Committee please wire me amn prepared to leave at once.

G. H. FERGUSON.

Now, the point with me is what message I should send to Mr. Ferguson.
He being a very important public man I thoiight I should have the advice of
the Committee.

Hon. Mr. RoBiNsoN: Cannot you tell him you could hold the Coinmittee
until he gets here, if he wants to corne?

The CHIIAMAN: Just as you say, if that is agreeable. I did not want to
wire without knowing what your views would be.

Rigbt Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: Hie does not define wbat statenient is untrue.
I suppose he means that the statement that he-

The CHAIRMAN: Will I have the authority of the Commîttee to cable Mr.
Ferguson that the Committee will hear him?

Rigbt Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: I have no objection whatever.
Hon. Mr. Copp: I have no objection, if you fix the time. That would be

the only thing.
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Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: We won't be meeting agrain, probably, until after
the 5th, will we?

The CHAIRMAN: 1 don't think so, not until after Easter; at least we won't
have reported before that. Is that satisfactory, then?

Hon. Mr. GRIESBACH: Agreeable.
Right Hon. Mr. GRAHAM:' It is to Me.
The CHAiRiMAN: Then I will wire him. that the Committee will hear him.

That is ail I want to submit.
Hon. Mr. Copp: I think it would be as welI to hear him as soon as possible

after the 5th of April.
The CHAIRMAN: He says he is ready to leave at once.
Hon. Mr. Copp: That would give lots of tim-e.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: We would not want him to expeet to be heard

before that, because we would not be here.
The CHAIRMAN: This is the lSth, and the 29th is the date we fixed-that

is eleven days. He ought to be here before the 29th.
Hon. Mr. ROBINSON: You did not adjourn the Committee until the 29th.

The CHAIRMAN: No, no; the briefs. Of course we will give every oppor-
'tunity to these gentlemen to be here.

Hon. Mr. ROBIN SON: I think you had better not ask him to be here before
the 5th.

The CHAIRMAN: Oh, yes. 1 did not intend to call the Committee for
the 29th.

Hon. Mr. GRIESBACH: This developrnent will affect the preparation of the
submissions of counsel.

The CHAIRMAN: Yes.
Hon. Mr. GRIESBACH: 1 suppose counsel can take cognizance, through the

'press, of what has been said here to-day, and govern themselves accordingly.
The CHAIRMAN: I presume, Mr. Roy, that counsel will receive copies of

the printed proceedings anyway.
The CLERK 0F THE COMMIrPIEF: Yes.

Hon. Mr. GRIESBACH: That puts the thing up in the air, but it can be
ýdisposed of later.

The CHAIRMAN: They will know. At any rate, we can take steps to see
that they do know.

The CLERK 0F THE COMMITTIEE: Yes.

The CHAIRMAN: If that is satisfactory, we will let the Committee adjourn
agrain at the eall of the Chairman.

The Committee adjourned.
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OI'rÂwA, Wednesday, April 6, 1932.

The Special Committee appointed for the purpose of taking into consideration
the report of a Special Committee of the House of Commons of the last session
thereof to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, in so f ar as said report
relates to any honourable members of the Senate, met this day at 3 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Tanner, Chairman; Béique, Copp,

Donnelly, Graham,. MeMeans and Robinson.

Counsel:

Mr. J .A. Mann, K.C., Montreal, Quebec, and Mr. Arthur L. Smnith, K.C.,
Calgary, Alberta, for the committee.

The Hon. Lucien Cannon, P.C., K.C., Quebec City, Quebec, and Mr. John

W. Cook, X.C., Montreal, Quebec, for Hon. Senator W. L. McDougald.

Mr. R. S. Robertson, K.C., Toronto, Ontario, for Hon. Senator Andrew
Haydon.

The CHAIRMAN: Are you gentlemen ready?

Mr. MANN: We are ready, Mr. Chairman.

The Hon. Mr. Ferguson sent a telegram from London on the l8th of March

requesting to be heard before this Committee, and in response to the reply to that
telegram is here. I will ask Mr. Fergtison to take the witness' chair and to be
heard.

The Hon. G. HOWARD FEuousoN, Canadian High Commissioner, London,
England, was called as a witness and testified as follows:

By Mr. Mann:

Q. Mr. Ferguson, you are His Majesty's High Commissioner for Canada
resident in London?-A. I arn.

Q. Did you send a telegram to the Hon. Charles E. Tanner, on the 18th
of March, reading as follows:

Have just seen press despatch quotýing statement Senater Haydon
before your Committee that Robert Sweezey, President Beauhamnois Comn-
pany had informed him that he could not get a contract with Ontario
Hydro Commission because Howard Ferguson would not let it be signed
until he got two hundred thousand dollars such statement absolutely false

and without a shadow of foundation desire to give evidence before your
Committee please wire me arn prepared to leave at once. G. H. Ferguson.

A. Yes.

(Telegrama filed, market Exhibit No. 145.)

Q. In reply to that telegram did you receive a telegram from Senator
Tanner of which this is a copy?-A. Yes.
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By Hon. Mr. Copp:
Q. What is that?-A. Lt savs:

Committee will hear you stop Important corne early as possible stop
Please wire probable date arrivai here.

(Copy of telegram filed, marked Exhibit No. 146.)

By Mr Mann:
Q.In reply to that you wired on the 2lst of March, as followvs:

Sailing Duchess of Athoîl Thursday the twenty-fourth first available
Canadian ship.

A. Yes.
(Telegram filed, marked Exhibit No. 147.)

Q. Mr. Ferguson, wben did you hear in London of the statement made by the
Hon. Mr. Haydon at his residence, bef ore this Cornmittee, on the 15th of Mardi?
-A. I was in bed, with a threatened àttack of the flu, for about ten days, and I
thînk it was on a Thursday, which looking it up, is the l7th day of the month.
My secretary carne to rne at my bouse and said. one of the press reporters had
brought hirn a copy-it was a typewritten nernorandum purporting te be a copy
of a dcspatch rcpeating pretty well wbat is in my telegram. And he said the
day befor-he said: " Yesterday Champion "-that is another press reporter
over there- 2came to me with a similar despatch and asked me about it."

Q. The day before? That would be the 16th?--A. Ycs, if 1 am right in my
dates it would be the l6th. H1e said: " I didn't trouble you about it." But I
just said to him it was ahl rot, or sornetbing like that.

Q. I draw your attention to the Canadian press cable cf the l6th which
refers to the staternent made in reply to the statement made by Hon. Mr. Haydon
as being utter rubbish?-A. That may have been it. It was my secretary did it.
I didn't see the thing until the next d-ày. I was in bed.

Q. Following that the cables te whicb we have referred passed between you
and Hon. Mr. Tanner?-A. Yes, and at the same time I wired Mr. Bennett-
dictated a telegram to Bennett telling him wbat I had done and saying I would
like to know-asking bis approval cf my corning, or something of that kind.

Hon. Mr. Copp: Is that telegrarn on file?

Mr. MAiNN: I baven't got that telegrarn. I didn't know about it.

Hon. Mr. Çopp: It wouid be as well to bave them ail.

Mr. MANN: I have ne doubt we can get tbat. The witness says he asked the

Prime Minister's approval for hirn corning, and I bave no doubt we can get that.

By Mr. Mann:
Q. And ne doubt you got the approval?-A. Oh, yes. The Prime Minister

wired back just as Hon. Mr. Tanner wired.
Q. I read te you the statement made on the 15th of March by the Hon.

Senator Haydon, reported at page 202 cf the proceedings cf this Committee.

As f ar as I rememnber-as f ar as I rernember rny first conversation
in respect cf Beauharnois, cf any consequence at ail, was with Mr.
Sweezey. There were sorneothers present; I don't rernember all who they
were. I saw in the papers that he had been sued or was going to be 6ued
by people from London which mun publicly under the narne cf the Great
Lakes Transportation and Power Company. 11e always seemed te me
one wbo was ready te go into ventures quite freely, from the time I first
saw him. I first saw him at Queen's College on these boards, and in
respect cf the discussion cf investments and things I first became acquain-
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ted with him. I asked him on this occasion-it was sometime before
1929, or the beginning of 1929, perhaps-asked him what good was Beau-
harnois. It didn't seem to me it was of any value, because he had no
takers of power. I asked him if he had any contracts for power. He
said no, he had not particularly. He talked about Americans who would
come and settle along the river, and enterprise would begin. I said to
him: " What is the good of them if you don't have something nailed
down?"-I think I used the word that you have been asking me to repeat,
" moonshine "-" This will never get anywhere. It is not any good."
" Oh," he said, " but then we have a contract in sight." I said, " where
or how?" I had never heard of this before. He said with the Ontario
Hydro Electric Commission. I said, " Why don't you get it signed and
get something solid?" And his answer was, " Howard Ferguson won't
let it be signed until be gets $200,000." I said nothing more and heard
nothing more about Beauharnois for a good time.

Have you a statement to make in respect of the statement made by Senator
Haydon as being the statement made by Mr. Sweezey, and in respect of any of
the substance of any such statement?-A. Yes, of course, Mr. Mann, no such
conversation ever took place between Mr. Sweezey and I. As a matter of fact, I
think I have never seen Mr. Sweezey but twice in my life. I recall that the first
time he came to me with Mr. Frank Jones of Montreal, and they were in my
office for a few minutes. I am speaking from recollection. I think it was long
before the question of power contracts was up at all, and, as I recall, their
purpose was to ascertain if Ontario was in the market for more ÿower, and I
said it was the policy of the Government, as advised by the Hydro Commission,
to look after these things; that we were increasing our consumption something,
I think, over 100,000 a year, and that we would have to make provision for
that, and that it was wise for us to buy all the available power that seemed to
be in sight; and I thought, if they went and saw the Hydro Commission, and
they could make an arrangement, that the Government would be prepared to
approve the Hydro contract, and I suggested that they should go and see the
Commission,-Mr. Magrath, the Chairman-as we do not negotiate contracts at
all, don't have anything to do with them.

Then I saw Mr. Sweezey the next time in Montreal. The Hydro reported
that all the details of the contract had been worked out satisfactorily between
the Commission and Mr. Sweezey, but a question arose as to the export of power,
and naturally that would have to be dealt with by the Governments, and the
proper channel to approach the Province of Quebec was the Province of Ontario,
and in that way I arranged to meet Mr. Taschereau in Montreal. The purpose
of that meeting was to get approval. So that you will understand the position,
I may say that Mr. Taschereau was insisting that none of this Beauharnois
Power should be exported to the United States. They were prepared to co-oper-
ate with the Province of Ontario and to permit the power to go there, and that
sort of thing, he said, " But we won't permit it to go to the United States." Now,
it so happens that we have two licences from the Federal Government-we had,
in Ontario-permitting the export of power to the United States from Niagara.
One of those licences, if not both, was inherited when we purchased certain
plants at Niagara. They had attached to them export rights-I have forgotten
the amount-and my going to Montreal was to discuss with Mr. Taschereau
that so long as we did not export more than the licences permitted we were not
encroaching on Quebec power. The whole thing went into the same pot, as
power. After a discussion lasting, I think, a good part of the morning-Mr.
Taschereau, I think, had Mr. Mercier there, I am not sure; and Mr. Geoffrion
was there; and I had taken Mr. Magrath, the Chairman of our Hydro Electric
Commission, Mr. Gaby, the Chief Engineer, and Mr. Strachan Johnston, as
counsel-and after that difficulty was reconciled and arranged, then it became a
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matter for the lawyers to sit down and draft the necessary orders in council and
that sort of thing. And Mr. Geoffrion and Mr. Johnson sat in a sitting room
in the Windsor Hotel and threshed that out, a &nd finally drafted them, and I
think they both initialled çach draft order, and then the Commission was
authorîzed by the Ontario Government, under the terms of that order, to execute
that contract.

Those are the only two cases on which I ever saw Mr. Sweezey in rny life,
and I had no conversation with him anywhere except when there was somebody
there--there were haif a dozen or a dozen people in the roorn-and I neyer saw
hirn afterwards and have neyer seen him since.

Q. And no part of any conversation you ever had wîth Mr. Sweezey could
possibly be interpreted to mean anything like what was ýsaid, in any way, shape
or form?-A. Oh, nobody, either myseif-

Q. Directly or indirectly?-A. Directly or through anybody else, ever made
any approacli or had any discussion with Mr. Sweezey about rnoney under any
eîrcumstances, or with the Beauharnois or anybody connected with it. Neyer
heard of such a thing.

Q. Mr. Ferguson, did you come here at your own expense entirely with the
intention of returning to London at your own expense?-A. 1 arn paying so far,
and 1 expect I will pay it ail. Yes, I came here because it was a personal matter,
a matter touching my own personal integrity, and I told the Prime Minister, I
think, that I proposed to corne at my own expense.

By Riqht Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q.That. 100,000 that you referred to, of an increase-just to clear it up-

you meant 100,000 horse-power?-A. 100,000 horse-power a year. Our expan-
sion was very rapid at that period. Perhaps you will permit me to explain. We
were looking forward to the St. Lawrence, looking forward to the Interprovincial
Ottawa power. Mr. Taschereau and I had discussed that a number of times.
iMr.-what is bis name? Amos, isn't it?

By Mr. Mann:

Q.Amos?-A. Mr. Amos and our experts. I had gone to Quebec to see Mr.
Taschereau a number of times to see if we could not make some arrangement for
developrnt on the Ottawa, wÏiere there was a million hoise-power, and there
was a question as to the Shanley Line, which you know ail about. We thought
we were going to reach an agreement with regard to the Carillon. Then, follow-
ing that there was the St. Lawrence. W'ell, that had been discussed, and the
engineers advised us that no rnatter when it was decided or how it was decided
the development alone, the work alone, would take a great many years, six or
seven or eight years, 1 have forgotten what. If we were going to increase our
power consuinptiuii at the rate of 100,000 horse-power or upward for six or eight
years it meant 600,000 or 800,000 horse-power, and we wanted to he prepared to
mêet that demand, and that is the reason we were trying to buy power where
available outside the Province of Ontario.

Q. I rnerely asked to make it clear on the record?-A. I thank you. I did
say 100,000. I didn't say whether dollars or horse-power. Our load ran up one
year 150,000 horse-power, I think, and we were concerned about the future.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q. Mr. Ferguson, so f ar as rny client, Senator Haydon, is concerned, I take
it that you do not dlaim to know anything at ahl about bis conversations with
Mr. Sweezey?-A. Nothing whatever.

Q. You are not saying anything about what Mr. Sweezey said to him?-
A,. No.
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Q. As rny friend Mr. Mann bas been putting the questions to you, he has

rather put it that the staternent that Senator Haydon says was made to hirn

irnplied that there had been a conversation necessarily between Mr. Sweezey and

you about the matter referred to. 1 eall your attention to that in case you want

to make a broader staternent?-A. I thought 1 had cleared it up, Mr. Robertson.

If I have not, I would like to make it just as broad as you or I can mnake it, that

neyer on any occasion did I have any conversation with Mr. Sweezey with respect

to rnoney or contributions or anything of that kind.
Q. I amn afraid I arn not rnaking myseif quite understood?-A. I arn sorry.

Q. The staternent that Mr. Sweezey is said to have made to Senator Haydon

does not necessarily irnply that there had been any conversation between you

and Mr. Sweezey about this matter. You know the exact terms--that you would

not let a contract be signed-?-A. You mean that sorneone else rnay have told

hirn that 1 would not let it be signed?
Q. Lt rnight be that. I arn calling your attention to that so that you rnay

rnake it that broad?-A. I hadn't thought of that. There is no foundation for

such a staternent at ail.
Q. Now, you have referred to the fact that Mr. Sweezey and Mr. Jones had

called upon you at one time?-A. Yes.
Q. You rnean Mr. Frank P. Jones?-A. Yes.

Q. Have you any way of fixing approxirnately the tirne of that?-A. Lt is

s0 long ago-
Q. See if I can help you. I have here the debates of the bouse of Commons,

in which reference is made to certain correspondence that had been laid on the

Table, which includes a letter frorn you to Mr. Taschereau of the l9th of iNovern-

ber, 1928. Perhaps I had better read a littie here.

Owing to the undoubted delay there will be in regard to the settiement

of the developrnent of the St. Lawrence and Ottawa river powers, and

the rapidly increasing dernand for power in Ontario, I feel that we wîll

probably again in the near future have to take advantage of your good-

will and secure a further supply frorn sorne point in your province.

I arn sure 1 need not assure you again, as I have done in the past, of

our appreciation of your attitude towards Ontario and ber power problerns

by voluntarily rnaking such generous provision a condition of your

approval of the Beauharnois undertaking. If I arn right in rny view as to

our early requirernents of power, Beauharnois would seern to mne to be a

very convenient and favourable point frorn which to procure our require-

rnents.

I caîl your attention to that as indicating that at that tirne you had Beauharnois

in view?-A. Yes.
Q. Does that assist you at all?,-A. 1 don't know that it docs, Mr. Robert-

son, because I cannot recali that Beauharnois was discussed by Mr. Sweezey

and Mr. Jones and rne. Lt was the general proposition, as I recaîl it-would

we be in the field? Would the Hydro Commnission be in the field for rnore power?

Q. Lt is also in evidence before this Comrnittee, by way of evidence taken

before the Cornrons Cornrittee, that on the 5th of June, 1928, Mr. Jones and

Mr. Sweezey were appointed by the Beauharnois Light, Ileat and Power Comn-

pany to search out and rnake contracts for the sale of power?-A. That rnîght

be. L arn speaking only frorn recollection.
Q. L arn suggesting that this visit was really a visit to see if they could

interest you in Beauharnois power?-A. They rnay have rnentioned Beauharnois

power. I don't rernerber. The purpose of their visit, as I said before, as L

gathered, was to find out whether or not there vins a possibility of our wanting

rnore powier; and I told thern just vihat L have said to you. Lt was very brief.

L suggested that they should go to the Hydro.
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Q. Under the Power Commission Act the Commission cannot make a con-

tract to buy power except with the approval of the Lieutenant-Governor in

Council?-A. Yes. The provinces, in other words, are the hankers for the

Commission and the Commission make recommendations and they are authorized
by Council.

Q. And when we get to discussing 250,000 horse-power at $15 a horse-

power, this was a contract running into millions? It was one on which the

province was taking somte responsibility?-A. A very substantial contract. We
had made larger ones than that.

QDid you see Mr. Jones any more?- Did Mr. Jones-?-A. No.
Q.He seems to have been very active in some respects. Didn't he trouble

you any more?-A. I neyer saw cither of them again until 1 saw Mr, Sweezey
in Montreal.

Q.Or have correspondence with them?-A. No.
Q.Or with Mr. Jones?-Ab. INo. As a matter of fact, 1 was wondering why

Mr. Joncs was there. 1 had not had any discussion with either of them about
power, and 1 didn't know what his relationship with Mr. Sweezey was very much,
speaking from recollectîon. I had known him as F. P. Joncs, manager of the
Canada Cement Company.

Q. Coming to the next period, voit had that meeting with Mr. Sweezey. 1

find it is also upon record here in the same way as the other, in Exhibît 53,
that the Power Company, the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company, on

the 28th of October, 1929, passed a resolution-the directors passed a resolu-

tion approving of the contract and authorizing its execution with the Com-
mission?-A. Yes.

Q. That was on the 28th of October, 1929?-A. At that time I was not
paying much attention.

Q. No. You had an election on your hands?-A. Yes, another kind of
power.

Q. However, you got a chance to attend to it a littie later?-A. Yes.

Q. Do you recail the date of your visit to Montreal, or was it to Quebec?-
A. Montreal, the Windsor Ilotel.

Q. Mr. Sweezey was there?-A. I think so, yes. 1 arn aimost certain he was.

Q. I always like to get authority that will be recognized, so 1 have taken the

Daily Mail and Empire of Toronto of November 28, 1929. Let me read a

littie. 1 will skip the headlines as not being news. It says:

iPower agreements by which Ontario eventually will get 525,000
horse-power of electrical energy w-ere negotiated virtually tco the signing
stage by Premier Ferguson during his trip to Montreal, he announced
yesterday.

One agreement, the largest, is now ail ready except for signing. This
is the contract with the Beauharnois Company of Montreal, whereby the
provincial hydro commission will buy up to 250,000 h.p. from the huge
development being started between Lake St. Joseph and Lake St. Louis
near Montreal on the St. Lawrence.

Mr. Ferguson, who was accompanied by C. A. Magrath, hydro com-
mission chairman, conferred with R. O. Sweezey, head of the Beauharn-ois,
on this contract. Under it, the province will get haîf of aIl power that is
developed at Beauharnois until it is taking 250,000 h.p. This power wili
start during 1931 and under the agreement will be ail delivered by 1936.

Is that a f air statement?-A. Yes. I cannot verify the date. 1 suppose the draft
orders would show.

Q. I have a copy of the Order in Council here. I haven't only in mind

the date of the statement that is attributed to you there, that you had on that
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occasion conferred with R. O. Sweezey, head of Beauharnois, on this contract?-
A. Well, he was there.

Q. That is the 28th, and apparently it w'as within a day or two before
that that you had been down. Then 1 have here the Order in Council, or rather
a certified cepy of it. Perhaps yeu recogflize it as a eopy of the Order in Council?

-A. That is the 29th day cf November, 1929. Oh, ves. I thouglit yeu said
October.

Q. No, the 28th cf October is the date whcen the Beaulbarnois Com'vmny.
by its directors, authcrized the execution cf the ccntraet on their parit? A.
Quite se.

Q. Now, ycu are meeting Mr. Sweezey, and pass this Order in Couneil after
having seen him?-A. That is why I said I was busy on another power job.

Mr. MN:This is the Ontario Order in Council?
The WINxESS: Yes, this is the Ontario Order in Couneil. That, ne (1oublt,

is the order.

By MIr. Robertson:
Q. Tt is dated the 29tb cf Nevember, 1929. 1 do net need te read it thrcuý2!1.

It says in part:
Upon consideration cf the applicatien cf the Hydre Electrie Power

Commission cf Ontario, and uLpon the recominendation cf the Heneurable
the Prime Minister, the Committee cf fCouncil advise:

Then the first clause authorizes the execution cf this contract, and the rest
relates te subsidiary powers given. A. (Ne answer.)

(Copy cf Order in Council filed, marked Exhibit No. 148.)
Q. Now, the next thing 1 want te cail ycur attention te is this: That it is

aise in evidence that withjn a week fromn the passing cf that Order in Councl-
that is on the 5th cf December, 1929-John Aird received from Mr. Sweezey in
bonds and a. ebeque the equivalent cf $125.000, which Mr. Sweezey bas swo(rn
before this Committee he paid, understanding that it was for the purpeses cf
the Censervative Party in Ontario. That is within a week cf that Order in
Council. You were aware cf that, were you?-A. Yes, 1 have seen that in the
press.

Q. Have you had the privilege cf reading Mr. Aird's explanation?-A. I
had press reports cf it. I don't remember-

Q. Now, I just want to summarize the situation and ask a few questions.
We have then these f ew circumst.ances strung along there tegetheýr: first. we
have the contract authorized by the Beauharnois Company on the 28th cf
Octol e,; tben we bave your meeting in Montreal with MVr. Sweezey; late in
November we have the Order in Council?-A. My meeting was witb Mr.
Tasehereau.

O. And witb M\r. Sweezey?-A. -.\r. Sweezey was there.
Q. And we have the Order in Couneil autborizing the agreement, on vour

recommendation, on the 29th cf November. Then on tbe 5th cf December,
within a week frem that time, we bave Mr. Sweezev giving Aird $125,000 whî'*il
he says he gave understanding it was fer tbe Censervative party in Ontario. Do
you kncw anythîng about wben the Hydre contract was in fact delivered? A.
No, 1 could net tell ycu. But just let me clear up one thing, Mr. Robertson.
The Order in Council reads, cf course, " on the recommendation cf the Prime
Minister," because everything tbat comes before Council must be on the recom-
mendation cf some Minister; and sueh tbings as the T. & N. O. Railway, and
other publie utilities cf that kind, including the Hydre, are deait with tbrough
the Prime Minister. And when the Hydro came te me with a recommendation
cf amny kind, 1 teck it into Council, you see, and we tbrashed it ail eut and, if
it was agreed on 1 signed the recommendation just as a minister.



BEAUHARNOIS POWER PRO JECT

Q. The point I want to put te you is this, that having in view this set of
circumstances occurring on the dates 1 have mentioned, are you satisfied with
John Aird's explanation regarding the money he received, and content to let it
go at that, or would you prefer that the Aird matter should be investigated
until we know ail about it?-A. 0f course, Mr. Robertson, you must not attempt
to drag me into dealing with Ontario policy. That is a matter for the Ontario
Government and not for me. But I want to make this clear to you: as 1 said a
while ago, I neyer saw John Aird but once in my if e, and I would not know
him if he came into this room. 1 recali the occasion 1 saw him. As a matter of
fact, 1 would not recali the occasion I saw hima if I had not seen some statement
where he said he 'had corne to see me once, and it arose after I think I had
announced on behalf of the Goverament that we were going to make a contribu-
tion towards industrial research or technical education, or something of that
kind, and this man came to see me. I did not know him at ail; somebodv may
have sent him,--I don't know how he came. And he wanted to talk about power
development, and I said to him, " Now, the man to talk to about that is the
Chairman of the Ontario Hvldro Commission. Thev deal with ail those things.
I have nothing to do with thýat." That is the only occasion on which I saw him.
Now, as far as any statement of his that a contribution was made, or, at least,
any statement huom any source, I do not know what took place between him
nnd Mr. Sw-eczey, but I want to say most emphatically, as I said a moment ago.
that neither through me or with my knowledge or approval, either dircctly or by
hearsay, did 1 know or ever hear tliat r.Sweezev, Beauha-rnois. or anvbod\ý'
connecte with the organization had ever made a contribution to Ontario'party
polities or to any party, whether Liberal or Conservative, in any part of Canada.
I neyer heard it until it came out, I think, a year ago before your Committee.

Q. Now, 1 quite hear you say that, but my question is rather this, that
having in mind the set of circumstances that I have mentioned, and the admitted
fact that the monev was, paid, and the sw-orn statement of Mr. Sweezcy as to
his purpose or understanding in paying it, I want to know whether you are
content to let the matter rest on John Aird's explanation, as many of us know it?
-A. I prefer to give you my own explanation or declaration, rather than anv-
body else's.

Q. But as te the fact of the $125,000 having been paid and the purpose
for which it was paid, in view of the conflicting statements and of the nature
of the evidence already given by John Aird, if you are at aIl familiar with it,
I want to know if you are satisfied to let it stand that way?-A. 1 do not think
you are entitled to ask me a question of that sort.

Q. I beg you pardon?-A. I do not think that is evidence here.
Hon. Mr'. MCMEANS: What pow.er would Mr. Ferguson have over it?
Mr. IIoBERTsoN: I have not asked anything about his power.
Hon. Mr.. Nlc\,IAN-s: Nu, but .yuu are asking hîm if he is content to let

the matter stand where it is. What power wou]d he have to disturb it?
Mr. ROnBERTSON: I should think that if Mr. Ferguson expressed a request

that it should bc invcstigated further, this Committee would do it. It has or
can -et the power.

The WIrNESS: That is a matter for the Committee, vou sec.
Mr. ROBERTSON: I propose to ask the Committee to do that.
Mr. MANN: I wonder if it would not be fairer for Mr. Robertson to read

the statements to the witness. They confliet.
Hon. Mr. Copp: What conflicting statements do you refer to?
Mr. MANN: The statement that Mr. Sweezey rinade and the statement

that Mr. Aird mnade before the Commons Commitiee.
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Mr. ROBERTSON: Do you want me to read that long evidence of Aird?

Mr.-.MANN: No; an'inch on page 823 and another inch on page 849.

Mr. ROBERTSON: If you think I have not properly sumrnarized. it--

The CHAIRMAN: 0f course, you would not expeet this Comrnittee to send

a recommendation to the Ontario Governrnent, would you?

MT. ROBERTSON: No.
The CHAIRMAN: I do not know wliat you are driving at.

Mr. ROBERTSON: I arn driîng at what was said in answer to certain

questions that were asked in the Senate and the answers that were made by

Senator Meighen, that if this Committee desired certain power the matter

would be considered. So that the Comrnittee is noît quite se helpless.

By Mr. Robertson:
QI want to put it this way: you will understand that I have had al

kinds of questions suggested to me, but I have declined to ask them. But I do

think, however, that having put before you these very plain and unquestioned

facts with the two statements, that I arn entitled to know whether you are

satisfied. If you do not want to answer, ail right.-A. 0f course, the tribunal

is the Committee here. It is not f or me to suggest to them what they sliould

investigate. I have ne purpose of doing anything of the kind. I camne here

witli the sole object of vindicating rny own personal integrity, and that is what

1 arn attempting Vo, do. Now, it is fýor the Comrnittee to decide whether they

are satisfied, or what further they will go into, just as it is for the Ontario

Governrnent to decide what investigation they will make. You f orget, you

know, that I arn not in polities any more.
Q. But let me rernind you that this Committee had ruled long ago that

this matter was not open to this Committee. It was at your particular request,
for the purpose of allowing you to vindicate yourself-and I arn not at ahl

dissenting f rom what the Committee has done-that you were called and have

been allowed to give this evidence. I arn rerely putting this question: Is it

to stop here, wîth the story of the facts as given by John Aird on one side

and by Mr. Sweezey on the other, or do you desire that it shouki be further

inquired into?-A. I arn very grateful to the Committee for the opportunity it

lias given me, and I arn very grateful to yeu for assisting me. But I must

say that I do net think it is a proper thing for me to suggest what the Ontario

Government or this Committee should investigate.

The CHAIRMAN: Al Vhis trouble that Vhis Committee was put te, was

caused by Senator Haydon making a voluntary statement that he did not have
te volunteer.

Mr. ROBERTSON: May I say-

The CHAIRMAN: I arn not going to argue.

Mr. ROBERTSON: I arn net trying te argue, but I rnerely want te say

that, if you wîll rernember, I desired te open this matter long before Senator

Haydon said anything about it.

The CHAIRMAN: I do net know anything about that;- but that is why

this Comrnittee lias been moved te, all this trouble and Mr. 'Ferguson lias been

called, very properly, upon his lionour te corne here.

Hon. Mr. MeMEANS: At his own expense.

Riglit Hon. Mr. GRAHAM: It has been worth wliile.

The WirNEss: I think se. I neither begrudge the irne nor the expense.

The CHAIRMAN: We are deliglited to see him.

Mr. MANN: I have nothing further te ask, Mr. Chairman.
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By the Chairman:

Q.Have you anything further you wish to say, Mr. Ferguson?-A. No,
there is not anything I can think of that would be of any assistance in the matter.
The thing 1 had in mind was the one point, you see.

Q. Yeýs, exactly. That is what. the Committee wanted to hear about.-A.
Like inost decent fellows, after a long public career yuu are ciarged with ail
kinds of things. I may have been guility of lots of things, but nobody bas been
able to besmirch my personal integrity.

Q. We are very sorry that vou have been put to so mucli trouble, but we
are very glad to have you here.-A. I have cnjoyed it very much. This atmos-
phere is more congenial than an office in London.

The CHAIIIMAIN: 1 understand that counsel have some witnesses they wish
to recall to correct some evidence.

Mr. SMITH: Yes, sir.

Mr. L. CLARE MOYER was recalled as a witness, and testified as follows:-

By Mr. Smith:

Q. Since the Committee last sat, you have had made available for you cer-
tain bank records?-A. That is correct.

Q. And you formerly gave your evidence of certain transactions from mem-
orv?-A. Yes.

Q. As I understand it, you want te make acorrection in what you then said?
-A. Yes. When I was examined previously 1 was speaking from memory of
events that had happened four years previously. Since then, as Mr. Smith has
suggested, 1 have obtained the definite records of the banks in which certain
deposdts were made and certain cheques issued. You will recail, Mr.'Chairman,
that my evidence deait with three payments to the Marquette Investment Cor-
poration for part intercsts in my name on behaif of my principal, the late Winfield
B. Sifton. Those three payments were $15,000, $15,000 and $16,000 respectively.
On March 31, 1928, 1 deposited $15,000 in cash in the Bank of Nova Scotia,
New York. On April 4 1 issued a cheque for $15,000 to the Marquette Invest-
ment Corporation. That cheque, I believe, the records before the Committee
will show was cashed by the Marquette Investment Corporation on the 6th of
April. That disposes of the first payment. Now, the second payment. On the
l7th of May 1 deposited in the Bank of Nova Scotia, New York, a second pay-
ment of $15,000. On the l8th of May- by the way, this second deposit was by
wav of a bank draft. On the l8th of May, the next day 1 issued a cheque for
$1à,000, to the Marquette Investment Corporation.

By the Chairman:

Q.That was the second instalment on the $30,000?-A. That is correct. This
second cheque, I believe, was eashed by the Marquette Investment Corporation
on thc l9th of May. That disposes of the second payment. And the third pay-
ment: OnMay 23 I deposited in the Standard Bank, Ottawa, a bank draft for
$16,000. On the 26th of May I issucd my cheque in favour of the Marquette
Investment Corporation for $16,000. This chleque was cashed by the Marquette
Investment Corporation on the Ist of June.

Q. That was the 10 per cent on the 1,600 shares, was it?-A. That is correct.

By Mý. Smith:

Q. And you have also learned that your subscription for those 1,600 shares
was made on the 10th of May, 1928?-A. That is correct.
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By the Chairman:
Q.That is the second 1,600 shares?-A. Yes.

By Right Hon. Mr. Graham:
QJust for information, what constituted the Marquette Investment Cor-

poration?-A. It was a company acting at that perioýd as trustees, I believe, for
the Beauharnois Syndieate, and then subsequently for the Beauharnois Power
Syndicate, and continued to act until these syndicates merged into what became
the Beauharnois Power Corporation.

By the Chairm an:
Q. Is that a Montreal company, that Marquette company?-A. Yes sir.

MAURICE C. COLLINS, office manager of the Beauharnois Power Corporation,
Montreal, appeared as a witness, and, having been duly sworn, testified as fol-
lows:

By Mr. Smnith:
Q. What is your position, Mr. Collins?-A. Office Manager of the Beauhar-

nois Power Corporation.
Q. And you have charge of the records' of the Corporation and the Mar-

quette Investment Corporation ?-A. Yes sir.
Q. 1 am showing you three vouchers: No. 188, dated l2th April, 1928; No.

189, dated l4th April, 1928, and No. 218, dated 14th May, 1928, showing cer-
tain payments made to Mr. Winfield B. Sifton, together with the accounts
rendered by him and the cheques issued covering those payments.

Hon. Mr. MCM\4nNS: What do you say these are?
Mr. SMITH: They are simply three vouchers, together with the accounts

rcndcrcd and the cheques in payrnent of the accounts, payable by the Marquette
Investment Corporation, which was the disbursing corporation of the Beauhar-
nois Syndicate, payable to Mr. Sifton. I may say that the only reason they
are being put ini is in an effort to locate exactly the date of a certain visit of
Mr. Sifton in New York.

(Three vouchers of Marquette Investment Corporation: No. 188, 12th
of April, 1928; No. 189, l4th of April, 1928, and No. 218, l4th of May, 1928,
filed, market Exhibit No. 149).

By Mr. Robertson:
Q.Mr. Collins, do you happen to have the infomation as to when the con-

tract between the Hydro-Electrie Power Commission of Ontario and the Beau-
harnois Light, Heat and Power Company was delivered?-A. I do not quite
understand your question. "Delivered", how do you mean?

Q. Exchanged between the parties.-A. Do you mean when the contract
was signed?

Q. Signed and delivered.-A. 1 haven't it here.
Q. You could get it?-A. I presume I could.
Q. You could send the information over promptly? A. I could get it this

afternoon. You would like the date it was siguned?
Q. Yes, if the Committee will permit.
The CHAIRMAN: What do you want?
Mr. ROBERTSON: I want to get the date of the delivery of the contract be-

tween the Hydro-Electric Power Commission of Ontario and the Beauharnois
Light, Ileat and Power Company, the date when the parties exchanged the
document completely signed.
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The CHAIRMAN: I think we shall have to move to Toronto.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: No, to Montreal.

By Hon. Mr. McMe ans:
Q.You can get it by telephone, can you?-A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long will it take vyou?-A. Probably haif an hour.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. I do not want the date of the document, you know.-A. That is what 1

thouglit you meant.
Q. I expect that what happened was this, that it was signed by one party

and then sent to the other, and then signed by the other and sent back.-A. That
will take me longer to get. What I thought you wanted was the date of the
formai document.

Q. No, 1 want the date when it was exchanged between the two parties as
a complete document.

Hon. Mr. BEIQU-E: It can be understood that they could write a letter,
stating the date.

The WITNESS: That information I would have to get from Montreal.
Hon. Mr. Mc1'dANs: Senator Béique suggests that if lie sends a letter it

would not be necessary to recali him.
Mr. ROBERTSON: NTo, 1 should think that would be ail right.
Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: Send a letter to the Chairman.
The WLTNESs: Ail riglit, sir.
(Letter to bie sent by Maurice C. Collins to the Chairman of the Com-

mittee, stating date of the delivery of completely signed contract between the
Hydro-Electrie Power Commission of Ontario and the Beauharnois Liglit, Heat
and Power Corporation Limited, to bc marked Exhibit No. 150.)

Miss LYLA BRENNAN, stenographer, of Ottawa, appeared as a witness, and,
having been duly sworn, testified as follows-

Ry Mr. Smith:
Q.Miss Brennan, what is your occupation?-A. Stenographer with the

firm of Haydon and Eblis.
Q. And you have been there how long?-A. Since the lst of September,

1913.
Q. And you remember certain books of the firm of McGiverin, Haydon and

Eblis were produced at the time of Senator Haydon's examination?-A. Yes,
I do.

Q. You have since been good enougli to extract the accounts from tLhioe
books?-A. Yes.

Q.And have given them to Mr. Mann?-A. Yes.
QI arn showing you a document. Would you look at that. That appears

to lie an account of the Sterling Industrial Corporation?-A. Yes.
Q. And an account of the Beauharnois Power Corporation. Exhibit Nos.

143 and 144 were reserved for those documents. 1 used copies before and they
were marked with those numbers. And you have just told me that you have a
further account which you are bringing here to-day?-A. Yes.

Q. And the account which you now hand me is anaccount of the Carillon
Industrial Corporation Limited?-A. Yes.

(Statement of account of Carillon Industrial Corporation I imited filed,
marked Exhibit No. 151.)
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Q. Now, if you will look at these, Miss Brennan, you will observe that in
so far as your office is concernied, they ail seem. to, have been treated as one
account. For example, if you will take Exhihit 143, which is the Sterling
Industrial Corporation, you will observe a balance cf $660.53, which is simply
carricd forward into the Beauharnois account?-A. Yes.

Q. You did the book-keeping, 1 believe?-A. No, sir, I did not.
Q. Well, you succeeded as the book-keeper?--A. 1 have only been doing

the book-keeping since last June.
Q.- But probably you can tell me the object of the accounts being carried

that way?-A. 1 amn af raid I cannot. I did not know why the~y were carried.
Q. You say you did not keep the books?-A. No.
Q. Do you know of anyone available to-day who can tell me why the

Sterling account was simply carried on to the Beauharnois account?-A. I may
say that had I been doing the books 1 miglit have probably done the same
t.hing, for the reason that the Sterling Industrial account was for Dr. McDougald,
and with regard to the Beauharnois account, or what we called the Beauharnois
account, in 1928, in the fali of 1928, when Mr. Ebbs first began making visits
te Montreal, ha was representing Dr. McDougald, and for that reason they
probably werc looked upon, both of them, as belonging to Dr. MeDougald.

Q. And then ylou will observe the Carillon necount alýso referýs to the
Sterling account?-A. Yes.

Q. And probably the same answer would be trie with respect to that?-A.
In as far as 1 know.

By Hon. Mr. Copp:
Q.You presume that is true? You do not know?-A. 1 presumne that to

he true.
Q. You do not know personally anything about it?-A. 1 dîd not keep the

books.

By Mr. Smith:

Q. You did flot actually keep the books?-A. No.
Q. And you do not know who did?-A. I know Miss Fraser kept the books.
Q. Is she still here?-A. Yes. I have not seen lier lately but she is a

resident of Ottawa.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q.Miss Fraser is no longer with your firm?-A. No.

Q. I understand-
Mr. SMITH: Will you excuse me a second, please?

By Mr. Smith:

Q. Mr. Mann suggests you were in the office at that time?-A. Yes.
Mr. ROBERTSON: That is what I was going to, ask.
Mr. SMITH: Perhaps 1 can help you again.

By Mr. Smith:

Q. Under wxhose directions were those entries made?-A. Miss Fraser was
with the firm twenty-five years and 1 do net think anybody directed her. She
was entirely trusted .and I think she put them in of her own accord.

Q. She did not carry on the whole legal practice in the office?-A. No.
Q. So that when a member of the firm had certain transactions, he would

naturally instruct the book-keeper when an entry was necessary?-A. When an
entry became necessary the entry was made by the stenographer who did the
work for the member of the firm.
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Q. Bv way of a daily blotter?-A. Yes.
Q.And these entries arose from those blotters?-A. Yes.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q.And it was not a practice of the members of tbe firm to dictate entries?

-A. No, not at ail. Occasionally entries might be dictated, but it was not the
rule in the office.

Q. And as a matter of fact Senator Haydon was absent from the office a
very great deal? A. He was absent a great deal, ycs.

Byj the Chairmaui:
Q. Wns Senator Haydon in bis business office yestrday?-A. Yes, lie was in.

Mr. JOHN P. EBuS was recalled as a witness, and testîfied as follows:-

By Ï1ir. Smith:
Q. Mr. Ebbs, you are stili under oath?-A. Yes.
Q. Mr. Mann a'sked you to get ail the bis reflecting work donc for Beau-

harnois by your firm, and that work is refiected in Exhibit 144, which deals
with Beauharnois. You bave already filed an exhibit of your disbursements?
-A. Yes.

Q. But this Exhibit 144, you will observe, represents legal work donc for
Beauharnois?-A. Yes.

Q. And Exhibit No. 151 represents the Carillon. And No. 143, as you will
observe, represents Sterling, and No. 144 represents Beauharnois. And your
disbursement acvount is already filed as Exhibit 88.-A. I know about Lhat,
but I don't know much about the Carillon.

Q. Neyer mind tbe Carillon. What 1 arn interested in is Beauharnois, and
it is containcd in No. 144?-A. Ycs.

Q. And 3-ou have also been good enough to produce for me your Beau-
harnois file, whieh 1 now show you. That is correct?-A. That is riglit.

(File of correspondence and other documents relating to the incorporation
of the Beauharnois P>ower Corporation, filed, marked Exhibit No. 152.)

Q. So that the Beauharnois account and the Beauharnois file refleet the
work which was done by your firm for that concern?-A. 1 tbink that is riglit.

Q. Pardon?-A. I think that is correct, yes.
Q. And in the incorporation of the Beauharnois Power Corporation, which

was the work donc by your firm, vou were instructed in that by Messrs.
Meredith, Holden, Heward & Holden? I mean, reading your file indicates that
they prepared resolutions and that kind of thing for you?

Mr. ROBERTSON: Not quite.
The WITNESS: Oh, I would not say that. A lot of it originated there and

ww pased on by us and by Lash in Toronto.

By Mr. Smnith:
Q. The file indicates that?-A. Yes.
Q. And it will speak for itself?-A. Yes.
Q. And if anyone is interested, you have also given me your files respecting

the Sterling Industrial Corporation and rcspecting the Carillon Industrial Cor-
poration, and these files and their corresponding bills lil<ewise will reflect the
work donc by your office for these concerns?-A. I presume they do, but I arn
not sure.

Q. You have given me ail the files you can?-A. That is right.
Q. Bearing on this work in your office?-A. That is right.

(File of correspondence and other documents relating to the Sterling
Industrial Corporation Limited, filed, marked Exhibit No. 153-)
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(File of correspondence and other documents relating to the incorporation
of the Carillon Industrial Corporation Limited, filed, marked Exhibit No. 154.)

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Mr. Ebbs, I have not seen these files that are here, but is it not a fact

that Mr. Henry last year got the Sterling file and the Beauharnois file from
your office sent to hirn by registered mail, about a year ago?-A. I know he got
the Sterling file. 1 don't recaîl the Beauharnois file.

Q. Well, these files that are produced here, where do they corne from now?
-A. I don't know where they corne from now.

Q. I should think that before you started to swear about themn you would
know about, that?-A. He said those are our files.

Q. But what you say is the evidence. 1 hope you do not swallow everything
that cornes from Mr. Smith. Do you know where that file cornes from?

Mr. SMITH: You have two there. You are talking about "that file."
Mr. ROBERTSON: Well, aIl right, if there are two there.
Mr. SMITH: You shou]d refer to "those files."
The WITNESS: ilere is the file of the Sterling Industrial, which is rnarked

here as Exhibit 153.

By Mr. Robertson:
Q. Where did that corne f romn to-day?-A. I don't know where that came

from to-day.
Q. Did you give that to Mr. Smith yesterday?-A. I don't remember giving

it Co anybody at ail but Mr. Griffith, I think.
Q. When did you give it to Mr. Griffithi?-A. Mr. Griffith got it just shortly

before the part interests were to be turned over for the Sterling.
Q. I undcrstood Mr. Smith to put to you very deliberately and clearlv

whether you hiad xîut yeýturday lndtd hiai thmte filc,ý0
Mr. MANN: What is the reference?
Mr. ROBERTSON: I want to get the witness's rnind straight as to what he is

talking about.

By M1r. Robertson:
Q. That is not the file, then, that you handed out yesterday?-A. I don't

think I was asked if this was the file I handed out.
Q. You do not know whether it is or not?-A. iNo; I did not hand out any

file at ail.
Q. You were being asked, before your going to the file at ail, whether you

in any way have in your mmnd whether they represent fairly the work you did;
I want to know what you know about that; you answered without looking at
the papers?-A. I know that that is the Sterling file. What I told Mr. Smith
was-nind you, 1 didn't have anything at ail to do with the Sterling work.

Q. Did you have, for exarnple, the preparation of the minutes for the meet-
ings of the cornpany?-A. No.

Q. Did the firrn have to prepare minutes for the cornpany?-A. I believe
they did.

Q. Did they have an organization to build up, and have you got anything
there about it?-A. Well, now, I don't remember that.

Mr. MANN: Let the witness look before he answers.
The WITNESS: As I say, I don't know much about this Sterling file at aIl,

because I did not incorporate Sterling. I have seen this file; 1 know our own
work hiere. but I didn't do it.
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By Mr. Robertson:
Q.What is the other file you have there?

By the Chairman:

Q.Do you recognize that as a file coming from your office?-A. Yes, 1

know that that is our file; yes, it is our file.

By Mr. Robertson:

Q.Do you know whether it is your whole file?-A. No; there it is.

Mr. MANN: My friend is suggesting that what he bas handed to the wit-

ness is not the whole file. 1 mnay tell you, Mr. Chairman, that that file was

sent to me at our bidding by Haydon and Ebbs' office; and the Sterling file

was sent to me by Mr. Christie, Secretary-Treasurer of the Beauharnois Com-

pany, at tbe request, 1 believe, of somebody in Mr. Ebbs' office, and it was

sent to me three or four weeks ago, and bas been in my possession ever since.

Mr. ROBERTSON: W/e said tbat if tbere were files anywhere you could have

tbem.
Mr. MANN: You said we could have them.

Mr. ROBERITSON: Ycs, but ail 1 arn saying is that bere is a witness who is

answering without looking at tbe documents.

The W/ITNESS: No; wbat I said to Mr. Smith was that 1 did not incorporate

this company at ail.

By Mr. Robertson:
QI expect Mr. Smith bad a purpose in his questions, and 1 do not know

tbat you have any glimmering of wbat the purpose is; but 1 suggest that before

you say that that is the work you did you lad better find out?-A. No, I did

not do the work at ail.
Q.W/bat is that file?-A. Carillon.
Q.Did you do work in that?-A. No.

Q. Here is the Beauharnois; did you do the work in that?-A. Yes.

Q. Does tbat file fairly represent the work you did?-A. Yes, I have looked

over this file before.
Q. What did you do?-A. W/bat 1 say is that it sets out, as f ar as the wrît-

ten portion of it could go, what we did, but it does not take into account the

interviews we had in Montreal, as the resuit of whicb a lot of this was charged.

Q. Does it indicate that you spent two hundred days in one twelve months

in Montreal? You did tbat,- didn't you?-A. Yes, it was close on two hundred

days that I was in Montreal.
.Q. Does that indicate that?-A. No, it does not state those two bundred

days. This is ail tbe correspondence we had in connection witb the company.

Q. Is it îîot the fau'L that you liad a great deal of work to do that would

not be represented by any file?-A. W/cil, of course thc interviews we lad there

with Mr. Heward and the Sweezey Company and the Dominion Securities and

the Blake-Lasb firm are not there.
Q. And you bad many ciaboratc agreements; they are not tiiere, are thcy?

-A. No.
Q. So that it is a very incomplete file?

By Mr. Smith:

Q. W/e bave beard a lot about two bundred days in Montreal; you went

to Montreal at every meeting of tbe Board of Managers as the nominee of

Senator McDougald?-A. Yes.
Q. You speak about important interviews with various people; tbey are

refiected either in your file or in your bli, are tbey not?-A. Certainly.
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Q. They are both in there, are they not?-A. When you say reflected in
the bill, what do you mean by reflected in the bill? It means that we were
there, and there was something to be discussed at all times. I was not there
at any time unnecessarily.

Q. I do not doubt that for a moment; Montreal is a very pleasant place to
go to; on the other hand, if you had a lot of interviewing, you are a lawyer of
some years' standing?-A. Yes.

Q. You expect your clients to pay you for the work you did?-A. Yes.Q. I have no doubt that if you had a long and important interview it isreflected in your bill; no doubt about that?-A. I don't know what you mean.Q. If you have an important interview you are going to charge somebody
for it?-A. Yes.

Q. And it is reflected in your bill?-A. All we have there is a statementof the disbursements.
Q. In looking at Exhibit 144 there is anything but disbursements, which isExhibit 88, which is a separate account; surely in the work of law the work youdo is reflected jointly in your bill or your file, or both; no doubt about that?-A.I don't know that I would commit myself to that at all, because you don't put inyour bill the length of time, perhaps, that you have taken; you don't reflect inyour bill, perhaps, the people you were with, and the length of time, or what youhave discussed, or the length of time it has taken to discuss it.
Mr. SMITH: All right.
The CHAIRMAN: Is that all you want to ask him, Mr. Robertson? I do notknow whether we are to regard these files as accurate or not, Mr. Robertson.
Mr. SMITH: The witness has made it very plain what they are.
Hon. Mr. BÉIQTE: Does this close the evidence on both sides?
Hon. Mr. McMEANS: Yes, unless something unusual turns up.
The CHAIRMAN: I understand these gentlemen have no more witnesses.
Mr. SMITH: As far as we know we have no more evidence for the Com-mittee.
Hon. Mr. BÉIQUE: Then it closes the evidence?
Mr. SMITH: Perhaps I should say-I think it is my duty to say everythingI know in respect to evidence. So far as I know, there are no further witnesses.I have one further matter under investigation which it bas been utterly impossibleat this time to bring to a conclusion. My present view is that it will not interestthe Committee at all. Subject to that one thing, there is not a single thing thatI know of that can be brought before this Committee.
Hon. Mr. McMEANS: When are we to get those written arguments?
Hon. Mr. CANNON: I may state to the Committee that our statement isprepared, but we did not file it when we were advised that the Committee were tohave additional sittings. We are in the hands of the Committee now, and Ithink we could file our statement within a very short time.
Hon. Mr. BÉlQUE: The 29th ultimo was fixed for the filing of the briefs onboth sides. Now let us fix a date within which they will be all filed.
The CHAIRMAN: Are you sending in a statement, Mr. Robertson?
Mr. ROBERTSON: Yes; I had mine half done when I got word about furthersittings. I can finish it within this week.
Mr. MANN: Senator Béique has just asked me the question about the date,and I would say Monday, the llth instant.
The CHAIRMAN: I think we should have them at the end of this week.
Mr. MANN: That is, Saturday the 9th?
Hon. Mr. McMEANS: We can read them on Sunday.
Mr. SMITH: It might spoil a good Sunday.
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Hon. Mr. CANNON: Mr. Chairman, 1 wish to caTi your attention to a
clerical mistake on page 139 in Senator McDougald's statement, paragraph 2:

(2) 1 here desire to point out that the report of the Joint Board of
Engineers, which was adopted by the National Advisory Committee,
f avoured a development on the north shore of the St. Lawrence. On the
llth January, 1928, this report~ was concurred 'i n by a majority of the
National Advisory Committee, of whomn I was one, having been appointed
to this Committee on the 7th May, 1927.

It should read 1924.
Mr. MANN: That was referred to me by the Clerk of the Committee, and

realizing that it was undoubtedly a clerical error I told the Clerk of the Com-
mittec that it should be 1924, and it has been corrected in the officiai report.

The CHAIRMAN: I think the Clerk of the Committee has corrected nearly
all those clerical errors.

Hon. Mr. Copp: I understand that it is arranged that there will be a copy
of each brief prepared by the counsel available for each member of the Com-
mittee.

Hon. Mr. BiIQun: Yes, they wvi1l be sent to thc Secretarv, Mr. Hinds.
Mr. CooKc: Our brief will be printed. It is very short. WVe have made it

as short as possible, but bave had it printed so that we can send as many copies
as we are asked for.

Hon. Mr. MCMEANS: That is a good idea.
The CHAIRMAN: 0f course it is understood that those briefs will not be

made public by us. Those are for our private use in the meantime.
Mr. MANN: There was another clerical error in Senator McDougald's

evidence. H1e said he was called in 1927. I believe that can be corrected from
the Senate records, which show that he was called and sworn in 1926, but he
made that statement in error.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: He was summoned to the Senate in 1926, but sworn
in 1927.

The CHAIIRMAN: That is wrong; he was sworn in on the 9th December, 1926;
he was summoned to the Senate on June 25, 1926. You will find the record in
the Clerk's office.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: I was under the impression the Session opened in 1927.
The CHAIRMAN: No; the 25th June he was summoned, and the, 9th of

December, 1926, he was sworn and introduced. 0f course these briefs will be
the private property of the members of the Committee, and not for publication
in any way.

The Comrmittee adjourned, to meet at the caTi of the Chairman.



Brief of Counsel for the Committee

The following is prepared by Counsel for the Committee ln response to a
request of the Chairnian contained, on page 245 of the evidence, which reads as
f ollows:

The CHAIRMAN: Mr. Secretary, will you put in the minutes that the Sub-
Committee reported the evidence of Senator Hlaydon.

Hon. Mr. BLbQuE: Are you through with the evidence of Senator Haydon?

The CHAIRMAN: Yes. 1 do not think you were present this forenoon, Mr.
Robertson, when we announced. that the Committee would be very pleased if you
cared to send us a summary of the evidence from your viewpoint, and any con-
clusions that you think the evidence shows. Senator Béique has expressed the
same matter in a typewritten memorandum which 1 wilI rend:-

For the information, criticism or appreciation of that part of the public
who may be interested ini or have followcd the proceedings of this Com-
mittec, inay I be allowed to say that as this Committee bas now to find out
in the voluminous evidence which bas been adduced before us as well as is
eontained in the report of the Special Committee on .the Beauharnois Power
Projeet, session of 1931, a volume of 1,019 pages, the evidence pertinent to
the reference iMessrs. Mann and Smith have been requested to prepare for
the Committee a summary of the evidence pertinent to the reference which
may be found in the volume above-mentioned or bas becn adduced before
the Committee, w ifh reference to thc pages where sueh evidence is to be
found and their own conclusions to be drawn from the sanie...
The ternis cf the reference are as follows:

Ordered, ThaL a Special Comniittee of fine Senators to be hereafter
nanied, be appointed for the purpose of taking into conEidoration the
report of a Special Comniittee of the House of the last Session thereof
to investigate the Beauharnois Power Project, in so far as said report
relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate, said Special Coni-
niittee te hear such further evidence on oath bearing on the subjeet
matter of sucb report in relation to any such Honourable Members of
the Senate as it may deeni desirable and in accordance with consti-
tutional ipractice, and that the said Comniittee be autherized to send
f dr persens, papers and records.

In view of the abeve tcrms it is dcemed appropriate te deal with the evi-
dence and Exhibits separately, in se far as the sanie applies te Senators Mc-
Dougald. Haydon and Raymond, and this summary will, therefere, begin with
Senator McDougald, to be followed by Senator Haydon anid then by Senatur
Raymiond.

Ileference to pages of the Commons Report will be marked 'A' and where
it refers to the Senate Comniittee will be niarked 'B.'

SENATOE W. L. McDOUGALD

Senator McDougald, or as he was then, Dr. MeDougalcl, had been cxten-
sively engaged in business enterprises for a good many years (B148). H
also bad been interested in the development of power in thýe Soulanges section
of the St. Lawrencc river for a good niany years (B148) and, as will sub-
sequently appear, that develepnient by private parties was always a major
factor in that interest. His first official appointnient, as disclosed by the record,
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in connection with the St. Lawrence river was as Chairman of the Montreal
Harbour Board (B148) and it should be noted that this and ail subsequent
appointments received by him were fromn the Liberal Government of the dlay.

*In 1923 he Lad discussed with Mr. R. A. C. Henry the development of power
on the St. Lawrence, and particularly on the Soulanges section thereof, and at
that time he interested himself wîth Henry in the development of that portion
of the river with a view to making money, and it is fair to say that subse-
quent events prove that he neyer lost the idea of making money from the
development of power in this section (B148J.

Ia May of 1924 he was appointed as a member of the National Advisory
Committee (Bl48'), the report, of whîchi will be referred to later.

At his meeting with Henry in 1923 he agreed that Henry should expend not
more than $10,000 in the power investigation, and discussed with him from
time to time in a general way the said investigations (B 149'), and the faot is
that he was really quite conversant with ail that Hlenry was doing from this
time on. (Sec evidence of Henry B 84 et seq.'

It is manifestiy of first importance here to observe the attitude of mind of
Senator McDougald toward the ownership of power in the river; that is, as
between the Dominion Governinent and the Province of Quebcc. His position
as revenled at B149 was that be Lad not made up bis mind as to whether the
ownership of this power was in the Dominion Government or in the Province
of Quebec. In fact, he says hc had not given it much thought, and to this day
he has not made up bis mmnd with respect to such ownershîp. The following
questions and answers show this state of mind elearly:

Q. Then the converse of that is that you did believe in the develop-
ment of this power by private interests?-A. Quite.

Q. And believing that, you no doubt were at ail tîmes interested in
the ownership of that power, that is as between the Dominion Govern-
ment and the Province of Quebec?-A. 1 hadn't given that much thought.
That was a purely legal matter. I didn't feel competent to give any
opinion on it wliatever.

Q. 1 don't know that you were competent to deliver an opinion, but
you must have had some opinion?-A. I didn't have a settled opinion
about it.

Q. Have you any now?-A. It is still as unsettled as it was at that
time.

Q. So far as you were concerned, ail through these years you have
had no definîte view as to who Liad the ownership?-A. Quite unsettled
in my mind.

Q. In other words, it may be the Dominion and it may be the Prov-
ince of Quebec?-A. It was a legal matter, in my mmnd, pure and simple.

Q. But as 1 say, the ownership was in one place or the other, and
you neyer have made up your mmnd as yet which it*was?-A. No.

As to the amount actually expended in pursuance of this arrangempnt, it
seems clear from the evidence of Ebbs that of this $10,000 only $3,500 was at
the most expended by Senator McDougald on behalf of the Sterling Industrial
Corporation (B 114 and 115). Henry also swears that alI payments 'vere made
by thc Hayýdon firm, or by Senator McIDougaild (B88), and it further appear-
from Exhihits 143 and 144 that the balance owing to the firm of McGiverin,
Haydon & Ebbs for the incorporation, organîzation, and legal fees in general
for the Sterling Industrial Corporation were paid by Beauharnois. Prior to
the incorporation of Sterling and after it was resolved to inake an application
for the diversion of water by the McDougald-Henry interest, Senator McDoug-
aid gave to Henry the charter of a company, which he owned, known as the
Superior Sales Company, and this charter having been found insufficient for



270 SPECIAL COMMITTEE

the purpose intended told him to see Senator Havdon with respect to bringing
into being a corporation with sufficiently broad powers to make the application
for the water diversion to the Dominion Government. H1e further says that he

believed that they both would share in the fruits of the enterprise (B 149.).
The Sterling Industrial Corporation was created on the 5th Julv, 1924

(Bl49). and applications werc, in fact, made to the Department of Railwavs

and Canais and Public Works for the diversion of 30,000 cubic second feet of

water on the south sîde of the river (B149), on the 7thi day of July, 1924.
A date of considerable importance is the 2Oth April, 1928, on which Senator

McDougald was appointed to the special Senate Committee under the Chair-

manship of Senator Tanner, the activîties of which will be discussed more fully
subsequently.

Senator McDougald realized that the Sterling application was based on

the ownership of power by the Dominion Government, but also realized that

the Beauharnois effort was based on the ownership of the power by the Prov-
ince of Quebec. (Bl50..)

Q. You realized, of course, that the Sterling effort, if I may use that

expression, was based on the ownership of this power by the Dominion
Government?-A. Yes.

Q. You realized that the Beauharnois effort was based on the prin-
ciple that the province owned the power?-A. Yes.

It is obvious, therefore, having become interested in the Beauharnois projeet at

least as early as the lSth day of May, 1928, as will appear later, that Senator
McDougald was then in a position to benefit from this power and canalization

project irrespective of whether the Province or the Dominion Government owned

the power. This mav account to some extent for the casualness of his iiiterest

as to where the ownership of this power rested. 11e also was well aware that
if the Beaoharnois project was carried to its logical conclusion, wluch is now

admitted by aIl parties tu hiave becn the utilization of the whole flow of the
river, that canalization for shipping purposes could only proceed 'On the South

side (13151). In f airness tù himn bis answer on the top of page B151 is quoted

together with bis examination on the conclusion naturally formed fronm his

answçr, which was to the effeet that if the Government had proceeded to follow

the report of the engineers of the National Advisory Board that there would

bave been no development on the south sîde whatever.

Q. So you were in a position cither way in this development-to
realize from this development no matter where owncrship lay?-A. No,

sir. At that time 1 had dis.missed the Sterling Industrial Corporation
from my mind entirely. The National Advisory Board had made their

report. The report of the engineers of the National Advisory Board had

recommiended thîe development on the north side of the St. Lawrence
river. The Board accepted t.Iat, and we so recomîrnended to thc Gov-
ernment of the day. If the Government had gone on with deepening of

the St. Lawrence waterway, as every member felt they slîould and would
do, there would have been no development on the soutlî side of the river
whatever.

Q. The Government, then, must have changed ifs mind as to the

dcvelopment in that section?-A. 1 don't think the Government hiad
made up its mind as to any developmcnt.

Q. The Government provided by Order in Council 422 to consent
to this development with provision for the protection of navigation
works?-A. That came after the National Advisory Board, and liad
nothing to do with the Board at ail.

Q. This came on the 8th March, 1929. You know order 422-A.
Very well-
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Q. And that provides for dcvelopment, and canalization for shipping
on the south side?-A. But that was

Q. That is true, isn't it?-A. But not by the Government at Ottawa;
that came fromn Quebec, and the Beauharnois Company were simply
asking the Government, or offering the Governýment, if they would pass
the Order in Council approving their plans, that they wou]d give free
and clear to Canada the use of that canal.

Q. On the south side?-A. On the south side.
Q. So that as 1 say, if wQ change the canalization from the north

side to the south side the Government of the day must have changed its
mind as to the proper place to do that Nw'ork?-A. Not necessarily.

Q. How could they do anything clse?-A. Well, that diversion of
40,000 cubic feet of water on the south side did not interfere with any
development that the Governmcnt might decide to make on the north
side at alI, if they wanted to, do so.

Q. You know. of course, as weil as I do that the Beauharnois pro-
ject is admittcd by everybody, Mr. Henry and Mr. Sweezey and any-
body who hiad anything te, do' with it, that it contemplated the whole
flow of the river?-A. 1 think so.

Q. And their financing to the public was done on that basis?-A.
Yes.

Q. And if we take the whole flow of the river on the north side we
cannot carry boats on the south side?-A. No.

Q. So it is obvious that someone in authority must have had a
change of mind whcn the Beauharnois project was under consideration?
-A. I do not think that the (3overnment of the day ever made up its
mind about anything.

Certainly the recommendation for the development on the north siýde was
îlot adopted by the Government, as is clear]y shown by the passing of Order in
Council P.C. 422, and it is significant that this recommeadation was discarded
in favour of the development or the south side by the Beauharnois concern, in
whîch Senator McDougald, in conjunction with Hcnry, had at least a 20 per
cent interest, made up of 3,200 part interests arisinýg out of the Sifton purchase,
and 2,000 from the Sterling hale, or 5,200 part interests out of a total of 25,000.

Senator McDougald says (B3151) that he lost interest in Sterling for a
number of years, but that this intercst was revived some time in September,
1928 ('B151), but it, appears from Exhibits 143 and 14ýt, the bill of Messrýý.
iMcGiverin, llaydon & Ebbs, that this company paid the expenses to New York
of Senator Haydon on the llth December, 1925; there also was a conference with
Senator McDougaid on the 22nd December, 1926, and with Henry in Montreal
(as to the position and policy of the company). It is also truc that Mr. McRae,
who was an engineer employed by Mr. Henry to make reports on the Soulanges
section, continued his activities, reporting from time to time to Mr. Ilcnry, wlio
was at ail times gencrally keeping Senator McDougald in touch with what was
goîng on.

In Septemnber of 1924, according to the minutes of the Sterling Company
(Ex. No. 92), consideration was given to the filing of an application te develop

water power on the Ottawa river at Carillon, the said rights to be acquired
from the Dominion Government (B89 and Ex. 92). Discussions were going on
between Mr. Henry and Ulnited States financial interests for the financing and
disposition of power (B90 and 91), and these discussions were communicated
to Senator McDougald, as were estimated expenditures with respect to the
project (B93). It also appears that on April 23, 1925, Senator McDougald,
Senator Haydon and Mr. Henry discussed the termns of a number of water-
po-wer leases for 100,000 horse power. (See letter April 23, 1925, on the files
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of the Carillon Industrial Corporation Exhibit 154.) And Senator Haydon,
who at ail times was the solicitor for Senator McDougald and Henry, was in
iNew York on the 8th and 9th of December, 1925. (See the same file, together
with entry in Exhibit 143 on page 2.) So that it appears that the interest
which Senator McDougald says he lost in Sterling was, in fact, subsi antially
active during the periods above referred to.

At the time Senator McDougald says bis interest had revived he had
acquired bis interests in Beauharnois, which, he says, were acquired from the late
Winfield B. Sifton on the l8th day of May, 1928 (B152 and 153). It appears,
from the evidence of Senator McDougald on the above pages, that Sifton had
endeavoured to interest him in the Beauharnois proj oct as early as March of that
year, but according to 'Senator MeDougald, he was unsuccessful. H1e says that
on the l8th day of May the transaction was finally consummated after a
week or more of serions negotiation (B153 ). H1e says this purchase was made
in bonds of the Dominion of Canada of the face value of $46,000, then selling at
a premium, and it is perhaps well to quote bis evidence in this point fromn pages
B153, 154, 155 and 156.

Q. What form did your purchase take?-A. Do you mean how was
it paid for?

Q. Yes.-A. It was paid for in bonds.
Q. Yes?-A. Paid at my office, paid by my solicitor and my financial

man.
Q. At your office?-A. Yes.
Q. In Montreal?-A. In Montreal.
Q. Were these bonds personally handed to the laVe Mr. Sifton?-A.

By my man, yes.
Q. Whom do you mean by your man?-A. Mr. Barnard, who was my

solicitor at the time, and Mr. Bankis, who was my financial man.
Q. Mr. Charles Barnard, you are speaking of?-A. Yes.
Q. 1 notice his namne appears in the book as Mr. Barnot, but it shoii1H

be Barnard?-A. Yes.
Q. Where did he get them?-A. From my financial man, Mr. Banks.
Q. Were you present?-A. 1 was not.
Q. Whom had you înstructed in connection with the purchase?-

A. I had instructed Mr. Banks and Mr. Barnard.
Q.And how much did you turn over, 1 mean face value?-A. $46,000.
Q.Of what kind of bonds?-A. They were Canadian Victory bonds.

I cannot remember the year.
Q. Do you rememnber the price?-A. No, I cannot say that off hand.
Q. If I tell you they were at $110 at that time, does that refresh your

memory, if I suggest that to you?-A. No, it would not, because there was
a series of bonds, '33s and '37s.

Q. At any event, they were selling at a premiuxn?-A. Yes.
Q. So that you were paying to Mr. Sifton this $46,000 together with

the premniumn that was on the bonds at the time?-A. Yes.
Q. And was that the arrangement you made with him?-A. That was

the arrangement I made with Mr. Sîfton.
Q. Not that he should receive $46,000 exactly?-A. H1e was to receive

$30,000 for what he had paid for the 800 interests in the first syndicate,
which afterwards becamne the second syndicate when I bought them, and
there was a 10 per cent payment on the second syndicate, amounting to
$16,000; and mny arrangement with him was that he should geV $46,000
of bonds, which would take care of the $30,000, which he had paid for the
first syndicate shares, and $16,000, which would be the first payment on
the second syndicate, and the difference in price would be for his out of
pocket expenses, whatever it was.
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Q. If I amn right about the 10 per cent, that would be $4,600, around
that sum?-A. Yes, if you are right.

QIf there was a premium of 10 per cent at that time?-A. Yes.
Q.What documents were exchanged between you and Mr. Sifton?-.

A. None whatever between myseif and Mr. Sifton. Mr. Barnard got a
letter.

Q. I suggest that Mr. Sifton gave somebody a receipt?-A. H1e gave
Mr. Barnard a letter.

Q.A letter in his own handwriting?-A. Yes.
Q.And that letter was the acknowledgment of this $46,000 worth of

bonds?-A. Yes.
Q. And I suggest to you that Mr. Barnard then saw you with this

receipt and told you that there was a Ioophole-I arn not trying to quote
lis exact language-because Mr. Moyer was not on the document and he
was the ostensible owner of the part interests?-A. I knew that frern Mr.
Sifton.

Q. I suggest to you that Mr. Barnard pointed that out to you?-A.
H1e did.

Q. And what did you say to that?-A. I said that if lie was satisfied
with the receipt and that 1 was properly safeguarded, I was satisfied.

Q. 0f course, my suggestion to you is that lie told you lie was very
far from being satisfied with the receipt?-A. No, he did not put iL that
way.

Q. You had not the consent of the man who was the actual owner of
the part înterests?-A. Mr. Barnard had the letter which was turned over
before the bonds were delivered to Mr. Banks, the financial man, and
Mr. Barnard called me up and read me the letter. I was at the Harbour
at the time, I was busy, that is why I was not there personally. And lie
pointed out tliat there miglit be sorne diffieulty with Moyer, and I said if
lie was satisfled te takc the chance thit I would take the chance.

Q. Where is that letter?-A. At the time Mr. Barnard told me that
lis arrangement with Mr. Sifton was that after this deal was consum-
mated-this is the part that tliere is tlie mystery about, that everybody
is talking about as a mystery-

Q. I have not said it was a mystery,-A. It was stated in the old
report. Mr. Sifton neyer wanted his name to appear in the Beauharnois
transaction. That was one of tlie conditions tliat lie made witli Mr.
Barnard and also with myseif, that it would not be revealed that lie was
the owner of the shares; tliat is why lie put them in the name of Mr.
Moyer. H1e did not give me ail the reasons for it, and I arn not going to
suggest what tlie reason was. Boti lie and his fatlier did net want it
revealed, and lie had lis own personal reasons for it and I accepted them.
At the same time I did not want to appear at that time in the Beauhar-
neis Syndicate, and I was satisfled te allow tlie shares to remain in tlie
name of Moyer until I was ready to make tlie next meve.

Q. But you are a man of business, and here were the shares in the
name of Moyer, and Mr.*Sifton died on the l3th of June?-A. Ycs.

Q. And you had not a scratch of a pen from the ostensible owner of
those shares, Mr. Moyer?-A. Just the letter that my attorney liad, and
he was satisfied with it, and I think you should ask him about it. I was
satisfied with him.

Q. I arn net satisflcd yet. You are a man cf mudli business experi-
ence?-A. I have taken lots cf gambles and I was satisfled with that
gamble.

Q. You do net. gamble wlien you do net have to-I do net mean for
pleasure, of course, but I mean yeu do not take a chance in business,
surely, when there is ne necessity for yeur doing se?-A. Well, I do not
consider I was taking any great chance.
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Q. Here you were in this position, that you took a receipt from
Sifton. Moyer was the registered owner of these interests and you did
not have a scratch of a pen from Moyer?-A. INothing from Moyer, no.

Q. And 1 arn suggesting to you that what you told Mr. Barnard was
to f orget about Moyer, that yeu would look after that, or words to thiat
effect?-A. I cannot recall that I ever said anything of the kind to Mr.
Barnard.

Q. Then your statement is this, that you put it up to Mr. Barnard?
-A. I did.

Q. And said that if he was satisfied that yeu were?-A. Yes.
Q. Now, what happened to this reccipt or letter in Mr. Sifton 's

handwriting?-A. Mr. Barnard told me when this last inquiry was on,
I asked him about it-at the beginning, in fact, he told me that Mr.
Sifton asked him not to reveal it to any one. 1 saw it myseif at the time,
and Mr. Banks brought it te me.

Q. I suggest that Mr. Barnard brought it to you.-A. No, Mr.
Banks brought it to me. Mr. Barnard read the letter to, me on the tele-
phone, or gave me the substance of what Sifton would put in this receipt.

Q. What was it? A. I cannot tell yeu nw
Q. You were geing to tell me where the letter was?-A. Mr. Bar-

nard told me that one of the stipulations was that the letter would net
be used unless it was necessary to use it, and it neyer became necessary
to use it. And he agreed with Mr. Sifton that when the shares were trans-
ferred the letter would be destroyed.

Q. You say an agreement was made between Barnard and Sifton
that when those sharps; were transferred te you the receipt should be
destroyed ?-A. Yes.

Q. Why was Mr. Barnard taking instructions from Sifton with
respect to a receipt which was your own preperty, net Sifton's?-

lon. Mr. CANNON: llow can the witnes answer that question? If
my learned friend wants te find that eut, the man who can tell him is
Mr. Barnard.

The CHAIRMAN: The witness is quite competent te look after him-
self in that respect.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: Well, Mr. Chairman, I arn net doubting fer a
minute that the witness is competent, but I am pointing eut te the Com-
mittee that the question which is new being put te the witness is of such
a nature that he cannot answer it.

The CHAIRMAN: You do net, need te werry about the Cemmittee;
the Cemmittee understands.

Hon. Mr. CANNON: If I do net Nvorry about the Cemmittee or about
my client or anvthing, I do net see why I should be here.

Mr. SMITH: Worry about me.
By Mr. Smith:

Q. You ne doubt have bad some discussions with Mr. Barnard?-A.
Yes.

Q. And have ne deubt learned where this receipt is?-A. Yes, he
told me at the time that he destreyed the receipt, the letter.

Q. That he, Barnard, himself had destreyed that letter?-A. Yes.
Q. And did you ask him why he, as y.ou solicitor, had destroyed

yeur property?-A. Yes, because he had agreed te do se with Mr. Sifton.
It was a gentleman's agreement, I think that would be the answer I would
make te, that.

Q. That was after you appeared in public as the owner of these
shares?-A. That was after the 2nd of October when the shares were
transferred te John P. IEbbs, who was my nominee.
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Q. After they came out of Mr. Moyer's hands?-A. Yes.
Q. I am suggesting this to you, and I want you to think iT over.

You at that time had put up $46,000?-A. Yes.
Q. Plus the premium, whatever it was?-A. Whatever it was.
Q. And you had taken on an obligation of $144,000, that is tne

$160,000 less the $16,000 which was the first payment?--A. Again a
gentleman's understanding. I was not in it at that time.

Q. Moyer was the man in the books of the company who was stuck
for that $144,000-I do not mean thaý in any offensive way, I mean liable
for it?-A. Yes, he would have been.

Q. He was the person who would have been liable for the $144,000?
-A. Yes.

Q. And you had never seen this man who was liable for the $144,000?
-A. Oh, yes, I had.

Q. I mean, you had never discussed this transaction with him?-A.
No.

Q. You say Sifton gave your man, Mr. Barnard, this handwritten
document. Then what about your liability of $144,000? What were you
thinking about that?-A. Well, there was no call, as far as I knew,
excepting the $16,000 which had been paid, until October.

Q. Mr. Moyer has told us that he received a number of calls after
Mr. Sifton's death.-A. I knew nothing about calls at the time.

Q. Did you not communicate with Mr. Moyer and say, " Here, I
am your paymaster "?-A. No, I did not communicate with him at all.

Q. Did it occur to you that that young man might be worrying about
being called for a portion of the $144,000 when the shares were not his?
-A. No, I did not think so.

Q. And his client was dead?-A. No, I did not think so.
Q. It strikes me that you might have taken some interest in it,

Senator McDougald?-A. Well, at the time he had the word of Winfield
Sifton that they would be taken care of, and he told me that he had
instructed Moyer that he would get instructions from me at the time.
I did not consider it was the time for me to give instructions and I did
not get in touch with him until I was ready.

Q. So that you had a moral responsibility for $144,000, although
the bonds were not registered in your name, a moral responsibility to
pay $144,000, and there was no communication whatever between your-
self and the person who held them for you-A. Not a thing.

Q. And the evidence of payment for that in the hands of your
solicitor?-A. That is right.

Q. With an outstanding agreement with your vendor that the evid-
ence of payment should be destroyed when the shares came into your
name?-A. That is right.

Q. Rather a peculiar and circuitous way of handling a transaction,
was it not?-A. No, I think that is a common way.

Q. Again I must plead my lack of experience. But it could have
been done more simply?-A. Excepting for the reason that neither Sifton
nor myself at the time cared to have our names appear in the transaction.

Q. Perhaps you can explain why you did not care to have your
name appear in the transaction. You have said that you did not think
that other people should be influenced by the fact of your investment,
but did you not think that that was the time when the public should
know that you were in it?-A. No, I did not think so. At that time I
thoight it was a pure and simple gamble.
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Q. A pure and simple gamble where you had no legal commitment
ta pay?-A. Do you mean 1 was trying ta take advantage of it?

Q. I do not mean that.-A. What do you mean?
Q.You said you felt morally bound?-A. Yes.
Q.But you bad no legal commitment ta pay?-,A. No, I had no legal

commitment ta pay.

This last payment made by Moyer of $16,000 was not made by him, until
the 26th day of May. (B63.)

The whole purchase from Siffon is one surrounded with mystery. The
story of which, as at present given by the witnesses, is as follows: One, Moyer,
was an Ottawa solicitor, acting for the late Mr. Sifton, who had been solicitor
for the Beauharnois syndicate fromn September, 1927. The payments made by
Moyer are perhaps best dealt with in bis own language as given ta the Cam-
mittee on Wednesday, the 6th April, upon bis having been recalled, at bis own
request, ta ýcorrect bis evidence and is as follows:-

Q. As I understand it, you want ta make a correction in what you
then said?-A. Yes. When 1 was examined previously I was speaking
from memory of events that had happened four years previously. Since
then, as Mr. Smith bas suggested, I have obtained the definite records
of the l)anks in which certain deposits were made and certain cheques
issued. You will recali, Mr. Chairman, that my evidence deait with
tbree payments ta the Marquette Investment Corporation for part inter-
ests in my name on behaif of my principal, the late Winficld B. Sifton.
Tbose three payments were $15,000, $15,000 and $16,000 respectively.
On Marcb 31, 1928, I deposited $15,000 in cash in the Bank of Nova
Scotia, New York. On April 4th 1 issued a cheque for $15,000 ta the
Marquette Investment Corporation. That cheque, I helieve, the records
bcforc tho Committee will qhow was, cashed bir the Marquette Invest-
ment Corporation on the 6th of April. That disposes of the first pay-
ment. Now, the second payment. On the l7th of May I deposited in
the Bank of Nova Scotia, INew York, a second payment of $15,000. On
the l8th of May-by the way, this second deposit was by way of a hank
draft. On the l8th of May, the next day, I issued a cheque for $15,000,
ta the Marquette Investment Corporation.

By the Chairman:
Q. Tliat was the second instalment on the $30,000?--A. That is

correct. This second cheque, I believe, was casbed by the Marquette
Investment Corporation on the l9th of May. That disposes of the second
payment. And the third payment: On May 23rd 1 deposited in the
Standard Bank, Ottawa, a hank draft for $16,000. On the 26th of May
I issued my cheque in f avour of the Marquette Investment Corporation
for $16,000. This cheque was cashed by the Marquette Investment, Cor-
poration on the lst of .June.

Q. That was tbe 10 per cent on the 1,600 shares, was it?-A. That
is correct.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. And you have also learned that your subseription for those 1,600

shares was made on the lOth of May, 1928?-A. That is correct.

By the Chairman:
Q. That is the second 1,600 shares?-A. Yes.
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By Right Hon. Mr. Graham:
Q.Just for information, what constituted the Marquette lnvestment

Corporation?-A. It was a company acting at that period as trustee, I
believe, for the Beauharnois Syndicale, and then subsequently for the
Beauharnois Power Syndicate, and continued to act until these syndicates
merged into what became the Beauharnois Power Corporation.

By the Chairman:

si.Q. Is that a Montreal company, that Marquette company?-A. Yes,

These part interests in the second syýndicate were later sold by the second
syndicate te the Beauharnois Power Corporation for the sum of $150 per part
interest, together with 40 shares in the Power Corporation for each part interest.
(See evidence of Sweezey as to financial structure B38.) So that the position
a~s we now find it is, after the INew York trip cf Sifton and Moyer at the end of
March, that L\over appeared on the bocks cf the first syndicate as the owner
of 800 part interests, 50 per cent paid, wbi<eh were, on the 4th day of April,
enverted into 1,600 part interests in the new syndicate. Moyer on the 1Oth
day cf May subscribcd for another 1,600 part interests, for which lie agreed te
pay the sum cf $160,000. He bas since destroyed any and ail chieques and has
ne -writtcn record wliatever cf the receipt or the payment cf any cf tliese amounts
cf money, nor lias he any agreement with Sifton, whose trustee lie w as,th
arrangement being, according te him, a gentleman's agreement with Sifton (B61).
lie sax's tliat prier te Sifton's death he was told by Sifton tlîat in the event
cf his death lie xvas te, take his instructions frein Senater McI)ougald. Sifton
died on tic l3th June, 1928, having been in a comatose condition sorne tlirec or
four davys prier te tiat time. (As te wien instructions were given by Sifton
te Moyer, sec page B65).

In seo far as relates te the payment te Sifton referred te in thc evidence cf
Senator MclDotugald quoted abeve, it is cf some significance te note that neither
Senator MeDeugald, Barnard nor Banks have any wrîting cf any nature or
description toudhing on this purchase, ner is there any evidence in the documents
and letters or books cf thc Sifton estate sliowing either the purdliase cf the part
interests, nor the receipt, cf the bonds or money representing the bonds. (B228
and 229 and Ex. 142. ) The fcllowing is a quctatien frein the evidence cf Mr.
Clifford Sifton, beginning at the middle cf page B229 and part way dcwn
B230:-

Q. At the Commens inquiry 1 think there was flled as Exhibit No.
105 a document being a statement cf tie estate cf your late brother,
with an affidavit as to, succession Duties attached. (Showing document
te witness<) That is the Exhibit produced on the Commons înquiry?-
A. This appear te be a copy cf the Succession Duties Act affidavit which
we prepared, yes.

Q. And includes within it an inventory cf the securities whieh made
up your brother's estate?-A. Yes.

Q. Was there among the assets cf the estate any Dominion cf
Canada bonds whatsoever?-A. No.

Q. Was there among the papers cf the estate any receipt for any
sums of moncy paid te the Beauliarnois Syndicatc or the Beauliarneis
Power Svndicate?-A. 1 dc nct reccilect any such receipt.

Q. Would you recolleet it if lad been tlere?-A. Nct a receipt, ne.
Q. There was ne receipt?-A. 1 dc not say that, I say I am net

sure I would have recollected it. If it had becit a reeeipt for înoney whieh
w-as loaned which censtituted an asset I am sure I would have listed it.

48236-201
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Q. Was there any receipt from the Beauharnois Syndicate or the
Beauharnois Power Syndicate for any sum of money appearing to have
been paid to that Syndicate in the f orm of a subscription?-A. 1 can-
not answer categorically. Certainly I neyer heard of sucli a thing and
1 do not recollect having seen sucli a thing. There is nothing I can
recolleet which refers to that.

Q. Was there any reference to a subscription by your brother to
stock or units in the Beauharnois Power Syndioate or B'eauharnois
Syndicate?-A. I neyer saw such a thing.

Q. 1 mcrely ask was there any such thing among the papers of the
estate?-A. 1 cannot answer categorically because we have haif a trunk
full of papers, I did not examine every one to see whether there was
such a thing, but I do not recolleet any question of such a thing.

Q. You did examine the papers to find what the assets of the estate
were?-A. Exactly. There was nothing which appeared to me to be.
an asset which referred to that, at least not that we found.

Q. And there was not in the estate any evidence so far as you
found, havîng, looked over the assets, any evidence that hie was at any
time a subscriber to the stock or part-interests of the Beauharnois
Power Syndicate or Beauharnois Syndicate?-A. Certainly not at the
time of his death. I would not be particularly interested in what hie was
before, but I can recolleet nothing-

Q. I am only asking what you found at the time of his death?-A.
I do not remember finding any such thing, but 1 must explain that if it
w as an interest which would have terminated before, it is not the kind
of thing we would be particularly lookin.g for. I cannot recollect even
having seen anything which referred to an interest -which had termi-
inated.

Q. What I am asking is if there was among the papers of your late
brother's estate any evidencé thaL lie Lad been prior to his doath nee-
sarily interested in the shares or part-units or part-interests or units
of the Beauharnois Syndicate or Beauharnois Power Syndicate?-A.
Not within my knowledge, no.

Q. Who made up the inventory of the estate?-A. It was made up
under my direction. Myseif and my clerical help.

Q. Was it made up from information you furnished to the party
who put the figures down?-A. It was done directly under my own
hand.

The evidence of Mr. Barnard was that the sale from Sifton to McDougald
was concluded by him and Mr. Banks with Mr. Sifton in a twenty-minute period,
after the l5th and before the end of May, 1'928 (B204), that rnerely a receipt
in Sifton's handwriting was taken, which lie agreed to destroy when Senator
Mý/cDougald saw fit to have it known that hie was the owner of the said part
interests, and that the rcceipt was destroyed accordinglv (B207). The fact is
that until the second day of October, 1928, when Senator McDougald had these
part interests trarisferred to the namne of his trustee, Mr. Eblis, the whole matter,
purchase and sale, is one surrounded by mystery. It is clear, hiowever, that
from the beginning, Sweezey knew that Sifton was not purchasing, for himself
(A666.)

Q. Now, 1 suggest to you that it would have been at least the part
of common precaution for you to, have asked your solicitor whom lie was
holding the shares for?-A. 1 did ask him, sir, but lie told mie to w-ait and
in due course lie would inform me.
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The evidence of Senator McDougald given before the Commons Committee
with respect to the payrnent to Sifton is quite contradictory to that given before
the Senate Committee, and will be f ound on pages A942, 943 and 944.

Q. Then, a rnonth after that you got the Sifton interests?-A. That
is right, or two months, perhaps.

Q. And did you .say you.paid to Mr. Sif ton $30,000 for these shares?
-A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you pay by cheque?-A. No, sir.
Q. How did you pay for it?-A. In bonds.
Mr. JACOBS: You must have been acquainted with Mr. Aird;.
The WiTNEss: No, it was a very common thing.
Hon. Mr. MACKENZIE: IL is a new practice.

By the Chairman:
Q.To whomn did you deliver the bonds?-A. They were delivered by

rny attorney and by my financial man at my office.

By Mr. White:
Q. Who was your attorney?-A. Mr. C. A. Barnet.

By the Chairman:
Q. To whom were they delivered?-A. To Mr. Sifton hirnself.
Q. That is W'infield Sifton'?-A. Yes.

By Mr. White:
Q. Why did you not get then and there an assignment of his inter-

ests?-A. Because Mr. Sifton did not want his name should appear in the
transaction at ail. He did not want it known that he had anything to
do with the Beauharnois company.

Q. But his nm
Mr. STAint: Let hirn answer.
Mr. Wi-rvrE: I know, but for goodness sake, I should like to end

thc answer somew here.
Mr. STARR: You are interrupting hini.
Mr. Wiiiv: Your clicnt is continually making what seems to me

to be superfluous answers.
The WirNEss: You asked me, Mr. White, and I arn trying to tell

you why.
Q. What I want to point out to you is that Mr. Sifton neyer appeared

in the transaction.-A. That is quite correct.
Q. And that the transaction to transfer from Mr. Moyer in your

name-after the first of April those part-interests could havc bccn trans-
ferred to you without the intervention cf Mr. Sif ton at all.-A. I-

Q. Witlhout the sane- -A. It is not-
Q. Without Mr. Sifton's name appearing?-A. The reason for that

was that I did not want my name to appear at the time.
Q. Whv?-A. For one reason, I did not want to take on the commit-

ment, at the time the other infere.sts wvere coming due, the other Syndi-
cate, that is 30,000 shares, which vere clo.sing out the first Syndicate.

Q. At that time?-A. I do not mind taking 30,000 shares or $30,000,
but that was 1,600 part-nterests which would have been fully paid up
at the close of the syndicate, the next payment, that had to be made was
on the first of June or thereabouts for $16,Offl.
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By the Chctirman:
Q. $16,000?-A. Yes; that was the next one, on the next Syndicate.
Q. You do not mean $16,O00? A. Yes, 10 per cent, which was the

first cali. The cornritrnent was around $160,000.

By Mr. White:
Q. That was not transferred to you by, Mr. Sifton?-A. No, sir.

That was stiUl kept in the narne of Moyer.
Q. Moyer subscribed for those 1,600 on your instructions and not

on Mr. Sifton's?-A. No, on Mr. Sifton's instructions.
Q. So that .Moyer, apparently, was in the dark as to who owned the

sbares frorn the middle of May until bce transferred tbern to Ebbs?-A.
That is correct, or until, as lie stated thc other day, hce bad instructions
from Mr. Sifton if anything ba.ppened to hlm, to consuit with me.

The CHAIRMAN': Mr. Whbite, allow me to interrupt there. The
Senator said lie had some other reason for flot wanting to go into tbis
thîng. He gave us one reason, and perbaps hie bas some others.

The WITNEss: The otber reason was, 1 did not want any other
people to corne into the Beauharnois Power project because I was ini it.

Q. The sarne reason as Senator Rayrnond gave?-A. Practically the
same reason. I. have heen la many things that have been f allures, and
I bave hiad rnany people corne in because I was in it-I arn not saying
tbat egotistically at al they bad been failures and 1 did not want any-
one to corne into anytbing that I was in, but 1 was willing to take a
gamible, take a chance to lose. Furthcr than that, there was a third
reason; I dici not, want anyhody at Ottawa to know la tbe Government-
I neyer rnentioned it to anybody, any rnember of the Government-that
I was in the Beauiariîois Power Syndicate.

B'q Mr. WVhite:
Q. Not becausc you wcre afraid tbey would give you away?-A.

No, not at ail; it was none of their business; it was rny private business.
T bad no reason to consuit anybody about it at ail.

Q. That is the situation, that you did pay for the shares in bonds?
-A. I paid the .$30,000 la bonds througb my attorney, and tbrougb rny

financial man in Montreal.

Contrasting the stories set out la the quotations above, there can be no
escaping the fact that one of tbern is absoluteiy untrue. Senator McDougald
makes it very cicar in the evidence before the Senate Cornmittee that bie paid
Sifton $46,000 at one tirne for the purpose of taking Up the $30,000 for the part
interests ln the first syndicate and was rnaking a 10 per cent subseription on a
cornitment of $160,000 in the second synrilcate. Of this there can be no
doubt whatevcr. In bis evidence before the Commons Committee bie says, not
only once but tbrce times in tbc space of a page or so, the arnount tbat hie paid
Sifton in bonds was $30,000, and lie further says tbat lie did not wisb to take
on the comrnitrnent for the $160,00 , that tbe cornmitrnent for $160,000 was
not transferred to birn by Mr. Sifton. His own evidence and that of Banks
and Barnard at this hearing flatly contradict those statements and leave hlmi
open to the very gravest suspicion that bie was in fact in Beaubarnois from the
date of the original Sifton purchase, namely, April 4, 1928.

This concludes our rernarks and reference wîth respect to the purchase
by Senator McDougald of bis interests la Beauharnois.

Returning tben to tbe purchase of Sterling: according to bothi Senator
McDougald and Mr. Henry, Senator McDougald asked Henry to figure out
what hie tbougbt the value of Sterling was and that Henry arrived at a valuation
of $50,000. (B158.)
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There can be no doubt, however, that the arrangement whereby Beauhar-
nois agreed to pay 2,000 part interests for the 5 no par value shares of Sterling,
which had been issued, was the result of negotiations between Sweezey and
Senator McDougald (B158).

Q. There is no doubt about this, that irrespective of documents, the
payment of 2,000 part interests for the five shares of Sterling was the
result of discussion between you and Sweezey?-A. Yes.

The payment of the part interests for the five qualifying shares of Sterling
which had been issued to the five stenographers was contingent on the Beau-
harnois people entering into an arrangement with the Dominion of Canada
under the Navigable Waters Protection Act, as provided for in the lease which
they held in the province of Quebec. This was to the knowledge of Senator
McDougald (B159) and also that his sale of Sterling was valueless unless that
arrangement was completed.

With regard to the value of the Sterling Industrial Corporation on which
other evidence has been given, it was referred to by Senator McDougald as
having a "nuisance value" (B163) and (A914)

Q. To Senator McDougald?-A. I am talking of Canada now. The
Chairman says it would affect Canada. It would not affect Canada.

Q. Why not?-A. How would that affect Canada. It was not costing
the Dominion of Canada-

Q. We may as well thrash out this thing here now. There are a good
many dollars in it, and large advances made by the public, and it arose
through the fact that the Sterling had a delay or a nuisance value, that
is how it affects Canada.-A. I do not think that is a correct statement
to make.

Q. You recognize that the capital of the Beauharnois Power Cor-
poration bas been increased?-A. I recognize that when the bankers
put out that $30,000,000 of debentures that they were absolutely protected
and covered, and that the men who bought them were protected in every
way, shape and form that they could possibly be.

Q. By reason of this transaction, the Beauharnois Corporation, if it
is successful, has to pay dividends on 208,000 class " A " shares?-A.
Every company has to do that.

The CHAIRMAN: Answer that question?-A. I cannot answer that
question.

The CHAIRMAN: Let us clear that up, before we go on.

lMr. STARR: There are only 80,000 shares involved.

The CHAIRMAN: I will get at it in a moment.
Q. How many shares of the Beauliarnois Power Corporation were

issued to you and Henry?-A. 80,000.
Q. By reason of your having sold a nuisance value in the Sterling

Industrial to them, how many shares were issued?-A. 80,000 shares.
Q. 80,000?-A. Yes.
Q. Now then, what Mr. White says is perfectly correct, that you had

in contemplation that at some time or other that dividends would have
to be paid on those shares. if they paid dividends?-A. If they paid
dividends.

Q. And those dividends would be paid to you and your associates,
on what is obviously a nuisance value, sold to them. Is that right? Why
hesitate, Senator?-A. That is essentially correct, yes.
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The evidence of Senator McDougall is also quoted on page A939, as fol-
lows:-

By Mr. White:
Q. What is your answer?-A. Of course I do.
Q. What was the value?-A. Sweezey can tell you that better than

I can.
Q. I am asking you?-A. It is for him to say what it was worth, not

me.
Q. Point out to me one single dollar of value there was in the Sterling

Industrial Corporation?-A. That is a question that would be difficult for
anybody to answer.

Q. I should think so. Are you content to leave your answer there?-
A. Yes, I am.

Then Sweezey also says that the assets of Sterling did not amount to anything
(A663):-

By the Chairman:
Q. Mr. Sweezey, Mr. Griffith gave evidence in respect to the Sterling

Industrial Corporation, and lie did not think the assets of the Sterling
Industrial Corporation amounted to anything?-A. Neither did I.

Q. That is what we have been trying to find out.-A. I did not say
they had any assets. We were just afraid of so many obstacles.

Q. It was an obstacle?-A. The application.
Q. You wanted to complete removing the obstacle by making them

a partner?-A. I do not know that it was along that line. I do not
know whether he was alone or not. If I thought that he was alone, I
would not have been so anxious to work it. I thought he might have
others."

Senator McDougall again referred to Sterling as being an obstacle to Beau-
harnois on account of it having a prior application (B162). In fact, he further
said that he had never heard the Sterling application mentioned by anyone in
Ottawa as an obstacle to the granting of P.C. 422, and does not know, even
yet as to whether the application itself was ever withdrawn (B161):-

Q. Did you ever hear any member of His Majesty's Council-a
member of the Governor General in Council-ever suggest at any time, in
connection with the granting of P.C. 422 that Sterling was an obstacle
in its way?-A. Never.

It may be said, without fear of contradiction, from reading the whole evi-
dence of Senator McDougald before both the Committees, that the Sterling
application had no value whatever in his judgment, except in so far as it might
have been desirable for Beaubarnois to acquire Mr. Henry's services. Of these
services he speaks at length at pages 163-5. The fact is that Mr. Henry
joined Beauharnois at a salary of $40,000, which was double the salary that he
had at any time received in his life time, and was also given shares in the cor-
poration itself, so that it is now admitted that Beauharnois paid at least
a reasonable amount for the services of Mr. Henry. It is futile to say that
because Henry had an interest in a corporation that had no assets other
than a nuisance value, it was necessary to procure the company in order to pro-
cure Henry. The simple and direct method would have been to engage Mr.
Henry at such terms as the Beauharnois Corporation might agree on, as he
was of equal value to the company with or without the Sterling Industrial
Corporation, which, according to all the evidence was of no value whatever. See
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also evidence of Sweezey bottom of page B47 and top of page B48, and where he
also speaks of arranging the purchase price with Senator McDougald, page B46,
from which the following is quoted:-

By Mr. ,Smith:
QSome of these discussions, Mr. Sweezey-would yau be good

enougli to tell me if you had any conversations with Senator McDougald
about the things we have -been lately discussing?-A. It is pretty hard
to recall. 1 know we had a great many as to what value should be
ascribed to this Sterling Company, and I think as Mr. Jones was with me,
and he is a very astute trader, I arn pretty sure that lie used ail the
argument that should have been brouglit forth at the time.

Q. We will assume then that you did the best you could. In other
words, I presume you were not exactly giving this thing away; you were
trading as best you etbuld, and that was the best price you could get
from these gentlemen with whom you were dealing?-A. Yes.

One should also read the following quotation from page B47, wherebv
it appears that Sweezey was given the impression by Senators Haydon andi
McDougald that there were other persons interesteti, whom he ouglit to remove,
when, in fact, there were no0 others interesteti except Senator McDougald andi
Hlenry.

By Mr. Snzith:-
Q. Here is the purport of my question. I put it to you in this way:

Ini te conversations that yau had in the presence of Senator Haydon
and Senatar MoDougalti, both being there at the same time (that pleases
you, 1 arn sure), just what was urgeti on their behaîf (1 leave out the
objectionable word boost), in persuading you to pay 2,000 part interests
for this corporation with no intrinsie value-?-A. The main argument
was one of teclinical menit, as, heing ahead of aur application; and I
don't knaow just how I got to believe, but I did believe, or thouglit, that
there miglit be ather people in it whom thcy thought it would nat be fair
ta drap out anti leave them unprotected while they were coming in with
us; and whilst I arn not clear as ta whether they actually said that or
not 1 was given that impression-that the merits of their arguments
were that they were not alone in the natter that others miglit be with
them. I titi not know how many shareholders there were in this, and 1
didn't finti out until after the purdhase was matie.

The foregoing is the hîstary of the sale of Sterling Industrial Corporation
and the purchase of the Sifton interests in s0 fan as the same are discloseti by
the evidenýce.

We now turn to the public uttenances anti actions of Senatar MeDougalti
relating to this power tievelopment.

On the l9th Apnil, 1928, which was just a month, less one day, from the
time lie admits lie matie the Siftan purchase, Senator McDaugald madie the
folowing speech in the Canadian Senate (B165):-

Mr. Smrru:
You said this:

Honourable gentlemen, I desire ta make a statement on a question
of privilege, and to, give an absalute denial to certain newvspapen implica-
tions reflecting on my honour and integrity, bath as a member of this
hanourable bodiy and as a private citizen.
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The Toronto Globe of April 18 prints a despatch from its Ottawa
correspondent, dealing with the bringing down of correspondence between
the Canadian and United States Governments on the subject of the
St. Lawrence waterways, in which it says, amongst other things:-

Hon. Senator McDougald is reputed to be connected with the
Beauharnois Power Company, which recently obtained a charter
from the Quebec Legislature for a gigantic development in the Que-
bec section of the St. Lawrence.
The report also contains a number of statements relative to the

merits of private and public construction. I am concerned, however, only
in giving an immediate unequivocal and absolute denial to the implica-
tion of the Globe despatch that I am connected with the Beauharnois
Power Company. I want to say here, and to say it with emphasis, that
I do not own a dollar's worth of stock in. this enterprise, and have no
interest in or association with that company in any way, shape or form.

Now let me deal with a despatch which appeared in the Toronto Mail
and Empire, also on April 18, and similar to that of the Globe, with the
exception, perhaps, that where the Globe "reputes" the Mail and Empire
"suspects."

That the report was written by Senator McDougald, Sir Clifford
Sifton and Thomas Ahearn is believed, and the other members of
the committee played unimportant parts and did not influence the
decision. These three capitalists are either known or suspected of
being initerested in power schemes, and the proposal to develop the
national section first at the expense of private interests who would
have the power, is credited to them .... The criticisms so far ad-

vanced are many and pertinent........ that the proposal endorsed
by the Government was prepared by power interests represented by
Sir Clifford Sifton, Thomas Ahearn and Senator McDougald.

Speaking for myself, I want to make a further positive and absolute
denial of the implications and suspicions of the Mail and Empire. The
report was prepared by the Advisory Committee, and by the Advisory
Committee alone. That the Government put upon that committee men
who presumably knew something about power and power schemes was
probably for the same reason that it puts upon the Railway Commission
men who presumably know something about railways;-

You perhaps have not appeared before many of those boards. They vary.
-but for two of the prominent newspapers of this country to put out an
impression to the public of this and other countries that the members of
the committee were actuated by motives or private gain, or collusion
with power interests, is, I think, an action which is undue, unfair and
unwarranted. So far as I myself am concerned, I cannot add too much
emphasis to my denial of the suspicions and aspersions which these
despatches have cast upon me as a member of the Advisory Committee,
as a member of this honourable body, and as a private citizen. Perhaps
I may take some slight comfort from the fact that this sort of thing
seems to be one of the ordinary penalties of public life.

Particular attention is drawn to the following statement, quoting from the
Mail and Empire:

These three capitalists are either known or suspected of being inter-
ested in power schemes, and the proposal to develop the national section
first at the expense of private interests who would have the power, is
credited to them.
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With respect to this Senator McDougald says:-
Speaking for myself, I want to make a further positive and absolute

denial of the implications and suspicions of the Mail and Empire.
The statement quoted above from the Mail and Empire clearly suspects

that Senator McDougald is interested in a power scheme on the St. Lawrence
River in the national section; this he denies, using the words "implications and
suspicions of the Mail and Empire." At the time of making this statement to
the Senate he was interested and a part owner in the Sterling Industrial Cor-
poration which had made an application for the diversion of water in the
Soulanges section for the development of power.

The whole statement of Senator McDougald made to the Senate on that
occasion has all the appearance of one which was very carefully prepared and
one is driven to the unescapable conclusion that, having regard to his owner-
ship of Sterling, the statement made to the Senate is untrue. It might also be
added that he had a further power interest, although not on the St. Lawrence,
namely, his interest in the development of power at Carillon which has been
hereinbefore referred to.

Then again on the 20th May, 1931, he made a further speech in the Senate,
referring to previous speech made on the 19th April, 1928. A portion of which
is as follows:-

"honourable members of the Senate, before the Orders of the Day, I
rise on a question of privilege. According to the newspapers of this
morning the honour and integrity of myself as a member of this House
have been attacked in another place, and I desire to draw attention at
once to a statement which I made in the Senate in April, 1928, regarding
my position in the much-discussed Beauharnois Power Company. News-
paper articles had reflected on myself and other members of the National
Advisory Committee reporting on the St. Lawrence waterways. It was
insinuated that our decisions and recommendations were influenced by
personal interests in power developments on the St. Lawrence. In this
House I stated at the time that I had no interest in the Beauharnois Power
Company nor in the syndicate. That was absolutely true and correct. I
may say at once that up to that time I had been invited on many occa-
sions to become a member of that syndicate, but had always declined.
After that date I was asked again, and had the whole project investigated
from every angle. When I was satisfied that it was a proper project for
me as a member of this Senate, as a business man, and as a citizen of
Canada, to take a financial interest in, I agreed to do so. Some six months
later, in October, 1928, I took an interest in the Beauharnois syndicate,
and was influenced solely by my business judgment.

I may add that I put into the syndicate dollar for dollar with every
other member of it, and when it was dissolved I received my portion of
the common stock in the new company, and my portion of the money
distributed, as did every other member of that syndicate.

Now I have no apology to make for accepting the chairmanship of
that company, nor have I any apology to offer on behalf of the company.
I state at once that the men who had the vision and the courage to under-
take the building of that great power canal, with all its potential advan-
tages, should be commended instead of being condemned.

Then you went on:-
At the present moment the Beauharnois Power Company are em-

ploying 3,000 men on the site of the work-
and you recited the work they had been doing, and the sale of deben-
tures, saying that part had been taken care of by the best legal brains
in Canada. Then you concluded in this way-
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I ask honourable gentlemen again to take my word and my assurance
that when I made the statement in this House it was the truth, and nothing
but the truth. In another place a committee is to be appointed to inves-
tigate this whole Beauharnois project, and I am confident that the whole
thing will be cleared up there to the entire satisfaction of both Houses of
Parliament and the country at large.

It is significant to note in this statement that he reaffirms the position he
took in April, 1928, stating that after that speech he was asked again and had the
whole project investigated from every angle; that when he was satisfied that it
was a proper project for him as a .member of the Senate, as a business man and a
citizen of Canada to take a financial interest in it, he agreed to do so; that some
six months later, October, 1928, he took an interest in Beauharnois Syndicate
and was interested solely from his business judgment and had put into the
syndicate dollar for dollar with every other member of it. It is clear, on his
own admission, that he made his Beauharnois purchase as early as the 18th of
May, 1928. He was examined in the Committee of the House of Commons at
length on this statement, contenting himself with saying that it was ambiguous,
but not incorrect. Before the present Committee his examination in respect to
this appears on pages B171. 172, 173 and 174, all of which must be read with a
view to coming to a conclusion as to what purpose should be ascribed to Senator
McDougald in making the very misleading statement which he did, namely,
that it was in October, 1928, he took his interest. The examination concluded
with this question and answer on middle of page B174:-

Q. You have no further explanation?-A. I could not have any
further explanation.

One is driven to the inevitable conclusion that the speech made by Senator
McDougald to the Senate on the 20th May, 1931, was made with the deliberate
intention of concealing from the Senate the interest he had In Beaularnois priu
to the part interests appearing in his nominee, Ebbs, on the second day of
October, 1928. In other words, he concealed bis relationship to the whole
Moyer-Sifton purchase, and this must have been done with the intention of
misleading the Senate. It further appears that at the time he admits making
the purchase from Sifton, he was sitting as a member of a Special Committee
of the Senate, which sat from the 20th April to the 7th June, 1928 (B174), and
did not disclose to fellow members of the Committee the interest he had, either
in the Sterling Industrial Corporation or in the Beauharnois Syndicate. His
answer to the Commons Committee on page A917 is set out in the following
quotation:-

By Mr. White:
Q. I suggest to you that on that date when you called Mr. Henry as

a witness you had an interest in the Beauharnois project?-A. That is
right.

Q. That is right. Did you disclose that to the committee?-A. It
was none of their business whether I had or had not any interest in it.

This Special Senate Committee was charged among other things-" to
inquire into and report from time to time on the matter of the development and
improvement of the St. Lawrence River for the purposes of navigation, and pro-
duction of electric current, and power and matters incidental to such objects,"
and on this occasion Senator McDougald took quite an active part. Among
other persons, there was called as a witness, Mr. Henry, who was jointly inter-
ested with Senator McDougald in the Sterling Industrial Corporation, and on
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that occasion hie discussed with Henry the question submitted to him at that
time by Senator McDougald himself prior to that hearing (B 175-176). The
last question submitted and appearing at B176 was as follows:-

Q. Now, page 928 deals with the last question submitted bv you to
Mr. Henry and answered by him, and to make the matter very short,
you remember speaking to him about how expeditiously this general work
of deveiopment should proceed, and you remember his answer was that
it should proceed at once?-A. Yes, I remember that.

It should be added also that at the time Senator McDougald made his
speech to the Senate in May of 1931, hie was also a part owner with Henry in
the agreement te seli the Sterling interests to Bcauharnois and at the meeting
of Senator Taýnner's Committee, between April 2Othi and June 7th, did not dis-
close the interest which hie held in Sterling at that time. Ia other words,
threughout this whole development-he believed in development by private
interests -he was at ail times in a position to benefit from such development
by private interests and advocated the completion of this developmnent by private
interests in ail bis public utteran<'es and acts.

There is a further view of the matter which is of first importance. *We
find on page A995 a letter of the 25th May, 1928, from Mr. Geoffrion to Sen-
ator McDougald "that there now need be no delay in procuring the consent of
the Dominion Government, as required by the Quebec lease." We alse find
throughout the whole period, interviews at Ottawa and in Montreal with Senator
McDougald by Beauharnois lawyers, particularly Colonel Thompson, who wras
cngaged in endeavouring te have the Order in Council passed at Ottawa, and
although these individual items were called to the attention cf Senatýor iMcDoug-
ald, his statement in ail cases simply is that hie does not rernember what t.hey
were about. The inference is obvions, that hie was approachcd by these various
people to endeavour to procure the consent of the Governor General in Council,
as -later appcared in P.C. 442. In fairness to Senator McDougald, lie denies
that he saw the Prime Minister or any othor Minister in connection with the
matter. 11e does net impute any dishonesty to the gentlemen who interviewed
him in connection with Beauharnois matters and made the charges therefor to
the Bea:uharnois company (B177). So that it may he taken as established as
a fact that hie was consulted from time to time with a view te expediting and
passing the Order in Council.

It would seem pertinent here te quote from the evidence of Mr. Griffith te
show for what purpose certain Ottawa lawyers and among týhem Colonel Thomp-
son were employed. Referring te Mr. Sifton, who in tura named the Ottawa
lawyers, the following is quoted frem pages B74-75:-

Q. And among those solicitors was the late Mr. Winfield B. Sift-on?
-A. Yes.

Q. In what capacity was hie employed hy yon? When I say yen 1
mean you on behaîf of the Syndîcate?-A. 1 think lie mighit have heen
described as a general legal adviscr. H1e advised net enly in respect of
the preliminary proceedings but iii respect te corporation matters and in
respect to the power development, and in respect te the commercial and
financial as well as in respe4ý te legal matters.

Q. Was hie adviser with respect te political persons?-A. Yes, we
respected hi-, advice in that regard.

Q. Shortly put, did voit or Mr. Sweezev have much knowledge of
Ottawa affairs at the time yen began te furthýer your program in Ottawa?

-A. No, 1 say we had practieally ne knowledge.
Q. And on whorn did you rely wîtli respect first say, with respect te

advancing things in the government departments-on whose advice?-A.
Well initially on Winfield Sifton's advice.
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Q. And subsequently I think the first person you employed was Mr.
Ainsîje Greene of Ottawa?-A. 1 can't remember just in what order we
employed.

Q. Did you employ Mr. Ainsîje Greene, Colonel Thompýson and Mr.
Pugsley?-. Oh, yes.

Q. And on wbose advice were those gentlemen einployed?-A. On
Mr. Sifton's advice.

Q. Is that aIl they were to do-describe the application? Generally
what wvas their business?-A. I cannot go further than that. I think they
were charged with the creation of a receptive atmospbere so that the com-
pany's application might be favourably received.

Q. Receptive atmospbiere jr wrhorn?-~A. In ail those wxho mighit be
concerned or have an opinion about it.

Q. Who were you applying to?-A. We were applying to the Gov-
ernor in Council.

Q. Is the creation of this receptive atrnospherc in that body what
yoti were secking?-A. 1 think I migbt hetter describe it if I were to say
that their primary charge was, in a sense to prevent our opponents from
creating an unfavourable atmosphere-a matter of counterbalancing the
very steady and persistent propaganda against the enterprise.

Q. Witb whom?-A. With the departmental officiais, with members
of parliament, with members of the government, with the civil service gen-
erally. You must remember that at that time it was by no means decided
whether or not the power rights were owned by the province or owned
by the Dominion."

Senator McDougald makes an explanation of the bill rcndercd by' him to
the Beauharnois Company showing the payment of the expenses of the Righit
Honourable M1vacKenzie King at the Hotel Bermudian on pages B178-180: bis
answer to thi,, was, as is \vell known, that he was a close personal friend of the
then Prime Minister.

*Senator McDougald hiad bis pcrsonal counsel paid by cheque of the Beau-
harnois Company in the stim of $7,500 for attending on bis bebaif bcfore the
Committee of the House of Commons, and his own expenses in the sum of
Four Hundred and eighty seven dollars during the period that that Committee
sat. It is notable that at that time Senator McDougald was in Ottawa
attcnding the Senate of Canada. His answers on pages B181 and 182 as to
why Mr. Starr's accounit should be paid by the Company and in what capacity
Mr. Starr was appearing, may perbaps be taken as a general comment of bis
lack of frankness in connection witb the wbole matter of inquiry, because the
record of the Commons Committee, particularly the statements of M\r. Starr
as in what capacity be was appearing; the statement made to the Senate by
Senatur McDougald as to refusîng to appear before the Commons Committee,
are cloquent and conclusive of the fact that Mr. Starr was appearing for him
in bis personal capacity and not as chairman of the Beaubarnois Power Cor-
poration.

In conclusion, Senator McDougald made a private gain of $451,975 and
168,000 class "A" shares fromn tbe Beaubarnois enterprise, ahl obtagined from
public subseription from the people of Canada; wbile he was a Senator of
Canada, in duty and honour bound to proteet the interests of the people of
Canada. (Pages B182-185.) The fact that he xvas thus prominent and
a close friend and adherent of the Governnment of the day tbrows some lieht
on his statement on page B184 when lie took "A political gamble." Again
it should be emphasized that be did alI of these things believing, at least, that
the propcrty from wbich he made bis monev migbt bave been the propcrty of
the Dominion of Canada, as evidenced by bis application with Henry through
the Sterling Industrial Corporation for that property and knowing, at any
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rate, full weli that even though the property was that of the Province of
Quebec, ià couid not be used without the consent of the Governor Generai in
Council of the Dominion of Canada, and that he was at ail times aware that
when the Order in Council, P.C. 422 was passed bis partner in Sterling Indus-
trial Corporation, Hlenry, was the Deputy Minister of Raiiways and Canais.
the approvai of which Department was necessary in order that P.C. 422 sbouId
be passed.

Senator Andrew Haydon

Senator Haydon is a member of the legai firm of llaydon & Ebbs. His
first connection with development in the Soulanges section appears to have
corne upon his being approacbed in 1924 by Mr. Henry with a view to the
incorporation of a company whose purpose was to apy to the Dominion
Government for the diversion of water from the St. Lawrence river for the
deveiopment of power on the south sîde of that river. He bnci known Senator
MeDougaci for severai years prior to this time (B190).

He liad discusseci power projeots withi him previously in 1922 or 1923 and in
1924 incorporateci for him the Carillon Industrini Corporation and bnci lodged
applications for the development of power with thc dcpartments of the Dom-
inion Government (B191).

The flrst actual connection of Senator Haydon's firm with the present
Benuhlarnois project appears to have been in the fal of 1928; thc first entry
in the accounit of Exhibît 88 being on the 3Oth day of September of thnt year.
The evidence in respct to the matter is found at A727 and is hereafter quotei:-

By Mr. White:
Q. You are nlready sworn, Mr. Sweezey?-A. Yes.
Q. You bave heard the evidence of the lnst xitness?ý-A. I bieard

part of it, but not entirely.
The witness referreci to is Mr. Ebbs of the Haydon firm.

Q. H1e says that by prearrangement bis firm receiveci a cheque for
$50,00O for legal services in connection with the Benuliarnoîs Power Syn-
dicate, andi that you made the arrangement to settie that amount with n
member of bis firm?-A. Yes.

Q. Is that correct? A. That is correct. I want to explaîn-
Q. Perhnps you will let me conduet tIe examination. Withi wbat

member of the firm was tbe arrangement made?-A. Mr. McGiverin.
Q. What was tIc arrangement?-A. The arrangement xvas the result

of much discussion. First I went to sec Senator Haydon but bie wvns not
in, andi I saw Mr. McGiverin. I asked to have bis firm retaineci as my
counsei andi guide in Ottawa in our efforts to have our plans approveci.
Hie heard my story about what we were aiiîîig at and explaineci tbat it
would be probnbiy impossible for him to net for us because hie wvns already
under retainer from somebudy eisc wbose interest lie thought wouid clasîi
with ours, but as that 'retainer endeci soon hie would know in a givea time,
wbich wns a matter of a f ew wecks, as I recal] it, wliether or not lie
could net for us.

Q. Did be tell you wbo?-A. No; I only bi mv suspicion as to
wbo it was.

Q. Steriing?-A. No. I understnnd it was the Shawinigan Com-
pany.

By the Chairman:
Q. Did you know anything of the Sterling at this time?-A. No.

If I bnci, it dici not mean anytbing bo me.
Q. You dici not know nnytbing of McDougnid's interest in Sterling?

-A. In 1928, no.
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Q. Yes?-A. Then when 1 saw hlm again lie had-apparently the
other retainer had worked its time out and hie was free to act for us, and
then 1 entered into a discussion upon the ternis upon which hie would
represent us, and hie asked a retainer that I thought was mucli too rnuch,
particularly as we were not sure of our ground up to that tirne. He asked
a retainer of so rnuch a year, whieh, as 1 remember it, was in excess of
$30,000.

Q. A year?-A. Yes. So I thought it was too much; but after quite
a lot of discussion, I said that if our efforts were successful and the coin-
pany were launched and going, it would not be so bad to pay that much,
but if we did not succeed and I had to take it out of the pockets of a few
members of the syndicate, it was difficult. However, by a compromise I
agreed that if the thing got through I would much prefer to pay on that
basis; if it went through I would pay him $50,O00,, and a retainer for
three years at $15,000. To me it looked mucli easier to do so on the event
of success than to do it regardless of the time and conditions we then
f aced.

Q. It always makes the lawyers work harder?-A. It is human nature
to work harder at a price.

By the Chciian:
Q. In the event of failure, what was going to happen?-A. Well, hie

would have bis expenses. At least I presumed that lie would have to
have bis expenses. I did not inake-

Q. You did not make any provision?-A. No. 1 was sure that lie
would charge us something for it.

By Mr. Lennox:
Q. When were you to pay the $50,OO?-A. I arn not verv clear just

on how definite it was, but it was to be done at the time when everv-
thing would be approved lu the w ay of getting what was nccccary under
the Navigable Waters Protection Act.

See also page A729 as f olows:-
Q. And when you employed Senator Haydoa and agreed to pay him

$50,00O that fee was contingent on the Order la Council passing?-
A. Yes.

The voucher itself, Exhibit No. 88, shows the payment of this arnount by
cheque of the Marquette Investment Corporation (whîch was the disbursing
conccrn of the Beauharnois Company), of the l7th October, 1929. There is no
accouint rendered and there are no details whatever filled in, in the voucher.

Mr. Sweezey's explanation of this is contaîaed on page A279. The only
answer to these statements of Mr. Sweezey is contaiued lu the examination of
Senator Haydon lu response to his counsel, beginning at B188, wherein lie d'enies
that the retainer for his firm had anythiug to do with the passing of the Order
in Council, and that it was, lu fact, given for a gatheriug together of the various
loose ends and putting thîs in the formi of a financial company, which later
becarne the Beauharnois Power Corporation (B19OY. He also states that thé
.$50,0O0 fee was arranged after discussion between himself, Mr. McGiverin, lis
late partuer, aud Senator McDougald. The evidence with respect to this is ou
page B239, from which the followiug is quoted:-

By Mr. MI/ann:
Q. What were the circumstances of that retainer, Senator Haydon?

How did it corne about?-A. Well, Sweczey says that lie-
Q. I do not want that?-A. That lie talked to Mr. McGiverin lu the

fail of 1928. If lie did 1 bave no personal knowledge of it. I was awav
during a great deal of the f ail of 1928.
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Q. Let me interrupt you, Senator Haydon: I want your answer, not
Mr. Sweezey's; do you know how that retainer came about-the circum-
stances of that $50,00O retainer?-A. It just was a general dlean-up
for everything done.

Q. A general clean-up for everything done?-A. As f ar as I know,
and to be done.

Q. But who arranged the value of the services done? Did you or
your partner, the Hon. Mr. McGiverin?-A. I suppose he did most of it.

Q. ]Yid you discuss with your partner?-A. Yes, I think I did.
Q. And did you j ointly come to the conclusion that $50,000 was-.

-A. Yes, I remember his distinctly saying that it would be satisfactory
that they would pay.

Q. Who suggested $50,OO?-A. I think it was suggested-as f ar as
I know personally it was suggested by Senator McDougald. As f ar as
what Mr. McGiverin did, 1 think-I don't know-I know that it was
his view, McGiverin's view, but what they did among themselves, talking
and so on when 1 was absent, I simply don't know.

Q. So that before that amount was paid, in concert with yourself,
Senator McDougald and Mr. McGiverin, this amount of $50,000 was
arrived at as bcing a fair amount for the services rendered; how long
before it was actually paid?-A. Oh, perhaps a year.

Q. Perhaps a year before?-A. A number of months. As far as I
know it was worked out with reference to the completion of a final
company which should gather in the Beauharnois situation, which Com-
pany did become the Beauharnois Power Corporation.

Q. It was a generous offer by somebody; is that what 1 am entitled
to say to you?-A. Well it was a proposaI, as far as 1 can remember, to
dlean up what had been done, and go on and dlean up what was neces-
sary stili to do, in view of the need for completing a company in this
concern which should be a financial company of that undertaking-
just one of the many companies concerned with which we had nothing
to do.

Q. And, may I take it, that was with a view of vesting in that dom-
pany some substantial rights to carry on its projects?-A. Oh, it would
have to be a company that would gather in ahl the rights some day
otherwise it would not be any good.

Q. And it was in that view that you were retained to the extent of
$50,000, namely, the gathering in of aIl rights?-A. No.

Q. What was it you were retained for?-A. I have already told you,
for doing a lot of things that we had already done for a number of years,
and things to be done; what they were was perfectly indefinite, or fairly
indefinite, as to time.

Not one bit of work had been donc for Bcauharnois prior to the arrange-
ment for the retainer.

In addition to the $ff0,000, an arrangement was made for the payment of
a retainer to the MeGiverin, Haydon firm of $15,000 a year, payable in the
amount of $7,500 each half-yearly, which cheques are Exhibits in the present
case. Vouchers show these $7,500 payments clearly to be semi-annual payments
of this sum. of $15.000 over a three year period. The arrangement, therefore,
which, as the evidence clear]y discloses, was arrived at in the faîl of 1928,
was that the firm. of MeGiverîn, Haydon & Ebbs should be paid a yearly sum of
$15,000 for a period of three years, and a contingent retainer of $W0,000 upon
the passing of an Order in Council .which subsequently becamo P.C. 422.

48M6-21
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The agreement to pay these large sums of money necessarily leads, there-
fore, to an examination of work done by that firm. for Beauharnois Syndicate,
and laVer the Beauharnois Company. To this end the accounts of McGiverin,
Haydon & Ebbs have been filed as Exhibits 88, 143, 144 and 151, which speak
very eloquently for themselves.

Exhibit No. 88 is an account for dishursements only of J. P.' Ebbs of that
firm for his expenses to and from Montreal, where, as the evidence shows, he
attended ail of the meetings of the Synýdicate Managers from the time lie took
over the Moyer interests on hehaif of Senator McDougald, namely, on the second
day of October, 1928. It is quite conceivable that the Beauliarnois Company
should pay the expenses of its Syndicate Manager to and from the place of
meeting, and this is probably the reason that only disburseinents are charged to
Beauliarnois in this connection. However, such charges as would be made for
these services by the firm, of McGiverin, llaydon & Ebbs would in any eveni
be made direct to Senator McDougald, as, of course, Ebbs was acting merely
as his nominee. This account runs from. September 30, 1928, Vo the end of
September in 1929, and it sliould be said in fairness that while it includes the
dishursements of Mr. Ebbs attending many meetings, it does includ'e teleplione
and telegraph charges and an odd trip to Toronto, which may be saîd to be in
the course of legal duties carried out for the Beauhiarnois Syndicate.

A perusal of the files ýsuhmitted hy Mr. Ebbs, Exhibits 152, 153 and 154,
indicates clearly that aside from the services rendered by Mr. Ebbs in connec-
tion witli the incorporation and organization of the Beauharnais Power Corpora-
tion, littie or nothing in tlie way of legal services were rendered by this firm to
the Beau-harnois Syndicate or Company and Iliat the sum of $7,500 was thec first
payment madc to this firm on the 4tli day of Octoher, 1928, whicli fixes definitely
tlie arrangement made by Mr. Sweezey witli this firm.

Exhibit No. 152 deals solely with Beauharnois and according Vo the evidence
of Mr. Eblis (B. 263) represents the legal work donc for Beauharnis:-

Q. But this Exhihit 144, you will observe, represents legal work done
for Beauliarnois?-A. Yes.

Q. So that the Beauharnois account and Vlie Beauhiarnois file refiect
the work whicli was done by your firm for that concern?-A. I think that
is riglit.

Tt short, the sum of $5,OO0 would be the most generous amount that one could
imagine for the services performed, bearing in mind that in connection witli the
incorporation of the Beauhiarnois Power Corporation itself, as is clearly- revealed
by the file, the major portion of the work, including preparation of documents,
was donc *by a firm of lawyers in Montreal, Meredithi, Holden, Heward and
Holden. This, shortly, leaves the position that Beauharnois had contracted to
pay to the firmn of MýcGiverin, Haydon and Ebhs tlie sumn of $50,000 definitely
contingent on the passing of an Order in Council, and the sumn of $45,O0O in
sums of $15,00O ecd over a period of three years, which lias now elapsed, witli
the comparatively very small legal services rendered therefor.

Tt is a peculiar circumstance tliat matters affecting Carillon, Sterling and
Beauharnois, as shown hy Exhibits 143, 144 and 151, were ail carried by the
firm of McGiverin, Haydon and IEbbs in one continuous account and cai set
of entries lias references in it to the others. Tic only explanation. we have of
this is contained in the evidence of Miss Lyla Brennan, from which evidence
the following is quoted:-

.Q. Now, if you will look at these, Miss Brennan, you will observe
that in so f ar as your office is concerned, tbey ail seem to have been
treated as one account. For example, if you will take exhibit 143, wliich
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is the Sterling Industrial Corporation, you wîll observe a balance of
$660.53, which is simply carried forward into the Beauharnois account?-
A. Yes.

Q.You did the bookkeeping, I believe?-A. No, sir, 1 did not.
Q.Well, you succeeded as the book-keeper?-A. I have only been

doing the bookkeeping since last June.
Q.But probably you can tell me the objeet of the accounits being

carried that way?-A. I arn afraid I cannot. I d-id not know why they
were carried.

Q.You say you did not keep the books?-A. No.
Q.Do you know of anyone available to-day who can tell me why the

Sterling account was timply carried on to the Beauharnois account?-A.
I may say that had I been doing the books I might have probably done
the same thing, for the reason that the Sterling Industrial account was
for Dr. McDougald, and with regard to the Beauharnois account, or what
we called the Beauharnois account, in 1928, in the faîl cf 1928, when Mr.
Ebbs first began making visits to Montreal, he was represent-ing Dr.
McDougald and for that reason they probably were looked upon, both
of them, as belonging to Dr. McDougald.

Q. And then you will observe the Carillon account also refers to the
Sterling account?-A. Yes.

Q. And probably the same answer would be truc with respect to
that?-A. In s0 far as I know.

By Hon. Mr. Copp:
Q.You presuine that is, truc? You do not know?-A. I presume

that to be truc.
Q. You do not know personally anything about it?-A. I did not

keep the books.
By Mr. Smith:

Q.You did not actually keep the books?-A. No.
QAnd you do not know who did?-A. I know Miss Fraser kept

the books.
Q. Is she still here?-A. Yes. I have not seen ber lately but she is

a resident of Ottawa.
By Mr. Robertson:

Q.Miss Fraser is no longer with your firm?-A. No.
Q.I understand.

Mr. SMITH: Will you excuse me a second please?
By Mr. Smith:

Q. Mr. Mann suggests you were in the office at that time?-A. Yes.
Mr. ROBERTSON: That is what I was going to ask.
Mr. SMITH: iPerhaps I can help you again.

By Mr. Smnith:
Q.Under whose directions were those entries made?-A. Miss Fraser

was with the firm twenty-five years and I do not think anybody directed
ber. She was entirely trusted and I think she put them in of her own
accord.

Q.She did net carry on the whole legal practice in the office?-A. No.
Q.So that when a member of the firm. had certain transactions, he

would naturally instruet the book-keeper when an entry was necessary?-
A. When an entry became necessary the entry was made by the stenog-
rapher who did the work for the member of the firm.

Q.By way of a daily blotter?-A. Yes.
Q.And these entries arose from those hlotters?-A. Yes.
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CAmpAiGN FUNDS

Next in order the campaign contributions should be considered. These sums
paid to Senator Haydon, according to his own story, is revealed in his opening
statement at page B189 and of his elaboration of that statement at B244,
amounted to between $700,000 and $M0,000. These payments were made in
varying sums shortly priýor to the election of 1930. Mr. Sweezey's statement, of
these eampaign contributions is contained in the evidence before the Senate
Committee beginning on page B49. Mr. Sweezey's answers on page B50 are
of some importance, from which the following are quoted:

Q. Perhaps Mr. Griffith knows more about that aspect of it than
you do?-A. He may be more familiar with it than I amn.

Q. Do you think he is much?-A. 1 Vhink he is, but I don't think
he has kept a record of it.

Q. No. I can quite understand that.-Andl you have none-?-A.
No. It is not a thing one is, well, just proud of-much.

Q. And I take it Mr. Griffith was prohably of a like mmnd. But,
can you fix the time any more definitely, that is to say, extending over
a few weeks prior Vo the Dominion election of 1930-?-A. No, I cannot
be more aocurate than that because I know that it was probably in the
laVe spring, beginning in the laVe spring, and that may be May or June.
I don't think there was much paid until June.

Q. Whom did you first see in connection with the payments?-A.
Senator Haydon.

Q. Where did you sce him?-A. I don't recail just where, but he told
me an clection was coming on and, of course, we were regarded as prob-
ably good subsicribers; and froni time Vo time more requesits came in and
as they hpeame more urgent T hecame more alarined, but paid what 1
could and then stopped.

Q. Yes. From whom did these requests continue Vo come?-A. From
Senator Haydon as the trustee or collector for the fund of the Liberal
Party.

Q. And, as you say, you raised what money you could, in the aggre-
gate you raised between $600,000 and $700,000. When you could raise
no more you stopped-týhat is what you Vold me just now?-A. Yes, when
elections were on, and I could not raise any more jusit then. I don't
know if they wanted any more, but I na quite sure it would have been
accepted if I could have produced it.

Q. 1 amn sure that would be quite true of any election, or of any
party, or of any lawyer for that matter. Coming baek Vo it, you have noV
told me when you had your first conversation with Senator Haydon, or
what it was. I jusV want Vo make it clear before I leave iV; that you
have told nme ail you remember of that conversation which Vook place on
that first oceasion?-A. I think it worked up gradually. I do noV think
he demanded ail that money ail at once or I miglit have been frightened.

Q. I arn very anxious noV, Vo lead you, particularly in a matter of
this sort. Do you recollect anything further of that first conversation?-
A. No, I do not even recollect a specific first conversation. I do noV know
juBt when the Vhing emerged from its hazy state into one of definite pro-
duction of funds.

Q. Then you had further conveirsations, I gather, with Senator
Haydon?-A. Yes, from time Vo time.
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Mr. Sweezey also on page B117 makes the following answers:-

Q. 1 think I should ask you this; there has been some question as to
fýunds coming f rom the corporation and funds coming from yourself,
would you have made those donations, some large in amounts, were it not
that you were promoter of Beauharnois?-A. Most unlikely.

Q. Is that ail you have got to say about it?-A. Well, I think it is
obvious that I would not have. I might have been generous but not to
that extent.

The obvious conclusion to be drawn from these tremendous contributions
made to Senator Haydon, on his request, and the fees paid to bis office, whicb
are ail out of line in respect to services rendered therefor, particularly the large
fee of $50,000 contingent on the passing of Order in Council 422, justify in toto
the unanimous flnding of the Cornmittee of the flouse of Commons with respect
to Senator Haydon. It must be borne in mind that Sweezey contemplating the
user of the full flow of the St. Lawrence River was far from flnished seeking
favours from the Dominion Government.

Senator Haydon was not examined before the Committee off the flouse of
Commons, and in response to questions asked by his Counsel before this Com-
mittee read written replies from. a document which contained both questions and
written replies. The denial of the contingent fee is in general terms, but the
history of the work donc by bis firm. and the accounts flled by it for the work
done, drive one to the irresistible conclusion that Sweezey told the plain truth in
respect to this transaction, and that Senator Haydon's flrmn was paid this sumo of
$50,000 and received the large retainer over the three year' period which it did,
for favours to be done other than legal services and this connection witb the
later payments by Sweezey in 1930 of sueh tremendous sums of money justify
fully the statement of the Committee of the flouse of Commons that bis actions
cannot be, defended and should be strongly condemned. It is not too much to
say that the only logical conclusion that one can corne to, is, having regard to
the very high place which Senator llaydon held in the Liberal Party, that the
influence which he necessarily must have had with the Government of the day
was what was sought to be purchased.

There are two further matters on which Counsel feel it their duty to com-
ment.

The flrst is what is known as the Ferguson incident. It will be remembered
that Senator Havdon stated very empbatically and with much heat that in a
conversation with Sweezey, referring to the contract between Beauharnois and
the Ontario flydro-Electric Power Commission, that Sweezey had said "Howard
Ferguson won't'let it be signed until he gets $200,000" (B199). It is perbaps
sufficient to point out that Mr. Sweezey categorically denies this statement,
pointing out that he only met Mr. Fergusoii twice in bis life and giving details
of these two meetings (B217). Mr. Ferguson also at bis own expense and at the
very flrst opportunity came ail the way from London, England, to be heard, and
he categorîcally denied that he bad ever had any such conversation with Mr.
Sweezey or with anybody else with respect to this or any other Èum, and bis
recollection of the two meetings which they hiad, corresponds witb that of Mr.
Sweezey.

There is a further matter which Counsel suggests deserves comment. At
the beginning of the inquiry Mr. Robertson, K.C., Counsel for Senator IHaydon,
advised the Comînittee that bis client wisbed to give evidence. Hie also said
that bis client was ill. The Committee complied with bis request and went
on two occasions to Senator Haydon's bouse to take bis evidence, two occasions
being necessary because on the flrst occasion the Committee was advised. by
Senator Haydon's physician that be should not be questioned furtber at that
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time; in fact, everything was done by the Committee ta oblige Senator Haydon
in permitting him to make the fullest statements and explanation which he
or bis Counsel saw fit ta make ta the Committee. In a carefully prepared and
typewritten series of questions and answers bis evidence was opened and, in
these answers hie complained of the hateful publicity of last year and the. very
great wrong which hie said had been donc hlm (B 190). Hie was examined by
Counsel for the Committee, and his wliole attitude was anything but frank.
His answers, an the few occasions that hie did make his answers responsive ta
the questions asked him, were delivered in a very resentful manner, witli mucli
heat and with a disrespect amounting at times ta abuse of Counsel.

The above two incidents arc brought to the attention of the Comittee in
order that they mav be of some assistance in forming a judgment as between
Senator Haydon and those witnesses who lie has attempted ta contradiet.

SENATOR DoNAT RiAYMOND

The report of the Commons Cornmittce in respect ta Senator Raymond is
found on Roman numeral1 page A26, and so f ar as it purports ta deal with f acts,
is not in dispute by anyone.

Senator Raymond in answer to the findings of the Commons Committee;
namely,

(a) That he should have been more frank with thie Committee and disclosed
the $200,000 campaign contribution from Sweezey;

(b) That it was hardly conceivable that Swcczey should pay this large sum
of money over to Raymond iinless hie was satisfied that the Senator's influence
had been or would lie worth the money;

(c) That it was remarkable that Senator Raymond did not insist upon mak-
ing somne explanation of bis position in this regard in view of the evidence.

Hie replies ta thîs before the Senate Committee by reading under
oath, a written statement wherein lie explained that at the time lie gave
bis evidence before the Commons Committee there had been no mention of
campaign funds and lie was not asked anything about eampaign funds; that
if hie had been sa asked lie would have stated that during the electoral campaign
of 1930 lie was acting as trustee for the f unds of thle Liberal Party and in tliat
quality only liad receîved from Mr. Sweezey, of bis own motion, the sum whicli
Sweezey subsequently mentioned in bis statement ta the Commons Committee;
that in'due course lie turned ahl of this money over ta, the treasurer of this
party; that lie subsequently receivcd a telegram from the Committee askinz bis
presence in Ottawa; that lie was informed by Mr. Mackenzie, wha said lie liad
conferred wi-th the Chairman, the Hanourable Mr. G~ordon, tliat Senator Ray-
mond would not further lie required; that lie agatin informed Mr. Mackenzie that
lie would lie subjeet ta the caîl of the Committee at any time and could lie in
Ottawa at three liaurs' notice (Pages B33-34-35).

It is not deemed necessary here ta set out the early histary of Senatot
Raymond's conneetion witli the Beauharnais projeet, as that is very cleai'ly donc
at Roman numeral Page A26 liereinliefore referred ta.

"(1) Senator Raymond was appointed ta the Senate an the 2Otli Decem-
ber, 1926. He, voluntarily, after the permission af the Senate had been granted,
appeared. before the Cominittee on the afternoon of the l6tli July, 1931, and
stated that lie liad subseribed an the lst April, 1927, at tlie suggestion of Honour-
able Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Frank P. Jones, for 800 units of the Beaulianois
Syndicate at a price of $30,000, which hie paid. These became 1,600 units in tlie
second syndicate and as was bis riglit, lie subserîbed for 1,600 furtlier units, in
the naine of J. R. Lefebivre, and made bis holdings 3,200 units. On the whole
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transaction he realized as of the 17th December, 1929, $529,600 profit and
14,040 shares of Class A stock of the Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited.
Senator Raymond sold all his originally acquired units at the same time that
Mr. Frank P. Jones sold his at $550 per unit, and later Senator Raymond bought
from W. G. Mitchell 350 units and from R. T. Fuller one unit in the Beauharnois
Power Syndicate and he held these at the dissolution of the Syndicate on the
17th December, 1929. His total profit was as above mentioned. He states that
neither at Quebec nor at Ottawa did he exert or attempt any political influence
on behalf of the Beauharnois applications. His evidence is that he "did nothing

to push the deal." On page A794 of the evidence, Senator Raymond was asked:-

Q. Then are we to understand you to say, that having this interest
in this project and knowing that there was a very strong opposition and
a big fight being put up, you never turned a hand to help it at all?-A. I
do not know if there was anything in my power to do towards helping it.

Q. Well, you could help?-A. I thought the only help that I could
give was to put my money in.

Q. I may take it then, from what you say, that we have your un-
equivocal statement that at no time did you attempt to exert your personal
influence on behalf of this project?-A. At no time.

"(2) At the conclusion of his evidence one of the members of the Committee
expressed the view that he ought to be commended for his frankness in giving
his evidence. It was, however, later disclosed in evidence that according to the
bill of Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud'homme, counsel for the Beauharnois Syndi-
cate (Exhibit No. 114) from September 10, 1927, to May 23, 1928, there appear
some sixteen entries charging for interviews with and telephones to and from
Senator Raymond. An interview appears to have taken place on one occasion
with Honourable Mr. Mitchell and on another occasion in Ottawa with Senator
McDougald.

Senator Raymond was examined (pages B129 to 138 inclusive), and recalled
(page B147).

There is no doubt that Senator Raymond knew that the grant to the

Beauharnois Company from the Province of Quebec was valueless without the

approval of the.Dominion Government (B130).

Q. But you knew the grant from Quebec was valueless without the
approval of the Dominion Government?-A. Exactly.

Q. And with that knowledge you saw fit to invest $190,000, or to
commit yourself to invest $190,000 with that knowledge at that time?-
A. Exactly.

Senator Raymond also was not concerned as to the ownership of the power
rights at the time he made his purchase (B131).

Q. And you have since learned, of course, that the Robert rights
were pre-Confederation rights; then were you concerned at the time about
the ownership of the rights between the province and the Dominion?-
A. I was not.

In fairness to Senator Raymond it should be pointed out that he had been
advised by Mr. Geoffrion that the rights to the power were vested in the province
of Quebec.

Q. 1Now, I want to know if you had any view as to who had the
control of this hydraulic power-the province or the Dominion of Canada?
-A. I was always under the impression that it was Quebec, and I don't
know at what stage, but he told me, "All we need to take from Ottawa is
whether it is for navigation or not, and our engineer says no."
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Q. And who did you consuit to form an opinion that this was the
property of the province of Quebec?-A. Our solicitor.

Q. Who was tbat?-A. Mr. Geoffrion.
Q. And you know of references made to the Suprerne Court of

Canada, I suppose, in respect of that?--A. Yes.
Q. I won't ask you what Mr. Geoffrion told you about that-T think

you told us that the other day-but you were one of those persons who
frorn the first were under the impression that those riglits belonged to
the province?-A. Exactly.

Q. You werc also aware that navigation belonged exclusively to the
Dominion?-A. Yes.

Q. Or did you worry about it? Did you think about it?-A. No.
Q. Then I want to know if at the time you made this subscription,

you were concerned about who owned the water rights at that time?-
A. I understood that they bad bouglit the Robert riglits.

Q. And it was on the Robert riglits, then, whatever tliey were, that
moved you to subscribe to this concern?-A. Exactly.

Mr. Jones liad repeatedly asked Senator Raymnond if he could not do some-
thing to get some action, obviously in reference to the Dominion Order-in-
Council (B 132).

Q. Mr. Joncs lias said that he saw you repeatedly in Ottawa in
1928, and asked you-

Mr. VIEN: I think my learned friend will find that Mr. Jones bas
not stated definitely that he lias seen the senator in Ottawa. He stated
that lie had seen the senator, but I do not believe it was in Ottawa.

The CHAIRMAN: T do not think, Mr. Vien, really that you need inter-
rupt him. He is treating the witness vcry f airly.

Mr. VIEN: Mr. Chairinan, 1 arn sure that I hope I arn not interrupt-
ing as meaning that Mr. Smith is not treating the witness very fairly;
lie is, I am convinccd, but 1 think it is better to correct some inaccuracies
of fact wliich are unintentional than to let those go on record incorrectly,
for the greater comprehension of the record. I did not want to interfere
unduly.

Mr. SMITH: I wilI leave out tlie word Ottawa; it is immaterial to
me; Mr. Jones said this, on page A39 1-ie had been asked as to what lie
was doing to further bis project, then tlie word "assisted> was used, and
counsel for tlie Committee said this . "It is a common Englisli word," and
Jones replied, "Well, my answer is tliat anybody wlio took an interest
in it and who listened and got bis view as ta who owned the water, gave
us tlieir opinions by way of assistance, otlierwise direct assistance, nobody
tliat I know of." Tlien lie says, "I certainlv asked Senator Raymond
over and over again if lie could not do sometlhing to get some action."

By Mr. Smith:
Q. iNow, did lie do that ?
Mr. VIEN: Will you finish the tliing?
Mr. SMITH (reading): "-Now, I think I should perliaps mention I

tliought that perbaps tlie Premier wvas waiting for this assistance of the
reference case to the Supreme Court."

Tlie WITNESS: Mr. Jones asked me, but tlie fact tliat lie said over
and over again means tliat I liad not done very mucli in tlie matter of
belping him.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. But did Mr. Jones over and over again ask if you could not get

some action-and of course that action was at Ottawa at tliat time,
wasn't it?-A. 1 couldn't say.
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Q. But you are sure of that-Jones was here in 1928 very often?
-A. No doubt he did ask me, but I have flot done anything.

Q. You were in the Syndicate?-A. I could not do anything. I arn
not an engineer, and if it is a matter of engineering concern, whether it
will interfere with navigation or not-

Q. Senator Raymond, you are not suggesting for a moment that
Mr. Jones would be asking a request of you as an engineer to be doing
something, because you are not an engineer, and he knew that; no doubt
about that?-A. No doubt about that.

Q. So I think we can eliminate any other such request of Jones to
you; then what assistance was he asking you for?-A. I don't know
that he mentioned anything emphatically.

Q. He says he saw you over and over again-"-ýI certainly asked
Senator Raymond over and over again if he could not do somcthing to
get some action." Now, what were those conversations?-A. H1e asked
me if I could do something and I told him no-I presume so.

Q. Then he asked you again if you could do something, and you
told him no?-A. I again told him no.

Q. He was very persistent, apparently?-A. Yes, and I was the same,
persistent in saying I could not do anything.

Q. You constantly, through your associate, Mr. Jones, said no; did
you give him any reason?-A. No.

Q. H1e is an able business man, is he not Mr. Raymond?-A. Yes.
Hon. Mr. CANN.oN: Do you know him personally?
Mr. SMITH. No, I do not know him, but I understand he is able

and persistent.
Mr. M.ÀN.N: And Scotch.

By Mr. Smith:
Q. Perhaps the measure of bis persistence and intelligence is that

he continued to ask you to do something, and you merely said no?-
A. I could not do anything.

Q. Cannot you remember any more of bis conversations?-A. No.
Q. You remember nothing more than that; if you could not assist

on the engineering side, on what side might you have been of assistance?
-A. I don't know of any.

Q. What Government was in power at that time?-A. Liberal.
Q. That would be the late Government of Right H-on. Mackenzie

King; that was the Government that was in power at that time?-A.
Yes.

Q. And I suppose with some pride you can say you belong to the
same political persuasion?-A. I do.

Q. And, being of that persuasion, can you suggest to me that you
would have no influence here in the Governmcnt?-A. I don't think I had,
I arn sure I had none.

Q. You must have had some before you were summoned, but we
wiIl not go into that; but surely you would have some influence in Ottawa,
wouldn't ýrou?-A. None whatever. If I did I neyer tried to use it.

Q. That may be better, but surely you had some?-A. I don't know
that I had. I neyer tried it.

Q. Jones thought you had some?-A. H1e might.
Q. 11e did, didn't he? Otherwise why would he be asking you those

foolish questions?-A. 11e might.

From a perusal of the above evidence it is clear that Mr. Jones, whern
evidence discloses te be an able man of business, repeatedly saw Senator Ray-
mond with a view to procuring the passing of the Order in Ceuncil in Ottawa.
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Certainly hie was not discussing engineering problems with him. The explana-
tion of Senator Raymond of these conversations and of his replies ta Mr. Jones
by merely saying no, is, at the very least unsatisfactory.

Senator Raymond seld out to Mr. Sweezey and asseciates in September or
October of 1929 (B137), retaining or re-purchasing 351 part interests in the
second syndicate.

Senator Raymond states generally that hie took no part in the Company
in so f ar as advancing the project was concerned. He certainly was in communi-
cation with the syndicate's solicitor on numerous occasions, as shown in Mr.
Geoffrion's bill. (B 135 and 136).

Q. Now, you had many communications and interviews with Mr.
Geoffrion. I have Exhibit 114 here and I have counted up and find you
had, I thînk, twenty telephones and communications with him-I mean
by telephone or in persan, you understand, in connection with Beau-
harnois, because it is bis bill with respect to Beauharnois. 1 have ne
intention of going inta this in any detail a~t ail. Pýrobably you cannot
remember them; ýone's memory, perhaps, cannot do that. But I suggest
them to you to show that you were taking a very active interest in the
progress of Beauharnois.-A. 1 thînk I have already declared that in
the spring of 1928 1 was not in Canada, but I passed through and natur-
ally 1 would caîl up Mr. Geoffrion to find out as ta progress.

Q. Is that ail? You see, these are again in September, 1927.-A.
I was in Montreal then.

Q. And they carry on through December, three occasions; January,
1928, three occasions; January again, five occaisions; February, two
occasions; April, three occasions; and May, two occasions. Just a
minute; I want to see whcther those interviews were prior te or after
the emphyteutic lease. I understood Mr. Geoffrion ta say that after
that ho had a bill which inrhientpd to him that he had been in communicaý
tion with you. Would that be ýcorrect?-A. Yes.

Q. With respect ta, what?-A. With respect to the financing of the
project.

Q. Did it have anything ta do with the passage of the Order in
Councl?-A. Not at ail.

Q.Nothing at all?-A. No, sir.
Q.Your position then, sir, te make it plain, is that you were simply

taking no interest in that matter at all?-A. None at ahl.
Q. Although it was something in which you had a very, very substan-

tial financial interest?-A. I would not cali it very substanýtial.
Q. You mean comparatively?-A. First $30,000, and then finally

I was $10,000 ta the good. I do not caîl that very substantial.
Q. At one time yau were committed for $190,OO0, which I-f orgive

me-thought was rather substantial. You did have those many dollars
committed ta this enterprise?-A. I was responsible.

Q. And your position is that even though that was sa, you were not
interesting yourself ta have tha>t step taken without which there cauld
be no success?-A. I do nat see what I could do in the matter. And
I was neyer part of the syndicate.

Q. It neyer appeared in your namne, you mean?-A. Na, I mean
I was neyer a director, and I was neyer in the company.

Han. Mr. CANNON: Neyer a manager.

By Mr. Smith:
Q.Yeu were neyer a manager of the syndicate? That is what you

mean?-A. Yes.
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Q. You mean you would not know what to do in order to advance
an Order in Counil?-A. Exactly.

Q. You would probably hire Col. Thompson, Mr. Pugsley and Mr.
Greene?-A. 1 did not know any of those gentlemen cither.

,Q. Before you had subscribed for anything, I observe by Mr. Geoif-
nion's bill he had a number of interviews with you. Your subseription
was about April 1, 1928, your first $30,0O?-A. April 1, 1927.

Q. I think you mean the 27th of Mardi, do you not? The first
syndicate dissolved on the 4th of April.-A. 1928. My first subseription
was on the lst of April, 1927.

Q. So that you had subscribed in April, 1927?-A. Yes.
Q. I want to read you one or two items huom Exhibit 114, page 5.

There is an item of January 23, "telephone to Mr. Sweezey, interview
with Senator Raymond-"ý-A. What year was that?

Q. January, 1928. (Continues readîng): " Interview with Senator
Raymond; further telephone to Mr. Sweezey; a letter received from
Mr. Cannon of the 23rd inst.; telephone from Senator Raymond; inter-
view with Mr. Sweezey; telephone from Hon. Mr. Mitchell; intex view
with him; interview with Senator Raymond; letter reeeived from you
enclosing copy of pleadings in Montreal Trust v. Sweezey." And on
January 25: "Telephone te, and from. the Hon. Mr. Mitchell; telephone
to Senator Raymond; telephone te Mr. Howard." And on the 26th:
" Telephone to Mr. Mitchell; telephone to Senator Raymond; telephone
to Mr. Howard." I have referred to four days in which you were in
constant communication, and I was just wondering if from the readings
cf those te you, you could 'recail the substances of those conversations?
-A. I think I mentioned before in my evidence that I left Montreal on
December 17, 1927. I do net know exactly what date of the month I
came back te attend te my duties in Ottawa, in January, I presume. I
might have been in Montreal for a couple of days, two or three days-
I doubt that I was in Montreal more than that time. I came at the
opening of the Session and I went, back te Florida te attend my f amily,
and I did net return until some time in April. Se it was natural for me
te cail up those gentlemen and find eut what progress had been made as
f ar as our application was concerned.

Q. Then you were taking an interest in the passage of this appli-
cation?-A. Certainly.

Q. And it is only fair te say that you were probably taking a
similar interest in the passage cf the application with the Dominion
Gevernment?-A. Wîth my associates -and ne more, the same in Quebec
as in Ottawa.

Q. That is your position, that you were active, but with your asso-
ciates, and that you did net influence any Cabinet minister?-A. Exactly,
te find eut as te progress.

Q. But what I have in my mind and what I undcrstood you te
frankly admit is this, that you were very much interested in the passage
cf that Order in Council, although anything yeu did was a quite proper
thing te do. That is a summary of your proposition, isn't it?-A. I was
interested in it but I neyer made a move towards it.

Then there is a further bill filed by Mr. Geoffrion as Exhibit No. 131 and
on which Senator Raymend was net examined, as the bill was net at that time
filed, but in it we flnd the following interviews, by telephone or in person, with
Senater Raymond: October 25, 1928; November 6; November 22; December 3;
December 5; December 7; January 10, 1929; January 12, January 21, which
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item may be quoted in full. "Greater part of the day in conference with the
Hon. Mr. Mitchell, the Hon. Mr. Raymond, Messrs. Jones and others. Letter
to the Hon. Mr. King." January 26; January 28; February; this was in attend-
ance at Mr. Raymond's own office. February 23.

Then again there is the further evidence given by Senator Haydon of the
delivery of further campaign funds to Senator Raymond. With respect to the
subsequent bil of Mr. Geoffrion's and the evidence given by Senator Haydon
with respect to delivery of campaign funds to Senator Raymond, Senator Ray-
mond bas as yet not seen fit to give any explanation to the Committee, merely
contenting himself with saying that he did nothing to, influence any person in
the Government with the view to passage of the Order in Council 422.

It follows that the criticism of the Commons Committee with respect to
bis lack of frankness is one which may well be repeated in this inquiry.

H1e stands in the position of having made from bis venture, $529,600 profit
in cash, together with 10,040 Class " A"' shares of the Company (B 137).

While it is true, therefore, that the moneys which Senator Raymond received
did not corne directly from the public, it must have been at ail times obvious to
him that when the part înterests which he sold to Sweezey were, together
with the other part interests, turned over to the Company, which had then
been inýcorporated; namely, September 17, 1929, the same would be paid for
by cash or shares in the Company, the cash for which was provided directly by
public subscription, and the shares of which were open to public subscription.
It will be borne in mind that on the 31st day of October, 1929, at a meeting of
the Company, the agreement for the purchase of the Syndicate by the Cor-
poration was submitted, although this was not carried into effeet until the
following December, and whiet it is borne in mind that Mr. Joncs, followed by
Senator Raymond, sold out their interests in the Syndicate because of a differ-
ence of opinion as to the amount of bonds to be sold the public between himself
on the one hand and Sweezey and Dominion Securities on the other. (See A381).

Going back to the question of the purchaise of part lnterests by Senator
Raymond in the first syndicate, he makes it very clear that it was at the solici-
tation of Mr. Joncs that he entered the syndicate.

Q. What advice did you have to invest ail this very considerable
amount of money?-A. I was asked to join at the begînning by Mr.
Jones, which 1 did at that time, and it was only for $30,000.

While Mr. Jones takes quite the opposite view. (A388).

By the Chairman:
Q. Was Senator Raymond an associate of yours in the syndicate?

-A. I do not know whether he is or not.
Q. Was he?-A. 1 do not know whether he was or not.
Q. In the second syndicate?-A. The second? I do not know. That

is a thing I took no interest whatsoever in. I knew I was in the minority,
and I was depending-

By Mr. White:
Q. Was he a member of the syndicate?-A. I do not know.
Mr. JACOBS: The agreement will show that.
The WITNESS: 1 cannot say. 1 do not know. The agreement will

show that.

By Mr. White:
Q. I was wondering if you had any choice or selection in the matter

of those with whom you were making your hid?-A. Not at ail. I went
into that as I told you, with about twelve and a haîf to fifteen per cent
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interest. 1 neyer had had anything to do with placing the syndicate
stock. They asked me to become president. I became president under
the impression that they would agree with me. I was wrong, and there-
fore 1 had to get out. That is the history.

In accepting from Mr. Sweezey the sum of $200,000 and fromn Senator
Ilaydon a large amount, the same comment as lias been made with, respect ta
Senator Haydon applies to Senator Raymond with equal force.

OTTr&wA, April 9, 1932.

The whole respectfully submitted.

J. A. MANN,
A. L. SMITH,

Counsei for Senate Committee.
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MEMORANDUM ON BEHALF OF
HONOURABLE SENATOR W. L. McDOUGALD

The position of Senator McDougald bas been clearly defined in the sworn
statement made by him to the Honourable the Committee of the Senate on
the 9th of March, 1932. (Record of proceedings, page 138 and following.)
Senator McDougald was closely cross-examined as to every detail of his state-
ment. (Record of proceedings, pps. 148-185). His evidence bas, we submit,
in every way been corroborated by the evidence of other witnesses and the
documents of record. This is in effect as follows:

THE FACOTS

Save for a short interval in the year 1926, Senator McDougald acted as
Chairman of the Board of Harbour Commissioners of Montreal from January,
1922, until October, 1930. On the 7th of May, 1924, he was appointed a member
of the National Advisory Committee in connection with the development of
St. Lawrence Deep Waterways and occupied this position until the work of this
Committee terminated by the filing of its report on the 11th of January, 1928.
In the month of December, 1926, he was sworn as a member of The Senate
of Canada. On the 20th of April, 1928, he was appointed as a member of the
Special Committee of the Senate to enquire into the waterways project, with
which project for many years be had been intimately connected and in which
he bas always been deeply interested.

In the year 1923, or prior to his appointment to the National Advisory
Board and nearly four years prior to his appointment to the Senate, Dr.
McDougald had been ennneeted witb Mr. R. A. C. Henry and had agreed to
finance that gentleman to the extent of $10,000 in regard to possible power
developments. The Sterling Industrial Company Limited was incorporated
on the 5th of July, 1924, certain applications being filed with the Department
of Railways and Canals by that company on the 5th of July, 1924, and with
the Department of Public Works on the 7th of July, 1924. These applications
and the plans filed with them were for the diversion of water from Lake St.
Francis on the south shore of the St. Lawrence and lay dormant until the
year 1928.

It should here be pointed out that the report of the joint board of Engineers
which was adopted by the National Advisory Committee favoured a develop-
ment on the north shore of the St. Lawrence, thus Mr. Henry states at page
94 of the proceedings " I felt that the report, in effect, contemplated a combined
navigation and power development, partly in tbe river and partly on the north
side, and not on the south side as was contemplated in the scheme I was
advancing." On the 11th of January, 1928, this report was concurred in by a
majority of the National Advisory Committee of whom Senator McDougald
was one, he having been appointed to this Committee on the 7th of May, 1924.
In concurring, Senator McDougald gave no consideration whatever to any
possible rights that might have belonged to the Sterling Corporation by reason
of these applications. These rights were limited to the south shore, and it may
here be remarked that they were adversely affected by the report in question as
a development of power on the north shore would necessarily have precluded
any similar development on the south shore.

The first Beauharnois Syndicate had been dissolved on the 4th of April,
1928, and on the 18th of May, 1928, Senator McDougald agreed ta purchase
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the holdings of the late Mt. Winfield Sif ton in the second syndicate, which then
stood in the naine of Mr. Clare Moyer, a barrister of Ottawa. This f act has
been clearly established.

The sale of the Sterling Company, which was effected on the l8th of Decem-
ber, 1928, was concluded when Senator McDougald was in England, thougli
it had previously been considered. It was an entirely f air and open transaction,
agreed to after full discussions in some of which Senator McDougald took part.
The evidence of Mr. Sweezey (Record of proceedings, pages 43-46). Mr. Henry
(page 101 and page 104). Mr. White (Record of Comnions proceedings, pages
559-560) and Mr. Griffith (Record of proceedings, page 81) will corroborate this
statement. At the time of the transfer of the Sterling Comp'any to the second
syndicate, on the l8th of December, 1928, Senator McDougald was very largely
interested iii this syndicate, being theri the owner of 3,200 units. It is absurd
to suggest that holding such an interest hie would willingly be a party to any-
thing detrimental to the success of the enterprise. The sale of the Sterling
assets was made in good faith and in the event of the project not being a
success Mr. Griffith had arranged that those who had put in their money should
in effeet be given a preferential ranking over those who held the Sterling units
(Mr. Sweezey, Record of proceedings, page 45). An examination of the Deed
of Transfer, of the l8th of December, 1928, and of the evidence given before
this Committee by Mr. Griffith will make this fact abundantly clear. The
transfer was submitted to the Syndicate Managers and approved by them.

Senator MeDoilgald's stateinent to the Senate on the l9th of April, 1928
\vas lite' ,aily tiue and correct. At this time hie had no interest w.-hatever in the
Beauharnois Power Project. It was oiily on the l8thi of 1\Ilay, 1928 that hie
acquired the ri,-lits of the late Mr. Winfield Sifton in the Beauharnois Power
Syndicate the Second Sy,'ndicate-. This lias heen conciusivelv established.
ùNor had the Sterling Comnpany itself or its owners at this time the slightest
interest in the Beauharnois Projeet. The sale of the Sterling Company was
executed on the lSth of December, 1928. (Report of Comnons ('ommittee,
page 573.) The charges of "The Globe" in its issue of the l8th of April, 1928
were untrue. The charges of "The Mail and Empire" in its issue of the same
date, with regard to Senator McDougald's motives and conduct as a member
of the Advisory Committee werc aiso unfounded, as lias been above explained.

The statement to the Senate of the 20th of May, 1931, whici hias also
been erîticîsed, was equally correct. Senatoir McDougald's purpose in making
this statement w-as to re-affirmn the correctness of the one previously made by
him on the l9th of Aprîl, 1928, to the effect that at that time hie had no
interest in the Beauharnois Power Company or Syndicate. This hie did and

a~regards that portion of the second statement, in which he declared that
"it was not until six months later, in October, 1928, 1 took an interest in
thc Beauharnois Svndicate," while it is truc tlîat the initial transaction took
place on the l8th of M-\ay, 1W28, it should be remembered that it was only on
or after the 2nd of October, 1928, that the greater portion of his contribution
to the Syndicate was made, that it was only on the 2nd of October, 1928,
that he appoînted bis own personal nominee, Mr. John Ebbs, to represent
him in the matter, and that hie was speaking in May, 1931, of events which
hiad taken place over three years before. There was no possible reason for
him to deceive the Senate or anybody else as regards these dates. Nothing
had occurred betwcen the lStb of MVay, 1928, and the 2nd of October, 1928,
to affect the matter in any wa-y. (Sec evidence of Senator MeDougald Record
of procecdings, p. 172.)

We would here refer the Conimittee to Section 12 of the Report, of the
Commons Committee which is in the following terms:-
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(12) That Senator McDougald was a faétor in the success of this
venture is apparent from the Proceedings of the Special Committee of the
Senate above referred to, of whichi he M'as a member. Lt appears that on
the 3lst of May, 1928, lie was instrumental in having Mr. Henry then
his partner in the Sterling Company, coine before that Committee and
answer certain questions. rhese questions had (see page 215 of the
Proceedings) been prepared beforehand by Senator McDougald and sub-
mitted to Mr. Henry.

In the report of the Proceedings of the Special Committee appointed to
inquire into the devýelopment and improvement of the St. Lawrence River,
Messrs. Harvie, Ferguson and Henry were examnined and at page 141 of the
proceedings Senator McDougald stated:

In ail the deliberations of the National Board, of which I was a
member, 1 think you will agree that it was natural and fitting that I
should confer with the technical staff of the harbour on ail questions
affecting the Harbour of Montreal; and in order to facilitate matters, I
have prepared a series of questions to be asked Mr. Harvie and Mr.
Ferguson. 1 subrnitted the questions to themn and asked them to prepare
replies so that there would be no question about what they would have in
their minds. Then, of course, any member of the Committee may ask
any questions hie sees fit.

Hon. Mr. M RpHiY: Are they techuical men?
Hon. Mr. McDouGALD: Mr. Harvie is General Manager of the Port

of Montreal, and Mr. Ferguson is the Assistant-Manager.
The CHAIRMAN: I think that is very satisfactory.

And later, in regard to the examinations of Mr. Henry, the following
appears:-(Report of Senate Committee, p. 215.)

The CJTAIRMIAN: We have Mr. Henry here. He is the Director of
thc Burcau of Economics of the Canadian National Rai]ways.

Hon. Mr. MCDOUGALD: Before we start Mr. Henry's evidence, I would
just like to, say a word. During the investigations made by the National
Advisory Board I was able, by the courtesy of Sir Henry Thornton, to
go to Mr. Henry at ail times. and hie was in a position to give some very
valuable information and supply very valuable data in regard to, trans-
portation, not only in connection with Railways but in connection with
the Waterways; and I can say here that the information 1 obtained from
him was of great assistance to myseif and other members of the National
Comniittee in arrivîng at some of the conclusions which we reached.
Having that in mind, I think that perhaps you might allow me, as on
the occasion when we had the men from the Harbour of Montreal here,
to prepare some questions. Yesterday I prepared some questions, and
submitted them to Mr. Henry last night, having in mind what you said
yourself, Mr. Chairman, so that hie might be familiar with them, and
so that we might cover the ground quickly.

And later, the Right Honourable Mr. Graham remarks, at page 232 of
the Report, relating to Mr. Henry's evidence:

You and Colonel Dubuc and these other gentlemen have been givin-g
us just the information that we have been after about these things.

In view of the foregoing, we submit that the inferences and suggestions
made in paragraph 12 and following of the Report are entirely unwarranted,
especially bearing in mind the fact that the evidence M-as being given, not
exclusively in connection with any power project, but on the contrary almost
entirely in connection with navigation.
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senator McDougald was only one of the twenty-five members of that
Committee which at the conclusion of its efforts rnerely recoinmended "that
the Senate at the beginning of the next Session of Parliament should consider
the advisability of again appoîntîng the Special Committee to continue its
inquiry,"-a recommendation which was neyer acted upon.

We would also refer to paragraulis 19 and 20 of the Report of the Commons
Committee:-

(19) Further in his speech on the 2Oth May, 1931, Senator Mc-
Dougald said: "I nuighit add that I paid into the Syndicate dollar for
dollar with every other member of it."

(20) As previously pointed out in this Report, Senator McDougald,
Senator Raymond and Mr. Frank Jones, bought their units in the first
Syndicate for many fewer dollars iper share than any other of the mem-
bers, except possibly Mr. Sweezey who got some of his for a consideration
other than cash.

The suggestions of these paragraphs are denied. Senator McDougald
wns neyer a member of the first or original Beauharnois Synrlicate,. this having
been dissolved on the 4th of April, 1928, and bis original investrnent liaving been
made on the lSth of May, 19ý28, when he purchased Mr. Sifton's interests in the
Second Syndicate. This the Committee of the Commons well understood, as
will appear by paragraphs 3, 3a and 4, under the heading of "Corporate Organ-
îzation," which are as follows:-

(3) The units subscribed for in the name of "Le Crédit Général du
Canada" were subscribed and held for Senator Donat Raymond.

(3a)I 1,000 of the units in the name of Newman, Svweezey & Com-
pany Limited, wcre held for Frank P. Jones and 50 for Fred M. Connell.
The Honourable Walter G. Mitchell had a haîf interest in Mr. Jones'
holdings.

(4) The units in the name of L. Clare Moyer are said to have been
subscribed on behaif of the late Winfield Sifton. Senator Wilfrid Me-
Dougald states that on the l8th of May, 1928, he agreed to acquire them,
the transaction being completed about the end of that month.

As Senator McDougald was not connected wîth the first Syndicate and had
paid into the second Syndicate -dollar for dollar with every othier member in it,
the suggestion to the contrary is unfair and improper.

In like manner Senator McDougald resents the statements of paragraph 9,
of the report of the Cornrons Committee, in regard to the transýfer of these
units, this paragraph reading as follows:

(9) In the meantime, however, namely on the 2nd October, 1928,
these had been transferred fromn Mr. Moyer to Mr. John P. Ebbs, a
member of the Haydon firm, hy reason of some instructions from Senator
McDougald, about whiceh there seems to be some insolvable mystery,
and about which there need not have been any mystery at all if the
transactions were an ordinary business one.

This statement is peculiarly malicious in view of the evidence of Mr. Ebbs,
a member of the Ottawa Bar, who testified to the effeet that the shares in the
new Syndicate had been purchased with Senator McDougadld's money and who
later said at page 723, in answer to a question by Colonel Lennox:-

Q. There seems to be an awful lot of mystery about McDougald?
A. There is no mystery as f ar as I can see. These shares of Senator

McDougald were plaeed in my name. I gave Senator McDougald Declar-
ations of Trust immediately.

48236--22
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The explanation as to why these shares were alilowed to remain in Ebbs'
naine is simple. Until certain as te the soundness of the enterprise, Senator
McDougald did not wish his naine connected w.ith it, as thereby others might
possibly be induced to invest. These, we may add, were a)lso the reasons of
other members of the Syndicate who did likewise and whose naines we need not
mention.

ARGuMENT

It shoulti be remembere.d that no charges of any sort have been matie
against Senator McDougald. In his opening, addresýs Mr. Mann states at page
22:-

These gentlemen, sir, do not stand charged before this Coinmittee;
they stand named in a report of the Committee of the Huse of Commons
whîch this Cominittee has thought fit to act uipon. They do not stand
impeached before this committee in any way. They are here for the
purpose of an inquiry into matters which have been mentioned and with
which their naines have been connecte'd throughout the evîdence given
before the bouse of Cominons Coiniittee................

I think it is for you gentlemen to consider that this is not a trial of
individuals; this is a matter for ýconsideration as to whether the dignity
and iprivileges of the Senate have been assailed,............

And this attitude of counsel was frequently concurred in both by the Chair-
inan and by the other ruembers of the bonourable Comninttee.

Under the terins of the Order of Reference of the 11th of February, 1932,
it would ýseem that the only point for this 'Commiittee to determine is as to how
anti to, what extent the privileges andi righits of the Senate have been affcctcd by
the Report of the Committee of the Commons which has been under investiga-
tion "insofar as saiti Report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate."

Under reserve, therefore, we respectfully subinit un behalf of Senator Mc-
Dougald, the following points f or the consideration of this bonourable Comn-
mittee:

(1) Under the terins of The British North America Act the jurisdiction of
the bouse of Commons is entirely distinct froin the jurisdiction of the Senate.
Lt therefore follows that no special committee of the Commons ner the House of
Commons itself has, in accordance with constitutional practice, any authority
to pass a resolution or atiopt a report censuring or rcfieeting upon the conduct
of a member of the Senate. This is a inatter exelusively within the jurisdiction
of the Senate.

Thus Bourinot Parliamentary Procedure, Fourth Edition, at page 40 says:
Each house, however, exercises andi vindicates its own privileges in-

dependently of the other ......... Each house deelares for itself what
cases are breaches of privilege but the grounds for their action are based
upon the saine principles and precedents.

And agaîn the saine author, at page 69, quoting froin May's Constitutional
History, Ninth Edition, volume 2, pages 26 andi 27, says:-

Both Houses of Parliament "mnust act within the limits of their juris-
diction, and in strict conformity with the laws. An abuse of privilege is
even more dangereus than an abuse of prerogative. In the one case the
wrong is done by an irresponsible body; in the other, the ministers who
advised it are open to censure and punishinent. The judgment of offences
especially should be guided by the severest prînciples of law."

The reflections and charges agaînst Senator McDougald as a member of this
Honourable bouse, which are contained in the Report of the Commons Coin-



BEAUHARNOIS POWER PROJECT

mittee are unfounded in law and unjustified in fact. They are a direct violation
of his privileges as established by constitutional practice and the usage existing
both in England and in Canada.

(2) It was entirely proper that in the year 1923 Senator-then Doctor-
McDougald should have associated himself with Henry in business enterprises
and that these should have included the possibilities of power development in
the Soulanges-Beauharnois region, also that the expenses of the Engineering
examinations should have been borne by Senator McDougald. Mr. Henry was
supplying the knowledge and the work and Senator McDougald was financing
him to the extent of $10,000. Such conduct on the part of Senator McDougald
is not merely not reprehensible but praiseworthy.

(3) On the 7th of May, 1924, or prior to his appointment to the Senate,
Dr. McDouglad was appointed as a member of the National Advisory Com-
mittee. It is clearly established that during all the time in which he acted on
this Committee he evinced little or no interest whatever in the enterprises of
Henry.

(4) Subsequent to his appointment as a member of the National Advisory
Committee, Dr. McDougald was summoned to the Senate, being sworn as a
miember in December, 1926. On the 11th of January, 1928, the report of the
Joint Board of Engineers was concurred in by the National Advisory Com-
mittee. An examination of this report and of the evidence of Mr. Henry and
of Senator McDougald himself will show that it favoured a development on
the north shore of the St. Lawrence. Senator McDougald has testified that
up to this time he had given no consideration to any possible rights of the
Sterling Company by reason of its applications, but even had he done so, the
fact remains clear and uncontradicted that in concurring in the report of the
Engineers adopted by the National Advisory Committee, he was acting adver-
sely to any interests that might have belonged to the Sterling Company. The
rights of the latter were limited to the south shore and they were adversely
affected by the report in question, as a development of power on the north shore
would necessarily have precluded any similar development on the south shore.
The charges against Senator McDougald in reference to his conduct and motives
as a member of the National Advisory Committee are entirely unjustified and
unfounded.

(5) The first Beauharnois Syndicate was dissolved on the 4th April, 1928.
Each member in this Syndicate had been given two units for every one held
and had then the right to subscribe at par for a similar number of units in the
Beauharnois Power Syndicate, which had been formed to replace the original
Syndicate. The late Winfield Sifton was the holder of 800 units of the first
Syndicate. He thus, by the arrangement mentioned, became the owner of 1,600
units of this Syndicate, with the right to subscribe at par to 1,600 further units
in the second, or Beauharnois Power Syndicate. It was only on the 18th of
May, 1928, that Senator McDougald acquired Sifton's rights. The manner in
which these rights were acquired has been explained by Mr. Moyer, by Mr.
Barnard, K.C., by Mr. Banks, and by Senator McDougald himself. Mr. Sifton
was not merely repaid the amount of his investment. He was paid this amourt,
plus his out-of-pocket expenses, amounting to some thousands of dollars, receiving
in settlement from Senator McDougald $46,000 of Victory Bonds, which were
then selling at a premium. This was an ordinary business transaction entered
into long before the success of the enterprise was in any way assured and cannot
call for any adverse comment. All payments made by Senator McDougald
subsequent to the acquisition of the Sifton interests were made on exactly the
same basis as were the payments by the other members of the second, or Beau-
harnois Power Syndicate.

4836-22
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(6) Bearing these facts in mind, the statement of Senator McDougald to
the Senate on the 19th of April, 1928--prior to his acquisition of the Sifton
interests and prior to any agreement between the Sterling Company and the
second Syndicate-was literally true and correct.

(7) In like manner, we strongly urge that the statement to the Senate by
Senator McDougald on the 20th of May, 1931, was also true and correct. It
was, in the first place, intended as a mere re-affimation of the statement made
by him on the 19th of April, 1928. In the second place, it was immaterial
whether his interests in the Beauharnois project had been acquired on the 18th
of May, 1928, or on the 2nd of October, 1928; there was no possible motive why
he should have attempted to deceive the Senate as to these dates; he was speak-
ing of a transaction which had occurrred more than three years previously
and it is grossly unfair to suggest that he was making any untrue or improper
statements, in the speech made by him on the 20th of May, 1931.

(8) The contract covering the sale of the'Sterling Company to the Beau-
harnois Power Syndicate was executed on the 18th of December, 1928. Mr.
Henry has stated-and as to this there is no contradiction-that he regarded
the 2,000 units, which the Sterling Company received, as having a value of
approximately $50,000, which in fact represented the value of the services
rendered by him in this connection up to the date of the sale. (Record of
proceedings page 100). The Order-in-Council, P.C. 422, was passed on the
8th of March, 1929. The transaction prior to this time was of a most speculative
character. The contract of the 18th of December, 1928, was openly arrived at
in a fair and proper manner and we submit cannot justify the slightest criticism
of those directly or indirectly concerned with its execution. It was a plain and
ordinary business transaction and has ever since so been regarded by all con-
cerned.

(9) Throughout the proceedings before the Commons Committee, as well
as throughout the prnceerdings before this Cnmmittee, the Sterling transaction
has from time to time been referred to as a sale or transfer by the Sterling Com-
pany to the second, or Beauharnois Power Syndicate. As pointed out, however,
by Mr. Sweezey, (Record of proceedings, page 45), by Mr. Henry, (Record
of proceedings, page 100), and by the Right Hon. Mr. Graham, (Record of pro-
ceedings, page 184), the transaction was rather in the nature of a merger or an
exchange of securities between the Sterling Company and the Syndicate. As this
was effected on the 18th of December, 1928, prior to the passing of the Order-
in-Council, P.C. 422, on the Sth of March, 1929, prior to the incorporation of
The Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited, on the 17th September, 1929,
and at a time when the entire project was in doubt it is, we submit, in no sense
a transaction that is open to criticism.

(10) There is no evidence whatever in the record before the Commons
Committee or in the record of the proceedings before this Honourable Com-
mittee showing that directly or indirectly. Senator McDougald exercised any
influence of any sort or kind in any of the transactions to which we have
referred. He categorically denies this: (Record of proceedings, page 185.)

By Right Hon. Mr. Graham:

Q. Senator McDougald, did you on account of being a Senator or
for the reason that you were a Senator, make a dollar that you would
not have made if you had not been a Senator?

A. No, sir, not one single dollar. I never used what they call
political influence in any way, shape or form, and never advanced
anything regarding my position to anybody here at Ottawa or any-
where else.
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(11) It also should be remembered that at no time did the promoters of
the Beauharnois project ask for or receive any grant from the Dominion of
Canada and at no time either directly or indirectly were any public moneys
involved. There was not and could not have been a breach by Senator
McDougald of The Senate and Ilouse of Commons Act. (R.S.C. [1927] Chap-
ter 147, sections 21 and 22.-Evidence of Mr. Geoffrion, K.C. Record of
Proceedings, pps. 25-26-27.)

(12) Paragraphs 22 and 23 of the Report of the Commons Commîttee
are incorrect. The statement that " his (Senator McDougald's) actions in
respect to the Beauharnois Project cannot be too strongly condemned" is
altogether unfair and is unsupported by the evidence or documents of record.
On bis behaîf we deny inost emphatically the statements of these paragraphs.
At no time directly or indirectly, as Chairman of the Montreal Harbour Board,
as a member of the National Advisory Committee on St. Lawrence Waterways,
as a Senator of Canada, or as a member of the Special ýCommittee of the Senate
did Senator McDougald allow bis private int.erests to interfere with bis public
duties, nor did he ever, speaking from bis place in the Senate or elsewhere
knowingly make incorrect or untruthful statements.

And we respectfully request this Committee to so declare.

JOHN W. COOK,
LUCIEN CANNON,
HUGH E. O'DONNELL,

Coun.sel for Senator McDo ugald.
Ottawa, April 6, 1932.
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APPENDIX

EXTRACT IFROM THE SENATE AND HOUSE 0F COMMONS ACT
(R.S.C. 1927) CHAPTER 147, SECTIONS 21 ANI) 22

MEMBER-9 OF THE SENATE

21. No person, who is a member of the Senate, shall directly or indirectly,
knowingly and wilfully be a party to or be conccrned in any contract under
which the public money of Canada is to be paid.

2. If any person, who is a member of the Senate, knowingly and wilfully
becomes a party to or concerned in any sucli contract, lie shall forfeit the sum
of two hundred dollars for each and every day during which lie continues to
be such party or so concerned.

3. Such sum may be recovered from him by any person who sues for
the same, in any court of competent jurisdiction in Canada.

4. This section shahl not render any scnator hiable for such penalties,
by reason of bis being a sharebolder in any incorporated company, having a
contract or agreement with the Government of Canada, except any company
whicb undertakes a contract for tbe building of any public work. R.S., c. 10,
s. 20.

MEMBERS 0F THE SENATE AXND OF THE HOUSE 0F COMMONS

22. No member of the Senate or of theHbuse of Commons shaîl receive
or agree to receive any compensation, directly or indirectly, for services ren-
dered, or to be rendered, to any person, either by himsclf or another, in relation
te any bill, proceeding, contract, lain, C-t Lrvt'rsy, eIiai-ge, acubation, ar1e8t,
or other matter before the Senate or the House of Comment,, or before a com-
mittee of either House, or in order to influence or to attempt to influence any
member of either buse.

2. Every member of the Senate offending against this section shall be
hiable to a fine of not less than one tbousand dollars and not more than four
tbousand dollars; and every member of the House of Commons offending against
this section shaîl be liable to a fine of nlot less than five bundred dollars and
not more than two thousand dollars, and shall for five years after conviction
of such offence, be disqualified from being a niember of the House of Commons,
and from holding any office in the publie service of Canada.

3. Any person who gîves, offers, or- promises to any sucli member any
compensation for sucli services as aforesaid, rendered or to be rendered, shail
be guilty of an indictable offence, and hiable to one year's imprisonment and
to a fine of not less than five hundred dollars and not more than two thousand
dollars. R.S., c. 10, s. 21.

MEMORANDUM 0F ARGUMENT ON BEHALF 0F THE HON.
ANDREW HAYDON

1. The Order of Appointment is "for the purpose of taking into consideration
the Report of a Specilal Commîttee of the bouse of Commons..............
in s0 f ar as the said Report relates to any Honourable Members of the Senate."
Reference is, therefore, to be had only to the Report itself and to the matters
therein contained relating to any Honourable 1\einhers of the Senate. Tihis is
the seope of the Inquiry.
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2. So far as the Hon. Andrew Haydon is concerned, particular reference to
him is found in Division 14 of the Report of the House of Commons Committee,
and he is there criticized in respect of two matters:-

(1) The receipt from Mr. Sweezey of money for campaign purposes.
(2) The acceptance by his firm of a retainer said to be contingent upon the

passing of Order in Council Number 422.

3. Campaign purposes.-Upon the broad general question as to the propriety
of accepting large contributions to political campaign funds, Counsel cannot
well assist the Committee by any argument that would deal adequately with
the whole question. Members of the Committee, as public men, are familiar
with the whole subject and with its many aspects. The practice bas been
general and bas not been confined to any one party. There bas been no attempt
on either side to adduce evidence to support any particular view of the subject.
It would be idle for any person connected with, or intelligently interested in,
any great political party in Canada, or in Great Britain, to pretend that he
did net know of the existence of the practice and that political campaigns are
financed to a great extent in this way, and if the practice is essentially wrong
then many are particeps crimnis.

So far as the Hon. Andrew Haydon was personally connected with the
contributions in question, his position does not differ from that of most active
members of any of the great political parties, except in this that the money
was actually paid into his bands. There is no evidence whatever that in
receiving the money be became party to any bargain or promise or arrangement
of any kind with Mr. Sweezey or anyone represerited by him. The money was
not paid at a time when Mr. Sweezey or his Company were seeking any favour
or advantage of any kind from the Government. The occasion of the payment
was an impending general election for the legitimate purposes of which Senator
Haydon's party was in need of funds. Hon. Andrew Haydon is no more the
proper object of criticism for having received the money than is another gentle-
man who solicited, but did not actually obtain, a large contribution for the funds
of the Conservative Partv. Neither of these men is really any more open to
criticism than is every public man who receives assistance directly or indirectly
from the funds collected in a similar manner at every election. Counsel is not
arguing either for or against the practice. His purpose is merely to point out
that when there are so many to be condemned, if the practice is wrong, it would
be a travesty to select for condemnation the man whose proven honesty bas
made him an unwilling trustee of the funds.

4. Retainer.-It is important to see exactly what it is that is criticized
under this head. It is not the amount of the retainer. Neither this Committee
nor the Commons Committee bas been constituted a taxing officer to decide
how much a lawyer's bill of costs should be--and that is plainly not what is
meant by the Commons' Report.

Neither is it the alleged acceptance of a contingent retainer that is criticized
as such. Whether lawyers should ever accept contingent retainers, or under
what circumstances they are proper is a matter for the Law Society or the
Bar Association, who deal with matters of professional ethics. This much may
be said that every lawyer knows that the amount of his fee and at times the
question whether be actually will be able to collect a fee at all not uncommonly
depends on how the business in hand results.

But the point of the criticism here is not these things, but it is the nature of
the alleged contingency. The complaint is that the retainer in substance involved
Senator Haydon in using his position and influence to obtain the passing of
Order-in-Council P.C. 422, and that he was to be paid for this.

It bas not been suggested and can not be maintained that a member of the
Senate is to be condemned for accepting a retainer from a client to render services



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

not connected with the Governmnent merely because his client happened to have
some other business with the Governrnent -especially wvhen none of it is business
that cornes before the Senate. A Senator or Member of Parliament with any
considerable connection would lead a most precarious life if that sort of rule
were laid down.

Now it, is as plain as any* thing well can be that on the evidence here neither
Senator llavdon nor his firm had any connection whatever, professional or
otherwise, with the passing of Order-in-Council P.C. 422. There is thle evidence
of botb Senator Haydon (p. 189) and of bis partner Mr. Ebbs (p. 71 foot). But
more convincing stili is the evidence of the very persons who were active in
obtaining this Order-in-Council. There are Frank P. Jones (pp. 388-389 Coms.
Com.); Mr. Geoffrion who, appeared the day the Order was passed, (p. 677 Coms.
Com., and see bis evidence p. 26 of this Corns.); Andrew T. Thompson (p. 341
and 350 Coms. Com. and p. 107 et seq.; this Com.) Ainslie W. Greene (p. 7,50-
732 Coms Com.) Then there were Mr. Sweezey and Senator McDougald who
were both examined at great length as to what persons they had seen as wefl as
a number of Departmental officers. No witness whomsoever throughout the whole
long story, either before this Committee or before the Commons Committee ever
named Senator Haydon or bis firm in connection with this Order-in-Council.

Further it now appears clearly that there was no conditional retainer. In
his evidence before the Commons Comrnittee Mr'. Sweezey through bis imperfect
mnemory of events was led into a statement regardiug bis arrangements with Mr.
McGiverin that he now admits, and which the documents demonstrate was in-
correct. He had said that bis first arrangements with Mr. McGiverin were for'
a $50,000 fee conditional on the passing of the Order-in-Council, and a fee of
$15,000 a year for three years (p. 728 Coms. Com.). He now admits he was
wrong (p. 56 Senate Com.). The records show that tne retaîner was only $7,500,
and was paid at once, on Octobcr 4, 1928 (see copy of Ledger filed). The $50,000
fcc and the three year retaîner were later arrangements (p. 56 this Committee).
The three year retainer only began Octoher 1, 1929, and the first payment, on
aecount was made June 12, 1930, (ex. 86). The $50,000 fee was paid on Octobcr
17, 1929 (Ex. 85).

If is fo be noted that both the $7,500 paid October 4, 1928, and the $50,000
are the chcqucs of the Marquette Investment Ccrporation and not of the
Beauharnois Power Company Limited. This Was money of the Syndicat e.
Counsel for the Comrnittee have at, times during thc cnquiry spoken of the
money of the Syndicate as if it were public irnoney or money got from the public
by the sale of securities of the Beauharnois Power Company Limited. There is
no warrant for this. It was the Syndicate's money in every sense and no one
clse's. It camc out of the funds the Syndicate had provided for its expenses.

This unfounded story of a contingent retainer is a sample of the distorted
and unjust statements that result from the methods employed in the examina-
fion of witnesses before the Commons Committee. Statements are extracted from
wvitnesses that are palpably in conflict with the very documents then in hand by
which the business was carried out.

It is further to be borne in mind that it was Mr. McGiverin with whomn Mr.
Sweezey made his arrangements-not Senator Haydon. Mr. McGiverin was a
man of standing and bis services were dcsired and he was f ree to give them. It
was he who set the fees that were paid and the persons who paid them have not
complained.

It is submitted that there is no evidence whatever before this Committee to
support any criticism of the conduct of Senator Haydon.

Dated this 8th day of April, 1932.
R. S. ROBERTSON.
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BRIEF SUBMITTED ON BEHALF 0F HONOURABLE SENATOR
DONAT RAYMOND

Mn. CHAIRMAN AND GENTLEMEN:

The report made during the Session of 1931 by the Special Committee of the
flouse of Commons on the Beauharnois Power Projeet, which your Committee is
instructed to considei and to report on does not, in its conclusions, contain any
charge or censure against The Honourable SenatorDonat Raymond.

Section 15 of said report contains, howevcr, certain refiections or insinuations
which are unjustified. 1 submit, with due deference, that nothing in the evidce
adduced before the said Committee warranted these insinuations and that the
additional information now in the possession of your Honourable Committee
makes it abundantly clear that they were erroneous and unfounded in fact.

II

THE FACTS

Senator Raymond was invited by Mr. Jones and the Honourable Mr. Mitchell
to join them in the Beauharnois Power Projeet early in the year 1927. After
consideration, having confidence in Mr. Joncs as a business man, he accepted
and, on the lst April 1927, subscribed for 800 part-interests or unîts in the first
Syn-dicate, for which he paid $30,000 of bis own rooney (Blue Book pp. 787 and
788.) He~ did not know then who were intercsted in the Syndicate other than
Joncs and Mitchýell. He did not know Sweezcy and had no knowledge of bis
connection with the Syndicate.

These 800 unîts were placed in the name of "Le Crédit Général du Canada".
The Senator had for some time adopted the policy of neyer allowing his name to
be published in connection with any new venture. He was quite willing to gamble
with bis money, but did not want bis friends to gamble on the strength of bis
name and, for that reason, always subscribed tbrougb a trust company or a broker.
As a further instance of this well-cstablished policy, the Senator referred to
similar investments made previously, in wbich lis shares were placed and are
still bcld in bis broker's name. (Blue Book pp. 788 and 789). This statement by
the Senator is corroborated by Mr. Sweezey. (Ibid. pp. 644 and 645).

In the opinion of the Senator and of Messrs. Joncs and Mitchell, this projeet
was exclusively a matter within provincial jurisdiction. The hydro-electrie power
developed from the barnessing of the waters of the St. Lawrence River bclonged
to the Province and was among its natural resources.

Mr. Jones sta-ted that the only question to be submitted to the Federal
Government, in his opinion, was whetber this projeet wuuld interfere witb naviga-
tion. If it did, leave to carry it out could not be granted. If it did not, leave
could not be refused without intcrfering with Provincial rights (Blue Book p.
389).

Before the Committec of the Huse of Commons Senator Raymond said:
I did not feel that it (Ottawa) had anytbing to do with it, because it

was in Quebec and not in Ottawa. (Blue Book page 789.)
and before your Honourable Committee:

I want to say that, as f ar as the Beauharnois is concerned, right from
tbe beginning, I did not tbink tbat Ottawa had anything to do with it,
and I was led to believe by our Counsel, Mr. Geoffrion, that, as far as
Ottawa was concerned, they had to say 'yes' to grant it, if it did not
interfere with navigation; and if it did interfere with navigation, tbey bad
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no alternative, they had to say 'no'. So, 1 neyer thought that Ottawa had
anything ta do with the deveiopments of any power in the Province of
Quebec (Praceedings of the Special Committee of the Senate, page 135).

It is with this assumption, later confirmed by the Judgment of the Supreme
Court, that the Senator took an interest in the Projeet.

The necessary authority from the Province of Quebec was obtained un the
23rd of June, 1928, when an emphyteutic lease was. granteci by the Lieutenant-
Gavernor-in-Council, under the provisions of 18 George V (P.Q.) chapter 113.

Senator Raymond stated categorîcally, withaut being cantradicted, that at
no time did he attempt ta exeit his personai influence on behaif of this Project;
that he neyer went ta Quebec for that purpose; that the only help given by him
was by investing his own money in the Syndicate. (Blue Book pp. 789 and 794.)

On the 4th April 1928, a second Syndicate, called the Beauharnois Power
Syndicate, acquired the assets of the first, the cansideration being two units of
the new Syndic atc for each anc unit af the oid Syndicate, wîth the right ta unit-
holders ta subseribe for as many units in the new Syndicate as each already heid
therein at $100 per unit, being the par value thereof.

The 800 units heid by the Senator became, therefare, sixteen hundred units
and in May 1928, the Senatar exercised his right and subscribed for sixteen
hundred further units, whîch, under bis direction, were placed in the name af Mr.
J. R. Lefebvre, his secretary and naminee. These units cost the Senatar $160,000
and his total investment became $190,000 for thc 3,200 units which he held.
(Blue Book page 790.)

Shortly after, in July, 1928, the Senator soid ta Mr. Simard, of Mantreai,
2,000 units at $100 each, i.e. $200,000. From that amount the Senator was fuliy
repaid of his investment, plus a profit of $10,000 and he stili retained 1,200 units,
fuily paid up, in the Syndicate. (Blue Book, page 791. Praceedings af the
Special Committee of the Senate, page 132.)

Mr. Geoffrîon's activitics began at Ottawa anly after that. These activities
were purely legal and required na palitical influence whatever, as stated by Mr.
Geoffrion himself befare yaur Honourable Committee:

We naw coule ta the Dominian only for approval or disapproval under
the Navigable Waters Protection~ Act. If we were right on that question,
ail the Dominion Gavernment had to do was ta get its engineers ta report
an the subject. If the engineers reported favourabiy, namely, that this
was not an interference with navigation, they were bound ta give us their
approvai. The decisian is a judiciai ane. If they thaught it was an inter-
ference they were bounýd t.o say no. That was a matter for thc engineers
aimost entirely. I did not need ta consuit Mr. Raymond, because as an
engineer I do not think lie is of any use ......... Ail my activities were
activities of a class that did not require any influence whatever. (Pro-
ceedings of the Special Cammittee af the Senate, pp. 26 and 27).

And the Senatar said that he neyer went ta Quebec or Ottawa for the purpose
Df helping this projeet, nor did he do anything whatsoever to "push the deai"
(Blue Book, pp. 789 and 790.) (Proceedings af the Speciai Carnmittee of the
Senate, pp. 136 and 137). These statements are absoiuteiy uncantroverted.

Later, a divergence of opinian arase between Joncs and Sweezey as regards
the best methad of financing this enterprise, and, an the 26th July, 1929, Senator
Raymond, who shared Mr. Jones' opinion, gave an option ta Mr. Sweezey,
through Mr. Joncs, ta buy the 1,200 units which he stili held in the Beauhar-
nais Power Syndicate and the option wvas taken up by Mr. Sweezey who paid
$5W0 per share.

Mr. Joncs had a proxy for about 6,900 shares including the Senator's 1,200.
There were 351 shares ieft over. The Senator thought he wauld like ta lie con-
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nected, for sentiment's sake. with the Beauharnois development. Beauharnois
is his native place, bis f ather's place of abode, bis brother's constituency. In bis
opinion, this development wau in the interest of the people, of Beauharnois and
of the Province of Quebec. H1e therefore purchaseti these 351 shares left over at
$5650 each, i.e. $193,050. (Blue Book, pp. 791 and 792.)

When the Beauharnois Power Syndicate was acquired by the Beauharnoîs
Power Corporation Limited, on the l7th of December, 1929, as ail the other
members of the Syndicate, the Senator received, for each of these 351 shares costing
hlm $550, a cash payment of $150 and 40 shares Class A, of the Capital Stock of
the new Corporation (Blue Book, p. 793.)

As a net result of ahl these operations, the Senator has realized a profit of
$529,600, but this profit came out of thc pcrsonal resources of Mr. Simard in
1928, andi of Mr. Sweezey in July, 1929, much prier to the investment of any
money by the public.

III

THE REPORT

For the purpose of this brief, I propose to deal with the paragraphs of the
said report relating to Honourable Senator Raymnond in the order in which they
appear at pages XXVI and XXVII of the Blue Book fileti herein.

A

Section 15 (1) of the Report, reads as follows:
(1) Senator Raymond was appointed to the Senate on the 2Oth

December, 1926. H1e, voluntarily, after the permission of the Senate had
been granted, appeareti before the Committee on the afternoon of the l6tb
July, 1931, and stated that he had subscribed on the lst April, 1927, at the
suggestion of Honourable Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Frank P. Jones, for 800
units of the Beaubarnois Syndicate at a pýrice of $30.000 which be p aid.
These became 1,600 units in the second Syndicate and, as was bis right, he
subscrîbed for 1,600 further units in the name of J. R. Lefebvre, and made
bis holdings 3,200 units. On the whole transaction lie realized, as of the
17th December, 1929, $529,600 profit and 14,040 shares of Class A Stock
of the Beaubarnois Power Corporation Limited. Senator Raymond sold all
his originally acquired units at the same time that Mr. Frank P. Jones
solti bis at $550 per unit, andi later Senator Raymond bought from W. G.
Mitchell 350 units and f rom R. T. Fuller one unit in tbe Beaubarnois
Power Syndicate anti he held these at the dissolution of the Syndicate on
the 17th December, 1929. His total profit was as above mentioneti. H1e
states that neither at, Quebec nor at Ottawa dîd hc cxcrt or attempt any
political influence on behaîf of the Beauhiarnois applications. Hie evidence
is that bc "did nothing to push the deal." On page 794 of the evidence,
Senator Raymond was asked:

Q. Then are we to understand you to say, that havîng this interest
in thîs project andi knoxving that there was a very strong opposition and
a big fight being put up, you neyer turneti a hanti to help it at all?-A. I
do not know if there was anything in my power to do towards helping it.

Q. Well, you could help?-A,. I thought the only help that I could
give was to put my money in.

Q. I may take it then, from what you say, that we have your unequi-
vocal statement that at no time did you attempt to exert your personal
influence on behaîf of this project?-A. At no time.
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I have only one comment to offer with respect to this paragraph.
The statement that Senator Raymond has sold all his originally acquired

units at $550 per unit, is inaccurate, and the further statement that he has
realized, as of the 17th December, 1929, $529,600 profit, and 14,040 shares of
Class A Stock, is somewhat misleading if it is to be construed as meaning that
such profit was realized in December, 1929.

When he appeared before the Committee, on the 16th July, 1931, Senator
Raymond very clearly and openly stated that in July, 1928, he had sold to Mr.
Simard, of Montreal, 2,000 units at $100 each, i.e. $200,000 (Blue Book p. 791.)
As of July, 1928, he had therefore been repaid of his $190,000 investment, plus
a profit of $10,000 retaining, at the same time, 1,200 fully paid up units in the
Syndicate, which did no longer cost him anything. (Ibid.) It would there-
fore be inaccurate to state that his profit was $529,600 as of the 17th December,
1929.

In July, 1928, the Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited was not yet
incorporated and not a cent of the money of the public was invested as yet
in the project.

The same is true of the sale of the balance of the Senator's original hold-
ings made through Mr. Jones, to Mr. Sweezey, pursuant to the option given to
the latter on the 26th July, 1929. (Blue Book pp. 483 and 790.)

The Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited was organized later, and
took over the assets and interests of the Beauharnois Power Syndicate only on
the 17th December 1929. (Blue Book page XV (22).)

B
Section 15 (2) reads as follows:-

(2) At the conclusion of his evidence one of the members of the
Committee expressed the view that he ought to be commended for his
frankness in giving his evidence. It was, however, later disclosed in
evidence that, according to the bill of Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud'homme,
Counsel for the Beauharnois Syndicate (Exhibit No. 114) from September
10, 1927, to May 23, 1928, there appear some sixteen entries charging
for interviews with and telephones to and from Senator Raymond. An
interview appears to have taken place on one occasion with Honourable
Mr. Mitchell and on another occasion in Ottawa with Senator Mc-
Dougald.

This paragraph imputes no blame to Senator Raymond but contains an
innuendo which is entirely unwarranted.

Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud'homme's bill was filed, as Exhibit 114, only on
the 21st July, 1931, i.e., five days after the examination of the Senator, and
the day before the last of the sittings of the Committee. It was filed without
any comment and it was not printed. Senator Raymond was not examined
with respect to his relations with Mr. Geoffrion, who was the legal adviser
of the Syndicate. Consequently, the Senator, being heard as a witness, could
not, without being irrelevant, make any reference thereto, if such reference was
at all necessary.

Senator Raymond had already stated that he did not go to Quebec or
Ottawa with respect to the Beauharnois project, that he had not gone to Quebec
during the sessions of 1927 and 1928 and that, a no time, did he do anything
to push the deal. (Blue Book pages 789-790.)

Both Senator Raymond and Mr. Geoffrion stated before your Honourable
Committee that their interviews were exclusively as between solicitor and
client and of a legal character. Mr. Geoffrion never needed nor requested the
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influence of Senator Raymond. His purely legal activities did not require any
influence whatever. (Proceedings of the Special Committee of the Senate,
Senator Raymond, p. 34; Mr. Geoffrion, pp. 26 and 27).

With reference to his bill Exhibit 114 covering the period from September
lOth 1927, to May 23, 1928, Mr. Geoffrion says:-

* . . It has been suggested that those consultations with Senator Ray-
mond at that time indicated that lie was using influence. Hie was not
using influence at al. .. .. .. .(Proceedings of the Special Committee
of the Senate p. 26),

and again:-
S..My w ork down to August 1928, was entirely devol ed to the Quebec

end of this thing. 1 do not suppose that you are concerned with that
part of it. If you are not concerned with that part of it, as I will assume,
then I will take that part of my bill for what I may call my activities
in Ottawa. That begins in August 1928 ....... I was called in to take
a hand in the Ottawa end of the affair only in August 1928. .. .. ..
That bill (Exhibit 114) is exclusively occupied with, services rendered
in Quebec. (Proceedings of the Special Comnnittee of the Senate, pages
24 and 25),

and with reference to bis actîvities at Ottawa:
. . . .Mr. Raymond could not be of any help to me, I did not need any
influence. It was purely a question of law, negotiations and terms. I
think there are eight interviews altogether that I find during the seven
months, with Mr. Raymond. They arc ail of the saine character.
Apparently, I wanted information from him or lie wanted an interview
wîth me; but I neyer had any need of his influence, because the field
in which I worked anyway-I am not speaking of the field in which
others work-had nothing to do with influence. It was aIl connected
with legislation, or discussing the terms of the contract .. .. .. .. .. .

And Mr. Geoffrion summarized bis evidence by stating: "Ail my activities
were activities of a class that did not require ctny influence whatever". (Pro-
ceedings of the Special Committee of the Senate pp. 26 and 27).

It would therefore appear that paragrapli (2) of section 15 of the Report
is an irrelevant and unnecessary digression and the innuendo therein contained
is totally unjustifled.

c
Section 15 (3) of the Report reads as follows:-

(3) On page 391, Mr. Frank P. Jones states:-I certainly asked
Senator Raymond over and over again if lie could not do something to
get some action.

Why is this reference inserted in the Report? iNo comment is made in
connection therewith.

And why is not the whole statement of Mr. Jones quoted in extenso? It is
as follows:-

Q. Is it fair to say, Mr. Jones, that while you had had talks with
Senator McDougald and Senator Raymond and others-and I am not
suggesting there was anything improper about interviews you had with
any of these gentiemen-is it f air to say that it was wholly by reason
of your own persuasion that the passing of P.C. 422-that is the Order
in Council-was, procured?-A. No, Sir; I think it was wholly due to
the fact that the feeling was-and I think correctly, sir-they could not
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refuse it without interfering with provincial rights. I did not care who
caipe here-F. P. Jones or who it was, or what the conipany was-the
right belongs to the Province of Quebec, I believe. If it interfered with
navigation, it could not be granted; if it did not interfere with navigation
it could not be refused. (Blue Book p. 389).

Q. In your work, when you were pressing for the granting of the
application, what do you say as to whether or not you were assisted by
any Senators?-A. I repeatedly appealed to some, perhaps as I do to
anybody else, to do what they could to hurry it up, because it seemed
to me it was being dragged out ....

Q. What would you say as to whether you were assisted?-A.
What do you mean by the word " assisted "?

Q. It is a common English word.-A. Well my answer is that
anybody who took an interest in it and who listened and got his views
as to who owned the water, gave us their opinion by way of assistance,
otherwise direct assistance, nobody that I know of.

Q. I see.-A. I certainly asked Senator Raymond over and over
again if he could not do something to get some action. Now, I think
perhaps I should mention I thought perhaps the Premier was waiting
for this assistance of the reference case to the Supreme Court. (Blue
Book, page 391.)

This gives a totally different complexion to Mr. Jones' statement.
If it was the Committee's intention to insinuate that the Senator's political

influence was improperly sought and obtained, a mere quotation of Mr. Jones'
complete statement would have absolutely dispelled it. The very fact that Mr.
Jones had to ask Senator Raymond over and over again if he could not do
something, clearly shows that the Senator had not taken any action. This
is made abundantly clear by the Senator's own statement in this regard:

Q. Then, are we to understand you to say that having this interest
in this project and knowing that there was a very strong opposition and
a big fight being put up, you never turned a hand to help it at all?-A.
I do not know if there was anything in my power to do towards helping
it.

Q. Well, could you help?-A. I thought the only help that I could
give was to put my money in. (Blue Book, p. 794).

Q. Mr. Jones says, in his evidence, at page 391, given before this
Select Committee ....

I certainly asked Senator Raymond over and over again if he could not
do something to get some action.

Q. Is that true?-A. No doubt it is true.
Q. In spite of his asking you, you did nothing?-A. I did nothing.

I do not think I could do anything. (Blue Book, p. 789).
And before your Honourable Committee the Senator said:-

Jones asked me, but the fact that he said " over and over again"
means that I had not donc very much in the matter of helping him . . .
He asked if I could do something, and I told him " No."-I presume
So.

Q. Then, he asked you again if you could do something and you
told him " no "?-A. I told him " no."

Q. He was very persistent apparently?-A. Yes, and I was the same,
persistent in saying I could not do anything. (Proceedings of the Special
Committee of the Senate, pp. 132 and 133).

In all the evidence adduced before the Committee of the House of Commons
and before your Honourable Committee there is nothing to substantiate the
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insinuation that the Senator's political influence was ever used to help this
project either at Quebec or at Ottawa. The Senator's very clear and conclusive
evidence, on this point, is corroborated by Mr. Jones and by Mr. Geoffrion, as
above set out.

If, therefore, any insinuation is to be found in section 15 (3) of the Report,
such insinuation is utterly unfair and completely refuted by an impartial reading
of the evidence.

D

Section 15 (4) of the Report reads as follows:-
It transpired when Mr. Sweezey returned to give further evidence

that Senator Raymond had received from Mr. Sweezey some $200,000
of campaign funds for the Liberal party. The commendable frankness
would seem to require that Senator Raymond should have disclosed this
to the Committee if he wished the Committee to understand that he was
stating fairly his connection between the Government and the Beau-
harnois promoters.

Your Committee will please note that, in his first examination, Mr. Sweezey
had not touched the question of electoral campaign funds. Mr. Sweezey was
recalled on the 17th July, 1931, namely one day after the Senator had given
his own evidence. (Blue Book, pages 819 etc.).

On the 16th July, 1931, no reference to campaign funds had been made as
yet, and the Senator was not questioned at all on this point. The Senator, as a
witness, was bound to limit his answers to the questions as put and, on one
occasion at least (Blue Book, p. 795) he was reminded so to do.

Had he been examined on the question of contributions to campaign funds,
he would have stated, as he did before your Honourable Committee, that, during
the electoral campaign of 1930, acting as trustee for the funds of the Liberal
party, and in that capacity only, without any solicitation, he had been offered
by and had received from Mr. Sweezey the sum which this gentleman men-
tioned in his later statement to the Committee. In due course, all this money
was turned over to the Treasurer of the party. (Proceedings of the Special
Committee of the Senate, pp. 34 and 147).

At the conclusion of the Senator's evidence before the Special Committee
of the House of Commons, the Chairman said:-

Are there any further questions? Well, Senator, we thank you
for attending here at the inquiry and giving your evidence. There are
no further questions the members of the Committee or Counsel care to
ask you, unless you have some questions, Mr. Hellmuth. . . . . (Blue
book, p. 799).

No further question was asked and Mr. Lennox, a member of the Com-
mittee, added:-"I think the Senator should be commended for his frankness."
(Ibid.)

Later, the Senator received a telegram from the Committee summoning him
to Ottawa. Upon his arrival, he saw a member of the Committee, the Honour-
able Ian Mackenzie, who said he thought the Senator would not be needed on that
day. In the afternoon, the Senator received word that he was not wanted on
that day. Notwithstanding that, he stayed over until the evening, when he was
informed personally by Mr. Mackenzie that the Chairman, Mr. Gordon, had
instructed him (Mr. Mackenzie) to tell the Senator that he did not think he
would be wanted any more.

Thereupon, the Senator requested Mr. Mackenzie to inform the Chairman
that he would be available at any time, on three hours' notice.
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Before leaving Ottawa, the Senator renewed to Mr. Mackenzie his assur-
ance that he would answer their call at any time on three hours' notice.

The Senator received no further request to appear. (Proceedings of the
Special Committee of the Senate, pp. 34 and 35).

It is therefore difficult to understand the suggestion made in section 15 (4)
of the Report that the Senator should have disclosed the contributions to the
campaign funds of the Liberal party which, as a trustee, he had received from
Mr. Sweezey's personal resources.

At the time of his examination as a witness, the Committee had not yet
decided whether or not they would take up this question of campaign funds.
This question was determined only on the 17th July, 1931. (Blue Book, p.
820).

Had the Senator attempted to refer to this matter, he would have been told
as he had been on a previous occasion:-"We do not need to go into that."
(Blue Book, page 795).

Even the Senator's usual commendable frankness, therefore, did not require
him to disclose these contributions received, as trustee, without any solicitation
on his part. These contributions were not yet the subject of the Committee's
inquiry.

E

Section 15 (5) of the Report reads as follows:-
(5) In view of Mr. Sweezey's attitude throughout and his views as

to the necessity for political influence, it is hardly conceivable that Mr.
Sweezey would pay this large sum of money over to Senator Raymond
unless he at least was satisfied that the Senator's influence had been or
would be worth the money and it is remarkable that Senator Raymond
did not insist on making some explanation of his position in this regard,
in view of his evidence.

In all the evidence received before the Special Committee of the House of
Commons, or before your Special Committee, there is not an iota to justify such
an inference. On the contrary, most positive, unequivocal and uncontroverted
evidence clearly shows that the Senator's influence was never sought nor
obtained on behalf of the Beauharnois Power project.

The Senator stated, before the Committee of the House of Commons that,
in 1927, 1928 and 1929, he was away in Florida most of the time when steps
were being taken at Quebec and Ottawa in connection with this project; (Blue
Book, pp. 788 and 794) that he knew very little about it, being at no time a
manager in the Syndicates or a director in the Company, (Ibid. p. 789); that
all he had to do was to subscribe and pay for his shares and nothing else,
(Ibid. p. 790); that he never turned a hand to help and never knew there was
anything in his power towards helping; that he never gave a hand at all in any
shape or form; that he never went to Quebec and came to Ottawa only for the
opening of the Session, returning to Palm Beach immediately; that he never
exerted his personal influence in favour of the project. (Ibid. p. 794).

Mr. Jones stated that he had asked Senator Raymond and others over and
over again if they could not do something to get some action; that anybody who
took an interest in the project gave him the benefit of their opinion by way of
assistance, but that otherwise no direct assistance was received; that, in his
opinion, the project was delayed because the Prime Minister was awaiting the
decision of the Supreme Court in the Reference Case (Ibid. pp. 391 and 392).

This evidence is the only one adduced, on this point, before the Committee
of the House of Commons; it is absolutely uncontroverted, and, I submit,
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conclusive; but if it were deemed insufficient, the evidence given since before
your Honourable Commit-tee makes it abundantly clear that the Senator neyer
exerted biýs influence in favour of the Beauharnois projeet.

Mr. Sweezey flrst saw Senator Haydon, in May or June, 1930, who told
him that an e4eotion was coining on and that he (Mr. Sweezey) and his asso-
ciates were regarded as probable good subacribers. M./r. Sweezey was advised
by Senator Haydon that he and Senator Raymond were trustees for the Liberal
party and that contributions for the Province of Quebec could be made directly
to the latter. (Proceedings of the Special Committee of the Senate, pp. 49 &s.)

None of the moneys received by Senators H1avedon and Raymond came out
of tJhe Caigpany's fundfs. They were paid out of Mr. Sweezey's own personal
resources. (Blue Book p. 823) and (Proceedings of the Senate pp. 59 and 81).

Mr. Geoffrion, as biereiýnabo%,e referred to, corroburateýs to the full Senatur
Raymond's evidence tbat bis influence was never used. (Proceedýings of the
SpecW~ Coititee of the Senate, pp. 26 and 27.)

Contributions received by Senator Rtaymnond wrere unsolicited by him; they
were offered -by Mr. Sweezey. Tbe Senator did not profit tbereby; the wbole
aMgunt received was turned over to the Treasurer of the party. (Proeeedings
of the Comniittee of the Senate, pp. 34 and 1417.)

The inference contained in section 15 (5) of tbe Report is uBfounded in
fact, and categorioally refuted by the uneontroverted evidence addueed before
the Cominittee of the buse of Commons and before your Honourable Com-
mittee. This inference is therefore unwarranted and irrelevant.

IV

CONCLUSION

Your Committee is appointed for the purpose of taking into consideraition
the Report of the Special Committee of the Hýouse of Commions on the Beau-
harnois Power projeet in so f ar as tbe said Report relates to any of the
Honourable Members of the Senate.

j s»bnait, with respect and confidence, that iuowhere in tbe Blue Book filed
hierein as exhibit, or in tbe evidence gîven before your Honourable Commîttee,
can you find that any action -or act was directly or indirectly, knowingly or
wilfully taken or done by the 'Honourable Senator Donat Raymondl wbicb is
not ý» leepi4g with the bonour and ititegrity of an Jlonourable Member of tbe
Senate, or wbWch in any way off ends agaix4st the Staitute providing for the
independence of Parliament.

And yet we findi in the Report of tbe Committee of the Huse of nommons
4ggl ini 1he wide-prog xewspaper piiblicity given thereto, insinuations,
innuendos and inferences for wbicb I submit, with due dleference, there is no
foÏundation in the evidenee above referred -to.

'lt ýs iýu iesspxy to stress before this Committee th'e injurious effect wbicb
aucb i»iutQfs have inevitab1y bad in the public opinion.

I respectfully urge that, in vieW of the 'foregoingconclusions, it is tbe duty
çQf yoW' jJnuable Oonnittee to declare that nio action taken4 or act donc by

tbe Hnourble aor Donat Ra.ov ,d offends #gginst the inckpendenoe of
Parliament or the honour and iutegdýty of an Hqonqurgble Memnherof ,thle Senate
of iCanada.

THOMAS VIEN,
j JCaunsel forthe H~oorable $ergator Dormit Raymond.
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EXHIBITS

Exhibits 1 to 129, inclusive, were filed in evidence before the House of
Comnmons Coznmittee in 1931 and form part of this record.

ExhÂbit
No.

1. Order in Council, P.C. 422, 8th Mnrch, 1929, re Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power
Company.

la. Votes and Proceedings, House of Commons, 8th Match, 1929, containing Order in
Coumcil, P.C. 422.

2. 12 Plans, No. 1-165, file 804-1, Department of Publie Works, re Ordex in Council,
P.C. 422.

2a. Plans and Maps (saine as Exhibit No. 2).
3. Order in Council, P.C. 1081, 2'Znd June, 1929 , approval f ormi of agreement for

construction.
4. Order in Council, P.C. 1122, 27th Junc, 1929, ]3eauliarnois Light, beat and Power

deve;lopment workçs.
5. Order in Council, P.C. 1244, 19th July, 1929, approval of agreement between Domin-

ion Govetnment and Government of Province of Quebec.
6. 3 plaats, No. 1202, re Order in Council, P.C. 1244.
7. Orders in Council, P.C. 1758, 9th August, 1900; P.C., 1150, 24th September, 1901;

P.C. 2145, 23rd October, 1929; P£. Ml0, 6th November, 1929, te leases of
Montreal Cotton Company development works.

7a. Copy File 5171, Depa.ttment of Railways and Canais, consent to sub-lease between
MQontteal Cotton Co., B.L.H. & P. Co. and b.M. the King.

8. Orders in Council, P.C. 376.3, 28th Deceride, 1895; P.C. 1566, &th July, 1915; P.C.
2M0, 6th November, 1929, re leases Montreal Cotton Company, renewal lea4se,
and sub-dease (Â Beauharnois Light, beat and Power Company.

8a. Copy File 5171, Department of Railways and Canais, consent te sub-.lease Montreal
Cotton Co., B.L.H. & P. Co., and b.M. the King.

9. Orders in Council, P.C. 1710, 24th July, 1900; P.C. 496, 9th Match, 1923; P.C. 2203,
6th November, 1929; re lease Beaubien Milling Company, renewal lease 0f
:<ontreal Cotton Comapany, an'd stib-lease to Beauharnois Light. fient and
Power Company.

9a. Copy File 5171, Department of Railways and Canais, consent to sub-lease between
Montreal Cotton Co., B. LE. & P. Co. and b.M. the King.

10. Order in Couniiel, P.C. 2W8, December 24, 1906. Lease between Dominion Geov-
ernment and Melntyre & Robert.

il. Order in Council, P.C. 200, October 14, 1907, amending P.C. 23W6.
12. Order in Councîl, P.C. 2168, December 9, 109. Lease to, B. Robert.
13. Order in Council, PC. 3136, Decensber 18, 1920, a.mending lease in P.C. 2168.
14. Order in Council, P.C. 1198, July 30, 1926, permitting Canadian Light and Power

Company to reconstruct certain works referred te in lease of December 10,
1907, P.C. 2168.

15. Order in Counceil, P.C. 1465, Juily 2.3, 1927, permitting Canadian Light a.nd Power
Company te rem ove swing bridge over lock 13.

16. Order in Council, P.C. 2239, December 22, 1928, renewal lease te Oanadian Liglit
and Power Company.

17. Department of Public Works File 804, respecting application of Beauharnois Liglit,
Heat and Porwer Company.

18. Copy of letter, H. B. Griffith, Secretary, Beauharnois Liglit, fieat and Power Com-
pany to Mr. J. B. Hunter, DeputyMinister of Public Works, also detailed plans
of Beauharneis Light, fieat and Po-wer Comnpany, August 20, 10. (Original
of letter is on page 34 of Exhibit No. 17.)

19. Letter, dated July 29, 1929, fromn Beauharnois Liglit, Heat and Power Company te
Mixiister of Publie Works, also detailed plans, May 9, 1929.

19a. B.L.H. &P. Co. Plans of Lands affected, May 9, 1929.
l9b. BLE. &P. Go. Plan of specification for proposed diversion of St. Louis River andl

of St. Louis Irrigation Diteh.
19c. BL.H. & P. Co. Plans and descriptions of lands.
20. An Aict of the Province of Quebec to incorporate the Beauharnois Light, beat and

Power Company. (2 Ed. VII, 1902, Chiap. 72), with ameudments.
21. Sessional Paper of the bouse of Cominons, No. 122, Match, 1930.
22. Sessional Paper of the bouse of Gommons, No. 136a, March, 1929.
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Exhilbit
No.

23. Sessional Paper of the Bouse ocd Commons, No. 295, May, 1928.
M4. MT. Gardiner's speech on Beauharnoi:s Power Project, as contained in Officiai Report

of Debates of Býouse of Commons, May 19, 1931.
25. Statement -in lieu of prospectus fiied with Secretary of State by the Beauharnois

Power Corporation.
26. Province of Quebec Legisiature Private Bill No. 141 of 1928, An Act to amend the

Charter of the Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Company.
27. Letter, dated 22nd February, 1M2, from Mr. Gerard Lacroix to Mr. Cantin.
28. Account rendered by (lerard Lacroix to Transportation Power Company, 5th

March, 1928.
29. Memorandumn prepared by Mr. R. C. Alexander, Engineer, Department of Railways

and Canais, Ottawa, Ont., respecting Beauharnois.
30. Certified copy of application for incorporation of Beauharnois Power Corporation,

Limited, l7th December, 192.
31. Plan for diversion of 40,000 c.f.s., as submitted by the Beauharnois Light, Heat

and Power Comîpany.
32. Memorandum respeeting Navigation Losses from. adding water surface to the St.

Làwrence River between Broekvilie and Lake St. Peter.
M3. Copy of letter, dated November 30, 192, from Mr. Pugsey, Secrctary, Departmeo t

of Railways and Canais, Ottawa, Ont., to L. S. Christie, Beauharnois Light,
Hleat and Power Company.

M4. Copy of letter, dated October 25, 1927, from, Mr. D. W. McLach-lan to L. CI
Sabin, Vice-President, Lake Carriers' Association, Cleveland, Ohio, together
with copy of Mr. Sabin's reply.

35. File No. 16M9, Department of Raiiways and Canais, Ottawa, Ont., re application
for conveyance of part of Ilungry Bay Dyke.

36. Memorandumn prepared by Mr. Cameron showing applications, 1910, to date, for
divemson of water in SooiangePS Rection.

37. Memorandum by Mr. McLachian, respecting proposed works of the Beau-harnois
Company.

38. Memorandum. dated Jue 21, 1912, from Mr. Johnston to Mr. Chaliies, ce proposed
dev elopment of Beauharnoîs Light. Heat and Power Company.

39. Application, January 17, 19M8, týo His Exceilency the Governor Generai by Beau-
harnois Light, Heat and Power Company for an agreement, together with
memorandum, December 17, 1927, from Deputy Miuniter of Public Works to
Deputy Minister of Justice.

39a. Suppiementary memo. by 13..H. & P. Co., January 16, 1928, ce ultimate possibilities
of proposed Bydro-Electrie Power Development between Lake St. Francis and
Lake St. Louis.

39b. Annex to Dominion Order in Council P.C. 422, approving plans of BLE. & P.
Co. under Navigable Waters Protection Act, Hungry Bav and Meiochville.

40. Approval, translated, of Quebec Public Ser-vice Commrission, Septemnber 17, 1929,
B .. I. & P. Co. for construction and operation.

41. Certified e-opy of emphyteutic lease from, Prov ince of Quebec to B.L.H. & P. Co.,
June 23, 192.

41a. Certified copy of emphyteutic lease, June 23, 1928 (40,000 c.f.s.), B.L.H. & P. Co.
42. Translation of report of meeting of Executive Conmacl of Quebec, April 25, 1928,

respecting B.LIT. & P. Co.
43. Memorandum of agreement, Jonc 25, 1929, BILB & P. Co. and the Minister of

Public Works.
44. Province of Quebcc leoue, copy. May 7, 1897, to Montreal Cotton Co.
45. B-LU. & P. Co. compilation of plans. works and descriptions, and plans of site

approved by Order in Council P.C. 422.
46. B.L.H. & P. Co. study of rcmcdial and control works.
47. B.L.H. & P. Co. study of remedial and control works (suppiement).
48& B.L.. & P. Co. description of a portion of Bungry Bay Dyke, Juiy, 1928.
49. Stenographie report o! public hearing by Cabinet sub-committee upon BILH. & P.

Co. application, January 15, 1929.
50. Report upon application of B.L.1{. & P. Co. by inter-departmental committee o!

engineers, January, 192.
51. Pamphlet "Down the Canai" by Beauharnois Power Corporation.
52. Pamphlet "Physicai Facts and Figures on Beauharnois," Beauharnois Power Cor-

poration.
53. Minute Book No. 1, B.H.. & P. Co., covering meetings April 22, 1902, to Novemaber

6, 1929.



SPECIAL COMMITTEE

Exhibit
No.

54. Minute Book No. 2, B.L.1. & P. Co., covering meetings Dýecem-ber 14, 192», to
Mardi 25, M93.

55. Memorandum of agreement, dated October 31, 192, between Beauharnois Power
Syndicate, Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited, and Marquette Invest-
ment Corporation.

56. Indenture, December 17, 192, between Beauharnois Power Syndioate, Beauharnois
Power Corporation Limited, and Marquette lnivestment Corporation.

57. Minutes of meetings céf Board of Syndicate Managers, Beau-harnois Syndkcate,
Marich 2, 1928, to April 10. 1928.

58. Minutes oif meetings of Board of Syndicate Managers, Beanhatnoiâ Power Syndi-
cate, April 4, 1928, to December 4, 1929.

59. Memorandum of Syndicate agreement, May 12, 1927, between R. O. Sweezey and
Marquette Investmàent Corporation.

60a. Part 1. Copy of rpemorandum oif agreement, Februýary 3, 1927, between (1) W. H.
Robert, J. A . Robert, Sarah M. Robert, (2) R. O. Sweezey, and (3) National
Trust Company, Ltd.

60b. Part 2. Copy of agreement, Pebruary 3, 1927, between (1) W. H. Robert, Ê. A.
Robert, J. A. Robert, Miss S. M. Robert, and (2) R. O. Sweezey.

61 Department oif Railways and Canais, Ottawa. File 15261 (Canal Branci) respect-
ing Sterling Industrial Corporation, Limited.

62. Department of Publie Works, Ottawa. File 10g8-1 (ineluding blueprint) respect-
ing Sterling Industrial Corporation, Limited.

63. Department of Secretary of State, Ottawa,. Certified eopy of Letters Patent, July
16, 1924, incorporating Sterling Industrial Corporation, Limited.

64. Beauliamois Power Corporation, Ltd. Book A and Book B, eontaining By-laws
sud Minutes of Board of Directors, September 30, 1929, to April 22, 1931.

65. Beauharnois Power Corporation, Ltd. Minutes oif Management Preferted Share-
holders, December 20, l92, to Mareh 11, 1931.

66. Marquette Construction Corporation. Corporate Records, By-laws and Minutes,
November 4, 1929, November 3, 1930.

67. Beauharnois Construction Company. Minutes of Directors, Minutes of ghare-
holders, July 10, 1929, to March 25, 1931.

68. Beauharnois Land Company. Minutes of Directors, Minutes of Shareliolders,
November 20, 192, to March 25, 1931.

69. Beauharnois Transmission Company. Minutes of Directors, Minutes of Share-
holders, November 20, 192, to March 25, 1931.

70. Copy of memorandum oif agreement, Novemiber 6, 1929, between B-. 1. & P. Co.
and Beauharnois Construction Company.

71. Beauharnoîs Power Corporation, Lîmited. Prospectus re issue of 330,000,000 30
year 6 per cent bonds. Newman, Sweezey & Co., Ltd., Moritreal.

72. Beauharnois Power Syndicale. Balance Sheet, December 17, 1929.
73. Copy of Trust Deed of Hypothec, Mortgage and Pledge re $30,000,000 30 yenr 6

per cent bonds. Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited, to The Royal Trust
Company.

74. Beauharnois Power Syndicate. Statement showing distribution oif common shares
and of cash to holders of part intleresta.

75. Sterling Industrial Corporation. Momo. of agreement, December 18, 1928, between
Beauharnois Power Syndicale, John P. Ebbs, and Lyla Brennan.

76. Certified copy of Ordier in Council (P.C. 192), February 4, 1929 appointinx Mr.
Rodbert A. C. Hlenry as Deputy Mînister of Railways and CanaIs.

77. Bookiet. St. Lawrence Waterway Project. Report tif National Advisory Com-
mittee, 1928.

78. B.L.H. & P. Co. Plans of new headgates and intake for the relocated St. Louis
River Feeder (or Canal), October 1, 1930. Document 61.

79. B.L.. & P. Co. Estima tes of operating expenses at end tif first year following
comiplete development and sale i 5M),000 commercial horse-power.

80. Beaubarnois Canal. Cross-section for various capacities, based on 2ý f.p.s. flow.
81. Beaubarnois Power Corporation Limited and R. A. C. Henry. Memorandum of

agreement, Marri 10, 1930.
82. BIU. & P. Co. Plans and specifications of the works, pursuant to section 7,

Water-Course Act, May 9, 1929, Document 18.
83. Copy of The Engin.eering Journal, March, 1924.
84. Analytical statement by Robert Dodd and Company of Montreal respecting

Beaubarnois Power Corporation.
85. Cheque, October 17, 1929, for 850,000 issued by Marquette Investment Corporation

in favour of Messrs. McGiverin, Raydoii and Ebbs, Ottawa, Ont.
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86. Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited. Cheque, June 12, 1930, for $7,500 in
favour of Messrs. McGiverin, Unaydon and Elhbs, Ottawa.

87. B3.L.H. & P. Co. Cheque, September 30, 1936, for $7,500 in favour of Messrs.
McGiverin, Haydon and Ebbs, Ottawa, Ont.

88. Account, Octdber 17, 1929, submaitted by Messrs, Mefliverin, ilsydon and Ebbs,
Ottawa, Ont., Vo Mr. H. B. Griffith, B.L.H. & P. Co., for $1,857.24, together
with chaque, December 16, 192, from Marquette Investment Corporation in
favoiir of Messrs, MoGiverin, Ilaydon and Ebbs, Ottawa, Ont., for that amount.

89. John P. Ebbs, declaration of trust certificate, No. 217, for 1,600 part interests in
Beai.harnois Power Syndicate and additional 1,600 part interests in Beau-
harnois Power Syndicate.

90. Report by Mr. Albert S. Crane, Consulting Engineer, New York, October 8, 1930,
Vo Mr. R. A. C. Henry respecting Earthen Embankments.

91. Memorandum, October 21, 1930. from Mr. T. H. Hogg, Consulting Engineer,
Toronto, Ont., to Mr. R. A. C. Henry respecting Dykes along Canal of Beau-
harnois Power Company.

92. Minutes of Sterling Industrial Corporation.
93. Certified copy of Quéec Order in Council, April 27, 1928, authorizing emphyteutit

lease.
91. Certifled co'py of agreement, October 18, 1929, between Dominion of Canada and

Province of Quebec in pursuancc of condition 24 of P.C. 422.
95. Certified copy of Quebec Order in Cauncil, Decembcr 4 and 5, 19m, granting water

rights to Montreal Cotton Company
96. Certified copy of Letter, December 17, 1929, from B.L.. & P. Go. (with Minister's

acknowledgment of receipt endorsed thereon) to Minister of Lands and Forests,
Quebec.

97. Certified copy of lease, May 7, 1897, Province of Québec teo Montreal Cotton Co.
(Se also Exhibit No. 44.)

98. Certified copy of Quebec Order in Council, April 25 and 27, 1928, authorizing lease
to B.L.H. & P. Co.

99. Certifled copy of Quebec Publie Service Commiss~ion, September 17, 1929, approv-
ing plans. B-L.H. & P. Co. vs. Canadian Light and Païwer Co., Beauharnois
Electric Co., Bell Téléphone Co. of Canada.

100. Certifled copy of Quebec Order in Council, October 10 and 11, 1929, approving
plans under Water-Course Act.

101. Certified copy of Québec Order in Council, September 18 and 19, 1929, authorizing
new lease, B.L.. & P. Co.

102. Certified copy of emphyteutic lease, Octoiber 18, 1929, between Minister of Lands
and Forests, Québec, and B.L.H. & P. Go.

103. Certifled copy of report of meeting of Quebec Executive Council, April 27, 1928.
104. Certified copies of all documents relative to application of B.L.H. & P. Co. for

diversion of 30,000 c.fs. through Beauharnois Canal, granteil by Province of
Quebec in 1031, including application and documents or documents of grant.

105. Certifled copy of affidavit leading to granting of probate of wiil of Mr. CluTaord
W. B. Sifton, with schedule of assets.

106. Latter, July 10, 1931, from Mr. Francis King, Dominion Marine Association, Vo
Hon. W. A. Cordon, Chairman of the Coirmittee.

107. Copy of telegraphed letter, July 15, 1931,. f rom Mr. Victor Cloutier, Chief Clerk of
Committees, H. of C., to Hon. Senator W. L. McDougald, inviting h.im Vo
attend the Committee to give evidence on Thursday, July 16, 1931. Also
confirmation of delivery by teleqraph office.

108. Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited. List of Class A Sharehol-ders.
104a. Marquette Investment Corporation cheque dated June 4, 1930, for $199,512.16 psy-

alble Vo Dominion 8ecîirities Corporation.
1M~. Voucher for $4,000 of Domin-ion of Canada 5' per cent 1934 bonds and $150,000

Dominion of Canada 5à per cent 1933 bonds.
110. Bank of Montreal cheque, Deceniber 5, 1929, for $S47.78, payable Vo Cash. Sigred

by Hugh B. Griffith and endorsed "D. T. Main".
111. Five letters from banks in Toronto, dated in July, 1931, to Mr. John Aird, Jr.,

together with Memorandum re bonds. ('rwo yel-low sheets.)
112. Photostatic copy of letter, 1)ecember 5, 1929, from Montreal and signed by John

Aird, Junior, re transfer of bonds.
113. Copy of Order in Council (P.C. 779), May 7, 1924, appointing a National Advisory

Commaittee respecting lmprovement of Navigation on St. Lawrence Waterway.
l1,1a. Marquette Investment Corporation cheque, Septemhber 5, 1928, for $5,857.04 in

favour of Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud'homme.
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114b3. Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud'homme's account, August, 1lm, rendered to Beauharnois

Power Syndicate.
115. Messrs. Thompson, Côté, Burges~s and Code's account, July 24, 192, for $2,500

rendered to Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power CompYany, and Marquette
Investmnent Corporation cheque, July 27, 1928, in payment theref or.

116. Three accounts rendered by W. B. Sifton, April 28, May 19, and May 19, 1928,
together with Marquette Investment Corporation cheque, May 25, 192, in
favour of W. B. Sifton for $1,128.98.

117. Marquette Investment Corporation cheque, November 8, :1929, for $5,000 in favour
of Dr. W. L. MeDougald, for travelling expenses, Jamiary 1 to November '8,
1929.

118a. Hon, W. L. McDoiigald gulest accounts, Nos. 15W7 and 15724, Hotel Bermudiana,
Hamilton, Bermuda.

118b. Hon. W. L. McDougald's account to Beauharnois Light, Heat and Power Co., Ltd.,
for $3,352.32.

118c. Beauharnois Power Corporation Limited cheque, June 13, 1930, in favour of Hýoe.
W. L. McDougald for $3,352.32.

119. Hon. Wý L. McDougald cheques, April 19, 1930, and April 25, 1M30, to Hotel
Bermudiana, for $645.69 and $56.42, respectively.

120. Plans of Ne.sbitt. Thompson Co. re Beauharnois Light, Hbat and Power Comnpany.
121. Blue print of plan of part of St. Lawrence River.
122. Map of Great Lakes and Atlantic Canal and Power Company, Limited. Great

Lakes to Ocean Route.
123. Copy of letter, September 2, 1913, from Mr. R. 0. Sweezey to Sir W. M. Aitken,

London, England.
124. Letter, July 30, 1924, from Canadia.n British Corporation, Ltd., to Harry Clark,

Esq., Montreal.
125. Copy of letter, May 25, 1928, from Mr. Aimé Geoffrion to Hon. Senator W. L.

McDoiagald.
126. Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited. Consolidated Balance Sheet, December

31, 1930.
127. Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited, and Subsidiary Coinpanies. Analysis of

Propertics-, Rights and Interests Accounts, December 31, 1930.
128a. Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited, and Subsidiary Companies. Consolidated

Balance Sheet. May 31. 1931.
128b. Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited. Balance Sheet, May 31, 1931.
128e. Subsidiary Companies Balance Sheets, May 31, 1931.
129. Beauharnois Vower Corporation, Limited, and Subsidiaries. Consolidated Balance

Sheet, Deceraber 31, 1930

Exhibitis 130 to 154, inclusive, were filed in evidence before the Special
Committee of the Senate in 1932, and are as follows:-

Exhibit
No.
130. Volume of the evidence adduced before the Special Committee of the Commons

(Appendix No. 5 to the Commons Journals 1931).
131. Statement of aceount from Messrs. Geoffrion and Prud'homme to Beauharnois

Power Syndicate, dated March 21, 1929 (6 pp.).
132. Copy of letter, dated Montreal, lst August, 1929, addressed to, R. A. C. Henry,

and signed W. L. McDougald.
133. Pass Book showing aecount in the Bank of Nova Scotia, Ottawa, Ontario, of Sterling

Industrial Corporation Limited.
134. Cheque Book, the Bank of Nova Seotia. Ottawa, Ontario, showing cheques i.ssued

by Sterling Industrial, Corporation, Limited.
135. Cheque Book, the Bank of Nova Scotia, Ottawa, Ontario, showing a choque issued

hy Carillon Industrial Corporation, Limited.
136. Statement by the Honourable Senator W. L. MeDougald, regarding the fourth

Report of the Special Committee of the flouse of Commons on Beauharnois
Power Projeet.

137. l>roceedings of the Special Cornmittee of the Senate of Canada, appointed to
inquire into the Developmnllt and Improvement of the St. Lawrence River,
1lm.
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138. Report of Joint Board of Engineers respecting the St. Lawrence Waterway Projeet,

dated November 16, 1926, and Appendices.
139. Pamphilet on St. Lawrence Waterway Project, 1928, containing:-

1. Correspondence between the Government of Canada and the United States,
19S7-28.

2. Report of the Canadian National Advisory Comînittee, fanuary, 1928, and
observations thereupon by certain of ïts members.

3. Orders in Council referring to the Supreme Court of Canada certain ques-
tions as to water rights of the Dominion and the Provinces.

140. Cheque No. 2014, dated Montreal, January 8, 1932, issued by Beauharnois Light,
Heat and Power Company, payable to J. R. L. Starr, for $7,500, with statement
of aecount dàted Toronto, July 31, 1931, and voucher No. 2014, in settIement
of account.

141. Cheque No. 2017, dated Montreal, January 12, 1932, isaued by Beauhamois Liglit,
Heat and Power Com'pany, payable Vo Dr. WT. L. McDougald for $477.15, wîth
statement of account No. 1981, dated 'January 12, 1W32, and voucher No. 2017,
in settiement of account, dated January 12, 1932.

142. Statement from the branch of the Bank of Nova Scotia, at Brockville, Ontario,
showing credits and debits of the current account of the late Mr. Wînfield B.
Sifton from June, 1926, Vo Decmber, 1928.

143. Copy of pages from Book of Accounts of Sterling Industrial Corporation.
144. Copy osf pages from Ledger of Messrs. McGiverin, Haydon and EIibs relating to

Beauharo ois Power Corporation account.
145. Telegram, dated London, Mardi 18, addressed to Senator Tanner, Chairman Investi-

gating Committee, Ottawa, signed "G. H. Ferguson"'.
146. Telegram, dated Ottawa, March 18, 1932, addressed Vo Honourable Howard Ferguson,

Canadian High Commissioner, London, signed "Tanner"
147. Telegram, dated London, addressed to Senator Tanner, Chairman Investigating

Committee, Ottawa, signed "G. H. Ferguson".
148. Certified copy of an Order in Cooncil approx ed by the Hon ourable the Lieutenant-

Governor of Ontario, dated the 29th day of Novembor, A.D. 1929.
149. Three Vouchers-Marquette Investment Corporation:-

1. Voucher, No. 188, dated April 12, 1928, pay to W. B. Sifton 3,61.25.
2. Voucher, No. 189, dated April 14, 1928, pay Vo W. B. Sifton $114.45.
3. Voucher, No. 218, dated May 14, 1928, pay Vo W. B. Sifton $1,318.25.

150. Letter from Mr. Maurice C. Collins, office manager, Beauharnois Power Corpora-
tion, Montreal, Quebec, stating date of Vie delivery of completely signed con-
tract between Vie Hydro-Electrir Pýower Commission of Ontario and the
Beauharnois Light, Hent and Power Corporation.

151. Statement of account of Carillon Industrial Corporation Limited.
152. Office File of eorreepondence and other document,- produced by Mr. John P. Ebbs

relating Vo Vhe incorporation of Beauharnois Power Corporation, Limited.
153. Office File, of correspondence and other documents produced by Mr. John P. Eubs

relating Vo, Sterling Industrial Corporation, Limited.
154. Office File of correspondence and other documents produced by Mr. John P. Ehbs

relating to the incorporation of Carillon Industrial Corporation, Limit.-d.


